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No. 9469.

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

United States of America,

Appellant,

vs.

Armature Exchange, Incorporated, a corporation,

also known as The Armature Exchange, a cor-

poration, also known as The Armature Exchange,

Incorporated, a corporation.

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR THE UNITED STATES.

Opinion Below.

The opinion of the District Court [R. 11] is reported

in 28 F. Supp. 10.

Jurisdiction.

This is an appeal from a judgment of the District Court

entered September 13, 1939 [R. 41], in the amount of

$1,452.30, without interest, assessed and paid as manu-

facturer's excise taxes. Notice of appeal was filed Decem-

ber 12, 1939. [R. 42-43.] The jurisdiction of this Court

is invoked under Section 128(a) of the Judicial Code, as

amended by the Act of February 13, 1925.



—2—
Question Presented.

Whether sales of automobile armatures by appellee were

taxable under the statute imposing tax upon automobile

parts, "sold by the manufacturer, producer, or importer"

thereof.

Statute and Regulations Involved.

The applicable statute and regulations will be found in

the Appendix, infra, pages 31-32.

Statement.

The case was tried to the Court without a jury, and the

evidence consisted of the testimony of three witnesses for

appellee, together with numerous exhibits and documen-

tary evidence adduced by each of the parties. After oral

argument the Court rendered an oral opinion [R. 11-26],

and subsequently filed findings of fact and conclusions of

law in favor of appellee. [R. 28-40.] The facts, as dis-

closed by the undisputed evidence, may be summarized as

follows

:

Appellee was incorporated under the laws of California

[R. 28] "to carry on the business of manufacturing and

assembling armatures, motors and electrical equipment of

any and all kinds. To design and prepare plans and speci-

fications for the manufacture, construction and assembling

of electrical appliances and equipment. To enter into con-

tracts and make the necessary agreements for marketing

and disposing of the same * * *." [R. 106.]

The following is a summary of appellee's major proc-

esses and operations in the production of armatures by

combining new materials with usable parts salvaged from

used and worn out armatures

:
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The used and worn out armatures were placed in a lathe

and the wires leading from the core to the commutator

were cut out with a knife as the lathe revolved, (Joint

Ex. No. 1, p. 1.)

The cores were then heated over a gas flame for about

20 minutes (the flames coming up from a range within

the metal box shown in Joint Exhibit No. 1, p. 2). The

purpose of the heating was to loosen the old wires and old

insulation so that they might be easily removed. (Joint

Ex. No. 1, p. 2.)

After the units were laid out on a metal top table and

slightly cooled, they were placed in a V-shaped slot, and a

steel chisel was driven down between the mass of old

wires which had been loosened by heating, and the old

wires were pried out. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 3.)

The stripped units were then placed in a machine

equipped with a small saw that reslotted each commutator

bar at the place where the old wires were soldered in

(i. e., at the end of the commutator closest to the core).

This machine was operated by suspending the shaft on

which the core and commutator were mounted between a

clamp, and the saw-blade about one and one-half inches

in diameter was moved up to each slot by means of a lever,

and the shaft was rotated by hand. Any solder remaining

in the slots was removed with a small metal pick. (Joint

Ex. No. 1, p. 4.)

The placement of the commutator on the shaft was

checked with a pair of calipers by measuring from the

point on the shaft where the bearing rode to the front end

of the commutators. The distance from the core to the

commutator was measured with a metal rule. (Joint Ex.

No. 1, p. 5.)



Any errors in the mounting of the core or commutator

on the shaft were corrected by means of adjusting their

respective placements by means of an arbor press. The

laminations of almost every core were pressured together

on this same press before any further steps were taken.

This latter operation was done to realign any laminations

which might have become somewhat separated. (Joint

Ex. No. 1, p. 6.)

A test was given to insure that none of the bars on the

commutator were grounded to the shaft, or shorted. This

was done by rotating the end of a live wire over the com-

mutator, and at the same time having the shaft grounded.

(Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 7.)

Then each portion of the shaft leading from each side

of the core was insulated by approximately five wrappings

of paper around the shaft as it protruded from each end

of the core. The insulation was about an inch or so in

length. Each slot in the core was also insulated by placing

therein a folded insulating paper approximately the size

of a cigarette paper ; and each surface end of the core was

insulated with a heavy pressed cardboard which had been

stamp-cut the shape of the surface ending of the core.

This is illustrated in Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 8, in which all

three types of insulation are shown. (Joint Ex. No. 1,

p. 8.)

Approximately 95% of the armatures were wound on a

Chapman winder, designed to wind armatures with four-

teen-slot cores. Those which had a different number of

slots had to be wound by hand. This machine had a lathe,

in which were two jaws that held the laminated core in

such a manner that the shaft extended perpendicularly

from the axis of the lathe an equal distance in each direc-

tion. Two strands of wire led from two different reels
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up through the top of the machine, over pulleys and down

to the armature in the jaws of the lathe. Two sizes of

wire (Nos. 16 and 17) were used in the winding, depend-

ing upon the electrical output expected out of the genera-

tor ; i. e., a heavier wire can give a greater output. Each

coil was wound with six complete turns. On each turn,

the wire in the slot on one side of the core led into the

slot on the direct opposite side of the core. There were

two coils in each slot, making, therefore, in the case of a

fourteen-slot core, twenty-eight coils. Upon the comple-

tion of each coil, that is, after six turns, the wire was laid

up over the commutator-end of the shaft, and, at the con-

clusion of the next coil following, that particular wire

was cut near the commutator-end of the shaft and the

lead end of the wire folded back. However, the lead ends

on the top coils of the half of the core that was lastly

wound were not cut by the winder operator, because there

was no necessity of cutting them, but they were left sus-

pended in a loop over the commutator end of the shaft.

The only reason for cutting the other wires was because

they were from coils that were underneath and, if they

were not cut, the wire from the top coil would bind them

down to the shaft. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 9.)

The armature was then placed in a lathe-like clamp,

called a bench center, which clamp suspended the armature

by holding it at each end of the shaft. Then all of the

wires which were not previously cut by the operator on

the winding machine were cut, and this left fifty-six leads,

with two leads to each coil, and two coils to each slot.

Wooden wedges were then driven over the top of the wires

and into each slot of the laminated core, as shown in

Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 10. This was for the purpose of hold-

ing the wires in the slots. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 10.)



The leads were pulled down in three equal groups and

the ends of the leads inserted into an electrically driven

machine wdth two wire rollers operating in opposite direc-

tions, which cleaned all of the insulation from the leads

for a distance of about two inches from the ends of the

leads. These leads extended approximately four inches

out of the slots of the core. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 11.)

The leads from the top coils were folded back over the

core, and then the leads from the bottom coils were simi-

larly folded back. This was only for the purpose of mak-

ing them easily available to the operator when he was con-

necting them with the commutator. There were four sets

of leads, corresponding with the sets of coils in the arma-

ture. These leads were inserted firmly in place by means

of a small chisel. As the leads were connected, the opera-

tor rotated the armature. A connection of a set of leads

was completed with each rotation. As each complete rota-

tion was made, the wires which then lead from the core

to the commutator were insulated by wrapping with in-

sulating paper approximately one and one-half inches in

width. Since there were four complete sets of leads, this

made three sets of insulation, the top leads being exposed.

Twine was then wrapped around just behind the commu-

tator with about seven turns so in the event the soldering

holding the leads into the commutator became hot, the

cord would still keep the leads in place. (Joint Ex. No.

i,p. 11.)

Solder flux was painted around the commutator where

the wires had been tapped into the slots. The whole com-
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mutator was then immersed into solder, the solder only

adhering to the band where the flux had been applied.

(Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 12.)

The armatures were then placed on end in a tray, and

the tray was lowered into an insulating varnish, where it

remained for about 15 or 20 minutes, so that the cotton

insulation of the wire would be completely saturated. The

tray was then raised, and the armatures drained for ap-

proximately 30 minutes. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 13.)

The armatures were placed in an electric oven and

baked overnight at a temperature of about two hundred

and fifty degrees. The total day's production was gen-

erally dipped and baked at one time. (Joint Ex. No. 1,

p. 14.)

The armature was taken from the oven and placed in a

lathe where the commutator was planed down sufficiently

to true the brush surface of the commutator. (Joint Ex.

No. 1, p. 15.)

The end of the shaft of the armature was placed in a

chuck and was rotated, and by applying an abrasive cloth

to the surface of the laminated core, the shaft and the

commutator, the same were polished, and all the excess

varnish was removed from the metal. (Joint Ex. No. 1,

p. 16.)

The armature was then placed between centers and a

small saw blade, approximately one-quarter inch in

diameter, cut the level of the mica insulation between the

commutator bars to a level below that of the surface of

the bars of the commutator. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 17.)



The armature was tested for shorts. This was done by

placing the armature onto a magnetic growler (that is, by

setting the core part on the magnet) and if there was a

short in the armature, a thin metal blade would be at-

tracted to the core, as shown in Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 18.

The armature was tested to see if it was grounded by

touching one wire to the shaft and the other to the com-

mutator, and if it was grounded, the connection was made

and a light attachment was illuminated. (Joint Ex. No.

1, p. 19.)

The shafts were then checked for undersize with a

micrometer. If the shaft was too far undersize, it had to

be knurled or sleeved. The process of knurling is illus-

trated in Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 20. The shaft was roughened

so that it would fit snugly with a bearing. If the shaft

was too small to be knurled, it had to be turned down on

a lathe and a metal sleeve driven over it. About fifty per

cent of the shafts had to be knurled, and about fifteen per

cent had to be sleeved. (Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 20.)

The armatures were then finally checked by rotating

the commutators under a micrometer. This was done for

the purpose of insuring that every bar of the commutator

was of approximately the same height, otherwise proper

contact with the generator brushes would not be made.

This test is illustrated in the picture on the left side of

Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 21. The ends of the shafts were then

rethreaded and the armatures were ready for boxing.

(Joint Ex. No. 1, p. 21.)

One of the final steps consisted in stamping appellee's

trade-name "Armex" into the laminated core. [R. 102.]
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Thereafter the same were separately boxed and labelled, as

shown by photographic exhibit No. 14. [R. 17 ?[ The

armatures were sold by appellee mostly to jobbers on the

exchange basis of sale for replacement parts, that is, the

selling price was paid partly in cash and partly by an

allowance made for a used article taken in trade. The

appellee's catalog list prices ranged from $2.50 to $22.50.

[R. 82, 95.] The catalog prices were subject to jobbers'

discount. [R. 93.] If a sale was made to a customer who

did not bring in an old armature, an added charge was

made of from 50^ to $1. [R. 95.] The appellee also pur-

chased worn out armatures from junk men for use in its

operations. [R. 95, 97.] Usually about 3,000 armatures

were on hand in all of the various stages, of which 1,000

armatures were in complete form and ready for sale. [R.

80.] The 1,000 articles represented about 600 different

types of armatures. [R. 81.] Sales transactions involved

from one to as many as 40 or 50 armatures. [R. 82.]

Approximately 14 or 15 men were employed in appel-

lee's armature operations and about 80 armatures were

turned out, checked, boxed and put on the shelves daily.

[R. 83.] The armatures so produced by appellee were

merchantable and quality products and so represented.

They were sold by leading jobbers under appellee's own

trade name and catalog code number and were guaranteed

as to quality. [R. 60, 62, 64, 77, 104.]

In its advertising matter published during 1932, 1933,

and 1935 [Pltf's Exs. 3, 4, 5, R. 60, 62, 64] the appellee

constantly and conspicuously used the trade-name

"Armex" for its products. In Exhibits 3 and 4 [R. 60,

62] there is a heading "Product of the Armature Ex-

change, Inc.", and the phrase "Guaranteed Quality" is

also used.
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The appellee, having been informed by the Collector of

Internal Revenue that it was liable for excise tax on the

sale of its armatures, filed excise tax returns for the

period June, 1935, to and including December, 1936, show-

ing an aggregate tax due of $1,052.30 which was paid.

[R. 3-4.]

On September 6, 1935, the Commissioner assessed the

sum of $1,579.72 against the appellee to cover delinquent

tax and interest on the sale of automobile generator arma-

tures which were sold during the period from June, 1932,

to May, 1935, inclusive, and the appellee has paid the sum

of $400 on that tax, in eight installments of $50 each,

from May 28, 1936, to December 30, 1936. [R. 4-5.]

On April 29, 1937, the appellee filed a claim for the re-

fund of $1,452.30. [R. 5.] The claim is predicated on

the ground that the appellee was neither the manufacturer

nor producer of the armatures, but that its process con-

stituted the repair, rebuilding or rewinding of damaged

and burned out automobile generator armatures; also that

the burden of the taxes was borne by appellee. [R. 6-7.]

On November 18, 1937, the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue rejected the appellee's claim. [R. 8.]

Statement of Points to Be Urged.

The points to be urged by the appellant are fully set

forth in the record [111-112], and are fully relied upon

here. The main point is that the District Court erred in

determining that the sales of armatures by the appellee,

during the taxable period involved herein, were not sales

of automobile parts or accessories by a manufacturer or

producer within the purview of Section 606(c) of the

Revenue Act of 1932,
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Summary of Argument.

The transactions involved constituted sales of automo-

bile parts within the meaning of the statute, which is a

revenue measure exclusively, and is to be construed ac-

cordingly. The automobile parts were fashioned by com-

bining new materials with salvaged materials and subject-

ing them to numerous machine and hand operations which

clearly constituted manufacturing processes. The com-

pleted articles were stocked, cartoned, labeled, cataloged

and marketed by appellee under its own trade mark and

trade name "Armex" and were sold chiefly to jobbers for

resale to garage men and mechanics for use in repairing

automobile motors for individual car owners. From the

standpoint of production and distribution in the trade, ap-

pellee performed the function of a manufacturer and pro-

ducer of armatures in the true sense and not the repairing

of used armatures for owners or users.

The principles of the better reasoned and more recent

decisions support the view that appellee is a manufacturer

or producer of automobile parts. Likewise, under the ap-

plicable Treasury Regulations the appellee is taxable as

the manufacturer or producer of the articles it sold.

The judgment, ultimate findings and conclusions of the

court below are not supported by the evidence, are erro-

neous, and should be reversed.
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ARGUMENT.

I.

The Transactions Involved Constituted Sales of Auto-

mobile Parts Within the Meaning of the Statute,

Which Is a Revenue Measure Exclusively, and Is

to Be Construed Accordingly.

By Section 606(c) of the Revenue Act of 1932 [Appen-

dix, infra] y an excise tax equivalent to 2% of the sales

price is imposed with respect to automobile parts or acces-

sories upon the manufacturer, producer, or importer there-

of. However, no imports are involved here.

Clearly, the "Armex" armatures sold by appellee are

automobile parts or accessories. Thus, the inquiry is

whether appellee's sales thereof are taxable to it as the

manufacturer or producer within the meaning of the Act.

The court predicated his decision against the Government

upon the view that the mechanical operations of the appel-

lee constituted merely a process of repair and restoration

and that, therefore, appellee was not a maufacturer or

producer within the provisions of the statute. We submit

that the decision is erroneous.

We contend that appellee was engaged in the manufac-

ture, production and sale of armatures and not in the busi-

ness of repairing used and worn-out armatures; that it

had a factory, made armatures and sold them—it did not

enter into contracts for the performance of labor and

supplying of material with respect to articles owned by

others who retained ownership and sought merely to pro-

long the life thereof by having the articles repaired for

their own use; that in connection with the production of

its article, appellee purchased used, burned out and worn

out armatures which had been discarded and relegated to

the junk heap, i. e., it used, in part, scrap having a value
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essentially as raw material; that it stripped and dis-

mantled the used and discarded armatures and salvaged

and prepared the usable shafts, commutators and lami-

nated cores for its manufacturing and production

processes; that by machine and hand operations, lathing,

cleaning, polishing, cutting, manipulating, assembling,

baking, adding and combining with the prepared salvaged

parts new materials and industry, it processed and

fashioned such materials into articles of merchandise

which it stocked and marketed under its own special trade

name "Armex" quality armatures ; that all of such articles

were the equivalent of armatures processed and fabricated

entirely from new materials which had not been previously

used in similar manufactured articles. In other words,

we contend that all of the essential elements of manufac-

ture exist for the purpose of the taxing statute.

The statute is very broad and comprehensive and indi-

cates a Congressional intent to bring within the reach of

its taxing provisions all persons placing automobile parts

and accessories on the market for sale in the United

States.

An example of the broad scope of the tax, as intended

by Congress, is furnished by Section 623 of the Revenue

Act of 1932, which provides:

Sec. 623. Sales by Others Than Manufac-
turer, Producer, or Importer.

In case any person acquires from the manufac-

turer, producer, or importer of an article, by opera-

tion of law or as a result of any transaction not tax-

able under this title, the right to sell such article, the

sale of such article by such person shall be taxable

under this title as if made by the manufacturer, pro-

ducer, or importer, and such person shall be liable

for the tax. (Italics supplied.)
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The applicable Treasury Regulations (Regulations 46)

broadly define the terms used in the Act. They provide in

part as follows

:

Art. 4. Who is a manufacturer or producer.—As

used in the Act, the term "producer" includes a per-

son who produces a taxable article by processing,

manipulating, or changing the form of an article, or

produces a taxable article by combining or assembling

two or more articles.

Under certain circumstances, as where a person

manufactures or produces a taxable article for a per-

son who furnishes materials and retains title thereto,

the person for whom the taxable article is manufac-

tured or produced, and not the person who actually

manufactures or produces it, will be considered the

manufacturer.

Art. 41. Definition of parts or accessories—The

term "parts or accessories" for an automobile truck

or other automobile chassis or body, or motorcycle,

includes (a) any article the primary use of which is

to improve, repair, replace, or serve as a component

part of such vehicle or article * * *.

Section 1111(b) of the Revenue Act of 1932 provides

that the term ''includes" when used in a definition in the

Act shall not be deemed to exclude other things otherwise

within the meaning of the term defined, and Article 2 of

Treasury Regulations 46 provides that the "terms used

in these regulations have the meaning assigned to them by

section 1111."

Thus, it is obvious that Congress intended to impose the

tax upon the sale of each and every automobile part or

accessory produced and sold to wholesalers, jobbers and
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distributors as well as sales by the manufacturer directly

to the retailer or ultimate consumer. However, the deci-

sion below, if allowed to stand, would nullify such Con-

gressional intent by permitting the production of automo-

bile parts from a combination of new materials with

salvaged parts of worn-out articles having no other value

than that of junk and the sale thereof in competition with

similar automobile parts produced entirely from new ma-

terials, without being subjected to tax upon sale to the

wholesale trade.

It should be remembered that the excise tax is a revenue

measure exclusively. Thus, the facts must be considered

in the light of such statutory object and purpose.

The tax is on each transaction at the rate of 2% of the

manufacturer's sale price of the article sold. It is not

imposed upon repair jobs involving mere contracts for

labor and material on articles owned and used by an-

other. Because of the hundreds of thousands of trans-

actions occurring daily throughout the country, which are

subject to the excise tax provisions, the method of ascer-

tainment of such taxes must be possible of accomplishment

without being fettered by technical refinements which tend

to defeat the purpose of the statute as a means of raising

revenue. The following quotation from Raybestos-Man-

hattaii Co. v. United States, 296 U. S. 60, 63, is apropos

here:

The reach of a taxing act whose purpose is as ob-

vious as the present is not to be restricted by technical

refinements.

See, also. Founders General Co. v. Hoey, 300 U. S. 268,

to the same effect.
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In Tyler v. United States, 281 U. S. 497, the Court

stated (p. 503) :

The power of taxation is a fundamental and imperi-

ous necessity of all government, not to be restricted

by mere legal fictions * * *.

Taxation, as it many times has been said, is emi-

nently practical * * *^

In the Tyler case, the Court held that the Congressional

intent to tax decedent's interest at date of death in a

tenancy by the entireties could not be restricted by the

technical incidents of such common law tenancy. Like-

wise, the terms "manufacturer" or "producer", used in

the statute, should not be treated as words of art, but

rather construed so as to effectuate the evident broad in-

tent of Congress with respect to the taxation of automobile

parts. In Turner v. Quincy Market Cold Storage &
Warehouse Co., 225 Fed. 41, 43 (C. C. A. 1st), it was

held that the term manufacture "is a very broad word,

which it is not safe to limit in a general way." See

Hughes & Co. v. City of Lexington, 211 Ky. 596, 277

S. W. 981, 982, wherein the court, in holding that appel-

lant was engaged in manufacturing, stated:

That the definition of the term is a question of law

and for the courts is plain, but the courts are practi-

cally agreed that it is incapable of exact definition,

and that there is no hard and fast rule which can be

applied, but that each case must turn upon its own

facts, having regard for the sense in which the term

is used and the purpose to be accomplished. [Citing

cases.] (Italics supplied.)

In Carbon Steel Co. v. Lewellyn, 251 U. S. 501, it was

held that the rule of strict construction will not be pressed

so far as to reduce the taxing statute to a practical nullity

by permitting easy evasion. The Court stated (p. 505) :
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It is, of course, the contention of petitioner that this

was furnishing, not manufacturing^ and that the

literal meaning of words can be insisted on in re-

sistence to a taxing statute. We recognize the rule

of construction but it cannot be carried to reduce the

statute to empty declarations. And, as we have al-

ready said, petitioner's contention would so reduce it.

It may be added that the proper guide for the interpre-

tation and construction of Section 606(c)—as for all in-

ternal revenue laws—was furnished by the Supreme Court

in Stone v. White, 301 U. S. 532, 537

:

It is in the public interest that no one should be

permitted to avoid his just share of the tax burden

except by positive command of law, which is lacking

here.

It follows from what has been said that the first ques-

tion for determination in a case of this kind is whether

there has been a sale of the articles under consideration,

for if there has been no sale the statute does not apply. If

the articles have been sold, the only remaining inquiry is

whether the seller was also the manufacturer, producer,

or importer thereof, within the meaning of the applicable

statute and regulations. In passing upon the latter ques-

tion, it should be borne in mind that the idea of one re-

pairing an article for another is opposed to the idea that

the repairer may be simultaneously the seller of the article

itself upon completion of his contract for the performance

of labor and supplying of materials. Yet, conversely, the

taxpayer contends in substance, in its claim for refund,

that although it was the seller of the articles in question,

it should be held to be only the repairer thereof. There is

no question but that the armatures were sold by appellee

for use by ultimate vendees in repairing automobile

engines.
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II.

Appellee Is the Manufacturer or Producer of the

Armex Automobile Generator Armature Sold by
It and Not Merely a Repairer of Used, Damaged
and Worn Out Armatures.

Appellee was incorporated "to carry on the business of

manufacturing and assembling armatures * * *" and to

market them. [R. 106.] It operated a plant, had con-

siderable machinery and equipment, employed on an aver-

age 14 or 15 men, produced at least 80 armatures per day

and maintained a stock for sale of 600 different types of

armatures, each with appellee's own stock number.

The taxing statute does not discriminate between auto-

mobile parts produced entirely from new materials and

those produced by combining new materials with usable

materials salvaged from scrap or junk which has been

purchased and dismantled for such purpose. Neither do

the definitions of the words manufacturer, producer,

manufacture, or produce, require that a manufactured

article shall consist entirely of new or virgin raw ma-

terials. In fact, it has been held that a manufactured

article need not be made wholly or even in part of raw

material. The King v. Biltrite Tire Co., 1937 Canada

Law Rep. (Ex. C. R.) 1, 14.

Appellee considered itself the manufacturer or producer

of the armatures it stocked and sold. Otherwise, it is not

likely that it would have adopted the distinctive trade mark

and trade name under which it advertised its product in

its catalogs as one made and produced by it. It did not

represent itself as a mere "repairer". In other words, it

held itself out as the producer of the taxable articles which

it processed and placed in marketable form. Cf. Red Star

Yeast & Products Co. v. LaBudde, 83 F. (2d) 394, 396

(C C. A. 7th).
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Even in the absence of its representations, the evidence

clearly shows that appellee was the manufacturer and pro-

ducer of the armatures which it sold because the essential

elements of manufacture were shown to exist. It made a

serviceable and salable product from scrap and raw ma-

terials. It acquired, at a small price, worn-out armatures

from which it salvaged the usable parts and then by

machine and hand operations, together with the addition

of new materials, it assembled and fashioned an automo-

bile part which it marketed under its own trade name in

competition with similar products manufactured by others.

Whether the appellee itself manufactured the commutator,

shaft and laminations used in producing ''Armex" arma-

tures would appear immaterial. The essential fact is that

the appellee combined the salvaged individually useless

items with new materials and, through the employment of

skill, labor and machinery, produced a valuable item of

commerce.

There can be no dispute but that when appellee acquired

the worn-out armatures they were classifiable as scrap and

junk. The following definitions and authorities concern-

ing scrap and junk seem clearly applicable:

56 Corpus Juris 884-885, states:

Scrap. (Sec. 1) A. As Noun. The word origi-

nally meant what was scraped ofif. It has come to

have an extended meaning and includes anything that

is thrown aside. The word has reference to the an-

tecedent history of the article and not to the use that

a new owner might make of it.********
(Sec. 2) B. As Adjective. On the form of

scraps; also valuable only as raw material.
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In Ward, Ltd. v. Midland R. Co., 33 T. L. R. 4, 6

(Eng.), "scrap" was defined as follows:

An article was scrap if it was no longer useful to its

owner; the word had reference to the antecedent his-

tory of the article and not to the use that a new owner

might make of it.

The word ''junk" has been held to include discarded

parts of machinery. City of Dvduth v. Bloom, 55 Minn.

97, 100, 21 L. R. A. 689, 690. Discarded automobile fix-

tures were held to be within the definition of "junk" in

Mehiick V. City of Atlanta, 147 Ga. 525, 94 S. E. 1015.

In City of Chicago v. Reinschreiber, 121 111. App. 114,

120, the court defined the word "junk" as (pp. 118-119)

—

worn out or discarded material in general, that still

may be turned to some use, especially old rope, chain,

iron, copper, parts of machinery, bottles, etc., gath-

ered or bought up by persons called "junk dealers"

In the instant case the used armatures were nothing

more than "junk" when received by appellee. The prin-

cipal purpose of its business was to produce and sell arma-

tures for numerous makes of automobiles from raw and

essentially raw material which it prepared. The acquisi-

tion of second-hand material was merely incidental to its

manufacturing business.

In City of Louisville v. Zinmeister & Sons, 188 Ky. 570,

222 S. W. 958, the court stated (pp. 575-576)

:

Courts have experienced much difficulty in determin-

ing what is a manufacturing establishment and what

is included in the term "manufacture." There is no

hard and fast rule by which to determine whether a

given establishment is a "manufactory," but all the
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facts and circumstances must he taken into considera-

tion in determining whether the estabhshment is or

is not to be so reckoned. Whether it is such an estab-

lishment does not depend upon the size of the plant,

the number of men employed, the nature of the busi-

ness or the article to be manufactured, but upon all

these together and upon the result accomplished.

If raw material is converted at a factory or plant

into a finished product, complete and ready for the

final use for which it is intended, or so completed as

that in the ordinary course of business of the concern

it is ready to be put upon the open market for sale to

any person wishing to buy it, the plant which turns

it out is a manufacturing establishment within the

meaning of the statutes h< * *^ (Italics supplied.)

Likewise in the instant case it is important to consider

all the surrounding facts and circumstances and not limit

consideration of the question involved to any single factor,

or to the narrow confines of an antiquated literal inter-

pretation of the word "manufacture" as understood prior

to the advent of modern machinery and industrial methods

of salvaging for manufacturing purposes.

If the terms "manufacturer" and "producer" are to be

whittled away by fine distinctions, the intent and purpose

of Congress to impose a tax upon automobile parts pro-

duced and sold to jobbers and wholesalers will necessarily

be defeated. In re First Nat. Bank, 152 Fed. 64, 67 (C.

C. A. 8th).

It cannot be disputed that the used armatures, or scrap,

had lost their commercial value as armatures. When pur-

chased and acquired by appellee they were valuable to it

merely for the purpose of obtaining the usable shafts,
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commutators and metal laminations for use by it as par-

tially prepared raw materials to which, after preparation

thereof for its operations, it added other raw materials,

skill and industry before there was completed and created

the marketable product which it placed in stock for sale to

its jobber trade. Such salvaged prepared materials, con-

sisting of usable shafts, commutators and metal lamina-

tions, were not armatures while in that form but, as stated,

constituted partially prepared materials on which appellee

thereafter performed hand and machine operations, added

other materials, assembled the same and employed skill

before the salable article was completed for marketing.

The position of appellee is the same as if it had purchased

shafts, commutators and metal laminations salvaged

(from discarded and worn-out armatures) and prepared

by the vendor for combination with the new materials in

connection with assembling and finishing operations. If

then appellee had purchased from a third party the re-

maining necessary materials, consisting of black enameled

cotton insulated cooper wire, solder, flux, varnish, end

fibers, slot insulations, slot wooden wedges, crepe, arma-

ture twine or cord, etc., and continued with all subsequent

steps, it could hardly be suggested that the article in its

final condition had not been produced or manufactured by

appellee. The mere fact that appellee has itself performed

the defined operations on the salvaged parts of the used

armatures cannot exclude it from operation of the taxing

statute.

The court below was of the opinion that the old or

worn-out armature did not lose its identity qua armature

and that, therefore, the appellee could not be said to have

manufactured or produced an armature. However, when

one bears in mind the various steps taken by appellee, and

particularly the state of the article when reduced to the
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three salvaged usable parts (shaft, commutator and steel

laminations), it would appear that appellee cannot be any

less the manufacturer of an armature because it started

with something that had once been a usable armature

than if, as suggested above, it had commenced with sev-

eral substances purchased from different sources.

We think that all of taxpayer's contentions have been

thoroughly discussed and answered by seven able Cana-

dian judges in the re-treaded tire decisions of Biltrite Tire

Co. V. The King, 1937 Canada Law Rep. 364; The King

V. Biltrite Tire Co., 1937 Canada Law Rep. 1, and The

King v. Boulthee Ltd. [1938], 3 Dominion Law Rep. 664.

The foregoing Canadian decisions carry the full burden

of our argument and effectively refute any contentions of

appellee.

With the exception of the instant case and one other

{Con-Rod Exchange, Inc. v. Henricksen, 28 F. Supp. 924

(W. D., W^ash.)), virtually all the recent cases involving

facts and questions similar to those presented here have

been decided in favor of the Government, including the

only case which has gone to an appellate court, viz.. Claw-

son & Bals V. Harrison, 108 F. (2d) 991 (C. C. A. 7th)

involving "rebabbitted" connecting rods; E. Edelman &
Co. V. Harrison (N. D., 111.), decided April 7, 1939, not

officially reported but published in 1939 Prentice-Hall,

Vol. 1, par. 5,379 (armatures) ; Federal-Mogul Corpora-

tion V. Smith (S. D., Ind.), decided February 23, 1940,

not yet reported but published in 1940 Prentice Hall, Vol.

4, par. 62,510 (connecting rods) ; Moore Bros., Inc. v.

United States (N. D., Tex.), decided May 14, 1940, not

officially reported but published in 1940 Prentice-Hall,

Vol. 4, par. 62,676 (armatures).
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It is true that there have been a number of District

Court decisions against the Government involving so-

called "rebuilt" armatures and generators, "rebabbitted"

connecting rods and "re-treaded" tires. Monteith Bros.

Co. V. United States (N. D., Ind.), decided October, 1936,

not officially reported but published in 1936 Prentice-Hall,

Vol. 1, par. 1710 (involving armatures and connecting

rods) ; Hempy-Cooper Mfg. Co. v. United States (W.. D.,

Mo.), decided May 6, 1937, not officially reported but pub-

lished in 1937 Prentice-Hall, Vol. 1, par. 1461 (connecting

rods); Bardet v. United States (N. D., Cal.), decided

May 18, 1938, not officially reported but published in 1938

Prentice-Hall, Vol. 1, par. 5,507 (connecting rods);

Becker-Florence Co. v. United States (W. D., Mo.), de-

cided December 27, 1938, not officially reported but pub-

lished in 1939 Prentice-Hall, Vol. 1, par. 5,161 (arma-

tures) ; Con-Rod Exchange, Inc. v. Henricksen, 28 F.

Supp. 924 (W. D., Wash.) (connecting rods), and Skin-

ner V. United States, 8 F. Supp. 999 (S. D., Ohio),

(tires). However, these cases did not present satisfactory

records for appeal.

We submit that the principles laid down in the Clazvson

& Bals case, supra, are squarely in point here. The Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals in that case stated as follows (pp.

992-993) :

In the course of announcing its decision the Dis-

trict Court made the following statement:

*'The court is of the opinion that what the plaintiff

did and what it is doing is the manufacturing and

producing of connecting rods from scrap. It is true

that the scrap may have slightly greater value than

some other kinds of scrap, but it is still scrap, and

when it is manufactured or produced by the plaintiff
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it has a relatively much greater value than in its scrap

condition.

"The situation here seems to be much like the

situation in the worn-out tire case. Those worn-out

tires look like tires. These worn-out connecting rods

undoubtedly look like connecting rods, and one can

recognize that they have been connecting rods, just

as one can by looking at a worn-out tire recognize the

fact that it has been a tire. But in each case, the

articles are worn out. A manufacturing process is,

in the opinion of the court, required to make a ser-

viceable product; and in the case of the connecting

rod, the plaintiff carries on that manufacturing

process."

We believe that the foregoing aptly sums up the

merits of the case.

As we also strongly rely on the Canadian decisions,

supra, the following is again quoted from the Claivson

& Bals decision (pp. 993-994):

Defendant-appellee cites and relies strongly upon a

decision of the Supreme Court of Canada in Biltrite

Tire Co. v. The King.^ The analysis of the facts and

the reasoning of the court as revealed in the opinion

are strongly persuasive that on the facts of the in-

stant case the taxpayer is a manufacturer or producer

of connecting rods. The legislative enactment im-

posed an excise duty on "tires in whole or in part of

rubber" which were "manufactured or produced in

Canada and sold." The business practice of the Cana-

dian taxpayer was to purchase in bulk lots old and

worn-out motor vehicle tires and put them through a

process of repair, treatment and retreading, for sale

21937 Canada Law Rep. 364.
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in the trade. Throughout the process the sidewall of

the tire was not dismantled or destroyed, the numeri-

cal identification of the original tire was not de-

stroyed, and the name of the manufacturer of the

original tire was clearly marked upon its sidewalls,

upon which the taxpayer also marked a serial number.

In the course of treatment of the old tire the tread

was removed and a new tread affixed; holes were

patched, cement and plastic rubber preparation util-

ized. The final result of the treatment was that re-

pairs to holes and blow-outs, the cementing inside

and without, and the new tread, were firmly and per-

manently affixed to the fabric and side-walls of the

original tire. The Canadian court sums up the whole

process as follows:

"What the appellant did was to remove part of the

old or worn-out tire and add to the remnant the plas-

tic rubber preparation. It would appear that the posi-

tion is the same as if the appellant had purchased an

old or worn-out tire which had already been treated

by the vendor in the manner described above, down to

and including the cutting off of the old tread. If

then the appellant had purchased from a third party

the rubber preparation and had applied the latter and

continued with the subsequent steps, could it be sug-

gested that the article in its final condition had not

been produced or manufactured by the appellant. The

definitions of words 'manufacture' and 'produce' as

nouns or verbs, in the standard dictionaries, clearly

indicate that such proceedings would constitute the

appellant a manufacturer or producer. And the mere

fact that the appellant has itself performed the de-

fined operations on the old tire cannot exclude it from

the operation of the section.

"* * * It is suggested that the old or worn-out

tire did not lose its identity qua tire and that, there-
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fore, the appellant could not be said to have manu-

factured or produced a tire. However, when one

bears in mind the various steps taken by appellant

and particularly the state of the article when the tread

was removed, it would appear that appellant cannot

be any less the manufacturer of a tire because it

started with something that had once been a usable

tire than if, as suggested in the preceding paragraph,

it had commenced with two substances purchased

from different sources."

The cases chiefly relied upon by the court below in its

opinion are Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 604; An-

heuser-Bitsch Assn. v. United States, 207 U. S. 556;

Fruit Growers, Inc. v. Borgdex, 2S?i U. S. 1, and the sev-

eral District Court cases referred to above involving au-

tomobile parts. As stated, the conclusions reached in the

several District Court cases are inapplicable under the evi-

dence in this case, are erroneous and conflict with the

principles announced in Clawson & Bals, supra. Neither

do the Supreme Court decisions relied upon by the court

below in its opinion support its judgment or require a

conclusion contrary to that contended for by appellant.

They arose under provisions of the tariif and patent laws

and the Supreme Court's reasoning was addressed to fact

situations entirely unrelated to that presented here. A
proper appraisal of the excerpts thereof from the opinion

below can be made only by considering the entirely dif-

ferent fact situations to which the Supreme Court's state-

ments and reasoning were directed.

Thus, in Hartranft v. Wiegmann, supra, the question

was whether the cleaning and, in some instances, etching

and poHshing of crude sea shells by London merchants for

sale as shells for purpose of ornament, caused the shells,
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upon importation into the United States, to fall within

the duty free class of ''shells of every description, not

manufactured," or within the dutiable provision of "Shells,

manufacturers of :". The Supreme Court held they were

to be admitted free because they were still shells, and were

not manufactured within the sense of the tariff statute.

The shells were products of nature which were merely

beautified for purpose of sale as ornamental shells. There

was no salvaging of worn-out, unserviceable materials or

parts which had been discarded as no longer useful for

the purpose to which originally put and adapted. Sub-

stantially the same situation existed in Anheuser-Busch

Brewing Assn. v. United States, supra. The Association

imported corks already manufactured and merely gave the

manufactured articles special treatment for its own special

purposes, that is, for use in the encasement of its beer.

Similarly, in Fruit Growers, Inc. v. Borgdex, supra, the

Supreme Court held that the immersion of oranges in a

solution to prevent decay while on the road to market was

not a manufacturing process and did not result in a

manufactured article. The orange was an edible fruit

both before and after the process.

In Cadwalader v. Jessup & Moore, 149 U. S. 350, the

recovery of customs duties was sought on the ground that

old india-rubber shoes imported by Jessup & Moore were

valuable only as a substitute for crude rubber and, there-

fore, were exempt from duty under the free classification

'Tndia-rubber, crude and milk of." A duty of twenty-five

per cent ad valorem had been collected on the old shoes as

(p. 351) "articles composed of india-rubber, not specially
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enumerated or provided for in this act." Another section

of the act provided for a duty on non-enumerated articles

equal to that imposed upon the enumerated articles they

most nearly resembled, and where they resembled two or

more enumerated articles, that taking the highest duty

was to be used as the basis. The Supreme Court, in

holding the articles to be non-dutiable, held that the old

shoes had lost their commercial value as such articles, and

substantially were merely the material called "crude rub-

ber". Thus, the principle of the Cadzvalader case sup-

ports the contention that appellee was a manufacturer and

producer since here, because of the loss of their commer-

cial value, the armatures were essentially raw material.

In passing, attention is directed to the fact that the

principles of the Clawson & Bals case, supra, have been

adopted and are being followed by the Treasury Depart-

ment, as shown by Sales Tax Ruling 896, 1940-8 Int.

Rev. Bull. 19.

In conclusion, therefore, it may be said that when

looked at from the standpoint of production and distribu-

tion in the trade the appellee is and was performing the

function of a manufacturer and producer rather than a

repairer. Appellee produced armatures for the trade in

the very true sense and did not repair, rebuild, restore or

rewind old or used armatures for owners or users. The

fact that appellee could perhaps perform for the owner of

used and worn-out armatures all of the mechanical opera-

tions which it may have performed for itself, and still

properly be classified as a repairer or rebuilder, does not
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require a holding that the appellee is a repairer or re-

winder when it purchases discarded armatures to be used

as materials for combination with other materials of the

appellee, and by mechanical operations prepares what are,

for all practical purposes, new armatures for sale in the

trade.

We submit that the decisions of the seven Canadian

judges and of the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals afford

a correct basis for the interpretation of the provisions

of the taxing statute and applicable regulations, and any

other conclusion is erroneous.

Conclusion.

It is submitted that the evidence does not support the

alternate findings, conclusions and judgment below, and

it should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuel O. Clark, Jr.,

Assistant Attorney General.
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APPENDIX.

Revenue Act of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169:

Sec. 606. Tax on Automobiles, Etc.

There is hereby imposed upon the following articles

sold by the manufacturer, producer, or importer, a

tax equivalent to the following percentages of the

price for which so sold:

(c) Parts or accessories (other than tires and

inner tubes) for any of the articles enumerated in

subsection (a) or (b), 2 per centum. * * *

[Note: Subsections (a) and (b) refer to auto-

biles, automobile trucks and motorcycles.]

Treasury Regulations 46, approved June 18, 1932:

Art. 4. Who is a manufacturer or producer.—
As used in the Act, the term "producer" includes a

person who produces a taxable article by processing,

manipulating, or changing the form of an article, or

produces a taxable article by combining or assem-

bling two or more articles.

Under certain circumstances, as where a person

manufactures or produces a taxable article for a

person who furnishes materials and retains title

thereto, the person for whom the taxable article is

manufactured or produced, and not the person who
actually manufactures or produces it, will be con-

sidered the manufacturer.

A manufacturer who sells a taxable article in a

knockdown condition, but complete as to all com-

ponent parts, shall be liable for the tax under Title

IV and not the person who buys and assembles a

taxable article from such component parts.
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Art. 41, Definition of parts or accessories.—The
term "parts or accessories" for an automobile truck

or other automobile chassis or body, or motorcycle,

includes (a) any article the primary use of which

is to improve, repair, replace, or serve as a component

part of such vehicle or article, (b) any article de-

signed to be attached to or used in connection with

such vehicle or article to add to its utility or orna-

mentation, or (c) any article the primary use of

which is in connection with such vehicle or article

whether or not essential to its operation or use.

The term "parts and accessories" shall be under-

stood to embrace all such parts and accessories as

have reached such a stage of manufacture that they

constitute articles commonly or commercially known
as parts and accessories regardless of the fact that

fitting operations may be required in connection with

installation. The term shall not be understood to

embrace raw materials used in the manufacture of

such articles.

Spark plugs, storage batteries, leaf springs, coils,

timers, and tire chains, which are suitable for use

on or in connection with, or as component parts of,

automobile truck or other automobile chassis or

motorcycles, are considered parts or accessories for

such articles whether or not primarily designed or

adopted for such use.
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The opinion of the District Court [R. 11] is reported

in 28 Fed. Supp. 10.
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This is an appeal from a judgment of the District Court

entered September 13, 1939 [R. 41], in the amount of

$1,452.30, without interest, assessed and paid as manu-

facturer's excise taxes. Notice of appeal was filed Decem-

ber 12, 1939. [R. 42-43.] The jurisdiction of this Court

is invoked under Section 128 (a) of the Judicial Code, as

amended by the Act of February 13, 1925,
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Question Presented.

Whether sales of rewound automobile generator arma-

tures by appellee were taxable under Section 606(c) of

the Revenue Act of 1932, imposing tax upon automobile

parts, "sold by the manufacturer, producer, or importer"

thereof.

Statutes, Regulations and Rulings.

The applicable statute and regulations involved will be

found in the appendix to this brief.

Statement.

The case was tried by the Court without a jury, and

the evidence consisted of the testimony of three witnesses

for appellee, together with numerous exhibits and docu-

mentary evidence adduced by each of the parties. After

oral argument the Court rendered an oral opinion [R.

11-26], and subsequently filed findings of fact and con-

clusions of law in favor of appellee. [R. 28-40.] The

mechanical facts, as disclosed by the undisputed evidence,

were summarized by Judge Yankwich in his opinion as

follows [R. 12-17]

:

"The plaintiff takes old armatures on which the

winding has been worn off and rewinds them.

"The process used is this : The armatures are

placed in a lathe and the wires leading from the core

to the commutator are cut out with a knife as the

lathe revolves. The cores are then heated over a gas

flame for about twenty minutes (the flames coming

up from a range within the metal box), the purpose of
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which being to loosen the old wires and old insulation,

so that they may be easily removed. After the arma-

tures are laid out on a metal top table and slightly

cooled, they are placed in a V-shaped slot, and a steel

chisel is driven down between the mass of old wires

which have been loosened by heating, and the old

wires are pried out. The armatures are then placed

in a machine equipped with a small saw which reslots

each commutator bar at the place where old wires

were soldered in (i. e. at the end of the commutator

closest to the core). This machine operates by sus-

pending the shaft on which the core and commutator

are mounted between a clamp, and the sawblade about

one and one-half inches in diameter is moved up to

each slot by means of a lever, and the shaft is rotated

by hand. Any solder remaining in the slots is

removed with a small metal pick. The placement of

the commutator on the shaft is checked with a pair

of calipers by measuring from the point on the shaft

where the bearing rides to the [11] front end of

the commutators. The distance from the core to the

commutator is measured with a metal rule. Any

errors in the mounting of the core or commutator on

the shaft are corrected by means of adjusting their

respective placements by means of an arbor press.

The laminations of almost every core are pressured

together on this same press before any further steps

are taken, in order to realign any laminations which

may have become somewhat separated. To insure

that none of the bars on the commutator are grounded

to the shaft, or shorted, a test is given by rotating

the end of a live wire over the commutator, and at
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the same time having the shaft grounded. Then each

portion of the shaft leading from each side of the

core is insulated by approximately five wrappings of

paper around the shaft as it protrudes from each end

of the core. The insulation is about an inch or so

in length. Each slot in the core is also insulated by

placing it in a folded insulated paper approximately

the size of a cigarette paper; and each surface end

of the core is insulated with a heavy pressed card-

board which has been stamp-cut the shape of the

surface ending of the core. Approximately 95 per

cent of the armatures are rewound on a Chapman

winder, designed to rewind armatures with fourteen-

slot cores. Those which have a different number of

slots must be rewound by hand. This machine has a

lathe, in which two jaws hold the laminated core in

such a manner that the shaft extends perpendicularly

from the axis of the lathe an equal distance in each

direction. Two strands of wire lead from two dif-

ferent reels up through the top of the machine, over

pulleys and down to the armature in the jaws of the

lathe. Two sizes of wire are used in the winding,

depending upon the electrical output expected out of

the generator; i.e., heavier wire can give a greater

output. Elach coil is wound with six complete turns.

[12] On each turn, the wire in the slot on one side

of the core leads into each slot, making, therefore, in

the case of a fourteen-slot core, twenty-eight coils.

Upon the completion of each coil,—that is, after six

turns,—the wire is laid up over the commutator end

of the shaft, and, at the conclusion of the next coil

following, that particular wire is cut near the com-
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mutator-end of the shaft and the lead end of the wire

folded back. However, the lead ends on the top coils

of the half of the core that is lastly wound are not

cut by the winder operator, because there is no neces-

sity of cutting them, but are left suspended in a loop

over the commutator end of the shaft. The only

reason for cutting the other wires is because they

are from coils that are underneath and, if they were

not cut, the wire from the top coil would bind them

down to the shaft. The armature is then placed in a

lathe-like clamp, called a bench center, which clamp

suspends the armature by holding it at each end of

the shaft. Then all of the wires which were not

previously cut by the operator on the winding machine

are cut. This leaves fifty-six leads, with two ends to

each coil, and two coils to each slot. To hold the

wires in the slots, wooden wedges are then driven

over the top of the wires and into each slot of the

laminated core. The leads are pulled down in three

equal groups and the ends of the leads inserted into

an electrically driven machine with two wire rollers

operating in opposite directions, which cleans all of

the insulation from the leads for a distance of about

two inches from the ends of the leads. These leads

extend approximately four inches out of the slots of

the core. The leads from the top coils are folded

back over the core, and then the leads from the

bottom coils are similarly folded back, so as to make

them easily available to the operator when he is [13]

connecting them with the commutator. There are

four sets of leads, corresponding with the sets of



coils in the armature. Those leads are inserted firmly

in place by means of a small chisel. As the leads are

connected, the operator rotates the armatures. A
connection of a set of leads is completed with each

rotation. As each complete rotation is made, the

wires which now lead from the core to the commu-

tator are insulated by wrapping with insulating paper

approximately one and one-half inches in width.

Since there are four complete sets of leads, this makes

three sets of insulation, the top leads being exposed.

Twine is then wrapped around just behind the com-

mutator with about seven turns, so that should the

soldering holding the leads into the commutator

become hot, the cord will still keep the leads in place.

Solder flux is painted around the commutator where

the wires have been tapped into the slots. The whole

commutator is then immersed into solder, the solder

only adhering to the band where the flux has been

applied. The armatures are then placed on end into

a tray and the tray is lowered into an insulating

varnish, where it remains for about fifteen or twenty

minutes, so that the cotton insulation of the wire will

be completely saturated. The tray is then raised, and

the armatures drained for approximately thirty min-

utes. The armatures are placed in an electric oven,

and baked overnight at a temperature of about two

hundred and fifty degrees. The total day's produc-

tion is generally dipped and baked at one time. The

armature is taken from the oven and placed in a

lathe where the commutator is planed down suffi-

ciently to true the brush surface of the commutator.
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The end of the shaft of the armature is placed into

a chuck and is rotated, and, by applying- an abrasive

cloth to the sur- [14] face of the laminated core, the

shaft and the commutator, they are polished and all

the excess varnish is removed from the metal. The

armature is then placed between centers and a small

saw blade, approximately one-quarter of ai; inch in

diameter, cuts the level of the mica insulation between

the commutator bars to a level below that of the

surface of the bars of the commutator. The arma-

ture is tested for shorts, by placing it onto a magnetic

growler (that is, by setting the core part on the

magnet) and if there is a short in the armature, a

thin metal blade will be attracted to the core. The

armature is tested to see if it is grounded by touching

one wire to the shaft and the other to the commutator,

and if it is grounded, the connection is made and a

light attachment is illuminated. The shafts are then

checked for undersize with a micrometer. If the

shaft is too far undersize, it has to be knurled or

sleeved. The shaft is roughened so that it will fit

snugly with a bearing. If the shaft is too small to

be knurled, it must be turned down on a lathe and a

metal sleeve driven over it. About fifty per cent of

the shafts must be knurled, and about fifteen per cent

must be sleeved. The armatures are then finally

checked by rotating the commutators under a microm-

eter, to insure that every bar of the commutator is

of approximately the same height, otherwise proper

contact with the generator brushes will not be made.

The ends of the shafts are then rethreaded and the

armatures are ready for boxing."



ARGUMENT.

I.

The Rewinding of Used, Secondhand Armatures Is

Not the Manufacture or Production of Armatures,

But Is Only the Repair, Restoration or Recondi-

tioning Thereof.

(a) Manufacturing or Production Consists of the

Application of Labor or Skill by Hand or

Machinery So That as a Result Thereof a

New, Different and Useful Article of Com-

merce Is Produced.

In this case plaintiff seeks a refund of manufacturer's

excise taxes paid by it upon the sale of used, secondhand

automobile generator armatures which plaintiff had re-

wound and repaired. All of said armatures were second-

hand armatures when acquired by plaintiff. That is to

say, all of the armatures which plaintiff rewound had been

manufactured by some one at some prior time and had

actually been used as operating parts of automobile

motors. By reason of such use, the wire coils on the

armatures had become damaged or burned out.

On direct examination, Harry E. Seneker, a witness

for the plaintiff, explained the usual causes of armatures

burning out [R. 102-103]

:

"Q. What is the usual cause of armatures burn-

ing out?

A. Well, the usual cause is the armature

brushes—I mean the generator brushes become worn

and too short, so that they don't touch the commu-

tator, especially in the take-off brush. It becomes

too short, and it is the same as a generator running
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on an open circuit. Therefore, it creates excessive

heat and burns itself out.

"Another reason is that a generator will be set up

at too high a rate, too excessive a charge, and creates

so much heat that it burns itself out.

Q. Any other causes?

A. Well, failure to upkeep the generator. For

instance, the commutator will wear itself down so that

the brushes begin touching the mica between the bars

;

the brushes fail to make contact, and the same result,

the armature will create excessive heat and burn itself

out.

"Also, if a man fails to keep his generator oiled,

the bushings may wear so that the armature will

slightly touch the pole shoes and create friction and

burn itself out. That is about all that I know of,

right at present; the most important ones."

The plaintiff in this case repaired armatures damaged

as above related. The method of repairing is set forth

in the record (Joint Exhibit No. 1). From the series

of 21 pictures and the explanatory statement of each con-

tained in said exhibit, it can readily be seen that there is

no loss of identity or dismanthng of the component parts

of the armatures. In fact, uncontradicted testimony of the

plaintiff's witness, Alfred Prescott Daniels, was as fol-

lows [R. 75-76]:

"The only part that was removed was the wind-

ing or the wire from the armature."

"No, there was no identification removed."

Therefore, if the plaintiff's rewinding process com-

menced with an armature and ended with an armature, it

is obvious that nothing has been manufactured or pro-
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duced. No new article of commerce has been produced by

the process; no new thing has been brought into existence.

When the rewinder commenced his work he had an arma-

ture (Joint Exhibit No. 1, page 1). When his work was

completed he still had an armature (Joint Exhibit No. 1,

page 21). It makes no difference how long it took him

to do the work, or how many different pieces of ma-

chinery he employed during the process, or whether he

worked alone in a small shop, or whether he worked with

many other workmen in a large plant, or whether, after

the process was completed, he immediately reinstalled the

armature in the automobile from which it was taken, or

whether he laid it upon a shelf and subsequently exchanged

it for another used, second-hand armature. The question

is, "What did the rewinder do?" Did he produce or

manufacture a new article? Did he merely repair an

article which someone had previously produced or manu-

factured? Manifestly, he has repaired an armature. His

work commenced after the manufacture or production of

that armature had long since been completed and the

armature had actually seen service as an operating part

of an automobile engine.

The principle which lies at the bottom of the foregoing

proposition was recognized and stated by the court in

Thurman, Collector, v. Swissheltn, et al. (C. C. A. 7)

36 Fed. (2nd) 350. In that case the taxpayer dealt in

automobiles. They bought completed Ford automobiles

from the Ford Company or its agents. They bought from

the Ames Company automobile bodies so constructed that
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they would fit the Ford chassis. They would remove the

Ford bodies from the automobiles and replace them with

the Ames bodies. The question was whether the taxpayers

by that process became the manufacturers or producers of

automobiles so as to become liable for the manufacturer's

excise tax on the automobiles. The court held that the

mere exchange of one body for another upon a completed

automobile, originally manufactured by someone other than

the taxpayers, did not constitute manufacturing or pro-

duction. And in holding, the court distinguished the case

of Klepper v. Carter (C. C. A. 9) 286 Fed. 370, in which

the tax had been sustained as to a taxpayer who bought

a truck chassis from one company and a body from an-

other company, and then assembled the parts "for the first

time into a complete truck," and said 1. c. 351:

"The facts are different in that there no truck

figured in the transaction until the parts had been

assembled and connected; while here appellees bought

the completed automobile, upon which the tax had

already been paid."

The principle underlying the Swisshelm case is in nowise

different than in the case at bar. Swisshelm commenced

his process with an automobile, completely manufactured

and tax paid by the manufacturer; the plaintiff in this

case commenced its work with an armature previously

manufactured and tax paid by a manufacturer. When

Swisshelm finished his process, he still had an automobile

—

he had created nothing new; when plaintiff in this case

completed its rewinding process, it still had an armature

—it had created nothing new.
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On the question of the taxability of rebabbitted connect-

ing rods the Bureau of Internal Revenue itself recognizes

that the rebabbitting process is one of repair and not of

manufacture. In S. T. 573, Internal Revenue Bulletin,

Cumulative Bulletin XI-2, page 473, the bureau ruled as

follows [App. p. 43]

:

"The tax also attaches to rebabbitted connecting

rods and reclaimed brake drums in which new steel

bands have been inlaid where they are placed in

stock to be sold as parts and accessories. However,

where these articles are reconditioned in connection

with an immediate repair job the tax does not attach."

(Italics supplied.)

This ruling in express language recognizes that the pro-

cess involved is one of reconditioning and repairing. The

Act (Section 606(c)) does not make reconditioned or

repaired parts taxable simply because they are carried in

a service stock.

Under the foregoing ruling it is held that if a garage

man removes an armature from an automobile motor which

he is repairing and immediately rewinds the armature and

replaces it in the motor, he has done nothing more than a

repair job; he has not manufactured the armature. On
the other hand, the bureau would hold that if he exchanges

the armature he has just removed from his customer's

automobile for an armature taken from some other cus-

tomer's automobile and rewound the day before, he has

manufactured the armature. Yet there is no difference in

the rewinding process in the two cases. The only dif-

ference is in the service which he is able to render his

customer. In the first instance, the customer must wait

for his automobile until the rewinding can be done; in the

second case, the customer is put to no such inconvenience.
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The actual process of rewinding, liowever, is the same in

both cases as that which takes place in the plaintiff's shop.

Jobbers, garage men and even the owners of fleets of

automotive equipment sometimes maintain their own re-

winding service and rewind their own armatures and those

of their customers. No reason is suggested, and it is

submitted no reason exists, why rewinding an armature in

such a case and under such circumstances is mere re-

pair or reconditioning, whereas manufacture is said to oc-

cur when, as in plaintiff's case, an armature is rewound in

the same way but is not immediately replaced in the motor

from which it was removed, but is held on the shelf for

a time and subsequently exchanged with a customer whose

armature is burned out and who does not desire to wait

while his own armature is rewound.

The Bureau of Internal Revenue in its regulations and

in various published rulings has recognized and adopted

the usual and commonly accepted definition of the words

"manufacture" and "produce." It has recognized that

manufacture occurs only when the materials which enter

into the process lose their identity as such and emerge from

the process as a new article. In other words, it is recog-

nized that when a thing is manufactured, it exists for

the first time at the conclusion of the manufacturing

process. Thus in Article 4 of Regulations 46 of the

Treasury Department relating to excise taxes on sales

as imposed by the Internal Revenue Act of 1932, it is

provided
[
App. p. 46] :

"As used in the act, the term 'producer' includes

a person who produces a taxable article by processing,

manipulating or changing the form of an article,

or producing a taxable article by combining or as-

sembling two or more articles."
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Likewise in S. T. 648, Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumu-

lative Bulletin XI I-
1, page 384, the bureau in ruling

upon the taxability of retreaded automobile tires said

[App. p. 44] :

"The test of taxability where old material or ma-

terial partly old and partly new is used in producing a

tire suitable for use is whether the work done con-

stitutes the manufacture of a tire or is merely a

repair job. If the former, the tax is legally due.

If the latter, no tax is involved. It is held that

where the identity of the old tire is lost in the pro-

cess, the manufacture of a taxable tire results.

"The retreading of old tires by resurfacing or

replacement of the actual tread down to the tread

line, without altering the side walls or destroying

the original identity of the tire, does not constitute

the manufacture of a taxable article."

Again in S. T. 606, Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumulative

Bulletin XI-2, page 476, the bureau in ruling upon the

taxability or rebuilt and reconditioned taximeters said

[App. p. 43] :

"No tax is due upon the sale of rebuilt or second-

hand taximeters under Section 606(c) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1932, provided they are not rebuilt or

refinished to the extent that they lose their original

identity."

The courts have been frequently called upon to define,

and apply the definition of, manufacture. A leading

and often cited case is Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S.

609. The issue in that case concerned the rate of duty to

be levied upon certain shells depending upon whether
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they were or were not "manufactured." The question in-

volved and the facts are stated in the opinion by Mr.

Justice Blatchford, as follows, 1. c. 613-14:

"The question is whether cleaning off the outer

layer of the shell by acid, and then grinding off

the second layer by an emery wheel, so as to expose

the brilliant inner layer is a manufacture of the

shell, the object of these manipulations being simply

for the purpose of ornament, and some of the shells

being afterwards etched by acids, so as to produce

inscriptions upon them. It appears that these shells

in question were to be sold for ornaments, but that

shells of these descriptions have also a use to be

made into buttons and handles of penknives; and that

there is no difference in name and use between the

shells ground on the emery wheel and those not

ground. It is contended by the government that the

shells prepared by the mechanical or chemical means

stated in the record, for ultimate use, are shells

manufactured, or manufacturers of shells, within the

meaning of the statute."

The conclusion of the court and the reasoning support-

ing it are set forth in the following excerpt from the

opinion, 1. c. 615:

"We are of the opinion that the shells in question

here were not manufactured, and were not manu-

factures of shells, within the sense of the statute

imposing a duty of v35 per centum upon such manu-
facturers, but were shells not manufactured, and fell

under that designation in the free list. They are

still shells. They had not been manufactured into

a nezu and different article, having a distinctive

name, character or use from that of a shell. The
application of labor to an article, either by hand or

by mechanism, does not make the article necessarily
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a manufactured article, within the meaning of that

term as used in the tariff laws. Washing and scour-

ing wool does not make the resulting wool a manu-

facture of wool. Cleaning and ginning cotton does

not make the resulting cotton a manufacture of cot-

ton. In 'Schedule M' of Section 2504 of the Re-

vised Statutes, page 475, 2nd Edition, a duty of 30

per cent ad valorem is imposed on 'coral, cut or

manufactured'; and, in Section 2505, page 484, 'coral,

marine, unmanufactured,' is exempt from duty. These

provisions clearly imply that, but for the special pro-

visions imposing a duty on cut coral, it would not

be regarded as a manufactured article, although labor

was employed in cutting it. In Frazee v. Moffit,

20 Blatchf. 267, it was held that hay pressed in bales,

ready for market, was not a manufactured article,

although labor had been bestowed in cutting and

drying the grass and baling the hay. In Lawrence

V. Allen, 48 U. S. 7 How. 785, it was held that

india rubber shoes, made in Brazil, by simply allow-

ing the sap of the india rubber tree to harden upon

a mold, were a manufactured article, because it was

capable of use in that shape as a shoe, and had been

put into a new form, capable of use and design to

be used in such new form. In United States v. Potts,

9 U. S. 5 Cranch 284, round copper plates turned

up and raised at the edges from four to five inches

by the application of labor, to fit them for subsequent

use in the manufacture of copper vessels, but which

were still bought by the pound as copper for use in

making copper vessels, were held not to be manu-

factured copper. In the case of United States v.

Wilson, 1 Hunt's Merchants' Magazine 167, Judge

Betts held that marble which had been cut into blocks

for the convenience of transportation was not manu-

factured marble, but was free from duty, as being

unmanufactured.
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"We are of the opinion that the decision of the

circuit court was correct. But, if the question were

one of doubt, the doubt would be resolved in favor

of the importer, 'as duties are never imposed on

citizens upon vague or doubtful interpretations.'

Pozvers v. Barney, 5 Blatchf. 202; U. S. v. Isham,

84 U. S., 17 Wall. 496, 504; Gurr v. Scudds, 11

Exch. 190, 191; Adams v. Bancroft, 3 Sumn. 384."

In Anheuser-Busch Brewing Association v. U. S., 207

U. S. 556, the plaintiff sued to recover certain import

duties which it had paid on corks designed for use in

bottling beer. Under the act there involved plaintiff was

required to prove as the basis of its refund or "drawback"

that the corks involved were not manufactured corks, but

merely materials imported to be used in the manufacture

of corks in the United States. The evidence showed

that the corks when imported into this country from Spain

had already been cut by hand to the required size. It

was further shown that in such condition, however, they

were not suitable for use in bottling beer because they

would not retain the gas in the bottle and because they

would impart a cork taste to the beer, thereby making it

unmarketable and unfit for use. After importation, how-

ever, the corks were subjected in the brewing company's

plant to various processes and treatment consuming several

days of time, during which the corks were treated, pro-

cessed, sealed and coated so as to render them useful for

the intended purpose. The court found that the process

to which the corks were subject did not constitute manu-

facture; that the corks were manufactured before they
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were imported and that the brewing company was not

entitled to its refund. In the opinion by Mr. Justice

McKenna it is said, 1. c. 559:

"The corks in question were, after their importa-

tion, subject to a special treatment which, it is con-

tended, caused them to be articles manufactured in

the United States of 'imported materials' within the

meaning of vSection 25. The Court of Claims de-

cided against the contention and dismissed the pe-

tition. 41 Ct. CI. 389.

"The treatment to which the corks were subjected

is detailed in Finding 3, inserted in the margin.

"In opposition to the judgment of the Court of

Claims counsel have submitted many definitions of

'manufacture,' both as a noun and a verb, which,

however applicable to the cases in which they were

used, would be, we think, extended too far if made

to cover the treatment detailed in Finding 3 or to

the corks after the treatment. The words of the

statute are indeed so familiar in use and meaning

that they are confused by attempts at definition.

Their first sense as used is fabrication or composi-

tion,—a new article is produced of which the im-

ported material constitutes an ingredient or part.

When we go further than this in explanation, we

are involved in refinements and in impractical niceties.

Manufacture implies a change, but every change is

not manufacture, and yet every change in an article

is the result of treatment, labor, and manipulation.

But something more is necessary, as set forth and

illustrated in Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 609,



—19—

7 Sup. Ct. Rep. 1240. There must he transforma-

tion; a new and different article must emerge, 'having

a distinctive name, character or use.' This cannot

be said of the corks in question. A cork put through

the claimant's process is still a cork." (Italics sup-

plied. )

In the case of American Fruit Growers, Inc. v. Brogdex

Company, 283 U. S. 1, the court was obliged to determine

whether the process of impregnating the rind of an orange

with borax, thereby rendering it resistant to mold and

decay, constituted manufacture. In the opinion of Mr.

Justice Reynolds, it is said, 1. c. 11:

"Answering affirmatively the circuit court of ap-

peals said: 'The product claims define an article of

manufacture, since the fruit is the result of a pro-

cess which is defined and described and not a natural

product. The product is a combination of the natural

fruit and a boric compound carried by the rind or

skin in an amount sufficient to render the fruit re-

sistant to decay. The complete article is not found

in nature and is thus an article of manufacture. Riter-

Conley Mfg. Co. v. Aiken, 121 C. C. A. 655, 203

Fed. 699.' (35 Fed. (2nd) 107.)

"This position, we think, is not tenable.

" 'Manufacture,' as well defined by the Century

Dictionary, is 'the production of an article for use

from raw or prepared materials by giving to these

materials new forms, qualities, properties, or com-

binations, whether by hand labor or by machinery.'

Also, 'anything made for use from raw or prepared

materials.'
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"Addition of borax to the rind of natural fruit

does not produce from the raw material an article

for use which possesses a new or distinctive form,

quality, or property. The added substance only pro-

tects the natural article against deterioration by in-

hibiting development of extraneous spores upon the

rind. There is no change in the name, appearance,

or general character of the fruit. It remains a fresh

orange fit only for the same beneficial uses as there-

tofore."

De Jongc v. Magone, Collector, 159 U. S. 562, involved

a question as to whether certain imported paper constituted

''manufacture of paper" or fell within the description of

certain specific types of paper which took a higher im-

port duty. The paper in question received certain surface

treatment, some of it producing an imitation of leather

which was known as 'Velvet paper." The court in the

opinion of Mr. Justice White said, 1. c. 567

:

"It is not reasonable to suppose that Congress as-

sumed that the manipulation or treatment of par-

ticular paper in the completed condition in which pro-

duced at a paper mill, by mere surface coating, a

process zvhich did not change its form, but only

increased the uses to zvhich such paper might he

put, had the result to cause the article to cease to be

paper and to become a manufacture of paper, es-

pecially in view of the continued commercial desig-

nation of the article as a variety of paper and its

sale and purchase in commerce as paper. (Italics

supplied.

)
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"Congress must be presumed to have known that

the paper employed in paper hangings and paper for

screens or fireboards, was printing paper, sized in

the paper mill, and subjected to treatment elsewhere,

by which the value of the article as paper was greatly

enhanced, and the association of those products with

the writing and drawing class of paper in the para-

graph in question is convincing evidence that paper

hangings were produced was regarded as paper and

not as manufactures of paper. Not alone to avoid

doubt or confusion, would such products as paper

hangings likely be provided for specifically, rather

than in association with writing and drawing paper,

if deemed to be 'Manufactures' of paper, but as an

article clearly a manufacture of paper, to-wit, 'paper

envelopes,' was assessed at a duty of twenty-five per

cent ad valorem, opportunity existed to place paper

hangings in the same paragraph, and such would

likely have been done if paper hangings had been

deemed 'manufactures of and not 'paper'."

In Hughes v. City of Lexington, 277 S. W. 981, the

appellant was a corporation engaged in the business of

making and selling ice cream. Nevertheless, the City of

Lexington contended that the corporation was not engaged

in manufacturing within the meaning of the state statutes

which exempt from city taxes machinery, material and

supplies used in manufacturing. In the opinion by Clark,

C. J., it is said, I.e. 982:

"The sense in which the term is here used, as well as

the purpose intended to be accomplished by the act, is
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quite plain. Obviously, the term 'engaged in manufac-

turing' was not employed in any technical sense, but

must be accorded its ordinary meaning as commonly

understood. And, while incapable of exact definition,

nevertheless it is true, as was stated in several of the

above cases, that according to common understand-

ing and generally speaking, manufacturing consists

in the application of labor or skill by hand or ma-

chinery to material so that as a result thereof, a new,

different and useful article of commerce is produced."

(Italics suppHed.)

The foregoing cases emphasize and reiterate the prin-

ciple that whether a given process constitutes manufactur-

ing depends upon whether the process results in the crea-

tion of a new thing. If that which emerges at the con-

clusion of the process is the same thing which entered

the process at its beginning, notwithstanding some labor

and some new materials have been expended upon it

during the process—in other words, if the thing retains

its identity during the course of the process and after it

is completed—then no manufacturing or production has

occurred. If the article before the process commenced

was a cork and it emerged from the process still a cork,

there has been no manufacture. By the same token, the

principle as applied to the case at bar leads inevitably to

the conclusion that since the armatures in question did

not lose their identity during the rewinding process, but

were armatures when they entered plaintiff's plant and

were still armatures when they left the plant, there was

no manufacture.
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(b) The Mere Repair, Restoration or Recondition-

ing OF AN Article Does Not Constitute Manu-
facturing OF Production.

An essential distinction must be preserved between

manufacture which, as above shown, results in the crea-

tion of a new article, and mere repair which results

only in the restoration of partial injury but does not

create a new article. When an article which consists

of several component parts sustains wear or suffers in-

jury to one of those parts, the plain economics of the

situation dictate that the injured part, if possible, shall

be replaced or repaired, rather than that the entire

article shall be wastefully discarded. A man may drop

his watch and break the balance staff so that its useful-

ness as a timepiece is, for the time being, destroyed. But

in such a case the owner does not throw his watch away

and buy another. Instead, he takes it to a skilled me-

chanic who replaces the broken or damaged part and

restores the watch to its former condition of usefulness.

No one would argue in such a case that the jeweler had

manufactured a watch. The admitted fact is that the

owner took a watch to him. True, the watch was damaged

and would not operate, but it was, nevertheless, a watch.

After the jeweler had repaired the balance staff, it was

still a watch—the same watch. It never lost its identity

as a watch. Such is the process of repair or restoration

as distinguished from the process of manufacture.

The distinction between repair or restoration, on the

one hand, and manufacture or construction, on the other
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hand, is often called in question and decided in patent

cases.

Perhaps the leading case in this field is Wilson v. Simp-

son, 9 How. 109. In that case the owner of a patented

planing machine had repaired or reconditioned his machine

by placing therein certain new parts, particularly the

knives or cutting tools which were the important operative

agency of the machine or, as it is sometimes said, the

ultimate effective tool. Notwithstanding the fact that

the cutting tools were the most vital and important part

of the machine and did the very work for which the ma-

chine was designed, the court had no difficulty in finding

that their replacement constituted only repair of the

machine and not manufacture or production of a new

machine so as to infringe the patent. In the opinion by

Mr. Justice Wayne it is said, 1. c. 123:

"But it does not follow, when one of the elements

of the combination has become so much worn as

to be inoperative, or has been broken, that the machine

no longer exists, for restoration to its original use,

by the owner who has bought its use. When the

wearing or injury is partial, then repair is restoration,

and not reconstruction.

"Illustrations of this will occur to anyone, from

the frequent repairs of many machines for agricul-

tural purposes. Also from the repair or replace-

ment of broken or worn-out parts of larger and

more complex combinations for manufactures.

"In either case, repairing partial injuries, whether

they occur from accident or from wear and tear, is

only refitting machine for use. And it is no more

than that, though it shall be a replacement of an

essential part of a combination. It is the use of the
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whole of that which a purchaser buys, when the

patentee sells to him a machine; and when he repairs

the damages which may be done to it, it is no more

than the exercise of that right of care which every-

one may use to give duration to that which he owns,

or has a right to use as a whole,"

In Hcss-Bright Mfg. Co. v. Bearing Co., 271 Fed. 350,

the court considered a case involving the alleged in-

fringement of a patent upon a ball bearing. The bearing

consisted of a groove of a certain depth with balls ex-

actly fitting it. The vendee of this patented bearing re-

ground or smoothed up the groove, an operation which

necessarily resulted in somewhat enlarging the groove.

This necessitated installing larger balls to fit the enlarged

groove. The question was whether or not the owners of

the bearing had constructed a new bearing so as to in-

fringe the patent or whether he had merely repaired his

bearing. The court found that there was no manufac-

ture involved in the process and that the patent had not

been infringed. In the opinion by Dickinson, district

judge, it is said, 1. c. 351:

"Council for plaintiff does not, of course, formu-

late the claim of right as defendant states it. He
does not deny to the vendee of plaintiff the right to

repair. What he does deny is any right, by using

plaintiff's bearing as a model, to make a new bear-

ing from the raw material of the old one. It is

obvious that all this is nothing more than opposing

statements of the effect of what the defendant had

done. The defendant calls it the repair of old bear-

ings. The plaintiff calls it new construction or re-

construction. Omitting the name properly to be

applied to what was done, the fact finding is made

that what was done was the regrinding of the groove
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of old bearings, and, when required, the substi-

tution of new balls to fit the grooves enlarged by

the regrinding.

"The dividing line between repairs and a making

over cannot be verbally located. What has been done

can with more or less confidence be pronounced to

be one or the other, but neither the one nor the

other can be defined. The judgment pronounced

must in consequence partake of the ipse dixit or

rescript character. A further consequence is that

the adjudged cases provide us with little for our

guidance. With no thought of finding a better mode
of expression for the clearly presented views of

counsel for plaintifif, it may be premised that a fea-

ture of the patented bearing is the metallic pathway

provided in the form of a groove, which calls for

the use of balls of a certain size. The nicety of

adjustment required can be most emphatically ex-

pressed by the statement that the unit of measure-

ment employed is the ten-thousandth part of an inch.

This groove may, from use or abuse, be in need of

being remade by regrinding. The lightest repolish-

ing, almost, is such.

"The argument that this is not repair, but a new
construction, may be thus expressed: A bearing

with a groove of a certain depth, with balls exactly

fitting it, is sold by the plaintifif to A. Another

bearing, with a different groove, calling for the next

larger size balls, is sold to B. The first vendee

smooths up the groove in his bearing, thus adopting

it to the next larger size of balls. By so doing he

has not repaired the bearing sold to him, but out of

the material in this old bearing he has made a new

one, which is not his old bearing, but a dififerent

bearing of the B type. In other words the old A
bearing has lost its identity by destruction, and a new
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bearing, B, has been made. In a sense this is,

of course, true ; but it is only true in a sense. Identity

is not lost by a mere change in size. The rule of

which we are in search is a practical rule for the

guidance of practical men in practical business. What
the patentee sells is a concrete thing. It is a bear-

ing. As long as it remains the bearing of the

patent, it is what the patentee sold. The moment it

becomes something else, the patentee is not con-

cerned with it. The groove of the patent is still the

groove of the patent, although enlarged. It no

more loses its identity by enlargement than a river

does by the change of the volume, due to the flow

and ebb of the tide, or by the shoaling or deepening

of its channel by the wash of its current.

"The balls are no part of the groove, but some-

thing used with it. There is no thought of denying

the right of a vendee to repair balls. His right is

not limited to any size of ball. The balls may be

replaced without thought of infringement of any

patent right. To deny vendee the right to smooth

up a groove is to deny him all right to make re-

pairs to the patented features of what was sold to

him. The right cannot be limited to the use of

the same balls as before. The only limitation is that

he may repair, but cannot make a new bearing out of

the material of the old. What is the one and what

the other the facts of each case must determine. The
line, as before observed, is most difficult to draw

in words of description; it is by no means so dif-

ficult to draw in fact.

"In the instant case our fact finding is that what

defendant has done is to make repairs, and that it

has not infringed upon the patent rights of plain-

tiff. The name given to anything is not neces-

sarily indicative of what the thing is. A fact upon
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which defendant lays much stress has some interest

as a coincidence, but no other value. The fact re-

ferred to is that the plaintiff itself did what the

defendant has done, and the department in charge of

such work was called by plaintiff its 'Repair De-

partment'. We attach as little importance to the dis-

tinction between repairing and selling second-hand

bearings after they have been repaired."

In the case of Ely Norris Safe Co. v. Master Safe

Co. (C C. A. 2), 62 Fed. (2d) 524, the defendant was

held not to have constructed or manufactured, but to have

merely repaired a safe, thereby committing no infringe-

ment of plaintiff's patent. In the course of the opinion the

pertinent facts and applicable law are stated as follows,

1. c. 527:

"The second claimed infringement is by the HaHfax
safe. This safe was sold by the plaintiff in 1908

to the First Bank of Fallis, at Fallis, Oklahoma.

Shortly thereafter it was burglarized. The insurance

company refused to pay the loss, and a suit followed.

A witness, an employee of the Hosier Safe Company,

testified that, after the burglary, the safe was shipped

to the Hosier Safe and Lock Company. It could not

be unlocked when received and a hole was drilled in

the back of the safe and a rod placed through it to

trip the lock mechanism of the inner door. There is

no evidence of a so-called explosion chamber. This

safe was then resold to the Bank of Halifax, of Hali-

fax, Pa., as a second-hand safe. The hole was drilled

in 1911. In Harch, 1930, one of the employees of

the York Safe and Lock Company saw this safe and

recognized it as a safe body of plaintiff's construction

bearing the same number as a safe which was sold

to the First Bank of Fallis. It then contained a re-

movable raid chest, and on the door of the inner chest
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there appeared the name of Mosler. One of plaintiff's

witnesses saw it in 1930, and stated that a hole had

been drilled in the door and that a metal plug had

been hammered into the hole. From this it is argued

that it was reconstructed and sold by the defendant.

It is said to be an infringement, but it does not appear

when the hole was drilled or by whose authority or

request it was drilled and whether prior to or after

it was sold to the Bank of Halifax. It is quite ap-

parent that when the locking device went wrong and

it became necessary to drill the hole in the door to re-

pair it, it was later plugged, but the defendant cannot

be charged with this as constituting an act of infringe-

ment. The repair may be assumed to have been made

on instructions from the bank. It was not the con-

struction of a safe. There is testimony that it is the

practice of safe manufacturers to place their name
upon second-hand safes zvhen they sell them. This

resale of a second-hand safe in the manner described

and the repair necessarily made to adjust the locking

device, first drilling a hole, cannot he regarded as an

act of infringement. We agree with the court below

in holding it was not." (Italics supplied.)

In Foglesong Machine Co. v. Randall Co. (C. C. A. 6),

239 Fed. 893, the defendant, being the owner of a patented

i machine for the stuffing of horse collars, was accused of in-

fringing the patent by making certain repairs upon the ma-

»

chine. The court found that certain parts of the machine

were perishable in that they were subject to greater wear

than other parts. In that connection the court said, 1. c.

895:

"The question for decision is: Did the defendant

repair or reconstruct the machine which it purchased

from the Grand Rapids Company? In supplying a new
hopper, stuffing rod nose, and disc, the defendant
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merely returned to use the injured or lost portions of

the mechanism. This constitutes repairing, and not

reconstruction."

At another point the court said, 1. c. 896:

"The machine was not so broken and worn out as to

require replacement. The wear and injury were but

partial. Under such circumstances, repair is not re-

construction, but restoration, that the mechanism may
be kept up to the full performance of its duty."

In Goodyear Shoe Machine Co. v. Jackson (C. C. A. 1),

112 Fed. 146, it is said in the opinion by Colt, C. J., 1. c.

151:

"Where the patent is for a machine, which com-

monly embraces the combination of many constituent

elements, the question of infringement by the pur-

chaser will turn upon whether the machine is only

partially worn out or partially destroyed, or is entirely

worn out, and so beyond repair in a practical sense.

In the case of a patent for a planing machine com-

posed of many parts it was held that the replace-

ment of the rotary knives, 'the effective ultimate tool'

of the machine, was repair, and not reconstruction,

Wilson V. Simpson, 9 How. 109."

A further statement of the principle involved, together

with a citation of many cases, is found in Miller Hatcheries

V. Incubator Co. (C. C. A. 8), 41 Fed. (2nd) 619.

In State v. J. J. Newman Lumber Co. (Miss.), 59 So.

923, the distinction between manufacture and repair is

clearly stated by the Supreme Court of Mississippi as fol-

lows, 1. c. 926:

"A reasonable definition may be given to 'manu-

facturing' (Century Dictionary) as the system of
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industry which produces manufactured articles, and

to 'manufacture' as the production of articles for use

from raw or prepared materials, by giving to these

materials new forms, quaHties, and properties, or

combinations, whether by hand labor or machinery,

used more especially of production in a large way by

machinery, or many hands working co-operatively.

'Repair' is to make whole or restore an article or

thing to its completeness. In the general knowledge

of the affairs of business and life, it will hardly be

difficult to class those persons who are engaged in such

employment."

Applying the principles announced and reiterated in the

foregoing cases to the facts of the case at bar, it is

clear that the injury to the used, second-hand armatures

which the plaintiff acquired and rewound was but partial.

Only the wire coils were injured or destroyed. They were

not "entirely worn out, and so beyond repair in a practical

sense" {Goodyear Shoe Machinery Co. v. Jackson, 112

Fed. 146, 151), is conclusively proved by the fact that

the plaintiif did restore them to their former condition

of usefulness by the simple expedient of installing the new

coils. The basic thing or part is the core consisting of

the shaft, commutator and laminated core, which was

identified by Mr. Daniels, a witness for the plaintiflf

[R. 80].

"The Court : Often you would build it on—what do

you call the basic thing, the coil?

"The Witness: The armature is the basic thing,

and we would put new wires on it, and turn it."

The physical facts speak for themselves. This Court

has before it a box of armatures, Defendant's Exhibit C,

showing armatures in various stages of rewinding. These
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exhibits themselves are the most eloquent testimony ob-

tainable that the armatures before rewinding were not

entirely worn out and were not beyond repair in any sense,

but had sustained only partial wear or injury. These

armatures were not "junk," and had not been discarded

by their former owners as is contended by the appellant.

On the contrary, they had been carefully preserved and

had been sent to this plaintiff either directly or through

jobbers so that they might be rewound or exchanged for

other armatures of a similar type which had already been

rewound.

Harry E. Seneker, testifying for the plaintiff, when

asked what percentage of the armatures were procured

from jobbers, stated [R. 97] :

"A. Approximately 95 per cent."

If these armatures were so far worn out and so beyond

repair that they had ceased to have any value over and

above the melting pot value of the metal contained in them,

why did plaintiff pay an average of from fifty cents to

one dollar for them? If the Court can draw upon its fund

of common knowledge and take judicial knowledge of the

fact that there is such a thing in the steel industry as

scrap, then it must also know that steel scrap is regularly

bought and sold as a commodity of commerce at a price

of a few dollars per ton. The current price for scrap steel

is now $11.50 per ton, slightly more than a half cent per

pound.

There was no direct evidence that the used, second-

hand armatures which the plaintiff rewound were, prior

to the rewinding, so worn out and beyond repair that they

had ceased to be armatures. On the contrary, under the

undisputed evidence in this case, it is conclusively proved
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and established that these armatures had a commercial

value to the plaintiff and to other concerns engaged in

the rewinding business in excess of their "junk value."

It is obvious that the comparatively great commercial value

of used armatures in excess of the melting pot value of

the metals contained therein is due entirely to the fact

that these armatures may be restored to their former

condition of usefulness and mechanical efficiency by a

process of repair. This is the principle which underlies

the decision of the Supreme Court in Cadzvalader v. Jessup

& Moore, 149 U. S. 350. In that case the Supreme Court

was called upon to decide whether certain imports of old

india rubber shoes were dutiable as crude india rubber or

as articles composed of india rubber. The shoes were so

worn as to be beyond repair and for that reason they had

ceased to be shoes and were valuable only for the rubber

which they contained. It is said in the opinion by Mr.

Justice Blatchford at page 354:

"The uncontradicted testimony is to the effect that

the only commercial use or value of the old india

rubber shoes, or scrap rubber, or rubber scrap in

question, is by reason of the india rubber contained

therein, as a substitute for crude rubber; that the old

shoes were of commercial use and value only by rea-

son of the india rubber they contained, as a substi-

tute for crude rubber, and not by reason of any prepa-

ration or manufacture which they had undergone;

that they could not fairly be called 'articles composed

of india rubber,' and as such dutiable at 25 per centum

ad valorem; and that, although the shoes may have

been originally manufactured articles composed of in-

dia rubber, they had lost their commercial value as

such articles, and substantially were merely the mate-

rial called 'crude rubber.' They were not india rubber
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fabrics, or india rubber shoes, because they had lost

substantially their commercial value as such." (Italics

supplied.)

The appellant herein compares the above case to the

case at bar, stating that the india rubber shoes had lost

their commercial value as such articles, and substantially

were the material called ''crude rubber". It is agreed

that they are correct in reference to the shoes, because

they were not imported as used shoes to be repaired, but

only for their value as crude rubber. In the instant case

the armatures are repaired to restore them to their former

condition of usefulness. If the plaintiff had converted the

armatures into some other automobile part then there

might be some color of right in the appellant's contention

;

in fact, this action would never have been instituted.

The appellant bases practically its entire case upon the

decision in the case of Clawson & Bals v. Harrison, 108

Fed. (2d) 991. In order to get a clear picture of this

case it is necessary to refer to the findings of fact and

conclusions of law as found by the trial court. This case

is not published in the National Reporter System, but

may be found in Commerce Clearing House, 1939 Stan-

dard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, Paragraph 9219. For

the convenience of this Court the findings of fact and

conclusions of law made and entered by the court are

submitted in the appendix to this brief [App. p. 28].

Clawson & Bals had new connecting rod forgings made

for them, which they machined and babbitted. During

part of the period covered by their suit, they removed

all marks of identification from rods manufactured by

General Motors Corporation and subsidiaries. They also

rebabbitted used and second-hand connecting rods. At
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paragraph 10 of the findings of fact the trial court

found

:

"Plaintiff kept but one stock with respect to each

number and had but one outright price with respect

to the rods, irrespective of whether they were pro-

duced from entirely new castings or from scrap, and

regarded the articles made from scrap as equivalent

to any similar products made entirely from virgin

metal. The rods made from scrap were in com-

petition with similar products made entirely of virgin

metal and were just as serviceable. They were held

out for sale and sold on the same basis and under

the same warranties as the connecting rods produced

from entirely virgin forgings. In other words,

plaintiff made no distinction between such connecting

rods in the numbering, cataloging, selling, billing,

advertising, shipping, labeling, pricing, marketing,

quality, warranty, guaranty or otherwise."

As stated before, Clawson & Bals dealt in three kinds

of connecting rods; newly-manufactured ones, rebabbitted

rods on which the identification marks had been removed

and other rebabbitted rods. They at all times held them-

selves out as manufacturers, as in truth they were. As

manufacturers they paid excise tax on all sales of rods,

but did not include as part of the sale price the exchange

value of the old rods received as part of the selling price.

Later the Government assessed a total of $54,232.02.

representing tax and interest on the additional selling

price as represented by the value of the old rods received

in exchange. Immediately Clawson & Bals objected on

the ground that they were only rebabbitters of a part

of the rods sold by them and that the additional tax paid

by them of $54,232.02 should be refunded as representing

the tax on the sale of rebabbitted connecting rods.
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lt is submitted that the facts in the Clawson & Bals

case are entirely different from the facts in the case at

bar. Clawson & Bals did manufacture new connecting

rod forgings from virgin metal, they removed identifica-

tion marks from a part of the rods rebabbitted by them,

they were manufacturers and held themselves out as

such, whereas the appellee herein never manufactured an

armature, or held itself out as a manufacturer, never

removed any identification marks from the armatures

and, in fact, never did more than repair used and damaged

armatures.

The appellant also cites as authority The King v. Bilt-

rite Tire Co., 1937 Canadian Law Reports 1, and The

King v. Boultbee, Ltd. (1938), 3 Dominion Law Reports

664. However, it is contended by appellee that our courts

must give precedent to the cases decided in our own

country and must consider as law the overwhelming

authorities therein established before resorting to cases

decided in foreign courts.

In view of the uncontradicted testimony in the case

at bar that the used, second-hand armatures which plain-

tiff acquired and rewound, by reason of the preparation

and manufacture which they had previously undergone,

had a commercial value as armatures which was far in

excess of the junk value of the metals therein contained.

It is respectfully submitted that the findings and judg-

ment of the learned trial court were correct and should

be affirmed.
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II.

The Rewinding of Armatures Has Been Specifically

Held in Other Cases Not to Constitute Manu-

facturing.

The applicability of the tax imposed by Section 606(c)

of the Internal Revenue Act of 1932 to the sale of re-

wound automobile generator armatures has been decided

in favor of the taxpayer by the District Courts of the

United States in two other cases.

The first such case was Monteith Bros. Company v.

United States, before the Hon. Thomas W. Slick, of the

Northern District of Indiana. No opinion was delivered

by the court and the case is not published in the National

Reporter System. The findings and judgment of the

court may be found, however, in Commerce Clearing

House, 1936 Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4,

paragraph 9492; and for the convenience of this Court

there is submitted an appendix to this brief, in which

are printed in full the findings and judgment of the court

in the Monteith case [App. p. 1]. Judge Slick found

and held that the sale of rewound armatures did not come

within the purview of Section 606(c) of the Internal

Revenue Act of 1932. This case also embraced the sale

of rebuilt generators and rebabbitted connecting rods and

decided their taxability in the same manner.

In Becker-Florence Co. v. United States, Hon. Albert

L. Reeves of the Western District of Missouri, on Decem-

ber 27, 1938, held that the tax imposed by Section 606(c)

of the Internal Revenue Act of 1932 was not applicable
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to the sale of rewound and reconditioned automobile

armatures and generators. The opinion and decision of

the court in that case are not published in the National

Reporter System, but may be found in Commerce Clear-

ing House, 1939 Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4,

paragraph 9259, and for the convenience of this Court

are submitted in the appendix to this brief [App. p. 21].

Judge Reeves, recognizing the necessity of equality and

uniformity in the administration of taxing statutes, said

in the course of his opinion:

"To give the statutes the meaning contended for

by the government would involve endless complica-

tions as affecting dealers, garage owners and repair

men in general. No definite line could well be drawn

and twilight zones would develop so frequently and

from so many angles that a just and fair and prac-

tical enforcement of the law would become im-

possible."

This same section of the Internal Revenue Act of

1932 was also called into question in five cases involving

the taxability of the sales of rebabbitted connecting rods.

which were decided by the District Court in favor of the

taxpayer and against the government.

The first of these cases was Hempy-Cooper Mfg. Co. v.

United States, before the Hon. Merrill E. Otis, of the

Western District of Missouri. The opinion of Judge

Otis in that case is not published in the National Reporter

System, but may be found in Commerce Clearing House,

1937 Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, paragraph

9421. For the convenience of this Court the opinion of

Judge Otis and the findings of fact and conclusions of

law made and entered by the court are submitted in the

appendix to this brief [App. p. 5].
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In the Hcmpy-Coopcr case Judge Otis specifically held

that whether a given operation constituted manufacture

or repair is to be determined by what is done during the

process. In the course of the opinion it is said:

''The connecting rod is the same connecting rod

after repairing is done as it was before. It has not

lost its identity. Whether a given operation is

manufacturing or repair of something that already

has been manufactured does not depend upon what

is done with the thing after it has been repaired or

after it has been worked upon. It depends upon

what has been done. If it is merely a repair opera-

tion, if it is handed back to some other person who
has brought it for the purpose of having it repaired,

it is still nothing but a repair operation if, after the

work has been done, it is laid upon the shelf and

sold the next day or the next week or the next year.

In neither case is the identity of the thing lost."

Another case in which it was held that the rebabbitting

of connecting rods does not constitute manufacture is

Bardet v. United States, decided by Hon. Fred Louder-

back of the Northern District of California on May 18.

1938. The court delivered no opinion and the case is

not published in the National Reporter System, bat may

be found in Commerce Clearing House, 1938 Standard

Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, paragraph 9530. For the

convenience of this Court the findings of fact and con-

clusions of law in that case are submitted in the appendix

to this brief [App. p. 14].

The third case in which it was held that the rebabbitting

of connecting rods does not constitute manufacturing is

Con-Rod Exchange, Inc., v. Henricksen, 28 Fed. Supp.

924, decided by Hon. Leon R. Yankwich, August 17,
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1939. In the course of the opinion Judge Yankwich

stated

:

"We do not have here a process of manufacture

or production of an article of commerce. We have

merely a process of renewing, for further use, a

standard article of commerce—an automobile part

—

by resurfacing a worn-off portion of it with a thin

layer of metal alloy, which in all probability, does not

enhance its weight by more than a few ounces.

'Manufacture is transformation—the finishing of raw

materials into a change of form for use.' Kidd v.

Pearson, 1888, 128 U. S. 1, 20, 9 S. Ct. 6, 10, 32

L. Ed. 346. Here there is no change of form,

identity or function. The rehabilitated article is not

a new article, but one which has been restored to its

original shape and use by the mere resurfacing of

the worn-off surface on part of it. * * *

"For the function of repairing is to make usable

an article which without it could not be used. A
frying pan without a handle is useless as a frying

pan. So is a chair in which the seat or a leg is

broken. The workman who adds a new handle to a

pan, or repairs the seat or leg of a chair by replacing

the worn-out portion with new material, in effect,

takes something out of a scrap heap or a junk pile

and restores it to usefulness.

"Still we would be doing acts of violence to the

English language if we called these acts of repairing

acts of manufacture."

In Moroloy Bearing Service of Oakland, Ltd., v. United

States of America, Hon. Martin I. Welsh of the Northern

District of California, Southern Division, decided July

16, 1940, likewise held that the manufacturer's excise

lax on the sale of automobile parts did not apply to the
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sale of rehabbitted connecting rods. At the present

time the opinion in that case is not pubHshed in the

National Reporter Service, nor has it appeared in the

Federal Tax Service. For the convenience of this Court

a copy of the opinion by Judge Welsh is submitted in

the appendix to this brief [App. p. 37]. The following

excerpts from the opinion are particularly pertinent here:

"The evidence shows the connecting rods which

plaintiff rebabbitted were in their original state

manufactured by others, and only came into the

hands of the plaintiff when certain parts of them

became defective either from the burning out of

the babbit through friction while in operation, or

through lack of proper lubrication, or on account of

other causes.

"In no manner did the evidence show the plaintiff

manufactured the connecting rods themselves, but, on

the contrary, the evidence clearly showed that plain-

tiff was engaged in the repair and rehabilitation of

connecting rods manufactured by others, when they

became outworn and defective from use.

"In Bouvier's Law Dictionary (Rawl's Revision,

Unabridged) the words manufacture and repair,

when used as verbs are defined as follows

:

" 'Manufacture—^to make or fabricate raw ma-

terials by hand, art, or machinery, and work into

forms convenient for use.

" 'Repair—to restore to a sound state after decay,

injury, delapidation, or partial injury.'

"It would be just as logical to hold that a shoe

cobbler was a manufacturer of shoes that were

brought to him for repair because he nailed or sewed

soles and heels on the shoes in the process of repair-

ing them, as to hold that a mechanic was a manu-

facturer of connecting rods because he rehabilitated
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them. The process is a repair in the one case, just

as it is in the other. That plaintiff is repairing

its own rods for sale, whereas the shoe cobbler is

repairing shoes for others is not significant. Whether

or not a process is one of repair does not depend on

the condition of the title to the repaired article."

The most recent case in favor of the taxpayer, deciding

the taxability of rebabbitted connecting rods was /. Leslie

Morris Company, Inc. v. United States of America, de-

cided July 24, 1940, by the Hon. Paul J. McCormick, Dis-

trict Judge. This case is not reported at the present time,

accordingly a copy of the opinion of Judge McCormick

is submitted in the appendix to this brief [App. p. 39].

In the armature and generator cases heretofore cited

the mechanics of the repairing were practically identical

with the facts in the case at bar. The last five cases

cited dififer only as to the parts involved; the mechanical

operations are, of necessity different, but are still repairs

of used parts. In all seven cases the repairs commenced

with certain used parts; when the repairing was com-

pleted the used parts were still present. They had not

lost their identity during the process. The results of

the process in all of the cases were identical.

The first case involving excise tax on repaired auto-

mobile parts under the Internal Revenue Act of 1932 was

Skinner v. United States, 8 Fed. Supp. 999. In this case

the court held that the manufacturer's excise tax imposed

by Section 602 of the Internal Revenue Act of 1932 did

not apply to retreaded tires, because retreading is not

manufacturing, but is merely repair. At page 1004 it is

stated in the opinion:

"The court is of the opinion that plaintiff is not

a manufacturer or producer within the meaning of
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the statutes and regulations. He is, as stated by the

witness Roper in the record (page 9), 'a repairman'

and should be classified and by the court is classified

as such."

It is pointed out that the Bureau of Internal Revenue,

in S. T. 648, Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumulative Bul-

letin XII- 1, page 384, has itself adopted, and is still fol-

lowing the test laid down in the Skinner case. That test

is whether the identity of the old tire is lost in the process.

If so, it is manufacturing; if not, it is merely repairing

[App. p. 44].

Applying the test laid down in the Skinner case to the

case at bar, it is readily seen that no tax should attach

upon the sale of the armatures rewound by appellee. To

do otherwise would be to perpetrate the greatest in-

equality in the administration of the tax laws. This

point of identity was covered at the trial of this case by

Mr. Daniels, where he testified on direct examination

[R. 75-76] :

"Q. When an old armature was received for

rewinding, were the component parts of the armature

separated ?

"The Witness : The only part that was removed

was the winding of the wire from the armature.

"Q. Were any steps taken to removed the exist-

ing identity that might be on the armatures ?

'The Witness: No, there was no identification

removed."

The unanimity of opinion of the courts in the seven cases

above presented which deal directly with the question of

the taxability of the sale of rebuilt or repaired automobile

parts is not without significance, particularly since they

are directly in line with the other authorities herein cited.
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Taxing Statutes Must Be Strictly Construed and

Should Be So Construed as to Produce Uniformity

and Equality in Their Application. Their Pro-

visions Cannot Be Extended by Implication.

There was no dispute at the trial of this case as to

the methods employed by the plaintiff in rewinding auto-

mobile generator armatures. In fact the method was

covered by a series of 21 pictures and an explanatory state-

ment for each, which were introduced as a joint exhibit.

(Joint Ex. No. 1.)

The government produced no direct evidence whatever

that the rewinding of armatures is a manufacturing

process or that the rewinding of armatures constitutes the

manufacture of armatures.

Being totally without any direct evidence that rewind-

ing is a manufacturing process, the government appar-

ently attempted to prove its case by the use of a syllogism

which runs something like this: All large establish-

ments employing many men, using many machines and

turning out a large volume of work, doing business on

a large scale and publishing catalogues in which their

product is described, are manufacturing estabhshments

;

plaintiff has all these characteristics; therefore, plaintiff

is a manufacturing establishment. The major premise

of this syllogism is, of course, untrue, and the conclusion

is, therefore, completely false. Size and extent and

volume of business do not constitute the test of manu-

facture. It is common knowledge that there are many

machine shops much larger than plaintiff's which manu-

facture nothing, but are engaged only in repair work.

Much emphasis was also placed on the fact that the

appellee was incorporated "to carry on the business of
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manufacturing and assembling armatures * * * ^j^^^

to market them." [R. 106.] This corporation was

organized in 1922 [R. 57], ten years before the enact-

ment of the Revenue Act of 1932. The articles of incor-

poration were so broad that appellee could do practically

anything that an individual could do. [R. 106-109.]

The test is not what the articles of incorporation recite,

but what was actually done during the period involved.

If the taxing statute here involved is to be applied and

administered by testing whether a company is a manu-

facturer or a repairman by determining whether it does

business on a large scale or on a small scale, and whether

it employs many men or few men, and whether its articles

of incorporation authorize it to manufacture or not, then

the administration of the taxing statute will result in the

greatest inequality and lack of uniformity. The rewinder

who sells several thousand armatures a month will be

taxed because he is large and the rewinder who sells only

a few armatures a month will not be taxed because he

is small. The rewinder empowered to manufacture arma-

tures will be taxed because of those powers, even though

he is not exercising them.

The appellee herein distributed printed catalogues,

wherein were listed the armatures sold, showing the

original manufacturer's name and parts number, in addi-

tion to appellee's code number. [R. 67-73.]

The mere fact that ownership of the armatures was

vested in the appellee does not affect its status as a re-

pairer. There is nothing to prevent appellee from acquir-

ing title to used armatures or other automobile parts and

repairing them before offering them for sale. Certainly

there is no conflict here between the repairman being

also the owner and vendor or only the repairman of the

used armatures for others.



The true test, and the only test, is whether the rewind-

ing process itself results in the creation of a new article,

or whether it only accomplishes the restoration of an

article already created. That is the test which can be

applied to every rewinder and will result in absolute

equality and uniformity of administration of the taxing

statute.

In City of Louisville v. Zinmeister (Ky.), 222 S. W.

958, 1. c. 959, the Supreme Court of Kentucky said:

"In the recent case of Lorrilard Co. v. Ross,

Sheriff, 183 Ky. 217, 209 S. W. 39, we held that

the word 'manufacture,' in the sense in which it is

employed in the statutes quoted above, does not im-

port the means or methods employed, or the nature or

number of processes resorted to, or the size of the

factory or the number of hands it employs, or the

volume of machinery in use, but the result accom-

plished, whether the article is manufactured or not."

It is elementary that taxing statutes are to be con-

strued strictly in favor of the taxpayer. This means

that the tax must be based upon express statutory au-

thority and cannot be imposed by implication. In Hart-

ranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 609, it is said in the opinion

by Mr. Justice Blatchford, at page 616:

"We are of the opinion that the decision of the

Circuit Court was correct. But, if the question were

one of doubt, the doubt would be resolved in favor

of the importer, 'as duties are never imposed on a

citizen upon vague or doubtful interpretations.'

Powers V. Barney, 5 Blatchf. 202; United States v.

Isham, 84 U. S., 17 Wall. 496, 504; Gurr v. Sciidds,

11 Exch. 190, 191; Adams v. Bancroft, 3 Sumn.

384."
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In Miller v. Standard Nut Margarine Co., 284 U. S.

498, it is stated in the opinion by Mr. Justice Butler, at

page 508:

"It is elementary that tax laws are to be inter-

preted liberally in favor of taxpayers and that words

defining things to be taxed may not be extended

beyond their clear import. Doubts must be resolved

against the government and in favor of taxpayers.

United States v. Merriam, 263 U. S. 179, 188, 29 A.

L. R. 1547, 44 S. Ct. 69; Bowers v. New York & A.

Lighterage Co., 273 U. S. 346, 350, 47 S. Ct. 398."

In Erskine v. United States (C. C. A. 9), 84 Fed. (2d)

690, 691, it is said:

"Such revenue acts must be construed strictly in

favor of the appellant sought to be charged as im-

porter. He is 'entitled to the benefit of even a

doubt.' Tarifif Act 1897, 30 Stat. 151 ; United States

V. Riggs, 203 U. S. 136, 1939, 27 S. Ct. 39, 40, 51

L. Ed. 127; Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 609,

616, 7 S. Ct. 1240, 30 L. Ed. 1012; Miller v. Stan-

dard Nut Margarine Co., 284 U. S. 498, 508, 52 S.

Ct. 260, 76 L. Ed. 422."

In Bankers Trust Co. v. Bowers (C. C. A. 2), 295 Fed.

89, 96, it is said that the construction placed on a statute

should avoid unjust consequences unless the act compels

such a result. This is particularly true of a taxing statute

where absolute uniformity and equality are to be

preserved.

In Alaska Consolidated Canneries v. Territory of

Alaska (C. C. A. 9), 16 Fed. (2d) 256, l.c.258, it is said

in the opinion by Rudkin, C. J.

:

"Of course there is a presumption that laws, and

especially tax laws, will have a prospective operation
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intended to operate uniformly and equally upon all

and, in the end, the question is one of legislative

intent."

And in Atlantic Pipe Line Company v. Brown County^

12 Fed. Supp. 642, Judge Atwell said, at page 646:

"Discrimination is synonymed with distinction. It

is the antithesis of fairness. It means, in this case,

the demand from the complainant of a higher rate

or of a higher value, and this disadvantage involves

a correlative discrimination. Taxation must be uni-

form and without such favoritism."

The contention of the government that some distinction

may be made predicated upon the fact that the plaintiff

is a large operator would seem to be specifically refuted

by the case of Spreckels Sugar Refining Co. v. McClain

(C. C. A. 3), 113 Fed. 244, opinion by Circuit Judge

Dallas. In that case the statute imposed an excise tax

on all gross receipts in excess of the sum of $250,000.00

per annum. A monthly return was required by the law,

which did not specifically require anything but an annual

payment of tax. The Spreckels Company filed a return

for the first month, showing receipts in excess of the

sum of $250,000.00, and it was contended that the law

should be construed so as to force the company to pay

the tax monthly. The court held that the construction

of the act contended for by the government was "so

questionable as to render it inadmissible to impose a duty

upon a citizen," citing the Hartranft case, and further

held that such an inequality in the administration of the

law could not be imposed upon the plaintiff simply because

the returns were so large that its first monthly return
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exceeded $250,000.00. The court said in the opinion,

1.C.247:

"We have already pointed out that it is not neces-

sary to put an interpretation upon this section which

might involve such inequality in its administration

and, except by necessity, no such interpretation could

be justified."

The opinion of the learned trial court in this case

[R. 11-25] discloses that in every respect the principles

announced in the foregoing authorities were closely ad-

hered to. After carefully reviewing the evidence which

had been adduced at the trial the court stated [R. 24] :

'Tf a person with mechanical skill were asked to

rewind an armature, by one who paid him the value

of his labor and materials, would the process be one

of manufacturing? I do not think so. The fact

that this company does this on a large scale does

not alter the situation. In neither case are we deal-

ing with a 'manufacturer' or 'producer'."

On the question of the wording of the articles of incor-

poration, on which the appellant lays great emphasis, the

trial court said [R. 105] :

"Under these articles, they can sell everything but

liquor. They can do bill-posting, and everything else.

I don't know what good this will do."

Thus it can be seen that the court weighed the very

points which are here urged by the appellant and spe-

cifically decided that large size of the plant, number of

employees and authorization of the articles of incorpora-

tion would not constitute the test of the application of

the statute.

It is a cardinal principle of tax law that any doubt

shall be resolved against the taxing authority. To do
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otherwise in this action would be to work great hardship

upon the appellee and controvert all established law on

that point.

In deciding" /. Leslie Morris Company, Inc., v. United

States of America Judge McCormick laid special emphasis

on this question of interpretation of statutes [App. p. 39].

The Bureau of Internal Revenue has no authority to

attempt to amend any congressional act or extend the

meaning thereof by regulation. This principle is clearly

pointed out by the Supreme Court in Koshland v. Helver-

ing, 298 U. S. 441, 446.

Had Congress intended the tax herein involved to

attach to the sale of repaired automobile parts such pro-

vision would have been put in the Internal Revenue Act

of 1932. Failure to put such provision in that act shows

clearly that it intended for the tax to attach to the sale of

only newly-manufactured parts.

Plaintiff respectfully submits that, in the public interest,

as well as to prevent injustice to this plaintiff, the judg-

ment of the learned trial court should be sustained to the

end that fairness, equality and uniformity in the adminis-

tration and collection of federal manufacturer's excise

tax shall be insured.

Conclusion.

It is submitted that the evidence supports the findings

of fact, conclusions of law and opinion of the trial court,

and that the judgment should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Darius F. Johnson,

Attorney for the Plaintiff-Appellee

.

July, 1940.
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APPENDIX TO APPELLEE'S BRIEF.

(Reprinted from Commerce Clearing House 1936

Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, Para. 9492.)

Monteith Brothers Company, plaintiff, v. United States

of America, defendant.

District Court of the United States for the Northern

District of Indiana, South Bend Division. October Term,

1936. Judgment entered October 5, 1936.

Excise tax on automobile parts and accessories. Since

not specifically mentioned under Sec. 606(c) of the 1932

Act, rezvoitnd, rebuilt, and repaired armatures, and rebuilt

and repaired generators, and rebabbitted, repaired and

rebuilt connecting rods are held not taxable as automobile

parts and accessories under that section.

See: Reg. 46, Art. 41, at Para. 2614, Vol. 3.

Slick, D. J. : Come now the parties by counsel, and

this cause being at issue is submitted to the Court for

trial without the intervention of a jury, and the parties

having filed their written stipulation wherein they agreed

that all of the allegations in plaintiff's complaint may be

taken by the Court as true and proven, except the allega-

tion wherein the plaintiff charges that it is not a manu-

facturer or producer and the Court having taken the

admitted allegations of said complaint as true and proven

and the Court having heard the argument of counsel and

the Court being duly advised in the premises finds

:

(Findings)

1. Monteith Brothers Company, plaintiff herein, is a

corporation duly organized and existing under and by

virtue of the laws of the State of Indiana and during

the times hereinafter mentioned had its office and prin-
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cipal place of business in the City of Elkhart, State of

Indiana, and within this judicial district.

2. Plaintiff made and filed its manufacturer's excise

tax in compliance with the demand of the Collector of

Internal Revenue of defendant under Paragraph C, Sec-

tion 606, of the Revenue Act of 1932, for the sum of

Five Hundred ($500) Dollars and because of said de-

mand did pay to the United States Collector of Internal

Revenue said sum of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars on

the 27th day of September, 1934.

3. On the 15th day of November, 1934, plaintiff filed

its claim for refund of said Five Hundred ($500) Dollars

manufacturer's excise tax so paid to the Collector of

Internal Revenue of the United States and asked for a

refund and repayment to plaintiff of said sum of Five

Hundred ($500) Dollars for the reason that no tax had

accrued against the plaintiff under Section 606 of the

Revenue Act of 1932; that said demand for refund was

by the Collector of Internal Revenue of the United States

denied and rejected on the 26th day of June, 1935. That

said sum of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars so paid on said

alleged claim of the defendant was paid because of the

demand for payment by defendant under and pursuant to

Section 606 of the Revenue Act of 1932, which tax was

not assessable for the reason that plaintiff did not come

within said Section 606 of said Revenue Act of 1932.

4. That for more than ten (10) years last past and

next preceding the filing of this action plaintiff was en-

gaged at Elkhart, Indiana, in the business of rewinding,

rebuilding and repairing armatures, rebuilding and re-

pairing generators, rebabbitting, repairing and rebuilding

connecting rods for automobiles; that said rewound, re-

built and repaired armatures, rebuilt and repaired gener-
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ators, rebabbitted, repaired and rebuilt connecting rods so

handled by the plaintiff were for many years preceding

the passage of the Revenue Act of 1932 extensively adver-

tised and were well known commercial commodities in the

automobile industry.

5. That the plaintiff has not included any of said sum

of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars for recovery of which

this action is filed, it disposed of its said product described

in said complaint and has not collected the same or any

part thereof from any of plaintiff's customers, nor from

any other source.

6. That said rewound, rebuilt and repaired armatures

and rebuilt and repaired generators and rebabbitted, re-

paired and rebuilt connecting rods as described in plain-

tiff's complaint and on which said tax was assessed and

paid did not, nor did any of the same come within the

purview of Paragraph C, Section 606 of the Revenue Act

of 1932 for the reason that none of said articles described

in plaintiff's complaint and on which said taxes were as-

sessed and paid are spark plugs, storage batteries, leaf

springs, coils, timers or tire chains. That the levying of

a tax upon the rewound, rebuilt and repaired armatures,

rebuilt and repaired generators and rebabbitted, repaired

and rebuilt connecting rods, or either of them, as set out

in plaintiff's complaint is an unlawful assessment; and

levying and collecting of such tax. That no tax under

Section 606 of the Revenue Act of 1932 can be imposed

upon the sale of rewound, rebuilt and repaired armatures,

rebuilt and repaired generators and rebabbitted, rebuilt

and repaired connecting rods, because the same do not

come within the Revenue Act of 1932.

7. That on the 21st day of July, 1934, the Collector

of Internal Revenue for the defendant, The United States
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of America, notified plaintiff in writing that the Internal

Revenue Department of defendant, had pursuant to Para-

graph C, Section 606 of the United States Revenue Act

of 1932 assessed a tax against plaintiff in the sum of

Eight Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-two and 1/100

($8,622.01) Dollars as a manufacturer's excise tax claimed

by the defendant covering the period from June 21, 1932,

down to and including March 1, 1934, together with in-

terest thereon in the sum of One Thousand Seventy-one

and 93/100 ($1,071.93) Dollars, making a total tax and

interest claimed by the defendant for said period from

June 21, 1932 to March 1, 1934 of Nine Thousand Six

Hundred Ninety-three and 94/100 ($9,693.94) Dollars

and at said time the Internal Revenue Department of the

defendant demanded payment of said sum of money. The

Court further finds that in pursuance of such notice and

demand of the defendant the plaintiff herein has paid to

the Collector of Internal Revenue of the defendant for

the use and benefit of the defendant the sum of Six Thou-

sand Five Hundred Sixty-four and 64/100 ($6,564.64)

Dollars

:

8. That said taxes so paid by the plaintiff to the de-

fendant as in its complaint set out were paid upon an

illegal assessment and that said sum of Five Hundred

($500) Dollars so paid by plaintiff to the Internal Rev-

enue Collector for the defendant on September 27, 1934,

should be paid by the defendant to the plaintiff.

It is therefore considered, adjudged and decreed by the

Court that plaintiff have and recover of and from the

defendant the sum of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars, to-

gether with its costs and charges paid, laid out and ex-

pended, to which judgment of the Court the defendant,

United States of America, at the time duly excepted.
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(Reprinted from Commerce Clearing House, 1937

Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, Para. 9421)

Hempy-Cooper Manufacturing Company, a corpora-

tion, Plaintiff v. United States of America, Defendant.

District Court of the United States for the Western

District of Missouri, Western Division. No. 9654. May

6, 1937.

Excise Tax on automobile parts and accessories.—Upon

the facts, taxpayer is held to have been engaged in the

repair of connecting rods and not the manufacture there-

of, so that it was not taxable on their sale.

See Reg. 46, Art. 41 at ?>72> CCH Para. 2614.175.

Messrs. Delos C. Johns and W. B. Cozad, of the firm

of Morrison, Nugent, Wylder and Berger, attorneys for

plaintiff. Mr. Thomas A. Costolow, Assistant United

States District Attorney, for defendant.

Before Merrill E. Otis, District Judge.

(Question)

The Court: The question which this case presents

is essentially a question of fact. The plaintiff sold auto-

mobile connecting rods. The tax which was imposed, a

refund of which the plaintiff seeks in this case, was im-

posed upon the theory that the plaintiff manufactured the

connecting rods which it sold. If it did manufacture

them, it was properly taxed. It did no more than sell

connecting rods which it had not manufactured but had

only repaired, it was improperly taxed. The question

then is, was that which the plaintiff did the manufacture

of connecting rods or only the repair of connecting rods?

To my mind this question of fact seems most simple

and most easy to answer. Perhaps its apparent sim-

plicity covers up greater difficulties than I observe.



(Repair v. Manufacture)

Learned counsel for the defendant concedes that if an

individual were to take a connecting rod from his auto-

mobile, part of which was so worn that it was no longer

serviceable until it was repaired, that if the person in

the shop to which he took this connecting rod did ex-

actly what the plaintiff did with the connecting rods on

which the plaintiff worked, learned counsel for the defend-

ant concedes that would be no more than a repair of the

connecting rod, and that if that was the business in which

the plaintiff* was engaged, it was not subject to this tax

that was imposed in this case. I think counsel for the

defendant is right in saying that what would have been

done in that situation by the shop owner was only a

repair of the connecting rod which had been brought to

him. There can be no argument about that. That is too

plain for argument.

The connecting rod is the same connecting rod after

repairing is done as it was before. It has not lost its

identity. Whether a given operation is manufacture or

repair of something that already has been manufactured,

does not depend upon what is done with the thing after

it has been repaired or after it has been worked upon.

It depends upon what has been done. If it is merely

a repair operation if it is handed back to some other

person who has brought it for the purpose of having it

repaired, it is still nothing but a repair operation if, after

the work has been done, it is laid upon the shelf and sold

the next day or the next week or the next year. In neither

case is the identity of the thing lost.
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(Identity Not Lost)

It seems to me that counsel for the defendant, as I

indicated when he was arguing the matter, has confused

a conception of a change of identity with a loss of marks

of identification. If one takes a connecting rod and

throws it into a pile of connecting rods in which there are

10,000 others, the mere fact that he can not again pick

out that identical connecting rod which he threw into

the pile of connecting rods because it has no marks upon

it by which it can be identified, does not mean that its

identity has been lost. Its identity has not been lost;

it is still the same connecting rod that it was when it was

thrown into the pile of connecting rods. That is true as

to each of the connecting rods upon which the plaintiff

did some work. Each of them was a connecting rod

before the work was begun, and after the work, which

made the connecting rod again useful and serviceable, was

finished—it was the same connecting rod that it was

before. Its identity had not been lost and had not been

changed.

(Conclusion)

I am not able to reach any other conclusion than that

all the plaintiff did was the repair of connecting rods

and not the manufacture of connecting rods.

I have read through the requested findings of fact and

conclusions of law. They follow the stipulation of facts,

with certain additional findings that the evidence here

presented today supports. The conclusions of law re-

quested are those which I have suggested in this short oral

opinion. The requested findings of fact and conclusions

of law are adopted by the Court. To each of the con-

clusions of law the defendant is allowed an exception.



(Which said findings of fact and conclusions of law

so adopted by the Court are in words and figures as fol-

lows :

)

Findings of Fact

1. The plaintiff, Hempy-Cooper Manufacturing Com-

pany, is, and at all times involved in this suit was, a

corporation duly organized and existing under and by

virtue of the laws of the State of Missouri, with its prin-

cipal office and place of business in Kansas City, Jackson

County, Missouri.

2. Prior to the 25th day of February, 1936, the de-

fendant, acting by and through the Bureau of Internal

Revenue of the Treasury Department and the Collector

of Internal Revenue for the 6th District of Missouri,

determined that there were due from the plaintiff, pur-

suant to the provisions of paragraph (c) of Section 606

of the Revenue Act of 1932, certain excise taxes upon

the sale by plaintiff of certain automobile parts or acces-

sories, to-wit, connecting rods in the sum of $1,030.87;

and pursuant to such determination the defendant assessed

said taxes, or caused the same to be assessed, against

the plaintiff, and the Collector of Internal .Revenue for

the 6th District of Missouri made demand upon plaintiff

for the payment of said taxes, together with penalty and

interest thereon in the sum of $190.78, making a total

assessment of $1,221.65. The plaintiff, pursuant to said

assessment and demand, paid to said Collector of Internal

Revenue for the 6th District of Missouri, the aforesaid

sum of $1,221.65, on the 25th day of February, 1936.

3. Thereafter, and prior to the 20th day of June, 1936,

the defendant acting by and through the Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue of the Treasury Department and the Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the 6th District of Mis-
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souri, determined that there were due from the plaintiff,

pursuant to the provisions of paragraph (c) of Section

606 of the Revenue Act of 1932, certain excise taxes upon

the sale by plaintiff of certain automobile parts or acces-

sories, to-wit, connecting rods, in the sum of $360.07;

and pursuant to such determination the defendant assessed

said taxes, or caused the same to be assessed, against the

plaintiff, and the Collector of Internal Revenue for the 6th

District of Missouri made demand upon plaintiff for the

payment of said taxes, together with penalty and interest

thereon in the sum of $36.87, making a total assessment

of $396.94. The plaintiff, pursuant to said assessment

and demand, paid to said Collector of Internal Revenue

for the 6th District of Missouri the aforesaid sum of

$396.94, on the 20th day of June, 1936.

4. The excise taxes so assessed against and collected

from, the plaintiff, as set forth in the preceding para-

graphs numbered 2 and 3 hereof, were in respect of sales

of certain automobile parts or accessories, to-wit, con-

necting rods, made by plaintiff during the period begin-

ning with the month of June, 1932, and ending with the

month of March, 1936.

5. The Collector of Internal Revenue for the 6th Dis-

trict of Missouri paid and remitted to the defendant said

excise taxes and penalty and interest thereon so assessed

against and collected from, the plaintiff, as aforesaid, and

the defendant received and still retains the same.

6. On the 20th day of July, 1936, the plaintiff filed

with the Collector of Internal Revenue for the 6th Dis-

trict of Missouri its claim for refund of the aforesaid

excise taxes and penalty and interest thereon, assessed

against, and collected from the plaintiff as hereinbefore

set forth, in the aggregate amount of $1,618.59. Said
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claim was made and duly filed upon the official form pre-

scribed therefor by the Treasury Department of the United

States and was so filed within four years after the date

of payment of said taxes, and said claim set forth the

reasons for, and the grounds supporting, the refund of

said taxes.

7. Thereafter, and on the 30th day of October, 1936,

the Hon. Guy T. Helvering, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue of the United States, acting by and through the

Hon. D. S. Bliss, Deputy Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue, rejected and disallowed said claim for refund, and

notified the plaintiff of such rejection and disallowance by

letter signed by said Deputy Commissioner, dated the

30th day of October, 1936, and sent to plaintiff by

registered mail.

8. The plaintiff did not include the aforesaid excise

taxes in the price of the articles with respect to which

said taxes were imposed; and plaintiff did not collect the

amount of said taxes, or any part thereof, from the

vendee or vendees of the articles in respect of which said

taxes were imposed. The burden of said taxes was

borne solely and exclusively by the plaintiff, and the bur-

den of none of said taxes was passed on by the plaintiff

to its customers or vendees.

9. All of the aforesaid excise taxes were assessed and

imposed in respect of sales by plaintiff of rebabbitted con-

necting rods. All of said connecting rods were originally

manufactured by persons, firms or corporations other

than plaintiff and before their acquisition by plaintiff had

been used as operating parts of automobile motors, and

by reason of such use the babbit metal bearings con-

stituting parts of said rods were worn, chipped, roughened

and otherwise impaired.
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10. Plaintiff imported none of said connecting rods

in respect of which said excise taxes were assessed, but

obtained all thereof from sources within the United

States. At no time has plaintiff imported, nor does it

now import, any automobile parts or accessories what-

soever.

11. The rebabbitting process to which the above men-

tioned used and second-hand connecting rods were sub-

jected in plaintiff's shop consisted of melting and re-

moving therefrom the old, worn, babbit metal bearings

and of casting therein new babbit metal bearings and

grinding, polishing and grooving the same so as to make

said rods again suitable for use as operating parts of

automobile motors.

12. The babbitt metal bearings contained in the con-

necting rods involved in this suit were of inconsequential

size and bulk compared with the total size and bulk of

the connecting rods.

13. The connecting rods which were rebabbitted by

plaintiff, and in respect of which the excise taxes involved

in this suit were imposed, did not lose their identity as

connecting rods during, or as a result of, the rebabbitting

process in plaintiff's shop.

14. None of the identifying symbols, trade-marks,

numbers or other identifying data appearing on said con-

necting rods were removed, marred or obliterated dur-

ing, or as a result of, the rebabbitting process in plain-

tiff's shop, but on the contrary, all such identifying num-

bers and data were left intact.

15. A rebabbitted connecting rod is a second-hand

connecting rod; and all of the connecting rods which

were rebabbitted by plaintiff, and in respect of which the
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taxes involved in this case were imposed, were second-

hand connecting- rods when sold by plaintiff after the

same were rebabbitted.

16. The arrangement under which plaintiff kept on

hand and in stock a supply of rebabbitted connecting rods

of various kinds and makes was a matter of convenience

to the plaintiff and its customers so that the customers

of plaintiff, by exchanging their rods, used rods for re-

babbitted rods and paying a consideration in cash for the

rebabbitting, could obtain prompt delivery of rebabbitted

rods without waiting for the actual rebabbitting process

to be completed upon the customers' own rods.

17. Rebabbitted connecting rods were widely known

and used in the automobile industry for many years prior

to the enactment of the Revenue Act of 1932, including

Section 606 thereof, and there were many persons, firms

and corporations in various parts of the United States

engaged in the business of rebabbitting connecting rods

at the time of enactment of the Revenue Act of 1932, and

for many years prior thereto.

18. The rebabbitting process performed by plaintiff

upon the connecting rods in respect of which the excise

taxes involved in this case were imposed constituted the

repair, rehabilitation or reconditioning of used and sec-

ond-hand connecting rods, and did not constitute the

manufacture or production of connecting rods.

19. The plaintiff at no time manufactured, produced,

or imported any automobile parts or accessories what-

soever.

20. The sales of rebabbitted connecting rods in respect

of which the excise taxes involved in this case were im-

posed did not constitute the sales of automobile parts or

accessories by the manufacturer, producer or importer.
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Conclusions of Law

1. The plaintiff has complied with all statutory con-

ditions constituting conditions precedent to the institution

and maintenance of this suit.

2. The plaintiff is not, and was not during the times

involved in this suit, the manufacturer, producer or im-

porter of automobile connecting rods or of any automo-

bile parts or accessories whatsoever within the meanmg

of Section 606 of the Revenue Act of 1932.

3. The tax imposed by Section 606 (c) of the Revenue

Act of 1932 applies only to sales of automobile parts or

accessories when sold by the manufacturer, producer or

importer.

4. The excise tax imposed by Section 606 (c) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 does not apply to sales of rebab-

bitted automobile connecting rods by one who acquires

such rods second-hand and rebabbits the same, and who

neither manufactures, produces nor imports any other

automobile parts or accessories.

5. In holding and determining that the tax imposed

by Section 606 (c) of the Revenue Act of 1932 applied

to sales of rebabbitted connecting rods by plaintiff dur-

ing the period beginning with the month of June, 1932,

and ending with the month of March, 1936, the Com-

missioner of Internal Revenue has exceeded the authority

granted him under the Internal Revenue Act of 1932.

6. Under the evidence and the law the plaintiff is

entitled to judgment against defendant in the sum of

$1,618.59.

7. The plaintiff is not entitled to recover interest on

said sum of $1,618.59.

Judgment for the plaintiff, the formal judgment entry

may be submitted for approval and entry.
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(Reprinted from Commerce Clearing House, 1938

Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4 119530.)

A. P. Bardet and E. Bardet, Co-partners, Doing Busi-

ness as the Pioneer Motor Bearing Co., Plaintiffs, v.

United States of America, Defendant.

Southern Division of the District Court of the United

States for the Northern District of California. No.

20364-L. Decided May 18, 1938.

Excise tax on automobile parts.—The excise tax im-

posed by Section 606 (c) of the 1932 Act does not apply

to sales of rebabbitted automobile connecting rods by one

who acquires such rods second-hand and rebabbits the

same, and who neither manufactures, produces, nor im-

ports any other automobile parts or accessories.

See Reg. 46, Art. 41 at 393 CCH 1J2614.176.

LouDERBACK, J. : The above entitled cause came on

regularly for trial before the above entitled Court, Hon-

orable Harold Louderback presiding therein, sitting with-

out a jury.

Plaintiffs appeared in person and by their attorneys, A.

E. Graupner and Theodore L. Breslaure, and the defend-

ant appeared by its attorney, Frank J. Hennessy, United

States Attorney, being represented by Esther B. Phillips,

Deputy United States Attorney.

Witnesses were sworn and testimony given at the said

hearing, and the Court being fully advised in the facts

and the law^ makes its Findings of Fact as follows

:
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Findings OF Fact

Finds that all the allegations of plaintiff's complaint

are true:

Finds that all the allegations of paragraph I and all

the allegations of paragraph III except the sentence be-

ginning on line 28 of page 2 of defendant's Answer,

and all the allegations in paragraphs V and VI of de-

fendant's Answer are untrue; and more particularly,

The Court finds that the plaintiffs, A. P. Bardet and

E. Bardet, were and are at all the times involved in this

action, co-partners.

Prior to the 14th day of April, 1937, the defendant,

acting by and through the Bureau of Internal Revenue

of the Treasury Department and the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the First District of California, de-

termined that there was due from the plaintiffs, pursuant

to the provisions of Paragraph C of Section 606 of the

Revenue Act of 1932, certain excise taxes upon the sale

by plaintiffs of certain automobile parts or accessories,

to-wit: connecting rods, in the sum of One Thousand Nine

Hundred Twenty-nine and 61/100 Dollars ($1929.61);

and pursuant to such determination, defendant assessed

said taxes, or caused the same to be assessed against

the plaintiffs; and the Collector of Internal Revenue for

the First District of California made demand upon plain-

tiffs for the payment of said taxes together with a penalty

in the sum of Ninety-six and 48/100 Dollars ($96.48) and

interest in the sum of Forty-four and 61/100 Dollars

($44.61), the total demand aggregating the sum of Two
Thousand Seventy and 70/100 Dollars ($2070.70) ;

plain-

tiffs, pursuant to said assessment and demand, paid to

said Collector of Internal Revenue for the First District
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of California the aforesaid sum of Two Thousand

Seventy and 70/100 Dollars ($2070.70) on the 14th day

of April, 1937.

The excise taxes so assessed against, and collected from

the plaintiffs, as set forth in the preceding paragraphs,

were in respect of sales of certain automobile parts or

accessories, to-wit, connecting rods, made by plaintiffs dur-

ing the period from June, 1932 to July, 1936.

The Collector of Internal Revenue for the First Dis-

trict of California paid and remitted to the defendant said

excise taxes and penalty and interest thereon so assessed

against, and collected from the plaintiffs as aforesaid,

and the defendant received and still retains the same.

On the 7th day of May, 1937, plaintiffs filed with the

Collector of Internal Revenue for the First District of

California, their claim for refund of the aforesaid excise

taxes and penalty and interest thereon, assessed against,

and collected from the plaintiffs as hereinbefore set forth,

in the aggregate amount of Two Thousand Seventy and

70/100 Dollars ($2070.70). Said claim was made and

duly filed upon the official form prescribed therefor by

the Treasury Department of the United States and was

so filed within four years after the date of payment of

said taxes, and said claim set forth the reasons for, and

the grounds supporting, the refund of said taxes.

Thereafter, and on or about the 23rd day of October,

1937, the Hon. Guy T. Helvering, Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue of the United States, acting by and through

the Hon. D. S. Bliss, Deputy Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, rejected and disallowed said claim for refund,

and notified the plaintiffs of such rejection and disallow-

ance by letter signed by said Deputy Commissioner, dated
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the 23rd day of October, 1937, and which was received by

the plaintiffs on or about the 27th day of October, 1937.

The plaintiffs did not include the aforesaid excise taxes

in the price of the articles with respect to which said

taxes were imposed; and plaintiffs did not collect the

amount of said taxes, or any part thereof, from the

vendee or vendees of the articles in respect of which said

taxes were imposed. The burden of said taxes was

borne solely and exclusively by the plaintiffs and the bur-

den of none of said taxes was passed on by the plaintiff

to its customers or vendees.

All of the aforesaid excise taxes were assessed and im-

posed in respect of sales by plaintiffs of rebabbitted con-

necting rods. All of said connecting rods were originally

manufactured by persons, firms or corporations other than

plaintiffs and before their acquisition by plaintiffs had

been used as operating parts of automobile motors, and

by reason of such use the babbitt metal bearings con-

stituting parts of said rods were worn, chipped, roughened

and otherwise impaired.

Plaintiffs imported none of said connecting rods in

respect of which said excise taxes were assessed, but ob-

tained all thereof from sources within the United States.

At no time have plaintiffs imported, nor do they now im-

port, any automobile parts or accessories whatsoever.

The rebabbitting process to which the above mentioned

used and second-hand connecting rods were subjected in

plaintiffs' shop consisted of melting and removing there-

from the old, worn, babbitt metal bearings and of cast-

ing therein new babbitt metal bearings and grinding,

polishing and grooving the same so as to make said rods

again suitable for use as operating parts of automobile

motors.
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The babbitt metal bearings contained in the connecting

rods involved in this suit were of inconsequential size

and bulk compared with the total size and bulk of the

connecting rods.

The connecting rods which were rebabbitted by plain-

tiffs, and in respect of which the excise taxes involved

in this suit were imposed, did not lose their identity as

connecting rods during, or as a result of, the rebabbitting

process in plaintiffs' shop.

None of the identifying symbols, trade-marks, numbers

or other identifying data appearing on said connecting rods

was moved, marred or obliterated during, or as a result

of, the rebabbitting process in plaintiffs' shop, but on the

contrary, all such identifying numbers and data were left

intact.

A rebabbitted connecting rod is a second-hand connect-

ing rod; and all of the connecting rods which were re-

babbitted by plaintiff, and in respect of which the taxes

involved in this case were imposed, were second-hand con-

necting rods when sold by plaintiffs after the same were

rebabbitted.

The arrangement under which plaintiffs kept on hand

and in stock a supply of rebabbitted connecting rods of

various kinds and makes was a matter of convenience to

the plaintiffs and their customers so that the customers

of plaintiffs, by exchanging their old, used rods for re-

babbitted rods and paying a consideration in cash for the

rebabbitting, could obtain prompt delivery of rebabbitted

rods without waiting for the actual rebabbitting process

to be completed upon the customers' own rods.
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Rebabbitted connecting rods were widely known and

used in the automobile industry for many years prior to

the enactment of the Revenue Act of 1932, including Sec-

tion 606 thereof, and there were many persons, firms and

corporations in various parts of the United States engaged

in the business of rebabbitting connecting rods at the

time of enactment of the Revenue Act of 1932, and for

many years prior thereto.

The rebabbitting process performed by plaintiffs upon

the connecting rods in respect of which the excise taxes

involved in this case were imposed constituted the repair,

rehabilitation or reconditioning of used and second-hand

connecting rods, and did not constitute the manufacture

or production of connecting rods.

The plaintiff at no time manufactured, produced, or

imported any automobile parts or accessories whatsoever.

The sales of rebabbitted connecting rods in respect of

which the excise taxes involved in this case were imposed

did not constitute the sales of automobile parts or acces-

sories by the manufacturer, producer or importer.

Conclusions of Law

From the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Court makes

its Conclusions of Law as follows:

The plaintiffs have complied with all statutory condi-

tions constituting conditions precedent to the institution

and maintenance of this suit.

The plaintiffs are not, and were not during the times

involved in this suit, the manufacturer, producer or im-
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porter of automobile connecting rods or of any automobile

parts or accessories whatsoever within the meaning of

Section 606 of the Revenue Act of 1932.

The tax imposed by Section 606 (c) of the Revenue

Act of 1932 applies only to sales of automobile parts or

accessories when sold by the manufacturer, producer or

importer.

(Tax Not Applicable)

The excise tax imposed by Section 606 (c) of the Rev-

enue Act of 1932 does not apply to sales of rebabbitted

automobile connecting rods by one who acquires such

rods second-hand and rebabbits the same, and who neither

manufactures, produces nor imports any other automobile

parts or accessories.

In holding and determining that the tax imposed by

Section 606 (c) of the Revenue Act of 1932 applied to

sales of rebabbitted connecting rods by plaintiffs during

the period from June, 1932, to July, 1936, the Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue has exceeded the authority

granted him under the Internal Revenue Act of 1932.

Under the evidence and the law the plaintiffs are en-

titled to judgment against defendant in the sum of Two

Thousand Seventy and 70/100 Dollars ($2070.70) to-

gether with interest thereon from the 14th day of April,

1937, at the rate of six per cent (6%) per annum.

Let judgment be entered in accordance with the above

Findings and Conclusions.
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(Reprinted from Commerce Clearing House, 1939

Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, j[9259)

Leo G. Becker and Fred Florence, doing business as

the Becker-Florence Electric Company, Plaintiff, v. United

States of America, Defendant.

District Court of the United States for the Western

Division, Western District of Missouri. No. 9859. De-

cided December 27, 1938.

Excise tax on auto parts : Reconditioned generators

and armatures.—Excise tax on sales by the manufacturer

of automobile parts and accessories is not incurred where

petitioners acquired used generators and armatures from

automobile owners or from garages and repair shops, re-

conditioned them and sold them to automobile owners and

repair shops, keeping a stock of them on hand so that

the car owner would not be delayed while his generator

was being repaired.

See Reg. 46, Art. 41 at 393 CCH |[2614.023.

L. V. Copley, 29 Dierks Bldg., Kansas City, Mo., for

the plaintiff. Thomas A. Costolow, Assistant U. S. At-

torney, James W. Morris, Assistant Attorney General,

Federal Bldg., Kansas City, Mo., for the defendant.

Memorandum Opinion

Reeves, D. J. : This is a suit for refund of taxes paid

to the United States Collector of Internal Revenue and

remitted by him to the treasury of the government.

The taxes were imposed for a period extending be-

tween June, 1932 and May, 1935. The government au-

thorities deemed the imposition of the tax as proper un-

der paragraph (c) of Section 606 of the Revenue Act of

1932. Applicable portions of the section are as follows:
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There is hereby imposed upon the following articles

sold by the manufacturer, producer, * * * a tax equivalent

to the following percentages of the price, for which so

sold * * *
(^q) parts or accessories * * * for any of the

articles enumerated in subsection (a) or (b), 2 per

centum.

(Who Is a Manufacturer?)

It was the contention of the government that the plain-

tiffs were the manufacturers and producers of generators

and armatures for use in automobiles and being acces-

sories within the purview of the statute.

On the other hand it is contended by the plaintiffs that

the generators and armatures sold by it were merely re-

conditioned or repaired generators and armatures acquired

by it either from automobile owners or from garage own-

ers and repair shops where such generators and armatures

had been abandoned because defective from wear and

tear in use. The plaintiffs say that such generators and

armatures became and were second-hand accessories. It

was the evidence that the plaintiffs not only repaired

generators and armatures for automobile owners, but that

the principal part of their business was the acquisition of

worn and defective generators and armatures, and the

sale thereof, after having been reconditioned and repaired,

to automobile owners and garages. It was a convenience,

according to the testimony, to have a generator and an

armature at hand to replace a defective or useless one so

that the car owner would not be delayed while his gen-

erator was being repaired. As aptly stated by counsel,

the sole question for decision is whether the plaintiffs

should be classed as manufacturers and producers of such

generators and armatures so as to justify the imposition

of the tax.
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Other facts will be stated in the course of this memo-

randum opinion.

1. As a postulate or premise to a proper decision of

the case it should be kept in mind that the language of

the statute should not be extended by interpretation be-

yond its clear import, and that the burdens of a tax should

not be increased by implication or inference from the

provisions of the statute. Bankers Trust Co. v. Frank

K. Bowers, 295 F. 89 (1 USTC ^87).

2. The Congress, in seeking to provide for an equitable

and just application of the tax, specifically provided that,

in cases where the manufacturer of automobile accessories

sold its product to the manufacturer of automobiles to be

used as accessories thereon, the tax was levied upon the

vendee and not upon the manufacturer. And for the pur-

pose of the section, "the vendee shall be considered the

manufacturer or producer of the parts or accessories so

resold."

The statute did not provide a special meaning for the

words "manufacturer" and "producer". It is obvious

from the provisions just mentioned that it was the object

of the Congress to use the words "manufacturer" and

"producer" in their recognized and ordinarily accepted

meaning. One is confirmed in this conviction by the fact

that the Congress, in imposing a tax on other articles

of manufacture, specifically took the word "manufacture"

out of the usual significance of the word and gave it a

special and an unusual meaning. For instance, by Section

710, Title 26 USCA, a manufacturer of tobacco is de-

fined to be:

Every person whose business it is to manufacture

tobacco or snufif for himself, or who employs others to

manufacture tobacco or snuff, whether such manufacture
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be by cutting, pressing, grinding, crushing, or rubbing of

any raw or leaf tobacco, or otherwise preparing raw or

leaf tobacco, or manufactured or partially manufactured

tobacco or snuff, or the putting up for use or consumption

of scraps, waste, clippings, stems, or deposits of tobacco

resulting from any process of handling tobacco, or by

the working or preparation of leaf tobacco, tobacco stems,

scraps, clippings, or waste, by sifting, twisting, screening,

or any other process, shall be regarded as a manufacturer

of tobacco.

It was obvious from this enactment that the Congress

intended to extend the meaning of "manufacture" beyond

that as usually understood and accepted. The Congress

did the same thing by Section 972, Title 26 USCA,
where a manufacturer was defined to be:

Every person who manufactures oleomargarine for sale

shall be deemed a manufacturer of oleomargarine. And

any person that sells, vends, or furnishes oleomargarine

for the use and consumption of others, except to his own

family table without compensation, who shall add to or

mix with such oleomargarine any substance which causes

such oleomargarine to be yellow in color, determined as

provided in paragraph 2 of Section 971 (a), shall also be

held to be a manufacturer of oleomargarine within the

meaning of this chapter.

By reason of the fact that the Congress in dealing

with the same subject, that is Internal Revenue, found

it necessary to give to the words under discussion a

special meaning in some cases would carry the implica-

tion that the use of the words, in the absence of such

special definitions, would be understood in the ordinary

and usual sense.
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(Cases Compared)

3. In the case of Friday v. Hall and Kaul Co., 216

U. S. 449, the Supreme Court of the United States re-

versed the Third Circuit Court of Appeals, 158 F. 593,

where a question arose on a proper interpretation of the

word "manufacturing" as used in Bankruptcy Law. Un-

happily, the Court of Ap])eals had held that the production

of concrete arches, etc., was not manufacturing within

the purview of the bankruptcy law. The Supreme Court

said it was. At p. 454, the Supreme Court said that

"manufacturing has no technical meaning." Yet it quoted

approvingly the language of Mr. Justice Field in Kidd v.

Pearson, 128 U. S. 1, 1. c. 20, where it said that:

"Manufacture is transformation, the fashioning of raw

materials into a change of form for use."

The court then adverted to the case of Tide Water Oil

Company v. United States, 171 U. S. 210, 1. c. 216, and

approved the meaning of the word "manufacturing" as

there used as follows:

Mr. Justice Brown, referring to the expansion of the

meaning of the word "manufacture", said that "the word

is now ordinarily used to denote an article upon the ma-

terial of which labor has been expended to make the

finished product."

In the same opinion the court also approved an opinion

of the Eighth Circuit, styled In re First National Bank,

152 F. 64, wherein the late Judge Walter H. Sanborn

defined manufacturing as follows

:

Its ordinary significance is producing a new article of

use * * * by the application of skill and labor to the

raw materials of which it is composed.
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A case having many features similar to the case now

being considered is that of Gate v. Connell, 173 Fed. 445,

1. c. 447, where the court said:

We do not think that the repairing of automobiles

* * * can fairly be described as a manufacturing pur-

suit. It seems to have been chiefly, if not altogether, the

adjustment of automobile parts bought from other per-

sons, to existing automobiles.

Corpus Juris defines manufacture as "anything made

from raw materials by the hand, by machinery, or by art."

38 C. J. Section 4, 966.

As a verb it is defined to mean:

To change and modify natural substances so that they

become articles of value and use. 38 C. J. Section 5, p.

966.

In Words and Phrases, Vol. 4, p. 273, manufacturing

is distinguished from repairing. It is there said:

* * * for "manufacturing" is the system of indus-

try which produces manufactured articles, and "manu-

facture" is the production of articles for use from raw

or prepared materials, by giving them new forms, quali-

ties, and properties, or combinations, and "repairing" is

the making or restoring of an article or thing to its com-

pleteness.

The case cited in support of this distinction was State

V. Newman Lumber Co., 59 South, 923, 1. c. 926; 102

Miss. 802.
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(Repair v. Manufacture)

4. In this case the plaintiffs acquired by purchase or

exchange all worn and defective generators and armatures

and by a process of cleaning, repairing and supplying

new parts, the generators and armatures were restored

and reconditioned for further use.

As thus repaired and reconditioned the devices were

sold, sometimes in quantities. Under the taxing law un-

der observation the original manufacturer paid a tax on

the devices unless sold to the manufacturer of a motor

vehicle in which they were to be used, in which case a

tax was paid on the fully equipped motor vehicle. If

sold as an accessory by the manufacturer a tax was paid

as required by statute but this was all of the manfac-

turer's tax.

To give the statute the meaning contended for by the

government would involve endless complications as affect-

ing dealers, garage owners and repair men in general. No

definite line could well be drawn and twilight ones would

develop so frequently and from so many angles that a

just and fair and practicable enforcement of the law would

become impossible.

It seems obvious that the Congress never intended that

the tax should be applied as in this case. Accordingly

the plaintiffs are entitled to have judgment for a return

of the tax required of them. An appropriate journal en-

try to this end will be prepared and submitted by counsel

for the plaintiffs.
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(Reprinted from Commerce Clearing House, 1939

Standard Federal Tax Service, Vol. 4, Paragraph 9219.)

Clawson and Bals, Inc., a corporation, v. Carter H.

Harrison, Collector of Internal Revenue in and for the

First District of Illinois.

United States District Court, Northern District of

Illinois, Law 47068. Decided November 26, 1938.

Findings of Fact

1. Plaintiff, Clawson & Bals, Inc., is a corporation duly

organized and existing under the laws of Illinois and,

during the times herein mentioned, had its principal office

and place of business in the City of Chicago, State of

Illinois, and within the Northern District of Illinois and

the Eastern Division thereof.

2. The defendant. Carter H. Harrison, was appointed

Collector of Internal Revenue in and for the First Dis-

trict of Illinois, on August 21, 1933, and has been such

Collector of Internal Revenue at all times subsequent

thereto, and is a citizen, resident and inhabitant of the

Northern District of Illinois.

3. Plaintiff was incorporated April 17, 1925, and its

purpose, among others, was "to manufacture, buy, sell,

export and import, deal in and deal with, all kinds of

automobile and automobile accessories, and any and all

other articles, incident to automobiles". Its principal

business, however, has been to make automobile connect-

ing rods and sell them throughout the world to whole-

salers, known also as jobbers, for replacement purposes

in connection with the repairing by garagemen and me-

chanics of automobile motors. It made such connecting

rods from new forgings, or castings, as well as from
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forgings or castings or worn-out and discarded connect-

ing rods.

4. Prior to and since June 21, 1932, plaintiff operated

seven plants or factories, namely, a large one in Chicago,

and six smaller ones in Moline, Illinois, Minneapolis, De-

troit, New York City, Atlanta and Dallas, for the making

of connecting rods. It maintained warehouses in divers

cities from which it distributed its product and had points

of distribution in other cities. It employed salesmen and

engaged manufacturers' representatives for the distribu-

tion of its products.

5. Plaintiff has one hundred employees engaged in the

production of connecting rods, of which forty are em-

ployed in the Chicago plant and sixty in the other six

plants. Its plant equipment includes, among other things,

lathes, drill presses, broaching machines, boring jigs, bab-

bitt pots, emery wheels, special molds and babbitting ma-

chines, which were used in the production of the connect-

ing rods in question.

6. Plaintiff produced and maintained a stock of more

than five hundred different types of connecting rods, as-

signed to each type a stock number of its own, such

as CBl, CB2, down to CB524, covering all makes of au-

tomobiles. All of plaintiff's connecting rods were desig-

nated and known to the trade by the trade names, "C & B
Rods", and were sold under such trade name. Plaintiff

advertised in the leading trade journals and publications

and was listed in the Chicago classified telephone direc-

tories under the classification of Automobile Parts

—

Manufacturers. It was also a member of the Manufac-

turers Division of the National Standard Parts Associa-

tion, a trade association.
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7. The connecting- rod is the means of transmitting

power generated by discharge in the cylinder, in the piston

head, to the crank shaft by being attached to the crank

pin. In the large end of the connecting rod there is a

babbitt bearing known as the crank shaft bearing. The

babbitt bearing is within the parts of the rod known as

the cap and shank, which are held together by two bolts

and nuts. The other, or smaller end of the rod, is known

as the wrist pin end. At least half of the rods produced

by plaintiff during the taxable period had bronze bushings

in the wrist pin end. The bushings are also bearings and

are just as important and just as necessary as the babbitt

bearing at the large end. The one bearing cannot work

successfully without the other.

8. During the taxable period, June 21, 1932, to June

30, 1936, plaintiff's total sales of automobile connecting

rods aggregated $4,355,752.50. All such sales were of

connecting rods manufactured and produced by plaintiff,

as hereinafter set forth, both from new castings or

forgings which plaintiff purchased and machined as well

as from worn-out and discarded connecting rods which

plaintiff obtained either from "junkies", or from jobbers

who turned them in as part payment on purchases from

plaintiff on what is known in the trade as the exchange

basis for replacement parts. A "Junkie" is a man who

goes to garages, automobile wreckers, and elsewhere where

he can procure used and discarded parts which he there-

after sells to plaintiff and others. None of the used,

worn-out and discarded connecting rods had any com-

mercial value as automobile parts because they were no

longer fit for use. They were scrap and had only a

junk or scrap value when acquired by plaintiff and, al-

though such scrap was recognized as having once been
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connecting rods, a manufacturing process was necessary

in order to make a new and serviceable product. Plain-

tiff carried on that manufacturing process. The scrap

material was dismantled and prepared for the manufac-

turing process; it was combined with new materials, put

through grinding operations, machining operations, there

was an assembling and combining of all materials, to-

gether with workmanship, and the employment of skill

before plaintiff's marketable article was produced. The

completed article as manufactured and produced by plain-

tiff had a value relatively much greater than that of the

worn-out article in its scrap condition. In other words,

plaintiff manufactured and produced connecting rods

from scrap.

9. The following is a summary of plaintiff's processes

and operations in the manufacture and production of con-

necting rods from scrap:

The worn-out, unusable and discarded rods came to

plaintiff in packages, boxes and bags. Plaintiff opened

and checked them against the shipping ticket; they were

thrown on a table and sorted out according to their par-

ticular makes and numbers. At least during the period

December, 1934, and for at least five or six months in

1935, plaintiff ground off of all worn-out rods originally

made by General Motors Corporation and its subsidiaries,

the trade names and other marks of identification pursuant

to an agreement with General Motors.

The forgings went into the babbitt room where the

two bolts and nuts were taken out and the cap and shank

separated. Some bolts and nuts were salvaged, others

were junked. The shank and cap were separately placed

in a melting pot and all old babbitt metal and what re-

mained of the original babbitt bearing was rewound. The
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old babbitt was sold as salvage. Plaintiff used entirely new

babbit in all of its babbitting processes. The babbitt metal

consisted of 89% tin, Z.1% copper, and 7.3% antimony.

A flux was then applied to prepare the cap and rod for

a coating of tin to act as a bond and make the new bab-

bitt metal stick so as to become part of the steel forging.

After applying the flux, the arm (shank) and cap were

separately dipped into a pot containing molten tin. The

tin coating was necessary in order to band the steel

forging and babbitt together. The cap and arm are

separately put into a machine with the proper size mold,

between which mold and the cap on the one hand and

the mold and the arm on the other, a man poured new

molten babbitt metal. The two parts were then re-

moved from the machine and permitted to cool. The

newly poured babbit extended beyond each side of what

was to become the babbitt bearing. Before the cap and

arm were assembled, each was subjected to lathing opera-

tion and the protruding babbitt was thereby cut away so

as to leave an even surface and permit the two parts

to fit together and make a circle when assembled. Then

the cap and arm were assembled by putting in new shims

(if it was the type of rod which required shims) and

bolts and nuts. The rod and cap were placed upon a

machine which turned and tightened each of the nuts.

The inside of the new babbit bearing was rough bored

on a machine to approximately 10/lOOOths smaller than

what was to become the finished diameter. Then the

cutters were changed and a broaching operation occurred

whereby the babbitt bearing was further cut, grooved,

and channels were cut on the inside of the babbitt bear-

ing for oiling purposes, and it was drilled through, where

necessary, in order to connect with the oil holes in the
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steel forging or casting. In a further and final broaching

operation the babbitt bearing was cut, that is, machined,

to the prescribed diameter. The assembled rod was then

placed on a pressing machine and a new bronze bushing

placed above the old bushing and, under pressure, the old

one was forced out and the new one was forced in. In

the case of connecting rods for Fords, a further machine

operation was required by which the bushing was com-

pletely severed and grooved on the inside. All of the

rods were then checked for alignment and twist in order

that they would leave plaintiff's plant as a perfect rod.

Each was placed in a vertical position upon a jig machine,

part of which went through the opening in the wrist pin

end and another part through the opening at the crank

shaft end. The indicator would show just how much it

was out of line and the necessary adjustments then were

made. At least half of the rods made by plaintiff were

the type that required bushings. After the rod had been

aligned, it would go to a bench where a man inspected

it and if there were any pieces of babbitt hanging on the

sides, he would take them off and clean the rod wherever

necessary. The rod was carefully inspected for blow

holes, which occurred now and then, and was given such

inspection as was necessary to insure a product as per-

fect as modern machinery can produce. The rods were

then placed in a machine where they were covered with

grease. After being greased, they were taken in the

stock room and placed on shelves in separate bins

containing plaintiff's part number, which numbers

conformed to those used on plaintiff's price lists and

catalog. The rods were boxed and labeled just before

shipping. The boxes were labeled at both ends. The

label contained a description of the contents, name of
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the car which the rods would fit, the number or model,

plaintiff's number, that is, CB-1, CB-2, as the case may

be, together with plaintiff's name and a trade symbol con-

sisting of the letters "C. & B." in a small solid circle.

The same type of label was placed on the ends of all

boxes in which plaintiff shipped connecting rods, whether

they contained inside rods made entirely of virgin metal,

or from worn-out rods, or a mixture of each.

10. Plaintiff kept but one stock with respect to each

number and had but one outright price with respect to

the rods, irrespective of whether they were produced from

entirely new castings or from scrap, and regarded the

article made from scrap as equivalent to any similar

product made entirely with virgin metal. The rods made

from scrap were in competition with similar products

made entirely of virgin metal and were just as service-

able. They were held out for sale and sold on the same

basis and under the same warranties as the connecting

rods produced from entirely virgin forgings. In other

words, plaintiff made no distinction between such con-

necting rods in the numbering, cataloging, selling, billing,

advertising, shipping, labeling, pricing, marketing, quality,

warranty, guarantee, or otherwise.

11. When new casting or forgings arrived at the

babbitting place, they went through substantially the same

routine, the same processes, operations, assembling and

finishing as outlined in the immediately preceding para-

graph with respect to the production by plaintiff of con-

necting rods from scrap, that is, from used or worn-out

connecting rods. Whether new castings or scrap were

used the operations commencing with the babbitting stage

were handled by the same men and on the same machines.

All of plaintiff's processes involved grinding operations,
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machining operations, assembling and combining of ma-

terials, together with workmanship and the employment

of skill before the connecting rod was completed.

12. Plaintiff filed monthly excise tax returns on all of

its sales of connecting rods occurring during the period

June 21, 1932 to June 30, 1936, inclusive, and reported

a total tax of $42,606.10, which it paid in monthly

amounts. Thereafter, the Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue determined that the aggregate tax due by plaintiff

for the period June 21, 1932 to June 30, 1936, inclusive,

was $87,115.05. Accordingly, additional assessments were

duly made in the total further amount of $44,508.95 tax

and $9,732.07 interest. The addition assessments were

based upon the commissioner's finding that plaintiff did

not report that portion of the sales price which was paid

by an allowance made for a used or worn-out connecting

rod or rods, in such of the sales transactions as did not

involve all cash but consisted partly of cash and partly

of such an allowance. On February 8, 1937, plaintiff paid

to defendant as Collector of Internal Revenue, $48,142.52,

and on March 18, 1937, paid the remaining $6,089.50.

13. On February 26, 1936, plaintiiT filed a claim for

the refund of $54,232.02, representing $44,508.95 of the

foregoing tax assessments of $87,115.05 and $9,723.07 of

interest so assessed and paid. The claim was predicated

upon the ground that plaintiff was neither the manu-

facturer nor producer of the connecting rods on which

the additional tax was based but that its process, "con-

stituted only the repair", of used and second-hand con-

necting rods; also that it bore the burden of the tax.

On March 30, 1938, the Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue rejected plaintiff's claim.
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14. All of the automobile connecting rods manufac-

tured, produced and sold by plaintiff during the taxable

period June 21, 1932 to June 30, 1936, inclusive, as afore-

said, are automobile parts or accessories.

15. Plaintiff is and was the manufacturer and pro-

ducer of all of the automobile connecting rods involved

in this suit.

16. The allowance granted by plaintiff to customers

who turned in used or worn-out connecting rods on

account of purchases of plaintiff's connecting rods con-

stituted parts of the total sales price.

Conclusions of Law

Upon the foregoing findings of fact the court makes

and enters the following conclusions of law:

1. Plaintiff was and is a manufacturer and producer

of automobile parts within the meaning of Section 606 of

the Revenue Act of 1932.

2. Plaintiff was and is the manufacturer and producer

of all of the automobile connecting rods sold by it and

upon which the tax sought to be recovered was assessed

against and collected from plaintiff.

3. The taxes assesssed against and paid by plaintiff

under the provisions of Section 606 of the Revenue Act

of 1932, were lawfully assessed and collected.

4. Under the law and the evidence, defendant is en-

titled to judgment of dismissal with costs.

To the making and holding of the foregoing findings

and conclusions, the plaintiff objects and excepts.
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(Reprinted from copy furnished by counsel for Moroloy

Bearing Service of Oakland, Ltd., a corporation.)

Moroloy Bearing Service of Oakland, Ltd., a corpora-

tion, Plaintiff, v. United States of America, Defendant.

Southern Division of the District Court of the United

States for the Northern District of California. No.

21308-W. Decided July 16, 1940.

Memorandum Opinion

This is an action wherein the plaintiff seeks to recover

from the defendant the sum of $1090.80 which it paid

the defendant as excise tax under Section 606 (c) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 upon the sale of rebabbitted connect-

ing rods from 1933 to 1936.

The plaintiff now is and for a considerable time last

past has been engaged in the business of rebabbitting

connecting rods for the automobile trade generally in this

state. When the rebabbitting of the connecting rods was

finished, the connecting rods were delivered to the re-

pairing jobber who in turn sold them to the garage or

automobile repair man.

Plaintiff's right to recover herein depends upon whether

the process of rebabbitting the connecting rods was one

of manufacture or one of repair. If the former, the tax

was properly imposed. If the process was one of repair

only, then the tax was not owing and plaintiff may re-

cover.

The evidence shows the connecting rods which plaintiff

rebabbitted were in their original state manufactured by

others, and only came into the hands of the plaintiff when
certain parts of them became defective either from the

burning out of the babbitt through friction while in opera-

tion, or through lack of proper lubrication, or on account

of other causes.
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In no manner did the evidence show the plaintiff manu-

factured the connecting rods themselves, but on the con-

trary, the evidence clearly showed that plaintiff was en-

gaged in the repair and rehabilitation of connecting rods

manufactured by others, when they became outworn and

defective from use.

In Bouvier's Law Dictionary (Rawle's Revision, Un-

abridged) the words manufacture and repair, when used

as verbs, are defined as follows:

Manufacture—To make or fabricate raw materials by

hand, art, or machinery, and work into forms convenient

for use.

Repair—To restore to a sound state after decay, in-

jury, delapidation, or partial injury.

It would be just as logical to hold that a shoe cobbler

was a manufacturer of shoes that were brought to him

for repair because he nailed or sewed soles and heels on

the shoes in the process of repairing them, as to hold

that a mechanic was a manufacturer of connecting rods

because he rehabilitated them. The process is a repair

in the one case just as it is in the other. That plaintiff

is repairing its own rods for sale whereas the shoe cob-

bler is repairing shoes for others is not significant.

Whether or not a process is one of repair does not depend

on the condition of the title to the repaired articles.

The court orders that judgment be entered in favor of

the plaintiff in the sum of $1099.80, with interest thereon

as provided by law.

Let findings of fact and conclusions of law, and judg-

ment be prepared in accordance with the opinion of the

court.

Martin I. Welsh,

United States District Judge,
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of CaHfornia, Central Division.

J. LesHe Morris Company, Inc., plaintiff, vs. United

States of America, defendant. No. 433-M Civil.

Conclusions of the Court.

McCoRMiCK, District Judge:

When consideration is given to the irreconcilable con-

flict of federal court decisions upon the crucial factual

issue in this action, i. e., whether taxpayer in rebabbiting

used and damaged connection rods of automobiles is a

manufacturer or producer of such parts or accessories, it

is indisputable that there is more than doubt as to the

meaning of the terms "manufacturer" or "producer" in

Section 606 of the Revenue Act 1932 and Subsection (c)

thereof. 47 Stat, at Large, Part 1, pp. 261-262, Title ZZ

U. S. C. A., Sec. 606.

Under such a record doubts arising under the taxing

statute should be resolved against the taxing agency and

favorable to the taxpayer. Miller v. Nut Margarine Co.,

284 U. S. 498, at page 508; Erskine v. United States, 9

Circuit, 1936, 84 F. (2d) 691.

It is only by straining the terms "manufacturer" and

"producer" contained in the taxing statute under con-

sideration from their usual, ordinary and normally under-

stood meanings into all-inclusive situations that these

terms of doubtful signification can be extended to a

service station or processor such as plaintiff taxpayer,

whose transactions under consideration in this cause are

actually no more than repairing damaged used connecting

rods of automobiles and charging for the repair job and

service upon delivery of the customer's repaired rod or



of another rebabbited second-hand repaired rod. We
think no such forced and omnibus meaning of the terms

''manufacturer" or "producer" can be fairly attributed

to Congress in order to subject the articles sold by the

plaintiff to the tax under (c) of Section 606. There

is nothing in the statute which intimates that such was

the congressional intent. The decision of the District

Court for the Northern District of California in A. P.

Bardet et al., d. b. a. Pioneer Motor Bearing Co. v. United

States, No. 20364L, decided May 18, 1938, 384 C. C. H.

p. 10,589, where the taxpayers suing are competitors of

the plaintiff who had engaged in a like process and busi-

ness of rebabbiting connection rods of automobile engines,

as the taxpayer, and who were held not to be manufac-

turers under the same statute as here involved, persuades

us to conclude that the operations and practices shown by

the record before us are neither manufacture nor produc-

tion of automobile parts within the meaning of Subsection

(c) of Section 606, Revenue Act 1932.

Our conclusions are also supported by the decision of

the District Court (Mo., 1937) in Hempy-Cooper Mfg.

Co. V. United States, 19 Am. Fed. Tax Reports 1313,

and Con-Rod Exchange, Inc., v. Hendrickson (D. C,

W. D. Wash., 1939), 28 F. Supp. 924. These cited tax

cases involved rebabbited connecting rods of automobiles,

and we think they present situations identical with the

record before us in this action.

For the sake of uniformity, if for no other reason,

taxpayers identically situated and doing precisely the

same thing in relation to tax laws should be treated alike.

Our inquiries and investigations have failed to disclose

that the government has taken appeal in the cases referred

to, and we are therefore justified in assuming that refunds



have been made to the respective taxpayers situated as is

the plaintiff taxpayer in this action.

We are not unmindful of the decision of the Seventh

Circuit Court of Appeals in Clawson & Bals, Inc., v.

Harrison, Collector, 108 F. (2d) 991, reaching a contrary

conclusion as to the meaning of the terms "manufacturer"

and "producer" as applied to rebabbiting activities similar

to those shown by the record before us. This decision

by a federal appellate court is entitled to and has been

given careful study and respectful consideration. We
feel, however, that no adequate discussion is to be found

m the opinion of the court, differentiating between the

broad meaning of the terms in matters of general concern

and those relating specifically to tax laws. Such a dis-

tinction is supported by eminent authority, and we believe

it must be regarded in ascertaining the meaning of tax

legislation where the taxing statute itself does not clearly

define the meaning of terms contained in it. See Hart-

ramft v. Wiegman, 121 U. S. 609; Kuenzle v. Collector,

etc., 32 Philippine 516, and Heacock Co. v. Collector, etc.,

37 Philippine 979.

We think the rule of stare decisis is not applicable

to the decision of the learned Court of Appeals of the

Seventh Circuit. See Continental Securities Co. v. Inter-

borough R. T. Co., 165 F. 945, at p. 960.

Inasmuch as our Circuit Court of Appeals has not

considered or decided the question under consideration

in this section, we are justified in formulating and reach-

ing our own conclusions under the record before us and

in the light of other identical situations considered and

determined uniformly by the federal courts of the Ninth

Circuit. Accordingly, as the plaintiff taxpayer has not

passed on the tax to the customer or to anyone, it is
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entitled to recover the amount illegally collected, and the

government is not entitled to anything under its counter-

claim.

Findings and judgment are ordered for the plaintiff

and against the defendant as prayed under the issues

of complaint, answer and counterclaim.

Dated this July 24, 1940.

Parts and Accessories.

Section 606(c) of the Revenue Act of 1932.

There is hereby imposed upon the following articles

sold by the manufacturer, producer, or importer, a tax

equivalent to the following percentages of the price for

which so sold:

(c) Parts or accessories (other than tires and inner

tubes) for any of the articles enumerated in subsections

(a) or (b), 2 per centum. For the purposes of this

subsection and subsections (a) and (b), spark plugs,

storage batteries, leaf springs, coils, timers, and tire

chains, which are suitable for use on or in connection

with, or as component parts of, any of the articles enumer-

Sited in subsections (a) or (b), shall be considered parts

or accessories for such articles, whether or not primarily

adapted for such use. This subsection shall not apply

to chassis or bodies for automobile trucks or other auto-

mobiles. * * *^



Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumulative Bulletin XI -2.

page 473.

Regulations 46, Article 41

:

Definitions of parts or accessories.

XI-47-5873 S. T. 573.

Taxability of various articles as automobile parts or

accessories.

Advice is requested with respect to the taxability of

several articles used in connection with automobiles, etc.,

under Section 606 of the Revenue Act of 1932. * * *

The tax also attaches to rebabbited connecting rods

and reclaimed brake drums in which new steel bands have

been inlaid where they are placed in stock to be sold as

parts and accessories. However, where these articles are

reconditioned in connection with an immediate repair job

the tax does not attach.

Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumulative Bulletin XI -2,

page 476.

Regulations 46, Article 41

:

Definition of parts or accessories.

XI-5 1-5937 S. T. 606.

Taxability of taximeters.

Advice is requested relative to the taxability of taxi-

meters under Section 606(c) of the Revenue Act of

1932.

Taximeters are automobile accessories and are taxable

under Section 606(c) of the Revenue Act of 1932. Small

parts used in taximeters, such as bushings, pins, levers,

and gears, which are commercial commodities not specially
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designed for use in taximeters, are not taxable when sold

separately.

No tax is due upon the sale of rebuilt or second-hand

taximeters under Section 606(c) of the Revenue Act of

1932, provided they are not rebuilt or refinished to the

extent that they lose their original identity.

Where a taximeter is repossessed by the manufacturer

for nonpayment of the purchase price and the sale re-

scinded, the tax will attach to the price at which the article

is resold by the manufacturer, but if a tax was paid on

the first transaction, a credit or refimd may be claimed

in the amount of that part of the tax paid which is pro-

portionate to the part of the sale price which is refunded

or credited to the first purchaser.

Internal Revenue Bulletin, Cumulative Bulletin XI 1-1,

page 384.

^ Regulations 46, Article 19:

Scope of tax.

XII-1 1-6072 S. T. 648.

Taxability of retreaded and rebuilt tires.

Advice is requested whether retreaded and rebuilt tires

are subject to the tax imposed by Section 602 of the

Revenue Act of 1932.

The X Company purchases used tires from which the

old rubber, tread, and side walls (including the name)

are buffed off; the carcasses are then retreaded or rebuilt



by the use of new and/or reclaimed rubber and sold under

various trade names, marked "Retreaded" on the side

walls as a protection against any claim by the purchaser

that they were sold as "new" tires. The old tires lose

their identity in the process of retreading or rebuilding,

Other used tires are retreaded by merely resurfacing or

replacing the actual tread down to the tread line, the side

walls showing the original name and the serial number

not being disturbed.

The test of taxability where old material or material

partly old and partly new is used in producing a tire suit-

able for use is whether the work done constitutes the

manufacture of a tire or is merely a repair job. If the

former, the tax is legally due. If the latter, no tax is

involved. It is held that where the identity of the old

tire is lost in the process the manufacture of a taxable

tire results.

For example, where old tires are rebuilt from old

carcasses by the use of either raw or reclaimed rubber,

to the extent that the tires are not identifiable as the

original tires, they are subject to tax when sold, on the

basis of the full weight thereof, as provided by Section

602 of the Revenue Act of 1932.

Where tires are retreaded or rebuilt to order for cus-

tomers who retain title to the old tires or carcasses, the

person retreading the tires is not subject to tax.

The retreading of old tires by resurfacing or replace-

ment of the actual tread down to the tread line, zuithont

altering the side walls or destroying the original identity

of the tire, does not constitute the manufacture of a

taxable article. (Italics supplied.)



Treasury Regulations 46, approved June 18, 1932:

Art. 4. Who is a manufacturer or producer.—As

used in the Act, the term "producer" includes a person

who produces a taxable article by processing, manipu-

lating, or changing the form of an article, or produces a

taxable article by combining or assembling two or more

articles.

Under certain circumstances, as where a person manu-

factures or produces a taxable article for a person who

furnishes materials and retains title thereto, the person

for whom the taxable article is manufactured or produced,

and not the person who actually manufactures or pro-

duces it, will be considered the manufacturer.

A manufacturer who sells a taxable article in a knock-

down condition, but complete as to all component parts,

shall be liable for the tax under Title IV and not the

person who buys and assembles a taxable article from

such component parts.
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I.

The Decision Is in Conflict With the Law, the Statute

and Decisions of the Supreme Court and Circuit

Courts of Appeals for Other Circuits.

The Supreme Court of the United States has announced

in its decision in the case of Cadwalader v. Jessup &
Moore, 149 U. S. 350:

"The uncontradicted testimony is to the effect that

the only commercial use or value of the old india

rubber shoes, or scrap rubber, or rubber scrap in

question, is by reason of the india rubber contained

therein, as a substitute for crude rubber; that the

old shoes were of commercial use and value only by

reason of the india rubber they contained, as a sub-

stitute for crude rubber, and not by reason of any

preparation or manufacture which they had under-

gone; that they could not fairly be called 'articles

composed of india rubber,' and as such dutiable at

25 per centum ad valorem; and that, although the

shoes may have been originally manufactured articles

composed of india rubber, they had lost their commer-

cial value as such articles, and substantially were

merely the material called 'crude rubber.' They were

not fabrics or india rubber shoes, because they had

lost substantially their commercial value as such."

(Italics supplied.)

It is respectfully submitted that the armatures which

are the subject under discussion in the instant case had a

value far in excess of their value as raw material because

of the manufacturing processes they had previously under-

gone. Under the rule established by the above case it is
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essential that the only value be that of raw material. That

if the value of the article results from the manufacturing

process previously undergone, then the value is because

of that manufacturing process, and not as raw material.

The record indicates that the appellee herein paid from

fifty cents to one dollar for each armature, which was

far in excess of the junk or raw material value. [R. 72.]

Appellee cites Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 609,

as an additional authority on the question of who is a

manufacturer and what is manufacturing. The issue in

that case concerned the rate of duty to be levied upon

certain shells depending upon whether they were or were

not ''manufactured." The question involved and the facts

are stated in the opinion by Mr. Justice Blatchford, as

follows, 1 C. 613-14:

"The question is whether cleaning off the outer

layer of the shell by acid, and then grinding off the

second layer by an emery wheel, so as to expose the

brilhant inner layer is a manufacture of the shell, the

object of these manipulations being simply for the

purpose of ornament, and some of the shells being

afterwards etched by acids, so as to produce inscrip-

tions upon them. It appears that these shells in ques-

tion were to be sold for ornaments, but that shells of

these descriptions have also a use to be made into

buttons and handles of penknives ; and that there is no

difference in name and use between the shells ground

on the emery wheel and those not ground. It is con-

tended by the government that the shells prepared by

the mechanical or chemical means stated in the record,

for ultimate use, are shells manufactured, or manu-
facturers of shells, within the meaning of the statute."



The conclusion of the court and the reasoning support-

ing it are set forth in the following excerpt from the

opinion 1. c. 615:

"We are of the opinion that the shells in question

here were not manufactured, and were not manufac-

tures of shells, within the sense of the statute impos-

ing a duty of 35 per centum upon such manufacturers,

but were shells not manufactured, and fell under

that designation in the free list. They are still shells.

They had not been manufactured into a nezv and dif-

ferent article, having a distinctive name, character or

use from that of a shell. The application of labor to

an article, either by hand or by mechanism, does not

make the article necessarily a manufactured article,

within the meaning of that term as used in the tariff

laws. Washing and scouring wool does not make the

resulting wool a manufacture of wool. Cleaning and

ginning cotton does not make the resulting cotton a

manufacture of cotton. In 'Schedule M' of Section

2504 of the Revised Statutes, page 475, 2nd Edition,

a duty of 30 per cent ad valorem is imposed on 'coral

cut or manufactured'; and in Section 2505, page 484,

'coral marine, unmanufactured,' is exempt from duty.

These provisions clearly imply that, but for the special

provisions imposing a duty on cut coral, it would not

be regarded as a manufactured article, although labor

was employed in cutting it. In Frasee v. Moffit, 20

Blatchf. 267, it was held that hay pressed in bales,

ready for market, was not a manufactured article, al-

though labor had been bestowed in cutting and dry-

ing the grass and baling the hay. In Lawrence v.

Allen, 48 U. S. 7 How. 785, it was held that india

rubber shoes, made in Brazil, by simply allowing the

sap of the india rubber tree to harden upon a mold,

were a manufactured article, because it was capable

of use in that shape as a shoe, and had been put into
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a new form, capable of use and design to be used in

such new form. In United States v. Potts, 9 U. S.

5 Cranch 284, round copper plates turned up and

raised at the edges from four to five inches by the

appHcation of labor, to fit them for subsequent use

in the manufacture of copper vessels, but which were

still bought by the pound as copper for use in making

copper vessels, were held not to be manufactured cop-

per. In the case of United States v. Wilson, 1 Hunt's

Merchants' Magazine 167, Judge Betts held that

marble which had been cut into blocks for the con-

venience of transportation was not manufactured

marble, but was free from duty, as being unmanu-

factured.

"We are of the opinion that the decision of the cir-

cuit court was correct. But, if the question were

one of doubt, the doubt would be resolved in favor of

the importer, 'as duties are never imposed on citizens

upon vague or doubtful interpretations.' Pozvcrs v.

Barney, 5 Blatchf. 202; U. S. v. Isham, 84 U. S.,

17 Wall. 496, 504; Giirr v. Scudds, 11 Exch. 190,

191; Adams v. Bancroft, 3 Sumn. 384." (Italics

supplied.)

The third case cited is Anheuser-Busch Brewing Asso-

ciation V. U. S., 207 U. S. 556, in which the plaintiff sued

to recover certain import duties which it paid on corks de-

signed for use in bottling beer.

Under the act there involved plaintiff was required to

prove as the basis of its refund or "drawback" that the

corks involved were not manufactured corks, but merely

materials imported to be used in the manufacture of corks

in the United States. The evidence showed that the corks

when imported into this country from Spain had already



been cut by hand to the required size. It was further

shown that in such condition, however, they were not

suitable for use in botthng beer because they would not

retain the gas in the bottle and because they would impart

a cork taste to the beer, thereby making it unmarketable

and unfit for use. After importation, however, the corks

were subjected in the brewing company's plant to various

processes and treatment consuming several days of time,

during which the corks were treated, processed, sealed and

coated so as to render them useful for the intended pur-

pose. The court found that the process to which the

corks were subject did not constitute manufacture; that

the corks were manufactured before they were imported

and that the brewing company was not entitled to its re-

fund. In the opinion by Mr. Justice McKenna it is said,

1. c. 559:

"The corks in question were, after their importa-

tion, subject to a special treatment which, it is con-

tended, caused them to be articles manufactured in

the United States of 'imported materials' within the

meaning of Section 25. The Court of Claims de-

cided against the contention and dismissed the peti-

tion. 41 Ct. CI. 389.

''The treatment to which the corks were subjected

is detailed in Finding 3, inserted in the margin.

"In opposition to the judgment of the Court of

Claims counsel have submitted many definitions of

'manufacture,' both as a noun and a verb, which, how-

ever applicable to the cases in which they were used,

would be, we think, extended too far if made to
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cover the treatment detailed in Finding 3 or to the

corks after the treatment. The words of the statute

are indeed so famiHar in use and meaning that they

are confused by attempts at definition. Their first

sense as used is fabrication or composition,—a new

article is produced of which the imported material

constitutes an ingredient or part. When we go fur-

ther than this in explanation, we are involved in re-

finements and in impractical niceties. Manufacture

implies a change, but every change is not manufac-

ture, and yet every change in an article is the result

of treatment, labor, and manipulation. But some-

thing more is necessary, as set forth and illustrated in

Hartranft v. Wiegmann, 121 U. S. 609, 7 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 1240. There must he tr,ansformation; a new

and different article must emerge, 'having a distinctive

name, character or use.' This cannot be said of the

corks in question. A cork put through the claimant's

process is still a cork." (Italics supplied.)

Appellee contends that the preceding cases are directly

in point and are authority supporting the contention that

said appellee is not a manufacturer. Under the rule laid

down by the court in Hartranft v. Wiegmann and An-

heuser-Busch Brewing Association v. U. S., supra, it is

necessary that a new and different article of commerce

emerge in order for "manufacturing" to exist. Has not

this Honorable Court made an unwarranted distinction

in holding that these two cases are not authority for the

position of this taxpayer that it is not a "manufacturer

or producer" of armatures, simply because those cases



arise under the tariff laws? At page three of the opin-

ion, it is stated:

"In our opinion neither of the cited cases is au-

thority for the position of the taxpayer that it is not

a 'manufacturer or producer' of armatures. In both

cases the raw materials were not subject to the terms

of the statute involved, the statutes relating solely to

'manufactures.' Certainly in such statutes there

must be a 'transformation.'
"

Appellee calls attention to the preceding paragraph of

the opinion of this Honorable Court. It is there stated

that the raw materials were not subject to the terms of

the statutes involved. The same is true in the instant

case. The raw materials are not subject to tax imposed

by the act, the statute relates solely to sales by the "man-

ufacturer or producer."

In defining the meaning of words used in statutes im-

posing excise taxes it is always the practice of the courts

to look to other cases, including cases arising under

the tariff and patent laws for guidance. In this regard

the petitioner herein also relies on American Fruit Grow-

ers, Inc. V. Brogdex, 283 U. S. 1 ; Goodyear Shoe Ma-

chinery Company v. Jackson, 112 Fed. 146 (C. C. A. 1,

1901); Foglesong Machinery Company v. J. D. Randall

Company, 237 Federal 893 (C. C. A. 6, 1917) ; Ely Mor-

ris Safe Company v. Mosier Safe Co., 62 Fed. (2d) 524

(C. C. A. 2, 1933); and Hess-Bright Mfg. Co. v. Bear-

ing Co., 271 Fed. 350 (D. C. Pa., 1921).



II.

Treasury Regulations 46, Article 4, Approved June 18,

1932, Regulating Taxation of Automobile Parts

and Accessories, Under Paragraph 606 (c) of the

Revenue Act of 1932, Does Not Purport to Levy a

Tax on the Sale of Repaired or Rebuilt Automobile

Parts or Accessories.

Regulations 46, Article 4 was adopted for the purpose

of clarifying the Revenue Act of 1932. Otherwise it

would be claimed that certain operations which in them-

selves involved no manufacturing whatever, were not sub-

ject to the Act, even though automobile parts or acces-

sories were produced. For instance, it would be possible

to purchase various items which are exempt from tax

and assemble them into a taxable article and sell them tax

free because there was no manufacturing while, however,

there was certainly production, and the person so combin-

ing or assembling them would certainly be a producer.

It was conceded by the appellant that there is no tax

upon immediate repairs. However, this Honorable Court

holds that because of the fact that appellee operates on

a large scale, places quantities of rewound armatures in

stock and sells them under a trade name, that it is a

"manufacturer or producer." This places an undue bur-

den on this petitioner because of the size of its operations

and the service which it is prepared to render.

Even though this petitioner conceded, which it does not,

that the above regulations had the force and effect of law,

it would still be too vague and incomplete to impose a tax

upon the operations of this company. This Honorable

Court is well aware of the rule that the literal meaning of

words can be insisted on in resistance to a taxing statute.
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Certainly the finding that this taxpayer is not a "manu-

facturer or producer" would not reduce the statute to

empty declarations as is inferred by the court in the opin-

ion on file herein.

It is conceded that had this taxpayer purchased new

cores with which to produce armatures that it would be

subject to the Revenue Act of 1932. Petitioner cites

Thurman, Collector v. Swisshelm (C. C. A. 7), 36 Fed.

(2d) 350. The principle underlying the Swisshelm case

is no different from the instant case. Swisshelm com-

menced his process with an automobile, completely manu-

factured and tax paid by the manufacturer; the plaintifit

in this case commenced its work with an armature previ-

ously manufactured and tax paid by the manufacturer.

When Swisshelm finished his process, he still had an au-

tomobile—he had created nothing new; when appellee in

this case completed the rewinding process, it still had an

armature—it had created nothing new. In the Swisshelm

case the court distinguished the case of Klepper v. Carter

(C. C. A. 9), 286 Fed. 370, which is cited by this court,

and said L. C. 351

:

"The facts are different in that there (referring

to the Klepper case) no truck figured in the transac-

tion until the parts had been assembled and con-

nected; while here appellees bought the completed

automobile, upon which the tax had already been

paid."

There is no evidence in the record to sustain the court's

statement that this taxpayer utilized used cores, which had

been discarded and were out of circulation in the completed

article.
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Conclusion.

By reason of the fact that the question involved herein

is of grave importance to not only the appellee, but also

to many other companies throughout the United States,

engaged in the same business, and because certain misun-

derstandings have already arisen wherein some of them

claim not to be affected by the decision because their op-

erations differ somewhat from those detailed in the opin-

ion and findings of the trial court, it is respectfully sub-

mitted that this Honorable Court grant a rehearing en

banc, of this appeal in order that the full import of the

decisions of the Supreme Court and Circuit Courts of

Appeals involving patent and tariff laws may be applied

by this Honorable Court in its decision of the appeal.

It is respectfully submitted that under the statute, regu-

lations and decisions of the Supreme Court and various

Circuit Courts of Appeals that this appellee is not sub-

ject to the tax imposed by Section 606 (c) of the Revenue

Act of 1932, and therefore appellee's petition for rehear-

ing en banc should be granted.

Respectfully submitted,

Darius F. Johnson,

Attorney for Appellee.

Certificate of Counsel.

I, Darius F. Johnson, counsel for the above appellee,

do hereby certify that the foregoing petition for rehearing

en banc of this cause is presented in good faith and not

interposed for the purpose of delay.

Darius F. Johnson.
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In the District Court of the United States in and

for the Northern District of California, South-

em Division.

Equity No. 4279 S

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY, a corpo-

ration,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAZILLA TIGHE, AH CHONG and LEONG
CHEUNG,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOE DECLARATORY RELIEF,
ETC.

Plaintiff, Maryland Casualty Company, brings

this suit under and pursuant to the Federal Decla-

ratory Judgment Act (Judicial Code, section 274d,

28 U.S.C.A. section 400), and alleges:

I.

That plaintiff, Maryland Casualty Company, is

now and was at all times herein mentioned a cor-

poration organized and existing under and by vir-

tue of the laws of the State of Maryland, duly

authorized and licensed to do business in the State

of California, and having its principal place of

business within the State of [1*] California, in the

City and County of San Francisco.

*Page numbering appearing at foot of page of onginai certified

rTanacriDt of Record.
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n.

That defendant Mazilla Tighe is a citizen of the

State of California, and resides in the County of

Alameda in said state; that defendant Ah Chong

is a citizen and subject to the Republic of China,

and resides in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, in the State of California; that defendant

Leong Cheung is a citizen of the State of Cali-

fornia, and resides in the City and County of San

Francisco in said state.

III.

That the amount in controversy, exclusive of in-

terest and costs, exceeds the sum of three thousand

dollars ($3,000.).

IV.

That this suit is brought under and pursuant to

the Federal Declaratory Judgment Act (Judicial

Code, section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A. section 400).

V.

That on or about the 3rd day of April, 1937,

plaintiff issued a policy of automobile insurance to

defendant Ah Chong; that the policy period was

from April 3, 1937, to April 3, 1938, and said policy

was in effect during all of said period; that in said

policy plaintiff agreed with defendant Ah Chong

to pay on behalf of defendant Ah Chong, subject

to the limits of liability, exclusions, conditions and

other terms of said policy, all sums, not exceeding
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$5,000. for each person and not exceeding $10,000.

for each accident, which defendant Ah Chong should

become obliged to pay by reason of the liability im-

posed upon him by law for damages, including dam-

ages for care and loss of services, because of bodily

injury, sustained by any person or persons, caused

by accident and arising out of the ownership, main-

tenance and use of a certain automobile described

in said policy as a 1929 model Kleiber 1% Ton

Truck, M#16EC7717; that said policy further pro-

vided [2] that the purposes for which said auto-

mobile was to be used were commercial and that use

of said automobile for said purposes mcluded the

loading and unloading thereof; that a true copy of

said policy is attached hereto marked Exhibit ^^A"

and the same hereby is made a part hereof.

VI.

That on or about the 25th day of January, 1938,

defendant Mazilla Tighe commenced an action for

damages against defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung in the Superior Court of the State of Cali-

fornia, in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, entitled Mazilla Tighe, Plaintiff, vs. Ah
Chong, Leong Cheung, John Doe, Richard Roe,

Black and White Company, a corporation, Defend-

ants, and numbered therein No. 278962; that in the

complaint of said Mazilla Tighe in said action said

Mazilla Tighe alleged that on the 26th day of No-

vember, 1937, said Leong Cheung was an employee

of said Ah Chong and, while so employed, said

Leong Cheung made a delivery of vegetable prod-
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uce to a restaurant known as Piccadilly Inn and

located in the 300 block in Sutter Street in San

Francisco, from a delivery truck parked at the curb

on said Sutter Street and opposite to, and about

ten feet from, the entrance of said Piccadilly Inn;

that at said time and place said Mazilla Tighe was

a pedestrian on said Sutter Street and was walking

in an easterly direction upon the sidewalk adjacent

to and in front of said Piccadilly Inn; that at said

time and place said Leong Cheung conducted him-

self generally in a careless, reckless and negligent

manner; that at said time and place Leong Cheung

was careless and negligent in the following man-

ner: that after making a delivery to the aforesaid

Piccadilly Inn, he ran from the entrance thereof,

and in so running at said time and place, looked

backward over his shoulder as he continued running

forward, in a negligent and careless manner; that

he ran toward the aforesaid [3] truck at the curb,

and in so doing collided with said Mazilla Tighe

as she walked along the aforesaid sidewalk, with

such force and effect that said Mazilla Tighe was

knocked violently to the sidewalk and was caused

to sustain injuries as more particularly in said

complaint appears; that as a result of said collision

said Mazilla Tighe suffered injuries and loss of

earning capacity, and incurred and will incur ex-

I^ense for medical and nursing attention, in the

aggregate amount, to the date of filing said com-

plaint, of $10,390.; in said complaint said Mazilla

Tighe prays for judgment against said Ah Chong
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and Leong Cheung, and each of them, as follows:

For general damages in the sum of $10,000., for

special damages incurred to date of filing said com-

plaint in the sum of $390., for such further special

damages as may be incurred subsequent to the date

of filing said complaint, for costs of suit, and for

such other and further relief as to the Court may
seem meet in the premises ; that a true copy of said

complaint is attached hereto, marked Exhibit "B",

and the same hereby is made a part hereof.

VII.

That on or about the 31st day of January, 1938,

defendant Ah Chong for the first time advised

plaintiff that said action for damages had been

commenced, and until so advised plaintiff had no

information that such action had been commenced

or that any accident previously had occurred as

alleged in said complaint or in which said defend-

ants Leong Cheung and Mazilla Tighe, or either

of them, had been involved, or that any claim for

damages had been or was being made by defendant

Mazilla Tighe by reason thereof.

VIII.

That an actual controversy exists as between

plaintiff and defendants herein, as follows : Defend-

ants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung contend that

since the automobile referred to in said [4] com-

plaint in said action brought by said Mazilla Tighe

is the same automobile described in said insurance

policy plaintiff herein has the obligation under said
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policy to defend said Ah Chong and Leong Cheung

in said action ; further, defendants Ah Chong, Leong

Cheung and Mazilla Tighe contend that if it should

be adjudged in said action that said Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung have any liability to pay any sums

to said Mazilla Tighe by reason of the alleged acci-

dent set forth in said complaint in said action, then

plaintiff herein has the obligation under said policy

to pay said sums to said Mazilla Tighe up to the aggre-

gate amount of $5,000. ; on the other hand, plaintiff

herein denies and controverts said contentions and

each of them and on its part contends that although

the automobile referred to in said complaint of said

Mazilla Tighe is the same automobile described in

said policy of insurance, plaintiff herein has no

obligations or liability under said policy so far as

said alleged accident is concerned because said al-

leged accident did not arise out of the use of said

automobile or the loading or unloading thereof ; fur-

ther plaintiff herein contends that it was released of

all obligations and liability under said policy so far

as said accident is concerned by reason of the fail-

ure of defendant Ah Chong to notify plaintiff that

any such accident occurred for more than sixty

days after it is alleged in said complaint the same

occurred.

IX.

That defendant Ah Chong has requested plaintiff

herein to defend in the names and on behalf of de-

fendants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung, said action

brought by said Mazilla Tighe ; that plaintiff herein
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has consented to so defend said action, subject

however to an express and complete reservation of

all rights of plaintii¥; that said action is now at

issue. [5]

X.

That the continued defense of said action in said

Superior Court by plaintiff herein will result in

loss and damage to plaintiff by reason of the ex-

penses that thereby will be incurred by plaintiff;

that a declaratory judgment or decree herein deter-

mining the rights and other legal relations of the

parties hereto is necessary to enable plaintiff herein

properly to reach its decision respecting its con-

tinued defense of said action in said Superior Court,

and to protect plaintiff if it should decide not to

continue further with said defense, and to avoid

the damages and loss that will result to plaintiff

by reason of the accrual of expenses incident to the

continuation of said defense; that the entry of a

declaratory judgment or decree herein is necessary

to avoid the loss and damages that will accrue to

plaintiff in the event said action in said Superior

Court should proceed to decision, and judgment

should be entered therein for said Mazilla Tighe,

since, in such event, unless a declaratory judgment

or decree has been entered herein determining plain-

tiff herein has no liability under any judgment in

said action in said Superior Court, plaintiff will be

obliged to defend against the claims of defendants

herein that plaintiff is liable to pay said judgment

in said Superior Court action up to the aggregate

amount of $5,000.
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XI.

That plaintiff is informed and believes and on

such information and belief alleges that unless de-

fendants herein are enjoined they will proceed with

the trial of said action in said Superior Court ; that

unless a preliminary injunction is granted herein

restraining defendants herein, and each of them,

and their respective attorneys, from taking any

further proceedings in said Superior Court action

until this Court enters its final judgment or decree

herein, said judgment or decree herein will be ren-

dered [6] ineffectual in that plaintiff herein will

be deprived of the benefit and protection of said

judgment or decree so far as plaintiff's decision

respecting the defense of said Superior Court action

is concerned; that unless such preliminary injunc-

tion is so granted herein, plaintiff herein will suffer

irreparable loss and damage in that plaintiff herein

will have no right to recover the expenses, or any

part of the expenses, plaintiff herein will incur by

reason of the defense of said Superior Court action.

XII.

That plaintiff is informed and believes and on

such information and belief alleges that unless de-

fendants herein are enjoined they will proceed with

the trial of said action in said Superior Court and

if judgment is entered therein for said Mazilla

Tighe, defendants herein will undertake to impose

upon plaintiff herein liability for the payment of

said judgment up to the aggregate amount of $,5000

;
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that unless a preliminary injunction is granted

herein restraining defendants herein, and each of

them, and their respective attorneys, until this court

enters its final judgment or decree herein, from
taking any further proceedings in said Superior

Court action, and from taking any proceedings for

the purpose of imposing any liability upon plaintiff

herein based upon any judgment that may be ren-

dered for said Mazilla Tighe in said Superior Court

action, plaintiff herein will suffer irreparable loss

and damage in that plaintiff herein will be obliged

to employ counsel to defend against said claim that

plaintiff herein is liable to pay said judgment up to

the aggregate amount of $5,000. and plaintiff here-

in will have no right to recover the expenses that

will be so incurred, or any part thereof; that the

granting of such preliminary injunction is neces-

sary to avoid multiplicity of judicial proceedings in

that any proceedings to impose liability upon plain-

tiff herein based upon any judgment for said Ma-

zilla [7] Tighe in said Superior Court action will

present the same issues and questions as those pre-

sented by this suit for a declaratory judgment or

decree ; that if such injunction is not so granted and

the claims of defendants herein that plaintiff herein

is liable to pay any judgment for said Mazilla Tighe

in said Superior Court action up to the aggregate

amount of $5,000. are adjudicated in favor of said

claims, any judgment or decree that may be ren-

dered herein for plaintiff herein will be rendered

ineffectual.
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Wherefore, plaintiff prays:

(a) That defendants and each of them be re-

quired to answer this bill of complaint in the nature

of a petition for declaratory judgment.

(b) That this Court adjudge, decree and declare

the rights and legal relations of the parties under

and by reason of that certain policy of automobile

insurance hereinabove referred to in order that such

declaration have the force and effect of a final judg-

ment and decree.

(c) That this Court adjudge and decree that

plaintiff herein has no obligation under said policy

of automobile insurance to defend defendants Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung, or either of them, in that

certain action hereinabove referred to, brought by

defendant Mazilla Tighe in the Superior Court

of the State of California, in and for the City and

County of San Francisco.

(d) That this Court adjudge and decree that

plaintiff herein has no liability under said policy of

automobile insurance by reason of the alleged acci-

dent set forth in said complaint in said action

brought by said Mazilla Tighe in said Superior

Court, because said alleged accident did not arise

out of use of said automobile described in and cov-

ered by said policy, and because of the failure of

defendant Ah Chong to give plaintiff herein any
notice [8] of said alleged accident for more than

sixty days after said accident is alleged to have

incurred.

(e) That this Court grant a preliminary injunc-

tion restraining the defendants herein, and each of
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them, and their respective attorneys, until this

Court enters its final judgment or decree herein,

from taking any further proceedings in said action

in said Superior Court, and from taking any pro-

ceedings for the purpose of imposing any liability

upon plaintiff herein based upon any judgment that

may be rendered for said Mazilla Tighe in said

Superior Court action.

(f ) For such other and further relief as may to

the Court seem meet in the premises.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
Attorneys for Plaintiff [9]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Reginald S. Laughlin, being first duly sworn,

says : I am one of the attorneys for plaintiff in this

action. I have read the foregoing complaint, and

know the contents thereof, and the same is true of

my own knowledge, except as to matters stated

therein on information and belief, and as to those

matters I believe it to be true. The reason why this

verification is not made by an officer of plaintiff

corporation is that none of its officers are now with-

in the State of California where I reside.

REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of June, 1938.

[Seal] LULU P. LOVELAND
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California [10]
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EXHIBIT ^'A"

AUTOMOBILE POLICY

Maryland Casualty Company

Baltimore

DECLARATIONS
Item 1. Name of Insured—Ah Chong

Address—128 Oregon Street, San Francisco,

No. Street County Town
California

State

The automobile will be principally garaged and

used in the above town, county and state, unless

otherwise specified herein.

The occupation of the named insured is Fruit and

Vegetable Peddler

(If married woman, give husband's occupation

or business)

Item 2. Policy Period : From April 3rd, 1937 to

April 3rd, 1938 12.01 A. M., Standard Time at the

address of the named insured as stated herein.

Item 3. The insurance afforded is only with re-

spect to such and so many of the following cover-

ages as are indicated by specific premium charge

or charges. The limit of the company's liability

against each such coverage shall be as stated herein,

subject to all of the terms of this policy having ref-

erence thereto.

The purposes for which the automobile is to be

used are Commercial.
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(a) The term ''pleasure and business" is defined

as personal, pleasure, family and business use. (b)

The term "commercial" is defined as the transpor-

tation or delivery of goods, merchandise or other

materials, and uses incidental thereto, in direct con-

nection with the named insured's business occupa-

tion as expressed in Item 1. (c) Use of the auto-

mobile for the purposes stated includes the loading

and unloading thereof.

The nationality and color (state both) of the

named insured are Chinese—Oriental.

The risk was insured during the past year in

Maryland.

The named insured is the sole owner of the auto-

mobile, except as herein stated: No Exceptions.

No insurer has cancelled any automobile insur-

ance issued to the named insured during the past

year, except as herein stated: No Exceptions.

Countersigned this 3rd day of April, 1937.

By.

Authorized Representative.

[11]

Policy No. 15—537989

Maryland Casualty Company
(A stock insurance company, herein called

the company)

Does hereby agree with the insured, named in the

declarations made a part hereof, in consideration of

the payment of the premium and of the statements

contained in the declarations and subject to the
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limits of liability, exclusions, conditions and other

terms of this policy

:

Insuring Agreements

I

Coverage A—Bodily Injury Liability

To pay on behalf of the insured all sums which

the insured shall become obligated to pay by reason

of the liability imposed upon him by law for dam-

ages, including damages for care and loss of serv-

ices, because of bodily injury, including death at

any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any per-

son or persons, caused by accident and arising out

of the ownership, maintenance or use of the auto-

mobile.

Coverage B—Property Damage Liability

To pay on behalf of the insured all sums which

the insured shall become obligated to pay by rea-

son of the liability imposed upon him by law for

damages because of injury to or destruction of

property, including the loss of use thereof, caused

by accident and arising out of the ownership, main-

tenance or use of the automobile.

II

Defense, Settlement, Supplementary Payments.

It is further agreed that as respects insurance

afforded by this policy under coverages A and B
the company shall

(a) defend in his name and behalf any suit

against the insured alleging such injury or de-
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struction and seeking damages on account

thereof, even if such suit is groundless, false or

fraudulent; but the company shall have the

right to make such investigation, negotiation

and settlement of any claim or suit as may be

deemed expedient by the company;

(b) pay all premiums on bonds to release at-

tachments for an amount not in excess of the

applicable limit of liability of this policy, all

premiums on appeal bonds required in any such

defended suit, but without any obligation to

apply for or furnish such bonds, all costs taxed

against the insured in any such suit, all ex-

penses incurred by the company, all interest

accruing after entry of judgment until the

company has paid, tendered or deposited in

court such part of such judgment as does not

exceed the limit of the company's liability

thereon, and any expense incurred by the in-

sured, in the event of bodily injury, for such

immediate medical and surgical relief to others

as shall be imperative at the time of accident.

The company agrees to pay the expenses incurred

under divisions (a) and (b) of this section in addi-

tion to the applicable limit of liability of this

policy.

Ill

Automatic Insurance for Newly Acquired

Automobiles

If the named insured who is the owner of the

automobile acquires ownership of another automo-
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bile, such insurance as is afforded by this policy

applies also to such other automobile as of the date

of its delivery to him, subject to the following ad-

ditional conditions: (1) if the company insures all

automobiles owned by the named insured at the

date of such delivery, insurance applies to such

other automobile, if it is used for pleasure purposes

or in the business of the named insured as ex-

pressed in the declarations, but only to the extent

applicable to all such previously owned automo-

biles; (2) if the company does not insure all

automobiles owned by the named insured at the

date of such delivery, insurance applies to such

other automobile, if it replaces an automobile de-

scribed in this policy and may be classified for the

purpose of use stated in this policy, but only to the

extent applicable to the replaced automobile; (3)

the insurance afforded by this policy automatically

terminates upon the replaced automobile at the date

of such delivery; and (4) this agreement does not

apply (a) to any loss against which the named

insured has other valid and collectible insurance,

nor (b) unless the named insured notifies the com-

pany within ten days following the date of delivery

of such other automobile, nor (c) except during the

policy period, but if the date of delivery of such

other automobile is prior to the effective date of this

policy the insurance applies as of the effective date

of this policy, nor (d) unless the named insured

pays any additional premium required because of

the application of this insurance to such other

automobile.
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IV
Definition of ''Insured."

The unqualified word "insured" wherever used

in coverages A and B and in other parts of this

policy, when applicable to these coverages, includes

not only the named insured but also any person

while using the automobile and any person or or-

ganization legally responsible for the use thereof,

provided that the declared and actual use of the

automobile is "pleasure and business" or "com-

mercial", each as defined herein, and provided fur-

ther that the actual use is with the permission of

the named insured. The provisions of this para-

graph do not apply

:

(a) to any person or organization with re-

spect to any loss against which he has other

valid and collectible insurance;

(b) to any person or organization with re-

spect to bodily injury to or death of any per-

son who is a named insured

;

(c) to any person or organization, or to any

agent or employee thereof, operating an auto-

mobile repair shop, public garage, sales agency,

service station, or public parking place, wdth

respect to any accident arising out of the oper-

ation thereof;

(d) to any employee of an insured with

respect to any action brought against said em-

ployee because of bodily injury to or death of

another employee of the same insured injured

in the course of such employment in an accident
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arising out of the maintenance or use of the

automobile in the business of such insured.

V.

Policy Period, Territory, Purposes of Use

This policy applies only to accidents which occur

during the policy period, while the automobile is

within the United States in North America (exclu-

sive of Alaska) or the Dominion of Canada, or

while on a coastwise vessel between ports within

said territory, and is owned, maintained and used

for the purposes stated as applicable thereto in the

declarations.

Exclusions

This policy does not apply:

(a) while the automobile is used in the business

of demonstrating or testing, or as a public or livery

conveyance, or for carrying persons for a considera-

tion, or while rented under contract or leased, un-

less such use is specifically declared and described

in this policy and premium charged therefor;

(b) while the automobile is used for the towing

of any trailer not covered by like insurance in the

company ; or while any trailer covered by this policy

is used with any automobile not covered by like

insurance in the company;

(c)) while the automobile is operated by any

person under the age of fourteen years, or by any

person in violation of any state, federal or pro-

vincial law as to age applicable to such person or

to his occupation, or by any person in any pre-

arranged race or competitive speed test

;
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(d) to any liability assumed by the insured under

any contract or agreement ; or to any accident which

occurs after the transfer during the policy period

of the interest of the named insured in the auto-

mobile, without the written consent of the company

;

(e) imder coverage A, to bodily injury to or

death of any employee of the insured while engaged

in the business of the insured, other than domestic

employment, or in the operation, maintenance or

repair of the automobile; or to any obligation for

which the insured may be held liable under any

workmen's compensation law;

(f) under coverage B, to property owned by,

rented to, leased to, in charge of, or transported

by the insured.

Conditions

1. Automobile Defined. Two or More Automo-

biles. Except where specifically stated to the con-

trary, the word "automobile" wherever used in this

policy shall mean the motor vehicle, trailer or semi-

trailer described herein; and the word "trailer"

shall include semi-trailer. When two or more auto-

mobiles are insured hereunder, the terms of this

policy shall apply separately to each but as respects

limits of bodily injury liability and i)roi)erty dam-

age liability a motor vehicle and a trailer or trailers

attached thereto shall be held to be one automobile.

2. Limits of Liability. Coverage A. The limit of

bodily injury liability expressed in the declarations

as applicable to "each person" is the limit of the

company's liability for all damages, including dam-

ages for care and loss of services, arising out of
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bodily injury to or death of one person in any one

accident ; the limit of such liability expressed in the

declarations as applicable to "each accident" is,

subject to the above provision respecting each per-

son, the total limit of the company's liability for

all damages, including damages for care and loss of

services, arising out of bodily injury to or death of

two or more persons in any one accident.

3. Limits of Liability. Coverages A and B. The

inclusion herein of more than one insured shall not

operate to increase the limits of the company's lia-

bility.

4. Financial Responsibility Laws. Any insur-

ance provided by this policy for bodily injury lia-

bility or property damage liability shall conform to

the provisions of the motor vehicle financial respon-

sibility law of any state or province which shall be

applicable with respect to any such liability arising

from the use of the automobile during the policy

period, to the extent of the coverage and limits of

liability required by such law, but in no event in

excess of the limits of liability stated in this policy.

The insured agrees to reimburse the company for

any payment made by the company on account of

any accident, claim or suit, involving a breach of

the terms of this policy and for any payment the

company would not have been obligated to make

under the provisions of this policy except for the

agreement contained in this paragraph.

5. Notice of Accident.—Claim or Suit. Upon
the occurrence of an accident written notice shall



Mazilla Tiglie, et al. 23

be given by or on behalf of the insured to the com-

pany or any of its authorized agents as soon as

practicable. Such notice shall contain particulars

sufficient to identify the insured and also reasonably

obtainable information respecting the time, place

and circumstances of the accident, the name and

address of the injured and of any available wit-

nesses. If claim is made or suit is brought against

the insured, the insured shall immediately forward

to the company every demand, notice, summons or

other process received by him or his representative.

6. Assistance and Cooperation of the Insured.

The insured shall cooperate with the company and,

upon the company's request, shall attend hearings

and trials and shall assist in effecting settlements,

securing and giving evidence, obtaining the attend-

ance of witnesses and in the conduct of suits and

the company shall reimburse the insured for any

expense, other than loss of earnings, incurred at

the company's request. The insured shall not, ex-

cept at his own cost, voluntarily make any payment,

assume any obligation or incur any expense other

than for such immediate medical and surgical re-

lief to others as shall be imperative at the time of

the accident.

7. Action Against Company. No action shall lie

against the company unless, as a condition pre-

cedent thereto, the insured shall have fully com-

plied wdth all the conditions hereof, nor until the

amount of the insured's obligation to pay shall have

been finally determined either by judgment against
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the insured after actual trial or by written agree-

ment of the insured, the claimant, and the company,

nor in either event unless suit is instituted within

two years and one day after the date of such judg-

ment or written agreement.

Any person or his legal representative who has

secured such judgment or written agreement shall

thereafter be entitled to recover under the terms of

this policy in the same manner and to the same

extent as the insured. Nothing contained in this

policy shall give any person or organization any

right to join the company as a co-defendant in any

action against the insured to determine the in-

sured's liability.

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured shall not

relieve the company of any of its obligations here-

under.

8. Other Insurance. If the named insured has

other insurance against a loss covered by this policy,

the company shall not be liable imder this policy

for a greater proportion of such loss than the appli-

cable limit of liability expressed in the declarations

bears to the total applicable limit of liability of all

valid and collectible insurance against such loss.

9. Subrogation. In the event of any payment

under this policy, the company shall be subrogated

to all the insured's rights of recovery therefor and

the insured shall execute all papers required and

shall do everything that may be necessary to secure

such rights.

10. Changes. No notice to any agent, or knowl-

edge possessed by any agent or by any other person
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shall be held to effect a waiver or change in any

part of this policy nor estop the company from as-

serting any right mider the terms of this policy;

nor shall the terms of this policy be waived or

changed, except by endorsement issued to form a

part hereof, signed by the President, a Vice-Presi-

dent, the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the

company, and countersigned by an authorized rep-

resentative of the company.

11. Assignment. No assignment of interest un-

der this policy shall bind the company until its

consent is endorsed hereon; if, however, the named

insured shall die or be adjudged bankrupt or insol-

vent within the policy period, this policy, unless

canceled, shall, if written notice be given to the

company within thirty days after the date of such

death or adjudication, cover (1) the named in-

sured's legal representative as the named insured,

and (2) subject otherwise to the provisions of In-

suring Agreement IV, any person having proper

temporary custody of the automobile, as an insured,

until the appointment and qualification of such legal

representative, but in no event for a period of more

than thirty days after the date of such death or

adjudication.

12. Cancelation. This policy may be canceled by

the named insured by mailing written notice to the

company stating when thereafter such cancelation

shall be effective, in which case the company shall,

upon demand, refund the excess of premium paid

by such insured above the customary short rate
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premium for the expired term. This policy may be

canceled by the company by mailing written notice

to the named insured at the address shown in tliis

policy stating when not less than five days there-

after such cancelation shall be effective, and upon

demand the company shall refund the excess of pre-

mium paid by such insured above the pro rata

premium for the expired term. The mailing of

notice as aforesaid shall be sufficient proof of notice

and the insurance under this policy as aforesaid

shall end on the effective date and hour of cancela-

tion stated in the notice. Delivery of such written

notice either by the named insured or by the com-

pany shall be equivalent to mailing. The com-

pany's check or the check of its representative

similarly mailed or delivered shall be a sufficient

tender of any refund of premium due to the named

insured. If required by statute in the state where

this policy is issued, refund of premium due to the

named insured shall be tendered with notice of can-

celation when the policy is canceled by the company

and refund of premium due to the named insured

shall be made upon computation thereof when the

policy is canceled by the named insured.

13. Declarations. By acceptance of this policy

the named insured agrees that the statements in the

declarations are his agreements and representations,

that this policy is issued in reliance upon the truth

of such representations, and that this policy em-

bodies all agreements existing between himself and

the company or any of its agents relating to this in-

surance.
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In Witness Whereof, the Maryland Casualty

Company has caused this policy to be signed by its

president and secretary at Baltimore, Maryland,

and comitersigned on the declarations page by a

duly authorized representative of the company.

SILLIMAN EVANS,
President

JNO. A. HARTMAN
Secretary [12]

Endorsement

#1
(Which shall only be effective on and after

date hereof)

Date April 3rd, 1937

In consideration of the premium at which this

Policy is written, it is hereby understood and agreed

that the Assureds business is exclusively retail and

that the regular and frequent use of the commercial

automobiles covered by this Policy is and will be

confined during the Policy period to the territory

within a 25 mile radius of the place of principal

garaging of such automobiles that no regular or

frequent trips are or will be made during the Policy

period to any location beyond a 25 mile radius from

the place of principal garaging of such automobiles.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary,

alter, waive, or extend any of the terms, limits or

conditions of the Policy, except as hereinabove set

forth.
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This endorsement forms a part of Policy No.

15-537989 issued to Ah Chong.

MARYLAND CASUALTY
COMPANY

SILLIMAN EVANS,
President

Countersigned

Authorized Representative

A Stock Company

AUTOMOBILE POLICY
No. 15—

Maryland Casualty Company

Issued to

—

Premimn, $ -

Expires 19

Please Read Your Policy

Carefully note conditions requiring immediate

notice of every accident and of every suit.

SPECIAL SERVICE FOR
MARYLAND POLICYHOLDERS

The Service Card delivered with this policy

should be carried with you at all times. In case

of an accident it is your guarantee of indispensable

service in time of trouble.

The Service Card enables you to secure a release

of attachment bond or a bail bond with the least
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possible delay or trouble and is your introduction

to the thousands of Maryland Agents at your com-

mand.

The Maryland Casualty Company issues all forms

of casualty insurance and surety bonds in the United

States, Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, Canada, Canal

Zone, Cuba. Agents everywhere.

EXHIBIT '^B"

In the Superior Court of the State of California

in and for the City and County of San

Francisco

No. 278962

^lAZILLA TIGHE
Plaintiff,

vs.

AD CHONG, LEONG CHEUNG, John Boe, Rich-

ard Roe, Black and White Company, a cor-

poration,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
Plaintiff above named complains of the defend-

ants above named, and each of them, and for cause

of action alleges as follows:



30 Maryland Casualty Co. vs.

I.

That plaintiff is ignorant of the true names of

the defendants John Doe, Richard Roe, Black and

White Company, a corporation, and for that reason

they are sued herein under said names as fictitious

names, and plaintiff prays that when the true names

of these defendants are ascertained, that they may
be inserted herein, and in all subsequent proceed-

ings in said action, and that the said action may
then proceed against them under their true names.

II.

That at all times herein mentioned the defend-

ant Ad Chong [13] was, and now is, engaged in the

wholesale produce business and carries on said

business in the City and County of San Francisco;

that the office of said business is located at No. 128

Oregon Street in said city and county; that at all

times herein mentioned Leong Cheung was an em-

ployee, agent and servant of Ad Chong and was

acting within the scope and course of his said

employment.

III.

That on the 26th day of November, 1937, the de-

fendant Leong Cheung was an employee, agent and

servant of his co-defendant Ad Chong, and was by

him regularly employed to distribute and deliver

vegetable produce, and in the performance of said

employment said defendant Leong Cheung was

required to, and he did, operate and drive a certain

delivery truck for the purpose of making deliveries
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of produce to various retail trade in said City

and County of San Francisco; that said deliveries

were made by said Leong Cheung by carrying vege-

table produce from the said truck to various patrons

of his employer, Ad Chong.

IV.

That at all times herein mentioned Sutter Street

was and now is a public street in the City and

County of San Francisco, California; that said

street runs in a general easterly and westerly direc-

tion ; that on said street, and in the block numbered

"300", a restaurant is located known as the "Picca-

dilli Inn"; that plaintiff herein is informed and

believes, and upon such information and belief

alleges the fact to be, that at times herein men-

tioned the aforesaid Piccadilli Inn was a customer

of said Ad Chong and customarily and at intervals

receives produce vegetables from said Ad Chong,

and by and through the delivery thereof by Leong

Cheung.

V.

That on or about the 26th day of November, 1937,

and in the morning thereof at approximately 8:34

A. M., defendant Leong Cheung [14] was making

a delivery of produce vegetables to the said Picca-

dilli Inn, and that at said time and place he had

left his aforesaid delivery truck standing parked

at the curb and opposite to, and about ten feet

from, the entrance of said Piccadilli Inn.
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That at said time and place the plaintiff herein

was a pedestrian on said Sutter Street and was

walking- in an easterly direction upon the sidewalk

adjacent to and in front of said Piccadilli Inn; that

at said time and place defendant Leong Cheung

conducted himself generally in a careless, reckless

and negligent manner; that at said time and place

Leong Cheung was careless and negligent in the

following manner: That after making a delivery

to the aforesaid Piccadilli Inn, he ran from the

entrance thereof, and in so running at said time

and place, looked backward over his shoulder as

he continued running forward, in a negligent and

careless manner; that he ran toward the aforemen-

tioned truck at the curb, and in so doing collided

with the plaintiff herein as she walked along the

aforesaid sidewalk, with such force and effect that

plaintiff was knocked violently to the sidewalk and

was caused to sustain injuries as more particularly

hereinafter appears.

VI.

That as a direct and proximate cause of said

collision and the negligence of the defendants, plain-

tiff Mazilla Tighe suffered and received the follow-

ing injuries, to-wit, a broken scapula bone, wrenched

and displaced shoulder blade, and as a result

thereof plaintiff will be totally disabled for one

year and more, and plaintiff will always suffer dis-

ability from said injuries; that in addition thereto

plaintiff suffered severe bruises and sprains of her
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lower back, and was bruised, wounded and contused

generally over her body and suffered, and is suffer-

ing therefrom, great physical and nervous shock,

and she is now and for the remainder of her life

will be maimed, disabled and lame. [15]

VII.

That as a direct result of said injuries the plain-

tiff' has suffered permanent loss and impairment

of her health, and as a direct result of the defend-

ants' negligence and plaintiff's bodily injuries

caused thereby as aforesaid, and the consequent

pain, anxiety, mental anguish, grief, mortification,

physical suffering, loss of earning capacity, and the

general damages which the plaintiff has suffered

and will continue to suffer by reason of her said

injuries, plaintiff has been and is generally damaged

in the sum of Ten Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars.

VIII.

That plaintiff herein was at the time of said acci-

dent and had for a period of some years prior to

the accident, been regularly employed in a depart-

ment store in said City and County of San Fran-

cisco, and had been earning the approximate sum
of Eighty-Five ($85.00) Dollars per month; that

as a direct and proximate result of said injuries

as aforesaid plaintiff herein has lost two months

employment and has been specially damaged to date

in the sum of One Hundred and Seventy ($170.00)

Dollars; that plaintiff will be further damaged in
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this respect in an amount which she cannot at this

time determine and she prays that when the full

extent of her damage is ascertained, that this com-

plaint may be amended to provide for same.

IX.

That as a direct and proximate result of said

collision, and the injuries and negligence of said

defendants, it was necessary for plaintiff to, and

she did, retaiZ the services of physicians and sur-

geons to treat the injuries sustained by her as afore-

said, and it will be necessary for the plaintiff to

receive further medical attention for a period of

time which cannot at the date of tiling this com-

plaint be definitely [16] ascertained; that to date

plaintiff has incurred an indebtedness for the rea-

sonable value of the necessary services rendered to

her by said physicians and surgeons in the amount

of One Himdred ($100.00) Dollars; that plaintiff

will incur a further indebtedness for the reason-

able value of the necessary services to be rendered

said plaintiff by said physician and surgeons in the

future in an amount which cannot at this time be

definitely ascertained and plaintiff prays that when

the extent of the loss sustained by her in this re-

spect is definitely ascertained, that this complaint

may be amended and the same set forth herein;

that by reason of the foregoing, and as a direct and

proximate result of said collision and injuries and

the negligence of defendants, it becomes necessary

for the plaintiff herein to retain the services of a
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practical nurse for her care; that the reasonable

expense of said services is Sixty ($60.00) Dollars

per month and plaintiff has incurred an indebted-

ness in the sum of One Himdred and Twenty

($120.00) Dollars in this regard to date, and will

incur special damages in this respect in the future

in an amount which cannot now be definitely ascer-

tained and plaintiff prays that when the extent of

the loss sustained by her in this respect is so defi-

nitely ascertained, that this complaint may be

amended and the same set forth.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays judgment against said

defendants, and each of them, as follows: For gen-

eral damages in the sum of Ten Thousand ($10,-

000.00) Dollars, for special damages incurred to

date in the sum of Three Hundred and Ninety

($390.00) Dollars, for such further special dam-

ages as may be incurred in the future, for plaintiff's

costs of suit herein, and for such other and further

relief as to the court may seem meet in the premises.

Attorneys for Plaintiff [17]

State of California,

County of Alameda—ss.

Mazilla Tighe, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says : That she is the plaintiff in the above entitled

action; that she has read the foregoing complaint

and knows the contents thereof; that the same is

true of her own knwledge, except as to the matters

which are therein stated upon information or belief,
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and as to those matters, that she believes them to

be true.

MAZILLA TIGHE

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of January, 1938.

RUPERT R. RYAN
Notary Public in and for the County of Alameda,

State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 20, 1938. [18]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

TEMPORARY INJUNCTION

This cause came on regularly to be heard at this

term upon the motion of plaintiff in said cause for

a temporary injunction, upon plaintiff's verified

bill of complaint and upon the motion to dismiss

of defendant Mazilla Tighe, and the matter having

been argued by counsel for the parties, and it ap-

pearing that the issuance of a temporary injunction

is necessary to prevent irreparable loss and damage

to plaintiff herein and to prevent impairment of

the exercise of the court's jurisdiction herein or the

enforcement of its orders:

It Hereby Is Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that a temporary injunction be, and the same hereby

is granted plaintiff against the [19] defendants

above named, and their respective agents, servants

and attorneys, and anyone acting by, through or
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for them, restraining them, and each of them, from

taking any further proceedings in that certain

action pending in the Superior Court of the State

of California in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, entitled ''Mazilla Tighe, Plaintiff, vs.

Ah Chong, Leong Cheung, John Doe, Richard Roe,

Black and White Company, a corporation, Defend-

ants", and numbered therein No. 278962, and from

taking any proceedings for the purpose of imposing

any liability upon plaintiff herein based upon any

judgment that may be rendered in said Superior

Court action.

It Is Further Ordered that this temporary injunc-

tion remain in full force and effect until final

hearing and determination of this cause and until

further order of this court.

Dated: July 2, 1938.

(Signed) WALTER C. LINDLEY
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 2, 1938. [20]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF DEFENDANTS AH CHONO
AND LEONG CHEUNG

Come now the defendants Ah Chone: and Leons:

Cheung and for their answer to the complaint say:

I.

Admit that the plaintiff is now and at all times

mentioned in the complaint was a corporation or-
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ganized and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of Maryland and licensed to do business in

the State of California with principal place of busi-

ness at San Francisco.

II.

Admit that defendant Ah Chong is a citizen and

subject of the Republic of China; admit that de-

fendant Leong Cheung is a citizen of the State of

California ; admit that both said Ah Chong and said

Leong Cheung reside in the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California. These answering

defendants have no knowledge as to the citizenship

or residence of the defendant Mazilla Tighe.

III.

Admit that the amount in controversy herein

exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds the sum of

three thousand dollars ($3,000).

TV.

Admit that this suit purports to be brought under

and pursuant to the Federal Declaratory Judgment

Act (Judicial Code, Section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A.

Section 400), but deny that said suit presents or

involves issues properly coming within the terms of

or subject to the provisions of said act. [21]

V.

Admit that on or about the 3d day of April, 1937,

plaintiff issued a policy of automobile liability in-

surance to defendant Ah Chong; that the policy
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period was from April 3, 1937, to April 3, 1938;

admit that said policy was in effect during all of

said period; that in said policy plaintiff agreed

with defendant Ah Chong to pay on behalf of de-

fendant Ah Chong, subject to the limits of liability,

exclusions, conditions and other terms of said policy,

all sums, not exceeding $5000 for each person and

not exceeding $10,000 for each accident, which said

defendant Ah Chong should become obliged to pay

by reason of the liability imposed upon him by law

for damages, including damages for care and loss of

services, because of bodily injury sustained by any

person or persons, caused by accident and arising

out of the ownership, maintenance and use of a cer-

tain automobile described in said policy as a 1929

Model Kleiber 11/2 Ton Truck M#16EC7717; that

said policy further provided that the purposes for

which said automobile was to be used were com-

mercial and that use of said automobile for said

purposes included the loading and unloading there-

of; and that to the best of the knowledge and belief

of these answering defendants the copy attached

to said complaint and marked Exhibit "A" is a

true copy of said policy.

VI.

Admit that on or about the 25th day of January,

1938, defendant Mazilla Tighe commenced an action

for damages against these answering defendants in

the Superior Court of the State of California, in

and for the City and County of San Francisco,
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entitled Mazilla Tighe, Plaintiff, vs. Ah Chong,

Leong Cheung, John Doe, Richard Roe, [22] Black

and White Company, a corporation. Defendants,

and numbered therein No. 278,962; admit that the

allegations of the complaint in said action are cor-

rectly stated in Paragraph VI of Plaintiff's com-

plaint herein; that to the best knowledge and belief

of these answering defendants the copy of the com-

plaint in said action No. 278,962 attached to the

complaint herein and marked Exhibit ''B" is a true

copy thereof.

VII.

Answering the allegations contained in Para-

graph VII of plaintiff's complaint herein, these an-

swering defendants admit that on or about the 31st

day of January, 1938, defendant Ah Chong for the

first time advised plaintiff that said action for dam-

ages had been commenced. These answering defend-

ants have no knowledge whether, until so advised,

plaintiff had or had not any information that the

said action of Mazilla Tighe had been commenced;

admit Hhat neither these answering defendants nor

either of them previous to the 31st day of January,

1938, notified plaintiff that they, or either of them,

had been involved in the accident described in the

complaint of Mazilla Tighe now on file in said

action No. 278,962, as aforesaid. That the reason

these answering defendants did not so notify plain-

tiff' was that though the automobile of defendant

Ah Chong insured by plaintiff as set forth in Para-
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graph V of its complaint herein, was parked for un-

loading in front of the aforesaid Piccadilly Inn

early in the forenoon of the 26th day of November,

1937, neither these answering defendants, nor either

of them, or their servants, employee or agents, were

involved in any accident to the said Mazilla Tighe

in front of said Piccadilly Inn on the said 26th day

of November, 1937, or involved in any accident to

the said Mazilla Tighe [23] at any other time or

place, or at all, and therefore these answering de-

fendants under the terms of said policy of auto-

mobile liability insurance had nothing to report to

plaintiff prior to the time these answering defend-

ants were served with summons and copy of com-

plaint in said action No. 278,962, begun by said Ma-

zilla Tighe in the Superior Court of the State of

California, in and for the City and County of San

Francisco on or about the 25th day of January,

1938; that the said summons and complaint in said

action No. 278,962 were forwarded to the plaintiff

by defendant Ah Chong immediately after service

and were received by plaintiff on the 31st day of

January, 1938; that i)rior to service of said sum-

mons no claims were made upon these answering

defendants by or on behalf of the said Mazilla

Tighe.

VIII.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph VIII of

plaintiff's complaint, defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung admit that they contend that since

the automobile referred to in said complaint in said
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action brought by said Mazilla Tighe is the same

automobile described in said insurance policy, plain-

tiff herein has an obligation under said policy to

defend these answering defendants in said action;

these answering defendants further admit that

should it be adjudged in said action that they have

any liability to pay any sums to said Mazilla Tighe

by reason of the alleged accident set forth in said

complaint in said action, then plaintilf has the obli-

gation under said policy to pay said smns to said

Mazilla Tighe up to the aggregate amount of $5000;

that said contention of these answering defendants

is based upon the terms of said automobile liability

insurance policy, and particularly upon those pro-

visions reading as [24] follows: (1) ''Use of the

automobile for the purposes stated includes the load-

ing and imloading thereof" (page 1 of the policy)

;

(2) Paragraph I, page 2, of the policy, covering

liability "arising out of the ownership, maintenance

or use of the automobile"; (3) Sub-division (a),

Paragraph II of the policy (in part), wherein

plaintiff agrees to ''defend in his name and behalf

any suit against the insured alleging such injury

or destruction and seeking damages on account

thereof, even if such suit is groundless, false or

fraudulent," and (4) Paragraph IV of the policy,

and especially so much thereof as defines the un-

qualified word "insured" as including "not only

the named insured but also any person while using

the automobile and any person or organization

legally responsible for the use thereof, provided that
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the declared and actual use of the automobile is

'pleasure and business' or 'commercial,' each as de-

fined herein, and provided further that the actual

use is with the permission of the named assured";

in this behalf these answering defendants allege

that said automobile was used for commercial pur-

poses at all time during the 26th day of November,

1937, and during all times on said day its actual use

by the defendant Leong Cheung was with the per-

mission of the named insured, defendant Ah Chong

;

that, notwithstanding its allegations to the contrary,

plaintiff has both obligation and liability under said

policy to these answering defendants and to each of

them; that said action in the San Francisco Su-

perior Court did in fact arise out of the operation,

maintenance and use of the said insured automobile,

and that these answering defendants cannot right-

fully be charged with violation of the terms of said

policy in failing to report said accident for more

than 60 days after its occurrence inasmuch as

neither of them, nor their servants, employees or

[25] agents were involved therein; deny that plain-

tiff was prejudiced by said delay, whatever its

cause.

IX.

Answering Paragraph IX of the complaint de-

fendants admit that defendant Ah Chong has re-

quested plaintiff herein to defend in the names and

on behalf of defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung said action brought by said Mazilla Tighe;

that plaintiff herein has consented to so defend said
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action; deny that such consent is subject to any

reservation of rights whatsoever as to the defend-

ant Leong Cheung, and as to the defendant Ah
Chong is subject only to such purported reservation

of rights as has been effected by a certain letter

from plaintiff to defendant Ah Chong dated March

7, 1938, a copy of which is attached hereto marked

*' Exhibit 1," and made a part hereof.

X.

Answering the allegations contained in Para-

graph X of the complaint herein, defendants Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung deny that the continued

defense of the Superior Court action by plaintiff

will result in any loss or damage to plaintiff; deny

that plaintiff is entitled to a declaratory judgment,

or any judgment herein, because of the matters set

forth in said Paragraph X of plaintiff's said

complaint.

XI.

Answering the allegations contained in Para-

graph XI of the complaint, defendants Ah Chong

and Leong Cheung allege that plaintiff herein is not

entitled to the benefit or protection of any decree

of this court, or of any court, relieving plaintiff

from liability under the terms, conditions, limita-

tions and restrictions of said policy of automobile

liability insurance. [26]

XII.

Answering the allegations contained in Para-

graph XII of the complaint, defendants Ah Chong
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and Leong Cheung admit that if judgment is

entered against them in the Superior Court action

wherein Mazilla Tighe is plaintiff, these answering

defendants will undertake to impose upon plaintiff

herein liability for the payment of said judgment

within the limit of the coverage of said policy of

automobile liability insurance; deny that plaintiff

is entitled to a preliminary injunction, or to any

injunction, restraining these answering defendants

from taking any proceedings for the purpose of im-

posing liability upon plaintiff herein based upon

any judgment that may be rendered for said Mazilla

Tighe in said Superior Court action; these answer-

ing defendants further allege that plaintiff has al-

ready accepted and undertaken the defense of said

action on behalf of defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung and has brought it to issue, and that plain-

tiff is bound by its conduct and the terms of said

policy of automobile liability insurance to continue

said defense to a final termination, and within the

limits and condition of the said policy to pay any

judgment that may be rendered for Mazilla Tighe

against these answering defendants, if any, or to

settle said claim of Mazilla Tighe against these an-

swering defendants.

Wherefore, defendants All Chong and Leong

Cheung pray that this court deny the prayer of

plaintiff herein for a declaratory judgment, that

this suit be dismissed, and that the defendants Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung have judgment for their
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costs incurred herein and for such other relief as

may be meet and proper in the premises.

CHARLES B. MORRIS
Attorney for Defendants Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung.

[27]

DEFENDANTS' EXHIBIT No. 1

Maryland Casualty Company

Silliman Evans, Chairman of the Board

Edward J. Bond, Jr., President

San Francisco Claim Division

210 Sansome Street, San Francisco, Calif.

Geo. W. Ecrement, Jr., Mgr.

Donald Seibert, Attorney

58848-0-38-Auto

Ah Chong

BI-Mazilla Tighe

March 7, 1938

Mr. Ah Chong

128 Oregon Street

San Francisco, California

Dear Sir:

We have heretofore received from you a copy of

Summons and Complaint, served upon you in an

action commenced against you and your employee,

Leong Chong, by Mazilla Tighe, in the Superior

Court of the State of California, in and for the City

and County of San Francisco, to recover damages

in the sum of $10,390.00, and costs, for personal in-
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juries alleged to have been sustained by the said

Mazilla Tighe, as a result of an accident which oc-

curred on or about November 26, 1937. We have

accepted the defense of this action under a complete

reservation of our rights, because of late notice to

us of the accident, and for the other reasons herein

stated.

It appears that the accident in question occurred on

or about November 26, 1937, but we were not noti-

fied of same until at least January 31, 1938, and as

a result we have been prejudiced in any handling

of this matter.

As you are familiar, our policy, #15-537989 covers

automobile accidents, and it appears that the acci-

dent in question is not such an accident as contem-

plated by the policy, as it does not appear that the

injuries claimed by the claimant were sustained as a

result of the operation of your automobile.

It is also to be noted that whereas damages sought

by the plaintiff are in the sum of $10,390.00, plus

costs, our liability under the terms of the policy

above-mentioned is limited to the sum of $5,000.00.

In the event that it appears that this company is

liable under the terms of the policy, such liability,

of course, is limited to the sum of $5,000.00, and

any part of a judgment which might be rendered in

the pending suit in excess of that sum will, there-

fore, have to be paid by you. [28]

We are apx3earing in this case on your behalf

through our attorney, Donald Seibert, of 210 San-

some Street, San Francisco, who will represent you
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at the trial and defend, the action without expense

to yourself; but we are writing you at this time to

advise you that, in view of your excess interest

above-mentioned, you may, if you so desire, asso-

ciate your own attorney with ours in the defense of

the suit, it being understood, of course, that this

will be done at your own expense.

We kindly request you to acknowledge receipt of

this letter on the enclosed carbon copy thereof,

which we ask you to return to this of&ce as soon as

possible.

Very truly yours,

GEO. W. ECREMENT, JR.,

Mgr.

per (signed) EARL C. BERGER
Adjuster

ECB :MM

Receipt of copy of the within Answer of defend-

ants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung with Exhibit 1

is hereby admitted this 14th day of July, 1938.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 15, 1938. [29]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER BY DEFENDANT MAZILLA TIGHE
TO COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
RELIEF.

Comes now the above named defendant Mazilla

Tighe, and answers the plaintiff's complaint for

declaratory relief on tile herein, as follows:

I.

Defendant Mazilla Tighe answering Paragraph I

of the complaint herein, states that she has no in-

formation or belief sufficient to enable her to an-

swer any or either of the allegations contained in

said paragraph, and basing her denial on that

ground, denies each and several the allegations con-

tained in said paragraph.

II.

Answering Paragraph II of plaintiff's complaint

on file herein, this defendant admits she is a citizen

of the State of California and resides in the County

of Alameda in said state, as set forth in said para-

graph; denies each and every allegation and state-

ment therein contained and not herein specifically

admitted to be true.

III.

That defendant herein admits all of the allega-

tions contained in Paragraph III and IV of plain-

tiff's complaint on file herein.
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TV.

That defendant herein, answering Paragraph V
of plaintiff's complaint on file herein, admits all the

allegations contained in said paragraph.

V.

That defendant herein, answering Paragraph VI
of plaintiff's complaint on file herein, admits all the

allegations contained in said paragraph. [30]

VI.

That defendant, answering the allegations set

forth in Paragraph VII of plaintiff's complaint

herein, states that she has no information or belief

sufficient to enable her to answer any or either of

the allegations contained in said paragraph, and

basing her denial on this ground, denies each and

several the allegations contained in said Para-

graph VII.

VII.

That defendant herein, answering Paragraph

VIII of plaintiff's complaint on file herein, spe-

cifically denies that an actual controversy exists as

between plaintiff and defendant herein based upon

the allegations therein set forth in said paragraph

contained, and beginning on line 29, page 4, to and

including, and ending with the words ''or unloading

thereof" on line 18, page 5 of plaintiff's complaint.

Defendant herein answering the remaining allega-

tions of said paragraph, states that she has no in-

formation or belief sufficient to enable her to
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answer the said allegations contained, and basing

her denial on that ground, denies each and several

the allegations contained in said paragraph.

yiii.

Answering Paragraph IX of plaintiff's complaint

on file herein, defendant admits that the action by

defendant herein against Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung is now at issue as set forth in said para-

graph, and further answering said paragraph, de-

fendant herein having no information or belief

upon the allegations set forth in Paragraph IX of

plaintiff's complaint on file herein sufficient to en-

able her to answer, bases her denial on that ground

and denies each and every allegations set forth in

said paragraph not herein specifically admitted to

be true. [31]

IX.

That defendant denies each and every allegation

set forth in Paragraph X of plaintiff's complaint

on file herein.

X.

Answ^ering Paragraph XI of plaintiff's complaint

on file herein, defendant herein admits that the

action now pending in the State Court will go to

trial in the Superior Court of the State of Cali-

fornia, in and for the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, and further answering said paragraph, spe-

cifically denies that the refusal of this Court to

order a preliminary injunction restraining all the

parties in the action now pending in the State Court
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as hereinbefore mentioned will render any judg-

ment or decree b}^ this Court for declaratory relief

ineffectual, and further answering Paragraph XI
of plaintiff's complaint on file herein, defendant

specifically denies that plaintiff herein will suffer

irreparable loss and damage, or any loss or any

damage whatever.

XI.

Answering Paragraph XII of plaintiff's com-

plaint on file herein, defendant admits that she will

proceed with the trial of the action now pending in

the Superior Court of California, in and for the

City and County of San Francisco, and further an-

swering said paragraph, denies each and every alle-

gation and statement therein contained not herein

specifically admitted to be true.

And As a Further, Separate and Distinct An-

swer and Defense, defendant herein alleges as

follows

:

I.

That on the 25th day of January, 1938, Mazilla

Tighe, [32] defendant herein, commenced an action

for damages against Ah Chong, Leong Cheung,

Black and White Company, a corporation, defend-

ants, and numbered therein No. 278962.

II.

That said action was and now is pending in a

court of the State of California and is ready for
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trial. That the said action is predicated upon cer-

tain personal injuries received by defendant herein

through the negligence and carelessness of Leong

Cheung and Ah Chong, and that said cause of action

in favor of defendant herein arose in the City and

County of San Francisco.

Therefore, at all times herein mentioned the Su-

perior Court of the State of California, in and for

the City and Comity of San Francisco has juris-

diction over the subject matter of the action now

pending in said state court, and that the United

States District Court, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, never had or

acquired jurisdiction over the subject matter of said

action in the State Court. That the said United

States Court having no jurisdiction, or having

never acquired jurisdiction over the subject matter

hereof, has no jurisdiction to issue any restraining

order or preliminary injunction enjoining the pro-

ceedings of said action as hereinbefore mentioned

now pending in the State Court.

Wherefore, defendant herein prays that plaintiff

take nothing by its said complaint and that the

temporary injunction issued herein be recalled ; that

the defendant be hence dismissed and have judg-

ment for her costs herein incurred.

YOUNG & RYAN
Attorneys for Defendant

Mazilla Tighe [33]
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State of California

County of Alameda—ss.

Rupert R. Ryan, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says:

I am one of the attorneys for plaintiif in this

action. I have read the foregoing complaint, and

know the contents thereof, and the same is true of

my owTi knowledge, except as to matters stated

therein on information and belief, and as to those

matters, I believe it to be true. The reason why this

verification is not made by Mazilla Tighe is that

she is out of the county where I reside.

RUPERT R. RYAN
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of July, 1938.

[Notarial Seal] JOSEPH J. Y. YOUNG
Notary Public in and for the County of Alameda,

State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 23, 1938. [34]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRE-TRIAL ORDER

A pre-trial conference having been held this day,

it was agreed by counsel that the issues were as

follows

:

1. Whether the alleged injury was one wdthin

the terms of the policy. This to be determined upon

the face of the policy and the allegations of the

pleadings.
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2. Whether or not the plaintiff was released

from liability by reason of failure of the insured to

give notice of the accident in accordance with the

terms of the policy.

3. Whether or not plaintiff has waived its right

to claim that the injury was not within the terms

of the policy or to claim a release by failure of in-

sured to give notice in accordance with the terms of

the policy. In this connection it was stipulated that

the letter attached to defendant's answer might be

read in evidence without further proof.

4. An issue was raised by one of the answers as

to the incorporation of the plaintiff and the au-

thority of the corporation to do business in Cali-

fornia, as alleged in the complaint, but this issue

was withdrawn by the defendant Tighe.

5. Defendant Tighe gave notice that on the trial

she would raise the question as to the jurisdiction

of the court, to stay proceedings in the state court.

Done in Open Court this 20th day of March, 1939.

A. F. ST. SURE
Judge.

The foregoing Order is hereby approved.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
Attorneys for Plaintiff'

CHARLES B. MORRIS
Attorney for Defendants

Ah Cliong and Leong Cheung

YOUNG & RYAN
Attorneys for Defendant

Mazilla Tighe.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 25, 1939. [35]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

OPINION

St. Sure, District Judge.

Plaintiff, alleging diversity of citizenship, invokes

the Federal declaratory judgment act (28 USCA
400) to have its rights determined under an auto-

mobile policy of insurance issued to defendant

Ah Chong.

Defendant Mazilla Tighe brought an action in the

state court against defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung for damages for personal injuries resulting

from a collision with her while she was walking

along a sidewalk in Sutter Street, San Francisco.

Plaintiff had issued a policy of insurance to defend-

ant Ah Chong, a fruit and vegetable peddler, insur-

ing against bodily injury liability and property

damage "arising out of the ownership, maintenance

or use of the automobile," "including the loading

and imloading thereof." (Quoted language from

policy). While the action was pending in the state

court, plaintiff brought this suit seeking a declara-

tory judgment and a preliminary injunction staying

the prosecution of the action in the state court.

Plaintiff asks this court to declare the rights and

legal relations of the parties, and that it decree that

plaintiff is under no obligation to defend the action

in the state court and not liable under said policy

for Mazilla Tighe 's injuries. On June 30, 1938, Dis-

trict Judge Walter C. Lindley, presiding, overruled

a demurrer to the complaint and allowed a tempo-

rary injunction. 24 F. Supp. 49.
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Thereafter trial was had upon the merits, and the

questions for decision are (1) whether the District

Court has jurisdiction under the declaratory relief

act to entertain a suit against defendant Mazilla

Tighe; (2) whether the District Court had jurisdic-

tion to grant the preliminary injunction staying

trial of the case in the state court; (3) whether

plaintiff waived its right to make a defense herein,

and (4) whether the state action and injury in ques-

tion are covered by the policy. [37]

The first three questions may be readily answered

in the affirmative. The right of the court to enter-

tain the action is settled by Associated Indemnity

Corp. V. Manning, 9 Cir., 92 F.(2) 168; Aetna Life

Ins. Co. V. Haworth, 300 U. S. 227 ; Aetna Casualty

& Surety Co. v. Yeatts, 4 Cir., 99 F.(2) 665; Mary-

land Casualty Co. v. Hubbard, 22 P. Supp. 697. Sec-

tion 265 of the Judicial Code (28 USCA Sec. 379)

places no limitation upon the jurisdiction of the

Federal court, and if the complaint discloses a case

for the exercise of equitable and injunctive powers

an injunction may issue as it did in the present

case. Smith v. Apple, 264 U. S. 274; Sovereign

Camp Woodmen of the World v. O'Neill, 266 U. S.

292, 298 ; Alliance Insurance Co. of Phila. v. Jamer-

son, 12 P. Supp. 957 ; Jamerson v. Alliance Ins. Co.

of Phila., 87 P. (2) 253. Because of the view here-

inafter expressed upon the coverage question that

of waiver becomes immaterial.

The provisions of the policy apj^licable to cover-

age are as follows:
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''The purposes for which the automobile is to

be used are commercial.

''(a) The term 'pleasure and business' is

defined as personal, pleasure, family and busi-

ness use. (b) The term 'commercial' is defined

as the transportation or delivery of goods, mer-

chandise or other materials, and uses incidental

thereto, in direct connection with the named in-

sured's business occupation as expressed in

Item 1. (c) Use of the automobile for the pur-

poses stated includes the loading and unloading

thereof. * * *

"Coverage A—Bodily injury liability. To

pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the

insured shall become obligated to pay by rea-

son of the liability imposed upon him by law

for damages, including damages for care and

loss of services, because of bodily injury, in-

cluding death at any time resulting therefrom,

sustained by any person or persons, caused by

accident and arising out of the ownership,

maintenance or use of the automobile." [38]

The remaining question then is whether the de-

fendants were in the act of UNLOADING the truck

when the accident happened. There is no dispute

that the defendants were using the automobile com-

mercially for the transportation and delivery of

vegetables in direct connection with the insured's

business occupation as expressed in the policy.

In the action in the state court the pleadings ad-

mitted that the truck was parked alongside the curb
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about ten feet from the Piccadilly Inn. The as-

sistant on the truck (one of the defendants) carried

from the truck and into the Inn some vegetables and

was returning to the truck when he ran across the

sidewalk looking backwards, and collided with Ma-

zilla Tighe (plaintiff in said action). The evidence

here shows that instead of the truck's being parked

at the curb ten feet from Piccadilly Inn, it was

parked at the curb on the opposite side of the street,

and that the assistant making the delivery intended

to return to the truck for further produce to be de-

livered to the Inn.

Plaintiff cites a number of cases whose similarity

to the instant case is that in each an automobile was

used by the insured for delivery purposes, but the

crucial point of liability depending upon the '' un-

loading" of the vehicle was determined in the light

of the facts in each case. And that must be the test

here.

Plaintiff contends '^(1) that unloading is com-

plete when the goods are physically removed from

the truck, and that the process of delivery is en-

tirely dift'erent from unloading; (2) that if, under

any circumstances, delivery is part of unloading, the

unloading is complete when the delivery is actually

made; (3) so far as some future or additional un-

loading is concerned, it certainly would not start

until some physical act was performed on or about

the truck for the purpose of effecting such unload-

ing, [39] and the mere intent in the mind of the

boy in returning from the Piccadilly Inn, crossing
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the sidewalk and crossing the street, to unload some

further goods constituted no act of unloading within

the meaning of the policy."

Such a construction of the policy as that con-

tended for is entirely too narrow. Insured w^as using

his truck in making delivery of produce to a cus-

tomer. When the accident happened, the process of

unloading was in operation. It was a continuing

process, including delivery, and could not be com-

plete until all of the produce w^as delivered to the

Inn. The accident happened while the unloading

was being consummated. The facts show that the

state action and the alleged injury are covered by

the policy. Such a construction is consistent with

both reason and justice, and is supported by Carl

Ingalls Inc. v. Hartford Fire Ins. Co., 137 Cal. App.

741; Mutual Ins. Co. v. Hurni Co., 263 U. S. 167,

174.

Upon the issues presented I therefore find

(1) that the United States District Court has juris-

diction under the Federal declaratory relief act to

entertain this suit; (2) that this Court had juris-

diction to stay the trial of the action in the state

court, and the preliminary injunction for that pur-

pose was, under the circumstances, properly allowed

by this Court; (3) that plaintiff did not waive its

right to make a defense in this suit; and (4) that

the state action and injury in question is covered by

the policy.

Dated: September 11, 1939.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 11, 1939. [40]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW

From the pleadings, evidence and stipulations of

the parties hereto, the court tinds the following to be

the facts:

1. That plaintiff, Maryland Casualty Company,

is now and was at all times mentioned in the com-

plaint a corporation organized and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of Maryland,

duly authorized and licensed to do business in the

State of California, and having its principal place

of business within the State of California in the

City and County of San Francisco.

2. That at the time of the filing of the complaint

herein, the defendant Mazilla Tighe was a citizen

of the State of California, and resided in the

County of Alameda in said state; that at the time

of the filing of the complaint herein, the defendant

Ah Chong was a citizen and subject of the Republic

of China, and resided in the City and County of

San Francisco, in the State of California; that at

the time of the filing of the complaint herein, the

defendant Leong Cheung w^as a citizen of the State

of California, and resided in the City and County of

San Francisco in said state.

3. That the amount in conti'oversy, exclusive of

interest and costs, exceeds the sum of three thou-

sand dollars ($3000.00).

4. That this suit is brought under and jjursuant

to the Federal Declaratory Judgment Act (Judicial
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Code, Section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A. Section 400). [41]

5. That on or about the 3rd day of April, 1937,

plaintiff issued a policy of automobile insurance to

defendant Ah Chong; That the policy period was

from April 3, 1937, to April 3, 1938, and said policy

was in effect during all of said period; that in said

policy plaintiff* agreed wdth defendant Ah Chong to

pay on behalf of defendant Ah Chong, subject to the

limits of liability, exclusions, conditions and other

terms of said policy, all sums, not exceeding $5,000

for each person and not exceeding $10,000 for each

accident, which defendant Ah Chong should become

obliged to pay by reason of the liability imposed

upon him by law for damages, including damages

for care and loss of services, because of bodily in-

jury, sustained by any person or persons, caused by

accident and arising out of the ownership, mainte-

nance and use of a certain automobile described in

said policy as a 1929 Model Kleiber 1% Ton Truck,

M#16EC7717; that said policy further provided

that the purposes for which said automobile was to

be used were commercial and that use of said auto-

mobile for said purposes included the loading and

unloading thereof ; that a true copy of said policy is

attached to the complaint herein, is marked Ex-

hibit ''A" and the same is made a part thereof.

6. That on or about the 25th day of January,

1938, defendant Mazilla Tighe commenced an action

for damages against defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung in the Superior Court of the State
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of California, in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, entitled Mazilla Tighe, Plaintiff, vs.

Ah Chong, Leong Cheung, John Doe, Richard Roe,

Black and White Company, a corporation. Defend-

ants, and numbered therein No. 278962 ; that in the

complaint of said Mazilla Tighe, in said action said

Mazilla Tighe alleged that on the 26th day of No-

vember, 1937, said Leong Cheiuig was an [42] em-

ployee of said Ah Chong and, while so employed,

said Leong Cheung made a delivery of vegetable

produce to a restaurant known as Piccadilly Inn

and located in the 300 block of Sutter Street in San

Francisco, from a delivery truck parked at the curb

on said Sutter Street and opposite to, and about ten

feet from, the entrance of said Piccadilly Inn ; that

at said time and place said Mazilla Tiglie was a pe-

destrian on said Sutter Street and was walking in

an easterly direction upon the sidewalk adjacent to

and in front of said Piccadilly Inn; that at said

time and place said Leong Cheung conducted him-

self generally in a careless, reckless and negligent

manner; that at said time and place Leong Cheung

was careless and negligent in the following manner

:

that after making a delivery to the aforesaid Picca-

dilly Inn, he ran from the entrance thereof, and in

so running at said time and place, looked backward

over his shoulder, as he continued running forward,

in a negligent and careless manner; that he ran

toward the aforesaid truck at the curb, and in so

doing collided with said Mazilla Tighe was knocked
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violently to the sidewalk and was caused to sustain

injuries as more particularly in said complaint ap-

pears; that as a result of said collision said Mazilla

Tighe suffered injuries and loss of earning capacity,

and incurred and will incur expense for medical and

nursing attention, in the aggregate amount, to the

date of filing said complaint, of $10,390; in said

complaint said Mazilla Tighe prays for judgment

against said Ah Chong and Leong Cheung, and

each of them, as follows: For general damages in

the sum of $10,000, for special damages incurred to

date of filing said complaint in the sum of $390, for

such further special damages as may be incurred

subsequent to the date of filing said complaint, for

costs of suit, and for such other and further relief

as [43] to the Court may seem meet in the premises

;

that a true copy of said complaint is attached to the

complaint herein, is marked Exhibit ^'B", and the

same is made a part thereof.

7. That the facts as they are set out in the com-

plaint heretofore referred to and designated as Ex-

hibit "B" and as developed on the trial of this case

indicates that the alleged accident and resulting in-

jury, if any, occurred as the defendants were using

this truck in making delivery of produce to a cus-

tomer and while defendant Leong Cheung was re-

turning to the truck to obtain further vegetables

for delivery, and is within the coverage of the afore-

said policy hereinbefore designated as Exhibit "A".

8. That an actual controversy exists as between

plaintiff and defendants herein, as follows: De-
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fendants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung contend that

since the automobile referred to in said complaint

in said action brought by said Mazilla Tighe is the

same automobile described in said insurance policy

plaintiff herein has the obligation under said policy

to defend said Ah Chong and Leong Cheung in

said action; further, defendants Ah Chong, Leong

Cheung and Mazilla Tighe contend that if it should

be adjudged in said action that said Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung have any liability to pay any sums

to said Mazilla Tighe by reason of the alleged acci-

dent set forth in said complaint in said action, then

plaintiff herein has the obligation under said policy

to pay said sums to said Mazilla Tighe up to the

aggregate amount of $5,000; on the other hand,

plaintiff herein denies and controverts said conten-

tions and each of them and on its part contends that

although the automobile referred to in said com-

plaint of said Mazilla Tighe is the same automobile

described in said policy of insurance, plaintiff

herein has no obligations or liability under said

policy so far as said alleged accident is concerned

because [44] said alleged accident did not arise out

of the use of said automobile or the loading or un-

loading thereof; further plaintiff herein contends

that it was released of all obligations and liability

under said policy so far as said accident is con-

cerned by reason of the failure of defendant Ah
Chong to notify plaintiff that any such accident oc-

curred for more than sixty days after it is alleged

in said complaint the same occurred.
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9. That the defendant Ah Chong requested

plaintiff herein to defend in the name of and on be-

half of defendants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung in

the state action No. 278962, brought by Mazilla

Tighe in the Superior Court of the State of Cali-

fornia, in and for the City and County of San Fran-

cisco ; that plaintiff herein assumed charge and con-

trol of the aforesaid action and did defend said

action and did by and through its attorneys on the

17th day of February, 1938, in the office of the

County Clerk of the Superior Court, file an answer

to said complaint of Mazilla Tighe, in action No.

278962, on behalf of defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung; that plaintiff's consent to defend

said action was subject to a reservation of rights as

to defendant Ah Chong only.

10. That a declaratory judgment or decree

herein is proper to determine the rights and other

legal relations of the parties hereto in the manner

set forth at length in Paragraph X of plaintiff's

said complaint.

11. That within six days after the commence-

ment of the said action in the said Superior Court

the complaint in said action was delivered by said

defendants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung to the

plaintiff; that plaintiff, before undertaking the de-

fense of said action did not, until or [45] before

March 7, 1938, notify said defendants that it would

undertake the defense of said action under the

reservation of the rights to claim that its policy did
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not cover the injury alleged and involved in the

complaint in said action in the state court or that

it had been relieved of liability under said policy by

failure of the insured to give prompt notice of said

accident, and then only the defendant Ah Chong

was notified by the aforesaid letter from plaintiff to

Ah Chong dated March 7, 1938, a copy of which is

attached to the answer of defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung herein and marked Exhibit "1".

12. With regard to the accident involved in said

action in the state court, the court fiLnds that on the

26th day of November, 1937, the truck in question

was parked against the curb on the opposite side of

Sutter Street from Piccadilly Inn, and the said de-

fendant Leong Cheung removed certain vegetables

from said truck and carried them across Sutter

Street and across the sidewalk thereof into said

Piccadilly Inn, and there delivered and left the said

vegetables. He then started to return to said truck

for the purpose of obtaining further vegetables to

deliver to the said Piccadilly Inn, and if the said

plaintiff Leong Cheung collided at all with plaintiff

Mazilla Tighe (which said plaintiff Leong Cheung

denies) the collision happened as he emerged from

said Piccadilly Inn for the purpose of obtaining

further vegetables and before the unloading of vege-

tables for Piccadilly Inn from said truck had been

completed.
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
As conclusions of law from the foregoing facts,

the court finds and decides: [46]

1. That the defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung have not waived their rights under said

policy by failure to give notice of said accident in

accordance with the terms of said policy.

2. That this court has jurisdiction under the

Federal Declaratory Judgment Act (Judicial Code,

Section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A. Section 400) to enter-

tain this suit.

3. That this court has jurisdiction to stay the

trial of the action in the state court and the pre-

liminary injunction for that purpose was, mider the

circumstances, properly allowed by this court.

4. That the cause of action alleged and involved

in the complaint, according to the allegations of the

complaint in the state court, and as developed on

the trial of this case, occurred after certain vege-

tables had been delivered by defendant Leong

Cheung from the truck and while he, Leong Cheung,

was returning to the truck for another load to be

delivered; and it appears from the evidence herein

that if the alleged accident was at all caused by the

insured, it occurred while the unloading was being

consummated and before it had been completed and

such an injury would be within the coverage of said

policy.

5. That plaintiff take nothing by its said action

and that defendants recover their costs of suit
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herein and that the preliminary injunction issued

herein be dissolved.

Let judgment be entered accordingly.

Dated: This 24th day of November, 1939.

A. F. ST. SURE
District Judge

Copies mailed to

Treadwell & Laughlin

Charles B. Morris [47]

Received a copy of the within Amended Findings,

etc., this 22nd day of November, 1939.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 24, 1939. [48]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER AMENDING FINDINGS

The motion of the plaintiff to amend the Findings

on file herein came on regularly for hearing this

day, Edward F. Treadwell, Esq., appearing on be-

half of plaintiff, and Charles B. Morris, Esq., ap-

pearing on behalf of the defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung, and Messrs. Young & Ryan appear-

ing for the defendant Mazilla Tighe, and said

matter having been argued by counsel and sub-

mitted to the court, and the court being now fully

advised in the premises.
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It Is Hereby Ordered:

1. Paragraph 9 of said Findings is hereby

amended to read as follows

:

''9. That the defendant Ah Chong requested

plaintiff herein to defend in the name of and

on behalf of defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung in the state action No. 278962, [49]

brought by Mazilla Tighe in the Superior Court

of the State of California, in and for the City

and County of San Francisco; that plaintiff

herein assumed charge and control of the afore-

said action and did defend said action and did

by and through its attorneys, on the 17th day

of February, 1938, in the office of the County

Clerk of the Superior Court, file an answer to

said complaint of Mazilla Tighe, in action No.

278962, on behalf of Defendants Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung."

2. Paragraph 11 of said Findings is hereby

amended to read as follows:

"11. That plaintiff at no time prior to the

commencement of this action for declaratory

relief waived its right to claim that said policy

did not cover the said accident, and the said

plaintiff had not by its conduct or otherwise

waived its right to defend against liability on

the ground that said accident was not covered

by said policy."

Dated: January 8, 1940.

A. F. ST. SURE
District Judge
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Approved as to form.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
EDWARD F. TREADWELL

Attorneys for Plaintiff

CHARLES B. MORRIS
Attorneys for Defendants

Ah Chong and Leong Cheung

YOUNG & RYAN
Attorneys for Defendant

Mazilla Tighe

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 19, 1940. [50]

In the District Court of the United States in and

for the Northern District of California, South-

ern Division.

Equity No. 4279S

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MAZILLA TIGHE, AH CHONG and LEONG
CHEUNG,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT
In the above entitled action the defendants Ah

Chong and Leong Cheung appeared and answered

by their attorney, Charles B, Morris, and the de-
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fendant Mazilla Tighe appeared and answered by

her attorneys, Young & Ryan, and the said cause

having come on regularly for trial before Hon. A. F.

St. Sure, and evidence oral and documentary having

been introduced and said cause argued and sub-

mitted to the court and the court having filed its

findings of fact and conclusions of law and being

now fully advised in the premises.

It Is By the Court Here Considered Ordered, Ad-

judged and Decreed:

1. That the defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung have not waived their rights under said

policy by failure to give notice of said accident in

accordance with the terms of said policy.

2. That this court has jurisdiction under the

Federal Declaratory Judgment Act (Judicial Code,

Section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A. Section 400) to enter-

tain this suit.

3. That this court has jurisdiction to stay the

trial of the action in the state court and the pre-

liminary injunction for that purpose was, under the

circumstances, [51] properly allowed by this court.

4. That the cause of action alleged and involved

in the complaint, according to the allegations of the

complaint in the state court, and as they developed

in the trial of this case, occurred after certain vege-

tables had been removed from the truck and de-

livered, but it appears by the evidence here that, if

the accident was at all caused by the insured, it was

caused while the said Leong Cheung was returning

to the truck to obtain from said truck further vege-
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tables for delivery to the said Piccadilly Inn, and

that such state action and injury would be and is

within the coverage of said policy.

5. That plaintiff take nothing by its said action

and that defendants have and recover from the

plaintiff their costs of suit taxed at the sum of

$ , and that the preliminary injunction

issued herein be and the same hereby is dissolved.

Dated: November 24, 1939.

A. F. ST. SURE
District Judge.

Received a copy of the within Judgment this

22nd day of November, 1939.

TREADWELL & LAUGHLIN
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 24, 1939. [52]

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT

Tuesday, March 28, 1939

(TESTIMONY)

APPEARANCES
For Plaintiff: Edward F. Treadwell, Esq.

For Defendants: Messrs. Young & Ryan, and

Charles B. Morris, Esq. [54]

Tuesday, March 28, 1939

Mr. Treadwell: If your Honor please, this is an

action, as your Honor learned on the pretrial con-
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ference, for declaratory relief ; and, as incidental to

the prayer for declaratory relief, it is also asking

for an injunction against the prosecution of an

action in the state court.

The action involves an automobile policy, your

Honor; and the provisions of the policy which are

material are quite short. The first paragraph (a)

reads

:

''The term 'pleasure and business' is defined

as personal, pleasure, family and business use.

(b) The term 'commercial' is defined as the

transportation or delivery of goods, merchan-

dise or other materials, and uses incidental

thereto, in direct connection with the named

insured's business or occupation as expressed

in Item 1. (c) Use of the automobile for the

purposes stated includes the loading and un-

loading thereof."

The other provision is on page 2, under the head-

ing of, "I Coverage A—Bodily Injury Liability."

It reads:

"To pay on behalf of the insured all sums

which the insured shall become obligated to pay

by reason of the liability imposed upon him by

law for damages, including damages for care

and loss of services, because of bodily injury,

including death at any time resulting there-

from, sustained by any person or persons,

caused by accident and arising out of the

ownership, maintenance or use of the auto-

mobile.
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''Coverage B—Property Damage Liability.

"To pay on behalf of the insured all sums

which the insured shall become obligated to pay

by reason of the liability imposed upon him by

law for damages because of injury to or de-

struction of property, including the loss of use

thereof, caused by accident and arising out of

the ownership, maintenance or use of the [55]

automobile.
'

'

The particular accident, your Honor, which is in-

volved in this case and in the state court, is alleged

in the complaint and admitted by the answer; I

have the answer here; and it is set forth, in para-

graph YI of the complaint here, reciting the allega-

tions of the complaint in the state court:

"That on or about the 25th day of January,

1938, defendant Mazilla Tighe commenced an

action for damages against defendants Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung in the Superior

Court of the State of California, in and for the

City and County of San Francisco, entitled Ma-

zilla Tighe, Plaintiff, vs. Ah Chong, Leong

Cheung, John Doe, Richard Roe, Black and

White Company, a corporation. Defendants,

and numbered therein No. 278962; that in the

complaint of said Mazilla Tighe in said action

said Mazilla Tighe alleged that on the 26th day

of November, 1937, said Leong Cheung was an

employee of said Ah Chong and, while so em-

ployed, said Leong Cheung made a delivery of
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vegetable produce to a restaurant known as

Piccadilly Inn and located in the 300 block in

Sutter Street in San Francisco, from a delivery

truck parked at the curb on said Sutter Street

and opposite to, and about ten feet from, the

entrance to said Piccadilly Inn; that at said

time and place said Mazilla Tighe was a pedes-

trian on said Sutter Street and was walking in

an easterly direction upon the sidewalk ad-

jacent to and in front of said Piccadilly Inn;

that at said time and place said Leong Chemig

conducted himself generally in a careless, reck-

less and negligent manner; that at said time

and place Leong Cheung was careless and negli-

gent in the following manner: that after mak-

ing a delivery to the aforesaid Piccadilly Inn,

he ran from the entrance thereof, and in so

running at said time and place, looked back-

ward over his shoulder as he continued running

forward, in a negligent and careless manner;

that he ran toward the aforesaid truck at the

curb, and in so doing collided with said Mazilla

[56] Tighe as she walked along the aforesaid

sidewalk, with such force and effect that said

Mazilla Tighe was knocked violently to the side-

walk and was caused to sustain injuries as more

particularly in said complaint appears——

"

That such accident did not arise out of the use,

operation or ownership of the automobile or truck,

and was not connected with the loading or unloading

thereof.
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Now, your Honor, the facts in the case are prac-

tically, with one exception, stipulated to. The acci-

dent is alleged to have occurred on the 26th day of

November, 1937 ; and the complaint was filed in the

state court by Mazilla Tighe on January 25, 1938.

On January 31, 1938, the Maryland Casualty Com-

pany received notice of the action by the complaint

and summons served on the assured and his em-

ployee, being brought to the offices of the company.

That was the first notice, your Honor, that the

Maryland Casualty Company ever received of the

accident. I have not read the provision of the policy,

your Honor, in regard to notice; but it provides, as

I remember it, for notice as soon as practicable

after the accident.

We will show, your Honor, from that time the

Maryland Casualty Company consulted its main

office, and was directed to defend the action, but to

reserve all rights, claiming that it was released by

lack of notice, and that it was not within the cover-

age of the policy.

On February 17th, an answer was filed, through

the Insurance Company; but, at that time, both of

the parties, the assured and his employee, were in-

formed that it was reserving the right and claiming

that it was not covered by the policy, and that it

had been released; and this was followed up, your

Honor, on March 7th, by written letter making a

record of the fact that they had been so informed

and informing them that the Surety Company was

[57] proceeding, reserving all rights, and particu-
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larly that the matter was not covered by the policy,

and that it had been released by lack of notice.

That is all the opening statement that we desire

to make. We want to put in very little evidence. If

comisel wishes to make a statement at this time, he

may; or we will put in our evidence.

Mr. Ryan : May it please your Honor, I represent

Mazilla Tighe, the plaintiff in the Superior Court

action ; and I wish at this time to raise only the fol-

lowing points which were already outlined, I be-

lieve, in the pretrial conference: the first one being

that, under the provisions of the Judicial Code,

274d, this Court has no jurisdiction to entertain

declaratory relief.

The second point I wish to raise at this time is

that, under Section 265 of the Judicial Code, the

Court was in error in allowing an injunction to

issue in this case, staying the proceedings in the

state court.

And, lastly, there has been such an appearance in

this case that the plaintiff, Maryland Casualty Com-

pany, if they had any rights previously, they have

waived the same. I believe Mr. Morris, who repre-

sents Ah Chong, will argue that point.

Lastly, that, under the terms of the policy itself,

if it goes to the merits, the Chinaman, I believe, was

adequately covered within the provisions of the

automobile policy that they have already set out.

Now, with reference to the first point, I wish to

make a few short statements relative to the juris-

dictional point and the injunction point
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The Court : I understand the evidence will be very

brief, Mr. Ryan?

Mr. Ryan : Yes, the evidence will be very brief.

The Court : Might it not be better to proceed wdth

the introduction of the evidence ; and, after the evi-

dence is all in, I will [58] listen to your argument?

Mr. Ryan: That will be perfectly satisfactory.

Mr. Morris: Will that go for my argiunent, also?

The Court: Yes.

EARL C. BERGER,

called for the plaintiff; sworn.

Direct Examination

Mr. Treadwell: Q. What is your business, Mr.

Berger? A. I am an attorney.

Q. Do you live in San Francisco? A. Yes.

Q. Were you ever connected with the Maryland

Casualty Company?

A. I was; but I am no longer.

Q. In what capacity were you connected with the

Company? A. As an attorney and an adjuster.

Q. Do you remember the occasion when the

complaints were brought to the Company in this

case of Mazilla Tighe against two Chinamen,—Ah
Chong and Leong Cheung?

A. Yes, I remember the complaint coming in

and its being assigned to me, the day it came in.

The Court: You are referring now to the Su-

perior Court action?
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(Testimony of Earl C. Berger.)

Mr. Treadwell: Yes.

The Court: AYhat is the number of it?

Mr. Treadwell: The number of that action is

278962.

Q. Had the Company received any notice of the

accident before these complaints were brought in?

Mr. Morris: I object to that, if your Honor

please, as to w^hat the Company had received, as it

is what he knows.

The Court: Objection sustained, as the witness

testified that the complaints and summons were

brought to him. [59]

Mr. Treadwell: Q. Can you tell when it was

the complaint and summons were brought to your

office, Mr. Berger? A. The date?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, I would have to refresh my memory.

Q. I show you a file.

A. I recognize this as being the file.

Q. Now, refreshing your memory from that, will

you state when those complaints were brought in?

A. According to the notation, I received the

summons and complaint—by that, I mean it came

to our office, on January 31, 1938.

Q. And, so far as your own knowledge is con-

cerned, at the time you received it, had you heard

anything about the accident before the summons

and complaint were brought to your office?

A. No. This was the first notice the office of the
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Company received of any accident or anything per-

taining to the matter at all,—the very first notice.

Q. Now, upon receiving that, did you communi-

cate with the home office of the Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you receive from the home office this

letter, which I show you, dated February 12, 1938?

Mr. Morris: I object to that, your Honor, as self-

serving.

Mr. Treadwell : I am not offering it yet. I am just

asking if he received it.

The Court: Overruled.

The Witness: A. Yes, I recognize it as a reply

to my communication to the home office.

Mr. Treadwell: Have you seen this?

Mr. Morris: No.

Mr. Treadwell: I offer this letter in evidence,

your Honor, as a part of the examination of the

witness.

Mr. Morris: If your Honor please, the defendant

Ah Chong objects to the introduction of this letter,

on the ground that it is self-serving, not binding

upon him.

The Court : I have not seen the letter. [60]

Mr. Ryan: I join in that objection, on the part

of Ah Chong, that it is not binding; immaterial, ir-

relevant and incompetent.

The Court: Read the letter.



82 Maryland Casualty Co. vs.

(Testimony of Earl C. Berger.)

Mr. Treadwell:

(PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 1)

"Maryland Casualty Company Air Mail to

San Francisco Claim Division. Date: February

12, 1938. From Claim Division. H. O. File No.

58848-0-38-Auto.

Subject Ah Chong Mazilla Tighe.

''We have your report of investigation, copy

of the bill of complaint, which crossed my letter

of February 8 to you.

''This is a rather peculiar case, but we do

note that the plaintiff's attorney has entered

'John Doe, defendant,' which would leave him

the privilege of bringing in either the city or

the owner of the restaurant, by an amended

complaint.

"It is also noted that mention of the as-

sured 's truck is made in this complaint, and,

pending further thought and discussion in the

matter, we are suggesting that you accept this

case under a reservation of rights and enter ap-

pearance.

"We know that in the meantime you will use

every effort in an endeavor to locate other wit-

nesses.

J. P. CALHOUN,
Supervisor."

The Court : You are offering it for what purpose ?

Mr. Treadwell: We are offering it for the pur-
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pose of showing the authority of this witness to do

what he did, namely, to communicate this fact to

the defendants.

The Court: Objection overruled.

(The letter was marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 1.")

Mr. Treadwell: Q. Now, upon receiving that

air mail letter of February 12th, did you have any

talk with Ah Chong and Leong Cheung, before or

at the time that the answer was prepared?

A. Yes, I spoke to both of them. I was the one

who raised the question of coverage; that is, I

initiated the question and consulted with my home

office, because it struck me the automobile policy did

not [61] cover the situation, and it was the subject

matter of the complaint in the Superior Court. I

explained to Mr. Ah Chong and to his employee,

Mr. Leong Cheimg, that, in my opinion, there was

no coverage for this type of complaint. I must admit

that I had some difficulty in explaining the matter

to them ; and I told them that the very best I could

do would be to recommend to the Company that we

handle the defense, reserving all rights, as a matter

of courtesy to them. I took his statement as to the

facts concerning the accident; and, in fact, I took

the statements of both men, and made it very clear

to them that, in what I was doing, we were not as-

suming

Mr. Ryan: I wish to object to this line of testi-

mony as being incompetent, and irrelevant, and not
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binding on Mazilla Tighe, and being strictly self-

serving. Ah Chong is not a party to this action, so

far as Mazilla Tighe is concerned; she cannot be

bound by the testimony.

The Court: I think that objection is good.

Mr. Treadwell: We do not think that, under the

authorities, you have to do more than notify the

assured.

The Court: How do you mean?

Mr. Treadwell: We are defending him; and, in

defending him, we have the right, under the au-

thorities, to notify him that our defense is with a

full reservation of rights ; and, if we did that, then

we have not waived anything. They are pleading

here that, by defending, we waived our rights.

The Court : The objection is overruled.

Mr. Treadw^ell: Q. You may proceed.

A. I explained to the two men that our under-

taking to interpose an answer was without preju-

dice on our part; that, in the event any judgment

was rendered against them, the Company would not

pay it ; the only thing we would do w^ould be to give

them as good a defense as we would if there were

coverage, and that we would not charge any attor-

ney's [62] fees; but, beyond that, we could not go.

I asked Mr. Ah Chong if he had any son or rela-

tive who might understand English better; he said

he would have his broker get in touch with me ; Mr.

Wright, his broker, did get in touch with me, and I

explained the matter to him. Then, after that, I fol-
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lowed it up with a letter explaining our position in

the matter.

Mr. Treadwell : It is stipulated, your Honor, that

that letter which is attached to the answer might be

read without further proof; and I now offer it in

evidence, being Defendants' Exhibit 1, attached to

the answer of Ah Chong and Leong Cheung.

"Maryland Casualty Company; Silliman

Evans, Chairman of the Board; Edward .1.

Bond, Jr., President. San Francisco Claim Di-

vision, 210 Sansome Street, San Francisco,

Calif. Geo. W. Ecrement, Jr., Mgr. Donald Sei-

bert. Attorney. 58848-0-38-Auto Ah Chong.

BI-Mazilla Tighe March 7, 1938

''Mr. Ah Chong

"128 Oregon Street

"San Francisco, California

"Dear Sir:

"We have heretofore received from you a

copy of Summons and Complaint, served upon

you in an action commenced against you and

your employee, Leong Chong, by Mazilla Tighe,

in the Superior Court of the State of Califor-

nia, in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, to recover damages in the sum of

$10,390.00, and costs, for personal injuries al-

leged to have been sustained by the said Mazilla

Tighe, as a result of an accident which occurred

on or about November 26, 1937. We have ac-
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cepted the defense of this action under a com-

plete reservation of our rights, because of late

notice to us of the accident, and for the other

reasons herein stated.

*'It appears that the accident in question oc-

curred on or about November 26, 1937, but we

were not notified of same until at [63] least

January 31, 1938, and as a result we have been

prejudiced in any handling of this matter.

''As you are familiar, our policy, #15-537989

covers automobile accidents, and it appears that

the accident in question is not such an accident

as contemplated by the policy, as it does not ap-

pear that the injuries claimed by the claimant

w^ere sustained as a result of the operation of

your automobile.

''It is also to be noted that whereas damages

sought by the plaintiff are in the sum of $10,-

390.00, plus costs, our liability under the terms

of the policy above-mentioned is limited to the

sum of $5,000.00. In the event that it appears

that this company is liable imder the terms of

the policy, such liability, of course, is limited

to the sum of $5,000.00, and any part of a judg-

ment which might be rendered in the pending

suit in excess of that sum will, therefore, have

to be paid by you.

"We are appearing in this case on your be-

half through our attorney, Donald Seibert, of

210 Sansome Street, San Francisco, who will
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represent you at the trial and defend the action

without expense to yourself ; but we are writing

you at this time to advise you that, in view of

your excess interest above-mentioned, you may,

if you so desire, associate your ow^n attorney

with ours in the defense of the suit, it being

understood, of course, that this will be done at

your own expense.

''We kindly request you to acknowledge re-

ceipt of this letter on the enclosed carbon copy

thereof, which w^e ask you to return to this office

as soon as possible.

"Very truly yours,

"GEO. W. ECREMENT, JR.,

Mgr.,

"per (signed) EARL C. BERGER,
Adjuster."

Q. Mr. Seibert: Was he your superior there?

A. Yes; he was attorney of record. There were

several attorneys under him. I sent that letter.

Q. You sent that letter?

A. Yes; I had charge of the thing. Mr. [64]

Seibert did not see many matters.

Mr. Treadwell: That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. Ryan: Q. Mr. Berger, I show you this

letter dated March 4, 1938, addressed to Young &
Ryan, 1106 Broadway, Oakland, in which you re-

quested the deposition of Mrs. Tighe. Is that right ?
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A. Certainly.

Q. You wrote this letter?

A. After having spoken to you over the phone,

Mr. Ryan.

Q. You took the deposition of Mazilla Tighe,

did you not"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did so as a representative of Mr. Sei-

bert and the Maryland Casualty Company, when

you did that?

A. No; I took it as a representative of the two

defendants.

Mr. Treadwell: Do you want to read that letter

in evidence?

Mr. Ryan: This is a letter on the printed form

of Donald Seibert, attorney, 5th floor, 206 Sansome

Street, San Francisco, Cal. March fourth, 1938:

DEFENDANTS' EXHIBIT A
^'Young & Ryan, Esqs.,

'^1106 Broadway,

'^Oakland, Calif.

Re. Tighe vs. Chong
^

' Gentlemen

:

*'This will confirm our phone conversation of

today relative to the taking of the deposition

of the defendant Chong in the offices of Freed

& Freed in the Mills Building, at 2 :30 p. m. on

Tuesday, March 8th 1938.

''In the meanwhile I would thank you to ad-

vise whether we cannot take the plaintiff's
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deposition at the same time and place inas-

much as it was our intention to move for same.

''With appreciation for your kind advices,

I am
''Yours very truly,

"DONALD SEIBERT,
"per EARL C. BERGER." [6,5]

I would like to have that introduced in evidence.

(Letter marked "Defendants' Exhibit A.")

Mr. Ryan: Q. Pursuant to that, you did take

the deposition?

A. Yes, I took the deposition; and, as I stated,

Mr. Ryan, as representing the defendants, not the

Company or Mr. Seibert.

Q. You at no time apprised me of that fact, did

you?

A. I believe I did, when I requested you for a

stipulation extending the time to either answer the

complaint or demur or make a motion with relation

to the complaint. I believe I did acquaint you with

that fact.

Q. Did you put in the answer to the coniplaint

in the state court?

A. Did I put the answer in?

Q. Yes. You drew the answer and tiled it, didn't

you? A. Yes.

Q. You also paid the filing fee of two dollars in

the state court?

A. Well, I filed it. I could not tell you the date.
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Whatever date appears in the answer is probably

the proper date.

Mr. Treadwell: It will be stipulated that was

filed February 17, 1939.

Mr. Ryan: I think that is correct: February

17th. That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. Morris : Q. You received the summons and

complaint in the state court action brought by

Mazilla Tighe against Ah Chong and Leong Cheung

—you put the date around January 31st ?

A. January 31st.

Q. After you had received those papers, did you

have any conversation with Leong Cheung or Ah
Chong? A. With both.

Q. How soon afterwards?

A. I cannot tell you exactly; but it might have

been a day or two.

Q. Did you tell them, at that time, that you were

handling the matter under reservation of rights?

A. Yes, I did. I did [66] not use those very

words, because I did not think they would under-

stand those words; but I used simpler words, ex-

plained to them that an automobile policy would

not cover this type of complaint any more than a

fire insurance policy would cover it.

Q. Where was that conversation.

A. At 210 Sansome Street, my office.

Q. Was anybody with them, or were they alone ?
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A. The two men came in together. It was a

room with five desks in it, and I was in there and

other men were in there; bnt I do not believe they

heard the conversation ; they were attending to their

own business.

Q. Did they come in alone?

A. The two of them did, yes; and then I had

Mr. Leong Cheung in the office twice after that.

Q. Leong Cheung? A. Yes.

Q. That is the younger man that was the driver,

is it not, when you speak of "Leong Cheung"?

A. Well, after speaking to Mr. Ah Chong,—that

is, the employer,—I told them that they had better

get somebody who understod the situation a little

better, and he had Mr. Wright get in touch with

me, and I then explained to Mr. Wright what was

required.

Q. What was the date of the conversation, if

you know, when you had the talk with Mr. Ah
Chong and advised him to get somebody who un-

derstood that?

A. Well, I am certain it was prior to the filing

of the answer; prior to the drawing of the answer.

I could not give you the exact date.

Q. That was some time before February 17th,

the date you filed your answer? A. Yes.

Q. Was it before you had communicated with

your home office ?

A. Yes. I was in touch with them again after

that.
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The Court: Q. Was it before you communi-

cated with 3^our home office?

A. It was before the filing of the answer that I

had communicated with the men. [67]

Mr. Morris: Q. Now, Mr. Berger, why did you

try to tell Ah Chong, the first time you talked to

him, about this policy?

A. In my opinion, after reading the complaint

and after speaking to the men, in getting their

version of what had happened, that that occurrence

or happening was not such as would be covered by

the automobile policy in question; that they would

have to get their own attorney. That is when I

sent Mr. Ah Chong to Mr. Wright and asked him

to have someone get in touch with me in order that

I could discuss the matter more intelligently.

Q. Why did you do that; why did you send for

Mr. Wright?

A. I did not send him directly to Mr. Wright;

it was my idea that Mr. Wright spoke Chinese.

Q. Your impression was that Ah Chong did not

know what you were talking about; is that right?

A. No ; I believe he understood what I explained

to him, but I think he was in a quandary. He said

to me, "Well, I have insurance"; and he thought

it covered any possible situation. I knew that Mr.

Wright was his direct representative, as Mr. Wright

is very friendly with many Chinese people and is

considered a leader in Chinatown, and that perhaps

Mr. Wright's explanation would carry more weight
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than I would, because I was a total stranger to the

man.

Q. Now, you say you told him he ought to get his

own attorney? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he get an attorney?

A. No; he had Mr. Wright communicate with

me; and then I explained it to Mr. Wright; and

Mr. Wright asked me if I could not do something

about the matter; and I said, "Well, I will try to

handle this thing, under reservation of rights, give

him a defense, but not assume the payment of any

judgment."

Q. When was that ; about what time ?

A. Before we put in the answer. [68]

Q. That was a verbal conversation with Mr.

Wright, was it?

A. Yes; but that was subsequent to my conver-

sation with both defendants.

Q. Now, you wrote to your home office; and

when was it that you received your letter from the

home office?

A. The reply from the home office is dated Feb-

ruary 12th, and was received at our office three days

later, the 15th of February.

Q. Now, upon receipt of this letter dated Feb-

ruary 12th from your home office, what did you do,

with respect to this reservation of rights ?

A. I told the defendants to sign the answer; but,

before having them sign the answer, I reiterated

my position and said that the Company was willing

to handle it, under this reservation of rights.
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Q. You wrote a letter, didn't you, on March 7th *?

A. Yes.

Q. Why did you delay writing that letter until

March 7th?

A. I don't know whether it would be called a

''delay"; it w^as simply to go on record as to the

oral understanding, to make the oral understanding

more binding.

Q. Was there any doubt in your mind, when you

dictated this letter of March 7th, that you had not

made your position clear with Ah Chong ?

A. No. There was no doubt in my mind. It was

a matter of complying with regular practice in the

office that I wrote that letter.

Q. Why didn't you write it earlier?

A. I didn't think that it would be needed, be-

cause it was so obvious that that type of case would

not be covered by the automobile policy; that any-

one, no matter how poor his English, would under-

stand that; and I explained that to him, and I ex-

plained it to Mr. Wright, and they were satisfied

with my explanation, so far as I could make out.

Q. Now, Mr. Berger, following your letter of

March 7th, your Company continued to further the

defense, did they not?

A. Yes; [69] they took the deposition.

Q. While you w^ere still continuing the defense,

there had been no substitution of attorneys?

A. Certainly not ; because they never objected to

anything; they understood what our position was

—
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Mr. Morris : I object to what they understood.

The Court: That goes out.

The Witness: I will give you my impression

about the substitution of attorneys

Mr. Morris: Q. There has never been any sub-

stitution of attornej^s up to date, has there ?

A. No.

Q. And Mr. Seibert is still the attorney of rec-

ord for Ah Chong and Leong Cheung, is he not?

A. Today?

Q. Yes. A. I don't know.

The Court : Q. You say that Mr. Siebert is the

attorney of record for the defendants Ah Chong

and Leong Cheung?

Mr. Morris : In the state court.

The Court: Q. In the state court?

A. Yes, in the state court.

Q. Did you ever get an acknowledgment of the

letter of March 7th that you wrote to Ah Chong?

A. An oral acknowledgment, not one in writing.

Q. Whom did you get the oral acknowledgment

from?

A. I got the oral acknowledgment from Mr.

Wright.

Q. Did you ever write a letter to Leong Cheung?

A. I think I wrote to both of them.

Q. I will show you your letter,—the original.

Can you tell, from that letter, whether you wrote

to Ah Chong or Leong Cheung?
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A. This letter addressed, obviously, to Mr. Ah
Chong—If I look through the file, I may find one

addressed to Mr. Leong Cheung; I don't know.

Mr. Treadwell: We do not thid any in the file.

The Witness: Well, I cannot say for certain;

but it was my [70] impression that I had addressed

both men.

Mr. Morris : That is all, Mr. Berger.

Mr. Treadwell : That is all. Now, if your Honor

please, at the pretrial conference, it was agreed that

any question of the incorporation of the plaintiff

or its qualifications to do business here would be

waived on the trial. You do withdraw any defense

of that kind?

Mr. Morris : I have never raised it.

Mr. Ryan: Yes.

Mr. Treadwell: I think it was made clear, from

what counsel read there, that the deposition was to

be taken and was taken on March 8, 1938.

Mr. Ryan : That is correct,—by Mr. Berger, who

took it at the instance of Mr. Donald Seibert, who

was, at that time, attorney for the Maryland Cas-

ualty Company. Donald Seibert 's office was with

the Maryland Casualty Company. They put the

answer in.

Mr. Treadwell: He was one of their employees

as well as their attorney, and he put in an answer

for the defendants,—the two Chinamen.

Mr. Ryan: Mr. Seibert is still the attorney of

record in the state court ; is that correct ?
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Mr. Treadwell: Yes, that is my understanding

of it.

Mr. Ryan: Is he still with the Maryland Cas-

ualty Compan}^?

Mr. Treadwell: He is still with them. That is

all we wish to olfer, your Honor.

Mr. Morris: If your Honor please, I would like

to recall Mr. Berger just to put this letter in evi-

dence, which I referred to, w^hich is attached to the

answer.

The Court : It has been read in evidence. [71]

WENTWORTH S. WRIGHT,

called for defendant Ah Chong ; sworn.

Direct Examination

Mr. Morris : Q. Mr. Wright, what is your busi-

ness?

A. I am an insurance broker.

Q. Are you acquainted with Ah Chong?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Leong Cheung? A. Yes.

Q. Have you business relations with them?

A. I am their insurance broker.

Q. You are their insurance broker?

A. Yes.

Q. And was it through you that this insurance

that is involved in this case was placed with the

Maryland Casualty Company? A. Yes.
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Q. Now, Mr. Wright, do you recall the occasion

when the suit was filed by Mazilla Tighe against

Ah Chong and Leong Cheimg? A. Yes.

Q. Were those papers ever in your possession?

A. Yes ; they were brought to my office.

Q. Who brought them to your office?

A. Ah Chong.

Q. What did you do with them?

A. I phoned to the Maryland Casualty Company
and asked them to send an adjuster over, who took

a statement on the part of the claim, in my office.

Q. Where was that?

A. 519 California Street.

Q. Who was present at that time?

A. Ah Chong and Leong Cheung and the ad-

juster—I have forgotten his name.

Q. Was it this gentleman: Mr. Berger?

A. I don't thmk so.

Q. Now, was anything said there about a reser-

vation of rights?

A. Nothing at all; there was no mention made

that the claim was not a claim under the policy.

The Court : Q. At any time ?

A. Well, the first time was about either a day or

two days before that letter of reservation of rights

was sent. At that time, an adjuster from the Mary-

land Casualty Company called at my office person-

ally and advised me that they were going to send

such a letter; and I talked to him for more than

[72] two hours, as vigorously protesting as I could

any such act on their part.
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Mr. Morris : Q. Mr. Wright, prior to this occa-

sion that you have just referred to, a few days be-

fore they wrote the letter—You are referring now

to the letter of March 7th ?

A. I am referring to the letter of reservation of

rights ; I do not recall the date.

Q. I will show you the letter and will ask you if

you recognize the letter as one you are referring to.

A. This is the letter.

Q. It was two days before that, that the adjuster

informed you they were going to write you such a

letter?

A. It was either the day before or two days

before.

The Court : Q. Was that the first time you ever

heard anything about reservation of rights'?

A. The first mention made to me that the Com-

pany was.

Mr. Morris: Q. Were you ever present when

anything was said to Ah Chong or Leong Cheung

about reservation of rights ?

A. Not to my knowledge ; at that time, there had

never been anything said.

Mr. Morris: That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. Treadwell: Q. Mr. Wright, do you know

the name of the adjuster who came over immedi-

ately after the complaint was put in your hands?

A. No; I said I did not remember his name.



100 Maryland Casualty Co. vs.

(Testimony of Wentworth S. Wright.)

Q. The second time that an adjuster came to

your office and you had this talk with him, who was

that?

A. I am not sure ; I think it was Mr. Moore.

Q. Mr. Moore? A. Yes.

Q. As soon as the complaint was filed, I take

it that the two Chinamen brought it into your office ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did they tell you, after that, that they had

been up to the [73] office and had a talk with Mr.

Berger? A. I do not recall.

Q. You do not recall? A. No.

Q. Did you go to Mr. Berger 's office and have

a talk with him? A. No.

Q. You never had any talk, referring to this

case, with Mr. Berger?

A. After that letter of reservation of rights

was sent out, I talked to Mr. Berger; and in no

uncertain form.

Q. Didn't you go up, before that, and have a

talk with Mr. Berger? A. No.

Q. Didn't the Chinamen tell you that they had

been to Mr. Berger and had a talk with him?

A. I said I did not recall.

Q. You do not recall that at all? A. No.

Q. Didn't they tell you that there was some

trouble regarding the matter? A. No.

Q. Nothing at all? A. No.

Q. A couple of days, you think, either a day

or two days, before this letter was written, some-
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body did come in, you think his name was Mr.

Moore, and tell you about this? A. Yes.

Q. That was the first time you had heard of

this; is that right? A. That is right.

Q. Do these Chinamen talk pretty good English ?

A. I would not say "pretty good," but good

enough so that I could understand them.

Q. Well, I mean, didn't they talk so that people

generally could understand them?

A. I do not think so—the younger man does.

Q. The younger man. How old a man was he?

A. He w^as about 22 and 23.

Q. Born in this coimtry?

A. I don't know as to that.

Q. How long have you known him?

A. I never knew the younger man until he came
in on this case.

Q. You have known him since then?

A. Yes. [74]

Q. He understand English fairly well, does he?

A. Fairly well.

Q. Now, then, how did you come to get this

letter?

A. As soon as Ah Chong got it, he brought it

down to me.

Q. Did you talk to him about it?

A. There was not very much occasion to talk

to him about it ; he had received it ; and I talked to

the Maryland Casualty Company about it.

Mr. Treadwell : I think that is all.
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AH CHONG,

called for the defendants; sworn.

Direct Examination.

Mr. Morris: Q. What is your name?

A. Ah Chong.

Q. Where do you live?

A. I live 128 Oregon Street.

Q. When the two papers were given you, what

did you do with them?

A. Well, I took the paper and gave it to Mr.

Wright.

Q. You gave it to Mr. Wright?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you go to the Maryland Casualty Com-

pany's office after that—after you gave the paper

to Mr. Wright?

A. No; somebody get a letter for me—a paper.

Q. Did you go to the Insurance Company's

office after you got the paper? A. No.

Mr. Morris: If your Honor please, I have had

some difficulty conversing with this man, and I

called up the United States Attorney's office last

night, and they gave me the name of an interpreter

;

and I have asked him to be present, and he is pres-

ent in court.

The Court: Q. Were you born here?

A. No; born in China.

Q. How long have you been here?

A. I come here 1915.
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The Court : I think he can understand ; he speaks

plainly.

Mr. Morris : Q. Did you ever see that man before

(pointing to Mr. Berger) % A. I see him before.

Q. Where did you see him?

A. Somebody give me a paper and I [75] go

to see him, with Mr. Wright.

Q. Was Mr. Wright with you? A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever go there without Mr. Wright?

A. Mr. Wright take me there.

Q. Mr. Wright took you there; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was it you saw him; what office?

A. Company; I don't know the number.

Q. Was it at the Insurance Company's office or

at Mr. Wright's office?

A. Mr. Wright asked me to go to see the Com-
pany. I depended on Mr. Wright.

Q. What did you have with you?

A. Somebody give me a paper; I don't know
what it is; I don't know.

The Court: Q. A letter?

A. No; a paper. I gave it to Mr. Wright.

Q. You gave it to Mr. Wright?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, had you ever been to the Maryland
Casualty Company's office before you got that

letter? A. No; I don't know him before.
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Q. Never saw him before? A. No.

Q. Had you ever been up to their offices,—the

Maryland Casualty Company's office?

A. No; I had never been there; I go with Mr.

Wright ; I depended on Mr. Wright.

Q. You depended on Mr. Wright?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not go up there, yourself?

A. No ; I did not go, myself.

Q. When was the first time you heard that this

woman claimed your boy hurt her?

A. Well, he came to my house to see me; I don't

know how he found out where I was.

Q. What did he say first ?

A. Well, he gave me paper.

Q. He gave you a paper?

A. I don't know what you call it—a piece of

paper. [76]

Q. What did you do with the paper ?

A. He told me to go and see a lawyer.

Q. Did you ever hear of any accident before

that? A. No.

Mr. Morris : That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. Treadwell: Q. When you got that paper

that they gave you at your house, what did you do

with it ? A. I took it to Mr. Wright.

Q. How soon after that did you go to the Insur-

ance Company's office?

A. The next day I go to see Mr. Wright, and

Mr. Wright said he go see the Company.
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Q. How many days after the paper was given

to you did you and Mr. Wright go to the Insurance

Company? A. He said go right away.

Q. Whom did you see in the Insurance Com-

pany? When you w^ent to the Insurance Company,

did you see Mr. Berger?

A. Yes, I saw him.

Q. How many times did you go to Mr. Berger's

office altogether?

A. I can't remember how many times—two

times.

Q. Two times? A. Yes.

Q. As many as three times ?

A. I am not sure.

Q. You cannot remember how many times you

went there? A. No.

Q. You went there once with Mr. Wright; you

went to see Mr. Berger, you say, with Mr. Wright,

once? A. One time.

Q. Then there were two times more ?

A. The second time, I don't remember Mr.

Wright there.

Q. You don't remember whether Mr. Wright
was there the second time ?

A. I think it was two; but I can't remember.

Q. You only remember once that Mr. Wright
was with you? A. The first time, yes.

Mr. Morris : Q. Did anybody ever tell you your

policy did not insure you—your insurance—you had

no insurance? [77]
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LEONG CHEUNG,

called for the defendants; sworn.

The Court : Q. How old are you ?

A. I am 20, now.

Q. How long do you live in California?

A. I been here all the time, all my life.

Q. Born here ? A. Yes, sir.

Direct Examination

Mr. Morris: Q. You drive Ah Chong's truck?

A. No; I do not drive truck; I am the helper.

Q. You are the helper on the truck?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you helper on the truck in 1937?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember the day you stopped at Pic-

cadilly Inn on Sutter Street? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see the lady, Mrs. Tighe, near Picca-

dilly Inn on that occasion ? A. Yes.

Mr. Ryan: If your Honor please, I am going

to object on the part of the defendant; the issue of

negligence in the state court is not at issue here, and

I am going to object to this line of questioning rela-

tive to that issue of negligence.

Mr. Morris: I am not trying to prove the issue

of negligence. I am trying to prove notice or lack

of notice of any accident on the occasion com-

plained of.

The Court: That is preliminary; you may pro-

ceed.
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Mr. Morris: Q. Where did you see Mazilla

Tighe that day?

A. I saw her on the sidewalk.

Q. Where, on the sidewalk ?

A. I don't get the question.

Q. Was she walking, standing up, or lying down,

or what? A. She was lying down.

Q. She was lying down? A. Yes, sir.

[78]

Q. Where were you?

A. I was coming out of the restaurant.

Q. The Piccadilly Restaurant?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you came through the door, did you

see Mazilla Tighe ; did you see the lady ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And she was lying down, you say?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you do ? A. I picked her up.

Q. You picked her up? A. Yes.

Q. What did you do then?

A. I picked her up and took her in and set her

on the chair; she seemed to be hurt, so I got to do

some work—there is something else for me to do, so

I called ambulance; and ambulance came and took

her away.

Q. What were you doing; did you have a truck

there that day, anywhere near the scene of this acci-

dent. A. We had the truck across the curb.

Q. Truck across the curb? A. Yes.
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Mr. Treadwell: Q. What do you mean by,

' ^ across the curb '

' ?

A. There is the curb here, and a curb across the

street.

The Court: Q. Was it on the sidewalk?

A. It was on the sidewalk. The Piccadilly Inn is

on this side, and the truck was across the curb.

Q. Did you drive over the curb ?

A. No ; my boss driver over the curb.

Q. Did you drive over the curb ?

A. No; on the next side of the street, there is

a curb here, and the truck was over on this side.

Q. On the other side? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Morris: Q. You were parked across the

street from Piccadilly Inn? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were you doing on the truck ?

A. I do all the carrying.

Q. You were doing the carrying? A. Yes.

[79]

Q. You had carried something inside, had you?

A. I carried something in; but I was walking

out.

Q. Where were you going when you were walk-

ing out and you saw the lady on the sidewalk ; where

were you going?

A. I was going to the truck to get some more

stuff.

Q. To get some more stuff?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Were you going to bring that into the Picca-

dilly Inn? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then you saw this lady on the sidewalk and

you picked her up and took her in ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did she tell you how she fell down ?

A. No.

Q. Did you run into her? A. No.

Q. Did you ever touch her? A. No.

Mr. Ryan: I renew my objection, if they are

going to prove an issue of negligence, which is not

in issue here.

Mr. Morris: I am not trying to prove negli-

gence.

Q. When was the first time that you ever heard

that Mrs. Tighe w^as making a claim against you?

The Court: I do not see how that is material

here. I think Mr. Ryan's objection is good.

Mr. Treadwell: I think, your Honor, that w^hat

counsel is trying to do is to get rid of our defense

that we did not receive notice, by showing that he

did not know of any accident ; so I suppose he would

be entitled to show that, but not go any further into

it than that.

Mr. Morris: We do not have to report accidents

that we do not know of. I am trying to prove that

this man did not know that he had an accident.

Mr. Ryan: That can be done by direct question

and answer.
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Mr. Morris: Maybe I have gone a little to far

afield ; but that is my purpose. [80]

Q. Did this woman ever tell you you hurt her?

A. No.

Q. The first you knew about any claim was when

the suit was filed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you tell Ah Chong that you had the acci-

dent?

A. I did not tell him about any accident; but

when he was driving away I told him I picked a

lady up.

Cross Examination

Mr. Treadwell: Q. The date of this alleged ac-

cident, Ah Chong was driving the truck, on that

occasion, was he not?

A. He always did the driving.

Q. On this day, he was driving the truck?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He drove the truck in a position where he

could see you make the deliveries ?

A. I don't understand.

Q. Was the position of his truck so that he could

see the Piccadilly Inn?

A. Well, it was across the street.

Q. He could see the Piccadilly Inn, could he

not ? A. Sure.

Q. And, as you came in and out there every

time that you got vegetables from the wagon to

bring into the Piccadilly Inn, he could see you make

deliveries in there, could he not?
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A. Sometimes.

Q. He saw you pick up the woman on the side-

walk, did he not? A. No.

Q. You mentioned it to him after you had done

that? A. Yes.

Redirect Examination

Mr. Morris: Q. Did you ever go to the Mary-

land Casualty Company's office after this suit was

filed? A. Yes.

Q. When was that?

A. I can't remember the day; I only remember

I took Ah Chong with me.

Q. Were you two by yourselves ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did anybody tell you that they were not

going to handle this case ?

A. Well, I don't remember him saying anything

about that.

The Court: Q. What did Mr. Berger say to

you? A. Say to me?

Q. Yes. [81]

A. I can't remember the things that he said.

Q. Did he tell you that he could not handle the

case? Did he tell you that the insurance did not

cover the accident?

A. Maybe he did; but I don't think he did.

Q. What is your best recollection of what he

told you?

A. Well, he was going to take care of us.
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Q. What did he say to you? Do you remember

what he said to you?

A. I remember he said something about we

needed some lawyer to help me along, too.

Q. Is that all you remember?

A. He mentioned something about the insurance,

but I don't remember what it was.

Q. Were you there a long time ?

A. Pretty long.

Q. Did you talk some time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he try to explain something to you about

the policy? A. No.

Q. Well, you talked a lot?

A. Yes; he asked me how the thing happened

and all that.

Q. Did he tell you to go up and see Mr. Wright?

A. I don't remember that.

The Court : Anything further ?

Mr. Morris: Q. Ah Chong's business is selling

vegetables; a vegetable store and delivery?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did anybody ever write you any letter?

A. What kind of a letter ?

Q. Did the Maryland Casualty Company ever

write you a letter?

A. They wrote me they wanted to have my depo-

sition taken.

Q. They wrote you they wanted to have your

deposition taken? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Is that the ovUj letter they ever wrote you?

A. I think they wrote me two.

Q. Did you read them ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Show him that letter. That letter is ad-

dressed to Ah Chong: was it a letter like that, that

you had in your hand ? [82]

A. I don't think I seen one like this.

Q. But you think you got two letters ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. One was about the deposition. What was the

other one about? A. It was a short one.

Q. What was the short one about? Don't you

remember? Have you got the two letters?

A. I can go home and look for it ; I know it was

not this one.

Recross Examination

Mr. Treadwell: Q. Do you remember when Ah
Chong got that letter?

A. No.

The Court: Q. Did Ah Chong show you that

letter? A. No.

Q. Did he talk to you about it ?

A. He told me that the Insurance Company say

they are going to sue, or something like that.

Q. Going to sue you? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Treadwell : Q. Now, you say that you went

down to see Mr. Berger. How many times did you

go to see Mr. Berger?



114 Maryland Casualty Co. vs.

(Testimony of Leong Cheung.)

A. I can't remember exactly; but it was more

than two times.

Q. It was more than two times ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Berger asked you why you didn't let him

know about the accident sooner?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Well, didn't he tell you that this was an

automobile insurance only?

A. He told me it was an automobile i)olicy; but

he didn't say only.

Q. He said it was automobile insurance

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he told you that you had better get your-

self an attorney, didn't he?

A. He didn't say, '^better get our own"; but he

said to help me.

Q. Did he tell you the Company would not be

liable unless it was connected with the automobile?

A. I did not hear him say anything about that.

Mr. Treadwell: That is all. [83]

Redirect Examination

Mr. Ryan: Q. Just one more question: At the

time that you went to the office of the Insurance Com-

pany, you only went to one office, did you not ? You
did not go to two offices in the Insurance Company ?

A. I think it was only one.

Q. At the time you were there, you saw Mr.

Berger and Mr. Donald Seibert, did you not?
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A. I don't know; I only saw him, I think.

Q. You only saw Mr. Berger?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. At that time, he took a report of the acci-

dent,—everything that happened there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that all that happened when you went to

the office was that he just took a report of the acci-

dent?

A. No; he told us something about the policy,

too.

Q. The only person you saw then was Mr. Ber-

ger? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was at the Maryland Casualty

building ?

A. Yes ; I saw one man before, but not that day.

Q. You saw Mr. Seibert?

A. Well, I don't know what his name is.

Q. Another lawyer up there?

A. We did not talk with him there.

Q. Did you see any other lawyer at the Mary-

land Casualty Company besides Mr. Berger?

A. Not with us.

Q. After you picked up the lady on the sidewalk,

you went in and called the ambulance ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you told Ah Chong, when you got back

to the truck, that you had called the ambulance for

the woman, did you not ? A. Yes.

Mr. Ryan: That is all.
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EARL C. BERGER,
recalled.

Cross Examination

(resumed)

Mr. Morris: Q. Mr. Berger, was Mr. Wright

ever in your office? [84]

A. I never spoke to him in our office; I spoke

to him over the telephone.

Q. He never was in your office, as far as you

know?

A. Not while I was there. He might have been

in my office while I was not there.

Q. Mr. Berger, w^ere you still connected with

the Maryland Casualty Company in June, 1938?

A. No.

Q. Then, you don't know what, if anything,

prompted the bringing of this suit in the Federal

court in June, 1938—what led up to that ?

A. In June, 1938?

Q. Yes.

A. I was not with the Maryland Casualty Com-

pany then.

Mr. Ryan: That is all.

Mr. Treadwell: That is all.

Mr. Morris: That is all of the evidence that we

have for the defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung.

Mr. Ryan: With reference to the evidence on

behalf of Mazilla Tighe, we stand upon the alle-
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gations set out in the complaint which we believe

are good.

The Court : So far as the testimony is concerned,

is the case submitted?

Mr. Treadwell: I think there are one or two

things that we can agree on. We have already

agreed that the deposition was taken on March 8th.

The last accident was November 26, 1937.

Mr. Ryan : I believe that is correct.

Mr. Treadwell : The complaint was filed on Jan-

uary 23, 1938.

Mr. Ryan : I believe that is correct.

Mr. Treadwell: The service of the complaint on

the defendants was on what date ?

Mr. Ryan: I have not got the date. The service

was a week [85] later, if you want to stipulate to

that?

The Court: A week later than January 23rd?

Mr. Treadwell: I would not want to stipulate

to that.

Mr. Ryan: I will furnish the Court with that

date.

Mr. Treadwell: I have here the fact that on

February 3, 1938, a stipulation was signed extend-

ing the time to answer to February 17, 1938.

Mr. Ryan : What was the date of that ?

Mr. Treadwell: February 3rd was the date of

the stipulation.

Mr. Ryan : It was some time thereafter.

Mr. Treadwell : Yes, that is true. The complaint

was filed January 23rd, and we made a sti])ulati<)ii,
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dated February 3rd, extending the time to answer

to February 17th.

Mr. Ryan: You answered then?

Mr. Treadwell: On February 17th, the answer

was filed. On March 8th, the deposition was taken,

and on April 30th a memorandum by the plaintiff

to set the case for trial was filed.

Mr. Ryan: Yes, that is correct; and was served

on Donald Seibert.

Mr. Treadwell: Served and filed on him on the

17th; and the case was set for trial for June 21,

1938.

Mr. Ryan: Yes.

Mr. Treadwell: And on Jime 20th, this complaint

in the Federal court was filed.

Mr. Ryan: Yes.

Mr. Morris: Will it also be stipulated that

George M. Naus w^as also employed by the Maryland

Casualty Company to try the case that was set in

June?

Mr. Treadwell : That is correct.

Mr. Ryan: Donald Seibert was attorney of rec-

ord as far as the case is concerned? [86]

Mr. Treadwell: Yes; but I imagine Mr. Naus

was to try the case. That is all.

(Thereupon, the case was submitted on briefs to

be filed five, five and five.)

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 9, 1940. [87]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL TO THE UNITED
STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS,
IN AND FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Notice is hereby given that Maryland Casualty

Company, a corporation, plaintiff above named,

hereby appeals to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit from the

portion of the final judgment entered in this action

on November 24, 1939, by which it was ordered,

adjudged and decreed [88] as follows

:

''4. That the cause of action alleged and in-

volved in the complaint, according to the alle-

gations of the complaint in the state court, and

as they developed in the trial of this case, oc-

curred after certain vegetables had been re-

moved from the truck and delivered, but it

appears by the evidence here that, if the acci-

dent was at all caused by the insured, it was

caused while the said Leong Cheung was re-

turning to the truck to obtain from said truck

further vegetables for delivery to the said Pic-

cadilly Inn, and that such state action and

injury would be and is within the coverage of

said policy.

"5. That plaintiff take nothing by its said

action and that defendants have and recover

from the plaintiff their costs of suit taxed at

the sum of $ , and that the prelimi-

nary injunction issued herein be and the same

hereby is dissolved."
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Dated: February 2, 1940.

EDWARD F. TREADWELL
REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

530 Standard Oil Building,

San Francisco, California.

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Appellant

RUSSELL E. BARNES
Of Counsel

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 3, 1940. [89]

The premium charge on this bond is $10.00 per

annum.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

COST BOND ON APPEAL
In Equity No. 4279S

Know All Men by These Presents, That we,

Maryland Casualty Company, a Corporation, as

Principal, and United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, a Corporation, having its principal

place of business in the City of Baltimore, State of

Maryland, and having a paid-up capital of Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) duly incorporated

under the laws of the State of Maryland, for the

purpose of making, guaranteeing and becoming

surety on bonds and undertakings, and having com-

plied with all the requirements of the laws of the

State of California and United States of America
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respecting such corporations, are held and firmly

bound unto the Defendants in the sum of Two Hun-

dred Fifty and no/100 ($250.00) Dollars, lawful

money of the United States, to be paid to them and

their respective executors, administrators and suc-

cessors; to which payment, well and truly to be

made, we bind ourselves and each of us, jointly and

severally, and each of our heirs, executors, and

administrators, by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this 22nd day of

January, 1940.

Whereas, the above named Plaintiff has prose-

cuted an appeal to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals, Ninth Circuit to reverse the judgment

of the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Ninth Judicial Circuit, Northern District

of California, Southern Division in the above en-

titled cause.

Now Therefore, the condition of this obligation is

such that if the above named Plaintiff shall prose-

cute its said appeal to effect and answer all costs if

the appeal is dismissed or the judgment is affirmed,

or such costs as the [90] Appellate Court may
award if the judgment is modified, then this obli-

gation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full

force and effect.

The undersigned Surety agrees that in case of

any breach of any condition hereof the Court may,

upon not less than ten days' notice to the under-

signed, proceed summarily to ascertain the amount
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which the imdersigiied, as surety, is bound to pay

on account of such breach, and render judgment

against it and award execution therefor, not to ex-

ceed the sum specified in this undertaking.

MARYLAND CASUALTY
COMPANY

By E. C. PORTER
Resident Vice-President

UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COMPANY

By ERNEST W. COPELAND
Attorney in Fact [91]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

On this 22nd day of January in the year one

thousand nine hundred and forty before me, W. W.
Healey a Notary Public in and for the City and

County of San Francisco, personally appeared

Ernest W. Copeland known to me to be the person

whose name is subscribed to the within instrument

as the Attorney-in-fact of the United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company, and acknowledged

to me that he subscribed the name of the United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company thereto as

Surety and his own name as Attorney-in-fact.

[Notarial Seal] W. W. HEALEY
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My Commission expires August 29, 1941.

[Endorsed] Filed Feb. 3, 1940. [92]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS TO BE RELIED
UPON ON APPEAL

The i)laintiff above named hereby designates the

following points as the points on which it intends to

rely on the appeal herein.

1. The Court erred in finding that the alleged

accident and resulting injuries, if any, occurred as

the defendants [93] were using the truck in making

delivery of produce to a customer, in this (1) that

the evidence and findings show that the truck was

not used to make such delivery, but delivery was

made by an employee of the insured, and (2) that

•the delivery was complete and the employee at the

time of the accident was returning to the truck

which at the time was parked on the opposite side

of the street.

2. The Court erred in finding that the accident

caused by an employee after he had unloaded pro-

duce from the truck and carried it by hand across

the street and sidewalk and delivered the same to

a customer in a building on the opposite side of the

street and was returning to the truck for further

produce at the time of the accident, is within the

coverage of the policy involved herein.

3. The Court erred in finding that because the

employee was returning to the truck with the pur-

pose of obtaining produce in order to make further

deliveries, the accident resulted from the use of the

truck, or from the loading or unloading thereof.
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4. The Court erred in holding that the accident

involved in the action in the state Court was within

the coverage of the insurance policy involved

herein.

5. The Court erred in not holding that the acci-

dent involved in the action in the state Court was

not within the coverage of the insurance policy

involved herein.

6. The Court erred in adjudging that plaintiff

take nothing by this action, in that it should have

adjudged that said accident was not within the

coverage of the insurance policy involved herein.

7. The Court erred in not adjudging that plain-

tiff has no obligation under said policy to defend

said action in the [94] state Court.

8. The Court erred in not adjudging that plain-

tiff has no liability under said policy by reason of

the accident involved in the action in the state

Court because the said accident did not arise out of

the use of the automobile described in and covered

by said policy.

9. The Court erred in not enjoining the defend-

ants from taking any proceedings for the purpose

of imposing any liability upon plaintiff based upon

any judgment that may be rendered for Mazilla

Tighe in said action in the state Court.

10. The Court erred in dissolving the prelimi-

nary injunction.

11. The Court erred in awarding costs to de-

fendants and in not awarding costs to plaintiff.
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Dated: February 8, 1940.

EDWARD F. TREADWELL
REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

530 Standard Oil Building,

San Francisco, California.

Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant

RUSSELL E. BARNES
Of Counsel

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 9, 1940. [95]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Eve Miller, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says

:

That at all times herein mentioned her business

address was and still is 530 Standard Oil Building,

San Francisco, California; that at all times herein

mentioned she was and still is a citizen of the

United States and a resident of the City and County

of San Francisco, State of California, over the age

of eighteen (18) years and not a party to the above

entitled proceeding;

That on the 8th day of February, 1940, she de-

posited [96] in the United States mail at said City

and Comity of San Francisco, State of California,
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a true copy of the within Statement of Points to be

Relied Upon on Appeal and the within Appellant's

Designation of the Portions of the Record, Pro-

ceedings, and Evidence to be Contained in the

Record on Appeal, enclosed in a sealed envelope

with postage fully prepaid, addressed to

Charles B. Morris, Esq.,

Mills Building,

San Francisco, California.

Messrs. Young & Ryan,

1924 Broadway,

Oakland, California.

That there is delivery service and regular com-

munication by mail between the said place of mail-

ing and the place addressed.

EVE MILLER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9th day

of February, 1940.

[Seal] LULU P. LOVELAND
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 9, 1940. [97]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLANT'S DESIGNATION OF THE
PORTIONS OF THE RECORD, PROCEED-
INGS, AND EVIDENCE TO BE CON-
TAINED IN THE RECORD ON APPEL

The plaintiff above named, having heretofore

filed its notice of appeal in this matter, hereby des-

ignates for inclusion in the record on appeal to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit the following portions of the record,

proceedings and evidence herein:

1. Complaint for Declaratory Relief, Etc.

2. Temporary Injunction.

3. Answer of Defendants Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung.

4. Answer by Defendant Mazilla Tighe to Com-

plaint for Declaratory Relief. [98]

5. Pre-Trial Order.

6. Opinion dated September 11, 1939.

7. Judgment signed and entered on November

24, 1939.

8. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

9. Order Amending Findings.

10. The Notice of Appeal, with date of filing.

11. Statement of Points to be Relied Upon on

Appeal.

12. Appellant's Designation of the Portions of

the Record, Proceedings, and Evidence to be Con-

tained in the Record on Appeal.
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13. All eAddence steiiographically reported at the

trial.

Dated: February 8, 1940.

EDWARD F. TREADWELL
REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

530 Standard Oil Building,

San Francisco, California.

Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant

RUSSELL E. BARNES
Of Counsel

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 9, 1940. [99]

District Court of the United States

Northern District of California

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD ON APPEAL

I, Walter B. Maling, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify that the foregoing 99

pages, numbered from 1 to 99, inclusive, contain a

full, true, and correct transcript of the records and

proceedings in the case of Maryland Casualty Com-

pany vs. Mazilla Tiglie, Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung, No. 4279-S, as the same now remain on file

and of record in my office.

I further certify that the cost of preparing and

certifying the foregoing transcript of record on
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appeal is the sum of $21.05 and that the said

amount has been paid to me by the Attorney for

the appellant herein.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said District Court, this

8th day of March A. D. 1940.

[Seal] WALTER B. MALING
Clerk.

B. E. O'HARA
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: No. 9473. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Maryland

Casualty Company, a corporation. Appellant, vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and Leong Cheung, Ap-

pelees. Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal from

the District Court of the United States for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division.

Filed March 14, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals in

and for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9473

MARYLAND CASUALTY COMPANY,
Appellant,

vs.

MAZILLA TIGHE, AH CHONG and

LEONG CHEUNG,
Appellees.

APPELLANT'S STATEMENT OF POINTS TO
BE RELIED UPON ON APPEAL

Comes now the appellant above named and

hereby designates the points on which it intends to

rely on this appeal to be the points stated in the

Statement of Points to be Relied upon on Appeal,

which was filed with the District Court of the

United States in and for the Northern District of

California, Southern Division, on February 9, 1940,

and which are set forth on pages 93, 94 and 95 of

the certified ti-anscript of record on appeal in the

above entitled matter.

EDWARD F. TREADWELL
REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

Attorneys for Appellant

RUSSELL E. BARNES
Of Counsel

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 14, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

APPELLANT'S DESIGNATION OF PARTS
OF THE RECORD NECESSARY FOR CON-
SIDERATION ON APPEAL.

Comes now the appellant above named and here-

by designates for consideration of the points on

which it intends to rely on this appeal the entire

certified transcript of record on appeal in the above

entitled matter, and hereby designates for the

printed record on appeal said entire certified tran-

script of record.

EDWARD F. TREADWELL
REGINALD S. LAUGHLIN

Attorneys for Appellant

RUSSELL E. BARNES
Of Counsel

[Endorsed]: Filed March 14, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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No. 9473

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),

Appellant,

vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung,
Appellees.

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

A. STATEMENT AS TO JURISDICTION.

This action for declaratory relief was commenced

by the appellant in the District Court of the United

States for the Northern District of California, South-

ern Division.

Section 274d of the Federal Judicial Code, provides,

in part, as follows:

"(1) In cases of actual controversy except

with respect to Federal taxes the courts of the

United States shall have power upon petition,

declaration, complaint, or other appropriate



pleadings to declare rights and other legal rela-

tions of any interested party petitioning for such

declaration, whether or not further relief is or

could be prayed, and such declaration shall have
the force and effect of a final judgment or decree

and be reviewable as such.

(2) Further relief based on a declaratory

judgment or decree may be granted whenever
necessary or proper. The application shall be by
petition to a court having jurisdiction to grant

the relief. If the application be deemed sufficient,

the court shall, on reasonable notice, require any
adverse party, whose rights have been adjudicated

by the declaration, to show cause why further re-

lief should not be granted forthwith."

In paragraph IV of the complaint (R. p. 3) the

following allegation is made:

'^That this suit is brought under and pursuant

to the Federal Declaratory Judgment Act. (Ju-

dicial Code, section 274d, 28 U. S. C. A. section

400.)"

In paragraph VIII of the complaint (R. p. 6) we

find the following allegations:

"That an actual controversy exists as between

plaintiff and defendants herein, as follows: De-

fendants Ah Chong and Leong Cheung contend

that since the automobile referred to in said com-

plaint in said action brought by said Mazilla

Tighe is the same automobile described in said

insurance policy plaintiff herein has the obligation

under said policy to defend said Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung in said action ; further, defendants

Ah Chong, Leong Cheung and Mazilla Tighe con-



tend that if it should be adjudged in said action

that said Ah Chong and Leong Cheung have any
liability to pay any sums to said Mazilla Tighe by

reason of the alleged accident set forth in said

complaint in said action, then plaintiff herein has

the obligation under said policy to pay said sums

to said Mazilla Tighe up to the aggregate amount
of $5,000; on the other hand, plaintiff herein de-

nies and controverts said contentions and each of

them and on its part contends that although the

automobile referred to in said complaint of said

Mazilla Tighe is the same automobile described in

said policy of insurance, plaintiff herein has no

obligations or liability luider said policy so far as

said alleged accident is concerned because said

alleged accident did not arise out of the use of

said automobile or the loading or unloading there-

of ; further plaintiff herein contends that it was
released of all obligations and liability under said

policy so far as said accident is concerned by
reason of the failure of defendant Ah Chong to

notify plaintiff that any such accident occurred

for more than sixty days after it is alleged in said

complaint the same occurred."

Section 24(1) of the Federal Judicial Code pro-

vides, in part, as follows:

**The District Courts shall have original juris-

diction as follows:

First. Of all suits of a civil nature, at com-

mon law or in equity, * * * where the matter in

controversy exceeds, * * * the sum or value of

$3,000 and * * * (b) is between citizens of differ-

ent states, or (c) is between citizens of a state and
foreign states, citizens, or subjects."



In paragraph I of the complaint (R. p. 2) we find

the following allegations:

''That plaintiff, Maryland Casualty Company,
is now and was at all times herein mentioned a

corporation organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Maryland, duly

authorized and licensed to do business in the

State of California, and having its principal place

of business within the State of California, in the

City and County of San Francisco."

In paragraph II of the complaint (R. p. 3) we find

the following allegations:

''That defendant Mazilla Tighe is a citizen of

the State of California, and resides in the County
of Alameda in said state; that defendant Ah
Chong is a citizen and subject to the Republic of

China, and resides in the City and County of San
Francisco, in the State of California; that de-

fendant Leong Cheung is a citizen of the State of

California, and resides in the City and Coimty of

San Francisco in said state."

In paragraph III of the complaint (R. p. 3) we find

the following allegation:

"That the amount in controversy, exclusive of

interest and costs, exceeds the sum of three

thousand dollars ($3,000.)."

This Court has jurisdiction to entertain this appeal

by virtue of the provisions of Section 128 of the Fed-

eral Judicial Code. Said Section 128 provides, in

part, as follows:



**The Circuit Court of Appeals shall have ap-

pellate jurisdiction to review by appeal final de-

cisions.

First—In the district courts, in all cases save

where a direct review of the decision may be had

in the Supreme Court under section 345 of this

title. * * *"

B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This is a suit for declaratory relief and an injunc-

tion. Upon the filing of the complaint a preliminary

injunction was issued and an appeal from the order to

this Court was dismissed without passing on the

merits. (Marylmid Casualty Co. v. Tighe (1938,

CCA. 9th) 99 F. (2d) 727.) On the trial judgment

went for defendants and plaintiff appeals.

The sole question involved is whether an accident

which is the subject of an action in the State Court,

is within the coverage of an automobile policy issued

by the plaintiff to the defendant Ah Chong. The

policy was attached to the complaint and it insures

against injuries arising out of the ownership, mainte-

nance and use of an automobile (truck), and pro-

vided that the use included '

' the loading and unloading

thereof".

The complaint in the State Court (R. pp. 29-36)

thus alleged the facts surrounding the accident

:

**1II.

That on the 26th day of November, 1937, the

defendant Leong Cheung was an employee, agent
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and servant of his co-defendant Ad Chong, and
was by him regularly employed to distribute and
deliver vegetable produce, and in the performance
of said employment said defendant Leong Cheung
was required to, and he did, operate and drive a

certain delivery truck for the purpose of making
deliveries of produce to various retail trade in

said City and County of San Francisco ; that said

deliveries were made by said Leong Cheung by
carrying vegetable produce from the said truck to

various patrons of his employer, Ad Chong.

IV.

That at all times herein mentioned Sutter Street

was and now is a public street in the City and
County of San Francisco, California; that said

street runs in a general easterly and westerly di-

rection; that on said street, and in the block

numbered '300', a restaurant is located known as

the 'Piccadilli Inn'; that plaintiff herein is in-

formed and believes, and upon such information

and belief alleges the fact to be, that at times

herein mentioned the aforesaid Piccadilli Inn was
a customer of said Ad Chong and customarily and
at intervals receives produce vegetables from said

Ad Chong, and by and through the delivery

thereof by Leong Cheung.

V.

That on or about the 26th day of November,

1937, and in the morning thereof at approxi-

mately 8:34 A. M., defendant Leong Cheung
was making a delivery of produce vegetables to

the said Piccadilli Inn, and that at said time and

place he had left his aforesaid delivery truck

standing parked at the curb and opposite to, and



about ten feet from, the entrance of said Picca-

dilli Inn.

That at said time and place the plaintiff herein

was a pedestrian on said Sutter Street and was
walking in an easterly direction upon the side-

walk adjacent to and in front of said Piccadilli

Inn ; that at said time and place defendant Leong

Cheung conducted himself generally in a careless,

reckless and negligent manner; that at said time

and place Leong Cheung was careless and negli-

gent in the following manner: That after mak-
ing a delivery to the aforesaid Piccadilli Inn, he

ran from the entrance thereof, and in so running

at said time and place, looked backward over his

shoulder as he continued running forward, in a

negligent and careless manner ; that he ran toward

the aforementioned truck at the curb, and in so

doing collided with the plaintiff herein as she

walked along the aforesaid sidewalk, with such

force and effect that plaintiff was knocked vio-

lently to the sidewalk and was caused to sustain

injuries as more particularly hereinafter ap-

pears." (Italics ours.)

On the trial of the suit at bar this statement was by

evidence somewhat amplified, and to a certain extent

modified, and the facts thus shown which surrounded

the accident are stated in the findings (R. pp. 61-71)

in this case as follows:

''6. That on or about the 25th day of January
1938, defendant Mazilla Tighe commenced an ac-

tion for damages against defendants Ah Chong
and Leong Cheung in the Superior Court of the

State of California, in and for the City and
County of San Francisco, entitled Mazilla Tighe,
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Plaintiff, vs. Ah Chong, Leong Cheung, John Doe,

Richard Roe, Black and White Company, a cor-

poration. Defendants, and numbered therein No.

278962; that in the complaint of said Mazilla

Tighe, in said action said Mazilla Tighe alleged

that on the 26th day of November, 1937, said

Leong Cheung was an employee of said Ah Chong
and, while so employed, said Leong Cheung made
a delivery of vegetable produce to a restaurant

known as Piccadilly Inn and located in the 300

block of Sutter Street in San Francisco, from a

delivery truck parked at the curb on said Sutter

Street and opposite to, and about ten feet from,

the entrance of said Piccadilly Inn; that at said

time and place said Mazilla Tighe was a pedes-

trian on said Sutter Street and was walking in

an easterly direction upon the sidewalk adjacent

to and in front of said Piccadilly Inn; that at

said time and place said Leong Cheung conducted

himself generally in a careless, reckless and negli-

gent manner; that at said time and place Leong

Cheung was careless and negligent in the following

manner: that after making a delivery to the

aforesaid Piccadilly Inn, he ran from the en-

trance thereof, and in so running at said time

and place, looked backward over his shoulder,

as he continued running forward, in a negligent

and careless manner; that he ran toward the

aforesaid truck at the curb, and in so doing col-

lided with said Mazilla Tighe as she walked along

the aforesaid sidewalk, with such force and effect

that said Mazilla Tighe was knocked violently

to the sidewalk and was caused to sustain injuries

as more particularly in said complaint appears;
* * *." (R. pp. 62-64.)
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*'7. That the facts as they are set out in the

complaint heretofore referred to and designated

as Exhibit 'B' and as developed on the trial of

this case indicates that the alleged accident and
resulting injury, if any, occurred as the defend-

ants were using this truck in making delivery of

produce to a customer and while defendant Leong
Cheung was returning to the truck to obtain fur-

ther vegetables for delivery, and is within the

coverage of the aforesaid policy hereinbefore des-

ignated as Exhibit 'A'." (R. p. 64.)

^'12. With regard to the accident involved in

said action in the state court, the court finds that

on the 26th day of November, 1937, the truck in

question was parked against the curb on the op-

posite side of Sutter Street from Piccadilly Inn,

and the said defendant Leong Cheung removed
certain vegetables from said tinick and carried

them across Sutter Street and across the sidewalk

thereof into said Piccadilly Inn, and there de-

livered and left the said vegetables. He then

started to return to said truck for the purpose of

obtaining further vegetables to deliver to the said

Piccadilly Inn, and if the said plaintiff Leong
Cheung collided at all with plaintiff Mazilla Tighe
(which said plaintiff Leong Cheung denies) the

collision happened as he emerged from said Pic-

cadilly Inn for the purpose of obtaining further

vegetables and before the unloading of vegetables

for Piccadilly Inn from said truck had been com-
pleted." (R. p. 67.)

From these facts the trial Court concluded that the

accident was within the coverage of the policy, and
therefore dissolved the temporary injunction and gave

judgment for defendants with costs. (R. pp. 68-69.)
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As the findings set forth the probative facts fully

and correctly, it is unnecessary to review the evidence

in order to combat the legal conclusion that the acci-

dent is within the coverage of the policy.

C. SPECIFICATION OP ERRORS.

1. The Court erred in finding that the alleged

accident and resultmg injuries, if any, occurred as the

defendants were using the truck in making delivery

of produce to a customer, in this (1) that the evidence

and findings show that the truck was not used to

make such delivery, but delivery was made by an em-

ployee of the insured, and (2) that the delivery was

complete and the employee at the time of the accident

was returning to the truck which at the time was

parked on the opposite side of the street.

2. The Court erred in finding that the accident

caused by an employee after he had unloaded produce

from the truck and carried it by hand across the

street and sidewalk and delivered the same to a cus-

tomer in a building on the opposite side of the street

and was returning to the truck for further produce

at the time of the accident, is within the coverage of

the policy involved herein.

3. The Court erred in finding that because the em-

ployee was returning to the truck with the purpose of

obtaining produce in order to make further deliveries,

the accident resulted from the use of the truck, or

from the loading or unloading thereof.
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4. The Court en-ed in holding that the accident

involved in the action in the State Court was within

the coverage of the insurance policy involved herein.

5. The Court erred in not holding that the accident

involved in the action in the State Court was not

within the coverage of the insurance policy involved

herein.

6. The Court erred in adjudging that plaintiff take

nothing by this action, in that it should have adjudged

that said accident was not within the coverage of the

insurance policy involved herein.

7. The Court erred in not adjudging that plaintiff

has no obligation under said policy to defend said

action in the State Court.

8. The Court erred in not adjudging that plaintiff

has no liability under said policy by reason of the

accident involved in the action in the State Court

because the said accident did not arise out of the use

of the automobile described in and covered by said

policy.
\

9. The Court erred in not enjoining the defendants

from taking any proceedings for the purpose of im-

posing any liability upon plaintiff based upon any

judgment that may be rendered for Mazilla Tighe in

said action in the State Court.

10. The Court erred in dissolving the preliminary

injunction.

11. The Court erred in awarding costs to defend-

ants and in not awarding costs to plaintiff.
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D. ARGUMENT.

The trial judge in deciding the case filed a written

opinion. (R. p. 56.) He held that if the man who

made the delivery and was returning at the time of

the accident had completed the delivery of all produce

from the truck destined to that particular customer,

the accident would not be covered, but since the man
making the delivery intended to return to the truck

for further produce for the same customer, the un-

loading was not complete. From this he concluded

that the accident arose out of the use of the truck.

He neither cited nor relied upon any authority con-

struing such a policy. The only cases cited by him

were cases to the effect that if the policy was am-

bigTious it should be construed against the insurance

company.

(1) THE POLICY WAS NOT AMBIGUOUS AND SUCH POLICIES

HAVE BEEN MANY TIMES CONSTRUED NOT TO COVER
ACCIDENTS WHICH OCCUR (1) IN THE PROCESS OF DE-

LIVERY, WHERE THE DELIVERY IS DISCONNECTED WITH
THE USE OF THE TRUCK, OR (2) IN CONNECTION WITH
THE ARTICLE UNLOADED BUT AFTER THE UNLOADING
OF THE ARTICLE IS COMPLETE. NO CASE MAKES THE
DISTINCTION DRAWN BY THE TRIAL JUDGE IN THIS

CASE.

The cases which have arisen under such policies are

of two classes: (1) where an article is imloaded, and

the driver of the truck then makes delivery b}^ hand

or other means, leaving the truck, passing from the

street into a building, and the accident occurs during

such delivery; (2) where merchandise is unloaded, but
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is left in a dangerous place and causes an injury. In

both classes of cases it is held that the accident does

not arise out of the use and operation of the truck

or out of the unloading thereof. These decisions are

so numerous and so uniform that they should be held

to enter into the policy. At all events we submit that

they correctly construe the policy and correctly hold

that the policy is in no way ambiguous. We therefore

submit the matter on a review of those cases, which

we now make

:

Jackson Floor Covering Company v. Maryland

Casualty Company, 189 Atl. 84, 117 N. J. Law
401 (1937).

In this case the Maryland carried the liability

policy and another company carried the automobile

policy.

The Floor Company had sold several rolls of lino-

leum to a customer and delivered the same in its truck

by backing the truck up to the loading platform and

there unloading the linoleum upon a small hand truck

for complete delivery of the linoleum to the designated

place in the building.

While the hand truck was being propelled a roll

of linoleum fell off and injured a third party. Mary-

land Casualty Company contended that this injury re-

sulted from the loading and unloading of the motor

vehicle and was, therefore, covered under the auto-

mobile policy and not under the liability policy. The

Court said:

**It appears that the unloading of the plaintiff's

automobile truck had been completed and that the
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transportation from then on was by a different

means; hence, there could have been no concur-

rent coverage since the carrier insuring the auto-

mobile truck was under no obligation."

Franklin Co-Op. Creamery Ass^n. v. Employers'

Liability Assmxince Corporation, et al.

(Minn. 1937), 273 N. W. 809.

In this case the policy provided for coverage of per-

sonal injuries, ''(1) caused by, and/or owing to the

ownership, the maintenance, the use, and/or operation

of, all horses, draft animals, and/or vehicles, used in

connection with the business operations of the assured

described in the declarations, and (2) caused by or

resulting from the loading and/or unloading of the

said vehicles'^

The employee of the assured stopped his milk

wagon in front of a building, filled his containers with

milk bottles, and entered the building. After entering

the building he walked about 30 feet to a freight

elevator, set down his container, and then, for the

purpose of using the elevator pulled on the ropes or

cables which controlled its operation. In so doing, he

injured a third person. Liability of the assured to the

third person was established, and a declaratory judg-

ment is sought to determine whether the insurer had

a duty to indemnify the assured.

The Court held that the accident was not within the

policy, saying at page 810

:

''1. Was the process of unloading complete?

We are of the opinion that the trial court rightly

held that it was. The process of distributing
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bottled milk at retail is familiar to us all and we
take judicial notice of it. Rundquist had started

on his rounds to peddle milk to his various cus-

tomers. After he left his wagon carrying his

containers, the process of retail distribution com-

menced. If he had served customers on the first

floor prior to his attempt to take the elevator, it

could hardly be contended that he was still en-

gaged in unloading the vehicle. Nor could it be

so contended if some accident had happened while

he was passing from customer to customer. We
see no difference in principle or in the application

of the policy between such situations and the one

at bar. Many cases are cited by appellant but

are distinguishable on the facts. Necessarily the

imloading of a great variety of merchandise in-

volves various situations resulting in various hold-

ings as to when the process of imloading termi-

nates. Within limits each case must stand on its

own facts. This one stands outside the terms of

the unloading clause of the policy."

Zurich General Accident & Liability Ins. Co.,

Limited v. American Mut. Liability Ins. Co.

of Boston, 192 Atl. 387, 118 N. J. Law 317

(1937).

The point in controversy was which of two policies

of liability insurance, issued by plaintiff and defend-

ant, respectively, affords indemnity coverage.

It was stipulated that a chauffeur of the assured
'* 'had driven an automobile belonging to said

concern to the store of Borer, who was a cus-

tomer of said corporation and had removed from
said automobile truck a can of milk and a cake
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of ice, which milk and ice the chauffeur had car-

ried from said automobile to the store of the said

Borer and while placing the milk and ice in an

icebox maintained in the inteiior of the premises

of said Borer, injured the said Borer' ".

The company whose policj^ covered accidents caused

by the assured 's drivers and chauffeurs, ''except those

arising in connection with the maintenance, use or

operation of teams or motor vehicles", claimed that

the injury was covered by the defendant's policy. The

defendant had obligated itself

'' 'to pay * * * each loss by reason of liability

imposed' upon the assured 'by law for damages,
* * * caused by an accident * * * by reason of the

use, ownership, maintenance, or operation of the

motor vehicle or trailer, or, if the motor vehicle

is of the commercial type, by reason of the load-

ing or unloading of merchandise, provided the

insured has, as respects such loading or unload-

ing operations, no other collectible insurance' ".

The Court found that the plaintiff rather than the

defendant should pay the loss (that is, that unload-

ing had been completed), saying at page 389:

"We have no occasion to determine whether an

accident occurring in the course of the ' loading or

unloading' of a vehicle within the policy cover-

age arises in connection with its 'maintenance, use

or operation', within the intendment of plain-

tiff's policy. Here the unloading of the merchan-

dise had been completed when the accident oc-

curred."
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John Alt Furniture Co. v. Maryla/nd Cnsualty

Co., 88 F. (2d) 36 (Circuit Couii: of Appeals,

Eighth Circuit) (1937).

In this case it appeared that the assured 's em-

ployees in the course of their duties were engaged in

delivering furniture to a customer. The furniture

was transported to the customer's premises in one

of the assured 's trucks driven by its employees. In

order to carry the furniture from the truck to the

customer's apartment, it was necessary to remove a

door from the rear of the building. This door was

removed and leaned against a clothes pole on the

property. The door fell, causing an injury to another

occupant of the premises. The insurance company

which had written the automobile policy asserted that

the accident in question was not covered by its policy,

but it did defend the suit under a non-waiver agree-

ment. Judgment went against the assured, who paid

the judgment and brought an action for reimburse-

ment against the company which had written the pub-

lic liability policy. The Court said that the accident

in question was not covered by the automobile policy

and held that the accident was covered by the pub-

lic liability policy, although it appeared that the as-

sured 's employees were actively engaged in delivering

the furniture when the accident occurred. The policy

under consideration in this case did not include a load-

ing and unloading clause, but, as, we shall see, it has

been held that it was not necessary to expressly in-

clude ''loading and unloading" in order to bring such

activity within the coverage of a policy insuring
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against loss resulting from the ''use, operation or

maintenance" of the automobile. The Court in this

case clearly felt, as we do, that an accident occurring

in connection with the delivery of goods transported

by automobile would not fall within the coverage of an

automobile policy, even though delivery had not been

completed at the time the accident occurred.

The case of Armour <& Company v. General Acci-

dent, Fire <& Life Assurance Corporation, Ltd. (Num-

ber 20,287-L) decided by Judge Louderback on No-

vember 2, 1939, is a recent case in this District on the

question of the scope of policies of the type here in-

volved. In this case an employee of Armour & Com-

pany unloaded hams from an automobile and by use

of a small hand-truck transported them into a market.

It was customary for the proprietor of the market to

weigh the hams before accepting delivery. On this

occasion, however, the proprietor was absent at the

moment, and the delivery man left the hams, intending

to return later to check the weight and pick up the

invoice he had left. The delivery man was negligent

in leaving the hand-truck containing the hams in a

dangerous place, and by reason of that negligence a

customer of the market was injured. In an action

based on that negligence the customer recovered judg-

ment against Armour & Company. Armour & Com-

pany brought an action against the insurance company

which had issued the automobile policy. Judge I^ouder-

back granted a motion for a nonsuit, holding in effect

that negligence in connection with delivery was not

covered by the policy.
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Luchte V. State Automobile Mutual Ins. Co.,

197 N. E. 421, 50 Ohio App. 5 (1935).

Plaintiff (the insured) sued to recover expenses in

defending a suit which he claimed the defendant in-

surance company was obligated by its policy to de-

fend. The policy contained the following provisions:

'^ 'The Association does hereby insure the as-

sured against liability for loss and all expenses

resulting from claims upon the assured for dam-
age caused while this policy is in force, by the

use, ownership, maintenance, or operation of the

motor vehicle described in Statement 4 of Sched-

ule of Warranties * * *.' ^'

The facts are stated by the Court, as follows:

"While the policy was in force, an employee

of Luchte delivered a load of coal to a customer,

and in making the delivery used the automobile

truck insured under the policy. Plaintiff's em-

ployee dumped the coal in the street in front of

the customer's house, drove away a short dis-

tance, turned, and was returning to his place of

business from the delivery. He dumped the coal

in the early morning before clear daylight, and
failed to leave any light or other warning on the

pile of coal. A man by the name of Bell, driv-

ing a motorcycle, ran into the pile of coal and
received injuries from which he died."

The Court decided that under the circumstances

the accident did not result from a risk undertaken

by the insurance company and that the company was

under no duty to defend the action.

The Court apparently took the view that there was

no negligence in unloading but that the negligence
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was in leaving the pile of coal unprotected. The fol-

lowing is Syllabus 1 prepared by the Court

:

'^An automobile liability insurance policy in-

suring against liability for loss resulting from
claims for damages caused by the use, owner-

ship, maintenance, or operation of a coal truck,

does not cover a claim for wrongful death result-

ing from a collision, in the early morning before

daylight, with a pile of coal dumped into the

street from such truck and negligently left impro-

tected and without lights or warning, contrary to

a city ordinance."

Morgan v. N. Y. Cos, Co. (Ga. 1936), 188 S. E.

581.

The plaintiff sought to recover from the insurance

company for its failure to defend him in an action

brought against him for personal injuries. The pol-

icy provided that the insurance company would pay

all claims which the insured might become liable to

pay as damages, either direct or consequential, re-

sulting by reason of the ownership, maintenance, or

use of a truck for the transportation of materials,

including loading and unloading, and *'to defend suits

for damages, even if groundless, in the name and on

behalf of the assured".

The Court pointed out that the complaint upon

which the suit for personal injury was based did not

connect the injury with the use of the trucks. (The

complaint stated that the defendant was delivering

coal through a chute, and that while chute was un-

attended plaintiff fell into it.)



21

The Court concluded that:

"So it clearly appears from the allegations of

the Freeman petition that the proximate cause

of his injuries was not from the use or opera-

tion of the truck in transporting materials or

merchandise or loading or unloading, but that

the proximate cause of his injuries was his falling

into the open and unattended coal chute, as

therein alleged. The insurance company would

not be bound to defend a suit, although ground-

less, unless in some way the injuries resulted from

the maintenance or use of the automobile truck."

Stammer v. Kitzmiller, et al. (Wis. 1937), 276

N. W. 629.

The facts as stated by the Court were as follows:

''On January 16, 1935, an employee of the

Blatz Brewing Company was using one of its

trucks to deliver beer to a tavern. He parked

the truck alongside the curb, got out, and opened

a hatchway in the sidewalk; then he removed a

barrel of beer from the truck and placed it either

on the sidewalk or on the street pavement. He
then lifted the barrel and put it through the

hatchway into the basement of the tavern. While

he was engaged in having the sales slip for the

beer signed inside the tavern, the plaintiff fell

into the open hatchway, left unguarded by the

Blatz employee."

The Court held that the facts stated did not pre-

sent a case within the terms of the policy. On page

631 the Court said:

''We pass to the question of the coverage af-

forded by the stipulation in the Employers Mu-
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tual Insurance policy, which reads: 'Operation,

mamtenance or use (inchiding transportation of

goods, loading and unloading) of an automobile'.

The stipulation to pay all losses and expenses im-

posed by law under the clause quoted does not

carry the liability of the insurer beyond what
may be described as the natural territorial lim-

its of an automobile and the process of loading

and unloading it. When the goods have been
taken off the automobile and have actually come
to rest, when the automobile itself is no longer

connected with the process of unloading, and
when the material which has been unloaded from
the automobile has plainly started on its course

to be delivered by other power and forces inde-

pendent of the automobile and the actual method
of unloading, the automobile then may be said

to be no longer in use. The precise line at which
the unloading of the automobile ends and a fur-

ther phase of commerce such as the completion

of delivery begins after imloading may in some
cases be difficult of ascertainment, but where, as

here, the merchandise had been removed from the

truck and considerable time had elapsed after

anything was done which could reasonably be

said to be connected with the actual unloading,

there is no difficulty in limiting the responsibility

of the insurer who covers loading and unload-

ing operations, and fixing the liability of an in-

surer who protects against loss arising from the

acts caused by employees of the assured engaged

in the discharge of their duties to carry on its

work off the assured 's premises."

The case of In re Consolidated Indemnity Insur-

ance Co., 161 Misc. 701 (New York) (1936); 292
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N. Y. S. 743, is of interest although it did not involve

delivery. In that case the automobile policy covered

liability for damages resulting from the "operation,

maintenance, use or the defective construction" of a

taxicab belonging to the assured. It was claimed

that the assured was liable for damage to a hall re-

sulting from the negligent handling of a trunk which

the employee was carrying from the apartment to the

taxicab. The Court said that the liability of the

assured for the negligent transportation of the trunk

was clearly not within the coverage of the policy

for the damage to the apartment house was wholly

unconnected with the "operation, maintenance, use

or construction" of the taxicab. If the Court in this

case followed the reasoning of the Court below in

deciding the principal case, the assured would have

been held liable for the negligent handling of the

trunk. The argument would have been "operation,

maintenance and use" includes the "loading or un-

loading" of a vehicle; the carrying of goods toward

the vehicle is a part of the process of loading and,

accordingly, the accident in question arose out of the

"operation, maintenance or use" of the ti*uck.

The coverage contemplated by the committee which

drafted the policy is stated by Mr. E. W. Sawyer in

his book entitled "Automobile Liability Insurance".

His statement, which is quoted below, is in accord with

the view of the Courts as to the scope of the policy.

Mr. Sawj^er says

:

"The ])lacing of goods, merchandise, or other

materials in commercial automobiles is recognized

as a part of the hazard in the use of the auto-
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mobile, and the same is true of removal. As a

general rule, it may be said that the hazard con-

templated as included in loading and unloading

of the automobile does not extend beyond the im-

mediate vicinity of the automobile. The convey-

ance of furniture from the second floor of a house

to the sidewalk does not constitute a part of the

loading hazard. The placing of the furniture on

the automobile does constitute a part of the hazard

contemplated. The actual removal of the goods

from the automobile is the unloading hazard

which is contemplated. The carrying of goods

away from the automobile is not a part of the

unloading hazard.

"A reasonable practical interpretation adopted

by some companies is that the loading hazard in-

cludes carrying the goods from the nearest avail-

able place of temporary deposit, such as a plat-

form or sidewalk; and that the unloading hazard

includes carrying the goods from the automobile

to such place of deposit. This interpretation

means simply this: If the automobile is being

unloaded in a street, it is not expected that the

goods will be deposited in the street. Therefore

unloading would be interpreted as including

placing the goods on the sidewalk. If the goods

are not placed on the sidewalk but are carried

beyond it, the miloading hazard would end when
the goods had been removed from the automo-

bile.

"A further example will serve to illustrate both

the scope and the limitations of the insurance of

the loading and unloading hazard. A trucking

concern is engaged to transport merchandise. It

uses both horse drawn vehicles and automobiles.

The merchandise must be transferred from rail-
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road freight cars over a platform for a distance

of fifty yards. Hand trucks are used for this pur-

pose, and the merchandise is not removed from

the hand ti'ucks until they are run onto the auto-

mobile or horse-drawn vehicle. The loading haz-

ard which is included in the coverage of the auto-

mobile liability policy is that which begins when
the hand trucks are run onto the automobiles.

And, conversely, the unloading hazard would end

when hand trucks, run onto the automobile to be

loaded, were run off the automobile. The trans-

ferring of the merchandise from the freight cars

across the platform by hand trucks or the trans-

fer of the merchandise from the automobiles or

horse-drawn vehicles across the platform to the

freight cars is not a hazard of loading and un-

loading of the automobiles or horse-drawn ve-

hicles. Such operations should be insured under
appropriate public liability policies.'*

The appellees have attempted to distinguish the

principal case from some of those cited above by say-

ing that when the Courts ruled that unloading had

been completed or that the accident did not arise out

of the unloading, they meant that because no further

merchandise was to be removed from the truck at

that particular point, the unloading was complete al-

though delivery was not complete. We believe, how-

ever, that the correct conclusion to be drawn from

those cases is that the Courts believed that the hazard

of actual unloading was within the coverage of auto-

mobile policies and that hazards of deliveiy by means

independent of the truck were not covered by such

policies. The Courts in the type of cases mentioned
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said in effect: the unloading is complete, or the acci-

dent did not arise out of the act of unloading, because

at the time of the accident the assured was not en-

gaged in unloading the vehicle ; he was delivering the

merchandise which had been unloaded. That is as

true in our case as in the cases in which the distmc-

tion is asserted.

(2) THE FACTS IN THE CASE AT BAR CANNOT BE SUCCESS-

FULLY DISTINGUISHED FROM THE CASES CITED.

In this case the truck was static at the curb on the

opposite side of the street from the place of the acci-

dent. It was not being ''operated" and its only ''use"

was in holding certain produce in a static position.

Certain produce had been "unloaded" and entirely

separated from the truck and carried by hand across

the street, across the opposite sidewalk, and into the

Inn, and was there delivered and came to rest. In

returning empty-handed the delivery boy was neither

loading or unloading the truck. His intention to go

back across the sidewalk and across the street and to

the truck and there unload further produce, no more

constituted "unloading" than a like intention formed

when he left his home in the morning intending to ride

on the truck and unload produce and make delivery

thereof.

The unloading of the produce actually unloaded was

completed. No injur}^ occurred from that process, nor

did any injury occur from the imloading of fuii^her

produce, because it was not unloaded but at the timp

of the accident was still in place on the truck. What
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difference does it make whether the boy intended to

make further deliveries to the same customer or to

some other customer? In neither event was his mere

intention to unload an act of unloading. The mere

fact that the truck was not completely unloaded at

the time of the accident does not show that the acci-

dent was caused by the ^'unloading". Suppose the

boy had first gone into the Inn to find what produce

was desired and was coming back to get the desired

produce. That might have been the practice or the

system, still his trip into and out of the Inn would

not constitute or be a part of the unloading. So far

as the produce which was actually delivered is con-

cerned, its unloading caused no injury. It was safely

unloaded and delivered without incident. So far as

other produce was concerned, its unloading caused no

injury, because at the time of the accident it was still

resting undisturbed in the truck.

Even if this accident had happened while the pro-

duce was being delivered it would not be covered im-

less at the time of the accident the produce was being

unloaded. Delivery might involve the use of other

means of transportation, such as roller skates, tram-

ways, elevators, escalators, hand trucks, stairways, etc.

Long distances might be involved. How can such

things be held to be ''unloading", which is defined as

being part of the use and operation of the truck?

But here the accident did not occur even during de-

livery, but occurred after the only thing unloaded

had been delivered.

Before the rule that a policy must be interpreted

against the insurer can be invoked, it must be shown
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that the policy is ambiguous. Wherein is the policy

ambiguous? The words 'Hise", '* operation ", ^'load-

ing" and "unloading" are words of clear meaning.

No testimony was introduced as to the meaning of

such words. Where, therefore, is the ambiguity? Of

course, questions of fact may arise as to whether cer-

tain things constitute use, operation, imloading or

loading, but that is not because the words are am-

biguous. The mere lack of definition of words of ordi-

nary and single meaning does not constitute an am-

biguity for which the author of the document is to be

penalized by adopting the most unfavorable meaning.

That rule can only apply when words are used which

have different or double meanings. The words ''use",

''operation", "loading" and "unloading" are common

words which everyone understands. That "use" of

an automobile includes the loading and unloading was

held even when the policy did not specifically so pro-

vide.

Panhandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity Union

Casualty Co., 23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas).

One is using an automobile if he is loading it or un-

loading it, because both acts are physically connected

with the automobile. But a person delivering material

after it has been unloaded is not using the automobile.

One returning to the truck after making a delivery is

not using the truck. A use must be physical, not

merely mental. A person crating or boxing produce

intended to be loaded into a truck is not using the

truck. A person transporting produce to a truck with

the intention of loading it on the truck is not using

the truck. The mere fact that the same person manu-
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factures, crates, transports, loads, unloads, and de-

livers produce does not make manufacture, crating,

transporting, or deliveiy part of the process of loading

and unloading, nor does it make such acts a use of the

truck. The process, no matter how often repeated, of

unloading, delivering and returning from delivery

does not make delivery and returning from delivery

part of the process of unloading.

(3) EVEN IF DELIVERY WERE PART OF UNLOADING, RE-

TURNING FROM SUCH DELIVERY CANNOT BE SO CON-
SIDERED.

If the argument should be made that the unloading

was not complete until the article unloaded came to

rest, and that, therefore, the unloading of the article

was not complete until delivered into the Inn, still

the unloading and delivery of that article was com-

plete at all events when it was so delivered. In re-

turning the person making the delivery was certainly

not unloading.

E. CONCLUSION.

We submit that the judgment of the District Court

should be reversed.

Dated, San Francisco,

May 1, 1940.

Edward F. Treadwell,

Reginald S. Laughlin,

Russell E. Barnes,

Attorneys for 'Appellant.





No. 9473

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit i

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),

Appellant,

YS. >

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung,

Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE

MAZILLA TIGHE.

Joseph J. Yovino-Young,

Rupert R. Ryan,
Eay Building, Oakland, California,

Attorneys for Appellee

Mazilla Tighe.

FILED
JUN14I840 .

PAUL p. O'BRIEN,
9L.W.HK

Pbbnau-Wai,sh Printing Co.. San Fkancisco



?



Subject Index

Page

Statement of the Case 1

Contentions of Appellant 3

Statement of Issue 4

Argument 6

Cases cited by appellant abundantly support the trial court's

contention 11

Authorities Classified and Distinguished 12

I. Cases where, at the time of the accident, the process of

unloading had already been completed 12

II. Cases where although process of unloading was incom^

plete at the time of the accident, the cause of the acci-

dent was but indirectly or incidentally related to the

use of the vehicle or the unloading thereof, or where

accident resulted from some act or circumstance entirely

disconnected with said unloading 15

III. Anomalous cases which are irrelevant to the points or

the issues here presented either because (a) a commer-

cial vehicle was not involved, or (b) no loading or un-

loading clause involved 16

Recent Case Rejects Appellant's Theory 19



Table of Authorities Cited

I

Cases Pages

Armour & Company v. General Accident, Fire & Life Assur-

ance Corporation, Ltd., Number 20,287-L, District Court

of the United States, Northern District of California,

Southern Division 13

Franklin Co-Op. Creamery Ass'n v. Employers' Liability

Assurance Corporation, et al. (Minn. 1937), 273 N. W. 809 15

Jackson Floor Covering Co. v. Maryland Casualty Company,

189 Atl. 84, 117 N. J. Law 401 (1937) 16

John Alt Furniture Co. v. Maryland Casualty Co., 88 F.

(2d) 36 (Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit)

(1937) 16

Luchte v. State Automobile Mutual Ins. Co., 197 N. E. 421,

50 Ohio App. 5 (1935) 12

Merchants Co. et al. v. Hartford Accident and Indemnity

Co., et al., Miss. Supreme Court (1939), 188 So. 571 17

Morgan v. N. Y. Cas. Co. (Ga. 1936), 188 S. E. 581 12

Mullen V. Hartford Accident and Indemnity Co., Supreme

Court of Mass., 191 N. E. Rep. 394 11

Panhandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity Union Casualty Co.,

23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas)
*

10, 17

Park Saddle Co. v. Royal Indemnity Company, 81 Mont. 99,

261 Pac. 880 10

Stammer v. Kitzmiller, et al. (Wis. 1937), 276 N. W. 629. . . 13

State Brewing Company, et al. v. District Court, 2nd Judi-

cial District in and for Silver Bow County, et al., Supreme

Court of Montana, March 11, 1940, 100 P. (2d) 932 19

United Mutual Fire Ins. Co. v. Jamestown Mutual Fire Ins.

Co., 242 App. Div. 420, 275 N. Y. S. 47 11

Wheeler v. London, etc., Co., 292 Pa. 156, 140 A. 855 20

Zurich General Accident & Liability Ins. Co., Limited v.

American Mut. Liability Ins. Co. of Boston, 192 Atl. 387,

118 N. J. Law 317 (1937) 14

Statutes and Codes

28 USCA §400 1



No. 9473

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),

Appellant,

vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung,

Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE

MAZILLA TIGHE.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

The Maryland Casualty Company brought this ac-

tion in the District Federal Court asking- for declara-

tory relief under Federal Declaratory Judgment Act,

28 ITSCA §400, and for the purpose of having,' the

coverage determined upon a certain policy it issued

to one Ah Chong. This appeal is from the decision

of that trial court which held the injury in ques-

tion covered by the provisions of the ])olicy. Although

at the time certain other contentions in addition to

policy coverage were advanced, apparently they have



now been abandoned, leaving here for consideration

the sole issue of policy coverage.

The facts that gave rise to the mstant action, and

as set out in the findings and opinion of the trial court

are as follows

:

On the morning of November 26, 1937, about 8:30

A. M. the plaintiff, Mrs. Mazilla Tighe, was on her

way to her place of employment in the White House

on Sutter Street in San Francisco. She was proceed-

ing in an easterly direction on the south sidewalk of

Sutter Street, and was in the block prior to her des-

tination, having reached a point on the sidewalk op-

posite the entrance of a restaurant named the '^Picca-

dilly Inn". The sidewalk was about twelve feet wide

and she was walking along the center about equi-

distant from the building and curb lines. When she

had reached this point opposite the entrance, one

Leong Cheung, defendant, an employee of Ah Chong,

emerged from the doorway of this restaurant and in

running back toward the curb for a further load of

vegetables from a truck parked across the street, negli-

gently collided with Mrs. Tighe, knocking her down
and causing serious injuries.

It further developed the Leong Cheung was a young

man of the Chinese race and at the time was in the

employ of Ah Chong, a fruit and vegetable peddler

who was using the truck for that purpose at the time

of the accident. The Piccadilly Inn was one of his

regular customers. Ah Chong drove the automobile

and Leong Chimg helped him as delivery boy. On
the occasion of this accident, Leong Cheung was then

engaged in making a series of deliveries under the



direct supervision and direction of Ah Chong, and

after the accident he continued the process of unload-

ing and made two or three more trips, carrying vege-

tables from the truck into the Piccadilly Inn before

the unloading was completed.

Mazilla Tighe instituted an action in the Superior

Court of the State of California, in and for the City

and County of San Francisco, against Ah Chong, who

requested the Maryland Casualty Company, appel-

lants, to defend him under the provisions of the pol-

icy herein involved. They declined, except under a

reservation of right, and have brought this action for

declaratory relief, contending

:

CONTENTIONS OF APPELLANT.

(1) That the accident did not arise out of the use

of the automobile described and covered by said policy

in that the unloading was completed when the goods

were physically removed from the truck, and the

process of delivery is entirely different from unload-

ing.

(2) That if under any circumstances delivery is

part of the unloading, the unloading is complete when

the delivery is actually made.

(3) So far as some future or additional unloading

is concerned, it certainly would not start until some

physical acts were performed on or about the truck

for the purpose of effecting such unloading, and the

mere intent in the mind of the boy in returning from

the Piccadilly Inn, crossing the sidewalk and crossing

the street to unload some further goods, constituted no

act of unloading within the meaning of the policy.



STATEMENT OF ISSUE.

The provisions of the policy here involved are

:

''Item 1: * * * The occupation of the named
insured is Fruit and Vegetable Peddler

"* * * The purposes for which the automobile

is to be used are Commercial.

a* * * ijij^g term 'pleasure and business' is

defined as personal, pleasure, family and business

use. (b) The term 'commercial' is defined as the

transportation or delivery of goods, merchandise

or other materials, and uses incidental thereto, in

direct connection with the named insured's busi-

ness occupation as expressed in Item 1. (c) Use
of the automobile for the purposes stated includes

the loading and unloading thereof.

''* * * Coverage A—Bodily Injury Liability. To
pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the

insured shall become obligated to pay by reason

of the liabilit}^ imposed upon him by law for dam-
ages, including damages for care and loss of serv-

ices, because of bodity injury, including death at

any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any
person or persons, caused by accident and arising

out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the

automobile." (Italics ours.)

The single issue is

:

Does the accident in the instant case fall ivithin the

foregoing provisions of the policy'^

Although appellant's contention is not altogether

clearly defined, our understanding is that the insurer

attempts to escape liability by breaking up the process

of unloading and delivery into discrete and discon-



tinuous ^'miloadings" and ''deliveries" and appar-

ently posits the following theory:

(1) That the "unloading" of goods is entirely

distinct, different and disconnected from a "delivery"

of same.

(2) That the policy protects the insured only

against accidents arising out of an "unloading" and

is inapplicable to a "delivery".

(3) That in the instant case the term "unloading"

as used in the policy refers solely to the physical re-

moval of merchandise from the truck, which occurred

preliminary to any given trix) across the street into

the Piccadilly Inn.

(4) That the appellant is not liable because at the

time of the sidewalk collision, the first "unloading"

had been consummated and the second "unloading"

had not been initiated, even though at said time said

merchandise was at rest on the truck which was sub-

sequently "unloaded" and "delivered" within the

Inn.

The trial court, however, has pointed out in its

opinion (Tr. p. 56), that this construction of the pol-

icy is entirely too narrow and that, "unloading" was

a continuing process which included all removal of

goods, destined for the Inn, from the truck, and all

deliveries of same into the Inn. In addition to tliis,

we respectfully urge as indicated above, that appel-

lant's construction does violence to the express terms

of the policy, which indemnified the insured against

losses arising out of the lise of the truck, and spe-



cifically defines said use to include not only ^^unload-

ing'' but also ''delivery" of merchandise transported

by the insured vehicle.

ARGUMENT.

The court's attention is respectfully directed to the

italicized words in the foregoing provisions of the

policy. Our view is that unless the phrase ''delivery

of goods, merchandise or other materiar', is utterly

meaningless and nugatory, the policy, hy its express

terms, protects the insured against losses arising out

of the unloading and the delivery of merchandise, both

of which are specifically defined herein as uses of the

automobile.

In attempting to resolve the above issue, considera-

tion must be given to the nature of the assured 's busi-

ness, i. e., fruit and vegetable peddler, and to the

specialized use of the insured's vehicle in such busi-

ness, including the manner of unloading thereof, and

the manner of delivery of merchandise therefrom.

It must be presumed that the appellant was familiar

with the foregoing business and that it was clearly

within the contemplation of both parties at the time

the contract of insurance was entered into. Specifically,

it must be presumed that the appellant at the time

the policy was issued, knew that the unloading and

delivery of merchandise from the insured's truck,

necessitated the removal of such goods from the ve-

hicle by hand and their transportation by foot move-



ment into the purchaser's place of business, and that

said unloading and delivery as to any particular

vendee ordinarily required a series of trips to and

from the truck and the vendee's place of business.

These necessary and inescapable presumptions,

coupled with the essential facts of the instant case,

logically compel us to adopt the' view that at the time

of the collision and resultant injury to Mrs. Tighe,

the process of serial unloading and delivery was going

on,—a process which was continuous, entire and non-

severable as to those component elements or acts and

which could not and did not end until all the goods

purchased had been taken from the insured vehicle

and delivered within the vendee Inn.

In an apparent attempt to import a subjective ele-

ment into the case, appellant's brief repeatedly refers

to employee Leong Cheung's "state of mind", de-

claring vigorously and repetitiously that the mere in-

tent in the mind of Leong Cheung to go back across

the sidewalk and there to unload further produce,

did not constitute "unloading". There is no aura of

mysticism enveloping the single issue raised by this

appeal. In resolving that issue, we fail to perceive

the necessity of indulging in physical abstractions.

The criteria for the fixation of appellant's liability

are not subjective, but, however, objective—they are

certain physical, visible facts existing at the time of

the accident, to-wit

:

(1) That vegetables had already been taken from

the truck into the Picadilly Inn.
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(2) That Leong Clieong in the performance of his

duty as delivery boy, was moving from the Inn toward

the truck, for more produce, and

(3) That merchandise destined for the Inn was

still on the truck, the removal of which was necessary

to complete the unloading.

The order to bring in vegetables had been given by

Ah Chong and Leong Cheung was a mere instrument

or appliance of his employer, without initiative, voli-

tion or power of independent action and was function-

ing to carry out the order when he collided with Mrs.

Tighe.

It is undeniable that the term "delivery" denotes

change, transfer or surrender of possession. A re-

moval of goods from a vehicle and the deposit of same

upon the sidewalk would not constitute ''delivery" in

the ordinary and universally recognized sense of that

term. In the instant case the vegetables in Ah Chong 's

truck could not be delivered until they had been de-

posited in a place of rest upon the purchaser's prem-

ises. In the light of all the circumstances of this case,

the operation of ''unloading" and "delivery" are

logically and effectually inseparable; they cannot be

disassociated and together form one continuous uni-

tary process. In the vast majority of cases construing

automobile liability policies, commodities taken from

the insured vehicle are placed on the sidewalk, or plat-

form, or hand-truck, or some other place of temporary

deposit, before possession is transferred by the vendor

to the vendee. In the case at bar, however, it must be

I!



borne iii mind that there was no intermediate place

of position or rest, or deposit, between the truck and

the kitchen of the Inn, from the time they were lifted

from the truck until the time they were placed in a

position of rest within the kitchen, and the vegetables

were in a course of continuous unbroken transit. It

was because of this decisive factor, we believe, that

the court below held that the process of unloading

included the delivery of the vegetables. Assuming that

the policy in question was completely silent on the

subject of delivery, we urge that accidents occurring

during this single continuous j^rocess would fall within

that portion of the policy that defines ^'unloading"

as one of the uses of the automobile, and, that the

process of unloading began with the removal of the

first vegetables, and continued without break or pause,

and did not end imtil the last of the purchased goods

had been deposited in the Inn's kitchen.

In placing a construction and limitation upon the

insurer's legal responsibilities within the policy cov-

erage, the courts sometimes state the problem in terms

of legal causation. In endeavoring to define the lim-

itation of the legally protected interest, all cases must

be considered in the light of their particular facts^

In the instant case, the negligent act and resulting

injui'ies occui'red as an incident within the processes

of serial unloading. Unloading and delivery were the

hazards contemplated and within the facts of this

case were the direct and primary cause of the injury.

The accident and injury had a pe(ni1iar and necessary

connection with the process and was intrinsicallv re-
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lated to the use of the automobile. It arose as a nat-

ural and probable consequence of the unloading and

delivery process.

In Pmihandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity Union

Casualty Co., 23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas), the court

uses language

:

u * * * gjjj(>g ^]^g r^^l^^ Qf unloading was one of the

natural and necessary steps to the undertaking

to deliver the beam, and followed in natural se-

quence, the use of the truck to that end, which

use was specifically contemplated and covered by

the policy, we believe that the conclusion is un-

avoidable, that the use of the truck was the pri-

mary and efficient cause of the injury, even though

it should not be held to be the proximate cause,

within the meaning of that term as employed in

acts based on negligence of the defendants."

We refer further to the case of Park Saddle Co. v.

Royal Indemnity Company, 81 Mont. 99, 111, 261 Pac.

880, where the policy of insurance insuring plaintiff

against loss arising out of liability for bodily injury

by reason of the maintenance and use, or maintenance

or use of saddle or pack horses, the guide carelessly

and negligently allowed the party to become lost and

by reason of said fact, it was necessary to cross dan-

gerous and steep mountain sides and inclines, and

when so doing the tourist was required to dismount

from the horses and to lead them. While so doing, one

of the party slipped, caught her heel and fell, causing

injury.

^'If it had not been for the saddle horses, the

trip would not have been undertaken, and it was
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by the use of the horses, and not otherwise, that

the party arriA^ed at the place of danger. As a

protection, not only to the rider, but to the horse,

it was deemed necessary for the rider to dismount

and proceed on foot. The entire transaction grew

out of, and the accident happened on account of,

or by reason of, the use of horses, and it grew out

of the use of the horses in the operation of the

insured's business."

a* * *
^j^ ^i^j^g Yiew it cannot be said he knew

that the accident was not caused efficiently and

proximately by the use of the horses and opera-

tion of the insured's business or, to follow the

language of the policy 'by reason of the mainte-

nance and use of saddle horses, in connection with

the assured 's business'."

In this connection see:

Mullen V. Hartford Accident and Indemnity

Co., Supreme Court of Mass. 191 N. E. Rep.

394;

United Mutual Fire Ins. Co. v. Jamestotvn Mu-

tual Fire Ins. Co., 242 App. Div. 420, 275 N.

Y. S. 47.

CASES CITED BY APPELLANT ABUNDANTLY SUPPORT
THE TRIAL COURT'S CONTENTION.

We consider that we would be remiss if we did not

coiTect a misstatement in the appellant's brief on page

12, where he states that the trial judge neither cited

nor relied upon any authority construing the policy.

Appellant will recall that upon the trial of this case

he cited all the cases herein cited and argued and
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briefed all the authorities contained in the instant

brief, and that they were most carefully considered.

We have been cited no cases where accidents occurred

as part of the deliver}^ and unloading" process that do

not support the trial court's decision. To indicate this

more clearly we have classified and distinguished these

cases cited by appellant into three divisions

:

AUTHORITIES CLASSIFIED AND DISTINGUISHED.

I. CASES WHERE, AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT, THE
PROCESS OF UNLOADING HAD ALREADY BEEN COM-
PLETED.

Luchte V. State Automobile Mutual Ins. Co., 197

N. E. 421, 50 Ohio App. 5 (1935). (Appellant's brief

p. 19.) Plaintiff in this case was in the retail coal

business and had, through an employee, delivered coal

to a customer by dropping the coal in the street in

front of the customer's house. He drove away and

failed to leave any light or warning on the pile of coal.

One Bell drove his motorcycle into the pile of coal and

was killed. The negligent act alleged is leaving the

pile of coal '* unprotected and without lights or warn-

ing, contrary to a city ordinance". Apparently no

loading clause was involved, mere use, ownership and

intention.

Morgan v. N. Y. Cas. Co. (Ga. 1936), 188 S. E. 581.

(Appellant's brief p. 20.) One Morgan operated a

fuel company and insured its trucks, in the ''trans-

portation of materials and merchandise, including the

loading and unloading". An employee in delivering

coal through a chute in the sidewalk, left the chute
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unattended. The complaint alleged the plaintiff fell

into the coal chute after dark, and that the defendant

coal company was negligent in having left the chute

open, miguarded or without warning or red light. The

coal truck
i

was in no way mentioned or referred to in

plaintiff's petition.

Stmnmer v. Kitsmiller,et ah (Wis. 1937), 276 N. W.

629. (Appellant's brief p. 21.) An employee of a

brewing company, in using one of the trucks to deliver

beer to a tavern, parked the truck alongside the curb,

got out, opened a hatchway in the sidewalk; then he

removed a barrel of beer from the truck and placed it

either on the sidewalk or street pavement. He then

lifted the barrel and put it through the hatchway into

the basement of the tavern. After completing this and

while he was engaged in having a sales slip for the

beer signed inside the tavern, plaintiff fell into the

open hatchway left unguarded by the employee. The

coverage clause included ''operation, maintenance or

use (including transportation of goods, loading and

unloading) of the automobile ".

The court points out that considerable time had

elapsed after anything was done which could reason-

ably be said to be connected with the actual unloading

here.

Armour <h Company v. General Accident, Fire &
Life Assurance Corporation, Ltd. (Number 20,287-L;

District Court of the United States, Northern District

of California, Southern Division; decided November

2, 1939.) (Appellant's bi-ief p. 18.) In this case an
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employee unloaded hams from an automobile and by

use of a small hand truck transported them into a

market. It was customary for the proprietor of the

market to weigh the hams before accepting- delivery.

On this occasion, however, the proprietor was absent

at the moment, and the delivery man ivent away and

left the Ivams, intending to return later to check the

weight and pick up the invoice he had left. The de-

livery man was negligent in leaving the hand truck

containing the hams in a dangerous place ; and by rea-

son of that negligence the customer of the market was

injured. Clearly no active delivery was involved. The

man had departed, the proximate cause of the injury

was the leaving of the hand truck in a dangerous place.

Zurich Geyieral Accident & Liability Ins. Co.,

Limited, v. American Mut. Liability Ins. Co. of Boston,

192 Atl. 387, 118 N. J. Law 317 (1937). (Appellant's

brief p. 15.) The delivery man rolled a can of milk

into the back of a store where the proprietor had his

ice box and lifted the milk into the ice box. He was

servicing the ice box when the ice pick in his rear

pocket caused injury. The court states

:

"The assured 's servant was then engaged in the

servicing of delivered milk upon Borer's premises,

an act entirely disconnected with the unloadin2:

of the articles from the vehicle." (Italics ours.)
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II. CASES WHERE ALTHOUGH PROCESS OF UNLOADING WAS
INCOMPLETE AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT, THE
CAUSE OF THE ACCIDENT WAS BUT INDIRECTLY OR
INCIDENTALLY RELATED TO THE USE OF THE VEHICLE
OR THE UNLOADING THEREOF, OR WHERE ACCIDENT
RESULTED FROM SOME ACT OR CIRCUMSTANCE EN-

TIRELY DISCONNECTED WITH SAID UNLOADING.

Frmiklin Co-Op. Creamery Ass'n v. Employers^

Liability Assurance Corporation, et al. (Minn. 1937),

273 N. W. 809. (Appellant's brief p. 14.) An em-

ployee stopped his milk wagon in front of a building,

filled his containers with milk bottles, and entered the

building. After entering the building he walked about

thirty feet to a freight elevator, set down his container,

and then, for the purpose of using the elevator, pulled

on the ropes or cables which controlled its operation.

In so doing he injured a third person. The court held,

at page 811

:

"The operation of the freight elevator wholly
within the building, and remote from the wagon,
solely for the driver's convenience in ascending to

the third floor, had nothing whatever, in our opin-

ion, to do with the 'use' of the teams or vehicles."

ii¥r * * i^o^rever, it seems to us, that even assum-
ing the word 'unloading' had a peculiar signifi-

cance in the milk trade, in Minneapolis, yet by no
stretch of the imagination could the court have
contemplated the running of a freight elevator in

no way connected with the milk company's busi-

ness other than to house some of its. customers, or

that the policy could have been intended by either

party to cover the operation of the freight ele-

vators for the driver's sole convenience, accom-

panied as it was by a concededly extra hazard."
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J^ohn Alt Ftirniture Co. v. Maryland Casualty Co.,

88 F. (2d) .36 (Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Cir-

cuit) (1937). (Appellant's brief p. 17.) In this case

the insured had been engaged in delivering furniture

to a customer. In order to carry the furniture from

the truck to the cus.tomer's apartment, it was neces-

sary to remove the doors from the building. The door

was leaned against a clothes pole on the property and

blown by the wind, fell, causing injury to an occupant

of the premises. The court rightly held that the causal

chain was broken and that the accident arose out of a

circumstance which was but incidentally related to the

'^ unloading" process; that the unloading was not the

direct and proximate cause of the injury. The appel-

lant seeks to create the impression that the accident

occurred before the unloading of the furniture had

been completed (See pages 17-18 of the brief.) How-
ever, there is no justification for this implication. The

court stated

:

''The door had been in this position about a

half hour to an hour while the assured 's employees

were taking the furniture into the flat, when the

wnnd apparently blew the door over and in, falling

the top of the door struck Lola Olsen, etc."

III. ANOMALOUS CASES WHICH ARE IRRELEVANT TO THE
POINTS OR THE ISSUES HERE PRESENTED EITHER BE-

CAUSE (a) A COMMERCIAL VEHICLE WAS NOT IN-

VOLVED, OR (b) NO LOADING OR UNLOADING CLAUSE
INVOLVED.

Jackson Floor Covering Co. v. Maryland Casualty

Company, 189 Atl. 84, 117 N. J. Law 401 (1937). (Ap-
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pellant's brief p. 13.) The language of exclusion from

coverage in this case was

:

"Automobile, vehicle, or any draught or driving

animal.
'

'

It was appellant's, Maryland Casualty Company's,

point that a hand truck involved in the accident Was a

"draught vehicle" within the terms of the policy.

However, the learned trial judge properly held other-

wise.

Panhandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity Union

Casualty Co., 23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas). (Appel-

lant's brief p. 28.) This case involved the delivery of

a structural steel beam at the purchaser's plant and:

"While the beam of iron was being moved
across the sidewalk into the building, and when
about one-half the beam was off the truck, Miss

Ida Cxodley happened to pass along the sidewalk

and was injured. Insurance covered the truck

for 'business and pleasure' and insured against

loss from liability by law upon the assured for

damages on account of bodily injuries, including

death resulting therefrom, either instantaneous or

not."

The court reached the conclusion that the injury was

the result of its use, irrespective of whether or not the

word "maintenance" should be construed as having

substantially the same meaning as the word "use".

We desire to call attention to the tendency of the

courts to adopt a liberal construction in their inter-

pretation of coverage provisions, in the case of Mer-

chants Co. et al. V. Hartford Accident and Indemnity
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Co., et al, Miss. Supreme Court (1939), 188 So. 571,

the Merchants Company, while making deliveries to

retail customers, one of its trucks went into a road-

side ditch on a public highway and it was necessary to

use several large poles in extricating the truck. When
this was done the operator of the truck drove away,

leaving the poles in the road. That night Grubbs, a

traveler in a passenger automobile, struck one or more

of the poles and was severely injured. The Merchants

Company held an insurance policy obligating the in-

surer to pay all sums payable by reason of damages

for accidental bodily injury to any person, arising^ out

of the ownership, maintenance or use of automobiles

:

''Our conclusion, under a policy such as is here

before us, is that where a dangerous situation

caused injuiy either one of which arose out of or

had its source in the use or operation of the auto-

mobile, the chain of responsibility must be deemed
to poss,ess the requisite articulation with the use

or operation until broken by the intervention of

some event which has no direct or substantial rela-

tion to the use or operation * * *''

"* * * Certainly the use of the poles to ex-

tricate the truck from the roadside ditch was an
event which arose out of, trans]>ired in, and was
necessary to, the operation of the truck * * *

the next event which happened was that the truck

drove away, leaving the poles in the road, but the

poles were not left until the moment when the

truck drove away."
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RECENT CASE REJECTS APPELLANT'S THEORY.

We respectfully submit that the case of State Brew-

ing Company, et al. v. District Court, 2nd Judicial

District in and for Silver Bow County, et al., Supreme

Court of Montana, March 11, 1940, 100 P. (2d) 932, is

very similar in its facts with the instant case and cor-

rectly states the construction to be placed upon the

provisions of the policy here involved. We believe

this case merits careful reading as it is essentially on

all fours with the instant case. The insured's policy

covering beer delivery trucks was identical with the

policy provisions in the instant case

:

"On May 3, 1938, the brewing company was en-

gaged in delivering a barrel of beer to a place

known as 'Clifford's' at 11 East Broadway in the

City of Butte. The beer was about to be delivered

into the basement through certain hinged doors in

the sidewalk. On the day in question the beer had
been taken from the brewing company 's truck and
placed upon the sidewalk. As plaintiff was walk-

ing along the sidewalk one of the servants of the

brewing company, without wai'ning to McCulloch,

lifted the doors from underneath the sidewalk

preparatory to lowering the beer into the cellar

through the door. The door was lifted just as

McCulloch stepped on it, and as a result he was
injured."

The insurer declined to defend, contending

:

u* * * ^j^g ^jg^ ^^j- ^j^g automobile had ceased,

tlie unloading had been accomplished and the de-

livery of the beer to the customer had commenced,
and since the delivery, undertaken after the beer

had been removed from the truck, was a part of
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the business of the brewing company and entailed

no further use of the truck, the contract of the in-

demnity company, and not of the insurance com-
pany, protects the brewing company.

'

' There are cases* involving similar facts though
differing in some respects which by analogy suj)-

port this view. Among such cases may be cited

the following: Stunimer v. Kitzmiller, 226 Wis.

348, 276 N. W. 629; Franklin Co-op. Creamery
Ass'n. V. Employers' Liahility Assurance Corp.,

200 Minn. 230, 273 N. W. 809; Zurich General

Accident etc. Co., 118 N. J. L. 317, 192 A. 387;

Caron v. American, etc., Co., 277 Mass,. 156, 178

N. E. 286; and John Alt Furniture Co. v. Mary-
land Casualty Co., 8 Cir., 88 F.2d 36."

The Supreme Court of Montana, after considering

the cases cited by the appellant here, together with the

instant case and the case of Wheeler v. London, etc.,

Co., 292 Pa. 156, 140 A. 855, 856, stated:

"We hold that under the facts here presented

the unloading of the truck was a continuous opera-

tion from the time the truck came to a stop and

the transportation ceased until the barrel of beer

was. delivered to the customer. The miloading of

the truck cannot be said to have been accom-

plished when the barrel of beer w^as placed upon

the sidewalk. As well might it be argued that the

loading of the truck consisted merely of the act of

lifting commodities from the ground to the body

of the truck. The loading of the truck would con-

template much more than that. It would embrace

the entire process of moving the commodities from

their accustomed place of storage or the place

from which they were being delivered until they
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had been placed on the truck. This being so, the

insurance company policy has application. The
court properly overruled the demurrer of the in-

surance company."

We submit that for the foregoing reasons the judg-

ment of the District Court should be affirmed.

Dated, Oakland, California,

June 14, 1940.

Joseph J. Yovino-Young,

Rupert R. Ryan,

Attorneys for Appellee

Mazilla Tighe.





No. 9473

IN" THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit -n

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),

Appellant,

vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung,
Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEES

AH CHONG AND LEONG CHEUNG.

Charles B. Morris,
Mills Building. San Francisco,

Carroll B. Crawford,
Mills Building, San Francisco,

Attorneys for Appellees

Ah Chong cmd Leong Cheung.

FSl ED

PvnwATT-'WAr aw PnrMTTVo Cn Saw WnAMriRrn





Subject Index

Page

A. Statement as to jurisdiction 1

B. Statement of the case 1

C. Specification of errors 3

D. Argument 4

I. The judgment of the District Court is amply sup-

ported by the authorities cited in the opinion,

though there is no lack of other specific cases which

sustain the judgment, as will be shown in another

subdivision of this argument 4

II. Appellant has cited no authority warranting re-

versal of the judgment herein, which is in harmony

with a well established line of American decisions. . 8

III. For reversal of the judgment appellant depends

upon a theory of its own invention unsupported

in law 13

IV. Analysis of the "Loading and Unloading" clause

by the Supreme Court of Montana 14

Conclusion 18



Table of Authorities Cited

Cases Pages

Armour & Co. v. General Accident, Fire and Life Assurance

Co., Ltd., No. 20,287L, District Court of the United States,

Northern Dist. of California 11

Carl Ingalls, Inc. v. Hartford Fire Ins. Co., 137 Cal. App.

741, 31 Pac. (2d) 414 6

Caron v. American, etc. Co., 277 Mass. 156, 178 N. E. 286. . . 16

Franklin Co-Op. Creamery Assn. v. Employers' Liability

Assurance Corp., 200 Minn. 230, 273 N. W. 809 7, 8, 10, 16

Goss V. Security Insurance Company of California, 113 Cal.

App. 580, 298 Pac. 860 5

Granger v. New Jersey Ins. Co., 108 Cal. App. 290, 291 Pac.

678, 700 5, 13

Jackson Floor Covering Company v. Maryland Casualty Co.,

117 N. J. Law 401, 189 Atl. 84 9

John Alt Furniture Co. v. Maryland Casualty Co., 88 Fed.

(2d) 36 8, 11, 16

Luchte V. State Automobile Mutual Ins. Co., 50 Ohio App. 5,

197 N. E. 421 12

Maryland Casualty Co. v. Tighe, 29 Fed. Supp. 69 14

Moblad V. Western Indemnity Co., 53 Cal. App. 683, 200

Pac. 750 6

Morgan v. N. Y. Casualty Co., 54 Ga. App. 620, 188 S. E.

581 12

Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. Hurni Packing Co., 263 U. S. 167,

174, 68 L. Ed. 236, 237 7

Myerstein v. Great Am. Ins. Co., 82 Cal. App. 131, 255 Pac.

220 6

Panhandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity Union Casualty Co.,

23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas) 16

Stammer v. Kitzmiller, 226 Wis. 348, 276 N. W. 629 8, 16

State ex rel. Butte Brewing Co. v. District Court of Second

Judicial Dist. in and for Silver Bow County (Mont.), 100

Pac. (2d) 932 14



Table of Authorities Cited iii

Pages

Wheeler v. London, etc., 292 Pa. 156, 140 Atl. 855, 856 16

Zurich General Accident and Liability Ins. Co., Ltd. v. Ameri-

can Mut. Liability Ins. Co. of Boston, 118 N. J. Law 317,

192 Atl. 387 10, 16

Statutes and Codes

Civil Code of California, Sec. 1644 5

Texts

Automobile Liability Insurance", by E, W. Sawyer 12





No. 9473

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),

'Appellmit,

vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and Leong

Cheung,

Appellees.

y

BRIEF FOR APPELLEES

AH CHONG AND LEONG CHEUNG.

A. STATEMENT AS TO JURISDICTION.

Appellant's statement as to jurisdiction appears to

be correct and therefore requires no comment here.

B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

Appellant's statement of the case is also correct in

every material detail. The second paragraph thereof

on page 5 states the sole question involved herein cor-

rectly as follows:



''The sole question involved is whether an acci-

dent which is the subject of an action in the State

Court is within the coverage of an automobile
policy issued by the plaintiff to the defendant Ah
Chong. The policy was attached to the com-
plaint and it insures against injuries arising out

of the ownership, maintenance and use of an auto-

mobile (truck), and provided that the use in-

cluded 'the loading and unloading thereof."

As proved by the evidence and found by the trial

Court, the circumstances which gave rise to the action

in the State Court, briefly stated, are these: Leong

Cheung was an employee of the insured, Ah Chong,

and while so employed Leong Cheung made a delivery

of vegetables to a restaurant known as Piccadilly Inn

on Sutter Street, San Francisco, from the insured's

commercial truck parked at the curb of Sutter Street,

opposite and across the street from Piccadilly Inn;

that, having made one delivery, Leong Cheung, while

returning to the truck for a second delivery of vege-

tables, collided with Mazilla Tighe on the sidewalk

(or is alleged to have collided with her), knocking

Mrs. Tighe down and causing the personal injuries

upon which the action in the State Court is predi-

cated. (R. p. 67.)

As previously stated herein, the case turns on the

question: Within the meaning of the policy of lia-

bility insurance was Leong Cheung engaged in "un-

loading" the truck at the time of the accident?



C. SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS.

Attention is directed especially to Appellant's first

specification (Appellant's Opening Brief, p. 10), in-

asmuch as it sets forth a theory of the case highly

unique, and, in the opinion of these Appellees, abso-

lutely untenable for the reason that it is unsupported

by any authority. This theory, expressed in Appel-

lant's words, is:

"That the delivery was complete and the em-
ployee at the time of the accident was returning

to the truck, which at the time was parked on the

opposite side of the street."

In other words, it appears to be Appellant's theory

that, when a truck driver is unloading a truck, each

trip to the place where the load is being deposited

constitutes a complete unloading and the coverage of

the automobile liability policy therefore cannot be

extended to the driver's return trip to his truck for

another installment of his load. This theory has two

pronounced weaknesses: (1) It is illogical and tech-

nical to a high degree, and (2) it is absolutely un-

supported by authority.

The remaining paragraphs of Appellant's Specifica-

tion of Errors call for no more comment than will

appear from time to time in the argument herein.
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THE JUDGMENT OF THE DISTRICT COURT IS AMPLY SUP-
PORTED BY THE AUTHORITIES CITED IN THE OPINION,
THOUGH THERE IS NO LACK OF OTHER SPECIFIC CASES
WHICH SUSTAIN THE JUDGMENT, AS WILL BE SHOWN
IN ANOTHER SUBDIVISION OF THIS ARGUMENT.

On page 12 of its opening brief, in the first para-

graj^h of its argument, Appellant criticizes the trial

Court for failure to cite in its opinion adequate au-

thority for its decision to the effect that the state

action and injury in question are covered by the

policy. Appellant says:

^'He neither cited nor relied upon any author-

ity construing such a policy. The only cases

cited by him were cases to the effect that, if the

policy was ambiguous, it should be construed

against the insurance company."

These Appellees contend that the authorities cited

by the Distiict Court in its opinion are ample to sus-

tain the judgment, for the following reasons: The

policy in question contains the provision that ''Use of

the automobile for the purposes stated includes the

loading and unloading thereof". (R. p. 15.) Having

these words in mind and recalling the circumstances of

the accident, can it reasonably be said that extensive

citation of authorities is necessary to support a finding

that Appellant's policy herein covered the accident to

Mrs. Tighe?

"A policy or contract of insurance is to be

construed so as to ascertain and carry out the

intention of the parties, viewed in the light of

the surrounding circumstances, the business in



which the insured is engaged and the purpose

they had in view in making the contract." (Goss

V. Security Insuraiice Company of California,

113 Cal App. 580, 298 Pac. 860.)

In the light of the foregoing citation may it not

aptly be here inquired: When Appellant issued to

Ah Chong its policy of commercial automobile insur-

ance against liability incurred through use of the

truck, including '^the loading and unloading thereof"

(R. p. 15), if it did not intend to insure against pre-

cisely such accidents as happened to Mrs. Tighe, what

did it intend to insure against? The words "loading

and unloading thereof" must mean exactly what they

say, for they are too definite and specific to mean

anything else.

And as to Ah Chong. Could he have foreseen the

outcome, can it be imagined for an instant that he

would have paid his good money for premiums on

a policy destined to bring him a lawsuit rather than

protection when his helper bumped a pedestrian on

the sidewalk?

That the authorities cited by the trial Court in

support of his opinion are ample for that purpose

will appear from a few brief quotations therefrom

:

''As was said in Granger v. New Jersey Ins.

Co., 108 Cal. ApT). 290, 291 Pacific 678, 700, 'A risk

fairly within contemplation is not to be avoided

by any nice distinction or artificial refinement

in the use of words'.

Section 1644 of the Civil Code provides: 'The

words of a contract are to be understood in their
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ordinary and popular sense, rather than accord-

ing to their strict legal meaning, unless used by
the parties in a technical sense, or unless a spe-

cial meaning is given to them by usage, in which
case the latter must be followed'.

In Moblad v. Western Indemnity Company,
53 Cal. App. 683, 200 Pac. 750, the court quotes

from another case as follows

:

*It is a fundamental rule that the language

of a contract is to be accorded its popular and
usual significance. It is not permissible to im-

pute an unusual meaning to language used in a

contract of insurance any more than to the lan-

guage of any other contract'.

We take it that the ordinary and popular sense

thus to be attributed to the words of a contract

is to be related to the circumstances under which

they are used, having in mind the purpose of the

contract and the general situation which brought

it into existence. In the case of Myerstein v.

Great American Ins. Co., 82 Cal. App. 131, 255

Pac. 220, the court said:

'Where, then, the language may be understood

in more senses than one, the rule of law is that

an insurance policy is to be construed liberally

in favor of the insured, and any uncertainty or

ambiguity in the contract is to be interpreted

most strongly against the insurer'."

Carl Tngalls, Inc. v. Hertford 'Fire Ins. Co.,

137 Cal. App. 741, 31 Pac. (2d) 414.

In the second opinion cited by the trial Court

when considering this point it is said of insurance

policies

:



*'One of the rules to be observed in the mter-

pretation of contracts of this class is that they

are to be liberally construed in favor of the in-

sured, and all doubts or ambiguities resolved

against the one who prepared the contract. * * *

If the construction of language in an insurance

policy is doubtful, the words, being those of the

insurer, are to be taken most strongly against

the company, and most favorably to the insured."

Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. Hurni Packing Co.,

263 U. S. 167, 174, 68 L. Ed. 236, 237.

In addition to the foregoing authorities the judg-

ment of the District Court is supported by a rule

of law deducible, without material contradiction or

variation, from the "loading and unloading" cases

found in the reports. That is to say, from an analysis

of all the "loading and unloading" cases cited in

Appellant's Opening Brief and such others as have

come to the attention of these Appellees, it will ap-

pear that coverage exists when, as here,

(1) The accident causing injury happens dur-

ing progress of loading or unloading, and not

after they (and more particularly unloading)

have been finished; and

(2) When the injury is not the result of

some entirely independent operation, such, for

instance, as the manipulation of the ro})es of a

freight elevator by the insured, or his employee, as

ay)y)ears in Franklin Cooperative (Weamery Assn.

V. Emplof/ers Liahility Assur. Corp., 200 Minn.

230, 273 N. W. 809, cited and discussed on ])age

14 of Appellant's Opening Brief.
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II.

APPELLANT HAS CITED NO AUTHORITY WARRANTING RE-
VERSAL OF THE JUDGMENT HEREIN, WHICH IS IN
HARMONY WITH A WELL ESTABLISHED LINE OF AMERI-
CAN DECISIONS.

An examination of the authorities cited by Appel-

lant in its opening brief will disclose no case which

would support reversal of the judgment herein. Ap-

pellant appears to have adopted every ''unloading"

case in which the insurer prevailed as an authority

in its behalf regardless of the fact that in cases of

this character the accident causing injury either hap-

pened after unloading had been finished or was pro-

duced by the manipulation of some mechanical con-

trivance, such, for instance, as a freight elevator

(Franklin Cooperative Creamery Assn. v. Employers

Liability Assurance Corp., 200 Minn. 230, 273 N. W.
809), or a falling door which had been removed from

its hinges by furniture delivery men. {John Alt Fur-

niture Co. V. Maryland Casualty Co., 88 Fed. (2d) 36.)

Also, Appellant, on page 21 of its brief, endeavors

to support its argument by a quotation from Stam-

mer V. Kitzmiller et al., 226 Wis. 348, 276 N. W. 629,

and yet the quoted words state a rule which, applied

to the facts of the instant case as distinguished from

those of the Stammer case, supports the judgment

herein in no uncertain terms. Having reference to

a provision of the policy reading: ''Operation, main-

tenance or use (including transportation of goods,

loading and unloading) of an automobile", the opin-

ion in the Stammer case says:



'* Losses and expenses imposed by law under
the clause quoted does not carry the liability

of the insurer beyond what may be described as

the natural territorial limits of an automobile

cmd the process of lonloadmg it. (Italics ours.)

When the goods have been taken oft* the automo-

bile and have actually come to rest, when the auto-

mobile itself is no longer connected with the

process of unloading, and when the material

which has been unloaded from the automobile

has plainly started on its course to be delivered

by other power and forces independent of the

automobile and the actual method of unloading,

the automobile may be said to be no longer in

use."

A brief review of Appellant's other authorities

follows

:

Jackson Floor Covering Company v. Mary-

land Casualty Company, 117 N. J. Law 401,

189 Atl. 84. (Appellant's Opening Brief,

p. 13.)

Appellant cites this case against itself, for it there

contended that injuries to a third party caused when

a roll of linoleum fell off a small hand truck were

covered by an automobile liability policy. The linoleum

had previously been delivered on a customer's load-

ing and unloading platform by an automobile truck

covered by another company than the Maryland,

which carried the customer's general public liability

insurance. The decision went against the Maryland

on the ground that unloading had been completed and

a new means of mechanical transportation begun
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when tJie accident ha|)i)ened. The Court said (Ap-

jjellant's Opening Brief, p. 13):

"It appears that the unloading of the plaintiff's

automobile truck had been completed and that the

transportation from then on was by a different

means ; hence, there could have been no concurrent

coverage, since the carrier insuring the automobile
truck was under no obligation."

All of which was not true in the instant case.

Franklin Cooperative Creamery 'Assn. v. Em-
ployers Liability Assurance Corp., et al., 200

Minn. 230, 273 N. W. 809. (Appellant's Open-

ing Brief, p. 14.)

A milk wagon delivery man injured a third

person by negligently manipulating the ropes of

a freight elevator in a building where he was

delivering milk. The court held the injury was

not covered by an automobile policy. Had Leong

Cheung injured some one by carelessly operating

Piccadilly Inn's freight elevator the District

Court for the Northern District of California

would doubtless have held likewise in the instant

case.

Zurich General Accident Liability Ins. Co.,

Ltd., V. American Mut. Liability Ins. Co. of

Boston, 118 N. J. Law 317, 192 Atl. 387. (Ap-

pellant's Opening Brief, pp. 15-16.)

This was an action between two insurance car-

riers to determine whether the injury in question

was covered by the automobile policy or that
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indemnifying for public liability. The case is not

even persuasive in behalf of Appellant herein

inasmuch as the Court found that the unloading

had been completed when the accident occurred

and the automobile liability carrier was therefore

not liable.

This case follows the general rule hereinbefore

set forth.

John Alt Furniture Co. v. Maryland Casualty

Cotnpamj, 88 Fed. (2d) 36. (Appellant's

Opening Brief, p. 17.)

In this case a third person was injured by the

falling of a heavy door which furniture delivery

men had taken off its hinges. Again the Mary-

land Casualty Company, Appellant in the instant

case, contends that the coverage was that of the

automobile insurance carrier and not of itself, the

public liability carrier. The accident obviously

was not the result of the process of unloading and

judgment therefore went against the Maryland,

the public liability carrier.

Armour & Co. v. General Accident, Fire and

Life Assurance Company, Ltd., No. 20,287L,

U. S. District Court for the Northern District

of California.

As analyzed on page 18 of Appellant's Opening

Brief, this case will readily fall into the class of

actions where injury was caused not while unloading

an automobile, but as the result of negligently operat-

ing some mechanical contrivance after unloading was

completed. It is therefore not in point herein.
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Litchte V. State Antomolnle Mutual his. Co., 50

Ohio App. 5, 197 N. E. 421, cited on page 19 of Ap-
pellant's Opening' Brief, Morgan v. N. Y. Casualty

Co., 54 Ga. App. 620, 188 S. E. 581, on page 20, and

the Panhandle Steel Products case on page 28, add
nothing to Appellant's argument. The two former

cases are obviously not in point, and the last one, when
i*ead in its entirety, is more favorable to these Appel-

lees than to Appellant.

''Automobile Liability Insurmice", by E. W.
Sawyer.

This book, quoted on pages 23-25 of Appellant's

Opening Brief, is apparently a manual for liability

insurance men. In the language of Appellant's brief

"the coverage contemplated by the committee which

drafted the policy" is stated therein. Appellant

further says that "Mr. Sawyer's statement, which is

quoted below, is in accord with the view of the Courts

as to the scope of the policy". As to authorities of

this class, it may be said that such generalizations

are not and cannot be judicial precedents, if for no

other reason than that they are generalizations.

While Appellees' counsel find in Mr. Sawyer's state-

ment no pronouncement upon which a reversal of the

judgment herein could be based, if such pronounce-

ment existed it would be but (to use Mr. Sawyer's

own language) "a reasonable practical interpretation

adopted by some companies", or in Appellant's words

"the coverage contemplated by the committee". Such

matters are not legal precedents.
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III.

FOR REVERSAL OF THE JUDGMENT APPELLANT DEPENDS
UPON A THEORY OF ITS OWN INVENTION UNSUPPORTED
IN LAW.

On page 29 of its opening brief Appellant says:

''If the argument should be made that the

unloading was not complete until the article un-

loaded came to rest, and that, therefore, the un-

loading of the article was not complete until

delivered into the Inn, still the unloading and

delivery of that article was complete at all events

when it w^as so delivered. In returning, the person

making the delivery was certainly not unloading."

Appellant could not, of course, consistently argue

that a vegetable peddler carrying his wares from a

truck to a restaurant kitchen is not engaged in ''un-

loading" the vehicle. Such a contention would be

without reason, without sense, and without regard for

the English language. But, from the law of necessity

apparently. Appellant has evolved a theory previously

mentioned herein, to the effect that such a peddler

is not "imloading" his truck within the meaning of

the policy, when, having emptied a basket or deposited

an armful of vegetables, he walks back to the vehicle

for another installment of his wares.

Appellant cites no authority for this novel theory,

and of course there is none. It would appear to come

under the condemnation expressed in Granger v. New
Xersey Ins. Co., 108 Cal. App. 290, 291 Pac. 678, 700,

and cited supra

:

"A risk fairly within contemplation is not to

be avoided by any nice distinction or artificial

refinement in the use of words."
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IV.

ANALYSIS OF THE "LOADING AND UNLOADING CLAUSE"
BY THE SUPREME COURT OF MONTANA.

Attention is directed to State ex rel. Butte Brewing

Co. V. Dist. Court, etc. (Mont. Supreme), 100 Pac. (2d)

932, which is especially interesting for the reason that

it follows the opinion of the District Court in the

instant case as reported in 29 Fed. Supp. 69, and for

the further reason that it contains a succinct analysis

of the situation confronting insurer and insured under

a policy containing the words ''use of the automobile

for the purposes stated includes the loading and un-

loading thereof" when an accident happens before

"unloading" has been finished.

A barrel of beer from the brewery's delivery truck

was placed on the sidewalk in front of "Clifford's",

on East Broadway, Butte, Montana. One delivery

man carried a package across the street to another

customer. The second delivery man, preparatory to

lowering the barrel of beer into "Clifford's" basement,

went inside and down into the basement, where he

unfastened a lock under two iron doors and raised

one of them above the level of the sidewalk, injuring

a pedestrian, Richard T. McCulloch. The opinion

further states the case as follows

:

"Richard T. McCulloch brought an action in

the District Court of Silver Bow County against

the Butte Brewing Company for personal in-

juries. The brewing company requested the

Standard Accident Insurance Company, herein-

after referred to as the insurance company, and

the Occidental Indemnity Company, hereinafter
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referred to as the indemnity company, to defend

the action, which they were obligated to do if

their respective policies, hereinafter referred to,

covered the case ; both declining to do so, an action

was instituted in the District Court of the above

named county by the brewing company against

both the insurance and the indemnity company
under the Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act

(Sees. 9835.1 to 9835.16 Rev. Codes), to have deter-

mined whether the defendants therein, or either

of them, were liable to defend the McCulloch

action. The District Court overruled a demurrer

to the complaint interposed by the insurance com-

pany [the commercial automobile liability ear-

lier] and sustained a demurrer to the complaint

interposed by the indemnity company. This pro-

ceeding is to determine the correctness of the

lower court's ruling."

After analyzing the insurance policies involved, the

opinion continues:

''The insurance company contends that under

the facts alleged, which must be accepted as true

for the purpose of the demurrer, the use of the

automobile had ceased, the unloading had been

accomplished and the delivery of the beer to the

customer had commenced, and since the delivery,

undertaken after the beer had been removed from

the truck, was a part of the business of the brew-

ing company and entailed no further use of the

truck, the contract of the indemnity company,

and not of the insurance company, protects the

brewing company.

There are cases involving similar facts though

differing in some respects which by analogy sup-
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port this view. Among such cases may be cited

the following: Stammer v. Kitzmiller, 226 Wis.

348, 276 N. W. 629 ; Franklin Cooperative Cream-

ery Assn. V. Employers Liability Corp., 200 Minn.

230, 273 N. W. 809; Zurich General Accident etc.

Co. V. American Mutual etc. Co., 118 N. J. L. 317,

192 Atl. 387; Caron v. American etc. Co., 277

Mass. 156, 178 N. E. 286, and John Alt Furniture

Co. V. Maryland Casualty Co. (8 Cir.), 88 Fed.

(2d) 36.

As before stated, all of the foregoing cases

differ in some respects from the facts in the case

before us. Another line of cases as nearly like

this in facts as those above cited, sustains the

opposite view. Before making reference to them
we point out that the insurance company policy

covers some liability when the automobile is not

in actual use. Thus it specifically covers liability

for injuries sustained in loading and unloading

though obviously the truck is not in actual use

in that process."

(The cases cited above, it will be noted, are quoted

hy Appellant in its behalf in the instant case with the

excei^tion of Caron v. American, etc. Co., 277 Mass.

156, 178 N. E. 286.) The opinion then cites the case

at bar (29 Fed. Supp. 69), Wheeler v. London, etc.,

292 Pa. 156, 140 Atl. 855, 856, and PanJiandle Steel

Products Co. V. Fidelity etc. Co. (Tex. Civ. Appeals),

23 S. W. (2d) 799, 801.

Continuing the opinion reads:

"We hold that under the facts here presented

the unloading of the truck was a continuous op-
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eration from the time the truck came to a stop

and the transportation ceased until the barrel of

beer was delivered to the customer. The unloading

of the truck cannot be said to have been accom-

plished when the barrel of beer was placed upon

the sidewalk. As well might it be argued that the

loading of the truck consisted merely of the act

of lifting commodities from the ground to the

body of the truck. The loading of the truck would

consist of much more than that. It would embrace

the entire process of moving the commodities from

their accustomed place of storage or the place

from which they were being delivered until they

had been placed on the truck. So, too, the unload-

ing thereof embraced the continuous act of plac-

ing the commodities where they were intended to

be actually delivered by use of the truck. This

being so, the insurance company policy has ap-

plication. The Court properly overruled the de-

murrer of the insurance company."

As to the indemnity company, the writ applied for

was denied and the proceeding dismissed. As these

Appellees stand in a position similar to that of the

Butte Brewing Company in the Montana case and the

facts are substantially the same in principle, it would

appear that the judgment of the District Court herein

holding Appellant liable was proper.
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CONCLUSION.

In conclusion it is respectfully submitted that the

ti'ial Court did not commit error in finding that the

State action and injury in question are covered by the

policy, and that the judgment herein appealed from

should therefore be affirmed.

Dated, San Francisco,

June 14, 1940.

Charles B. Morris,

Carroll B. Crawford,

Attorneys for Appellees

Ah Chong cmd Leong Cheung.
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No. 9473

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Maryland Casualty Company

(a corporation),
Appellcmt,

vs.

Mazilla Tighe, Ah Chong and

Leong Cheung,
Appell&es.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

Two briefs have been filed herein by appellees, one

for the appellee Mazilla Tighe, and the other for the

appellees Ah Chong and Leong Cheung. The brief

on behalf of Ah Chong and Leong Cheung attempts to

establish that the carriage of the goods after they were

removed from the truck constituted ''unloading", as

was held by the trial judge; but the brief of Mazilla

Tighe attempts to argue that the carriage of goods

after unloading is covered by a recital in the policy

defining transportation or delivery of goods to be com-

mercial. This contention is new to us and was not

the basis of the decision below, and we will therefore

separately review these two briefs.



REVIEW OF BRIEF OF MAZILLA TIGHE.

1. Appellee states at the bottom of page 5 and the

top of page 6 of her brief that the policy indemnified

the insured against losses arising out of the use of the

truck, and specifically defines "use to include not only

*unloading' but also ^delivery' of merchandise trans-

ported by the insured vehicle".

This is far from correct. What the policy in fact

specifically provides is that it covers accidents "aris-

ing out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of the

automobile" (R. p. 16), and that "use of the auto-

mobile for the purposes stated includes the loading

and unloading thereof". (R. p. 15.)

2. Appellee relies on certain general "definitions"

contained in the policy. The policy is so printed that

it may be made applicable either where the automo-

bile is used (a) for pleasure and business, or (b) for

commercial use, and these terms are defined. This

policy was for commercial use and the term "com-

mercial" is defined therein "as the transportation or

delivery of goods, merchandise or other materials, and

uses incidental thereto, in direct connection with the

named insured's business occupation * * *" (R. p.

15.) This does not mean that the policy covers all

transportation or delivery of goods in connection with

insured's business, but the use of the truck for the

transportation or delivery of goods. This is made
clear by the provision for "coverage" which is limited

to accidents "arising out of the ownership, mainte-

nance or use of the automobile". (R. p. 16.) The

words "transportation or delivery" are used because



the word *' delivery" is better suited to goods sent out,

while ''transportation" is broad enough to include

goods coming to the place of business. Neither word

extends the policy to transportation or delivery lexc&pt

by the \automoMle. This is made clear by the express

provision of the policy that "use of the automobile

for the purposes stated [transportation or delivery]

includes the loading and unloading thereof". (R. p.

15.)

Counsel again on page 6 of their brief say that "un-

less the phrase ^delivery of goods, merchandise or

other matermV, is utterly meaningless and nugatory,

the policy, hy its express terms, protects the insured

against losses arising out of the unloading and de-

livery of merchandise, both of which are specifically

defined herein as ti)s,&s of the automobile". We see no

call for this dilemma. One provision is that "trans-

portation or delivery" is commercial. The other pro-

vision is that "loading and unloading" is a use of

the truck. Of course, the use of the truck to transport

or deliver goods is a use of the truck and no special

provision to that effect was necessary. In referring to

"transportation or delivery" the policy had no refer-

ence to a delivery after the goods had been unloaded,

that is, a delivery made not by the use of the truck

but by some other means. We submit, therefore, the

sole question is, did the accident arise out of the un-

loading of the automobile? If counsel would meet

this issue there would be no necessity to be troubled

by "physical abstractions" (whatever they are) or

"aura of mysticism".



3. On page 11 of the brief appellee charges us with

a misstatement in stating that the trial judge neither

cited nor relied upon any authority construing such a

policy. We were referring to the opinion of the judge

in the record which speaks for itself. (R. p. 56.)

4. On page 12 in attempting to distinguish the

LucJite case counsel state: "Apparently no loading

clause was involved, mere use, ownership and in-

tention''. We know of no case which has held that

loading and unloading is not included in the use of

the automobile. On the contrary, it is expressly held

that without special provision to that effect loading

and miloading is included. (Panhandle Steel Products

Co. V. Fidelity Union Casualty Co., 23 S. W. (2d)

799.) The decision in the Luchte case is based on the

ground that the unloading was complete when the

material was removed from the truck.

5. On page 13 they attempt to distinguish the

Morgan case on the ground that the truck was not

mentioned in the petition. The complaint of Tighe

in this case did not need to refer to the truck. All she

had to allege was that the defendants negligently ran

into her. The liability of the insurer must depend on

whether the facts established upon issues framed in

the action on the policy bring the case within the

policy.

6. On page 13 counsel apparently approve the

Sta/mm^er case, but attempt to distinguish it on the

time elapsing between the removal of the goods from

the truck and the accident. If lifting the beer from

the sidewalk, opening the hatchway and putting the



beer through the hatchway was included in ** unload-

ing", it would seem that leaving the trap open was

incidental to the unloading,—certainly much more so

than the alleged negligence of the boy in this case

after both unloading and delivery were complete. The

decision was in fact placed on the ground that the

unloading was complete when the beer was taken off

the truck and placed on the sidewalk.

7. On page 13 counsel apparently approve the

Armour case where in making delivery the truck

driver negligently left a hand truck in a dangerous

place. Here again, if delivery was part of unloading,

the leaving of the hand truck was incidental to the

delivery and therefore to the unloading. The fact

that the accident occurred later would not seem to be

material. Counsel say ''clearly no active delivery

was involved". Certainly the use of the hand truck

was part of the delivery much more than the return

of the boy in this case.

8. As to the Zurich case, counsel stress the state-

ment of the Court that the delivery man was "en-

gaged in the servicing of delivered milk". What he

was actually doing was making the delivery of milk

and ice to the accustomed place, which was apparently

the customer's icebox. Counsel say he was "servicing

the icebox". He was servicing it by making the de-

livery of milk and ice to that point. It seems to us

that if the carriage of goods to their final resting

place by the operators of the truck is included in

unloading, it is immaterial to what particular place

on the customer's premises the delivery is made.



9. On page 15 counsel apparently approve cases

which have denied a recovery even where the process

of delivery was not complete, but as they say ''the

cause of the accident was but indirectly or incidentally

related to the use of the vehicle or the unloading

thereof, or where accident resulted from some act or

circumstance entirely disconnected with such unload-

ing". They apparently approve the holding in the

Franklin case that the use of an elevator in making

a delivery ''had nothing whatever, in our opinion, to

do with the 'use' of the teams or vehicles". So we

say the skylarking actions of the boy after unloading

and delivering articles had nothing to do with the use

of the truck.

10. On page 16 they approve the holding in the

John Alt Furniture case, where in delivering furni-

ture a door was removed and caused an injury. Coun-

sel deny the implication of our brief that the act which

was the basis of the injury occurred before the unload-

ing of all the furniture was complete. Certainly the

very words which counsel quote prove that fact. After

the door was removed the men carried furniture from

the truck through the door for half an hour when the

accident occurred.

11. Counsel apparently approve the decision in the

Jackson case, but the decision in that case would have

been otherwise if it was held that the goods were not

unloaded until they were delivered. In that case the

floor company backed the truck up to a loading plat-

form and there unloaded the linoleum upon a small

hand truck for complete delivery of the linoleum to a



designated place in the building, and while the lino-

leum was being carried by the hand truck to its final

resting place the accident happened, and the basis of

the decision was that the unloading was complete

when the material was placed on the platform and

the further act of carriage by the hand truck was no

part of unloading. As we have pointed out, the fact

that the carriage in the case at bar was by hand rather

than by hand truck does not change the situation.

The unloading was complete when the goods were

removed from the truck.

12. Counsel refer to the Panhcmdle case. We only

cited that case to point out that it was held that the

use of the automobile included loading and unloading,

even when the policy did not specifically so provide,

and in support of our contention that, as a matter of

fact, the provision regarding loading and unloading

adds nothing to the policy.

13. We see no analogy between the case at bar

and the Merchmvbs Co. case cited on page 17. Any
act necessary in the use and operation of the truck is

covered by the policy, and we do not consider that the

Court was liberal in its holding that the act in ques-

tion was necessary. We have all done about the same

thing. But as we have pointed out, the opening of

the trap door, the running of the elevator, the remov-

ing of the door, the use of the hand truck were all

reasonably necessary in making delivery, but were

held not to be connected with the use of the truck or

as any part of unloading.
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14. We do not deem it proper to comment on the

Butte Brewing Company case cited on page 19, as

that decision is based entirely on the decision here

under review. However, the act there involved was

at least part of the delivery; here the act involved

occurred after delivery had been made. In fact the

Court there said:

"We hold that under the facts presented the

unloading of the truck was a continuous operation

from the time the truck came to a stop and the

transportation ceased until the barrel of beer was
delivered to the custonber/^

Even on this test the unloading ceased when the

vegetables were delivered to the customer.

In the foregoing review we have not referred par-

ticularly to,two cases cited in this brief:

The first is Panhandle Steel Products Co. v. Fidelity

Union Casualty Co., 23 S. W. (2d) 799 (Texas). In

that case an injury occurred while a steel beam was

being imloaded from the truck and one end of the

beam was still on the truck at the time. It does not

therefore seem to be in any way in point in this case.

The other case is Park Saddle Horse Co. v. Royal

Indemnity Company, 81 Mont. 99, 261 P. 880. This

was not an automobile case, and we do not consider

that the case is at all in point. According to the state-

ment of appellees, the policy insured against injury

growing out of the use of saddle or pack horses, and

saddle and pack horses were being used, but on account

of the condition of the country "it was necessary to
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cross dangerous and steep mountain sides and inclines

and when so doing the tourists were required to dis-

mount from the horses and to lead them. While so

doing one of the parties slipped, caught her heel and

fell, causing injury". We do not think that the case

at bar would be aided one way or the other by a 'dis-

cussion of whether the horse was being used when the

rider temporarily, on account of the condition of the

country, dismounted and led the horse. However that

may be, it might be noted that in an able article by

John A. Appleman, published in Volume 25, American

Bar Association Journal, page 302, that case is re-

ferred to as one of the decisions which ''do not repre-

sent the usual doctrines but are merely freakish and

wayward results ; in many instances such result being

the only out-of-line decision of courts which have con-

stantly rendered excellent and well-reasoned opin-

ions". The case is severely criticised in that article.

REVIEW OF BRIEF OF AH CHONG AND LEONG CHEUNG.

1. This brief correctly states the claim upon which

the appellees must rely, namely, that the delivery and

return from delivery is part of unloading, (p. 2.)

They in no way rely upon the provision of the policy

reciting that transportation or delivery of materials

is commercial. They fail, however, to distinguish be-

tween the two claims made by appellant, namely, (1)

that delivery is not part of unloading, and (2) that

return from delivery is not part of unloading.
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2. Appellees admit that there is no basis for the

application of the rule referred to by the learned trial

judge that an ambiguous policy is to be construed

against the insured, because they state

:

''The words 'loading and miloading thereof mean
just exactly what they say, for they are too defi-

nite and specific to' mean anything else.
'

'

Coimsel ask if this policy did not cover this acci-

dent, what did it intend to insure against ? The answer

is clear. Motor vehicles kill or injure thousands of

people every year and do untold damage to property.

These accidents may happen when the vehicle is im-

properly parked. Or goods may fall from it and

cause injury. Or an injury may arise from the re-

moval of goods from a truck. So the policy was made

broad enough to cover the use of the automobile in-

cluding the loading and unloading of it. It was not

a general public liability policy. Such a policy was

open to the insured, insuring him for all injuries

caused by his employee, or caused in the process of

delivering goods. He got no such policy from ap-

pellant.

The insurer is not in any way boimd by any ar-

rangement, express or implied, between the insured

and his customers. They cannot extend the liability

beyond unloading by any arrangement by which the

insured is to deliver or do any act after unloading.

They might agree that the truck owner should, after

unloading, carry the goods by hand, or by hand truck,

or by elevator, or through chutes, through dark halls,

into basements, up stairways, in elevators, or escala-
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tors, into iceboxes, or refrigerators, and might even

go further and require some degree of service, or

packing, or storage of the unloaded material. None

of these things would be covered by the policy.

Or the truck driver might incur some duty and lia-

bility after the unloading due to the manner in which

such unloading was made or the place where the goods

were miloaded. Thus, the duty to place lights on the

goods if deposited on a street, would be a liability for

breach of a public duty following unloading and would

not be covered by the policy.

The multitudinous things which might happen in

the course of such activities must necessarily come

within public liability policies, workmen's compensa-

tion policies, or other like coverage, and cannot come

within the coverage of a policy limited to the use,

maintenance and operation of a truck, including the

loading and unloading thereof. Expressio unius, ex-

clusio oilterius is the principle here applicable. If the

parties had intended that carriage or other act after

unloading was to be covered, they would have so

provided.

If we follow the argument of counsel that words are

to be given their popular and usual meaning, how can

unloading be extended to include some carriage of the

goods, not by the truck, but by hand, hand truck, ele-

vator, or otherwise, after they have been unloaded?

The dictionary definitions of the verbs ^'load" and

"unload" are in accordance with our argument and

the cases we have cited as to the meaning of the
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words ''loading and unloading" as used in the policy.

The words are defined as follows

:

Webster's New International Dictionary, Sec-

ond Edition, Unabridged, 1934:

load, verb.

''Transitive: 1. To lay a load or burden on
or in, as on a horse or in a cart ;

* * *.

2. To place on or in something, as for car-

riage; as, to load a cargo of flour; to load hay."

unload, verb.
'

' Transitive ; to take the load from ; to discharge

of a load or cargo; to disburden; as, to unload a

ship ; to imload a beast.
'

'

The New Century Dictionary:

load.

"1. tr. To put a load on or in (as, to load a

beast of burden, a cart, or a vessel) ;
* * * also,

to place on or in something for conveyance (as,

'We * * * fetched our luggage and loaded it * * *

into the canoes': DeFoe's 'Captain Singleton',

v.);
* * * yy

unload.

"1. tr. To take the load from; remove the

burden, cargo, or freight from; * * *."

3. On pages 8-9 counsel apparently approve the

rule which they quote from the Stammer case, which

seems to us to be clearly right and which also seems

to show that where Leong Cheung took the goods off

of the truck and plainly started on his course to de-

liver the produce by other power and forces inde-
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pendent of the truck and the actual method of unload-

ing, the truck may be said to be no longer in use.

4. On pages 9-10 in reviewing the Jackson Floor

Covering case counsel distinguish between a delivery

after unloading by mechanical means and a delivery

by hand. We can see no difference. Nor does it

matter that by express or implied arrangement be-

tween the insured and his customer the insured car-

ries the goods after unloading, instead of the goods

being carried by some third person. In most of the

cases we have cited the carriage was by the insured,

but such carriage after unloading was held to be not

covered.

5. On page 13 counsel say we could not claim that

carriage of goods after unloading is not covered by

the policy. We do so claim, but also claim, as stated

by counsel, that after both unloading and subsequent

carriage are complete, the act of returning to the truck

is not unloading.

6. Appellees have not cited any case supporting

their right to recover. All that appellees have done

is to criticize or attempt to distinguish the cases cited

by us in which it was held that no recovery could be

had. The only exception to this is the Montana case

in which we claim the Court has erroneously followed

the decision in the case at bar.

In this brief appellees incidentally refer to two cases

which should be noted, the first being Wheeler v.

London, etc., 292 Pa. 156, 140 Atl. 855. In that case a

steel beam was intended to be unloaded inside a garage.
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However, it was unloaded so that it was partly on the

sidewalk, and the party sent for a block and tackle, in-

tending to use the insured truck for the purpose of

lifting the girder into the garage. Under these cir-

cumstances the Court held that the truck was in use

at the time. While we believe that a majority of the

Court confused unloading and delivery, the peculiar

situation growing out of the intended use of the truck

entirely differentiates the case from the case at bar. It

should also be noted that two judges dissented, in

which they pointed out that the pi^evious use of the

truck and the intended future use were entirely imma-

terial.

The other case cited is Caron v. American etc. Co.,

277 Mass. 156, 178 N. E. 286. It is hard to understand

why the appellees have specially referred to this case,

because in that case it was held that the accident was

not covered by the policy. In that cas.e in unloading

ice certain of the ice fell on the crosswalk and a pedes-

trian stepped on it and was injured. It was held that

the ice having been removed from the truck, the injury

did not arise out of the use of the truck. It should be

noted that the Court also pointed out that the policy

did not cover accidents growing out of delivery after

the ice was removed from the truck. In fact, the case

is one of the most extreme cas,es in which the Court has

denied recovery.
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CONCLUSION. '

Counsel have charged us with refinements, etc. So

far as we are concerned, we rely on no refinements.

We say that unloading is removing the produce from

the truck and that anything after that is carriage or

delivery by means other than the truck, which is not

covered by the policy; but in view of the contention

of appellees, which we deem unfounded, that carriage

and delivery after removal from the truck, no matter

how remote from the truck, constitute unloading, we

make the further contention that even if that were

true, which we deny, the incidental act of the person

making the delivery when returning after delivery is

no part of imloading, is disconnected from the use of

the truck, and does not constitute an injury arising

out of the use of the truck.

Dated, San Francisco,

June 24, 1940.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward F. Treadwell,

Reginald S. Laughlin,

Russell E. Barnes,

Attorneys for Appellmit.
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In the District Court of the United States

in and for the District of Arizona

No. Civ. 31-Phx.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY,
a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOE CONWAY,
Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF

To the Honorable, the District Court of the United

States, in and for the District of Arizona:

Southern Pacific Company, a corporation, pre-

sents this, its verified Complaint for Declaratory

Relief, against the defendant, Joe Conway, and for

cause of action complains and alleges as follows:

I.

Status of the Parties

(a) Plaintiff now is, and at all times herein

mentioned has been, a corporation duly organized

and existing under and by virtue of laws of the

State of Kentucky, and a citizen and resident of

that State. Plaintiff now is, and at all times herein

mentioned [4] has been, engaged in the operation, as

a common carrier in interstate commerce, of lines of

railroad, situated in the States of Oregon, Califor-

nia, Nevada, Utah, Arizona, Texas and New Mexico,

and in the transportation of passengers and prop-

erty from, to, and between points in each and all
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of said states. At all times herein mentioned plain-

tiff, as such interstate common carrier by railroad,

has been and now is subject to the provisions of the

Act of Congress approved February 4, 1887, and

acts amendatory thereof and supplementary there-

to, known as the Interstate Commerce Act.

(b) Defendant, Joe Conway, is sued herein as

an individual, and not in his official capacity. Said

defendant is a citizen of the State of Arizona, re-

siding in the City of Phoenix, County of Maricopa,

in said state, and is the duly elected, qualified and

acting Attorney General of the State of Arizona.

As such, under the Constitution and laws of that

state, there is vested in him the exclusive power,

and upon him is imposed the mandatory duty, to

commence and prosecute and to direct the institu-

tion and prosecution of, suits for penalties for

every violation of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, the

statute the validity of which constitutes the sub-

ject-matter of the instant controversy.

II,

Jurisdiction.

The grounds upon which the jurisdiction of this

Court depends are as follows:

(a) This is a civil suit, in the nature of a suit

in equity, between citizens of different states,

whereof the District Court of the United States for

the District of Arizona has original jurisdiction,

and is a suit for a declaratory judgment and de-

cree, pursuant to the provisions of the Federal
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Declaratory Judgment Act of 1934 (28 U. S. Code,

Section 400), and presents an actual [5] contro-

versy between the plaintiff and the defendant as

more fully appears hereafter, which may be finally

adjudicated and determined as between said par-

ties;

(b) The matter in controversy greatly exceeds,

exclusive of interest and costs, the sum or value of

Three Thousand (3,000) Dollars; and the value of

the right of the plaintiff herein sought to be de-

clared, preserved and maintained, to wit, the right

of the plaintiff to operate within, as well as into

and out of, the State of Arizona, interstate trains

consisting of more than 70 freight or other cars,

exclusive of caboose, and interstate passenger trains

consisting of more than 14 cars, greatly exceeds the

sum of Three Thousand (3,000) Dollars.

(c) This suit arises under the Constitution and

laws of the United States, in that plaintiff seeks here-

in, pursuant to subsections 1 and 14 of Section 41 and

Section 400, of Title 28 of the United States Code,

to obtain the final judgment and decree of this Court,

adjudging and declaring that that certain statute of

the State of Arizona hereinafter set forth, known

as the Arizona Train-Limit Law, which statute pro-

hibits, under severe penalties, the operation in said

state of railroad trains containing more than 70

freight or other cars, exclusive of caboose, and of

passenger trains containing more than 14 cars, is

void, invalid and unenforceable, because repugnant

to and in conflict with the Due-Process Clause of
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the Fourteenth Amendment to, and the Commerce

Clause of, the Constitution of the United States,

and the Interstate Commerce Act and related acts

of Congress hereinafter more specifically referred to

;

(d) The damage and injury which plaintiff daily

and proximately sustains and will continue to sus-

tain by reason of said statute are and will be of

great and irreparable; but by reason of the provi-

sions thereof, plaintiff cannot safely disregard the

same and await prosecutions thereunder for the

purpose of [6] testing the validity thereof, and is

wholly unwilling to do so, because of the enormous

penalties that would shortly accrue if such a course

were followed and said law sustained; and also by

reason of the narrow scope of the evidence, in

criminal proceedings, and the multiplicity of suits,

and the procedural difficulties which would be en-

countered, in suits at law.

(e) In addition to the foregoing general state-

ment, the facts, circumstances and conditions here-

inafter set forth in this complaint for declaratory

relief justify and necessitate the exercise of the

jurisdiction of this Court to afford unto plaintiff

the declaratory relief herein prayed for, and such

other relief as may be meet in the premises.

Wherefore, this Court is now vested with appro-

priate jurisdiction and power to declare the rights,

duties, powers, obligations and legal relations of the

parties interested herein as the same may be affected

by said Arizona Train-Limit Law; and said parties

are entitled to such declaration, the same to have
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the force and effect of a final judgment and decree

and to be reviewable as such.

III.

Description of Plaintiff's Lines of Railroad.

Plaintiff's main lines extend from San Francisco,

California, to Portland, Oregon, and across the

State of Nevada to Ogden, Utah; and extend also

from San Francisco, southeasterly to Los Angeles,

California, and thence to Yuma, Arizona, and thence

across the southern part of the States of Arizona

and New Mexico, via El Paso, Texas, to Tucum-

cari. New Mexico. At each of said points other

than Yuma, as well as at numerous other points,

plaintiff's lines connect with the lines of other in-

terstate rail carriers, and thus enter into and be-

come part of through routes for the transportation

of freight and passengers between all parts of the

United States, and to and from adjacent [7] foreign

countries.

The major portion of the interstate freight traffic

transported by plaintiff across or partly in Arizona

over its southern Arizona route is handled by way

of the main line which extends through Indio, Cali-

fornia, Yuma, Maricopa and Tucson, Arizona, and

Lordsburg, New Mexico, to El Paso, Texas. Plain-

tiff also has an alternate main line, which departs

from the Yuma-Maricopa-Lordsburg line just de-

scribed at AYellton, Arizona, and runs thence north-

easterly to Phoenix, Arizona, and thence southeast-

erly to Picacho, Arizona, where it joins the Yuma-
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Maricopa-Lordsburg line. A second alternate main

line of the plaintiff leaves the Yuma-Maricopa-

Lordsburg line at Mescal, Arizona (about 30 miles

easterly from Tucson) rimning thence via Douglas,

Arizona, to El Paso, Texas. The three lines of the

plaintiff just described, considered together, afford

to it practically two lines for the entire distance

from Yuma to El Paso; but, except for short

stretches of double-track near Yuma, Phoenix, and

El Paso, and a double-track district about 43 miles

in length between Stockham and Mescal, Arizona,

these lines are operated as single-track lines.

Passenger traffic which originates in or crosses

Arizona uses all these lines; but because the route

between Yuma and Tucson via Phoenix is somewhat

longer than via Maricopa, through interstate freight

trains between Yuma and Tucson are generally

routed via Maricopa. Between Tucson and El Paso,

about 65 per cent of the through interstate freight

traffic is moved via Lordsburg, and about 35 per

cent via Douglas.

Plaintiff's main lines cross southern Arizona and

New Mexico on comparatively light grades and

through much level territory. They are well con-

structed, according to the best modern railroad

standards, and capable of sustaining the heaviest

and most powerful locomotives owned or operated

by plaintiff. They are [8] equipped throughout

with automatic block signals, and numerous other

devices promoting safety of operation. The oper-

ating conditions upon said main lines generally are
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relatively favorable to speed, safety, and economy

of operation.

The operating conditions upon plaintiff's main

lines across Nevada and Utah are closely similar i>D

those upon the main lines across Arizona and New'
Mexico. Said lines in Nevada and Utah are well

constructed, according to the best modern railroad

standards, and are equipped throughout with auto-

matic block signals and numerous other devices pro-

moting safety of operation.

IV.

History and Text of the Act Complained Of.

On May 16, 1912, the Governor of the State of

Arizona approved an act of the Legislature of that

State entitled "An Act limiting the number of cars

in a train", which act was afterwards, on referen-

dum at a general State election held November 5,

1912, approved by a majority of the voters of said

State voting at said election (Laws, 1913, Referen-

dum, p. 15; Sections 2166-2168, Revised Statutes of

Arizona, 1913; Civil Code of Arizona, Section 647,

Arizona Revised Statutes, 1928), and ever since

has been and now is in full force and effect. Said

act has no preamble, and reads as follows

:

''Section 1. It shall be imlawful for any

person, firm, association, company or corpora-

tion, operating any railroad in the state of

Arizona, to run, or permit to be run, over his,

their, or its line of road, or any portion thereof,

any train consisting of more than seventy

freight, or other cars, exclusive of caboose.
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'^ Section 2. It shall be unlawful for any

person, firm, association, company or corpora-

tion, operating any railroad in the state of

Arizona, to run, or permit to be run, over his,

[9] their, or its line of road, or any portion

thereof, any passenger train consisting of more

than fourteen cars.

"Section 3. Any person, firm, association,

company or corporation, operating any railroad

in the state of Arizona, who shall wilfully vio-

late any of the provisions of this act, shall be

liable to the state of Arizona for a penalty

of not less than one hundred dollars, nor more

than one thousand dollars, for each offense;

and such penalty shall be recovered, and suits

therefore brought by the attorney general, or

under his direction, in the name of the state of

Arizona, in any county through which such

railroad may be run or operated, provided,

however, that this act shall not apply in cases

of engine failures between terminals.

''Section 4. All acts and parts of acts in

conflict with the provisions of this act are here-

by repealed."

V.

Effect of the Law Upon Plaintiff's

Freight-Train Operations.

(a) Railroad operating conditions, both on

plaintiff's lines in Arizona, and elsewhere, and on

railroads throughout the United States generally,

differ substantially from the operating conditions

which existed in 1912, when the Arizona Train-
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Limit Law was passed, in that since 1912, and more

especially since 1920, great improvements have been

made in both road and equipment. Tracks, road-

beds, and bridges have been made stronger; grades

and curves have been reduced or eliminated; side

tracks and passing tracks have been lengthened;

block signals and other safety devices have been in-

stalled; safer and more powerful locomotives, and

stronger freight and passenger cars have been built

and acquired. The greater part of these improve-

ments has taken place since 1920, and has been ac-

complished by the ex- [10] penditure of large sums

of money, which expenditures in many instances have

been sanctioned by the Interstate Commerce Com-

mission, under Section 20a of the Interstate Com-

merce Act. This is particularly true with respect to

the acquisition of large and powerful locomotives de-

signed and used for the handling of trains consisting

of more than 70 freight cars, or more than fourteen

passenger cars. These and other expenditures have

been made largely for the purpose of increasing the

lengths and the loading of trains, and promoting

the safety of handling thereof, so as to bring about

and maintain safer and more efficient and eco-

nomical operations.

(b) The locomotives and cars now used on plain-

tiff's main lines in Arizona, and elsewhere, have

been greatly and continually improved since 1912,

and have thus been made stronger and better able

to withstand the most arduous and serious condi-

tions. The standard locomotives generally used by
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plaintiff at the present time have been and are built

with heavier frames and running gears, improved

and strengthened brake equipment, draft gears and

attachments, and air pumps of increased capacity.

The boilers also have been much improved; and

many if not all of such locomotives are equipped

with feed-water heaters, super-heaters, and other

modern devices designed to promote safety, effi-

ciency and economy in operation.

The freight and passenger cars used in plaintiff's

trains in the State of Arizona have likewise been

greatly improved since 1912, and particularly since

1920. In 1912 about 40 per cent of the freight cars

of the plaintiff were equipped with wooden under-

frames; that type of car has now been entirely

withdrawn from main-line and interchange service,

and all freight cars now used in such service are

equipped with steel underframes. Modern draft

gears and modern standard single-plate cast-iron

wheels have been installed upon plaintiff's freight

equipment. [11] Improvements have been made in

the air-brake triple-valves in such freight cars, the

result of which is practically to eliminate unin-

tended emergency-brake applications.

(c) Since 1920 plaintiff has spent approxi-

mately $9,000,000.00 in Arizona, primarily for the

purpose of improving its tracks, track facilities and

terminals, and in installing block signals and other

safety devices. Plaintiff has also invested about

$13,000,000.00 further in Arizona, since 1920, in the

rehabilitation, construction, and reconstruction of
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the alternate main line from Wellton through Phoe-

nix to Picacho, heretofore described. The track,

roadbed, and bridges on the plaintiff's main lines in

Arizona and elsewhere are capable of carrying the

heaviest locomotives owned by said plaintiff; and

there is no reason, from the standpoint of climatic

conditions, or track, grades, or curvatures, or the

strength or capacity of road and equipment now

owned and available, why the plaintiff could not at

once commence the operation, on its main lines in

Arizona and in the adjacent states of California and

New Mexico, where the Arizona Train-Limit Law
operates to restrict the length of trains, of a very

substantial number of freight-train units of sub-

stantially more than 70 freight or other cars, and

passenger train-units of substantially more than 14

passenger-cars, and thus operate its lines of rail-

road in said territory more safely, efficiently, and

economically, and in line with the best modern rail-

road practices, and thereby secure the benefits of

immediate, substantial, and much-needed operating

economies.

(d) Prior to 1912, freight trains containing

more than 70 cars were operated mostly on favor-

able grades, or consisted in whole or in large part

of empty cars. Principally by reason of improve-

ments in roadbed, equipment, and operating

methods, made since that time, heretofore de-

scribed in part, the operation of through trains con-

taining more than 70 freight or other [12] cars,
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either loaded or empty cars or both, on main trunk

lines, including those of plaintiff, has become and

ever since about the year 1924 has been, and now is,

the common standard railroad practice throughout

the United States, except in Arizona, and the ad-

jacent portions of California and New Mexico

where the Arizona Law operates with extraterri-

torial effect; and the maximum lengths of such

freight trains, outside of Arizona, are very much

greater than those permitted in said state.

Except in Arizona and adjacent territories af-

fected by said Train-Limit Law, freight is now

transported between all parts of the United States,

in trains of more than 70 cars, upon dependable

schedules; and such schedules are one-half to one-

third faster than prevailed prior to 1924.. Such com-

mon standard operation of freight trains of more

than 70 cars, upon such faster schedules, has made

possible the nationwide distribution and consump-

tion of the perishable and other products (including

livestock) of California and Arizona, as well as

other states and localities, and moving in interstate

and foreign commerce over the lines of plaintifi:

and its railroad connections.

Trains of greater lengths than 70' freight or other

cars are handled by locomotives of modern type,

of which those owned and operated by the plaintiff

are typical, whose runs now extend for several hun-

dred miles, in many cases passing through or across

two or more states. The efficiency and economy of

operation of such locomotives depend upon the ex-



14 Southern Pacific Company

tent to which the trains which they handle are

heavy enough so that their tractive power may be

utilized to the fullest practicable extent. The im-

proved methods of operation, of which the opera-

tion of trains of more than 70 cars is an essential

part, have practically eliminated car shortages,

which were frequently experienced prior to 1924,

and have made it possible to reduce greatly the

stocks of merchandise formerly required to be car-

ried in order [13] to protect against traffic conges-

tion and delay : all of w^hich has been of great bene-

fit to the commerce of the country, and particularly

to the states and communities served by plaintiff's

lines, which is and are largely dependent upon

prompt, efficient, and reliable railroad transporta-

tion at reasonable rates.

(e) The operation of freight trains containing

substantially more than 70 freight or other cars, ex-

clusive of caboose, and of passenger trains contain-

ing substantially more than 14 cars, subject to the

requirements of traffic (which method of operation

is herein, for convenience, referred to as "stand-

ard long-train operation"), is a general practice on

the main trunk lines of all the major steam rail-

roads throughout the United States, and on the

main lines of railroad of the plaintiff, and its prin-

cipal competitors and connections, except in Arizona

and contiguous territory where the Arizona Train-

Limit Law has extraterritorial effect. The operating

conditions under which such standard long-train

operation is carried on are substantially as favor-
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able, generally speaking as those on the main lines

of the plaintiff in Arizona. The practice of such

standard long-train operation has not retarded and

does not retard, but on the contrary expedites ma-

terially the movement of the traffic carried therein,

and does not delay, but on the contrary promotes

and makes possible the early delivery of such traffic.

Freight trains of more than 70 freight or other

cars, exclusive of caboose, and passenger trains of

more than 14 cars, are commonly, safely, and econ-

omically operated through the United States, outside

of Arizona, over lines of railroad substantially simi-

lar to the main lines of the plaintiff in Arizona ; and

there is no reason, from the standpoint of safety, or

otherwise, why the length of plaintiff's freight or

passenger trains in Arizona should be limited as re-

quired by the Arizona Train-Limit Law.

(f) By its terms the Arizona Train-Limit Law
applies to [14] and regulates ti'ains only within

Arizona. However, it is wholly impracticable to

split up or consolidate trains at state boundary

lines, unless terminals are there located. While

plaintiff has a terminal at Yuma, adjoining the

California-Arizona boundary line, its nearest New
Mexico terminal upon the Yuma-Maricopa-Lords-

burg line is at Lordsburg, New Mexico, about 23

miles east of the Arizona line. Upon the Tucson-

Douglas-El Paso line there is no terminal between

the Arizona-New Mexico boundary, and the ter-

minal at El Paso, Texas, about 166 miles east of

said boundary. No facilities now exist at or ad-
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jacent to either of the points where plaintiff's two

said main Ines cross the Arizona-New Mexico

boundary, whereby westbound trains of greater

lengths than permitted by the Arizona Law could be

reduced in length so as to conform to said law, or

eastbound trains conforming to the law's limita-

tions consolidated into the larger units permitted

by the laws of New Mexico; and no such facilities

coTild be constructed at or adjacent to either or

both of said boundary-line points except at great

expense.

The inevitable result of the Arizona Law is there-

fore to control completely train lengths between the

boundary line of Arizona and the aforesaid ter-

minals in New Mexico and Texas nearest thereto.

But, on account of the transportation service re-

quired and furnished for eastbound perishable

freight, traffic requirements ordinarily forbid its

delay, either while trains are being split up at the

first terminal west of or at the Arizona boundary

line, or while trains are being consolidated at the

first terminal east of Arizona. Consequently, in

many instances, eastbound perishable freight trains,

originating at southern California points, must be

made up into trains not longer than are permitted

by the law, at such points of origin; and such short

trains must be transported intact as far east as El

Paso, Texas, more than 160 miles east of Arizona,

at which point, be- [15] cause of the requirements

of re-icing and re-classification for diversion pur-
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poses, consolidation into larger train units may be

effected with a minimum of interference and delay.

The locomotive power and crews used to handle

eastbound trains, of lengths conforming to the Ari-

zona Law, from their originating points in Califor-

nia to Yuma, and from Lordsburg to El Paso, must

be returned to their western termini ; and it is there-

fore necessary either to run short (i. e., Arizona-

size) w^estbound trains from El Paso and from

Yuma, or to bring back the locomotives without

load and the crews without work, but under pay.

(g) Solely by reason of plaintiff's compliance

with said Arizona Train-Limit Law, the average

and the maximum lengths of plaintiff's freight

trains operated upon its aforesaid main lines across

southern California, Arizona and New Mexico have

been, now are and will continue to be greatly re-

duced below the average and maximum lengths

which otherwise would obtain; by reason of which

compliance with said Train-Limit Law, plaintiff

has been compelled and will continue to be com-

pelled to operate a substantially larger number of

such trains and therefore to produce, as a result of

such operations, a substantially greater number of

train miles and locomotive miles for the handling of

the same absolute volume of traffic, whether meas-

ured in cars handled or in car miles produced. The

effect of such compliance with said Train-Limit

Law is not and will not be confined to Arizona ; for,

as aforesaid, said Train-Limit Law operates and
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will continue to operate regularly and completely

to control the lengths of plaintiff's freight trains,

and the number thereof to be operated, not only

upon plaintiff's lines in Arizona, but also upon its

lines in California at least as far west as Indio,

and upon its lines in New Mexico and Texas at

least as far east as El Paso, Texas.

Detailed cost studies made by the plaintiff show

that the addi- [16] tional financial burden to which

it is subjected by reason of the law, upon that por-

tion of its main line which extends from Indio,

California, via Yuma, Maricopa, and Lordsburg, to

El Paso, amount to more than $300,000.00 each year,

which figure relates to freight train operations upon

said line only, and does not include any additional

expense imposed upon and incurred by reason of

the limitation of the law upon the lengths of pas-

senger trains. If it were not for the law, substantial

additional savings could also be made by the plain-

tiff in the operation of its freight trains upon its

auxiliary main line through Phoenix, and its

auxiliary main line from Tucson via Douglas to El

Paso, both of which main lines constitute portions

of its through routes from California and Arizona

to destinations east thereof; although neither of

these routes was included in the above mentioned

detailed cost studies made by the plaintiff.

Substantial additional savings, also not included

in said cost study or in the above figure of $300,-

000.00, would also be made by plaintiff, by running

and thus utilizing to the fullest practicable extent



vs. Joe Conway J 9

the tractive power of large locomotives, between

points outside of Arizona and points in said state;

and by shifting such large locomotives between the

Arizona lines and similar lines outside of Arizona,

in order to take care of peak seasonal business,

thereby reducing the aggregate number of locomo-

tives required and increasing the use and efficiency

of the locomotives used. From the standpoint of ag-

gregate power, large locomotives cost less in pro-

portion to their tractive effort than do smaller

ones; and under standard long-train methods of

operation plaintiff's investment in motive power

would be reduced because less total tractive power,

at a lower cost per unit, would be required to han-

dle the total traffic. Furthermore, under standard

long-train operation, substantially less fuel would

be required, so that the cost of hauling company

fuel would be sub- [17] stantially reduced.

(h) The standard long-train method of opera-

tion, heretofore and presently followed by plaintiff,

except in Arizona and the adjacent districts where

the Arizona Law operates with extraterritorial ef-

fect, results in safe, efficient and economical opera-

tion, at unit costs which are greatly reduced as

compared to those experienced in prior years, and

are also less than those incurred in Arizona and the

contiguous territory where the Train-Limit Law
operates with extraterritorial effect. Solely because

of the Arizona law, plaintiff now is and will con-

tinue to be subjected to irreparable and continuing
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financial burden and expense amounting to at least

$300,000.00 per year, being the difference between

the expense of the short-train method of operation

required by the Arizona Law, and the expense of

the standard long-train method of operation here-

tofore defined, which is presently being followed

elsew^here than in Arizona and adjacent territory,

and would be adopted and followed in Arizona and

said adjacent territory if it were not for the Ari-

zona Law.

(i) The effect of the law is greatly and directly

to interfere with and delay plaintiff's interstate

freight traffic while in the course of transportation

out of, into, across, and within Arizona; and also

greatly, directly and unreasonably to delay and

interfere with the interstate freight traffic moving

on plaintiff's main lines in California and New
Mexico; because, as heretofore stated, the trains on

those lines, destined to points within or beyond Ari-

zona, must be initially made up, or split up either

at the nearest terminals to Arizona or at terminals

farther removed, so as to conform to the restric-

tions of the Arizona statute; and trains moving

across Arizona, or from points within that state,

destined to points in adjoining states or beyond,

must be consolidated, either at the first terminals

outside of Arizona [18] or at terminals farther re-

moved, so as to avoid carrying them, with the in-

creased operating and other expenses incident to

such short-train operation, until they reach their

destinations; and also because the increase in the
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number of trains run, inevitably resulting from the

operation of the law, causes the number of meetings

and passings of the trains, both freight and pas-

senger, incident to the operation of plaintiff's lines

of railroad, to be greatly and disproportionately

increased, over and above those which would be re-

quired if it were not for the law, with resulting de-

lay to each and all of the trains involved in such

meetings and passings.

VI.

Effect of the Law Upon Passenger-Train

Operations.

(a) The passenger-train provisions of said

Train-Limit Law are wholly arbitrary and unrea-

sonable, and without any relation whatsoever to

safety, efficiency, or economy of operation, and in

fact result in imposing direct and irreparable finan-

cial burdens upon the plaintiff, and in increased

hazards
J
moreover, the law has an even greater

extraterritorial effect upon a passenger-train than

upon freight-train operation. While the financial

burden imposed upon passenger-train operation is

not as great as that imposed by the law upon

freight-train operation, nevertheless it is substan-

tial in amount.

Except in the State 'of Arizona and in contiguous

territory affected by the Arizona Train-Limit Law,

passenger trains of more than 14 cars are regularly

operated by plaintiff, and by other railroads gen-
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erally, whenever and wherever traffic requirements

make such operation advisable; and in the aggre-

gate great numbers of such passenger trains are

operated. The competition of other forms of trans-

portation makes it imperatively necessary that pas-

senger-train operation be carried on with the [19]

utmost economy.

Because of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, many

passenger ti^ains of the plaintiff must be initially

made up, or, before reaching that state, broken up,

so as to comply with the limitations of said law. In

order to minimize the effects of said law^, and avoid

breaking up trains, passenger-train cars are con-

stantly being removed from passenger trains of

more than 14 cars, and placed in shorter trains at

terminals near Arizona, and at terminals farther

removed, whenever and wherever such shifting may
be accomplished wdth a minimum of interruption

to traffic.

(b) The limitations fixed by said Train-Limit

Law interfere with the movement of passenger-

train equipment of all kinds, and particularly with

the movement of empty equipment, which, on ac-

count of seasonal fluctuations in traffic, must at

times be moved in one direction and at other times

in the opposite direction. Such equipment could

readily be handled on regular passenger trains,

without interfering in any way with their ordinary

operations, or with the safety or comfort of the

passengers or the employes, if it were not for the

law.



vs. Joe Comvay 23

In addition to the passenger traffic carried on

regular trains, which fluctuates greatly from day to

day, in many cases special trains for or from Pa-

cific Coast points, or for tours involving movement

upon plaintiff's lines across Arizona, are chartered

by parties, too large to be accommodated adequately

in trains of 14 cars or less, which said parties de-

sire for social or business reasons to travel together.

They can travel by plaintiff's Arizona lines only

if willing to be subjected to the inconvenience of

having a part of the party handled in a second

train, or having one or more baggage or other cars

not actually occupied by them hauled in some other

train, while in Arizona. In consequence, plaintiff is

placed at a disadvantage in soliciting and [20] han-

dling such business in competition with other lines

running to and from the Pacific Coast, north of

Arizona; and the parties who travel via plaintiff's

lines are subjected to inconvenience, delay, and

interference while on their trips within and/or

across Arizona.

Solely as a result of said Train-Limit Law, plain-

tiff is forced to run numerous extra trains, involv-

ing substantial additional expense, not only for the

operation of such extra trains themselves, but also

in returning the extra crews and extra engines from

the destination points of the extra trains to their

home terminals, and of sending the extra engines

and extra crews from their home terminals to the

points where the extra trains originate.
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(c) Plaintiff has made no detailed cost-studies

for the purpose of determining precisely the addi-

tional and unnecessary expense presently resulting

from the limitation upon passenger-train lengths

contained in said Train-Limit Law, but knows that

each year, solely by reason of said law, a substantial

number of extra trains are required to be run

within and across the State of Arizona, that much

equipment is required to be held out and forwarded

on following trains, that it is greatly handicapped

in the operation of its passenger trains and in the

solicitation of its passenger traffic, and that it is

subjected to delay and interference both within and

outside of Arizona, by reason of the necessity of

shifting cars from train to train in connection with

the splitting up, in compliance with said law, of

the trains destined to points within or beyond Ari-

zona, and the consolidation of trains after leaving

Arizona so as to reduce the increased expenses

caused by the Arizona Law as soon as practicable;

and plaintiff alleges that said expenses are and will

continue to be irreparable, substantial, and of con-

stant occurrence, and that they do and will amount

to many [21] times $3000.00 each year, in actual

out-of-pocket expenditures ; that said additional un-

necessary expenditures could, and would, be saved

and avoided, if plaintiff were relieved of the neces-

sity of complying with said law by a final judgment

declaring said law to be invalid and unconstitu-

tional, as herein prayed for.
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VII.

The Law Not a Reasonable Safety Measure.

Said Train-Limit Law is arbitrary and unreason-

able, and bears no reasonable relation to the health,

comfort or safety of persons or the safety of prop-

erty, and does not operate to promote the health or

safety of employees, or passengers, or of the public

otherwise. To the contrary, said law creates certain

hazards which would not exist, except for the law,

and increases other hazards of railroad operation.

Said law is wholly unjustified as a supposed regu-

lation by the State of Arizona in the purported

interest of the health and safety of persons or prop-

erty; it takes the plaintiff's property without due

process of law, in violation of the Fourteenth

Amendment to the Constitution of the United

States, for the following reasons among others:

(a) Said Train-Limit Law" is permissible and

sustainable, if at all, only under the reserved police

power of the State.

(b) Daily, plaintiff has tendered and delivered

to it a large volume of freight, and a large number

of passengers, for transportation as a common car-

rier in interstate commerce and in Arizona intra-

state commerce. Its obligation as a common carrier

is to receive, transport, and deliver such freight

and passengers with all practicable safety, expedi-

tion and economy, and to furnish to shippers at re-

ceiving points on its lines a supply of empty cars,

and to passengers who offer themselves for trans-
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portation a supply of accommodations, suitable and

[22] adequate for their needs.

Those obligations plaintiff performs to the best

of its ability; and in so doing it is necessary for it

to operate, and it frequently and as a standard

practice does operate, over its lines (except within

Arizona and the adjacent territory where the Ari-

zona Law has extraterritorial effect) freight trains

of substantially more than 70 cars, exclusive of

caboose, and passenger trains of more than 14 cars.

Practically all of its freight trains carry interstate

freight to a substantial extent; many of them

almost entirely. Practically all its passenger trains

carry interstate passengers, and mail, baggage, and

express moving in interstate commerce. Such long-

train methods of operation are not only more eco-

nomical and more expeditious, as heretofore al-

leged, but are also substantially safer than the

methods of handling freight and passenger traffic,

in Arizona and adjacent territory, which are com-

pelled by the terms of the Arizona Law.

(c) On plaintiff's lines in Arizona, as well as on

all steam railroads, the frequency of accidents to

trains and of resulting casualties to those who are

exposed to the hazards of train operation, including

employes and members of the public not riding

upon such trains, and employes and passengers on

passenger trains, is directly related to the number
of train units operated ; and when more train units

are operated than are necessary to handle a given
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amount of traffic, all hazards incident to the han-

dling of that traffic are correspondingly increased.

As heretofore alleged, the effect of said Train-

Limit Law is proximately and directly to cause

plaintiff to operate in Arizona and in the adjacent

contiguous territory heretofore mentioned many

more freight and passenger train units than it

would operate if it were relieved of the necessity

of compliance with said Train-Limit Law by a final

judgment declar- [23] ing said law to be invalid and

unconstitutional, and therefore correspondingly to

increase the hazards of plaintiff's train operations

in Arizona and said affected contiguous territory.

(d) There is no hazard of freight train opera-

tion, either generally or as conducted by plaintiff,

that can reasonably be said to be related to the num-

ber of cars in a freight train, or that can be or is

removed or minimized or measurably reduced, by

limiting freight trains in Arizona or elsewhere to 70

freight or other cars, exclusive of caboose. There is

no hazard of passenger train operation, either gen-

erally or as conducted by plaintiff, that can reason-

ably be said to be related to the number of cars in a

passenger train, or that can be or is removed or

minimized or measurably reduced, by limiting pas-

senger trains in Arizona or elsewhere to 14 cars.

To the contrary, there are certain distinct and

well-known hazards in train operation that are pro-

ductive of accidents and casualties, and injuries to

persons and damage to property, and that are defi-
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nitely related to and increase with the number of

train units operated, viz.:

(1) head-end and rear-end collisions of trains,

with each other and with other vehicles using the

same track;

(2) grade-crossing accidents, the hazard of

which to a given number of users of a crossing is di-

rectly proportional to the number of trains run;

(3) casualties due to additional meets and pass-

ings of trains, in connection with which employes

ruust go on top of trains and also leave and board

them to open or after closing switches, and for

other purposes made necessary by the meet or pass.

The number of meets and passings does not vary in

proportion to the trains run, but more nearly in

proportion to the square of the number of trains

run;

(4) accidents in yards, which are related to the

number [24] of trains made up or broken up in the

yards

;

(5) accidents due to defects in or failures of

locomotives, the hazard of which ratably increases

with the number of locomotives in actual service.

(e) There is, moreover, a large class of hazards

in all train operations, which produce accidents and

casualties and which are directly related to and in-

crease with the operation of an unnecessary and

additional number of trains and the consequent em-

ployment and service of a correspondingly addi-

tional number of train-men and engine-men to man
those additional trains.
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More than half of the accidents and casualties

that occur in the operation of steam railroads in

Arizona and elsewhere are caused by the negligence

of, disobedience of rules by, or inadvertence of em-

ployes. To require plaintiff to operate more trains

than are reasonably necessary to handle the traffic

offered to it will inevitably be to increase the hazard

to the public, to employes, and to property, by in-

creasing the number of opportunities for individual

negligence, disobedience of rules and inadvertence

by the employes handling such traffic. Further, by

increasing the number of employes necessary to

handle a given amount of traffic, the number of

individuals who are subject to the hazard of injury

in the handling of that traffic is thereby correspond-

ingly increased.

(f) It is not reasonably necessary to limit

freight trains to 70 freight or other cars, exclusive

of caboose, or passenger trains to 14 cars, in order

to prevent or reduce accidents due to defects in or

failure of equipment of any class. No accident from

these causes has occurred on plaintiff's freight

trains of more than 70 cars in length, exclusive of

caboose, or on plaintiff's passenger trains of more

than 14 cars, of which it can reasonably be said that

the same accident would not, or probably would not,

have occurred if the train had been of [25] the

length permitted by the Arizona Law, or even sub-

stantially shorter. Defects in and failures of loco-

motives are solely related to the individual loco-

motive; and defects in and failures of cars are re-
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lated to the number of cars rmi, and not to the

trains into which they are divided.

(g) There is no reason or basis for any claim

that for reasons of safety or for any other reasons

freight trains in Arizona should be limited to 70

freight or other cars, exclusive of caboose, or pas-

senger trains to 14 cars; the Arizona Train-Limit

Law does not and will not only not decrease what-

ever general or special hazard there is existent and

inherent in plaintiff's freight and passenger train

operations in Arizona, but does and will, to the con-

trary, materially impair and substantially lessen

the safety of plaintiff's freight and passenger train

operations in Arizona, by creating certain indi-

vidual hazards which would not otherwise exist,

and by increasing other hazards inherent in train

operation as hereinbefore described.

VIII.

The Traffic Across Arizona Preponderantly

Interstate.

Substantially all of the freight and passenger

traffic transported on plaintiff's main lines across

the State of Arizona consists of interstate traffic,

by far the greater part of which either originates in

the State of California and is destined to points

east of the Rocky Mountains, or originates at points

east of the Rocky Mountains and is destined to

California points, and is commonly known as trans-

continental traffic. A large part of the remainder of



vs. Joe Conway 31

such interstate traffic consists of traffic moving to

or from the State of Arizona.

A substantial portion of the traffic originating in

California [26] as well as in Arizona, and destined

to points east of Arizona consists of perishable

freight (i. e., fruits and vegetables) which are re-

quired to be transported in as large train units as

practicable, so as not to delay their receipt in east-

ern markets, where prices constantly fluctuate, and

so as to prevent loss of value by decay and de-

terioration.

The traffic handled upon plaintiff's lines extend-

ing across the States of Nevada and Utah likewise

consists almost entirely of interstate traffic, and

principally of transcontinental traffic as above de-

fined; and in large part of perishable products,

moving from the States of California and Oregon to

eastern destinations, and of traffic moving to the

Pacific Coast states; and in many respects is thus

closely similar to the traffic carried upon plaintiff's

lines across the State of Arizona.

The Arizona Train-Limit Law, by preventing the

proper and expeditious handling of the aforesaid

interstate ti^affic from, to and across the State of

Arizona, by limiting the lengths of the train units

in which it may be handled, thereby unnecessarily

and unreasonably burdens, delays, and interferes

with the interstate commerce in which it moves.

The traffic on the interstate passenger trains

operated by plaintiff upon its lines across the State
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of Arizona consists, almost in its entirety, of pas-

sengers, baggage, and express moving from one

state to another; moreover, practically all of said

interstate passenger trains carry United States

mail. The inevitable effect of said Arizona Law is

frequently to delay such interstate passenger trains,

as they enter or are about to enter, or are leaving

or about to leave, or are in transit across the State

of Arizona, and thereby unreasonably and imneces-

sarily to burden, delay, and interfere with the inter-

state commerce carried on by means of said trains.

[27]

IX.

The Subject of Train Limitation One of National

Concern.

The permissible number of cars in an interstate

train is a subject of national, and not local, con-

cern, and one which, if any regulation at all is to

be required, should be regulated by the Federal

Grovernment and not by the individual states, in

that it is wholly impracticable to move railroad ter-

minals to state lines, or to split or consolidate

through trains except at terminals; and at some

terminals freight trains containing perishable

freight cannot be delayed for purposes of splitting

up or consolidation. If other states should regulate

train lengths in accordance with their several no-

tions as to what would be proper within their

respective boundaries, all such regulations neces-

sarily would have wide extraterritorial effect, as
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does the Arizona Law, and to comply with their

conflicting provisions would seriously embarrass

through interstate train operations.

X.

The Law Impairs the Usefulness of Plaintiff's

Facilities.

The necessary effect and operation of said Train-

Limit Law is directly, substantially, and continu-

ously to impair the use and usefulness of the facili-

ties used and usable by the plaintiff, in the carriage

of interstate commerce across, into, through, and

out of, the State of Arizona.

XL
The Law Imposes Direct Burdens Upon Interstate

Commerce.

The additional and unnecessary expense of inter-

state freight train and interstate passenger train

operation, more fully set [28] forth heretofore, to

which plaintiff is subjected as hereinbefore alleged,

and which plaintiff could avoid if it were not for

said Train-Limit Law, is a substantial and direct

burden upon the interstate commerce carried on by
plaintiff into, out of, across and through the State

of Arizona by means of its said interstate trains.
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XII.

The Law Violates the Commerce Clause of the

Federal Constitution.

Said Train-Limit Law is unconstitutional and

void, as to each and all of the interstate trains of

the plaintiff, in that it conflicts with and violates

the Commerce Clause (Paragraph 3 of Section 8,

Article I) of the Constitution of the United States;

because

:

(a) The permissible number of cars in an inter-

state railroad train passing from one state to an-

other, or passing from one state through another

into a third, or passing through a number of states,

is a subject over which exclusive legislative juris-

diction was and is vested in Congress by said Com-

merce Clause;

(b) The necessary effect of said law is: (1) to

impose a direct and substantial burden upon, and

directly and substantially to interfere with, delay,

and regulate, the operation of plaintiff's interstate

freight and passenger trains across and within Ari-

zona, as well as in California and New Mexico;

(2) to determine the number of interstate trains to

be run by plaintiff, not only within Arizona, but

also within adjoining portions of California and

New Mexico; and (3) to impair the usefulness of

the facilities used as well as those usable by the

plaintiff in the carriage of interstate commerce

across, through, into, and out of, the State of Ari-

zona. [29]
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XIII.

The Law Violates the Due-Process Clause of the

XIV Amendment.

Said Train-Limit Law is further unconstitutional

and void, and in violation of the aforesaid Com-

merce Clause of the Constitution, and also operates

unreasonably and arbitrarily to deprive plaintiff of

its property without due process of law, in viola-

tion of the Due-Process Clause of the Fourteenth

Amendment to the Constitution of the United

States, because:

(a) It fixes maximum train lengths very much

lower than those which generally obtain elsewhere

throughout the United States, under operating con-

ditions substantially the same as those on plaintiff's

main lines in Arizona;

(b) It makes no allowance for grade or other

operating conditions, or for the construction, type,

weight, or length of the cars composing the train,

or whether such trains are loaded or empty, and if

loaded the weight of the load;

(c) It imposes a great and substantial burden

of expense upon, interference with, and delay to,

interstate commerce and impairs the usefulness of

plaintiff's transportation facilities; and

(d) It bears no reasonable relation to health or

safety.
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XIV.

The Law in Conflict with Federal Legislation.

Said Train-Limit Law is further void, invalid,

and unenforceable, for the reason that it is in con-

flict with, and/or an infringement upon, legislation

heretofore enacted by Congress, pursuant to its

powers under the Commerce Clause of the Constitu-

tion, in the following respects:

(a) To the extent that said Train-Limit Law is

or may be intended to prevent the use of heavy

locomotives in the State of [30] Arizona, and thus

to regulate locomotive sizes, it is an infringement

upon and in conflict with statutes enacted by Con-

gress pursuant thereto, having the same or a like

purpose, to wit, the Boiler Inspection Act of Febru-

ary 17, 1911 (36 Stat. 913), as amended in 1915,

(38 Stat. 1192) and in 1924 (43 Stat. 659), being

Sections 23 to 35, inclusive, of Title 45 of the

United States Code, wherein and whereby full

power over the size, design, weight or construction

of locomotives was delegated to and is now vested

in the Interstate Commerce Commission;

(b) To the extent to which said Train-Limit

Law is intended to or has or may have the effect of

limiting the number of cars in a freight or passen-

ger train to the maximum number which properly

and with reasonable safety can be controlled in one

train by the type of air brakes and their appurte-

nances now used on such trains, or by any other

form of train-control devices or other safety devices,



vs. Joe Comvay 37

it is void, in that it attempts to and does enter a

legislative field already entered and therefore com-

pletely occupied by Congress: the Congress having,

under the Commerce Clause, by the enactment of

the power-brake provisions of the Safety Appliance

Act, as amended (Sections 1 and 9 of Chapter 1 of

Title 45 of the United States Code), and the pro-

visions of Section 26 of the Interstate Commerce

Act (Section 26 of Chapter 1 of Title 49, of the

United States Code), delegated to the Interstate

Commerce Commission full and complete authority

to investigate and determine the adequacy of the

air-brakes, and their appurtenances, and other

forms of train-control and other safety devices,

used or proposed to be used upon locomotives and

cars operated in interstate commerce, and by order

to prescribe the form and type of such air-brakes,

appurtenances and other train-control and safety

devices, and from time to time to issue such amenda-

tory and supplementary orders as it may deem

necessary or desirable in the exercise of the power

and jurisdic- [31] tion thus conferred by Congress

;

and the Congress having, in particular, in and by

said statutes, necessarily empowered said Inter-

state Commerce Commission to determine whether

the types of air-brakes, and their appurtenances,

presently used or proposed to be used upon trains

in interstate commerce, are or will be adequate and

effective, safely and properly to control and to stop

trains of the lengths now being operated in inter-
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state commerce, both in the State of Arizona and

elsewhere, by the plaintiff and by other railroad

common carriers throughout the United States.

XV.

Nature of the Controversy.

An actual controversy has arisen and now exists,

with respect to the validity and constitutionality

of said Arizona Train-Limit law, and the rights,

duties, powers and obligations of the parties to this

suit under said law; in that plaintiff, on the one

hand, as heretofore set forth at length, claims and

maintains that said train-limit law is wholly void,

unconstitutional and unenforceable, in so far as it

applies or may apply to any of the plaintiff's rail-

road operations within or without Arizona ; whereas

defendant, on the other hand, claims and maintains

that said train-limit law is valid and constitutional

in all respects and is applicable to and binding upon

plaintiff in its ralroad operations in Arizona; and

said defendant further claims and maintains that,

in the event of violation of said law by plaintiff, it

is and will be his duty forthwith to institute or di-

rect the institution of proceedings to recover from

plaintiff the penalties provided in said law and

otherwise to enforce compliance therewith by

plaintiff.

If it were not for said law, and the position and

opinion with regard to the constitutionality and

validity thereof maintained by defendant, as afore-



vs. Joe Cotiway 39

said, plaintiff could and would at once begin and

hereafter continue to operate a substantial number

of its [32] freight, and passenger trains into, within,

through and across Arizona, without regard to the

restrictions and limitations imposed by said law;

and would thereby and thereupon at once begin and

thereafter continue to effect the increased economy

and efficiency and the greater safety of operation

which, as heretofore set forth in detail, are and

would be attendant upon and caused by such long-

train operation.

Plaintiff is presently unwilling and imable

to undertake such long-train operations within,

through and across Arizona, in the absence of a

final determination and declaration that said law is

invalid and unconstitutional as applied to its opera-

tions, because of the heavy cumulative penalties

which, as hereinafter described, would shortly ac-

crue if such a course were followed, and the law

should be sustained in prosecutions instituted by or

at the direction of defendant for the purpose of en-

forcing said law and recovering the penalties

therein provided.

By reason of the aforesaid conflicting claims of

the plaintiff and defendant, and the actual contro-

versy thereby created and now existing, it is neces-

sary that this Court render its declaratory judg-

ment and decree, adjudging and determining

whether said law be constitutional and valid, and
adjudging and determining the rights, powers,
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duties and obligations of each of the parties hereto

under said law, and thereby finally adjudging and

determining the aforesaid controversy.

XVI.

Extent and Cumulative Character of Penalties for

Violation of Train-Limit Law.

In handling the interstate freight traffic moving

over its lines across the State of Arizona, plaintiff

operates daily in each direction between its freight

terminals at Yuma, Arizona, and Gila, Arizona, and

between its freight terminals at Gila and Tucson,

[33] Arizona, and between its freight terminals at

Tucson and Lordsburg, New Mexico, a substantial

number of through interstate freight trains, all of

which move over the line heretofore described as

the Yuma-Maricopa-Lordsburg Line. The number

of such trains so operated each day varies according

to the demands of traffic and ranges from approxi-

mately 75 trains per month on the average, in each

direction between Yuma and Gila, and 75 trains

per month in each direction between Gila and

Tucson, and 90 trains per month in each direction

between Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month

of November, to 180 trains per month in each direc-

tion between Yuma and Gila, and 180 trains per

month in each direction between Gila and Tucson,

and 200 trains per month in each direction between

Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month of June;

which said months of November and Jime repre-
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sent the months during the year when such inter-

state traffic across Arizona is lightest and heaviest,

respectively.

If plaintiff were to disregard the provisions of

the Arizona Train-Limit Law, and were to attempt

to operate each of its aforesaid freight trains within

or across the State of Arizona with more than 70

cars each, exclusive of caboose, it would thereby be-

come subject to prosecution for the recovery of the

severe penalties provided by Section 3 of said

Train-Limit Law^, which said Section provides a

penalty of not less than $100.00 nor more than $1,-

000.00 for each such violation. As heretofore alleged,

said defendant claims and maintains that it is and

will be his duty, as Attorney General, to prosecute

and sue plaintiff for each and every violation of

said Act which it may commit. Plaintiff would thus

become liable for penalties, in the event the defend-

ant should institute such prosecutions, as directed

and required by said Section 3, which, in the event

said law should be sustained in said prosecutions,

would range, on the average, from $1,600.00 to

$16,000.00 per day, during the period of lightest

[34] traffic, and from $3,700.00 to $37,000.00 per

day during the period of heaviest traffic; and said

penalties would be and will be cumulative, and may
or might be recovered by said defendant, in a single

prosecution or in a series of prosecutions instituted

for that purpose, unless said law be declared in-

valid and unconstitutional by final judgment as

herein prayed for. Said penalties would be addi-
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tional to any penalties which might be incurred by

the operation of freight trains of more than 70 cars,

exclusive of caboose, upon the Wellton-Phoenix-

Picacho or Tucson-Douglas main lines, hertofore

described, or upon any of the branch lines in Ari-

zona, or of passenger trains of more than 14 cars

upon any part of the plaintiff's lines in Arizona.

If, on the other hand, plaintiff should continue

to comply with said law, and should continue to

operate all of its freight trains upon its lines within

the State of Arizona, and the adjacent districts in

which the law now has extraterritorial effect, with

not more than 70 freight or other cars, exclusive of

caboose, and were to continue to operate all of its

passenger trains within Arizona and said adjacent

districts with not more than 14 cars each, the added

expense thus imposed upon plaintiff, solely as the

result of said compliance, would be and will con-

tinue to be, as heretofore more fully alleged, not

less than $300,000 per year, or, on the average, not

less than approximately $822.00 per day, all of

which such added expense is and will be continuous

and irreparable.

XVII.

Lack of Adequate Remedy at Law.

Plaintiff, as a citizen and resident of the State of

Kentucky, has no plain, speedy or adequate remedy

at law in this or any other court of the United

States of America.
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Plaintiff, irrespective of its residence and citizen-

ship in a state other than the State of Arizona, has

no plain, speedy or adequate [35] remedy at law in

any court of the State of Arizona, or in any other

jurisdiction.

Prayer for Relief.

Wherefore, inasmuch as it is without any ade-

quate remedy at law for its protection, plaintiff

prays

:

(1) That after due hearing held in accordance

with law this Court do declare, adjudge and decree

the rights, powers, duties and obligations of the

plaintiff and the defendant with respect to the

aforesaid Arizona Train-Limit Law, and with re-

spect to the controversy which has arisen and now

exists as between the plaintiff and the defendant

regarding the validity, constitutionality and en-

forceability of said train-limit law ; and that in par-

ticular this Court do declare, adjudge and decree:

(a) That plaintiff has no plain, speedy or ade-

quate remedy at law for the damage and injury

which result from its enforced compliance with said

Arizona Train-Limit Law, and that such damage

and injury are and will continue to be great and ir-

reparable, unless plaintiff be relieved, by final

judgment declaring said law to be invalid and un-

constitutional as to the plaintiff, from the necessity

of continuing to comply with said law

;

(b) That said Arizona Train-Limit Law is arbi-

trary and unreasonable in and of itself, is void and
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in violation of the provisions and prohibitions of

the Constitution of the United States hereinbefore

specified, and infringes upon and violates the sev-

eral acts of Congress hereinbefore enumerated, and

is therefor wholly invalid and unenforceable as to

the plaintiff or any of the plaintiff's operations

within the State of Arizona;

(2) That the plaintiff have such other and fur-

ther or different relief as may be equitable and

proper in the premises and as to the Court may
seem meet.

Plaintiff further prays to the Court to grant not

only a declara- [36] tory judgment and decree con-

formable to the prayer of this complaint, but also

that a summons of the United States of America

issue out of and under the seal of this Honorable

Court directed to the defendant Joe Conway, com-

manding him on a day certain therein named to be

and appear before this Court then and there to

answer, but not under oath (answer under oath

being hereby expressly waived), all and singular

the premises, and to abide by such judgment and

decree as may be made herein.

SOUTHEEN PACIFIC
COMPANY,

By J. H. DYER,
Vice-President (in Charge of

Operations).

ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
LOUIS B. WHITNEY,

Solicitors for Plaintiff.
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Attest

:

R. G. HILLEBRAND,
Assistant Secretary

(Corporate Seal of Southern Pacific

Company)

C. W. DURBROW,
HENLEY C. BOOTH,
BURTON MASON,

Of Counsel. [37]

Verification.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

J. H. Dyer, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is an officer, to wit, Vice President in

charge of operations, of Southern Pacific Company,

the corporation named as plaintiff in the foregoing

complaint; that as such officer he makes this veri-

fication for and on behalf of said corporation;

That he has read said complaint and knows the

contents thereof, and that the same is true of his

own knowledge, except as the matters therein

stated on information and belief, and as to such

matters he believes it to be true.

J. H. DYER.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 15th day

of April, 1939.

[Notarial Seal] FRANK HARVEY,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr 18, 1939. [38]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO DISMISS

Now comes the defendant, Joe Conway, and

moves to dismiss the Complaint filed in the above

entitled cause for the following reasons

:

I.

It appears upon the face of the Complaint that

there is a lack of jurisdiction over the subject

matter.

II.

The Complaint fails to state a claim upon which

relief can be granted.

III.

The Complaint reveals no "actual controversy"

between the parties as required by the Federal

Declaratory Judgment Act of 1934 (28 U. S. Code,

Section 400).

Respectfully submitted,

CHARLES L. STROUSS
W. E. POLLEY

Attorneys for Defendant

703 Heard Building

Phoenix, Arizona

[Endorsed] : Filed May 5, 1939. [39]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 1

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO
DISMISS

State of Arizona

County of Maricopa—ss.

Joe Conway, being first duly sworn upon oath,

deposes and says : That he is the same Joe Conway

who is named as defendant in the above entitled

cause; that no actual controversy, or any contro-

versy whatsoever, has arisen or exists between the

plaintiff and the defendant with respect to the

validity or constitutionality of the Arizona Train-

Limit Law, or with respect to the rights, duties,

powers or obligations of the parties to this suit

under said law; that he does not claim or main-

tain, and has not claimed or maintained, that said

Arizona Train-Limit Law is valid or constitutional

in all respects, or in any respects, or is applicable

to or is binding upon plaintiff in its railroad opera-

tions in Arizona, or that in the event of violation

of said law by plaintiff it is or will be affiant's duty

to institute or to direct the institution of proceed-

ings to recover from the plaintiff the penalties pro-

vided in said law or otherwise to enforce com-

pliance therewith by plaintiff. In this connection

affiant says that in his individual capacity, the ca-

pacity in which he is here sued, the affiant has no

duty or authority in connection therewith, and has

no interest whatsoever in the determination of the
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validity or constitutionality of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law; that if said [40] Arizona Train-Limit

Law is unconstitutional, as plaintiff contends, af-

fiant in his official capacity as Attorney General of

the State of Arizona has no duty or authority to

enforce said Arizona Train-Limit Law and has no

duty to perform in connection with said law; that

the formulating of an opinion by the affiant concern-

ing the validity or constitutionality of the said Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law and of the duty of the

affiant in his official capacity in connection there-

with and in the enforcement thereof requires and

will require a great amount of study and investiga-

tion into facts, information and data in connection

therewith; that affiant is informed and believes and

on information and belief alleges that in a proceed-

ing in this Court (Southern Pacific Company vs.

K. Berry Peterson, Attorney General of the State

of Arizona, Equity No. 196, Phx.), wherein the

validity or constitutionality of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law was in issue but not determined, ap-

proximately 25 volumes of evidence material and

relevant to facts bearing upon the question of the

validity or constitutionality of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law were received, in addition to numerous

intricate and involved exhibits; that affiant, either

in his individual or official capacity, has made no

study or investigation, and has no knowledge or in-

formation concerning, the facts, data or informa-

tion relevant or material to, or bearing upon the

question of the validity or constitutionality of said
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Arizona Train-Limit Law, and has formulated no

opinion or belief, and makes no contention, either as

to the validity, constitutionality or unconstitution-

ality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law, or as to

affiant's duties thereunder, or as to the application

of said Arizona Train-Limit Law to plaintiff's rail-

road operations in Arizona; that no occasion has

arisen for affiant to investigate the constitutionality

of said Arizona Train Limit Law because there has

been no report or information furnished to affiant

of any violation of said Arizona Train-Limit Law
in Arizona, and affiant has no [41] knowledge or

information that said law ever has been violated.

Fui-ther affiant sayeth not.

JOE CONWAY
Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary

Public, this 5th day of May, 1939.

[Seal] GLADYS L. ARMSTRONG
Notary Public

My Commission Expires July 16, 1941.

[Endorsed]: Piled May 5, 1939.

[Endorsed]: Pltfs. Exhibit No. 1. Admitted and

Filed Dec. 12, 1939. Edward W. Scruggs, Clerk,

United States District Court for the District of

Arizona. By Wm. H. Loveless, Chief Deputy Clerk.

Case No. Civ-31 Phx. S. P. Co. vs. Joe Conway.

[42]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO STRIKE DE-

FENDANT'S AFFIDAVIT FILED "IN
SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS."

Now comes the above-named plaintiff, and moves

the Court to strike from the files in the above-en-

titled cause the affidavit of the defendant Joe Con-

way heretofore filed in this cause on or about the

5th day of May, 1939, which said affidavit is styled

"Affidavit in Support of Motion to Dismiss"; and

in support of said motion assigns the following

grounds

:

(1) Said affidavit is wholly irrelevant and im-

material to any issue or issues raised or presented

by the defendant's said motion to dismiss the com-

plaint on file herein.

(2) Said affidavit is impertinent, in that the

same is not relied upon, or in any manner referred

to, in the defendant's aforesaid motion to dismiss.

(3) Said affidavit is sham and insincere.

(4) There is no authority for the filing or con-

sideration of said affidavit. [43]

This motion is made pursuant to the provisions

of Rule 12(f) of the Rules of Civil Procedure of

the District Courts of the United States.

Respectfully,

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

703 Luhrs Tower, Phoenix,

Arizona.

Solicitors for Plaintiff.
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C. W. DURBROW
HENLEY C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

65 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

Of Counsel.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1939. [44]

[Title of District Court.]

April 1939 Term At Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF MAY 22, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

Defendant's Motion to Dismiss and Plaintiff's

Motion to strike Affidavit in Support of Motion to

Dismiss come on regularly for hearing this day.

Messrs. Baker and Whitney appear as counsel

for the plaintiff. Charles L. Strouss, Esquire, and

W. E. Policy, Esquire, appear as counsel for the

defendant.

On motion of Alexander Baker, Esquire,

It Is Ordered that Burton Mason, Esquire, be

entered as associate counsel for the plaintiff.

Argument is now had by respective counsel, and

It Is Ordered that said Motion to Dismiss and

said Motion to Strike Affidavit in Support of Mo-
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tion to Dismiss be submitted and by the Court taken

under advisement. [45]

[Title of District Court.]

April 1939 Term At Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF JUNE 24, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, Presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

Defendant's Motion to Dismiss and Plaintiff's

Motion to Strike Affidavit having been argued, sub-

mitted and by the Court taken under advisement,

and the Court having duly considered the same and

being fully advised in the premises.

It Is Ordered that said Motion to Dismiss be and

it is denied, and that said Motion to Strike Affidavit

be and it is denied. [46]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER
Comes now the defendant, Joe Conway, and an-

swering the plaintiff's complaint herein admits,

denies and alleges as follows:
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I.

There is a want of jurisdiction in that no case

or controversy is presented within the judicial

power of the United States.

II.

There is a want of jurisdiction in that the suit

is one against the State of Arizona by a citizen of

another State in Violation and in contravention of

the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the

United States.

III.

Defendant admits the allegations contained in

subsection (a) of paragraph I of plaintiff's com-

plaint.

IV.

Answering subsection (b) of paragraph I of

plaintiff's complaint defendant admits he is sued as

an individual and not in his official capacity ; admits

that he is a citizen of the State of Arizona residing

in the City of Phoenix, County of Maricopa, in said

state, and is the duly elected, qualified and acting

Attorney General of the State of Arizona; defend-

ant denies that under the Constitution or laws of

the State of Arizona power or authority is vested

in, or the duty is imposed upon, defendant in his

individual [47] capacity to commence or prosecute,

or to direct the institution or prosecution of suits

for penalties for a violation of the Arizona Train-

Limit Law ; and in this connection defendant alleges

that only if said Arizona Train-Limit Law is con-
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stitutional is any power or duty imposed upon the

defendant in his official capacity to commence or

prosecute, or to direct the institution or prosecution

of, suits for penalties for any violation of the said

Arizona Train-Limit Law; and that if, as plaintiff

alleges and contends, said Arizona Train-Limit Law
is unconstitutional, then neither under the Constitu-

tion nor the laws of the State of Arizona is any

power vested in, nor any duty imposed upon the

defendant in his official capacity to commence or

prosecute, or to direct the institution or prosecution

of, suits for penalties for a violation of said Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law, or in any manner whatso-

ever to enforce said Arizona Train-Limit Law; in

this connection defendant further alleges that the

formulating of an opinion by the defendant con-

cerning the validity or constitutionality of the said

Arizona Train-Limit Law and of the duty of the

defendant in his official capacity in connection

therewith and in the enforcement thereof requires

and will require a great amount of study and in-

vestigation into facts, information and data in con-

nection therewith; that defendant is informed and

believes and on information and belief alleges that

in a proceeding in this Court (Southem Pacific

Company vs. K. Berry Peterson, Attorney General

of the State of Arizona, Equity No. 196, Phx.),

wherein the validity or constitutionality of said Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law was in issue but not deter-

mined, approximately twenty-five volumes of evi-

dence material and relevant to facts bearing upon
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the question of the validity or constitutionality of

said Arizona Train-Limit Law were received, in

addition to numerous intricate and involved ex-

hibits; that defendant, either in his individual or

official capacity, has made no study or investigation,

and has no knowledge or information concerning,

the [48] facts, data or information relevant or ma-

terial to, or bearing upon the question of the

validity or constitutionality of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law, and has formulated no opinion or belief,

and makes no contention, either as to the validity,

constitutionality or unconstitutionality of said Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law, or as to defendant's duties

thereunder, or as to the application of said Arizona

Train-Limit Law to plaintiff's railroad operations

in Arizona; that no occasion has arisen for defend-

ant in his official capacity to investgate the consti-

tutionality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law be-

cause there has been no report or information fur-

nished to defendant of any violation of said Arizona

Train-Limit Law in Arizona, and defendant has no

knowledge or information that said law ever has

been violated, and in his individual capacity de-

fendant has no interest whatsoever in the investiga-

tion or determination of the constitutionality or

unconstitutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit

Law.

V.

Defendant denies each and every, all and singu-

lar, the allegations contained in subsection (a) of

paragraph II of plaintiff's complaint.
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VI.

Answering subsection (b) of paragraph II of

plaintiff's complaint defendant denies that there is

any matter whatsoever in controversy between the

plaintiff and the defendant and denies that any

controversy exists between plaintiff and defendant.

VII.

Answering subsection (c) of paragraph II of

plaintiff's complaint defendant denies that this suit

arises under the Constitution or laws of the United

States for the reason that defendant makes no con-

tention either as to the constitutionality or uncon-

stitutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law and

no controversy exists between plaintiff and defend-

ant within the judicial power [49] of the United

States Courts.

VIII.

Answering subsection (d) of paragraph II of

plaintiff's complaint defendant alleges that he has

no knowledge or information sufficient to form a

belief concerning the truth or falsity of the matters

alleged in said subsection (d) ; that he is without

funds, except his individual and personal funds,

with which to investigate, procure or present evi-

dence concerning the matters alleged in said sub-

section (d), or to pay any costs which might be

incurred, and adjudged against him, in taking evi-

dence thereon; that defendant in his individual ca-

pacity, the capacity in which he is here sued, has

no interest whatsoever in investigating the matters
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and things alleged in said subsection (d), or in pro-

curing or presenting evidence in respect thereto, or

in the adjudication or determination of the matters

or things presented in said subsection (d) ; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said subsection (d).

IX.

Answering subsection (e) of paragraph II of

plaintiff's complaint defendant denies that facts or

circumstances set forth in plaintiff's complaint

necessitate or justify the exercise of the jurisdic-

tion of this Court herein ; denies that this Court has

jurisdiction herein for the reason that no contro-

versy has arisen or exists between plaintiff and

defendant within the judicial power of United

States courts.

X.

Answering paragraph III of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief concern-

ing the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in

said paragraph III; that he is without funds, ex-

cept his individual and personal funds, with which

to investigate, procure or present [50] evidence

concerning the matters alleged in said paragraph

III, or to pay any costs which might be incurred,

and adjudged against him, in taking evidence

thereon; that defendant in his individual capacity,
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the capacity in which he is here sued, has no inter-

est whatsoever in investigating the matters and

things alleged in said paragraph III, or in procur-

ing or presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in

the adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph III; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said paragraph III.

XI.

Defendant admits the allegations contained in

paragraph IV of plaintiff's complaint.

XII.

Answering paragraph V of plaintiff's complaint

defendant alleges that he has no knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief concerning the

truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said para-

graph V; that he is without funds, except his indi-

vidual and personal funds, with which to investi-

gate, procure or present evidence concerning the

matters alleged in said paragraph V, or to pay any

costs which might be incurred, and adjudged

against him, in taking evidence thereon; that de-

fendant in his individual capacity, the capacity in

which he is here sued, has no interest whatsoever in

investigating the matters and things alleged in said

paragraph V, or in procuring or presenting evi-

dence in respect thereto, or in the adjudication or

determination of the matters or things presented in
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said paragraph V; that for such reasons and to

avoid and prevent a judgment against defendant

for costs necessary to taking evidence thereon, de-

fendant admits the allegations of said paragraph V.

[51]

XIII.

Answering paragraph VI of plaintiff's complaint

defendant alleges that he has no knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief concerning the

truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said para-

graph VI ; that he is without funds, except his indi-

vidual and personal funds, with which to investi-

gate, procure or present evidence concerning the

matters alleged in said paragraph VI, or to pay any

costs which might be incurred, and adjudged

against him, in taking evidence thereon; that de-

fendant in his individual capacity, the capacity in

which he is here sued, has no interest whatsoever

in investigating the matters and things alleged in

said paragraph VI, or in procuring or presenting

evidence in respect thereto, or in the adjudication

or determination of the matters or things presented

in said paragraph VI ; that for such reasons and to

avoid and prevent a judgment against defendant

for costs necessary to taking evidence thereon, de-

fendant admits the allegations of said para-

graph VI.

XIV.
Answering paragraph VII of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge
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or information sufficient to form a belief concerning

the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said

paragraph VII; that he is without funds, except

his individual and personal funds, with which to

investigate, procure or present evidence concerning

the matters alleged in said paragraph VII, or to

pay any costs which might be incurred, and ad-

judged against him, in taking evidence thereon;

that defendant in his individual capacity, the

capacity in which he is here sued, has no interest

whatsoever in investigating the matters and things

alleged in said paragraph VII, or in procuring or

presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in the

adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph VII; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to [52] tak-

ing evidence thereon, defendant admits the allega-

tions of said paragraph VII.

XV.
Answering paragraph VIII of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief concern-

ing the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in

said paragraph VIII; that he is without funds, ex-

cept his individual and personal funds, with which

to investigate, procure or present evidence concern-

ing the matters alleged in said paragraph VIII, or

to pay any costs which might be incurred, and ad-

judged against him, in taking evidence thereon;
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that defendant in his individual capacity, the

capacity in which he is here sued, has no interest

whatsoever in investigating the matters and things

alleged in said paragraph VIII, or in procuring or

presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in the

adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph VIII; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said paragraph VIII.

XVI.
Answering paragraph IX of plaintiff's complaint

defendant alleges that he has no knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief concerning the

truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said para-

graph IX ; that he is without funds, except his indi-

vidual and personal funds, with which to investi-

gate, procure or present evidence concerning the

matters alleged in said paragraph IX, or to pay any

costs which might be incurred, and adjudged

against him, in taking evidence thereon; that de-

fendant in his individual capacity, the capacity in

which he is here sued, has no interest whatsoever

in investigating the matters and things alleged in

said paragraph IX, or in procuring or presenting

evidence in respect thereto, or in the adjudication

or determination of the matters or [53] things pre-

sented in said paragraph IX ; that for such reasons

and to avoid and prevent a judgment against de-
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fendant for costs necessary to taking evidence there-

on, defendant admits the allegations of said para-

graph IX.

XVII.

Answering paragraph X of plaintiff's complaint

defendant alleges that he has no knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief concerning

the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said

paragraph X; that he is without funds, except his

individual and personal funds, with which to inves-

tigate, procure or present evidence concerning the

matters alleged in said paragraph X, or to pay any

costs which might be incurred, and adjudged

against him, in takmg evidence thereon; that de-

fendant in his individual capacity, the capacity in

which he is here sued, has no interest whatsoever

in investigating the matters and things alleged in

said paragraph X, or in procuring or presenting

evidence in respect thereto, or in the adjudication

or determination of the matters or things presented

in said paragraph X; that for such reasons and to

avoid and prevent a judgment against defendant

for costs necessary to taking evidence thereon, de-

fendant admits the allegations of said paragraph X.

XVIII.

Answering paragraph XI of plaintiff's complaint

defendant alleges that he has no knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief concerning the

truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said para-

graph XI ; that he is without funds, except his indi-

vidual and personal funds, with which to investi-
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gate, procure or present evidence concerning the

matters alleged in said paragraph XI, or to pay any

costs which might be incurred, and adjudged

against him, in taking evidence thereon; that de-

fendant in his individual capacity, the capacity in

which he is here sued, has no interest whatsoever

in investigating the matters and things alleged in

said [54] paragraph XI, or in procuring or pre-

senting evidence in respect thereto, or in the ad-

judication or determination of the matters or things

presented in said paragraph XI; that for such rea-

sons and to avoid and prevent a judgment against

defendant for costs necessary to taking evidence

thereon, defendant admits the allegations of said

paragraph XI.

XIX.

Answering paragraph XII of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief concerning

the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in said

paragraph XII; that he is without funds, except

his individual and personal funds, with which to

investigate, procure or present evidence concerning

the matters alleged in said jjaragraph XII, or to

pay any costs which might be incurred, and ad-

judged against him, in taking evidence thereon;

that defendant in his individual capacity, the

capacity in which he is here sued, has no interest

whatsoever in investigating the matters and things

alleged in said paragraph XII, or in procuring or

presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in the
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adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph XII; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said paragraph XII.

XX.
Answering paragraph XIII of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief concern-

ing the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in

said paragraph XIII; that he is without funds,

except his individual and personal funds, with

which to investigate, procure or present evidence

concerning the matters alleged in said paragraph

XIII, or to pay any costs which might be incurred,

and adjudged against him, in taking evidence

thereon ; that defendant in his individual capa- [55]

city, the capacity in which he is here sued, has no

interest whatsoever in investigating the matters and

things alleged in said paragraph XIII, or in pro-

curing or presenting evidence in respect thereto, or

in the adjudication or determination of the matters

or things presented in said paragraph XIII; that

for such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judg-

ment against defendant for costs necessary to tak-

ing evidence thereon, defendant admits the allega-

tions of said paragraph XIII.

XXI.
Answering paragraph XIV of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge
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or information sufficient to form a belief concern-

ing the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in

said paragraph XIV; that he is without fimds, ex-

cept his individual and personal funds, with which

to investigate, procure or present evidence con-

cerning the matters alleged in said paragraph XIV,

or to pay any costs which might be incurred, and

adjudged against him, in taking evidence thereon;

that defendant in his individual capacity, the

capacity in which he is here sued, has no interest

whatsoever in investigating the matters and things

alleged in said paragraph XIV, or in procuring or

presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in the

adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph XIV; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said paragraph XIV.

XXII.
Answering paragraph XV of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant denies that an actual controversy,

or any controversy, has arisen or exists between the

plaintiff and the defendant with respect to the

validity or constitutionality of the Arizona Train-

Limit Law, or with respect to the rights, duties,

powers or obligations of the parties to this suit

imder said law, or at all; denies that [56] defen-

dant claims or maintains that said Arizona Train-

Limit Law is valid or constitutional in all respects.
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or in any respect, or is applicable to or binding

upon plaintiff in its railroad operations in Arizona

;

denies that defendant claims or maintains that, in

the event of violation of said law by plaintiff, it is

or will be his duty to institute or to direct the insti-

tution of proceedings to recover from plaintiff the

penalties provided in said law^ or otherwise to en-

force compliance therewith by plaintiff.

In this connection defendant alleges that in his

individual capacity, the capacity in which he is here

sued, the defendant has no duty whatsoever to en-

force said law or to perform in connection there-

with, and has no interest whatsoever in the deter-

mination of the validity or constitutionality of said

Arizona Train-Limit Law; and that if, as plaintiff

alleges and contends, said Arizona Train-Limit Law
is unconstitutional, then neither under the Consti-

tution nor the laws of the State of Arizona is any

power vested in, nor any duty imposed upon the

defendant in his official capacity to commence or

prosecute, or to direct the institution or prosecu-

tion of, suits for penalties for a violation of said

Arizona Train-Limit Law, or in any manner what-

soever to enforce said Arizona Train-Limit Law;

in this connection defendant further alleges that

the formulating of an opinion by the defendant

concerning the validity or constitutionality of the

said Arizona Train-Limit Law and of the duty of

the defendant in his official capacity in connection

therewith and in the enforcement thereof requires

and will require a great amount of study and inves-
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tigation into facts, information and data in con-

nection therewith; that defendant is informed and

believes and on information and belief alleges that

in a proceeding in this Court (Southern Pacific

Company vs. K. Berry Peterson, Attorney General

of the State of Arizona, Equity No. 196, Phx.),

wherein the validity or constitutionality of said

Arizona Train-Limit Law was in issue but not de-

termined, approxi- [57] mately twenty-five volumes

of evidence material and relevant to facts bearing

upon the question of the validity or constitutional-

ity of said Arizona Train-Limit Law were received,

in addition to numerous intricate and involved ex-

hibits; that defendant, either in his individual or

official capacity, has made no study or investigation,

and has no knowledge or information concerning,

the facts, data or information relevant or material

to, or bearing upon the question of the validity or

constitutionality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law,

and has formulated no opinion or belief, and makes

no contention, either as to the validity, constitution-

ality or unconstitutionality of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law, or as to defendant's duties thereunder,

or as to the application of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law to plaintiff's railroad operations in

Arizona; that no occasion has arisen for defendant

in his official capacity to investigate the constitu-

tionality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law because

there has been no report or information furnished

to defendant of any violation of said Arizona Train-

Limit Law in Arizona, and defendant has no knowl-
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edge or information that said law ever has been

violated, and in his individual capacity defendant

has no interest whatsoever in the investigation or

determination of the constitutionality or unconsti-

tutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law; de-

fendant denies that the position or opinion of the

defendant with regard to the constitutionality or

validity of said Arizona Train-Limit Law in any

wa}^ interferes with the plaintiff's operations; de-

nies that defendant has or maintains any position,

opinion or contention concerning the validity or

constitutionality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law;

denies that any conflicting claim exists between the

plaintiff and the defendant concerning the validity

or constitutionality of said Arizona Train-Limit

Law; denies that any controversy, actual or other-

wise, exists between the plaintiff and the defendant

;

denies that it is necessary, proper, or within the

jurisdiction of the Court to render a declaratory

judgment, or any [58] judgment herein.

XXIII.

Defendant denies that he claims or maintains that

it is or will be his duty, as Attorney General or

otherwise, to prosecute or sue plaintiff for each or

for any violation by plaintiff of the Arizona Train-

Limit Law as alleged in paragraph XVI of plain-

tiff's complaint.

Answering, each and every, all and singular, the

allegations contained in paragraph XVI not herein

specifically admitted or denied defendant alleges
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that he has no knowledge or information sufficient

to form a belief concerning the truth or falsity of

the matters alleged in said paragraph XVI; that

he is without funds, except his individual and per-

sonal funds, with which to investigate, procure or

present evidence concerning the matters alleged in

said paragraph XVI, or to pay any costs which

might be incurred, and adjudged against him, in

taking evidence thereon; that defendant in his in-

dividual capacity, the capacity in which he is here

sued, has no interest whatsoever in investigating

the matters and things alleged in said paragraph

XVI, or in procuring or presenting evidence in re-

spect thereto, or in the adjudication or determina-

tion of the matters or things presented in said para-

graph XVI ; that for such reasons and to avoid and

prevent a judgment against defendant for costs

necessary to taking evidence thereon, defendant ad-

mits the allegations of said paragraph XVI.

XXIV.
Answering paragraph XVII of plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant alleges that he has no knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief concern-

ing the truth or falsity of the matters alleged in

said paragraph XVII ; that he is without funds, ex-

cept his individual and personal funds, with which

to investigate, procure or present evidence concern-

ing the matters alleged in said paragraph XVII, or

to pay any costs which might be incurred, and [59]

adjudged against him, in taking evidence thereon;
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that defendant in his individual capacity, the

capacity in which he is here sued, has no interest

whatsoever in investigating the matters and things

alleged in said paragraph XVII, or in procuring

or presenting evidence in respect thereto, or in the

adjudication or determination of the matters or

things presented in said paragraph XVII; that for

such reasons and to avoid and prevent a judgment

against defendant for costs necessary to taking evi-

dence thereon, defendant admits the allegations of

said paragraph XVII.

Wherefore, defendant prays that plaintiff's com-

plaint and action be dismissed for want of jurisdic-

tion and that defendant have his costs herein ex-

pended.

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Defendant,

703 Heard Building,

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 5, 1939. [60]
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[Title of District Court.]

April 1939 Term

at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF SEPTEMBER 18, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

Plaintiff's Motion for Order Appointing Special

Master and Referring Cause to such Special Mas-

ter and Defendant's Objection to Appointment of

Special Master come on regular^ for hearing this

day.

Louis Whitney, Esquire, and Burton Mason, Es-

quire, appear as counsel for the plaintiff. Charles

L. Strouss, Esquire, appears as counsel for the de-

fendant.

Argument is now had by respective counsel, and

It is ordered that said Motion for Order Appoint-

ing Special Master and Referring Cause to such

Special Master be and it is denied. [61]
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[Title of District Court.]

October 1939 Term
at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF OCTOBER 23, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

It is ordered that this case be set for pre-trial

conference Friday, November 3, 1939, at ten o'clock

a. m., pursuant to Rule 16, and it is further ordered

that this case be set for trial Tuesday, December 12,

1939, at ten o'clock a. m. [62]

[Title of District Court.]

October 1939 Term

at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF NOVEMBER 3, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

This case comes on regularly this day for pre-

trial conference pursuant to Civil Rule 16.

Henley C. Booth, Esquire, Burton Mason, Es-

quire, Alexander B. Baker, Esquire, and Louis B.

Whitney, Esquire, appear as counsel for the plain-
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tiff. The defendant, Joe Conway, is present with his

counsel, Charles L. Stroiiss, Esquire, and W. E.

Polley, Esquire.

Louis L. Billar is now duly sworn to report these

proceedings and pre-trial hearing is now had. [63]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE

The Pre-Trial Conference was called on the above

entitled cause by the Honorable Dave W. Ling,

Judge of the L^nited States District Court for the

District of Arizona, commencing at the hour of 10

o'clock A. M. on the 3rd day of November, 1939.

The plaintiff was represented by Messrs. Alex-

ander B. Baker and Louis B. Whitney, 703 Luhrs

Tower, Phoenix, Arizona, Solicitors, and Messrs.

C. W. Durbrow, Henley C. Booth and Burton Ma-

son, 65 Market Street, San Francisco, California,

of Counsel.

The defendant was represented by Messrs.

Charles L. Strouss and W. E. Polley, 703 Heard

Building, Phoenix, Arizona.

Thereupon the following proceedings were had

:

Thereupon Louis L. Billar was duly sworn to act

as official Shorthand Reporter during the proceed-

ings. [64]

The Court: I think probably we could save some

time in the trial of this case if we could learn now
on the issues which are to be presented what por-
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tions of the complaint are denied and which are ad-

mitted. There seems to be some question in the

minds of counsel for the plaintiff whether the de-

fendant's answer would constitute an admission or

a denial of some of the allegations in the complaint.

I think we might clear that up.

I notice in Paragraph 1 of the complaint, that

seems to be admitted except down to line 15 on

page 2.

Mr. Mason: Your Honor please, I have pre-

pared a summary of the allegations which may save

a little time in your review. I would like to present

it to you and present a copy to opposing counsel. It

is entitled ''Plaintiff's Memorandum for Pre-Trial

Conference" and, Mr. Reporter, will you show that

I have handed a copy to his Honor and also a copy

to Mr. Strouss.

(Thereupon a copy of document was presented to

the court and to counsel, Mr. Strouss, by Mr. Ma-

son.)

The Court: Well, I gather from this that the

allegations of the complaint, then, are 3, 5, 6, 7, 8

and 15 are admitted and it would not be necessary

to introduce testimony to support those allegations.

Mr. Mason: Well, I don't believe that they are

admitted. [65]

The Court: Well, that is the purpose for this

hearing.

Mr. Mason: As I said, as shown here on Page 9

of this memorandum, it says, "That he has no in-

formation or knowledge sufficient to form a belief
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as to the truth of the matters alleged", and that

statement, under Rule 8 (b) of the District Court

Rules, has the effect of a denial and places the bur-

den of proof upon the plaintiff. Now, accompany-

ing that denial or the equivalent of a denial is the

statement of lack of interest and lack of funds, a

desire to avoid a trial or judgment for costs, in con-

sequence of which the defendant says, ^and to avoid

judgment for costs, he admits the allegations'. That

sort of a qualified admission, to my mind, is almost

the same as a denial. It emphasizes a denial for a

lack of information.

Mr. Strouss: Of course, as we see it, that is not

a qualified admission.

The Court: That may be true as far as the

pleadings are concerned, but this is a hearing now
to determine the allegations you have to prove and

those you do not have to prove irrespective of the

plea.

Mr. Mason: Yes. This memorandum is ad-

dressed, of course, only to the state of the issues

as they appear from the pleadings and not to any

modifications that may [^66^ appear today as a re-

sult of what the defendant or his counsel may say.

The Court: Well, then, to go back to the com-

plaint, all of Paragraph 1, apparently, is admitted

except, as I stated before, the beginning of line

15 on Page 2— ''As such, under the Constitution

and laws of that state, there is vested in him the

exclusive power, and upon him is imposed the man-
datory duty, to commence and prosecute and to di-
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rect the institution and prosecution of, suits for

penalties for every violation of the Arizona Train-

Limit Law, the statute, the validity of which consti-

tutes the subject-matter of the instant controversy."

Now it is true, you admit all of Paragraph 1 ?

Mr. Strouss: Yes, we admit that latter part in-

volved, but in the case of a constitutional law.

Mr. Booth: Do you admit it in case the law is

considered constitutional ?

Mr. Strouss: Of course, that is for argument,

Mr. Booth, if your statement that the law is pre-

sumed to be constitutional is a correct statement of

the law.

Mr. Booth: Assuming it is a correct statement,

would that be

Mr. Strouss: No, I would not admit that he has

the duty to enforce a law merely by reason—by the

presumption of its constitutionality. I don't think

that is the law. [67] That, however, is a legal ques-

tion and not a question of fact.

Mr. Mason: Do you contend, Mr. Strouss, that

the defendant could excuse a failure to enforce this

law if a violation was called to his attention, by

saying that in his opinion it was unconstitutional?

Mr. Strouss: I certainly do.

Mr. Mason: If he were sued upon his official

bond or writ of mandate were issued against him?

Mr. Strouss: I don't think there would be any

liability, is my opinion.

Mr. Mason : You take the view, then, that he can

determine for himself if the law was constitutional ?
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Mr. Strouss: I think that is the business of the

Attorney General

The Court : What part do the courts play in this

scheme ?

Mr. Strouss: He might be wrong honestly. I

don't think there is any liability upon his official

bond. That is what Mr. Mason asked. He has the

right, I think, to determine for himself whether

—

in the first instance whether, in his opinion, the law

is constitutional or unconstitutional. Some courts

may disagree with him. The court may hold the law

is constitutional, but if he is acting in good faith,

there is no liability on his part. [68]

Mr. Booth: Well, here is a rather phenomenal

situation, if the court please, that is produced by

counsel's position. Now it is perfectly apparent that

in the case of a police statute, such as this; that is,

because of this very statute, the determination on

the constitutionality or unconstitutionality of a

statute depends upon the examination of a very

large mass of facts. The question of unreasonable-

ness depends on the examination of the facts as to

whether the law is productive of safety, or whether,

as we claim, is the contrary, and that, in turn, is

dependent upon matters and statistics of a great

many other things which were developed in the

first Arizona Train-Limit case and which was af-

firmed by the 3-judge court, or rather adopted by

the 3-judge court and is on file in this court.

Now, on the question of interference with and a

burden upon interstate commerce, that depends
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upon examination of a great number of facts, all

of which were examined in the Arizona Train-

Limit case and are set forth in the Master's report,

in summary, and adopted by the 3-judge court, and

as to the point of extra territorial operation, that,

of course, can't be determined by going down on

the same line and looking over in New Mexico or

California. That is the subject of production of a

great mass of facts. [69]

Now, the defendant, in the face of that, takes

this very peculiar position. He is the Attorney Gen-

eral of the state. The duty is cast upon him by the

Constitution and his oath of office to enforce the

laws of this state. He says that he has not made an

examination of the facts, that he is unable to do so

due to lack of funds, or this, that or the other rea-

son. The law unquestionably, according to the deci-

sions cited in our memorandum, presumes this law

to be constitutional until proven otherwise by a

court of competent jurisdiction, and yet, having

made no such examination and apparently as an in-

dividual being unable to make it physically, and

saying he is unable to have it made financially, he

makes this very equivocal sort of denial, and he has

not said yet anything that amounts to an out and

out admission of these allegations in the answer, or

to a denial of the allegations in the answer.

Now, consider for a moment our position in this

case; we are being very seriously hurt financially

by the continued threat of enforcement of this law^

The threat hangs over us by the very existence of
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the law itself and. by the attitude of the Attorney

General with respect to it, and he has never said he

would not enforce it

Mr. Mason: He insists, of course, he never will

say that.

Mr. Booth: As far as the pleadings are con-

cerned, he [70] does not say he will not enforce it.

He does not say ''You haven't anything to be afraid

of, I won't enforce this law, therefore, there is no

controversy". In effect, by those other allegations

and by this form of denial which, in my practice I

have never had occasion to see any denial of that

kind, especially in an equity case or quasi-equity

case w^here there is the question of candor and fair-

ness on the part of the defendant, he apparently

endeavors, by this form of denial, to anchor us in a

position from which we can't extricate ourselves

without producing the facts before the court upon

which or from which a conclusion will follow that

these sections of the Federal Constitution are vio-

lated.

It seems to me, without wanting to make a speech

on it, it is a most unusual situation when a very

substantial property-holder and one of the largest

taxpayers in this State is subject to this daily ex-

pense, and the Attorney General feels that he can

keep it from obtaining any judicial examination

on whether it should be subjected to the expense or

not, simply by saying 'he hasn't any money to make
an investigation' which, it is very evident, it will

require considerable money to make, and he has

had years in which to do that.
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The Court: Well, we have only gone as far as

the first paragraph, Mr. Booth. [71]

Mr. Booth: Yes.

Mr. Stroiiss: Of course, one thing that your

Honor will have to keep in mind in respect to what

Mr. Booth has said, and that is, this case is an

unusual case, in the respect that here is an effort to

make an individual defend a state law. Now, it may
be that this law was causing all the damage that

they are asserting here, but it is not the fault of the

individual and certainly he should not be called

upon, or any other individual, to defend this law.

That is what they are attempting to do under this

action, suing Mr. Conway as an individual.

Mr. Booth: It is the fault of this individual

only as Attorney General of Arizona.

Mr. Strouss: And, of course, naturally he has

no comment to make on why he has not said

whether he would or would not enforce the law. He
has said honestly that he does not know, he hasn't

made any investigation to determine whether the

law is unconstitutional or not, and he would be a

very foolish man if he did because, of course, the

minute he does this, he, as an individual, is com-

pelled to come in and defend the action which may
result in a judgment of 30 or 40 thousand dollars

against him for costs.

Mr. Mason: It can't possible be so much.

Mr. Strouss: It can't be so much under the

status [72] of this action at the present time, but

if the action is to be defended, there are probabili-
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ties of appeal where, certainly, Mr. Conway, as an

individual, should not be called upon to pay the

expenses. It does not make any difference to him, as

an individual, whether the law is sustained or not

sustained.

Mr. Mason: Aren't we in the same position, as

far as the last argument is concerned, that his indi-

vidual capacity as a state officer as recited in Terace

versus Thompson; Pierce versus Society of Sisters;

Banton versus Belt Line; Ex-parte Young—

—

Mr. Strouss : An Ex-parte ruling ?

Mr. Mason: Yes, Ex-parte. Mr. Strouss knows

these cases better than I do.

The Court: All right, go on to Paragraph 2 of

the petition. Sub-division A is denied.

Mr. Mason : May I ask opposing counsel, do you

really deny, Mr. Strouss, that the suit is in the na-

ture of an equity suit ?

Mr. Strouss: Well, to be frank, I don't know

whether declaratory acts under the Federal Consti-

tution is one of equity or one of law. I have not

found any decisions to determine that yet.

Mr. Mason: As I understand the discussion of

the subject by a recognized authority, which is

Borchard on [73] Declaratory Judgments, that a

suit for declaratory judgment may be equitable in

nature or it may be in the nature of a suit at law,

but the determination depends upon the suit itself,

and having in mind the character of this suit, would

you say that it is of equitable nature, rather than

legal in nature?
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Mr. Strouss: Well, I don't think there is any-

thing particular in this action

The Court: That would probably be a legal

question, anyway.

Mr. Strouss: Yes.

The Court: The portion that I can see that he

objects to or denies, is the latter portion. He says:,.

"—and presents an actual controversy between the

plaintiff and the defendant as more fully appears

hereafter, which may be finally adjudicated and de-

termined as between said parties". Sub-division B
is also denied.

Mr. Mason: I don't see any denial of Sub-divi-

sion B, to the point that a right in controversy has

a value of $3,000.00 that exists. Is it intended to

deny the value?

Mr. Strouss: Well, if it is in controversy, we

will admit that it exceeds $3,000.00.

Mr. Mason: Do you deny that right exists?

Mr. Strouss: I don't understand you.

Mr. Mason: Do you deny the right to operate

long [74] trains in Arizona exists?

Mr. Strouss: If this law is constitutional, I pre-

sume it is. I don't know whether it does or does not

until there is some determination on that question.

Mr. Mason: As I understand your last answer

to be, that if the law is unconstitutional the right

exists, or if the law is constitutional, the right does

not exist.

Mr. Strouss : To operate a long train ?

Mr. Mason: Yes.
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Mr. Strouss : Yes. That is true if the law is con-

stitutional, it prevents you from operating a freight

train in excess of 70 cars, and a passenger train in

excess of 14.

The Court: Paragraph C is also denied. Will

you admit Paragraph D?
Mr. Baker: Paragraph 2-D, your Honor?

The Court: Yes, Paragraph 2-D.

Mr. Strouss : Yes, that is correct.

The Court: Well then, it won't be necessary to

offer any evidence on that score.

Mr. Mason: Do you admit Paragraph 2-D in its

entirety, Mr. Strouss?

Mr. Strouss : Yes, that is correct.

The Court: Do you deny Paragraph 2-E?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: All right, pass then to Paragraph

3. [75] Do you admit all of Paragraph 3 ?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: All of Paragraph 4?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: Also the whole of Paragraph 5?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: And you admit the whole of Para-

graph 6?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court : And Paragraph 7 ?

Mr. Strouss : That is correct.

The Court: And the whole of Paragraph 8?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: And 9?
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Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: Also 10?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: And 11?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

The Court: Also Paragraph 12?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct.

Mr. Mason: A sentence in Paragraph 12 reads:

''Said train-limit law is unconstitutional and void,

as to each and all of the interstate trains of the

plaintiff ". Do I understand you to admit that,

Mr. Strouss?

Mr. Strouss : My answer has been given. [763

Mr. Booth: Well, I am a little bit puzzled

whether counsel means in admitting, that he con-

strues the allegations of his answer to admit them,

or that he now admits them as actual facts well

pleaded ?

The Court: He admits the facts pleaded at this

time.

Mr. Booth: Well then, he does not stand on his

answer any longer, because his answer denies them

for lack of information and belief.

Mr. Mason: Every one that has been referred to

now, except Paragraph 4 and the Paragraphs 1 and

2 which we discussed at first. Paragraph 4 is only

a text of the train-limit law which we admitted in

the answer. These others are all denied for lack of

information and belief, coupled, I believe, with the

equivocal admission on account that he desire to

avoid expenditure.
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The Court: Well, they are admitted now; I say,

they are admitted now.

Mr. Mason: Then the answer, the paragraph in

the answer with reference to these particular para-

graphs that were admitted by Mr, Strouss orally

just now, those paragraphs or things are withdrawn

or amended to that extent?

Mr. Strouss: No, they are not amended to that

extent. They are admitted, those paragraphs re-

ferred to, for the purpose of trial and eliminates a

necessity for presenting [77] evidence.

The Court : Now^, how far did we get ?

Mr. Booth : I hope the court will pardon my in-

sistence, but I'd like to understand whether this is

equivalent, for example, to a defendant making a

proper denial, and unequivocal denial of the alle-

gations in the answer, and then when the case is

called for trial, not a pre-trial, but the actual trial,

when the trial is about to begin, the defendant says,

''For the purposes of this trial, I will admit this

allegation in the answer denying Paragraph No. 3 '

',

we will say, of the answer. Notwithstanding the

averment, he will say, "I will admit the allegations

in the complaint, say. Paragraph 3, notwithstand-

ing my denial of this allegation in the answer". Is

that the process we are going through now, or is

this "That is correct" in answer to the court's ques-

tions just a fall off the back stairs and we relying

again on what I call ''left-handed denials on the

answer"? I'd like to know where w^e stand on this

in the production of testimony.
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The Court: Well, it won't be necessary to intro-

duce any testimony under counsel's statement. He
admits this allegation. It is not necessary to offer

any proof. The purpose of this pre-trial hearing is

to save all this time in court. Those allegations

which are admitted as true, you don't have to prove.

[78]

Mr. Baker: We already reached Paragraph 12.

As I understand, you admit the allegations con-

tained in Paragraph 12?

Mr. Strouss : That is correct.

Mr. Whitney: And those equivocal admissions

of all the allegations?

The Court: Why, certainly. That is what these

hearings are all for. Paragraph 13. The allegations

of that paragraph are admitted. No proof will be

necessary on that, on those allegations.

Mr. Mason: Of course. Paragraphs 12 and 13

which the court has now reached are allegations on

conclusions of law, rather than matters of fact?

The Court: Well, that is true in a good many
instances.

Mr. Mason: Yes.

Mr. Strouss: My answer as to the court's ques-

tion is, yes, that is correct.

Mr. Mason: I take it, then, Mr. Strouss, that

the defendant admits Paragraphs 12 and 13 as

statements of law, as well as statements of fact?

Mr. Strouss: Well, you can take it that way. I

am admitting the allegations of those two para-

graphs.
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The Court: Also Paragraph 14 is admitted'?

Mr. Strouss: That is correct. [79]

The Court: Paragraph 15 is denied in totof

Mr. Booth: Just a moment. The second para-

graph—paragraph 15, beginning on line 29 of Page

29 of the plaintiff's complaint, and the succeeding

paragraphs—no, the second paragraph beginning

on line 29 of page 29 and the third paragraph be-

ginning on line 8 of Page 30 has nothing to do with

the controversy in the case as I read it. In other

words, if a denial stands, we will have to prove that

we could and would at once begin, and hereafter

continue to operate a substantial number of freight

and passenger trains, and so forth. We would also

have to prove the allegation beginning on line 8 of

Page 30, that we are presently unwilling and un-

able to undertake such long train operations, and

so on.

The Court: If you have to prove that, you can

do it in about 5 minutes.

Mr. Baker: Paragraph 15, you deny, is that

correct "?

Mr. Strouss: Yes.

Mr. Baker: He says he will require proof

thereof.

Mr. Strouss: I don't remember the allegation

that Mr. Booth referred to. I would not want to

now, without reading the paragraph a little more

carefully, say I will admit or deny it more than I

have in the answer.
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Mr. Baker: That is all right, Mr. Strouss. I

just want to be sure you are denying- all the allega-

tions in that [80] paragraph.

The Court : All right, Paragraph 16 %

Mr. Strouss: Well, if the court please, I want

to correct something there. If there is any allega-

tion which I have omitted answering in my answer,

of course, under the Rules of Pleading and the

Rules of the Court, those allegations stand ad-

mitted. I don't want, by Mr. Baker's statement, to

be put in the position of having said I denied some-

thing which I didn't deny. What I deny is set forth

in my answer. Now, if we want to stop and analyze

that section

The Court: Well, you probably admit that, the

part that Mr. Booth referred to. Have you got a

copy of the petition there? If so, beginning with

line 29—"If it were not for said law^ and the posi-

tion and opinion with regard to the constitutional-

ity and validity thereof maintained by defendant,

as aforesaid, plaintiff could and would at once be-

gin and hereafter continue to operate a substantial

number of its freight and passenger trains
—

", and

so forth. I think that is to be conceded by anyone.

Mr. Strouss : Yes, we will admit that. Well, now,

except this, that if it were not for the difference in

opinion in regard to the constitutionality, we don't

admit their failure to operate trains is due to the

opinion of the defendant as to the constitutionality

or unconstitutionality [81] of the law. We deny

that the defendant has any opinion as to the consti-
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tutionality or unconstitutionality of the law, so

there is no admission that the failure to operate

trains is due to his opinion as to the constitutional-

ity or unconstitutionality of the law.

The Court: Well then, you might say the lack

of opinion, if it were not for his lack of opinion.

Mr. Strouss : Well, if they want to allege it that

way, why that is—but except as to that particular

part of the allegation, we admit the allegation. We
don't admit the failure to operate is due to any

opinion of the Attorney General or the defendant.

Mr. Mason : You do admit, Mr. Strouss, that the

failure to operate is due to the law, because we

allege if it were not for the law the plaintiff would

begin at once to operate long trains.

Mr. Strouss: Well, I assume that is true and so

admit it.

Mr. Mason: And you admit that we would

thereby effect increased economy and efficiency and

greater safety in operations by such long trains'?

Mr. Strouss : You allege that is true, and we as-

sume it is. We admit it.

Mr. Mason: Well, coupling it with the preced-

ing, we say that if it were not for the law, we

could commence [82] long train operations and it

reads this, that we ''would thereby and thereupon

at once begin and thereafter continue to effect the

increased economy and efficiency and the greater

safety of operation which, as heretofore set forth

in detail, are and would be attendant upon and

caused by such long-train operation".
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Mr. Strouss: Yes, that is true.

The Court: Well then, the other paragraph re-

ferred to by Mr. Booth, beginning on line 8 of

Page 30: "Plaintiff is presently unwilling and un-

able to undertake such long-train operations with-

in
—

", and so forth. In the absence of final deter-

mination, you will admit that too, will you ?

Mr. Strouss: Yes, I will admit that—wait until

I read it so I will see there is nothing in here that

says it is due to the opinion of the

The Court : Do you have a copy ?

Mr. Strouss : Yes, I have a copy.

(Thereupon the document was examined by Mr.

Strouss.)

Mr. Strouss: Yes, I will admit that. However,

not in any way do we admit that it is due to any

opinion of the defendant..

The Court: 16, the whole of 16 is admitted?

Mr. Strouss: Is admitted, yes.

The Court: And also the whole of IT'? [83]

Mr. Strouss: That is true.

The Court : Well, apparently that does not leave

much to prove.

Mr. Booth: Mr. Whitney calls my attention to

Rule 16 of the Rules of Civil Procedure which,

after providing for the direction by the court for

the attorneys to appear before it for a pre-trial con-

ference, provides in the last paragraph that there-

upon the court shall make an order, and so forth,

and I assume that that will be done.
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The Court: Well, I will ask the reporter to

write up the portions of the complaint that are ad-

mitted and it will be filed as a stipulation in the

case. It will be unnecessary to offer any proof on

any of those admitted matters.

Mr. Booth: It says, ''The court shall make an

order which recites the action taken at the confer-

ence, the amendments allowed to the pleadings, and

the agreements made by the parties ".

Mr. Baker: Your Honor will furnish a copy of

the order made?

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Strouss : That order will be issued and made

in accordance with the admissions made in the pre-

trial procedure conference?

The Court : Yes. Anything else, gentlemen ? [84]

(No response.)

(Thereupon the pre-trial hearing was ended.)

I, hereby certify, that the proceedings had and

evidence given upon the hearing of this Pre-trial

Conference is contained fully and accurately in the

shorthand notes taken by me of said hearing, and

that the foregoing 21 typewritten pages contain a

full, true and accurate transcript of the same.

(Sgn.) LOUIS L. BILLAR,
Official Shorthand Reporter.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 6, 1939. [85]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER
At a Pre-Trial Conference had on November 3d,

1939, in the above entitled cause, the following ad-

missions of fact were made by counsel for defen-

dant:

I.

The allegations set forth in the following para-

graphs of the complaint were admitted as true:

Paragraphs I, III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX, X,

XI, XII, XIII, XIV, XVI and XVII.

II.

Paragraphs 11(a), (c) and (e) were denied. In

reference to the allegations of 11(b), while defen-

dant's counsel refused to admit that a controversy

exists between the parties, he stated that if it were

determined such controversy does exist, in that

event, he would admit the matter in controversy

to be in excess of $3,000.00.

III.

Defendant denied that portion of page 29, para-

graph XV, beginning at line 13 to and including

line 28 on said page. Defendant admitted that por-

tion of paragraph XV, beginning at line 29, page

29, to and including line 7, page 30, except the fol-

lowing portion of said paragraph on page 29, lines

29, 30 and 31, reading as follows: "And the posi-

tion and opinion with regard to the constitutionality

and validity thereof maintained by defendant". De-
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fendant admitted that portion of paragraph XV,
[86] beginning line 8, page 30 to and including line

16 on said page. Defendant denied that portion of

paragraph XV beginning on line 17, page 30 to and

including line 24 on said page.

At the trial of said cause, plaintiff will not be

required to offer proof in support of any of the

admitted allegations of the complaint.

Dated : December 1st, 1939.

DAVE W. LING,

Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 1, 1939. [87]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO AMEND ORDER
Comes now the defendant and moves the Court

that the Order entered herein on December 1, 1939,

following the Pre-Trial Procedure, be amended to

read as follows

:

1. Paragraph I of said order be amended to

read:

''The allegation set forth in the following

paragraphs of the complaint were admitted as

true: Paragraphs 1(a), 11(d), III, IV, V, VI,

VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XII, XIII, XIV and

XVII.

2. Insert following paragraph I of the Order

the following:
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"Defendant admitted the allegation con-

tained in paragraph 1(b) beginning with line

11, page 2, and ending with line 15, page 2,

reading as follows:

" '(b) Defendant, Joe Conway, is sued as

an individual, and not in his official capacity.

Said defendant is a citizen of the State of

Arizona, residing in the City of Phoenix,

County of Maricopa, in said State, and is the

duly elected, qualified and acting Attorney

General of the State of Arizona.

'

"Defendant denied the allegation contained

in paragraph 1(b) beginning with line 15, page

2, and ending with line 21, page 2, reading as

follows

:

" 'As such, under the Constitution and

laws of that state, there is vested in him the

exclusive power, and upon him is imposed

the mandatory duty, to commence and prose-

cute and to direct the institution and prose-

cution of, suits for penalties for every viola-

tion of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, the

statute the validity of which constitutes the

subject-matter of the instant controversy.'
"

[88]

3. Insert following paragraph III of the Order

the following:

"IV.

"Defendant admitted the allegations of para-

graph XVI except the allegation appearing in

lines 25, 26 and 27, page 31, reading as follows

:
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Hi* * * gg^^^ defendant claims and main-

tains that it is and will be his duty, as At-

torney General, to prosecute and sue plaintiff

for each and every violation of said Act

which it may commit.'

which allegation defendant denied."

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Defendant,

703 Heard Building,

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 12, 1939. [89]

[Title of District Court.]

October 1939 Term

at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF DECEMBER 12, 1939

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

This case comes on regularly for trial this day

before the Court sitting without a jury.

Henley C. Booth, Esquire, Burton Mason, Es-

quire, and Louis Whitney, Esquire, appear as coun-

sel for the plaintiff. The defendant, Joe Conway, is

present with his counsel Charles Strouss, Esquire,

and W. E. Policy, Esquire.
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Both sides announce ready for trial.

Henry Larson is present as reporter.

Charles Strouss, Esquire, now files Motion to

Amend Order of December 1, 1939, following pre-

trial conference.

Argument is now had by respective counsel, and

It is ordered that said Motion to Amend Order

of December 1, 1939, be and it is granted.

Plaintiff's Case:

The following plaintiff's exhibits are now ad-

mitted in evidence:

1. Affidavit of Joe Conway.

2. Notice of taking deposition.

On motion of Burton Mason, Esquire,

It is ordered that the Clerk open the deposition

of Joe Conway.

Plaintiff's exhibit 3, Deposition of Joe Conway,

is now admitted in evidence.

Whereupon, the plaintiff rests. [90]

And the defendant rests.

Both sides rest.

Defendant now renews motion to dismiss, hereto-

fore filed.

Arguments is had by respective counsel.

On motion of Burton Mason, Esquire,

It is ordered that the record made at the pre-

trial conference herein be considered as having been

made a part of the trial proceedings on this date.

Whereupon, it is ordered that this case and said

Motion to Dismiss be submitted and by the Court

taken under advisement.
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It is further ordered that reporter Henry Larson

be allowed to withdraw plaintiff's exhibits 2 and 3

for use in preparing transcript, upon his receipting

therefor. [91]

[Title of District Court.]

October 1939 Term

at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF FRIDAY,
FEBRUARY 9, 1940

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, Presiding

[Title of Cause.]

This case having been submitted and by the Court

taken under advisement.

It is ordered that this case be and it is dismissed.

[92]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DRAFT OF FINDINGS OF FACT AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, SUBMITTED

BY DEFT.

Findings of Fact:

1. That the defendant, Joe Conway, is sued in

his individual capacity.

2. That in his individual capacity the defendant

has no legal interest in the determination of the
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constitutionality or unconstitutionality of the Ari-

zona Train Limit Law (Section 647, Revised Code

of Arizona, 1928).

3. That the defendant has neither formulated

nor expressed an opinion that the Arizona Train

Limit Law (Section 647, Revised Code of Arizona,

1928) is constitutional.

4. That the defendant has not threatened to en-

force the Arizona Train Limit Law (Section 647,

Revised Code of Arizona, 1928)

.

5. That the defendant has taken no action to-

ward enforcing the Arizona Train Limit Law (Sec-

tion 647, Revised Code of Arizona, 1928).

Conclusions of Law:

1. That the defendant, in the capacity in which

he is sued, has no legal interest which will be af-

fected by a declaratory judgment determining the

constitutionality or unconstitutionality of the Ari-

zona Train Limit Law (Section 647, Revised Code

of Arizona, 1928). [93]

2. That no case or controversy is presented

within the judicial power of the United States

courts.

Dated February , 1940.

District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 14, 1940. [94]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
AND ADDITIONS TO "DRAFT OF FIND-
INGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW" PRESENTED BY DEFENDANT.

Now comes the plaintiff, and excepts and objects

to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law set

forth and proposed in the "Draft of Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law" served and filed by

defendant under date of February 13, 1940, and to

each and all of said findings of fact and conclusions

of law, upon the ground that the same are, and each

of them is, erroneous, insufficient, improper and de-

fective, in that they do not, either severally or col-

lectively, present the material and ultimate facts

disclosed by the record, or present the true, proper

and correct conclusions of law predicated upon the

material and ultimate facts so disclosed; and plain-

tiff, therefore, proposes and requests that the Court

make and adopt the following special findings of

fact and conclusions of law in lieu of those proposed

and requested by defendant, as aforesaid

:

This cause came on regularly for trial before the

Court on December 12, 1939, Honorable Dave W.
Ling, United States District Judge, presiding and

sitting without a jury. [95] Plaintiff was repre-

sented by its attorneys, Alexander B. Baker, Esq.,

Louis B. Whitney, Esq., Henley C. Booth, Esq., and

Burton Mason, Esq. Defendant appeared in person

and was also represented by his attorneys, Charles
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L. Strouss, Esq. and W. E. Polley, Esq. Evidence

was duly offered by and on behalf of the plaintiff,

and received by the Court. Defendant offered no

evidence, but upon the conclusion of plaintiff's tes-

timony renewed his motion to dismiss the complaint

for lack of jurisdiction, which motion had thereto-

fore been presented by him to the Court on May 5,

1939, and by the Court denied, by order dated June

26, 1939. Said motion was thereupon argued by

counsel for the respective parties, and the cause

duly submitted for decision.

Now, therefore, having duly considered all of the

evidence, and the admissions of the defendant, and

the arguments of counsel, and being duly advised,

the Court does hereby, pursuant to Rule 52 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, make and adopt

the following as its Special Findings of Pact and

Conclusions of Law in this cause

:

SPECIAL FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

Each and all of the allegations of the following

paragraphs of the complaint herein have been and

are admitted and conceded by the defendant to be

true and correct, and are, therefore, hereby found

to be true and correct, to-wit: Paragraphs 1(a),

11(d), III, IV, V, YI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XI and

XVIL
II.

Defendant, Joe Conway, is a citizen of Arizona,

residing in the City of Phoenix, Maricopa County,
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in said state, and is the duly elected, qualified and

acting Attorney General of Arizona. The constitu-

tion and laws of Arizona vest in the Attorney Gen-

eral of that state the exclusive power and duty [96]

to commence and prosecute or direct the prosecu-

tion of suits or penalties for every violation of the

Arizona Train Limit Law (Section 647, Revised

Code of Arizona, 1928).

III.

It is the statutory duty of the Attorney General

of Arizona, expressly imposed upon him by Section

3 of said Train Limit Law, to enforce the provi-

sions thereof if and when the same are violated. De-

fendant admits that it now is and in future will

continue to be his official duty to prosecute, in ac-

cordance with the terms of said law, for each and

every violation thereof; and declares further that

he never has stated, and never will state, that hav-

ing in mind his official oath of office as Attorney

General, he will refuse to enforce said law, or will

refrain from efforts to enforce it.

IV.

In handling the interstate freight traffic moving

over its lines across the State of Arizona, plaintiff

operates daily in each direction between its freight

terminals at Yuma, Arizona, and Gila, Arizona, and

between its freight terminals at Gila and Tucson,

Arizona, and between its freight terminals at Tuc-

son and Lordsburg, New Mexico, a substantial num-

ber of through interstate freight trains, all of which
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move over the line heretofore described as the

Yuma-Maricopa-Lordsburg Line. The number of

such trains so operated each day varies according

to the demands of traffic and ranges from approxi-

mately 75 trains per month on the average, in each

direction between Yuma and Gila, and 75 trains

per month in each direction between Gila and Tuc-

son, and 90 trains per month in each direction be-

tween Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month of

November, to 180 trains per month in each direc-

tion between Yuma and Gila, and 180 trains per

month in each direction between Gila and [97]

Tucson, and 200 trains per month in each direction

between Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month

of June ; which said months of November and June

represent the months during the year when such

interstate traffic across Arizona is lightest and heav-

iest, respectively.

If plaintiff were to disregard the provisions of

the Arizona Train-Limit Law, and were to attempt

to operate each of its aforesaid freight trains within

or across the State of Arizona with more than 70

cars each, exclusive of caboose, it would thereby

become subject to prosecution for the recovery of

the severe penalties provided by Section 3 of said

Train-Limit Law, which said Section provides a

penalty of not less than $100.00 nor more than

$1,000.00 for each such violation. As heretofore set

forth, defendant admits that it now is, and in fu-

ture will continue to be, his official duty to prose-

cute, in accordance with the terms of said law, for
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each and every violation, thereof which may occur.

Plaintiff thus would become liable for penalties, in

the event the defendant should institute such prose-

cutions, as directed and required by said Section 3,

which, in the event said law should be sustained in

said prosecutions, would range, on the average,

from $1,600.00 to $1,600.00 per day during the

period of lightest traffic, and from $3,700.00 to

$37,000.00 per day during the period of heaviest

traffic; and said penalties would be and will be

cumulative, and may or might be recoA^ered by said

defendant, in a single prosecution, or in a series of

prosecutions instituted for that purpose, unless said

law be declared invalid and unconstitutional by final

judgment as herein prayed for. Said penalties

would be additional to any penalties which might

be incurred by the operation of freight trains of

more than 70 cars, exclusive of caboose, upon the

Wellton-Phoenix-Picacho or Tucson-Douglas main

lines, heretofore described, or upon any [98] of the

branch lines in Arizona, or of passenger trains of

more than 14 cars upon any part of the plaintiif 's

lines in Arizona.

If, on the other hand, plaintiif should continue to

comply with said law, and should continue to oper-

ate all of its freight trains upon its lines within the

State of Arizona, and the adjacent districts in

which the law now has extraterritorial effect, with

not more than 70 freight or other cars, exclusive

of caboose, and were to continue to operate all of

its passenger trains within Arizona and said adja-
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cent districts with not more than 14 cars each, the

added expense thus imposed upon plaintiff, solely as

the result of said compliance, would be and will con-

tinue to be, as heretofore more fully alleged, not

less than $300,000.00 per year, or, on the average,

not less than approximately $822.00 per day, all of

which such added expense is and will be continuous

and irreparable.

V.

An actual controversy has arisen and now exists,

between the plaintiff and the defendant, with re-

gard to their respective rights, duties, powers, and

obligations under and pursuant to said Train Limit

Law: in that plaintiff, on the one hand, claims and

maintains that said law is wholly invalid and un-

constitutional as to plaintiff's interstate trains, and

that consequently no power or duty to prosecute or

sue plamtiff for violation thereof exists or is vested

in defendant, either as Attorney General of Arizona,

or as an individual purporting to act under color of

that office; whereas defendant, on the other hand,

admits that by its terms said law imposes upon him,

as said Attorney General, the power and duty of

prosecution for each and every violation thereof,

and also admits, as aforesaid, that it is and will be

his official duty to commence and continue or direct

such prosecutions; and has further declared [99]

that he, the defendant, has never said and never will

say that, having in mind his oath of office as said

Attorney General, he will refuse, or refrain from

effort, to enforce said law.
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If it were not for said law, plaintiff could and

would at once begin and hereafter continue to oper-

ate a substantial number of its freight and passen-

ger trains into, within, through, and across Arizona

without regard to the restrictions and limitations

imposed by said law; and would thereby and there-

upon at once begin and thereafter continue to effect

the increased economy and efficiency and the greater

safety of operation which, as heretofore set forth

in detail, are and would be attendant upon and

caused by such long train operation. Plaintiff is

presently unwilling and unable to undertake such

long-train operations within, through and across

Arizona, in the absence of a final determination and

declaration that said law is invalid and unconstitu-

tional as applied to its operations, because of the

heavy cumulative penalties which, as hereinafter

described, would shortly accrue if such a course

were followed, and the law should be sustained in

prosecutions instituted by or at the direction of the

defendant for the purpose of enforcing said law^ and

recovering the penalties therein provided.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

The matter in controversy in this case, exclusive

of interest and costs, greatly exceeds the sum or

value of $3,000.00; and this case is a suit of a civil

nature, for declaratory relief, between citizens of

different states, and arises under the Constitution

and Laws of the United States; therefore this
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Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter [100]

of the case, and of the parties thereto.

II.

Under the Constitution and laws of Arizona, and

particularly by the express terms of the Arizona

Train Limit Law, power and duty are conferred

upon and vested in the duly elected, qualified, and

acting Attorney General of Arizona, to enforce said

law by commencing and prosecuting or directing the

prosecution of suits for penalties for every viola-

tion of said Train Limit Law; and said defendant

admits and asserts that it is and will be his official

duty, in his capacity as such Attorney General, to

prosecute and sue plaintiff for each and every vio-

lation of said law which it may commit; and said

defendant has further stated and declared that he

has never said and never will say that, having in

mind his official oath, he will refuse to enforce said

law, or refrain from effort to enforce it.

The damage and injury which plaintiff daily sus-

tains and will continue to sustain by reason of said

Train Limit Law, and the exercise of the aforesaid

power and duty of enforcement claimed and as-

serted by defendant to exist and to be vested in

himself, are and will be great and irreparable; but

by reason of the provisions of said law, plaintiff

cannot safely disregard the same, and await or in-

vite prosecutions thereunder, for the purpose of ob-

taining a judicial determination whether said law

is valid and binding and the claimed power and
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duty of prosecution thereunder exist, without being

subjected to the severe and cumulative penalties

which would and will shortly accrue if such a course

were followed, and said law were sustained in prose-

cutions brought or directed by the defendant pur-

suant to the provisions thereof. [101]

Plaintiff, as a citizen and resident of the State of

Kentucky, has no plain, speedy or adequate remedy

at law in this or any other Court of the United

States. Irrespective of its residence or citizenship

in a state other than Arizona, plaintiff has no plain,

speedy or adequate remedy at law in any court of

the State of Arizona or of any other jurisdiction.

III.

Each and all of the conclusions of law^ set forth

in Paragraphs XII, XIII and XIV of the com-

plaint are admitted and conceded by the defendant

to be true and correct in every respect; and the

same, and each of them, are hereby adopted by the

Court as part of its conclusions of law herein.

IV.

Plaintiff is entitled to a judgment and decree as

prayed for in its Bill of Complaint, declaring that

said Train Limit Law is arbitrary and unreasonable

in and of itself, and is void and unconstitutional

in the respects and for the reasons set forth in

Paragraphs XII, XIII and XIV of plaintiff's com-

plaint, and is therefore invalid and unenforcible as
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to plaintiff and each and all of plaintiff's railroad

operations in the State of Arizona; and declaring

further that defendant has no power or duty, law-

fully or constitutionally imposed upon or vested in

him, either in his capacity as Attorney General or

otherwise, to enforce said Train Limit Law or to

subject plaintiff to suits or prosecutions for penal-

ties for any violation thereof, which said plaintiff

may commit in the course of any of its aforesaid

railroad operations.

Dated this day of February, 1940.

Judge of the United States District

Court for the District of Arizona

[102]

Respectfuly submitted,

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

Solicitors for Plaintiff

703 Luhrs Tower

Phoenix, Arizona

C. W. DURBROAY
HENLEY C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

Of Counsel

65 Market Street

San Francisco, California

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 14, 1940. [103]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW

This cause came on regularly for trial before the

Court on December 12, 1939, Honorable Dave W.

Ling, United States District Judge, presiding and

sitting without a jury. Plaintiff was represented by

its attorneys, Alexander B. Baker, Esq., Louis B.

Whitney, Esq., Henley C. Booth, Esq. and Burton

Mason, Esq. Defendant appeared in person and was

also represented by his attorneys, Charles L.

Strouss, Esq. and W. E. Polley, Esq. Evidence was

duly offered by and on behalf of the plaintiff, and

received by the Court. Defendant offered no evi-

dence, but upon the conclusion of plaintiff's testi-

mony renewed his motion to dismiss the complaint

for lack of jurisdiction, which motion had thereto-

fore been presented by him to the Court on May 5,

1939, and by the Court denied, by order dated June

26, 1939. Said motion was thereupon argued by

counsel for the respective parties, and the cause

duly submitted for decision.

Now, therefore, having duly considered all of the

evidence, and the admissions of the defendant, and

the arguments of counsel, and being duly advised,

the Court [104] does hereby, pursuant to Rule 52

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, make and

adopt the following as its Special Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law in this cause

:
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SPECIAL FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

Defendant, Joe Conway, who is sued in his indi-

vidual capacity, is a citizen of Arizona, residing in

the City of Phoenix, Maricopa County, in said state,

and is the duly elected, qualified and acting Attor-

ney General of Arizona. The constitution and laws

of Arizona vest in the Attorney General of that

state the exclusive power and duty to commence

and prosecute or direct the prosecution of suits or

penalties for every violation of the Arizona Train

Limit Law (Section 647, Revised Code of Arizona,

1928).

11.

That the defendant has not threatened to enforce

the Arizona Train Limit Law (Section 647, Revised

Code of Arizona, 1928).

III.

That the defendant has taken no action tow^ard

enforcing the Arizona Train Limit Law (Section

647, Revised Code of Arizona, 1928).

IV.

Section 647, Revised Code of Arizona, 1928, reads

in part as follows: "And such penalty shall be re-

covered, and suits therefor brought by the Attorney

General, or under his direction, in the name of the

State of Arizona, in any county through which

such railway may be run or operated, provided,

however, that this act shall not apply in cases of

engine failures between terminals." [105]
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V.

In handling the interstate freight traffic moving

over its lines across the State of Arizona, plaintiff

operates daily in each direction between its freight

terminals at Yuma, Arizona, and Gila, Arizona, and

between its freight terminals at Gila and Tucson,

Arizona, and between its freight terminals at Tuc-

son and Lordsburg, New Mexico, a substantial num-

ber of through interstate freight trains, all of which

move over the line heretofore described as the

Yuma-Maricopa-Lordsburg Line. The number of

such trains so operated each day varies according

to the demands of traffic and ranges from approxi-

mately 75 trains per month on the average, in each

direction between Yuma and Gila, and 75 trains

per month in each direction between Gila and Tuc-

son, and 90 trains per month in each direction be-

tween Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month of

November, to 180 trains per month in each direc-

tion between Yuma and Gila, and 180 trains per

month in each direction between Gila and Tucson,

and 200 trains per month in each direction between

Tucson and Lordsburg, during the month of June;

which said months of November and June repre-

sent the months during the year when such inter-

state traffic across Arizona is lightest and heaviest,

respectively.

If plaintiff were to disregard the provisions of

the Arizona Train-Limit Law, and were to attempt

to operate each of its aforesaid freight trains

within or across the State of Arizona with more
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than 70 cars each, exclusive of caboose, it would

thereby become subject to prosecution for the re-

covery of the severe penalties provided by Section

3 of said Train-Limit Law, which said Section pro-

vides a penalty of not less than $100.00 nor more

than $1,000.00 for each such violation. Plaintiff

thus would become [106] liable for penalties, in the

event the defendant should institute such prosecu-

tions, as directed and required by said Section 3,

which, in the event said law should be sustained in

said prosecutions, would range, on the average,

from $1,600.00 to $16,000.00 per day during the

period of lightest traffic, and from $3,700.00 to

$37,000.00 per day during the period of heaviest

traffic; and said penalties would be and will be

cumulative, and may or might be recovered by said

defendant, in a single prosecution, or in a series of

prosecutions instituted for that purpose, unless said

law be declared invalid and unconstitutional by

final judgment as herein prayed for. Said penalties

would be additional to any penalties which might

be incurred by the operation of freight trains of

more than 70 cars, exclusive of caboose, upon the

Wellton-Phoenix-Picacho or Tucson-Douglas main

lines, heretofore described, or upon any of the

branch lines in Arizona, or of passenger trains of

more than 14 cars upon any part of the plaintiff's

lines in Arizona.

If, on the other hand, plaintiff should continue

to comply with said law, and should continue to

operate all of its freight trains upon its lines
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within the State of Arizona, and the adjacent dis-

tricts in which the law now has extraterritorial

effect, with not more than 70 freight or other cars,

exclusive of caboose, and were to continue to oper-

ate all of its passenger trains within Arizona and

said adjacent districts with not more than 14 cars

each, the added expense thus imposed upon plain-

tiff, solely as the result of said compliance, would be

and will continue to be, as heretofore more fully

alleged, not less than $300,000.00 per year, or, on

the average, not less than approximately $822.00

per day, all of which such added expense is and

will [107] be continuous and irreparable.

VI.

If it were not for said law, plaintiff could and

would at once begin and hereafter continue to oper-

ate a substantial number of its freight and passen-

ger trains into, within, through, and across Arizona

without regard to the restrictions and limitations

imposed by said law; and would thereby and there-

upon at once begin and thereafter continue to effect

the increased economy and efficiency and the greater

safety of operation which, as set forth in detail in

the complaint, are and would be attendant upon

and caused by such long train operation. Plaintiff

is presently unwilling and unable to undertake such

long-train operations within, through and across

Arizona, in the absence of a tinal determination and

declaration that said law is invalid and unconstitu-

tional as applied to its operations, because of the
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heavy cumulative penalties which, as hereinafter

described, would shortly accrue if such a course

were followed, and the law should be sustained in

prosecutions instituted by or at the direction of the

defendant for the purpose of enforcing said law and

recovering the penalties therein provided.

VII.

Each and all of the allegations of the following

paragraphs of the complaint herein have been and

are admitted and conceded by the defendant to be

true and correct, and are, therefore, hereby found

to be true and correct, to-wit: Paragraphs I (a),

II (d), III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XII,

XIII, XIV and XVII. [108]

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

The matter in controversy in this case, exclusive

of interest and costs, greatly exceeds the sum or

value of $3,000.00; and this case is a suit of civil

nature, for declaratory relief, between citizens of

different states.

II.

That no case or controversy is presented within

the judicial power of the United States courts.

Dated February 14, 1940.

DAVE W. LING,

District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 14, 1940. [109]
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In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

No. Civ. 31—Phoenix

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY,
(a corporation),

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOE CONWAY,
Defendant.

JUDGMENT
This cause came on to be heard by the Court at

this term, and evidence was received, and the cause

argued by counsel and duly submitted; and the

Court having fully considered the pleadings, the

evidence and the arguments of counsel, and Find-

ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law having been

made, adopted and filed by the Court ; and the Court

having found that no case or controversy is pre-

sented within the judicial power of the United

States Court;

It is now ordered, adjudged and decreed in ac-

cordance with said Findings and Conclusions, that

the plaintiff's complaint and action be and is hereby

dismissed; and that defendant go hence without

day.

Done in open court this 14th day of February,

1940.

DAVE W. LING,

United States District Judge.
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Approved as to Form this 14th day of February,

1940.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
LOUIS B. WHITNEY,

Solicitors for Plaintiff,

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 14, 1940. [110]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Notice is hereby given that Southern Pacific

Company, a corporation, the above named plaintiff,

hereby appeals to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the judgment

rendered by the District Court of the United States

in and for the District of Arizona in the above

named and numbered cause, under date of Febru-

ary 14, 1940, and from all of said judgment.

Dated this 15th day of February, 1940.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
LOUIS B. WHITNEY,

Solicitors for Plaintiff,

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

C. W. DURBROW,
HENLEY C. BOOTH,
BURTON MASON,

of Counsel,

65 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 15, 1940. [Ill]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BOND ON APPEAL

Know All Men by These Presents

:

That we, Southern Pacific Company, a corpora-

tion duly organized and existing under the laws of

the State of Kentucky, as Principal, and Saint Paul

Mercury Indemnity Company, a corporation organ-

ized and existing under the laws of the State of

Delaware and authorized to transact a surety busi-

ness in the State of Arizona, as Surety, are duly

held and firmly bound, jointly and severally, unto

Joe Conway, in the full and just sum of Two Hun-

dred Fifty Dollars ($250.00), to be paid to the said

Joe Conway, his heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, to which payment, well and

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our successors

and assigns, jointly and severally by these presents.

Duly executed and sealed with our seals this 15th

day of February, 1940.

Whereas, lately, at a trial held before the District

Court of the United States in and for the District

of Arizona, in a suit pending in said Court betw^een

said Southern Pacific Company, a corporation,

plaintiff, and Joe Conway, defendant, a judgment

was rendered against the said plaintiff dismissing

said suit for want of jurisdiction, and said plaintiff

intends [112] and proposes to appeal from the said

judgment, and has this day duly filed, concurrently

with this Bond, a Notice of Appeal from said judg-

ment :
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Now, therefore, the condition of the above obliga-

tion is such that if the said Southern Pacific Com-

pany, a corporation, plaintiff, shall prosecute said

appeal to effect and pay all costs if the appeal be

dismissed or the judgment affirmed, or such costs as

the appellate court may award if the judgment be

modified, then the above obligation to be void, other-

wise to remain in full force and effect.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY,
a corporation.

By ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
Its Attorney.

[Seal] SAINT PAUL MERCURY
INDEMNITY COMPANY,

a corporation.

By G. H. MYERS,
Its Attorney-in-Fact.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 15, 1940. [113]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO AMEND FINDINGS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Comes now the defendant and moves the Court

to amend the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law, signed by the Court and filed herein, in the

following particulars

:

1. By striking from paragraph V of the Find-

ings of Fact (lines 2 and 3 of page 4 of Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law) the words and fig-

ures ''as directed and required by said Section 3".
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2. By striking the whole of paragraph I of the

Conclusions of Law (lines 3 to 6, inclusive, page 6

of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law),

which paragraph I is in words and figures as fol-

lows:

''The matter in controversy in this case, ex-

clusive of interest and costs, greatly exceeds

the sum or value of $3,000.00; and this case is

a suit of a civil nature, for declaratory relief,

between citizens of different states."

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Defendant,

703 Heard Building,

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 16, 1940. [114]

[Title of District Court.]

October 1939 Term

at Phoenix

MINUTE ENTRY OF FRIDAY,
FEBRUARY 23, 1940

(Phoenix Division)

Honorable Dave W. Ling,

United States District Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

Defendant's Motion to Amend Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law having been submitted and

by the Court taken under advisement,
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It is ordered that said Motion to Amend Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law be and it is denied.

[115]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Notice is hereby given that Southern Pacific

Company, a corporation, the above named plaintiff,

hereby appeals to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the judgment

rendered by the District Court of the United States

in and for the District of Arizona in the above

named and numbered cause, under date of Febru-

ary 14, 1940, and from all of said judgment.

Dated this 2nd day of March, 1940.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
LOUIS B. WHITNEY,

Solicitors for Plaintiff,

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

C. W. DURBROW,
HENLEY C. BOOTH,
BURTON MASON,

of Counsel,

65 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 2, 1940. [116]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BOND ON APPEAL
Know All Men by These Presents

:

That we, Southern Pacific Company, a corpora-

tion duly organized and existing under the laws of

the State of Kentucky, as Principal, and Saint

Paul Mercury Indemnity Company, a corporation

organized and existing under the laws of the State

of Delaware and authorized to transact a surety

business in the State of Arizona, as Surety, are duly

held and firmly bound, jointly and severally, unto

Joe Conw^ay, in the full and just sum of Two Hun-

dred Fifty Dollars ($250.00), to be paid to the said

Joe Conw^ay, his heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, to which payment, well and

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our successors

and assigns, jointly and severally by these presents.

Duly executed and. sealed with our seals this 2d

day of March, 1940.

Whereas, lately, at a trial held before the District

Court of the United States in and for the District

of Arizona, in a suit pending in said Court between

said Southern Pacific Company, a corporation,

plaintiff, and Joe Conway, defendant, a judgment

was rendered against the said plaintiff dismissing

[117] said suit for want of jurisdiction, and said

plaintiff intends and proposes to appeal from the

said judgment, and has this day duly filed, concur-

rently with this Bond, a Notice of Appeal from said

judgment:
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Now, therefore, the condition of the above obli-

gation is such that if the said Southern Pacific Com-
pany, a corporation, plaintiff, shall prosecute said

appeal to effect and pay all costs if the appeal be

dismissed or the judgment affirmed, or such costs as

the appellate court may award if the judgment be

modified, then the above obligation to be void, other-

wise to remain in full force and effect.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY,
a corporation.

By ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
Its Attorney.

[Seal] SAINT PAUL MERCURY
INDEMNITY COMPANY,

a corporation.

By G. H. MYERS,
Its Attorney-in-Fact.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 2, 1940. [118]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION FOR REFILING
DOCUMENTS

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

counsel for plaintiff and defendant above named,

that

Whereas the plaintiff did on February 15, 1940,

file in the above court and cause the following docu-

ments, to-wit:

1. Notice of Appeal.

2. Bond on Appeal.
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3. Appellant's Designation of Contents of Rec-

ord on Appeal.

4. Two copies of Reporter's Transcript of Tes-

timony.

5. Statement of Proceedings Had at Trial of

Cause, Including Condensed Statement (in Narra-

tive Form) of Testimony Received at Trial.

6. Statement by Plaintiff and Appellant of

Points Upon Which It Intends to Rely on Appeal.

And whereas, defendant did on February 24,

1940, file in said court and cause the following

documents

:

1. Defendant's Notice of Testimony Required in

Question and Answer Form.

2. Appellee's Designation of Additional Por-

tions of Record on Appeal.

And whereas, plaintiff has, on March 2, 1940, in

said court and cause filed a new Notice of Appeal,

a new Bond on [119] Aj^peal, and a new Appel-

lant's Designation of Contents of Record on Ap-

peal,

Now, therefore, it is stipulated and agreed that it

shall not be necessary for plaintiff and appellant to

file or serve a new Statement of Proceedings Had
at Trial of Cause, Including Condensed Statement

(in Narrative Form) of Testimony Received at

Trial, or a new Statement by Plaintiff and Appel-

lant of Points Upon Which it Intends to Rely on

Appeal, but the originals of said instruments shall

be deemed redated as of March 2, 1940, and may be

so redated, and shall be marked by the Clerk of said
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Court as being refiled the same date and hour as

the said Appellant's Designation of Contents of

Record on Appeal filed on March 2, 1940.

It is further stipulated and agreed that it shall

not be necessary for defendant and appellee to file

or serve a new Defendant's Notice of Testimony

Required in Question and Answer Form, or Appel-

lee's Designation of Additional Portions of Record

on Appeal, but the originals of said instruments

shall be deemed redated as of March 2, 1940, and

may be so redated, and shall be marked by the Clerk

of said Court as being refiled at an hour after the

filing on March 2, 1940, of Appellant's Designation

of Contents of Record on Appeal.

The two copies of Reporter's Transcript of Testi-

mony shall by the Clerk be marked as refiled at the

same hour and date as Appellant's Designation of

Contents of Record on Appeal filed March 2, 1940.

Appellant's Designation of Contents of Record

on Appeal originally filed February 15, 1940, may
be withdrawn.

Dated: March 2, 1940.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER. [120]

LOUIS B. WHITNEY,
Attorneys for Plaintiff,

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Defendant,

703 Heard Building,

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 2, 1940. [121]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER FOR REFILING DOCUMENTS
PURSUANT TO STIPULATION OF COUNSEL

It is hereby ordered that the Statement of Pro-

ceedings Had at Trial of Cause, Including Con-

densed Statement (in Narrative Form) of Testi-

mony Received at Trial, and the Statement by

Plaintiff and Appellant of Points Upon Which It

Intends to Rely on Appeal, originally tiled in this

Court and cause on February 15, 1940, shall by the

Clerk of this Court be redated as of March 2, 1940,

and shall by the Clerk of this Court be refiled as of

the same date and hour as Appellant's Designation

of Contents of Record on Appeal filed March 2,

1940, and so marked.

It is further ordered that the Defendant's Notice

of Testimony Required in Question and Answer

Form and Appellee's Designation of Additional

Portions of Record on Appeal, originally filed in

this Court and cause on February 24, 1940, shall

by the Clerk of this Court be redated as of March

2, 1940, and shall by the Clerk of this Court be re-

filed as of an hour after the filing on March 2, 1940,

of Appellant's Designation of Contents of Record

on Appeal, and shall be so marked.

It is further ordered that the two copies of Re-

porter's [122] Transcript of Testimony shall by the

Clerk be marked as refiled the same hour and date

as Appellant's Designation of Contents of Record

on Appeal filed March 2, 1940.
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The original Appellant's Designation of Contents

of Record on Appeal filed February 15, 1940, may

be withdrawn from the files by the plaintiff.

Dated this 2d day of March, 1940.

DAVE W. LING,

Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 2, 1940. [123]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD AT
TRIAL OF CAUSE, INCLUDING CON-
DENSED STATEMENT (IN NARRATIVE
FORM) OF TESTIMONY RECEIVED AT
TRIAL.

Now comes the above named plaintiff. Southern

Pacific Company, and submits herewith the follow-

ing statement of the proceedings had at the trial of

the above entitled cause, including therein a con-

densed statement, in narrative form, of the testi-

mony received at said trial:

Be it remembered that the above entitled cause

came on regularly for trial before the above entitled

Court on the 12th day of December, 1939, Honor-

able Dave W. Ling, United States District Judge,

presiding, and sitting without a jury, a trial by a

jury having been duly waived by the parties. Plain-

tiff was represented by its counsel, Messrs. Alexan-

der B. Baker, Louis B. Whitney, Henley C. Booth
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and Burton Mason; defendant appeared in person,

and was also represented by his coimsel, Messrs.

Charles L. Strouss and W. E. Polley. Thereupon,

the following proceedings, and none other, were

taken and had: [124]

Defendant, through his counsel, presented his

written motion that the Court amend, in certain

particulars, the Court's order on pre-trial confer-

ence theretofore entered under date of December

1st, 1939 ; a copy of which said motion by defendant

is included in the record upon appeal in this cause,

and is therefore not repeated here.

Defendant's counsel thereupon presented argu-

ment in support of said motion, asserting that the

original order dated December 1, 1939, was in part

erroneous, and in part based upon an inadvertent

admission; and plaintiff, through its counsel then

and there objected to defendant's said motion, and

argued in opposition thereto, asserting that said

original order correctly reflected the record upon

the pre-trial conference, insofar as it concerned the

amendments particularly requested by the defen-

dant, and that said latter amendments were not sup-

ported by said record, and could not be allowed

upon the ground or excuse of alleged inadvertence,

in that some six weeks had passed since the date of

the pre-trial conference and before the motion to

amend w^as presented. The Court then and there

overruled plaintiff's said objections and made its

order granting defendant's said motion.
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Plaintiff thereupon offered in evidence, as its

Exhibit No. 1, the affidavit of the defendant, dated

May 5, 1939, and tiled by him with and in support

of his original motion to dismiss the complaint

herein. Said affidavit was duly received in evidence

without objection. A copy thereof is included in the

record upon this appeal, and is therefore not re-

peated here.

Plaintiff thereupon offered in evidence, as Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 2, the notice of taking of the de-

position of said defendant; which notice of taking

deposition was duly [125] received in evidence

without objection. Said notice

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 2

was and is in words and figures, as follows: (Title

of Court and Cause omitted)

''Notice of Taking Deposition.

To: Joe Conway, defendant above named, and

Charles L. Strouss, Esq., and W. E. Pol-

ley, Esq., his attorneys

:

You and each of you please take notice, that

the above named plaintiff, Southern Pacific

Company, a corporation, by and through its

attorneys, Alexander B. Baker, Louis B. Whit-

ney, C. W. Durbrow, Henley C. Booth and Bur-

ton Mason, shall, on Wednesday, the 11th day

of October, 1939, at the hour of 10:00 o'clock,

A. M. of said day, at the office of Baker &
Whitney, 703 Luhrs Tower, Phoenix, Maricopa

County, Arizona, before Louis L. Billar, a No-
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tary Public in and for said county and state,

and duly authorized to take depositions and

administer oaths within said county and state,

take the deposition of said defendant, Joe Con-

way, whose address is Phoenix, Arizona, as an

adverse party, on oral examination.

This deposition shall be taken as the deposi-

tion of an adverse party, pursuant to and sub-

ject to the provisions of the Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure for the District Courts of the United

States applicable thereto.

Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this 29th day of

September, 1939.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER,
LOUIS B. WHITNEY,

Solicitors for Plaintiff,

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

C. W. DURBROW,
HENLEY C. BOOTH,
BURTON MASON,

Of Counsel,

65 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

Service, by receipt of copy of the foregoing

Notice of Taking Deposition, acknowledged

this 29th day of September, 1939.

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Defendant."
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It was then and there stipulated by and between

counsel for the parties that the defendant's deposi-

tion had been duly taken pursuant to the aforesaid

Notice. [126]

Thereupon, plaintiff offered in evidence, and

there was received, as

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 3,

the deposition of defendant, Joe Conway, taken as

an adverse party by the plaintiff, pursuant to the

provisions of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

The testimony of said

JOE CONWAY,

who was called as an adverse party, and was duly

sworn prior to the taking of said deposition, as the

same appears in said deposition, is here reproduced

for the purposes of the record upon this appeal, in

condensed narrative form, as follows:

(In response to questions by Mr. Mason) :

I am the defendant in the case of Southern

Pacific Company versus Conway. I am Attor-

ney General of Arizona, having held that office

now for three years. I was first elected in the

fall of 1936 and re-elected in 1938. My present

term expires about January 1st, 1941. I am a

law school graduate and was admitted to the

Bar of Arizona in 1924.

I don't know^ whether there is any legal prin-

ciple to the effect that where a state undertakes

regulation pursuant to its police power, that

regulation is presumed to be valid until other-
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(Deposition of Joe Conway.)

wise determined by a competent court. I have

never heard that such a principle was advo-

cated on behalf of the Attorney General of

Arizona in the first Arizona Train Limit case.

I refuse to answer whether I have ever said

that the Attorney General is charged with the

duty of upholding the state laws regardless of

their nature. I have read the Arizona Train

Limit Law, Section 647 of the Arizona Re-

vised Code, 1928, which has been repeated to

me, and I know [127] that that statute contains

a specific reference to the Attorney General. I

do not know whether there are any other Ari-

zona statutes which impose upon the Attorney

General a similar duty of enforcement.

I am represented by counsel in this proceed-

ing and I have said in my answer herein that

I have no official funds with which to defend

the case. I refuse to answer whether I person-

ally selected Mr. Strouss as my counsel or

whether his compensation as my attorney is

being paid out of official or personal funds of

my own. I also refuse to answer whether Mr.

Strouss was selected and furnished to me as

counsel without expense to me or to say who
selected and employed him for me as my coun-

sel. I further refuse to answer whether Mr.

Strouss is being paid for his work in this case

by the railway brotherhood organizations in

Arizona.



132 Southern Pacific Company

(Deposition of Joe Conway.)

I am following the advice of Mr. Strouss and

Mr. Polley very closely in this case and I know

that Mr. Strouss was at one time assistant at-

torney general of Arizona. I have heard that he

participated actively in the trial and briefing

of the first Arizona Train Limit case.

I do not intend and never have intended to

make any differentiation in my enforcement of

the laws, as between large and small, rich and

poor, or to adopt any prejudice or favoritism in

enforcing the laws, as written. I don't recall

ever having mentioned in any public statement

whether I would or would not enforce any laws

on the statute books of Arizona. I have never

said that there was any statute that I would

not enforce but I have never said that I would

enforce an unconstitutional law. I have twice

taken the [128] oath of office as Attorney Gren-

eral, declaring in the terms of the oath, as it

appears in the Arizona statutes that I will sup-

port the Constitution of the United States and

the Constitution and Laws of Arizona, and

faithfully and impartially discharge the duties

of the office of Attorney General according to

the best of my ability. That oath calls upon me
to carry out the Attorney General's duties; and

if the Train Limit Law is constitutional I have

no doubt that I must enforce it in the event of

violation; but so far there never has been any

violation since I have been Attorney General.
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(Deposition of Joe Conway.)

I don't recall that I have ever made a state-

ment one way or another on the proposition

that, having regard for my oath of office, there

was any duty written into a state statute, such

as the duty of prosecution for violations, which

I would fail to perform. I don't recall that I

have ever commented upon the question

whether, having regard for my oath of office,

there was any state statute which I would re-

frain from enforcing or refuse to enforce. [129]
* ^e * * * * *

Q. Now, Mr. Conway, on the day that this

suit was filed, which was April 18th, 1939, you

went to Grovernor Jones and asked him for a

special appropriation in order to carry on the

defense of this case, did you not %

A. No, I didn't ask him for an appropria-

tion.

Q. Isn't it a fact that you told Governor

Jones that a special appropriation would be

necessary for the Attorney General's office for

the purpose of the defense?

A. No, I didn't tell the Governor in so

many words that.

Q. And didn't you suggest to the Governor,

that in a special session which was then con-

templated—that in calling a special session

which was then contemplated, the matter of

such appropriation should be included in the

call?
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(Deposition of Joe Conway.)

A. That was—that was more the mission I

saw the Governor on. I heard rumors that there

might possibty be a special session, and I talked

to the Governor about the matter and suggested

to him that he include in the call a special ap-

propriation for the Attorney General's office to

take care of any of these contingencies which

might arise, including this suit which was then

filed, [145] or any other matters that might

come up.

Q. You particularly mentioned this suit as

one for which the money might be required, did

you not ? A. I believe I did, yes.

Q. And you intended, if the money were ap-

propriated, to use that money to defend the

suit, did you not ?

A. Well, that was the purpose of asking for

it. It was not a question of what might have

been done with the money afterwards, but that

was the purpose of asking that it be included

in the call.

Q. Your purpose then, of course, was to de-

fend the suit on the merits, was it not I*******
The Witness: No, at that time I had not

gone into the question of whether or not the

Attorney General was involved as the Attorney

General, or whether Joe Conway, as a private

citizen, was involved. That question I had not

worked out in my own mind, but I was not go-

ing to take any chances, and as long as there
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was a possibility of a special session, like all

Attorney Generals, we always like to get a little

more money in the coffers so we can hire some

additional help.

Mr. Mason : If you did not intend to defend

the suit on the merits, Mr. Conway, w^hy was

it necessary to make a request or the sugges-

tion at all ?*******
The Witness: I didn't know what we might

be up against. I first consulted with Mr. Strouss

about the defense of [146] the case some time

after the complaint was first served upon me.

I have heard of the Nevada Train Limit Case

and it is true that I requested the Attorney

General of Nevada to send me his records and

files in that case. I wanted to obtain the benefit

of his experience and the work that he had

done. I have never read the Special Master's

report or the decision of the three-Judge court

in Nevada. In my campaign for re-election in

1938 I did not particularly seek the support of

the railway brotherhood members, though their

support was welcome to me, just as any support

is welcome to any politician. I recognize that

there are several thousand votes in the railroad

brotherhood group and that they are a very

potent factor in certain aspects of certain Ari-

zona elections. I do not recall that in the 1938

campaign, I ever promised or suggested to the

railway brotherhood representatives that I
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would never threaten to enforce the Train

Limit Law. I did not make any such advance

or proposition to the brotherhood or any of

their delegates, or ask for their support at the

convention. I don't recall that I went to that

extreme. I know^ a large number of railroad

men and I have talked to them individually and

tried to get their support.

I have followed Mr. Strouss' advice in this

case pretty closely because I feel that he is

competent and capable and I have always held

him in high respect. His prior experience in

the first Arizona Train Limit case should cer-

tainly be an asset in this case. It is a fact that

on May 22nd of this year, in the court room, I

told [130] the Court and those present that Mr.

Strouss, since you have forced me to hire an

attorney and I have an attorney hired, would

do the talking for me.

I have never discussed with Mr. Strouss the

question of whether the Arizona Train Limit

Law is constitutional or not because of the fact

that there are a number of factors which might

enter into the question. There have been many
changes since the former suit and since the Ne-

vada case. There are many factors that any at-

torney is going to take into consideration when

he attempts to determine what a possible deci-

sion in the Supreme Court or some other court

might be. It is probably true that Mr. Strouss

has strongly maintained that the Arizona law
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is valid and binding upon the plaintiff, as a

railroad company in Arizona, in the same man-

ner as any attorney would do when he was on

one side of the case, but Mr. Strouss has never

expressed his personal opinion to me and I do

not know what it is. [131]*******
Q. You recognize, of course, that the full

crew law is a law protecting railroad labor, or

at least for its benefit?

A. Well, it might be partly on labor and it

might be partly on safety. I have always taken

more or less the view that the bill was drawn

not so much to assist in the labor, but to protect

the lives and limbs of those who work in the

transportation game.

Q. And would you say the same on the

Train Limit Law as you would on the full crew

law ? A. I would say that, yes.

Q. That it is a law for the protection of the

employees ?

A. For the protection of their lives and

limbs.

Q. Then it is a law protecting railroad la-

bor, isn't it, not in the sense of re-employment

of labor, but protecting the employees of the

railroad against hazards incident to their em-

ployment %

A. It may be. I don't know the purpose of

the law. I was not in the Legislature when the

bill was passed. Of course, I understand the
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contention of the railroad companies is that it

is purely a labor increasing bill and the rail-

road boys, I understand, claim it is a safety de-

vice or safety measure.

Q. You have heard or seen some of their

arguments to the effect it permits individual

safety to the railroad men?

A. I have heard several comments on it.

Q. And you have also heard several of their

[147] arguments to the eifect that it protects

the employment and the men who need employ-

ment?

A. I think the railroad boys are very care-

ful not to let that argument get in.

Q. Perhaps, Mr. Conway, you should famil-

iarize yourself with some of the arguments

made to the Legislature including Congress, on

the advocacy of*******
Mr. Mason : You recognize from that stand-

point; that is, from the standpoint of safety

and perhaps the standpoint of continued em-

ployment, that it is in the interest of the broth-

erhoods that the Train Limit Law should re-

main in effect, don't you?*******
The Witness: Oh, I understand that they

are in favor of upholding the law, but most of

the arguments I have heard from men in the

railroad game is that it is for their personal

protection, for their safety.
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Mr. Mason: You also recognize, do you not,

that they have an interest in having the Train

Limit Law remain unchallenged in the courts?

A. Well, I imagine they would have. If I

were in the game I would have an interest in it.

Q. And you also recognize their interest in

having the law respected and observed and

obeyed, do you not?

The Witness: What do you mean, *'I rec-

ognize"?

Mr. Mason: You have said that you viewed

the law, that you knew their view to be that the

law was one for their protection as individu-

als? [148]

A. Oh, I didn't say that I know their views;

that is, taking the brotherhood as a whole. I

have talked to several railroad men about it,

discussed the matter pro and con.

Q. You recognize their interest in having

the law obeyed and having a train kept at the

maximum of seventy cars or fourteen cars, as

the case may be?*******
The Witness: I understand they fought

here to put the law through and, of course, they

put it through and they would like to have it

kept on the books if they can.

Mr. Mason: And they would like to have it

obeyed as long as it was kept on the books?
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The Witness: I imagine they would. [149]

I have also heard of attempts by the brother-

hood to have a national Train Limit Law
passed by Congress.

I have no fear that if an actual court test on

the Train Limit Law were had on the merits,

the law might be set aside as invalid. I have no

fear about any law. Those are matters for the

courts to decide, not me. If a law is set aside,

that is up to the courts. I do not anticipate one

way or the other what the decision of a court

would be if this law were challenged in court

on the merits. At the time this suit was filed

I gave an off-hand opinion that I didn't think

the law was w^orth anything, but that was not

an official opinion and I had not gone into the

merits from the standpoint of safety; I had

not read the record in the Nevada case and

therefore I wouldn't know what the courts

would say. Since the earlier Arizona case, and

particularly since I have been Attorney Gen-

eral, no violation of the Train Limit Law has

been called to my attention; and I don't intend

to pay any attention to that law until some-

thing takes [132] place, for the reason that I

have not formed or expressed an opinion at any

time as to whether the law is valid or not, ex-

cept the opinion I expressed, and just referred

to when I said that personally I thought the

law was worthless.
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Mr. Mason: You never made any public

announcement that you would refrain from the

enforcement of it or any private announce-

ment?

A. I never have, and what is more, I never

will, but until there is a violation of the law I

don't think it is the duty of the Attorney Gen-

eral to go through the statute books and, as you

say, there are fifty-two, or fifty some odd differ-

ent sections in there that the Attorney General

should prosecute or should attempt to uphold

the laws, but until the occasion arises, we have

plenty of other work without looking for it.

Q. Of course, you agree that if the law is

violated, why, it will then be and it is right

now your official duty to prosecute every viola-

tion?

A, Prosecution if it is violated and if it is

in violation, but there has never been any vio-

lation in the State of Arizona called to my at-

tention and there is still doubt in my mind

whether the law is constitutional or unconstitu-

tional, and before I ever take any steps to do

anything, I certainly would spend some time to

go into the law and determine whether it is or

not.

I am not trying to forestall an actual test of

the law by court proceedings, through my as-

sertion of ignorance or indifference as to the

validity of the law; but I am not looking for
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trouble until trouble hits me and until this suit

was filed there was no occasion for me to take

any action. Although this suit has been on file

one week short of five months I have not looked

into the law, read the records or reviewed the

decisions of the Supreme Court, and other

courts. [133]

Q. You told the people in this State in 1938,

did you not, in a campaign leaflet, that you had

done your work promptly and diligently,

fought all comers and would be ready for ac-

tion in every court in the nation, is that true?*******
The Witness: If it so states in the pamph-

let.

Mr. Mason: And then you pledged to the

people of Arizona in a letter sent out while

you were a candidate for re-election or nomina-

tion for re-election, ''I pledge to continue giv-

ing you and the State a sound and trustworthy

administration '

'.*******
The Witness : If it appears in our publicity,

we sent it out.

Mr. Mason: You know, do you not, that a

statement of that kind went out over your sig-

nature with your photograph on the literature ?

A. Something to that effect. [150]*******
Mr. Mason: When you said in this cam-

paign statement of 1938 that you pledged to
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continue giving you, meaning the voter, and the

State, a sound and trustworthy administration,

did you mean that you would refrain from en-

forcing any law^ of the State or violation

thereof called to your attention.

A. I meant just exactly what I said.

Q. Did you perhaps mean that if a violation

were called to your attention, you would pro-

ceed to prosecute the violator?*******
The Witness: My whole attitude has been

that anything pertaining to the laws of the

State of Arizona that was constitutional in my
opinion and would need attention, to give it at-

tention and we would give it to them just as

fast as we could possibly do it, and I think our

record shows that we have done it. [151]

Thereupon, upon request of plaintiff, through its

counsel, the Court made its order incorporating the

transcript of the proceedings at the pre-trial con-

ference into the record of the trial of this cause.

Said transcript of proceedings upon pre-trial con-

ference is set forth elsewhere in full in the record

upon this appeal and is therefore not repeated

here.

Thereupon plaintiff rested its case. Defendant
thereupon also rested his case, except that through

his counsel he then and there orally renewed his

motion to dismiss the complaint, basing said mo-
tion upon the following grounds:
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(1) Want of jurisdiction because of no evidence

that a case or controversy exists, and

(2) The action is against the State of Arizona,

and therefore barred by the Eleventh Amendment

to the Federal Constitution.

Defendant's counsel thereupon argued orally to

the court in support of said motion to dismiss; and

plaintiff's [134] counsel argued orally in reply;

and the cause was thereupon submitted to the court

for its decision.

Dated this 15th day of February, 1940.

Redated this 2nd day of March, 1940. H. S.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

Solicitors for Plaintiff

703 Luhrs Tower

Phoenix, Arizona

C. W. DURBROW
HENLEY C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

Of Counsel

65 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

Copy of the within received this 15th day of

February, 1940.

CHARLES L. STROUSS
W. E. POLLEY

Attorneys for defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb 15 1940.

[Endorsed]: Redated & Refiled (by order of

Court 3/2/40) as of 11.20 a. m. Mar. 2, 1940. [135]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT BY PLAINTIFF AND APPEL-

LANT OF POINTS UPON WHICH IT IN-

TENDS TO RELY ON APPEAL.

The above named plaintiff and appellant, South-

ern Pacific Company, a corporation, hereby states

that upon its appeal to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the

Judgment heretofore rendered and entered in the

above entitled cause, said plaintiff and appellant

intends to rely upon the following points:

(1) The trial court erred in granting defend-

ant's motion to amend said trial court's order of

December 1, 1939, entered pursuant to pre-trial

conference; and in amending its order last men-

tioned in accordance with defendant's said motion.

(2) The trial court erred in failing to find and

conclude, upon the pleadings, the undisputed evi-

dence, and the defendant's admissions, that (1) said

defendant admits and agrees that it now is and in

future will be his official duty to prosecute for each

and every violation of the Arizona Train Limit

Law (Revised Code of Arizona, 1928, Section 647)

which may occur, and that (2) said defendant has

further declared that he never [136] has stated, and

never will state, having in mind his official oath of

office as Attorney General, that he will refuse to

enforce said Train Limit Law, or will refrain from

eff(>rts to enforce it.
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(3) The trial court erred in failing to find and

conclude that, irrespective of defendant's indi-

vidual beliefs or admissions, as to the unconstitu-

tionality of the said Train Limit Law, it is his of-

ficial duty as Attorney General to enforce said lav/

according to its terms, until and unless the in-

validity of said law be finally determined by a

competent tribunal, and that said defendant has

never disavowed such duty, or declared that he

would refuse to perform or refrain from perform-

ing the same.

(4) The trial court erred in finding and con-

cluding, that said defendant has not threatened to

enforce said Train Limit Law; and erred further

in finding and concluding that said defendant has

taken no action toward enforcing said Train Limit

Law.

(5) The trial court erred in failing to find and

conclude that this action for a declaratory judg-

ment is properly and lawfully maintainable against

the defendant.

(6) The trial court erred in concluding that no

case or controversy, within the judicial power of

the United States Courts, is here presented; and in

failing to find and conclude that the pleadings, the

undisputed evidence, and the admissions of defend-

ant, fully and adequately show that an actual con-

troversy exists in this cause, as between said plain-

tiff and defendant, of which said trial court had

and has lawful jurisdiction.
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(7) The trial court erred in making and enter-

ing its order of February 9, 1940, directing that

this case be dismissed, and in rendering and enter-

ing its judgment dated February 14, [137] 1940, in

favor of defendant, pursuant to its said order.

(8) The trial court erred in failing to adjudge

and decree that no power or duty to enforce said

Train Limit Law, or to commence, or conduct, or

direct, prosecutions thereunder, in the event of vio-

lation, is lawfully vested in or imposed upon de-

fendant, either as Attorney General of Arizona, or

otherwise, and in failing to render and enter its

declaratory judgment and decree in favor of the

plaintiff accordingly.

Dated: February 15, 1940.

Redated : March 2, 1940. H. S.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

Solicitors for Plaintiff

703 Luhrs Tower,

Phoenix, Arizona.

C. W. DURBROW
HENLEY C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

Of Counsel

65 Market Street

San Francisco, California.
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Receipt of the within and foregoing acknowl-

edged this 15th day of February, 1940.

CHARLES L. STROUSS
W. E. POLLEY

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 15, 1940.

[Endorsed]: Redated and Refiled (by order of

Court 3/2/40) as of 11 :20 a. m. Mar. 2, 1940. [138]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REQUEST FOR ABBREVIATION OF
RECORD.

To : Edward S. Scruggs, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Arizona

:

Counsel for defendant have, in the above court

and cause, filed "Defendant's Notice of Testimony

Required in Question and Answer Form". In-

cluded in the portions of the testimony required in

question and answer form are certain objections

and remarks of counsel, hereinafter set forth, which

are not essential to the decision of the questions

presented by the appeal, and may be omitted from

the record. You are requested to omit from the

record on appeal being prepared by you the fol-

lowing parts or portions of the testimony in ques-

tion and answer form, as shown by the Reporter's

Transcript of Testimony on file herein, to-wit:

Lines 15 and 16, page 39 of the Reporter's Tran-

script, reading as follows:
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"Mr. Strouss: I object to the form of that

question."

Line 5, page 40, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I think he has answered

that." [142]

Lines 12 and 13, page 57, Reporter's Transcript,

reading as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I think he has told you that

he has not examined into or investigated this."

Line 19, page 57, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."

Line 7, page 58, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."

Line 20, page 58, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follow^s:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."

Line 1, page 59, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that."

Line 25, page 66, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."
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Line 6, page 67, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."

Line 13, page 67, Reporter's Transcript, reading

as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial."

Lines 25 and 26, page 67, and Line 1, page 68,

Reporter's Transcript, reading as follows:

"Mr. Strouss: I object to that as imma-

terial. Make it more definite as to what law the

question refers to, and " [143]

Dated this 5th day of March, 1940.

CHARLES L. STROUSS
W. E. POLLEY

Attorneys for Defendant

703 Heard Building

Phoenix, Arizona

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

Attorneys for Plaintiff

703 Luhrs Tower

Phoenix, Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Piled Mar. 5, 1940. [144]



vs. Joe Conway 151

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLANT'S DESIGNATION OF
CONTENTS OF EECORD ON APPEAL.

Now Comes, Southern Pacific Company, a corpo-

ration, plaintiff in the above entitled and numbered

cause, and pursuant to and in compliance with the

provisions of Rule 75 of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, hereby designates the following por-

tions of the record, proceedings and evidence to be

contained in the record on appeal by said plaintiff

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals in

and for the Ninth Circuit, from the judgment here-

tofore rendered in said cause, namely:

(1) The Complaint.

(2) The defendant's motion to dismiss said com-

plaint.

(3) Defendant's affidavit in support of said mo-

tion to dismiss.

(4) Plaintiff's motion to strike defendant's

said affidavit in support of said motion to dismiss.

(5) The order of the District Court denying

defendant's said motion to dismiss and also deny-

ing i)laintiff's motion to strike said affidavit.

(6) The defendant's answer to the complaint.

(7) The transcript of the proceedings upon pre-

trial conference held November 3, 1939. [352]

(8) The original order of the Court on pre-

trial conference, dated and entered December 1,

1939.

(9) Defendant's motion to amend the original
order of December 1, 1939 on i)re-trial conference
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(which motion was presented to the Court on De-

cember 12, 1939).

(10) The order of the Court grantmg defend-

ant's said motion to amend the order on pre-trial

conference.

(11) The statement of the proceedings had at

the trial of said cause, on December 12, 1939 (omit-

ting the arguments of counsel), including the testi-

mony then and there received, as the same is set

forth in the condensed statement of said testimony,

in narrative form, which statement is filed herewith

and hereby referred to.

(12) The findings of fact and conclusions of law

proposed and requested by defendant.

(13) Plaintiff's proposed amendments and ad-

ditions to "draft of findings of fact and con-

clusions of law" presented by defendant.

(14) The findings of fact and conclusions of law

made and adopted by the Court.

(15) The trial court's order of February 9,

1940, directing that the case be dismissed.

(16) The judgment rendered and entered by

the trial court under date of February 14, 1940.

(17) The notice of appeal filed February 15,

1940.

(18) The bond on appeal, filed February 15,

1940.

(19) The notice of appeal filed March 2, 1940.

(20) The bond on appeal filed March 2, 1940.

(21) The statement of plaintiff and appellant

of the points upon which it intends to rely on its

appeal.
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(22) This designation of matters to be con-

tained in the record on appeal. [153]

(23) Each and every minute order rendered

and entered by the trial court, other than those

heretofore particularly specified.

(24) Stipulation for refiling documents.

(25) Order for refiling documents.

Dated: this 2nd day of March, 1940.

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

Solicitors for Plaintiff

703 Luhrs Tower

Phoenix, Arizona

C. W. DURBROW
HENLEY C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

Of Counsel

65 Market Street

San Francisco, California.

Receipt of copy of the within and foregoing

acknowdedged this 2nd day of March, 1940.

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
Attorney for Defendant.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 2, 1940. [154]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLEE'S DESIGNATION OF ADDI-

TIONAL PORTIONS OF RECORD ON
APPEAL.

Now comes Joe Conway, defendant in the above

entitled and numbered cause, and pursuant to and

in compliance with Rule 75 of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure hereby designates the following

portions of the record, proceedings and evidence,

in addition to those portions heretofore designated

by the plaintiff, to be contained in the record on

appeal by the plaintiff to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit,

from the judgment heretofore rendered in said

cause, to-wit:

(a) Defendant's Motion to Amend Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law.

(h) Order of Court on Defendant's Motion to

Amend Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

fc) Defendant's Notice of Testimony required

in Question and Answer form.

(d) This Designation of Additional Portions of

Record on Appeal.

Dated this 23rd day of February, 1940.

Redated this 2nd day of March, 1940. H. S.

CHARLES L. STROUSS
W. E. POLLEY

Attorneys for Defendant

703 Heard Building

Phoenix, Arizona. [155]
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[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 24, 1940.

[Endorsed]: Redated & Refiled (by Order of

Court 3/2/40) as of 11:45 a. m. Mar. 2, 1940. [156]

[Title of District Court.]

United States of America

District of Arizona—ss:

I, Edward W. Scruggs, Clerk of the United

States District Court for the District of Arizona,

do hereby certify that I am the custodian of the

records, papers and files of the said Court, includ-

ing the records, papers and files in the case of

Southern Pacific Company, (a corporation). Plain-

tiff, versus Joe Conway, Defendant, numbered

Civ-31 Phoenix, on the docket of said Court.

I further certify that the attached pages, num-

bered 1 to 156, inclusive, contain a full, true and

correct transcript of the proceedings of said cause

and all the papers filed therein, together with the

endorsements of filing thereon, called for and desig-

nated in Appellant's Designation of Contents of

Record on Appeal, and Appellee's Designation of

Additional Portions of Record on Appeal, filed in

said cause and made a part of the transcript at-

tached hereto, as the same appear from the origi-

nals of record and on file in my office as such Clerk,

in the City of Phoenix, State and District afore-

said.
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I further certify that the Clerk's fee for prepar-

ing and certifying to this said transcript of record

amounts to the sum of $23.90, and that said sum

has been paid to me by counsel for the appellant.

Witness my hand and the seal of said Court at

Phoenix, Arizona, this 14th day of March, 1940.

[Seal] EDWAED W. SCEUGGS,
Clerk

By WM. H. LOVELESS
Chief Deputy Clerk. [157]

[Endorsed]: No. 9474. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Southern

Pacific Company, a corporation, Appellant, vs. Joe

Conway, Appellee. Transcript of Record. LTpon

Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona.

Filed March 16, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circnit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9474

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY,
a corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

JOE CONWAY,
Appellee.

STATEMENT BY APPELLANT OF POINTS
UPON WHICH IT INTENDS TO RELY
UPON APPEAL, WITH DESIGNATION
OF PARTS OF RECORD DEEMED NEC-
ESSARY FOR PRINTING.

Now comes Southern Pacific Company, a corpo-

ration, the above-named appellant, and, in accord-

ance with subdivision 6 of rule 19 of the rules of

this Court, hereby states that upon its appeal it in-

tends to rely upon the points specified in the docu-

ment heretofore filed by said appellant, in the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the District of

Arizona, on March 2, 1940, designated "Statenieut

by Plaintiff and Appellant of Points upon which

it Intends to Rely on Appeal", and that it ado])ts

the statement of points appearing in the document

last mentioned as the statement of the points upon
which it intends to rely upon this appeal.

Pursuant to the aforesaid rule, said api)ellant

hereby designates for printing the entire transcrii)t



158 Southern Pacific Company

of record in this cause heretofore certified by the

Clerk of the above-entitled District Court and

transmitted by said Clerk to the Clerk of this

Court.

Dated: March 19, 1940.

C. W. DURBROW
H. C. BOOTH
BURTON MASON

65 Market Street

San Francisco, California

ALEXANDER B. BAKER
LOUIS B. WHITNEY

703 Luhrs Tower

Phoenix, Arizona

Attorneys for Appellant.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 21, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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No. 9474

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Southern Pacific Company

(a corporation),
Appellant,

vs.

Joe Conway,
Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

I. JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT.

This suit was originally brought in the District

Court for Arizona, by the filing on April 18, 1939,

of a complaint in which plaintiff (appellant)* sought

a declaratory judgment as follows: (a) that the Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law {Arizoim Revised Code, 1928,

Section 647) is unconstitutional and void, because in

conflict with the Commerce Clause (Art. I, Sec. 8,

par. 3) of, and the due-process clause of the Four-

teenth Amendment to, the Constitution of the United

States; and (b) that the defendant (appellee) who,

though sued as an individual, is presently Attorney

General of Arizona, has no power or duty to enforce

*The parties are designated in the same mianner as in the trial court: i.e.,

appellant as "plaintiff", appellee as "defendant".



said Train-Limit Law, or to prosecute plaintiff for

penalties for its violation.

The District Court had jurisdiction of the parties

and the subject matter, under paragraphs 1 and 14 of

Section 41, and Section 400, of Title 28 of the United

States Code, because: (a) the suit is between citizens

of different states, plaintiff being a corporation or-

ganized under laws of Kentucky, and a resident of

that state, while defendant is a citizen and resident

of Arizona (Complaint, par. I; R. 2-3)
;
(b) the value

of the matter in controversy, if a controversy exists,

greatly exceeds $3000 (Complaint, par. Il-b; R. 4) ;

(c) the suit essentially involves the determination of

questions arising under the Constitution and laws of

the United States (Complaint, par. II-c; R. 4-5)
;
(d)

an actual controversy exists, which may be finally de-

termined by a declaratory judgment as prayed for

(Complaint, pars. II-c, Il-e, XV; R. 4-6, 38-40).

Jurisdiction to render a declaratory judgment is

conferred by the Federal Declaratory Judgments Act

of 1934, 28 U. S. Code 400 (quoted in the Appendix)
;

and by its complaint (pars. Il-a, Il-b, Prayer; R. 2-4,

43-44) plaintiff specifically invoked the exercise of

that power by the trial court.

Diversity of citizenship, value of the amount in

controversy if a controversy exists, and existence of

Federal questions, were all admitted, either expressly

or by reasonable inference (R. 75-76, 82).

Jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court to enter-

tain and decide the case upon this appeal, by Section

225, Title 28, U. S. Code (the case not falling within



Section 345 of the same Title), in that the District

Court rendered its final decree and judgment herein,

dated February 14, 1940 (R. 115), dismissing the case

for lack of jurisdiction, upon the sole ground that no

justiciable case or controversy is presented. The find-

ings of facti and conclusions of law adopted by the

trial court (R. 109-114) show that that Court, al-

though of the view that defendant, sued in his in-

dividual capacity, was a proper party to this action,

and that other necessary jurisdictional facts had been

established, reached the conclusion upon the evidence,

particularly the admissions of defendant, that the

parties were not in controversy as to the constitu-

tionality of the Train-Ijimit Law, or defendant 's duties

thereunder.

Notice of appeal from the trial court's judgment

was duly filed by the plaintiff within three months

from the date of the rendition of the judgment ; i. e.,

on February 15, 1940 (R. 116). A motion to amend

the trial court's findings and conclusions having been

presented by defendant on February 16, 1940 (R. 118-

119), which motion the court denied on February 26,

1940 (R. 119-120), plaintiff again filed its notice of

appeal on March 2, 1940 (R. 120).

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This suit was brought, as heretofore stated, for the

purpose of obtaining a judgment declaring that the

Arizona Train-Limit Law is invalid and unconstitu-

tional. That statute (quoted in full in the complaint

:
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par. IV; R. 8-9; and also set out in full in the Ap-

pendix hereto) declares it to be unlawful for any rail-

road company to operate, within the State of Arizona,

passenger trains of more than 14 cars, or any trains

of more than 70 freight or other cars, exclusive of

caboose. Severe and cumulative penalties are imposed,

which may range from $100.00 to $1000.00 for each

violation. By the express terms of the law the At-

torney G-eneral is solel}^ charged with the power and

duty of conducting or supervising prosecutions for

the recovery of such penalties.

The complaint, besides containing the necessary

jurisdictional allegations reviewed in the foregoing

statement, also alleges, in separate paragraphs, cer-

tain essential facts which may be summarized as fol-

lows: the detailed facts with respect to plaintiff's

interstate railroad operations, as a common carrier

both upon its system, and in Arizona (par. Ill; R.

6-8) ; the effects of the law upon plaintiff's operations,

both generally, and particularly as regards freight-

train operations (par. V; R. 9-21) ; the similar effects

upon passenger-train operations (par. VI; R. 21-24)
;

the effect of the law from the safety standpoint, with

particular reference to the point that the law is wholly

unreasonable as a safety measure, bears no reasonable

relation to health and safety, and operates to increase

rather than to reduce the hazards of railroad opera-

tions (par. VII ; R. 25-30) ; and the essentially inter-

state, rather than intrastate or local, character of the

plaintiff's operations and traffic \vithin and across Ari-

zona which are affected by the law (par. VIII ; R. 30-

32).



The complaint also alleges that the subject of train

limitation is one of national, and not local or state

concern (par. IX ; R. 32-33) ; that the law impairs

the usefulness of the plaintiff's facilities employed in

interstate commerce (par. X; R. 33), and imposes

burdens on interstate commerce (par. XI; R. 33);

and that it is invalid and unconstitutional, because in

violation of the commerce clause (par. XII; R. 34),

and the due-process clause of the Fourteenth Amend-

ment (par. XIII; R. 35), and (in so far as it pur-

ports or is asserted to be a safety statute) in conflict

with, and an infringement on, certain specified federal

statutes having to do with the safety of railroad opera-

tion (par. XIV; R. 36-38). The complaint further

alleges that if it were not for the law, plaintiff could

realize numerous benefits, particularly increased effi-

ciency, economy, and safety, in its Arizona operations,

by operating trains in excess of the maximum len,gths

permitted by the law (par. XV; R. 38-40) ; that be-

cause of compliance with the law, plaintiff incurs

added and irreparable expense, of at least $300,000.00

per year, which could and would be saved by '' long-

train" operation, but that the heavy penalties, rans:-

ing from $1600.00 per day, at the minimum of $100.00

per violation, during the period of lightest traffic, to

$37,000.00 per day, at the maximum of $1000.00 per

violation, during the period of heaviest traffic, are

such as to prevent plaintiff from undertaking such

operations (par. XVI ; R. 40-42)'.

It is also alleged that plaintiff is without adequate

remedy at law (par. XVII; R. 42). Each and all

of these allegations were, as hereinafter shown, ad-



mitted and conceded by the defendant to be true, and

were therefore found by the trial court to be true

(Findings of Fact Nos. V, VI, VII ; R. 111-114). ]

An actual controversy was alleged to arise, because i

of defendant's asserted claims that the law was con-

stitutional and valid, and that the power and duty

of enforcement existed and were vested in him (Com-

plaint, par. XV; R. 38-40).

Defendant filed his answer in due course, denyine;

specifically those allegations of the complaint setting

forth the existence of jurisdiction, and particularly

those stating that a controversy was presented. As to

the remainder of the complaint, he adopted in his

answer a peculiar and rather equivocal position. The

Court's particular attention is invited to paragraph

XII of the answer (R. 58-59) which, though addressed

only to paragraph V of the complaint, is typical of

and exactly similar to several others, each directed

to various paragraphs of the complaint.

On November 3, 1939, the parties were called before

the trial court for pre-trial conference, as provided

by Rule 16 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

At that conference, in response to questions from the

court, defendant's counsel announced that defendant

admitted each and all of the following paragraphs

of the complaint: Nos. I-a, I-b, Il-b, III to XIV,

inclusive, XVI and XVII. Counsel for defendant

somewhat qualified his admission of paragraph I-b,

however, in that he conceded that the Constitution and

statutes of Arizona impose upon him power and duty



to enforce the Train-Limit Law, ''in the case of a

constitutional law" (R. 75-76).

Defendant, through his counsel, at the same time

stated that he denied those portions of the complaint

(pars. Il-a, Il-b, II-c, Il-e, and a portion of par. XV)
which alleged the existence of an actual controversy

of which the trial court had jurisdiction ; although he

admitted that the value of the matter in controversy,

if a controversy exists, exceeds $3000 (R. 82).

On December 1, 1939, the court made its pre-trial

order (R. 92-93) ; which order, except for failure to

show defendant's admission of paragraph Il-d of the

complaint, correctly reflected the proceedings upon the

pre-trial conference.

The case came on for trial before the Court, on

December 12, 1939. Defendant then presented to the

Court his written motion (R. 93-95) to amend the

order on pre-trial conference, so as to show (a) that

he had denied that part of paragraph I-b of the com-

plaint (R. 3), which alleged that the Constitution and

laws of Arizona vested him with power to enforce the

Train-Limit Law, and (b) that he had also denied

that part of paragraph XVI (R. 41) which alleged

that he claimed that it was his duty to enforce the

law. Over plaintiff's objection, the trial court (R,

96, 127) pei-mitted the proposed amendment. The

first specification of error is addressed to the action

thus taken.

The trial then proceeded, plaintiff introducing in

evidence: (1) an affidavit filed by defendant on May
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5, 1939 (R. 47-49), in support of the motion to dismiss

the complaint filed on the same day (said motion was

denied on June 24, 1939: R. 52); (2) the notice of

the taking of defendant's deposition; and (3) the

deposition in its entirety. The substance of defend-

ant's deposition is reproduced in the record, partially

in narrative, and partially in question-and-answer

form (R. 130-143). Because defendant had admitted

each and all of the substantive allegations of the com-

plaint, other than those asserting the existence of an

actual controversy, and the Court had announced that

evidence in support of such allegations would not be

required (R. 93), plaintiff introduced no evidence in

support of said allegations ; and defendant introduced

no evidence at all. Defendant renewed his earlier mo-

tion to dismiss for lack of controversy (R. 143-144)
;

and the cause was submitted for decision solely upon

that issue (R. 144).

The case was brought to this Court, upon plaintiff's

appeal (R. 120) from the judgment, dated February

14, 1940 (R. 115), dismissing the case for lack of

jurisdiction. That judgment and order were, as shown

by the trial court's findings of fact and conclusions

of law (R. 109-114) and, indeed, the very language

of the judgment itself (R. 115), predicated entirely

upon that court's conchision that, since the parties

had agreed and in effect stipulated upon all of the

factual matters establishing that the challenged stat-

ute is invalid, and defendant had made no threat and

taken no action to enforce the law, no case or contro-

versy is presented within the judicial power of the

United States courts.



9

On May 8, 1940, while this appeal was pending,

and shortly prior to the date upon which plaintiff's

opening brief was to have been filed, plaintiff pre-

sented to this Court its motion that the cause be re-

manded to the trial court, so as to permit a supple-

mental complaint to be filed, and evidence presented

in support thereof. In connection with its said mo-

tion plaintiff showed to this Court that defendant,

acting or purporting to act as Attorney General, had

on April 19, 1940, brought suit in the Superior Court

of the State of Arizona, in the name of the State,

against plaintiff as the defendant, accusing plaintiff

of having committed two violations of the Train-Limit

Law, and seeking to recover the statutory penalties;

and also that defendant had on the same day issued

a public statement, announcing his belief in the valid-

ity of the law and his intention, if successful in the

prosecution thus commenced, to sue this plaintiff for

penalties with respect to each and every other viola-

tion which it might have committed, and specifying

that such penalties might aggregate $100,000.00 or

more.

On or about May 25, 1940, defendant filed his writ-

ten reply and '^opposition" to plaintiff's said motion,

in effect admitting and agreeing that defendant had

instituted prosecutions in the state courts as above

stated. The fact of such prosecutions, and thus, by

necessary inference, of defendant's belief and conten-

tion that the power and duty of prosecution exist and

are vested in himself, is thus before this Court, as a

part of this Court's record in this cause.
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Plaintiff's motion to remand was duly argued and

submitted to this Court on June 3, 1940; and on June

19, 1940, the Court entered its order denying said

motion, "without prejudice to the right to renew such

motion at the time the appeal is heard on the merits".

In response to that suggestion, plaintiff now renews

said motion, urging that the same be further con-

sidered, and granted in the event that this Court is

not convinced, upon the record before it, that the

judgment of the trial court was erroneous and should

be reversed.

m. SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS.

1. The trial court erred in amending the order on

pre-trial conference, and in failing to be guided by the

pre-trial record as made.

2. The trial court erred in failing to find and con-

clude, upon the undisputed record: that defendant

admits and agrees that it now is, and in future will

be, his official duty to prosecute each and every viola-

tion of the Arizona Train-Limit Law which may oc-

cur; and that defendant has declared that he never

has stated and never will state, having in mind the

official oath of his office as Attorney General, that he

will refuse to enforce, or refrain from efforts to en-

force said law.

3. The trial court erred in failing to find and con-

clude that, irrespective of defendant's individual be-

liefs or admissions as to the validity of said Train-

Limit Law, it is his official duty as Attorney General
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to enforce said law according to its terms, until and

unless the invalidity thereof be finally determined by

a competent tribunal; and that said defendant has

never disavowed said duty, or declared that he would

fail or refuse to perform the same.

4. The trial court erred in finding and concluding

that defendant has not threatened to enforce said

Train-Limit Law, noi* taken any action toward en-

forcing said law.

5. The trial court erred in concluding that no ac-

tual case or controversy, within the judicial power of

the United States courts, is presented in this cause.

6. The trial court erred in failing to find and con-

clude that this action for a declaratory judgment is

properly and lawfully maintainable against defend-

ant; and that said defendant, as an individual, is a

proper and necessary party to said action.

7. The trial court erred (a) in rendering and

entering its judgment of February 14, 1940, in favor

of defendant, dismissing plaintiff's complaint and

action; and (b) in failing to render and enter its

declaratory judgment and decree, in favor of plaintiff,

adjudging and declaring that no power or duty to

enforce said Train-Limit Law, or to conduct or direct

prosecutions thereunder in the event of violation by

plaintiff, is lawfully vested in or imposed upon de-

fendant, either as Attorney General of Arizona, or

otherwise.
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IV. BRIEF OF ARGUMENT.

1. The record shows that the parties advance and maintain

opposing claims as to the powers and duties of defendant

with respect to the enforcement of the Arizona Train-Limit

Law.

Defendant has admitted his official duty to prose-

cute for violations of the Train-Limit Law, and de-

clares that he has never said, and never will say, that

he will refrain from or refuse performance of that

duty (R. 75-76, 90, 132, 138, 140-141). Plaintiff's

claim, as to which there is no question, is that such

power and duty of enforcement do not exist.

In the absence of a judicial determination, the duty

of enforcement created by the law persists, and should

be exercised by defendant as Attorney General, even

though as an individual he may consider the law un-

constitutional. The law is presumed valid, until its

invalidity is judicially determined.

Pennsylvania v. West Virginia (1923), 262 II.

S. 553 (592), 67 L. Ed. 1117;

South Carolina v. Barnwell (1938), 303 U. S.

177 (191),82L. Ed. 734;

Great Northern Ry. Co. v. Washington (1937),

300 U. S. 154 (160), 81 L. Ed. 573;

Alaska Packers Assn. v. Industrial Accident

Commission (1935), 294 U. S. 532, 79 L. Ed.

1044;

Concordia Insurance Co. v. Illinois (1934), 292

U. S. 535 (547), 78 L. Ed. 1411;

A. T. & S. F. Ry. Co. v. State (1928), 33 Ariz.

440,265 Pac. 602;

Arizona Bank v. Crystal Ice, etc., Co. (1924),

26 Ariz. 205, 224 Pac. 622;
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Black & White Co. v. Standard Oil Co. (1923),

25 Ariz. 381, 218 Pac. 139;

Smith V. Mahoney (1921), 22 Ariz. 342, 197

Pac. 704;

Timmons v. Wright (1921), 22 Ariz. 135, 195

Pac. 100;

State V. Anklan (1934), 43 Ariz. 362, 31 P. (2(i)

888.

Defendant's opinion of the law's validity, even

though rendered in his ''official" capacity, is merely

advisory, and not a judicial determination.

Austin V. Barrett (1932), 41 Ariz. 138, 16 P.

(2d) 12;

Hartford, etc. Co. v. Wainscott (1933), 41 Ariz.

439, 19 P. (2d) 328 (331) ;

Canadian Northern By. Co. v. Eggen (1920),

252 U. S. 553 (562), 64 L. Ed. 713;

United States v. Butler (1936), 297 U. S. 1

(62),80L. Ed. 477;

16 Corpus Juris Sec. 201-204.

Defendant has never availed himself of the oppor-

tunity of avoiding official duty, apparently afforded

by the ruling in

:

Ex parte LaPrade (1933), 289 U. S. 444, 77 L.

Ed. 1311;

indeed, he has consistently and pointedly refused to

do so (R. 138-141).

The record of the pre-trial proceedings shows that

defendant maintains that the right and duty of prose-

cution exist (R. 75-76, 90).
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The original pre-trial order (R. 92-93) correctly

recites the pre-trial proceedings. It was erroneously

''corrected" on defendant's motion (R. 93, 95), though

without any showing that the pre-trial record was in-

correct or any effort to have that record changed. The

order as originally made, being accurate, should con-

trol, there being no showing that a change thereof

was warranted, or necessary to prevent manifest in-

justice.

Ride 16, Federal Bides of Civil Procedure;

Byers v. Clark (1939), 27 Fed. Supp. 302;

Miles Laboratories v. Seignious (1939), 30 Fed.

Supp. 549;

Fafwuillo V. B. G. & S. Theatre Corp. (Mass.,

1937), 8 N.E. (2d) 174;

Eckstein v. Scoffi (Mass., 1938), 13 N. E. (2d)

436;

Finegan v. Prudential Ins. Co. (Mass., 1938),

14 N. E. (2d) 172.

In fact the original pre-trial order, if allowed to

stand, would not have imposed any injustice upon de-

fendant; whereas the modification resulted in sub-

stantial prejudice and manifest injustice to plaintiff.

2. The existence of conflicting claims, duly maintained and

advanced by parties properly having- an interest in the sub-

ject matter, is sufficient to constitute a case or controversy

warranting the exercise of the powers conferred by the

Declaratory Judgments Act, 28 U. S. 400.

The essentials of a ''case or controversy" in a

declaratory-judgment proceeding are precisely the

same as in any other type of case : namely, that there

be parties having definite legal interests touching the
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subject matter; that they maintain definite adverse

claims with relation thereto; and that the circmn-

stances be such that specific relief can be had, through

a decree of conclusive character which will dispose of

the dispute. Threats of irreparable injury by one

party against the other are not essential, if otherwise

the parties are definitely opposed.

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth (1937), 300 IT.

S. 227, 81 L. Ed. 617;

Nashville C. & St. L. By. Co. v. Wallace (1933),

288 U. S. 249, 77 L. Ed. 730.

The parties here are definitely in opposition to each

other, with respect to a subject matter in which both

have a legal interest; i. e., the question w^hether the

power and duty of prosecution under the Train-Limit

Law legally exist and may be exercised by defendant.

A suit for a declaratory judgment is proper, even

though only negative relief is sought: i. e., a declara-

tion that a duty or liability under a statute or patent

do not exist, because of invalidity thereof.

Gully V. Interstate Natural Gas Co. (1936), 82

F. (2d) 145;

Edelmann v. Triple-A Specialty Co. (1937), 88

F. (2d) 852,854;

Bliss V. Cold Metal Process Co. (1939), 102 F.

(2d) 105;

Black V. Little, 8 F. Supp. 867;

Maryland Casualty Co. v. Huhhard, 22 F. Supp.

697.

In a recent case this Court affirmed a declaratory

judgment of non-liability (i. e., non-infringement of
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a patent), finding that an actual controversy existed,

even though the defendant by its answer as finally

amended had admitted substantially all of the allega-

tions of the complaint.

Caterpillar Tractor Co. v. International Har-

vester Co. (1939), 106 F. (2d) 769.

A controversy may arise, between a private in-

dividual, and a public officer, even though the latter

refuses to take any positive action, and adopts a purely

negative attitude, if the effect is to perpetuate a re-

straint or disability challenged as unlawful.

Rochester Telephone Corporation v. United

States (1939), 307 IT. S. 125, 83 L. Ed. 1147;

Perkins v. Elg (1939), 307 U. S. 325, 83 L. Ed.

1320.

3. Although defendant is sued herein in his individual capacity

and not "as Attorney General", he has an actual interest

in the subject matter, and is a proper and necessary party

to the present controversy.

Defendant's power, by virtue of his office and the

state statute, sufficiently connects him with the duty of

enforcement of the challenged law to render him a

proper party, in his individual capacity, to a suit

brought to restrain enforcement.

Ex Parte Young (1908), 209 U. S. 123, 52 L.

Ed. 714;

Truax v. Raich (1915), 239 U. S. 33, 60 L. Ed.

131;

Terrace v. Thompson (1923), 263 U. S. 197, 68

L. Ed. 255;

Pierce v. Society of Sisters (1925), 268 U. S.

510, 69 L.Ed. 1070;
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Old Colony Trust Co. v, Seattle (1926), 271 U.

S. 426, 70L. Ed. 1019;

Missouri Pacific R. Co. v. Norwood (1930), 42

F. (2d) 765;

Municipal Gas Co. v. Public Service Commis-

sion (1919), 225 N. Y. 89, 121 N. E. 772.

The requirements of actual controversy are the

same, in a suit for a declaratory judgment attackinp*

a state law, as in a suit to enjoin or restrain enforce-

ment ; hence defendant is equally a proper party, as an

individual, to a declarator}^-judgment suit in which

a determination is sought that the power and duty of

enforcement do not exist.

Municipal Gas Co. v. Public Service Commis-

sion, supra;

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth, supra

;

N. C. & St. L. Rij. Co. V. Wallace, supra

;

United States v. West Virginia (1935), 295 U.

S. 463, 79 L. Ed. 1546.

In fact, suits for injunctions against state officers

have also included or been coupled with suits by the

same parties, against the same state officers, seeking

declaratory relief.

Gully V. Interstate Natural Gas Co., supra

;

Sovereign Camp v. Wilentz (1938), 23 F. Supp.

23.

4. In the event the Court is not persuaded to reverse the decree

upon the basis of the record before it, the cause should be
remanded for further proceedings, as proposed by plaintiff's

motion to remand heretofore filed.

It is proper to remand a cause pending on appeal,

for supplementary proceedings in the trial court,
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where subsequent events have occurred, not shown in

the record, which have material bearing on a proper

determination.

Ballard v. Searls (1889), 130 U. S. 50, 32 L.

Ed. 846;

Drainage District No. 7 v. Sternberg (1926),

15 F. (2d) 41

;

Jensen v. New York Life Ins. Co. (1931), 50 F.

(2d) 512;

Simonds v. Norwich Union Indemnity Co.

(1934), 73 F. (2d) 412;

Central Califoryiia Canneries Co. v. DimMey
Co. (1922), 282 Fed. 406;

Levinson v. United States (1929), 32 F. (2d)

449;

Isgrig v. United States (1939), 109 F. (2d)

131.

Supplementary proceedina^s and proof are proper

when they tend to confirm a ,2:ood cause of action

originally pleaded, or to justify further relief along

the same lines.

Rule 15(d), Federal Bnles of Civil Procedure ;

Jenkins v. International Bank (1888), 127 U.

S. 484, 32 L. Ed. 189;

Texarkana v. Arkansas Gas Co. (1939), 306 IT.

S. 188, 83 L. Ed. 598;

Napier v. Westerhoff (1907), 153 Fed. 985;

Kryptok Co. v. Hanssmann & Co. (1914), 216

Fed. 267;

Insurance Finance Corp. v. Phoenix Securities

Corp. (1929), 32 F. (2d) 711;

International By. Co. v. Prendergast (1928), 29

F. (2d) 296.
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Such a remand for supplementary proceedings is

particularly proper where jurisdictional defects of an

otherwise good case may thereby be cured.

Parkf 7' Washington Co. v. Cramer (1912), 201

Fed. 878;

Chicago, Rock Island & Pacific Ry. Co. v.

Stevens (1914), 218 Fed. 535;

Chicago & A. R. Co. v. Allen (1917), 249 Fed.

280;

Ward V. Morrow (1926), 15 F. (2d) 660;

Coppedge v. Clinton (1934), 72 F. (2d) 531.

The supplementary showing proposed by plaintiff

is directl}^ material ; it establishes that defendant, pur-

porting to act officially, claims that the law is valid and

that the power to prosecute exists, and has entertained

that view and intention from the beginning. The pro-

posed supplementary showing does not attempt to set

up any new cause of action, arising because of defend-

ant's actual prosecution.

Whether the proposed showing is sufficient to sus-

tain the plaintiff 's contention is essentially for the

trial court to determine; the only question to be con-

sidered by this Court is whether it reasonably tends

to that end.

Ballard v. Searls, supra

;

Jensen v. New York Life Ins. Co., supra

;

Central California Canneries Co. v. Dunkley

Co., supra.

The supplementary showing does not indicate any

lack of an adequate jurisdictional amount; the value

of the matter in controversy is not measured by the
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amount sougJit to be recovered in the state suit, but by

the value of the right sought to be protected in the

instant case.

Healy v. Ratfa (1934), 292 U. S. 363, 78 L. Ed.

1248;

Bitterman v. L. d N. R. Co. (1907), 207 U. S.

205, 52 L. Ed. 171;

Glenwood L. & W. Co. v. Mutual Light, etc.

Co. (1915), 239 U. S. 121, 60 L. Ed. 174;

Western & Atlantic B. Co. v. Railroad Com-

mission (1923), 261 U. S. 264, 67 L. Ed. 645;

Adam v. New York Trust Co. (1930), 37 F.

(2d) 826.

V. ARGUMENT.

FOREWORD.

The essential question presented by this appeal is

whether the trial court erred in concluding, from the

undisputed facts, that no actual case or controversy

is here presented within the scope of the judicial power

of the United States courts. While seven separate

specifications of error are presented and argued in

this brief, in effect they all relate to that single

question.

Plaintilf asserts that an actual controversy is shown

to be presented here, because

:

(1) The record shows that the parties advance

and maintain opposing claims as to the powers

and duties of defendant with respect to the en-

forcement of the Arizona Train-Limit Law

;
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(2) The existence of such conflicting claims,

duly maintained and advanced by parties prop-

erly having an interest in the subject matter, is

sufficient to constitute a case or controversy war-

ranting the exercise of the powers conferred by

the Declaratory Judgments Act (28 U. S. Code

400);

(3) Although defendant is sued herein in his

individual capacity, and not ''as Attorney-Gen-

eral", he has an actual interest in the subject-

matter, and is a proper and necessary party to the

present controversy.

In the following argument, our specifications of

error are presented in three groups, corresponding to

the three points just stated. In connection with and

as ancillary to the first group, we also argue Specifica-

tion No. 1, addressed to the trial court's error in dis-

regarding the unchallenged record, and amending the

order on pre-trial conference, so as to permit defend-

ant to withdraw and abandon his admission, duly

made and recorded at the pre-trial conference, that

he claimed and maintained the power and duty of

prosecution under the law.

We ask this Court to bear in mind, first, that no dis-

putes of fact arise in the case, the only evidence, apart

from defendant's admissions of the greater part of

the allegations of the complaint, having been defend-

ant's affidavit, and his deposition taken by plaintiff

prior to trial ; and second, that we do not contend that

the trial record establishes any controversy between



22

the parties as to the abstract question of the constitu-

tionality of the Train-Ijimit Law, considered apart

from the question of defendant's claimed power and

duty of enforcement. The defendant has admitted, and

the trial court has therefore found to be true, not only

the plaintiff's verified allegations of fact from which

may be and are drawn the legal conclusions that the

law is invalid for various reasons, but also those para-

graphs of the complaint (Nos. XII, XIII and XIV;
R. 34-38) in which such invalidity is in precise terms

alleged.

1. THE RECORD SHOWS THAT THE PARTIES ADVANCE AND
MAINTAIN OPPOSING CLAIMS AS TO THE POWERS AND
DUTIES OF DEFENDANT WITH RESPECT TO THE EN-

FORCEMENT OF THE ARIZONA TRAIN-LIMIT LAW.

(Specifications of Error Nos. 1, 2, and 3.)

The opposing claims of the parties, as developed by

the trial record, are as follows

:

Plaintiff claims and asserts that the Train-Limit

Law conflicts with the Federal Constitution and is

therefore invalid, and that defendant, who occupies

the office designated in the Train-Limit Law as clothed

with the duty of enforcement, therefore has no power

or duty under said law.^

Defendant, on the other hand, though admitting

both plaintiff's allegations of fact as to the law, and

1. No question arose in the trial court, and none arises in this appeal, as

to plaintiff's position. Its claim that the law is invalid (and that the power
and duty of enforcement therefore do not exist) is set forth in paragraph XV
of the complaint (R. 38-40), as well as in various other paragraphs. A por-

tion of paragraph XV is incorporated in Finding No. 6 of the trial court's

findings of fact (R. 113-114).
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the conclusions of invalidity predicated thereon, claims

and asserts that the power and duty of prosecution

nevertheless continue, and declares that he has never

said, and never will say, that he will refrain from

effort to enforce the law or refuse to enforce it.

In short, the controversy relates, as before stated,

not to the question of the constitutionality of the law,

but solely to the question whether the defendant pres-

ently (i. e., in advance of any final judicial determina-

tion) has any power or duty of enforcement in the

event of violation.

The defendant's position in this regard is shown in

various ways: (1) by his admissions and assertions,

made in the course of his oral testimony on deposition

;

(2) by his having taken the oath of office, and thereby

stated his intention to fulfil the duties of the office (one

of which is the enforcement of the Train-Limit Law,

if violated) and particularly by his refusal to disavow

the intention and purpose of carrying out such official

duty; (3) by the forthright admissions made on his

behalf at the pre-trial conference, which were pre-

served in the original pre-trial order.

During defendant's deposition, after he had admit-

ted that he had twice taken the oath as Attorney Gen-

eral, and thereby declared his intention of discharging

the duties of that office faithfully and impartially, he

also said (R. 132) that that oath called upon him to

carry out the duties of Attorney General ; and that he

had no doubt, if the Train-Limit Law was constitu-

tional, that he must enforce it in the event of viola-
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tion; also stating, however, that no violation had oc-

curred since he had been Attorney General.

Later, in the course of his deposition, the following

question and answer appear (R. 141) :

''Q. Of course, you agree that if the law is

violated, why, it will then be and it is right now
your official duty to prosecute every violation?

"A. Prosecution if it is violated and if it is in

violation, but there has never been any violation

in the State of Arizona called to my attention and

there is still doubt in my mind whether the law is

constitutional or unconstitutional, and before I

ever take any steps to do anything, I certainly

would spend some time to go into the law and
determine it is or not."

Although defendant thus expressed doubt as to the

validity of the law, he apparently had no doubt at all

of his continuing duty to prosecute, if a violation

should occur, prior to a judicial determination of

validity.

It is neither inconsistent nor improper for defend-

ant to admit, or maintain the opinion, that the law is

worthless and invalid, and at the same time to claim

that in the event of violation he has and must exercise

the power and duty of enforcement. Indeed, his state-

ment last above quoted draws a clear and proper dis-

tinction between his personal belief and his official

duty. It is immaterial whether the Court adopts the

view that defendant, as an individual, and because of

lack of time, money and inclination to investigate, has
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no opinion at all as to the constitutionality of the law

(the position indicated by his initial affidavit: R. 47-

49; and likewise in his answer: R. 52-70), or whether

it believes that the admissions made at the pre-trial

conference are actual admissions of unconstitution-

ality, made after deliberation, and really represent a

j)resent and continuing state of mind. Defendant's

opinion as an individual, or even as Attorney General,

is to be distinguished from the duty which he under-

takes in assuming the office and subscribing the oath.

That duty (which Joe Conway alone can perform)

arises from the oath of office, from the statute itself,

and from the provisions of the Arizona Constitution

and laws prescribing his powers and duties. The lan-

guage of the Train-Limit Law is mandatory: it de-

clares that the penalties shall be recovered, and suits

therefor brought, by the Attorney General or under

his direction in the name of the State. As the Supreme

Court said, in

:

Pennsylvania v. West Virginia (1923), 262

U. S. 553 (at p. 592), 67 L. ed. 1117,

in a case involving a somewhat similar statute of West

Virginia

:

"It leaves nothing to the discretion of those

who are to enforce it. On the contraiy, it pre-

scribes a definite rule of conduct and in itself puts

the rule in force."

Moreover, there is the general presumption, imi-

versally recognized, that a statute duly enacted is valid

and constitutional; and this presimiption prevails
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until invalidity has been determined by final judgment

of a competent court.

South Carolina v. Barnwell (1938), 303 U. S.

177 (191), 82 L. ed. 734;

Great Northern Railivaij Co. v. Washington

(1937), 300 U. S. 154 (160), 81 L. ed. 573;

Alaska Packers Assn. v. Industrial Accident

Commission (1935), 294 U. S. 532, 79 L. ed.

1044;

Concordia Ins. Co. v. Illinois (1934), 292 U. S.

535 (547),78L. ed. 1411.

This principle has been recognized and stated many

times by this Court ; compare its recent decisions in

:

hiter-Island Co. v. Territory (CCA 9th, 1938),

96 Fed. (2d) 412,419;

Nev. Cal. Electric Securities Co. v. Irrigation

District (CCA 9th, 1936), 85 Fed. (2d) 886,

906.

The presumption of constitutionality is recognized

by the Supreme Court of Arizona, and therefore bind-

ing upon the Attorney General of that State

:

A. T. c& S. F. By. Co. v. State (1928), 33 Ariz.

440, 265Pac. 602;

Arizona Bank v. Crystal Ice & Cold Storage

Co. (1924), 26 Ariz. 205, 224 Pac. 622;

Black & White Co. v. Standard Oil Co. (1923),

25 Ariz. 381, 218 Pac. 139;

Smith V. Mahoney (1921), 22 Ariz. 342, 197

Pac. 704;

Timmons v. Wright (1921), 22 Ariz. 135, 195

Pac. 100;
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State V. Anklan (1934), 43 Ariz. 362, 31 P.

(2d) 888.

In the A. T. & S. F. By. Co. Case, which involved

the validity of a police-power statute of the State, the

Arizona Supreme Court said (265 Pac. 602, at p. 605) :

''The acts of the Legislature within constitu-

tional limits are presumed to be valid and, be-

cause its discretion in determining what the in-

terests of the public require and what measures

are reasonably necessary to protect them is very

large, the courts are reluctant to interfere with

its work and will not do so unless it is clear that

it has gone beyond the bounds of the fundamental

law."

In fact, the mere opinion of defendant, even though

rendered by him ''as Attorney General", is really

nothing more than advisory; and, until and unless a

competent court approves and adopts it, has no bind-

ing effect upon the State, or the State courts, or any

of its officers. In:

Austin V. Barrett (1932), 41 Ariz. 138, 16 P.

(2d) 12,

certain county officers, sued for having approved pay-

ments without statutory authority, pleaded in defense

that such payments had been ruled valid by an opinion

rendered by the Attorney General of the State, many
years previously, upon which they and other county

officers had ever since relied. The Arizona Supreme

Court rejected their plea, saying (16 P. (2d), at p. 16)

that while there had been no intentional misconduct,

in that they had simply followed a custom of long
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standing, approved many years previously by an opin-

ion of the Attorney General, nevertheless they must

be held liable. In

:

Hartford, etc., Co. v. Wainscot (1933), 41 Ariz.

439, 19 P. (2d) 328,

similar reliance by County officials upon the legal

opinion of the officers designated by law as their ad-

visors was held to be no defense ; the Supreme Court

of Arizona saying (19 P. (2d), at p. 331) :

"There is no doubt that under our law the re-

sponsibility placed upon boards of supervisors of

counties is extremely onerous. Neither good faith

on their part nor legal advice by the officers desig-

nated by law as their advisors will protect them
against liability * * * if it be finally determined

that the expenditure involved was not authorized

by law (Citing cases). * * * We are satisfied that

in this case all of the defendants acted in good

faith and imder legal advice, but as we have stated

that is no defense to the action.
'

'

It follows that defendant's opinion, even though

officially rendered, does not take the place of a valid

final determination by a competent court, nor operate,

apparently, to estop defendant or his successor from

prosecuting in the event of violation. As defendant

himself has expressly recognized (R. 140), and as the

courts have universally held, the sole power and duty

of rendering an effective opinion which will establish

invalidity, and thus prevail against the presumption

of constitutionality, resides in the courts alone.

Cianadimi Northern Ry. Co. v. Eggen (1920),

252 U. S. 553 (562), 64 L. ed. 713;
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United States v. Butler (1936), 297 U. S. 1

(62), 80 L. ed. 477;

16 Corpus Juris Sec. 201-204, and cases cited.

In the trial court defendant contended, in sub-

stance, and presumably will again contend, that his

admission of unconstitutionality, in and of itself, and

without need for further statement, is equivalent to

a declaration that the power and duty of prosecution

do not exist; that every semblance of controversy has

thus been removed from the case ; so that nothing now

remains by way of dispute between the parties to

which jurisdiction, dependent upon the existence of

an actual easel or controversy, may be said to attach.

We anticipate that in this behalf defendant will rely

strongly upon the expressions of the Supreme Court,

in its opinion in:

Ex Parte LaPrade (1933), 289 U. S. 444, 77

L. ed. 1311.

Whether the LaPrade decision is in any sense an

authority in the present case is very doubtful, in view

of the circumstances out of which it arose. However,

it may be noted that in that case the Supreme Court

said (at p. 449)

:

'^ Petitioner might hold,^ as plaintiffs maintain,

that the statute is unconstitutional, and that hav-

ing regard to his official oath he rightly may re-

frain from effort to enforce it." (Emphasis sup-

plied.)

2. "Hold", as here used, is obviously in the sense of "believe"; because
only a court could "hold" the law to be invalid. In other words, the word is

evidently used in one of the many dictionary meanings given to it: "to main-
tain a position or condition"; and not in the oiher sense: "to decide; lay

down the law".
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This defendant has never availed himself of the

apparent opportunity of disclaiming his official duty

which the Supreme Court's language seems to afford.

To the contrary, he emphatically declared that he had

''never made and never would make" any public or

private announcement to that effect. Compare the

following excerpts from his deposition (R. 133; 141) :

"I don't recall that I have ever made a state-

ment one way or another on the proposition that,

having regard for my oath of office, there was any

duty written into a state statute, such as the duty

of prosecution for violations, which I would fail

to perform. I don't recall that I have ever com-

mented upon the question w^hether, having re-

gard for my oath of office, there was any state

statute which I would refrain from enforcing or

refuse to enforce."

^

''Q. (By Mr. Mason) : You never made any

public announcement that you would refrain

from the enforcement of it (The Train-Limit

Law) or any private announcement?

''A. I never have, and what is more, I never

will; but until there is a violation of the law I

don't think it is the duty of the Attorney General

to go through the statute books and, as you say,

there are fifty-two or fifty some odd different sec-

tions in there that the Attorney General should

prosecute or should attempt to uphold the laws,

but until the occasion arises, we have plenty of

other work without looking for it."

These statements should leave no doubt that even

though the LaPrade Cuse be construed as presenting
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to the Attorney General an avenue of escape from his

obligation, as set forth in the statute and undertaken

by him when he assumes his office and takes his oath,

this defendant, having had the very language of the

Supreme Court in the LaPrade Case particularly

called to his attention, has definitely declared that he

has not availed himself of that avenue of escape, and

intends never to do so. In short, he still maintains,

as the admissions previously quoted show, that, ir-

respective of his personal opinion as to the constitu-

tionality of the law, it is and will continue to be his

duty to prosecute for every violation of the Train-

Limit Law which may occur, until and unless the in-

validity of that statute be adjudicated by a competent

court and, in consequence thereof, the non-existence

of the power and duty of prosecution be finally de-

termined.

We repeat that no inconsistency is presented when

an enforcing official, as an individual, takes or main-

tains the position that a law infringes the Constitu-

tion, and at the same time annoimces his belief that

it is his duty, under his oath of office, to proceed to

enforce it, until or unless the decision of a competent

coui't overcomes the presumption of validity. That

attitude is wholly consistent with the constitutional as-

signment of powers and duties among the legislative,

executive and judicial branches. Attorneys General

and prosecuting officials of the highest character and

attainments traditionally hold the view that until ad-

vised to the contrary by a court of competent jurisdic-

tion they will enforce a prohibitory statute as it is
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written. Particularly is. this true where, as here, the

invalidity of the statute does not appear on its face

but requires proof of collision with the Commerce

Clause and infringement of the Fourteenth Amend-

ment.

Section 9 of Article 6 of the Arizona Constitution

provides that the powers and duties of the Attorney

General shall be "as prescribed by law"; Section

4396 of the 1928 Revised Statutes of Arizona provides

for the issuance of a writ of mandamus to compel the

performance of official duties, and Section 52 of the

same revised code provides that "the Attorney Gen-

eral shall perform" (certain enumerated duties) and

"such other duties as may be required by law". The

language of the Supreme Court, in the LaPrade Case,

that the Attorney General might hold "that the statute

is unconstitutional and that having regard to his offi-

cial oath he rightly may refrain from effort to en-

force it", is merely a recognition of the principle that

an officer upon whom mandatory duties are cast by a

statute may nevertheless, if he believes the statute to

be unconstitutional, decline to perform those duties

until and unless commanded to do so by a court of

competent jurisdiction. Underlying that principle are

several considerations: first, that an unconstitutional

statute is not ordinarily a defense to a suit for dam-

ages against the individual who, under color of his

office, injures another by enforcement; second, that

if the statute is eventually, as the official thinks it

should be, declared unconstitutional, he may be held

liable upon his official bond if he meantime enforces it

;
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and third, that the Legislature cannot effectively com-

mand a public official to do an unlawful act. Indeed,

special proceedings for a writ of mandamus are in

general use to test the validity of statutes; in some

cases, where the defendant officer genuinely believes

a statute to be unconstitutional, and, in others, where

he simulates that belief for the purpose of having a

judicial decision as to his duty to obey the statute.

And it may be said in passing that the case at bar,

wherein the plaintiff believes that the law is uncon-

stitutional and imposes a daily burden which it can-

not escape by violating the law and submitting to

prosecution, and the defendant, admitting those allega-

tions to be true, nevertheless says that it is his duty to

enforce the law, is closely analogous to a mandamus
proceeding. In the instant case, as the pleadings

stand, the relief sought is a declaration that it is de-

fendant's duty as an individual to refrain from en-

forcing the Train-Limit Law under color of his office

;

while, if this were a mandamus proceeding under Sec-

tion 4396 of the 1928 Arizona Revised Statutes, which

provides for the issuance of a writ of mandamus to

compel the performance of official duties, the relief

sought would be upon allegations that the law was

constitutional, had been violated and that the de-

fendant having refused to prosecute because, in his

opinion, the law was unconstitutional, should be com-

pelled to do so because his opinion was erroneous, and

was no excuse for non-performance of his statutory

duty. In either event, the ultimate issue in con-

troversy would be (as it is here) whether or not the

power and duty of enforcement exist.
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The proceedings at the pre-trial conference; the trial court's

error in failing to give full effect to such proceedings.

At the pre-trial conference, the Court questioned de-

fendant's counsel to determine his attitude toward

each paragraph and allegation of the complaint. As

to paragraph I, the Court's question and the answer

of defendant's counsel were as follows (R. 75-76) :

^'THE COURT. Well, then, to go back to the

complaint, all of Paragraph 1, apparently, is ad-

mitted except, as I stated before, the beginning of

line 15 on page 2 'As such, mider the Consti-

tution and laws of that state, there is vested in

him the exclusive power, and upon him is im-

posed the mandatory duty, to commence and

prosecute and to direct the institution and prose-

cution of, suits for penalties for every violation

of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, the statute, the

validity of which constitutes the subject-matter

of the instant controversy.

'

''Now it is true, you admit all of Paragraph 1?

"MR. STROUSS. Yes, we admit that latter

part involved, but in the case of a constitutional

law."

Each other paragraph of the complaint was then

taken up, in its numerical order, until paragraph XVI
was reached; and the Court asked the following

specific question (R. 90) :

"THE COURT. 16, the whole of 16 is ad-

mitted?"

Defendant's counsel replied (R. 90) :

"MR. STROUSS. Is admitted, yes."

As contemplated by Rule 16 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure, the Court made its order, dated De-
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cember 1, 1939 (R. 92-93), '' reciting the action taken

at the conference", and showing* in particular that

paragraphs I and XVI of the complaint had been

admitted as true, in common with nearly all the re-

maining paragraphs. The order concluded with the

declaration that at the trial of the case '' plaintiff will

not be required to offer proof in support of any of

the admitted allegations".^

Rule 16 provides that an order entered upon pre-

trial conference "controls the subsequent course of the

action, unless modified at the trial to prevent manifest

injustice". On December 12, 1939, immediately prior

to the commencement of the trial, though without any

assertion that the reported record of the pre-trial con-

ference was incorrect or should be changed, or any

showing or even assertion the order as made "would

result in manifest injustice", and indeed without any

prior notice to plaintiff of his intention, other than a

letter to plaintiff's attorney, dated December 8, 1939,

alleging that the order on pre-trial conference w^as "in

error", defendant presented his motion (R. 93-95) to

amend that order so as to show that he had denied

paragraph i-b of the complaint, and also that portion

of paragraph XVI reading as follows (R. 95) :

'

' Said defendant claims and maintains that it is

and will be his duty, as Attorney General, to

prosecute and sue plaintiff for each and every vio-

lation of said act which it may commit."

3. The Court's order failed to recite that paragraph Il-d was admltte<I,

although the record of the pre-trial conference shows that such was the fact.

This omission was subsequently corrected by consent.
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In support of the motion, defendant through his

counsel again asserted that the Court had erred, and

also that the admissions of those allegations, as shown

by the pre-trial transcript, were 'inadvertent" (R.

127). Plaintiff opposed the motion, particularly in so

far as it related to the admission of the above-quoted

portion of paragraph XVI; but the Court permitted

the amendment.

We assert that this modification was clearly not war-

ranted, either upon the basis of the record before the

Court, or as a matter of discretion for the purpose of
^

' preventing manifest injustice
'

'. Indeed, the modifica-

tion resulted in manifest injustice and substantial

prejudice to plaintiff, which otherwise would not have

occurred.

Defendant's assertion that the original order was

erroneous requires only brief consideration. The record

shows that defendant admitted all of paragraph I, in-

cluding the allegation of his statutory and constitu-

tional duty, as Attorney General; the only attempted

qualification having been that such power and duty

were conferred ''in the case of a constitutional law"

(R. 76). Obviously, that qualification was not a denial,

as apparently argued by defendant in his motion to

amend; and although it might have been proper for

the Court's pre-trial order to have referred to the

qualification, its omission did not warrant substitution

of a denial, when the paragraph was in fact admitted.

The record equally shows that defendant admitted

all of paragraph XVI, without qualification. It can-

not be said that defendant or his counsel were trapped
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or tricked or misled into this admission, or deprived

of full opportunity to review the complaint and weigh

the effect of the admission. The transcript shows that

the Court's question, and coimsel's reply, were delib-

erate. Clearly then, on the record, the original order

showing this admission was not erroneous.

We emphasize that defendant, in offering his motion

to amend, did not contend that the pre-trial record was

erroneous, or that the Court's original pre-trial order

did not correspond to that record. No such contention

could have been maintained. Furthermore, no motion

was noticed or made to re-open the pre-trial conference

for a further showing by defendant; and the Court's

order allowing the amendment did not in any way
change the pre-trial record. In short, the amendment

was presented to the Court, and approved, in spite of

the record; and both the amendment and the amending

order were wholly without record support.

As we have stated, defendant 's counsel asserted that

the admission of paragraph XVI, in particular, was

"inadvertent" (R. 127); and we anticipate that this

argument may be made again, reference being made by

defendant to his answer (Par. XXIII, R. 68), in

which appears a specific denial of that part of the lan-

guage in paragraph XVI which, by the amended order^

is shown as having been denied (R. 94, 95). Defendant

may also refer to the contingent denial of somewhat

similar language elsewhere in the complaint, for exam-

ple in paragraph XV: compare paragraph XXII of

his answer (R. 66-67). The prior denial of this par-

ticular language, by defendant's answer, has no sig-
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nificance as showing defendant's position at the time

of the pre-trial conference. Other paragraphs of the

complaint, or portions thereof, were in the answer de-

nied either outright or with qualifications (i. e., lack of

information or interest). Yet at the pretrial confer-

ence those denials were replaced by unqualified admis-

sions. The defendant's whole attitude at that confer-

ence demonstrated an intention to admit every fact

alleged in the complaint, 'so far as he could consistently

with the views stated in his deposition.

This is particularly true of the admission of para-

graph XVI, as that admission appears in the pre-trial

record. While the defendant stated in his deposition

that in his private opinion the law was worthless (R.

140), he also agreed that in the event of violation it

was and would be his official duty to prosecute (R.

141), and declared further that he never had said and

never would say, publicly or privately, that with his

official oath in mind, he would refrain from enforce-

ment (R. 133, 141).

We have no doubt that the defendant will argue that

the trial court has complete discretion over pre-trial

proceedings, and may make such order as it deems

proper. It may be conceded that the discretion of

regulating the proceedings does exist ; but such discre-

tion must be exercised judicially a/nd not abused.

Where the record is plain and unchallenged, as in this

case : where no action is undertaken to reopen the pro-

ceedings or correct the record: where the accuracy of

the reporter's transcript, so far as concerns the point

in issue, is undisputed: then the entry of an order
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which does not correctly reflect the record, and indeed,

as here, states the precise opposite, clearly exceeds the

bounds of judicial discretion, and the action taken is

wholly unwarranted and erroneous.

There are comparatively few decisions in which the

effect of pre-trial proceedings upon the subsequent

course of a case has been considered.

In:

Byers v. Clark (1939), 27 F. Supp. 302,

the United States District Court for Oregon held that

after pre-trial conference held, and order made, coun-

sel for defendant would not be allowed to make a sup-

plemental admission at the trial of the case, the effect

of which would be to disrupt the orderly presentation

of the plaintiff's case.

If it is improper to permit a supplementary admis-

sion by a defendant (although plaintiff would perhaps

be favored thereby), it is all the more improper to

permit a defendant, without notice and in contradic-

tion of the unchallenged record, to withdraw an admis-

sion duly made in open court, and substitute therefor a

denial.

In:

Miles Laboratories v. Seignious (1939), 30 Fed.

Supp. 549,

it was held, in accordance with the provisions of Rule

16, that admissions made at the pre-trial oonference

obviate any necessity of later proof of the matters ad-

mitted. This case therefore supports reliance by plain-

tiff (and by this Court) upon the record of the pre-
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trial conference, regardless of the subsequent errone-

ous ''correction" of the trial court's initial order en-

tered in response to that record.

Pre-trial practice has prevailed in certain courts of

Massachusetts for several years; and recent decisions

of the Supreme Court of that State indicate the scope

and effect of pre-trial procedure.

In:

FanduUo v. B. G. & S. Theatre Corp. (Mass.,

1937), 8 N. E. (2d) 174,

the Court held that an order made on pre-trial con-

ference was binding, and that the parties were fore-

closed from amending, or disavowing a showing made

in reliance thereon.

In:

Eckstein v. Scoffi (Mass., 1938), 13 N. E. (2d)

436,

the report and order on pre-trial conference were also

treated as binding, and affording a proper basis for

the Court's decision.

In:

Finegan v. Prudential Ins. Co. (Mass., 1938),

14 N. E. (2d) 172,

the order made on pre-trial conference was likewise

treated as controlling upon the parties in the conduct

of the trial.

It will be noted that in each of these Massachusetts

cases no question was apparently raised as to whether

the pre-trial order correctly reflected the admissions

and denials of the parties, at the pre-trial conference.
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It is presumed, of course, that the order on pre-trial

conference will correspond to that record, and not (as

erroneously "corrected" in the present case) under-

take to set forth the precise contrary.

Since there was clearly no error in the original pre-

trial order, and it was never asserted that, in the re-

spects here considered, the pre-trial record was in the

least erroneous, the only basis upon which the modifi-

cation of the original order may be supported is that it

was necessary "to prevent manifest injustice". A brief

consideration of the circumstance will, we think, con-

vince this Court that instead of preventing manifest

injustice, the "correction" creates very serious injus-

tice and prejudice to the plaintiff; whereas defendant

would suffer no injustice at all, imder the original

order.

The circumstances to be considered are these: The

original order showed that defendant had admitted

not only all of the probative facts, but all of the con-

clusions pleaded by plaintiff, going to show that the

Train-Limit Law was invalid and unconstitutional;

that he had denied holding any opinion or making any

claim that the law was valid, though admitting (Com-

plaint, par. I-b) that the Constitution and laws of

Arizona cast upon him the power and duty of enforce-

ment, and (par. XVI) that he claimed, presumably

even though not asserting the law's validity, that such

power and duty existed. As we have shown, there was

no inconsistency in his taking that position. The stage

was thus set for entry of a judgment which would fully

determine the case; for even though the parties were
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in agreement as to the ultimate facts upon which the

Court's conclusions were to be predicated, and defend-

ant, in his individual capacity, was shown as holding

the view that the law was invalid, nevertheless the

parties were in controversy as to the defendant's

powers and duties.

In these circumstances, no injustice to defendant

could possibly have followed, if a judgment were ren-

dered declaring the law void, and that he had no duty,

either individually or officially, to enforce it or take

any action thereimder. If defendant were sincere in

his private opinion (R. 140) that the law is of no

value, then presumably he would welcome a formal

judgment wholly relieving him of any apparent statu-

tory duty of prosecution; and such a judgment, since

it would respond to stipulated and presumably well-

known facts, would represent, not injustice to the de-

fendant, but the only just and equitable solution of the

case.

On the other hand, the serious injustice to the plain-

tiff, following from the modification, is plain and mi-

questionable. It is. apparent that plaintiff relied, as

well it might, upon the trial court's order of Decem-

ber 1, 1939, particularly since it was an accurate re-

cital of the pre-trial proceedings, at least in so far as

paragraphs I and XVI were concerned; and relied

particularly upon the Court's statement (R. 93) that

it would not be required to offer proof in support of

the allegations thus admitted. At all stages in this

case, the only serious question presented has been as

to the existence of an actual controversy. With de-
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fendant's admission, openly made and properly pre-

served of record by the trial court's original order,

that he claimed and maintained the power and duty of

prosecution imder the law—a claim which necessarily

and vitally affects plaintiff, and which plaintiff of

course has consistently opposed—there could be no

doubt of an actual controversy. Plaintiff was thus

compelled, on the date of the trial, to face the with-

drawal of an admission vital to the case, and the neces-

sity of making proof upon a point as to which the

Court had announced that none would be required.

It could, of course, have requested a postponement,

thus suffering further delay, but in view of the con-

tinuing irreparable damage (admittedly more than

$800.00 per day), and the likelihood of substantial

delay, it preferred to proceed.

This Court should conclude that the modification of

the pre-trial order operated to plaintiff's grave preju-

dice ; that it was neither warranted on the face of the

record, nor under the rule, for the purpose of prevent-

ing manifest injustice to defendant ; and that the modi-

fication should be disregarded, and the cause consid-

ered upon this appeal from the standpoint of the

actual record made at the pre-trial conference, and the

order in response thereto originally entered.
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2. THE EXISTENCE OF CONFLICTING CLAIMS, DULY MAIN-
TAINED AND ADVANCED BY PARTIES PROPERLY HAVING
AN INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT MATTER, IS SUFFICIENT
TO CONSTITUTE A CASE OR CONTROVERSY WARRANT-
ING THE EXERCISE OF THE POWERS CONFERRED BY THE
DECLARATORY JUDGMENTS ACT (28 U. S. CODE 400).

(Specifications of Error Nos. 4 and 5.)

The leading decision of the Supreme Court, estab-

lishing the requisites of a ''case or controversj^" in a

declaratory-judgment suit, is:

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth (1937), 300

U. S. 227, 81 L. ed. 617.

The essential facts of that case, as set forth in the

plaintiff's complaint therein, were:

The plaintiff insurance company had issued to the

defendant certain policies which provided, among

other things, that in the event of total and permanent

disability the company would pay defendant a stated

monthly income, waive further premium payments,

and extend other benefits. Some time after receiving

the policies the insured ceased to pay premiums, and

claimed the stipulated disability benefits. These claims

were presented in ordinary form ; but the insured took

no further steps, other than to discontinue premium

payments. Particularly, no action at law had been

instituted by defendant either to obtain the benefits, or

to determine the validity of the policies.

The plaintiff had at all times refused to recognize

the defendant's claims, insisting on the contrary that

the policies had lapsed for nonpayment of premiums,

and no longer had substantial value. Because of de-

fendant's claims, and plaintiff's inability to obtain a
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determination whether he was in fact disabled, it faced

a contingent liability for the payments provided in the

policies, and also had to maintain substantial reserves

upon the policies ; and there was also the danger, if a

determination were postponed until the death of the

insured, of losing material evidence through disappear-

ance, illness, or death of witnesses.

The District Court granted defendant's motion to

dismiss the complaint, holding (11 F. Supp. 1016) that

it did not set forth a ''controversy" in the constitu-

tional sense, and hence did not come within the scope

of the Declaratory Judgments Act. That ruling was

affirmed by the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Eighth Circuit, Circuit Judge Woodrough dissenting

(84 F. (2d) 695). The Supreme Court reversed the

judgment of the Circuit Court, holding that an actual

controversy was duly presented.

In reviewing the case, it is desirable to examine first

the majority opinion in the Circuit Court, because it

sets forth concisely the contentions reviewed and re-

jected by the Supreme Court; and because, further, it

proceeds along the same lines as the argument hereto-

fore made by defendant in the instant case, and cites

many of the authorities upon which he has repeatedly

relied. The pertinent portions (84 F. (2d) at p. 697)

of the Circuit Court's opinion are reproduced in the

appendix.

In its opinion, the Supreme Court first discussed

the essentials of a controversy; not, however, for the

purposes of declaratory-judgment i)roceedings only,
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but of all adversary proceedings in Federal Courts;

and then applied that discussion to the facts of the

case before it. We include, in the appendix, excerpts

from the Supreme Court's opinion (300 U. S., at pp.

239-241, 242-244).

The close parallel between the instant case and the

cited case is readily evident. In that case, as the Court

pointed out, the '' parties had taken adverse positions

with respect to their existing obligations''. So, in this

case, the parties take equally '

' adverse positions
'

' with

respect to their existing obligations : plaintiff contend-

ing, on the one hand, that it need not comply with the

Train-Limit Law, and is not subject to prosecution in

the event of violation ; while defendant admits that he

has taken an official oath which in terms requires him

to prosecute for each violation, that he has never said

and never will say that he intends to refrain from

enforcing the statute in accordance with the terms of

his oath, and that it is presently his power and duty,

as Attorney General, to prosecute in the event of

violation.

The claim that the right and duty of prosecution

exist, regardless of defendant's private opinion re-

specting the law's validity, is, to use the Court's lan-

guage, ''a claim of a present specific" power and duty.

The plaintiff's claim that the power and duty do not

exist, and that it is immune to prosecution and penalty,

is equally definite and specific. Such a dispute is mani-

festly susceptible of judicial determination; it is pre-

cisely the same character of dispute which was pre-

sented and deteraiined in the Nevada Train-Limit
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Ca^e (Southern Pacific Compamy v. Mashhum, 18 F.

Supp. 393) where the principal basis of suit, as shown

by paragraph IV of the special findings of the three-

judge court, was that the defendant was expressly

required by the terms of the Nevada statute to prose-

cute for violations, and had declared, in the event of

violation, that he would carry out that duty.

To continue the parallel with the Haworth Case:

If defendant had sued"* to recover the statutory penal-

ties imposed by the Train-Limit Law, there would be

no question of the existence of a controversy. If, again,

being advised that plaintiff contemplated a settled

course of disregard of the law, defendant had brought

suit to enjoin such violations, there would likewise be

no question of controversy. However, "the character

of the controversy and of the issue to be determined

is", as the Supreme Court says, "essentially the same"

whether presented in the first instance by the plaintiff

or the defendant. If judicial power exists to entertain

such a suit by the Attorney General, then equally it

extends to a suit brought by this plaintiff; and, the

other essentials of federal jurisdiction being satisfied,

the suit properly lies in a Federal Court. As the

Supreme Court emphasizes, "it is the nature of the

controversy, not the method of its presentation or the

particular party who presents it, that is determina-

tive."

The parallel between the two cases extends still fur-

ther. In the Haworth Case the plaintiff insurance

4. It is now shown and aximitted that such a suit has now been brought

;

see plaintiff's motion to remand, filed in this Court on May 8. 1040; and
defendant's opposition thereto, particularly his aflBdavit included therein as

Exhibit A.
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company, because of the possible liability in the event

of a suit by the insured, and the absence of any deter-

mination as to the validity of the latter 's claims, was

compelled to incur substantial expense, and was appar-

ently without adequate remedy at law for the irrep-

arable loss thus occasioned. In the instant case it is

admitted that plaintiff, because of the heavy cumula-

tive penalties provided by the law, and the absence of

any final and binding decision determining the law's

validity (which decision would, of course, also deter-

mine whether the claimed right and duty of prosecu-

tion exists), incurs substantial continuing expense,

and has no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable

loss thus sustained.

Again, in the Haworth Case it was strongly argued

—indeed, the Circuit Court held—that a controversy

was lacking because the defendant was not acting, or

threatening to act, in such a way as to invade or affect

prejudicially the rights of plaintiif ; and somewhat the

same argument, though perhaps not in the same lan-

guage, has been and may again be presented by de-

fendant here. But the Supreme Court held (300 U. S.,

at p. 241)

:

*'Where there is such a concrete case admitting

of an immediate and definitive determination of

the legal rights of the parties in an adversary

proceeding upon the facts alleged, the judicial

function may be appropriately exercised although

the adjudication of the rights of the litigmits may
not require the award of process or the payment

of damages. (Citing cases.) And as it is not essen-

tial to the exercise of the judicial power that an
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injunction be sought, alleijations that irreparable

injury is threatened are not required." (Emphasis

supplied.)

In other words, a justiciable controversy, adequate for

judicial determination, may exist, even though specific

threats of formal action be lacking. It was therefore

wholly unnecessary for the trial court to undertake

any finding or determination herein that defendant

had not threatened to enforce the law, or taken any

action to that end; its Findings Nos. II and III (R.

110) are mere surplusage, and should be stricken.

The decision in the Haworth Case is in full accord

with the Supreme Court's earlier decision in:

Nashville, Chattanooga, & St. Louis Ry. Co. v.

Wallace (1933), 288 U. S. 249, 77 L. ed. 730.

Indeed, the Wallace decision is properly regarded as

the leading case wherein the Supreme Court indicated

that an action for a declaratory judgment may possess

the requisites of a case or controversy, within the

meaning of the Constitution, and thus jDropei'ly be

carried on in the Federal Courts.

The case was originally brought in a state court,

under the State Declaratory Judgments Act of Ten-

nessee, prior to the enactment of the present federal

statute. It came to the Supreme Court on appeal from

the decision of the highest court of the state. The

initial question before the Supreme Court was, of

course, whether it had jurisdiction, within the Federal

constitutional provision limiting the judicial power to

cases and controversies". After reviewing the com-ii
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plaint, and noting that it sought a declaratory decree

that a state tax statute was unconstitutional, the Su-

preme Court held that an actual controversy, in the

constitutional sense, was presented even though declar-

atory relief only was asjied for. Pertinent portions of

the opinion (288 U. S., at pp. 261-262) are set forth

in the appendix.

Reviewing the facts of the instant case, in the light

of the court's opinion, we find, to paraphrase that

opinion, that the basic issue here presented (i.e.,

whether there exists the right and duty of prosecution,

as defendant claims) would constitute a case or con-

troversy, if raised and presented in a proceeding

brought by plaintiff to enjoin such prosecution if it

were threatened, or in the one recently brought by

defendant to collect the penalties provided in the chal-

lenged law, because of alleged violations. The pro-

ceeding as to which a decree is sought is between ad-

verse parties, one of which has been compelled (as the

other admits) to yield obedience to the statute because

of the heavy cumulative penalties provided therein;

whereas the other claims and maintains that it is and

will be his power and duty, in the event of violation,

to proceed under color of his office to prosecute for

each such violation.

To continue the paraphrase further, a valuable legal

right (the right to be free of liability for such penal-

ties) asserted by plaintiff, and as to which the adverse

position of defendant and his essential interest therein,

as the individual solely charged with the power and

duty of enforcement, are fully set forth, will be di-
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rectly affected and determined by the Court's decision.

The question lends itself to judicial determination, and

is of the kind which the Federal Courts traditionally

decide: for example, the same essential question was

presented and entertained in the earlier Arizona

Train-Limit Case (A. T. & S. F. By. Co. v. Peterson,

43 F. (2d) 198; Same v. LaPrade, 2 F. Supp. 855);

also by the special District Court of three judges for

Nevada in the Nevada Train-Limit Case (S. P. Co, v.

Mashhurn, Attorney General, supra) ; and by the spe-

cial three-judge District Court for Louisiana in the

Louisiana Train-Limit Suits^ (T. & N, 0. By. Co,,

et al. V. Porterie, Attorney-General, et al., not officially

reported)

.

Moreover, the relief sought is a definitive adjudica-

tion of the disputed constitutional right of plaintiff, in

the circumstances shown to be free of the contingeut

statutory liability. The plaintiff, whose asserted right

to disregard the law without liability for penalty will

be determined by the decision, is not attempting to

secure a mere abstract determination of the validity

of the statute, or a decision advising what the law

would be on an uncertain or
_

hypothetical state of

facts ; the determination will rest upon concrete facts,

fully alleged and admitted ; for the complaint specifies,

in detail, the continuing burden of expense and inter-

ference IHT daily and continuously imposed upon

plaintiff's operations.

5. Tho Lmiisicma Case went no further than an interhjcutory injunction
against defendants, granted by a special three-judge court in ]3ecember, 1936,

upon affidavits, counter-affidavits and oral arguments.
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In his discussion of the Wallace Case defendant, in

an earlier brief in these proceedings, has asserted that

no parallel to the instant case was presented, specify-

ing three reasons, as follows

:

(a) While the Wallace Case was a suit for declara-

tory judgment, it was under the Tennessee law, and

not the federal statute

;

(b) In that case the defendants ''had demanded

payment of the tax in a specified amount and * * *

determined to enforce their demand"; while here there

have been no acts or threats by defendant, either indi-

vidually or officially ; even the allegation that he claims

and maintains that the law is valid being (so it is said)

merely an erroneous assumption ; and

(c) There the action was against the defendants

in their official capacity, while here it is against Mr.

Conway "as an individual"; in other words, in that

case there actually existed an interest on the part of

defendants, together with a legal relation with the

plaintiff; whereas no such interest or relation exists

in the instant case.

So far as defendant's point (a) is concerned, it is

seen to be wholly without merit, when the essential

nature of the question first considered and decided by

the Supreme Court is examined. That question was

whether a case or controversy was presented, within

the meaning of Article III, Section 2, of the Federal

Constitution. Whether the case originates in a State

or a Federal Court, the Supreme Court's jurisdiction

is circumscribed bv the constitutional limitation, in the
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same way and to the same degree as all other federal

courts. Therefore, in defining a ''controversy", to

determine whether its own jurisdiction could be in-

voked, the Supreme Court was recording such defini-

tion, for similar purposes, for all other courts of the

United States whose judicial powers rest upon Article

III of the Constitution. The case is therefore squarely

in point in its interpretation of the term ''contro-

versy", for purposes of federal-court jurisdiction.

In fact, it is fully apparent that this decision (ren-

dered in February, 1933), which established that Fed-

eral Courts could exercise jurisdiction in cases where

declaratory, rather than coercive, relief was sought,

led toi the, enactment, at the next regular session of

Congress (June 14, 1934), of the Federal Declaratory

Judgments Act.

Defendant's point (b) is likewise without merit, and

presents no essential distinction. The defendants in

the Walla^ce Case had, as the opinion shows, demanded

payment and determined to enforce their demand. In

this case, it is quite true that prior to April 19, 1940,

no actual demand had been made by defendant; but

none was necessary, for the, powerful effect of the

penalty provisions of the challenged law had for years

proved to be sufficiently persuasive to compel compli-

ance. Defendant so conceded, when he admitted plain-

tiff's allegations (Complaint, pars. Il-d, XV, XVI;
R. 5, 39, 42) that it sustains continuing irreparable

damage because of the law, but is unable and unwilling

to disregard its provisions because of the enormous

penalties to which it might be subject. There has never
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been, moreover, any question of defendant's deter-

mination to enforce the demand embodied in the chal-

lenged law ; he has admitted the existence of the power

and duty of prosecution in the event of violation, and

declared that he never has said, and never will say, as

a means of avoiding that duty, that having regard for

his official oath he intends to refrain from attempts

at enforcement (R. 133, 141).

The distinction attempted in defendant's point (c)

is likewise without significance. It is predicated upon

his position that since he is sued ''as an individual",

he <?annot be a party to a controversy concerning the

subject matter of this suit, because as an individual he

claims to have no substantial interest therein. This

contention is discussed at greater length in the next

succeeding subdivision of this brief ; it will suffice here

to point out that defendant, although sued '

' as an indi-

vidual", is identified as the present Attorney General

of Arizona, admittedly the individual who now occu-

pies that office (R. 53), and the only individual upon

whom is laid responsibility for enforcement of the

challenged law; and consequently the only individual

who, acting under color of that office, can effectively

assert the existence of the power and duty of enforce-

ment. As we show more fully hereafter, defendant's

position is not to be distinguished from that of any

other occupant of a state office who, as the individual

charged with the duty of enforcing a state statute, has

been made defendant in a federal proceeding brought

to determine whether, under the Federal Constitution,

such duty existed. Such a state official is necessarily
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sued in the Federal Court as an individual, unless the

state's consent to suit be given; yet there has never

been any doubt, at least since the Supreme Court's

decision in Ex Parte Yoimg (1908), 209 U. S. 123, 52

L. ed. 714, that in that individual capacity he is a

proper and necessary party to the controversy.

In a number of recent Federal cases, it has been held,

just as in the Haworth Case, that an actual controversy

may exist, warranting the exercise of jurisdiction to

grant declaratory relief, even though there has been

no overt threat by the defendant, or anything more

than a statement of a claim adverse to that of the

plaintiff.

Compare

:

Gully V. Interstate Natural Gas €o. (1936),

82 F. (2d) 145 (149) (cited with approval

by the Supreme Court in the Hatvorth Case,

300 U. S., at p. 244) ;

Edelmann v. Triple-A Specialty Co. (C.C.A.,

7th, 1937), 88 F. (2d) 852 (854) ;

Bliss V. Cold Metal Process Col^ (C.C.A., 6th,

1939), 102 F. (2d) 105 (108);

6. This decision is likewise particularly pertinent because, besides indicat-

ing that a controversy exists where there are conflicting claims of the parties

as to the validity of an instrument (in this case a patent), it also declares

that any doubt of the existemce of a controversy in the case hatl been re-

moved, by the filing of a suit, by the patentee, against the alleged infringer,

such suit having been commenced after the declaratory judgment proceeding

was started. The Court said (p. 108) :

"Since the filing of the bill it (defendant) has brought suit for in-

fringement against the plaintiff itself. All doubts as to the existence of a
present controversy are now dispelled."

The defendant in the instant case, who is in the same position as the claim-

ant under a patent, because he claims the right and power to prosecute

against infringement of the statute which purpoitedly confers certain powers
and obligations upon him, has now (April li), 1940) actually filed suit

against this plaintiff for alleged infringements of the statute. "All doubts as

to the existence of a present controversy are now dispelled."
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Black V. Little (1934), 8 [F. Supp. 867 (870) ;

Murylmvd Casualty Co. v. Hubhard (1938), 22

F. Supp. 697, (699-700, 702).

In the appendix hereto we mclude excerpts from

the opinions rendered in these eases.

We ask the Court to note especially that in the

Haworth Case, as in other cases of which the last

three cited are typical, the Court sustained the pro-

priety of a so-called ''negative" declaration: i e., that

an asserted obligation or liability did not exist. Such

is precisely the relief sought here: a declaration, in

effect, that defendant does not possess the power or

duty of prosecution, and hence that plaintiff is not

obligated to obey the challenged law, nor liable for

penalties in the event of disobedience.

The authorities likewise establish the propriety of

proceeding in the Federal Courts for a declaratory

judgment, where the existence of powers dependent

upon validity of a statute or ordinance is challenged

on constitutional or other grounds. Indeed, the essen-

tial value of the declaratory proceeding is that the

disputed question can be settled in advance of either

violation, or the taking of definitive steps to compel

compliance. Compare the Gully, Black and Edelmann

Cnses, supra; and also:

Wallace v. Currin (1938), 95 F. (2d) 856, 861;

In re N. F., N, H. & H. R. Co. (1936), 16 F.

Supp. 504, 505;

Sovereign Camp v. Wilentz (1938), 23 F. Supp.

23, 29;

Acme Finance Co. v. Huse (Wash. S. Ct. 1937),

73 Pac. (2d) 341, 77 Pac. (2d) 595, 114

A. L. R. 1345;
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Tuscaloosa County v. Shamhlm (Ala. S. Ct.

1936), 169 So. 234;

Milwaukee Gas Specialty Co. v. Mercoid Corp.

(C. C. A., 7th, 1939), 104 F. (2d) 589, 591;

Fosgate Co. v. KirMaibd (1937), 19 F. Supp.

152, 158.

The Acme Finance Case is of particular interest, in

that the Supreme Court of Washington, after a dis-

cussion of the Uniform Declaratory Judgment Act

(adopted in Washington), and the decisions in the

Wallace and Haworth Cases, supra, entertained an

action for a declaratory judgment to determine the

constitutionality of a statute which, though enacted,

was not to become effective until nearly a month

after the case was begun. No steps had been taken

by defendants, the enforcing officers, to compel com-

pliance with the law. It was simply alleged (in the

complaint) and admitted (by demurrer), that de-

fendants intended to begin enforcement upon the

effective date. The Court said:

*'The plaintiff and interveners were in this di-

lemma: If, on the one hand, they comj^lied with

the act on June 9th, and the act was in fact un-

constitutional, they would do so to their damage.
If, on the other hand, they refused to comply
with the law, and they were wrong in thinking it

unconstitutional, they would suffer the criminal

penalties provided in the act. Either course was
fraught with danger. To afford relief to parties

in such a situation is the very purpose of the

Declaratory Judgment Act.

"The material consideration is that the case, as

made, answered all the requirements of a jus-
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ticiable controversy. The plaintiff and inter-

veners alleged that the defendant would enforce

the law on and after June 9th, claimed that it was
unconstitutional, and that they would therefore

suffer legal damage. The defendant admitted

that he would enforce the law as being constitu-

tional on and after June 9th. Here was an in-

terested plaintiff and an interested defendant,

and they were in sharp controversy. The trial

court was, therefore, compelled to take jurisdic-

tion and render judgment."

The reasoning of the case is in line with the views

of the Supreme Court, which held that an action to

enjoin enforcement of an alleged unconstitutional

statute was not prematurely brought, even though

the statute by its very terms was not to become effec-

tive for a considerable period after the suit was com-

menced :

Pierce, Governor, et al. v. Society of Sisters

(1925), 268 U. S. 510, 535, 69 L. ed. 1070.

The situation in the instant case is closely analogous

to that presented in a very recent case in this Court:

Caterpillar Tractor Co. v. Intenmtional Har-

vester Co. (Oct. 4, 1939), 106 F. (2d) 769.

The plaintiff, a manufacturer of tractors, had re-

ceived from defendant a letter stating in substance

that defendant had examined certain of the types of

tractors recently brought out by plaintiff, and that

they infringed defendant's patents. The letter de-

clared defendant's purpose to insist upon recognition

and enforcement of its rights, and requested that
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manufacture of the infrmging models be discontin-

ued, and an accounting made for past use. The plain-

tiff thereupon brought suit for a declaratory decree

of non-infringement. An actual controversy was al-

leged to exist because of defendant's asserted opposing

claims, as set forth in its letter.

Defendant initially filed an answer denying the

validity of the plaintiff's patents and asserting that its

own were valid; but later, on the eve of the trial, it

reversed its position and filed an amended answer

admitting that no infringements existed as pre-

viously claimed. (Defendant in the instant case fol-

lowed practically the same course). Upon motion of

plaintiff, the lower court granted summary judgment,

and rendered a declaratory decree of non-infringe-

ment accordingly. Upon this appeal the defendant

raised two points, first, that the complaint did not set

forth facts sufficient to show the existence of an actual

controversy and, second, that the summary judgment

was not proper in the circumstances.

This Court held, as to the first point, that the com-

plaint, in that it set forth the actual opposing claims

of the parties, ''properly alleges a controversy to

serve as a basis of jurisdiction of the Court, in this

action for a declaratory judgment".

As to the second point, the Court held that, in view

of the admissions of non-infringement in the defend-

ant's supplemental answer, the declaratory decree was

properly rendered, except as to one model as to which

some question of fact actually existed.
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The close similarity to the instant case is at once

apparent. In the cited case, there was no actual

prosecution by defendant, nor immediate threat

thereof, nor anything more than an assertion of a

purpose to insist upon recognition and enforcement

of alleged rights. Certainly defendant in the instant

case, even prior to his commencement on April 19,

1940, of the prosecution in the State Court, presented

at least as vigorous, if not a stronger claim; for he

asserted that the power and duty of prosecution were

vested in him, and declared that he had never said,

and never would say, that he intended to refrain.

Furthermore, even though by its admissions of non-

infringement the defendant in the cited case with-

drew the questions ''of fact" relating to its contro-

versy with the plaintiff, so far as concerned the al-

leged infringement, the ''actual controversy" was not

abated. The declaratory decree was held proper as a

determination of the dispute; and, except as to one

minor detail, was affirmed. The cas,e amply sustains

our contention that defendant's admissions are not to

be taken as abating the controversy; that plaintiff is

instead entitled to a declaratory decree, which may be

based upon defendant's admissions of fact, and is

necessary to dispose of and determine the claim that

the power and duty of prosecution exist under the

challenged law.

Other recent federal cases in which a declaratory

decree has been held proper, in order to settle the

rights of one party to continue the manufacture and

sale of a particular article, as against a claim of in-
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fringement by a rival party, and even in the absence

of a threat of prosecution or other action by the latter,

include the following:

Zenie Bros. v. Miskend (1935), 10 F. Supp.

779;^

Interstate Cotton Oil Refinmg Co. v. Rejining,

l7ic. (1938), 22 F. Supp. 678;

Booth Fisheries Corporation v. General Foods

Corporation (1939), 27 F. Supp. 268;

Ladenson v. Overspred Stoker Co. (C.C.A., 7th,

1937), 89 F. (2d) 242.

The Court will, we think, recognize the close analogy

between the instant case, and one involving alleged

infringement of a patent, especially where the alleged

or potential infringer brings the suit. A patent is in

effect a charter to the patentee, conferring a more or

less exclusive right which, under well-recognized prin-

ciples, he may enforce by suit against an infringer,

actual or threatened. The Train-Limit Law is like-

wise in effect a '' charter" conferring (so far as the

State may do so) exclusive powers and duties upon

the Attorney General, which he may and must assert

by suit against an infringer. But, just as one whose

rights are affected by another's patent may (in

advance of infringement) sue the patentee to deter-

mine whether the patent be valid, so may plaintiff,

whose rights are affected by the ''charter" under

which defendant is empowered to prosecute, bring suit

in advance of infringement (as it has done), to de-

termine whether defendant's "charter" is valid.

7. In the Appendix we include a quotation from' the opinion (10 F. Supp.,
p. 781).
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Thus far we have discussed the question whether a

controversy is here presented, from the standpoint of

the defendant's admission and claim that he is vested

with the power and duty of enforcement. But we

maintain that even though defendant's attitude be

viewed as merely negative, the admissions and claims

just mentioned being disregarded for purposes of the

argument, a justiciable controversy is still presented

by the unchallenged facts. Two recent (1939) deci-

sions of the Supreme Court sustain our position:

Rochester Telephone Corporation v. U. S.

(1939), 307 U. S. 125, 83 L. ed. 1147;

Perkins v. Elg (1939), 307 U. S. 325, 83 L. ed.

1320.

In the Rochester Case the Court re-examined the

well known rule of decision, initially established in

Procter & Gamble v. United States (1912), 225 U. S.

282, and subsequently followed in many other cases,

that when one has made complaint before a regula-

tory tribunal (such as the Interstate Commerce Com-

mission), which after investigation has dismissed the

complaint, denying relief, the complainant cannot

maintain suit, as would otherwise be his right under

federal law, to review such so-called ''negative" action.

In the opinion in the Rochester Case the Court,

after reviewing various types of proceedings before

the Interstate Commerce Commission (selected as

typical of federal administrative tribunals), and re-

ferring particularly to the necessity that a court pro-

ceeding to review a decision of the Commission must

satisfy the constitutional requirements of a ''case or
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controversy", discussed the Procter & Gamble Case

in some detail (307 U. S., at pp. 135-143). It said,

in part (at p. 136) :

''Clearly Procter & Gamble was authorized un-

der Section 13 of the Act to Regulate Commerce
to institute the proceedings before the Commis-
sion. Since it asserted a legal right under that

Act to have the Commission apply different prin-

ciples of law from those which led the Commis-
sion to dismiss the complaint, the ingredients for

an adjudication—constituting a case or contro-

versy—were present. Compare Interstate Com-
merce Comm'n v. Brimson, supra; Interstate

Commerce Comm'n v. Baird, 194 U. S. 25, 38.

Judicial relief would be precisely the same as in

the recognized instances of review by courts of

Commission action: if the legal principles on
which the Commission acted were not erroneous,

the bill would be ordered dismissed; if the Com-
mission was found to have proceeded on errone-

ous legal principles, the Commission would be

ordered to proceed within the framework of its

own discretionary authority on the indicated cor-

rect principles. '

'

The Court then concluded that the distinction earlier

drawn between "negative" (and hence non-review-

able), and ''affirmative" (and therefore reviewable)

action of the Commission was improper, and should

no longer be observed, saying (at p. 142) :

"The concept of 'negative orders' has not

served to clarify the relations between adminis-

trative bodies and the courts but has rather

tended to obscure them. An action before the

Interstate Commerce Commission is akin to an
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inclusive equity suit in which all relevant claims

are adjusted. An order of the Commission dis-

missing a complaint on the merits and maintain-

ing the status quo is an exercise of administra-

tive function, no more and no less, than an order

directing some change in status. The nature of

the issues foreclosed by the Commission's action

and the nature of the issues left open, so far as

the reviewing power of courts is concerned, are

the same. Refusal to change an existing situa-

tion may, of course, itself be a factor in the Com-
mission's allowable exercise of discretion. In the

application of relevant canons of judicial review

an order of the Commission directing the adop-

tion of a practice might raise considerations ab-

sent from a situation where the Commission

merely allowed such a practice to continue. But
this bears on the disposition of a case and should

not control jurisdiction."

The essential result, in so far as concerns our imme-

diate argument, is that the Court held that a justici-

able controversy may exist between one affected by a

statutory restriction, and another who, by virtue or

color of his position as a public officer, has power or

duty to take action under that statute, even though

the latter has failed or refused to act ; if the result of

such non-action is to leave the affected party m its

previous position of alleged disadvantage.

So, in the instant case, assuming that defendant de-

sired to prevent plaintiff from obtaining a Federal

Court adjudication of the validity of the Train-Limit

Law, and in furtherance of that purpose announced,

when confronted with plaintiff's complaint, that he
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had not formed and would not undertake to form any

opinion, or make any claim, respecting the law's va-

lidity, or the existence of any power or duty of his

own as Attorney General : Could it be said that plain-

tiff, thus facing daily a continuing irreparable ex-

pense, which defendant's assumed conduct would be

designed to perpetuate, was without any remedy other

than the expedient of violation in order to provoke a

possible prosecution? The Rochester Case provides

the answer: It indicates that, just as a complainant

who, being left in his prior position through non-

action of a Commission, may maintain suit against

that Commission to determine whether, as a matter of

law, affirmative action or non-action is proper; so

plaintiff herein, in the circumstances assumed, would

still be entitled to maintain its suit against defendant,

if thereby a determination could be had whether its

unwilling observance of the restrictions should con-

tinue.

In the Perkins Case the essential question was

whether respondent, a native of the United States,

was entitled to a declaratory judgment against the

Secretary of State and the Secretary of Labor,

establishing her American citizenship, her right to be

free of interference by the Department of Labor,

and her further right to have issued to her an Ameri-

can passport. The lower court held (99 F. (2d) 408)

that an actual controversy existed, as between re-

spondent and the Secretary of Labor, because of re-

spondent's claim of citizenship, and the opposing

claim of alien status advanced by that defendant ; but

dismissed the complaint against the Secretary of
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State, holding that, since the latter had discretion to

issue a passport, his non-action or refusal to act could

not be controlled by declaratory judgment. The Su-

preme Court affirmed the decree, as against the Secre-

tary of Labor, but held that it should be modified to

include also the Secretary of State ; saying (307 U. S.,

at p. 394)

:

''The cross petition of Miss Elg, upon which

certiorari was granted in No. 455, is addressed to

the part of the decree below which dismissed the

bill of complaint as against the Secretary of State.

The dismissal was upon the ground that the court

would not undertake by mandamus to compel the

issuance of a passport or control by means of a

declaratory judgment the discretion of the Secre-

tary of State. But the Secretary of State, ac-

cording to the allegation of the bill of complaint,

had refused to issue a passport to Miss Elg ' solely

on the ground that she had lost her native born

American citizenship. ' The court below, properly

recognizing the existence of an actual controversy

with the defendants (Aetna Life his. Co. v. Ha-
worth, 300 U.S. 227), declared Miss Elg 'to be a

natural born citizen of the United States' and we
think that the decree should include the Secretary

of State as well as the other defendants. The

decree in that sense would in no way interfere

with the exercise of the Secretary's discretion

with respect to the issue of a passport but would

simply preclude the denial of a passport on the

sole ground that Miss Elg had lost her American
citizenship."

The decision thus squarely sustains our position

that even though the matter of action or non-action by
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an occupant of a public office may be subject to dis-

cretion, nevertheless if the result of non-action is to

prejudice rights asserted by a private litigant, a con-

troversy exists within the jurisdiction of the federal

courts, which may be settled by a declaratory judg-

ment. So, in the instant case, even if it were con-

ceded that defendant could insist that he has discre-

tion to determine whether or not he will act—i. e.,

state his position with respect to the validity of the

law and his duties thereunder—and even further that

he has exercised that discretion by declining to state

his opinion, or asserting that he has none : even then,

since his non-action would be intended to be, and

clearly would be, highly prejudicial and damaging to

plaintiff, an actual controversy would arise ; and plain-

tiff would be entitled to a declaratory judgment

whether defendant's non-action was warranted, thus

necessarily determining whether the law was valid

and the duty of enforcement existed.

3. ALTHOUGH DEFENDANT IS SUED HEREIN IN HIS INDI-

VIDUAL CAPACITY, AND NOT "AS ATTORNEY GENERAL",
HE HAS AN ACTUAL INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT MATTER,
AND IS A PROPER AND NECESSARY PARTY TO THE
PRESENT CONTROVERSY.

(Specification of Error No. 6.)

At various stages of this case in the District Court,

defendant laid great stress upon the point that, since

he was sued in his individiml capacity, and not ''as

Attorney General", he had no legal interest in the

subject matter, and therefore could not be a party to



68

an actual controversy with the plaintiff with respect

to either the constitutionality of the Train-Limit Law,

or any possible powers and duties of the Attorney

General thereunder. In his opposition to plaintiff's

motion to remand, the point w^as again strongly em-

phasized: Compare defendant's memorandum, at

pages 9-15.

From the very first, e. g., when the motion to dis-

miss was filed in the District Court (R. 46), it was

clear that defendant's point was wholly without

merit; and in denying the motion to dismiss the Dis-

trict Court properly so held (R. 52). When the essen-

tial facts were more fully developed, and it was shown

and admitted that defendant claimed that the official

power and duty of prosecution exist, and had never

stated any intention to refrain from or abandon that

official duty, having in mind his oath of office, the

entire basis of the argument was swept away.

This discussion is therefore not addressed to any

erroneous ruling of the trial court that defendant is

not and cannot be, as an individual, a proper party to

a controversy with respect to the subject matter; for

no such ruling was made. On the contrary, the trial

court refused a proposed finding to that effect (De-

fendant's Proposed Finding No. 2; R. 97-98) ten-

dered by defendant. Rather, we suggest that the trial

court erred in failing to include an exj^ress finding

that defendant has a legal interest, and is a proper

and necessary party; although its Findings Nos. I

and III (R. 110), which show that defendant, sued as

an individual, is the Attorney General, who alone is
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empowered and required to enforce the Train-Limit

Law, may have been thought by the court to be ade-

quate.

We have no doubt that defendant will renew his

contention upon this appeal; and it may be expected

that he will again cite the various authorities hereto-

fore relied upon to establish the proposition that it

must appear, as a prime essential to a controversy,

that there are before the Court opposing parties who

have an actual ''legal" interest in the subject matter.

Just how the contention can still be attempted, in view

of the recent prosecution commenced by defendant,

is a problem which will, we think, challenge the in-

genuity of opposing counsel.

As we understand defendant's point, it may be

stated as follows: he is sued here "as an individual";

as such "individual" he is not to be distinguished

from any other citizen of Arizona; in his individual

capacity he has and can have no more interest in the

validity of the Train-Limit Law than any other of his

fellow citizens ; that (individual) interest is so remote

and intangible, at best, as to be of no moment at all;

"as an individual", he has no duties to perform in

connection with the law or its enforcement, and is not

and cannot be affected by or interested in the deter-

mination of its validity; a controversy is therefore

impossible, because of the entire lack of any party,

opposed to plaintiff, who has a real interest in the

subject matter.

When defendant is confronted with the fact that he

is, nevertheless, the Attorney General, upon whom is
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laid by statute the sole duty of enforcing the chal-

lenged law; and that, acting or purporting to act in

that capacity, he has prosecuted plaintiff in the State

Court, defendant replies that the duty of enforcement

is imposed upon him 171 his official capacity, not as an

individual, and that the prosecution has been under-

taken in that (official) capacity; whereas he has been

and is sued, not ^'officially" or ''as Attorney General",

but as an individual only.

In short, defendant says that by suing him "as an

individual", plaintiff has excluded from the case all

consideration of any possible interest which he may
have by reason of his "official" status; furthermore,

that consideration of his official status is foreclosed,

because a suit against him "as an official" would be

barred by the Eleventh Amendment, as a suit against

the State.

Defendant's argument would be much more per-

suasive if it were not so squarely opposed to the prin-

ciples established bj^ a long line of decisions of the

Supreme Court ; the leading case being

:

Ex parte Young (1908), 209 U. S. 123, 52 L. Ed.

714.

Mr. Young, the petitioner in the Supreme Court,

was at the time Attorney General of Minnesota. He
had been named as defendant in a suit in a United

States Circuit Court (then the court of first instance)

seeking to enjoin him and certain co-defendants from

enforcing a state statute challenged as unconstitu-

tional. The Circuit Court issued a temporary injunc-

tion, despite Mr. Young's objection that he could not
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be sued ''as Attorney General" based on the Eleventh

Amendment. Mr. Young disregarded the injunction,

and was thereupon adjudged in contempt. He then

petitioned the Supreme Court for writs of review and

habeas corpus to obtain his discharge.

The Supreme Court, in a lengthy opinion, held that

Mr. Young was not suable as an officer of the state

(i. e., in his ''official" capacity), because of the

Eleventh Amendment ; but said that the suit to enjoin

enforcement of the alleged unconstitutional statute

was not against the state, but against the individual

who, under color of the office, was seeking or attempt-

ing to perform an unconstitutional act ; that his occu-

pancy of the office upon which the state had by law

conferred the power and duty of prosecution under the

challenged statute was sufficient to connect him with

its enforcement, so as to render him a proper, if not a

necessary, party to the suit. Pertinent portions of the

opinion are set forth in the appendix.

In

Truax et al. v. Raich (1915), 239 U. S. 33, 60

L. Ed. 131,

suit was brought against "Wiley E. Jones, Attorney

General of Arizona", and "W. G. Gilmore, County

Attorney of Cochise County, Arizona", as well as

against Truax, seeking to enjoin enforcement of an
alleged unconstitutional law. One of the particular

questions raised by defendants' motion to dismiss was
whether the suit was properly brought against the

Attorney General and the County Attorney. The
Supreme Court said (239 U. S., at p. 37) ;
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"As the bill is framed upon the theory that the

act is unconstitutional, and that defendants, who
are public officers concerned with the enforcement

of the laws of the state, are about to proceed

wrongfully to the complainant's injury through

interference with his employment, it is established

that the suit cannot be regarded as one against

the state. Whatever doubt existed in this class

of cases was removed by the decision in Ex Parte

Young, 209 U. S. 123, * * * which has repeatedly

been followed."

In:

Terrace v, Thompson (1923), 263 U. S. 197, 68

L. Ed. 255,

suit was brought by private individuals against "Lind-

say L. Thompson, Attorney General of the State of

Washington", to enjoin the threatened enforcement

of a state statute on the ground of unconstitutionality.

The Court said (263 U. S., at p. 214) :

"Equity jurisdiction will be exercised to enjoin

the threatened enforcement of a state law which

contravenes the Federal Constitution wherever it

is essential, in order effectually to protect prop-

erty rights and the rights of persons against in-

juries otherwise irremediable ; and in such a case

a person who, as an officer of the state, is clothed

with the duty of enforcing its laws, and who
threatens and is about to commence proceedings,

either civil or criminal, to enforce such a law

against parties affected, may be enjoined from
such action by a Federal court of equity."
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In:

Pierce, as Governor, et al. v. Society of Sisters,

etc. (1925), 268 U. S. 510, 69 L. Ed. 1070,

suit was brought to enjoin the threatened enforcement

of the Oregon Private School Law, the defendants

named being: ''Walter M. Pierce, as Governor of the

State of Oregon; Isaac H. Van Winkle, as Attorney

General of the State of Oregon; Stanley Myers, as

District Attorney of Multnomah County, State of

Oregon." Following its rulings in the Truax and

Terrace Cases, supra, and in numerous others, the

Court held that the suit was properly brought and

might properly be maintained.

Compare

:

Old Colony Trust Co. v. Seattle (1926), 271

U. S. 426, 70 L. Ed. 1019,

in which suit was brought against the individuals

occupying the offices of County Treasurer and County

Sheriff of King County, Washington. The objection

was made that the suit was in both name and effect a

suit against the state; but the Court held (271 U. S.,

p. 431) that this was "only a suit against state agents

to restrain them from wrongful acts threatened and

attempted under color of their agency"; and that the

immunity conferred by the Eleventh Amendment did

not avail.

To the same effect, see also

:

Missouri Pacific R. Co. v. Norwood (1930), 42

F. (2d) 765,

in which suit was brought against Hal Norwood, At-

torney General of the State of Arkansas, and certain
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other prosecuting officers of that state, to enjoin the

enforcement of the Arkansas Full Crew Law. The

Court overruled the defendants' contention that the

suit was against the state, citing the Old Colony, and

Young Cases, among others. This case was subse-

quently appealed to the United States Supreme Court,

and the decision of the lower court affirmed (1931:

283 U. S. 249), though without any discussion of the

matter of jurisdiction. It is clear, however, that juris-

diction was not thought lacking because of the absence

of proper parties to a justiciable controversy.

In:

Municipal Gas Co. v. Public Service Commis-

sion (1919), 225 N. Y. 89, 121 N. E. 772,

(opinion written by Mr. Justice Cardozo, as a member

of the New York Court of Appeals), the principle of

the Young Case was examined and applied ; the court

saying:

''The defendants are public officers charged

with special duties in the enforcement of the stat-

ute. Ex parte Young, 209 U. S. 123, 156, 28 Sup.

Ct. 441, 52 L. Ed. 714, 13 L. R. A. (N. S.) 932, 14

Ann. Cas. 764. They assert a purpose to enforce

it. With them may appropriately be joined rep-

resentatives of the class of consumers, who will

be bound by the decree. Code Civ. Proc. Sec. 448.

In a single comprehensive action, the plaintiff

seeks a judgment which will end the controversy

forever.

''We think the suit is well conceived. With
notable consistency, it has been held, whenever

like controversies have arisen, that equity will
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act. * * * Many of the most distinctive features

of equity jurisdiction are present. * * * There

is the avoidance of multiplicity of actions. There

is the saving of waste and friction. There is the

opportimity to analyze accounts so complex and

vast as to be unintelligible to juries. * * * There

is a protection against penalties that crush and
against losses that cripple. Stress has been laid

at times upon one element and at other times upon
another. But resistance has yielded to their col-

lective force.

''We reach the same conclusion. Undoubtedly,

the plaintiff has some remedy at law. The decisive

point is that it is not as complete or efficient as

the remedy in equity. * * * This is no attempt by
equity to restrain the enforcement of the criminal

law, even if we were to assume that such an ob-

jection would invariably be fatal. * * * The very

purpose of the suit is a declaration of the plain-

tiff's rights which will enable it to shape its con-

duct in conformity to law/* (Emphasis supplied.)

The principle established by this line of decisions

disposes of defendant's argument completely; for, to

paraphrase the language of the Young opinion, the

fact that defendant by virtue of his office is directly

connected with—indeed, has sole responsibility for

—

the enforcement of the challenged act is the important

and material fact ; and the power conferred upon him

by the state to enforce the act (if the act be constitu-

tional) sufficiently connects him with the duty of en-

forcement to make him a proper party to a suit against

him as an individual (although identified, as here, as

the Attorney General) to enjoin such enforcement.
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It may be noted that in each of the cases last above

cited, suit was brought against an individual or group

of individuals occupying state positions, frequently

having the same title as defendant. In most of these

cases the defendants were identified by both their

personal names and their official titles; in some they

were even named ^^as Attorney General". In each

case, however, the defendants were of necessity sued

"as individuals"; they could not have been made

defendants in their official capacities. In the Truax,

Old Colony, and Norwood Cases, particularly, the

courts pointed out, in response to defendants' objec-

tions., that the suits were not against the states, hut

against the individuals, acting under color of their

respective state offices.

It is clear, from these cases, that if defendant had

said to the plaintiff that as Attorney General he in-

tended to and would enforce the Train-Limit Law
against plaintiff in the event of violation, bringing

such proceedings in his official capacity (of course he

could not attempt to bring them in any other ca-

pacity), plaintiff would then be in a position to sue

the defendant as an individual, seeking to enjoin such

threatened prosecution, upon the gromid that defend-

ant intended and threatened to enforce an unconsti-

tutional statute. In such case the defendant, as an

individual, but because of his occupancy of the office

charged with enforcement of the challenged law, would

be a proper and necessary party; and there would be

an actual controversy as to whether the power and

duty of enforcement could be exercised as threatened.
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No question could arise as to the fact of controversy,

even though the suit were against defendant in his

individual, and not his ''official", capacity. In fact,

in the light of the Eleventh Amendment, the suit could

be maintained only as against the individual, but that

restriction would not abate the controversy. The deci-

sions above cited are conclusive.

Defendant, while he cannot avoid the force of the

decisions of which the Young Case is typical, argues

that each of them involved proceedings for an injunc-

tion, predicated on an actual threat to enforce a law

asserted to be unconstitutional; whereas the instant

complaint asks for only a declaratory judgment—^not

an injunction—and no actual threat is either alleged

or shown. In other words, so says defendant, the

essentials of a controversy, in a suit for a declaratory

judgment, and particularly the essential that there be

parties who have actual adversary interests in the

subject matter, are not the same as in a suit for an

injunction; and the authorities which establish that a

state officer who is alleged to have threatened to prose-

cute may bo and is a proper party, as an individual,

to an actual controversy in an injunction suit, are of

no value to support the proposition that a state officer

who is shown to have claimed the right and duty of

prosecution (but has not actually threatened to exer-

cise it) is equally a proper party, as an individual, to

an actual controversy in a suit for declaratory relief.

The fallacy of this argument is easily demonstrated.

Suppose that plaintiff, being faced with a statement

by defendant of his intention to enforce the law,
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brings suit as before, against him as an individual,

alleging the same facts: i. e., the unconstitution-

ality of the law and the threat of enforcement;

but instead of asking for an injunction to pre-

vent the threatened prosecution, it asks for a de-

claratory decree that the law is unconstitutional and

that the threatened power of enforcement does not

exist. Certainly, in those circumstances, there would

be no lack of parties having an actual interest, giving

rise to a justiciable controversy: for the same parties

would be before the court, in the same adversary posi-

tions, as if the suit were for an injunction. The only

difference would be that the plaintiff, instead of seek-

ing the so-called '^ coercive" relief which, if granted,

would require the issuance of process, had sought in-

stead of the ''milder" relief of a judicial declaration

of the rights and powers of the parties. That deter-

mination and declaration would be necessary in any

event, before an injunction could issue : for as pointed

out in the Municipal Gas Company Case, supra:

''The very purpose of the suit is a declaration

of the plaintiff's rights which will enable it to

shape its conduct in conformity to law."

In other words, the difference between a suit for

an injunction, based upon threats of enforcement, and

a suit for a declaratory judgment, similarly based, lies

merely in the remedy sought, and not in any of the

aspects of the case upon which the existence of a

controversy is determined. In seeking to avail itself

of the judicial power to render a declaratory judg-

ment, a plaintiff merely takes advantage of a slightly
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different method of proaedure, to determine exactly

the same basic controversy, the existence of which, if

an injunction had been sought, could not have been

questioned in the light of the controlling decisions.

That the essentials of a controversy are not changed,

merely because declaratory rather than injunctive re-

lief is sought, is squarely established by the Wallace

and Haworth Cases, already cited, and also by:

United States v. West Virginia (1935), 295

U. S. 463 (475), 79 L. ed. 1546.

In the Wallace Case the Court stated the jurisdic-

tional question before it (288 IT. S., at p. 262) :

"Thus the narrow question presented for de-

termination is whether the controversy before us,

which would he justiciable in this Court if pre-

sented in a suit for injunction, is any the less so

because through a modified procedure appellant

has heen permitted to present it in the state

courts, without praying for an injunction or al-

leging that irreparable injury will result from
the collection of the tax."

The Court answered that question in the negative,

by saying (at p. 264) :

"The issues raised here are the same as those

which under old forms of procedure could be
raised only in a suit for an injunction or one to

recover the tax after its payment. But the Con-
stitution does not require thai the casie or con-

troversy should he presented hy traditional forms
of procedure, invoking only traditional remedies.

The judiciary clause of the Constitution defined
amd limited judicial power, not the particular
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method by which that power might be invoked. It

did not crystallize into changeless form the pro-

cedure of 1789 as the only possible means for

presenting a case or controversy otherwise cog-

nizable by the federal courts. * * * As the prayer

for relief by injunction is not a necessary pre-

requisite to the exercise of judicial power, allega-

tions of threatened irreparable injury which are

material only if an injunction is asked, may like-

wise be dispensed with if, in other respects, the

controversy presented is, as in this case, real and
substantial." (Emphasis supplied.)

In the Haworth Case, it was said, with particular

reference to the very statute under which the instant

case is presented (300 U. S., at pp. 239-241) :

''The Declaratory Judgment Act of 1934, in its

limitation to 'cases of actual controversy,' mani-

festly has regard to the constitutional provision

and is operative only in respect to controversies

which are such in the constitutional sense. The
word 'actual' is one of emphasis rather than of

definition. Thus the operation of the Declaratory

Judgment Act is procedural only. In providing

remedies and defining procedure in relation to

cases and controversies in the constitutional sense

the Congress is acting within its delegated power
over the jurisdiction of the federal courts which

the Congress is authorized to establish. (Citing

cases.) Exercising this control of practice and
procedure the Congress is not confined to tradi-

tional forms or traditional remedies. * * *

a* * * ^here there is such a concrete case ad-

mitting of an immediate and definitive determina-

tion of the legal rights of the parties in an ad-
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versary proceeding upon the facts alleged, the

judicial function may he appropriately exercised

although the adjudication of the rights of the

litigants may not require the award of process

or the payment of damages. (Citing cases.) And
as it is not essential to the exercise of the judicial

power that an injunction he sought, allegations

that irreparahle injury is threatened are not re-

quired." (Emphasis supplied.)

In the West Virginia Case the Court said (295

U. S., at p. 475) :

"It is enough that that (Federal Declaratory

Judgment) act is applicable only 'in cases of

actual controversy'. It does not purport to alter

the character of the controversies which are the

subject of the judicial power under the Constitu-

tion." (Emphasis supplied.)

These decisions leave no doubt that if a justiciable

controversy exists between a private citizen, such as

plaintiff, on the one hand, and, on the other, an in-

dividual such as defendant who is clothed by the State

with authority to enforce its laws, in a case where an

injunction is sought, such a controversy continues to

exist and a federal court has jurisdiction thereof, in

a case in which the substituted procedure provided by

the Declaratory Judgments Act is followed, and

declaratory relief is asked for, rather than the so-

called coercive relief of injunction. The essentials of

a controversy remain the same; the essential and

necessary parties thereto are not changed; and if a

state officer sued in his individual capacity is a proper

and necessary party to an injunction suit, he continues
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to be a proper and necessary party when the altered

procedure leading to declaratory relief is followed.

This, we believe, is precisely the essence of the Su-

preme Court decisions just cited. The point is well

illustrated by the opinion of the Fifth Circuit Court

of Appeals in:

Gully V. Interstate Natural Gas Co., supra,

in which it was said (82 F. (2d) 145, 149) :

''When, then, an actual controversy exists, of

which, if coercive relief could be granted in it

the federal courts would have jurisdiction, they

may take jurisdiction under this statute, of the

controversy to grant the relief of declaration,

either before or after the stag^ of relief by coer-

cion has been reached."

It may be noted that in the Gully Case the com-

plainant had originally sought an injunction against

certain state officers; but a supplementary complaint

asking for declaratory relief was later filed. The Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals held that the trial court had

properly taken jurisdiction of both the original com-

plaint for an injunction, and the supplementary com-

plaint for declaratory relief. The Supreme Court

later denied a writ of review; and the Circuit Court's

decision was cited with apparent approval in the

opinion in the Haworth Case: 300 U. S., at p. 244.

Compare also, the recent decision in:

Sovereign Camp v. Wilentz, supra,

in which the complaint as filed named as defendants

the Attorney General of New Jersey and certain other

state officials. The complaint was in four counts, the
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first three of which asked for injunctive relief, while

the fourth asked for both declaratory and injunctive

relief. The Court took jurisdiction of all four counts,

holding that an actual controversy existed under the

facts stated in the fourth count, as well as in the

other three.

We have thus far discussed the question of defend-

ant's actual interest, and consequent competency as a

party to the controversy, upon the basis of the record

in the trial court, without reference to the facts

brought before this Court by plaintiff's motion to re-

mand and defendant's response thereto: i. e., the prose-

cution of plaintiff in the state court, based on alleged

violations of the Train-Limit Law; and defendant's

contemporaneous public announcement of his belief

in the validity of the law, and thus in the legal ex-

istence of the right and duty of prosecution. If there

were any possible doubt of defendant's actual in-

terest in the subject matter, these events should set it

completely at rest: defendant is now in exactly the

same position as were the various state officers in the

several cases cited above, of which Ex parte Young
is the leading example.

Defendant meets the present situation, however, by

continuing to contend, as we understand him, that his

action in the state court is officially undertaken,

whereas he comes to the Federal Courts, if at all,

only '*as an individual"; that his official acts are en-

tirely distinct from his individual acts, and have no
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bearing whatever upon his individual position, nor any

materiality in this suit against him "in his individual

capacity".

It will be apparent at once that defendant's con-

tention both supplies whatever elements of con-

troversy may hitherto have been lacking, even accept-

ing his own previous argument, and at the same time

provides a ready-made answer to that controversy.

Of necessity defendant can contend that the state court

prosecution is an ''official" act, only if he also con-

tends that the law authorizing such prosecutions is

constitutional. If it is unconstitutional, then under

all the decisions his action, though under color of his

office, is still not the official act of a state officer, but

merely of an individual acting in the guise of the

state office. The primary question in controversy is

precisely whether defendant can ''officially" exercise

the power of prosecution; so that by asserting his

official status defendant really begs the very question

in suit.

It may be, however, that defendant, in order to

maintain his position that no controversy here exists,

will continue to assert that, "as an individual", he

admits that the law is invalid. If so, there is still no

lack of controversy; for then there will admittedly be

before the Court two parties: (1) plaintiff, asserting

that it is constitutionally protected against prosecu-

tion for operating "long" trains, and (2) defendant,

asserting the right, and endeavoring, to maintain and

carry on ^uch prosecution. Moreover, defendant will

then be admittedly acting in an individual capacity.
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precisely the capacity in which he is sued in this

Court; because if he admits unconstitutionality of the

law, he thereby admits that in his conduct of the state

prosecutions he cannot be acting officially.

Thus, whichever position defendant adopts, his ac-

tion in having prosecuted plaintiff in the state court

cannot be dissociated from his presence in the federal

court ; but, on the contrary, when taken with all other

matters of record, establishes that an actual con-

troversy, between competent parties, exists and has

existed herein from the time that the suit was com-

menced.

4. IN THE EVENT THE COURT IS NOT PERSUADED TO RE-

VERSE THE DECREE UPON THE BASIS OF THE RECORD
BEFORE IT, THE CAUSE SHOULD BE REMANDED FOR
FURTHER PROCEEDINGS, AS PROPOSED BY PLAINTIFF'S

MOTION TO REMAND, HERETOFORE FILED.

In response to the suggestion of this court, in its

order herein on June 19, 1940, plaintiff now renews its

motion to remand the cause for the purpose of per-

mitting a supplemental complaint to be filed and a

supplemental showing made, relating to events which

have taken place since the appeal to this Court was

perfected. The events to which we refer are, as here-

tofore shown in support of the motion, the commence-

ment of prosecutions under the Train-Limit Law, un-

dertaken by defendant as Attorney General, on April

19, 1940, and an accompanying announcement, made

by defendant on the same date, to the effect that he

believed the Train-Limit Law to be valid and that

power and duty to prosecute for each violation were

vested in him.
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The motion is presented in the alternative; i. e., to

be granted only if this Court is not disposed to reverse

the judgment on the record as made, or to give con-

sideration at this time to said subsequent events in

deciding this appeal.

In the memorandum heretofore filed supporting the

motion, we have cited numerous authorities which es-

tablish that the remand of a cause for supplementary

proceedings, when appeal has been taken, is the proper

course to be followed in those cases where events have

taken place since the trial court record was closed and

the appeal taken, which have material bearing upon

the determination of the cause and might, if of record,

lead to a wholly different result. The leading case

declaring this principle is

:

Ballard v. Searls (1889), 130 U. S. 50, 32 L.

Ed. 846.

Other cases supporting the same view include:

Drainage District No. 7 v. Sternberg (CCA.
8th, 1926), 15 F. (2d) 41 (44-45)

;

Jensen v. Netv York Life Ins. Co. (CCA. 8th,

1931), 50 F. (2d) 512 (514-515);

Simonds v. Norwich Union Indemnity Co.

(CCA. 8th, 1934), 73 F. (2d) 412;

Central California Canneries Co. v. Dunkley Co.

(CCA. 9th, 1922), 282 Fed. 406 (412) ;

Levinson v. United States (CCA. 6th, 1929),

32 F. (2d) 449 (450) ;

Isgrig v. United States (CCA. 4th, 1939), 109

F. (2d) 131.
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These and other authorities declare that supple-

mentary proceedings, such as plaintiff proposes, are

proper when it appears that they tend to confirm a

good cause of action originally pleaded.

Jenkins v. Intenmtiofial Bank (1888), 127 U.

S. 484 (488-489), 32 L. ed. 189;

Texarkmia v. Arkansas Gas Co. (1939), 306

U. S. 188 (203) ; 83 L. ed. 598;

Napier v. Westerhoff (1907), 153 Fed. 985;

Kryptok Co. v. Hmissmann & Co. (1914), 216

Fed. 267;

Insurance Finance Corp. v. Phoenix Securities

Corp. (1929), 32 F. (2d) 711, 712;

l7iternatio7ial By. Co. v. Prendergast (1928),

29 F. (2d) 296, 298.

The filing of a supplemental pleading setting forth

transactions, occurrences or events which have hap-

pened since the date of the pleading sought to be sup-

plemented, is of course authorized by Rule 15(d) of

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. In the recent

Texarkana Case, cited supra, the Supreme Court re-

ferred to that rule, and said (306 U. S., at p. 203) :

"Where there is a good cause of action stated

in the original bill, a supplemental bill setting up
facts subsequently occurring which justify other

or further relief is proper."

It is hardly open to question that the complaint in

the instant case does set up a good cause of action.

The record shows (R. 46) that defendant filed a mo-
tion to dismiss for failure to state a good cause of
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action, which motion was overruled by the trial court

(R. 52) ; and defendant thereafter elected to answer

and go to trial. The adverse judgment against plain-

tiff was Hot rendered because of any failure to set

forth a sufficient cause of action, but solely because

plaintiff did not establish, to the satisfaction of the

trial court, the fact of an actual and substantial dis-

pute between the parties with respect to the subject

matter.

In particular, the Federal Courts have often held

that where a cause has been tried and determined, as

this case has, upon the substantive issues, but there

appears a failure of proof of essential jurisdictional

facts, the cause will not be dismissed, but remanded

to the trial court to permit necessary supplementary

proceedings, such as the filing of an amended or sup-

plemental pleading with respect to such jurisdictional

facts; which issue of jurisdiction may then be tried.

Parker Washington Co. v. Cramer (CCA. 7th,

1912), 201 Fed. 878,879;

Chicago, Rock Island & Pacific Ry. Co. v.

Stevens (CCA. 6th, 1914), 218 Fed. 535,

540-541;

Chicago & A. R. Co. v. Allen (CCA. 7th,

1917), 249 Fed. 280, 284-285;

Ward V. Morrow (CCA. 8th, 1926), 15 F.

(2d) 660, 662-663;

Coppedge v. Clinton (CCA. 10th, 1934), 72

F. (2d) 531, 536.

Defendant does not challenge or deny plaintiff's

showing of the subsequent facts. He shows, however,
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that, at his instance, the state court issued an order

staying all prosecutions of plaintiff for alleged train-

limit violations, except the prosecution just com-

menced, until the latter be determined. That stay

order does not of course prevent the irreparable dam-

age to plaintiff caused by daily compliance with the

law.

Defendant has opposed our motion on four grounds

:

(1) That the supplementary showing is imma-

terial, and in reality an attempt to set up a new cause

of action;

(2) That such showing does not and cannot cure

the want of jurisdiction allegedlj^ existing when the

complaint was filed;

(3) That such showing affirmatively indicates that

the amount in controversy is less than $3,000.00, and

that jurisdiction is therefore lacking; and

(4) That defendant, sued as an individual, has

and can have no interest sufficient to make him a party

to a controversy with plaintiff respecting the Train-

Limit Law, and therefore the remand of the cause

would be useless.

Defendant predicates his first point upon his posi-

tion that this suit is against him in his 'individual"

capacity ; whereas the state court prosecution has been

undertaken, and the public statement issued, so it is

said, in his "official" capacity. This general conten-

tion has been discussed in the last preceding subdivi-

sion, and need not be further reviewed. It is suffi-

cient to say again that the ultimate question in the



90

case is whether defendant can act ^'officially"—i. e.,

within constitutional limits—in prosecuting plaintiff

or threatening it with prosecutions for penalties un-

der the challenged law ; and when defendant contends

that he is so acting, he demonstrates the existence of

an actual controversy with plaintiff, as to whether the

claimed '' official" action has due and legal sanction

under the Constitution.

The argument that the proposed showing attempts

to set up a new cause of action misses the point en-

tirely. Plaintiff is not proposing to sue defendant

anew, because of these subsequent acts, but only to

employ them as conclusive evidence to support its

position as stated throughout this suit: namely, that

from the beginning the parties have maintained op-

posing claims respecting a subject matter in which

defendant, by virtue of his office, has a direct legal

interest (Ex parte Yowng, supra).

In arguing that the supplementary matters can not

cure the want of jurisdiction allegedly existing when

the case was commenced, defendant really addresses

himself to the weight, rather than the pertinency, of

the proposed showing. We repeat that jurisdiction

was found lacking in this cause for one reason only:

that the record failed, in the view of the trial court,

to show sufficiently that the parties actually main-

tained opposing views. The question now is whether

these subsequent facts, when considered together with

all other facts of record reflecting defendant's claims

and opinions, overcome that supposed failure of proof.

That question is essentially for the trial court to de-
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termine; this Court need only consider whether the

showing will reasonably tend to that end. Compare

:

Ballard v. Searls, supra;

Jensen v. New York Life Ins. Co., supra

;

Central California Canneries Co. v. Dunkley

Co., supra.

In the Central California Canneries Co. Case this

Court said (282 Fed., at p. 412) :

'

' Regarding the defendant 's petition for review

as in effect an application for leave to the lower

court to entertain a petition for a rehearing ( Sim-

mons Co. V. B. S. Grier Bros. Co., supra), we are

of the opinion that the defendants should be au-

thorized to file in the lower court an appropriate

petition for a rehearing, and that coui-t should be

authorized to entertain and make disposition of

the same, according to equity, upon considerations

addressed to the materiality of the new matter

and diligence in its presentation, without restraint

by reason of any proceedings heretofore had or

orders made in this court; and it is so ordered."

Circuit Judge Hunt, concurring in the opinion of

the Court, said further

:

''While I believe the appellate court in the

exercise of a discretion has the power to decide

that the bill, which is in the nature of a bill of

review or motion for rehearing upon the ground
of newly discovered evidence, may be filed, yet it

is proper practice for such court to go no further

than to hold that a sufficient showing is made to

warrant it in granting to petitioner permission

to apply to the District Court for leave to file the

bill or motion (citing cases)."
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The materiality and probative value of the supple-

mentary showing, while not open to serious question,

may be demonstrated, if we assume a prosecution

commenced prior to the trial instead of afterward.

Suppose, for illustration, that the cause had progressed

up to and including the pre-trial conference, exactly

as shown by the record; and that plaintiff, following

that conference, and relying upon defendant's admis-

sions of unconstitutionality, had at once commenced

operating long trains; that defendant, acting "offi-

cially", had thereupon immediately initiated prosecu-

tions in the state court, also at the same time making

a public announcement of his beliefs, such as actually

made on April 19, 1940. There would be no doubt, if

the trial were held thereafter, that these matters would

be competent and material evidence upon the question

of ''actual controversy"; and we think it equally clear

that the same matters are just as material, and just

as properly to be shown, although occurring after, in-

stead of before, the trial and entry of decree in the

lower court.

In his opposition, defendant lays great stress upon

the decision in

:

M. & St. L. R. n. Go. V. P. d P. Union Ry. Co.

(1926), 270 U. S. 580, 70 L. Ed. 743.

In that case the Supreme Court denied a motion to

remand for the purpose of showing subsequent facts,

upon the ground that ''the later facts alleged could

not conceivably affect the result of the case before us",

saying also that jurisdiction was dependent upon the

state of facts existing at the time the suit was brought.
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The case is clearly of little assistance to defendant;

for the later facts here set forth do not merely show

the existence of a controversy as of the dcute of the

commencement of the prosecution; they tend strongly

to confirm plaintiff's contention that defendant has

altvays claimed to have the power and duty of prose-

cution, and always intended to exercise that power, if

occasion arose. We are here necessarily dealing with

proof addressed to a ''state of mind", viewed in the

light of defendant's statutory obligation, and as evi-

denced by his acts or declarations. The Court of Civil

Appeals of Texas said in

:

Shaw V. Cone (1933), 56 S. W. (2d) 667 (at p.

671):

''The generally recognized rule is that, where
the issue is a state of mind with which a person

acts, both parties should be allowed a wide field

in proving the general course of the person's con-

duct under investigation, with each detail and
ramification which might tend to color the con-

duct or characterize the intent which actuated it.

U. S. Fidelity & Guaranty Co. v. Egg Shippers'

Strawboard & Filler Co. (C. C. A. 8th, 1906) 148

F. 353; Massillon Mortgage Co. v. Independent
Indemnity Co. (1930) 37 Ohio App. 148, 174 N. E.

167."

Defendant supports his third point—that the sup-

plementary showing will demonstrate that the amount

in controversy is less than $3000.00—by arguing that

the action in the state court involves only two alleged

violations, so that the total penalties imposed iipon

plaintiff therein could not exceed $2000.00. Reference
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is also made to defendant's sworn statement that he

will not institute any further prosecutions under the

law, and to the stay order issued by the state court

restraining any such further prosecutions. In this

behalf defendant cites certain decisions of the Su-

preme Court which hold, generally, that when suit is

brought to restrain the collection of taxes or license

fees, the amount in controversy is measured by the

amount of the taxes in dispute; and in such cases

taxes or other fees which might be due in other years,

or for other operations, cannot be considered.

The most recent of the cases cited by defendant is

Healy v. Ratta (1934), 292 U. S. 263, 78 L. Ed. 1248.

That case was brought to restrain local officers from

enforcing an ordinance, imposing local licenses on

door-to-door salesmen. It did not appear that the

statute prohibited the activities of such salesmen, but

only that the license fee was deemed to be excessive.

The case is clearly not in point here, and indeed de-

fendant's entire argument is wholly without merit,

because

:

(a) The instant suit was not brought to restrain

defendant from collecting any fees or licenses from

plaintiff, exacted for the privilege of doing business,

or to restrain defendant from prosecuting plaintiff

for conducting business without first securing a li-

cense. The purpose of this suit is to obtain a decree

establishing the invalidity of a statute which com-

mands a direct restriction of plaintiff's business, with-

out reference to the payment of a tax or penalty. The

statute is mandatory in its prohibition, not permissive

;
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it does not authorize or license plaintiff to operate

long trains in consideration of a tax or fee.

(b) In a suit involving the invalidity of a re-

strictive statute such as the Train-Limit Law, the

right to carry on the business free of the restriction,

or the injury done to the business by operation of the

restriction, is the matter in controversy; and the

value of the right or injury is the measure of the

value or amount in controversy. In

:

Healy v. Ratta, supra,

the Court said (292 U. S., at p. 269)

:

**Where a challenged statute commands the

suppression or restriction of a business without

reference to the payment of any tax, the right to

do the business, or the injury to it, is the matter
in controversy."

See also

:

Bitterman v. L. d N. R. R. Co. (1907), 207 U.

S. 205 (225),52L. Ed. 171;

Glemvood L. & W. Co. v. Muttml Light, etc., Co.

(1915), 239 U. S. 121 (125, 126), 60 L. Ed.

174;

Western <k Atlantic R. R. v. Railroad Commis-
sion (1923), 261 U. S. 264 (267), 67 L. Ed.

645;

Adam v. New York Trust Co. (1930), 37 F.

(2d) 826.

(b) It is alleged (complaint, pars. Il-b, V-h, VI-c

:

R. 4, 19-20, 23-24), admitted (R. 82-84), and found

(R. 113, 114) that the value of the right sought to be

established, i. e., the plaintiff's constitutional right to
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operate its properties free of the restrictions of the

Law, and the value or amount of the injury done to

plaintiff by reason of the law's limitations, is greatly

in excess of $3000.00, and in fact in excess of $300,-

000.00 per year.

Defendant's fourth point—his alleged lack of in-

terest, as an individual, in the subject matter of the

suit, and his consequent inability to be an effective

party in that capacity to a justiciable controversy

—has already been reviewed at length. We may point

out again that this contention has been strongly

pressed—has in* fact been defendant's principal argu-

ment—from the very beginning of the case. It is

predicated, as we have shown, upon the proposition,

persistently advanced, that defendant as an individual

is wholly distinct from defendant as the Attorney

General, and that whatever may be done or said by

him in either capacity has no bearing upon or relation

to what he may say or do in the other. While the

fallacy of this argument is obvious, yet its significance

should not be overlooked. It demonstrates that de-

fendant's action in prosecuting the plaintiff as soon

as the occasion arose was only the culmination of a

determination long since arrived at—probably when

defendant first took his oath of office; but since that

determination was, in defendant's view, ''officially"

made, it did not in his opinion bear any relation to

his position as an individual ; and when sued in the

latter capacity, he could still, and did, disclaim any

interest, and even as an individuM admit that the law

was and is invalid.
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We respectfully urge the Court, in the event it

concludes that upon the record as made, or considera-

tion as well of the subsequent matters now placed be-

fore it by plaintiff's motion and defendant's response,

that it is unwilling to reverse the judgment, to remand

the cause to the trial court, with directions to permit

plaintiff to file a supplemental complaint and make a

supplementary showing, all as contemplated by plain-

tiff's original motion.

CONCLUSION. -

This case presents an unusual, thougn^nprecedented

situation.

There are before the Court, on the one hand, a plain-

tiff suffering the oppression of an admittedly void

statute, which imposes heavy and continuing irrep-

arable damage; on the other, a defendant who, though

admitting his official connection with and sole re-

sponsibility for the enforcement of the void statute,

denies that as the individual who occupies such office

he has any interest in the statute or its enforcement.

On that ground alone, and because he was sued ''as

an individual", defendant claims that no controversy

exists with respect to his purported power and duty

of prosecution; this, even though he has actually

prosecuted plaintiff ''officially", at once when the

occasion arose, and now continues to maintain that

prosecution.

The case clearly calls for a judgment which will

expose and condemn the fallacious pretense upon

which defendant rests his case.
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The record in the lower court is in our view com-

plete; no further trial is required. All that is needed

is that the judgment be reversed with directions to

the trial court to make and render a finding and con-

clusion to the effect that an actual controversy is

established. Judgment and decree in plaintiff's favor

will then follow as of course, based upon the other

findings of fact already made.

However, if this Court should feel that a finding of

the existence of a controversy will be strengthened or

further supported by evidence of the overt acts, which

evidence would be fully admissible had such acts been

committed on the eve of trial, then we ask that the

case be remanded for appropriate pleading and proof.

Dated, San Fl'ancisco, California,

July 11, 1940.

Respectfully submitted,

Alexander B. Baker,

Louis B. Whitney,

c. w. durbrow,

Henxey C. Booth,

Burton Mason,

Attorneys for Appellant.

(Appendix Follows.)
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The Federal Declaratory Judgments Act (28

U. S. Code 400) :

*'Sec. 400. (Judicial Code section 274d.) Declara-

tory judgments authorized
;
procedure

:

(1) In cases of actual controversy except with re-

spect to Federal taxes the courts of the United States

shall have power upon petition, declaration, complaint,

or other appropriate pleadings to declare rights and

other legal relations of any interested party petition-

ing for such declaration, whether or not further re-

lief is or could be prayed, and such declaration shall

have the force and effect of a final judgment or decree

and be reviewable as such.

(2) Further relief based on a declaratory judg-

ment or decree may be granted whenever necessary

or proper. The application shall be by petition to a

court having jurisdiction to grant the relief. If the

application be deemed sufficient, the court shall, on

reasonable notice, require any adverse party, whose

rights have been adjudicated by the declaration, to

show cause why further relief should not be granted

forthwith.

(3) When a declaration of right or the granting

of further relief based thereon shall involve the de-

termination of issues of fact triable by a jury, such

issues may be submitted to a jury in the form of in-

terrogatories, with proper instructions by the court,

whether a general verdict be required or not. (Mar.

3, 1911, c. 231, Sec. 274d, as added June 14, 1934, c.



11

512, 48 Stat. 955; as amended Aug. 30, 1935, c. 829,

Sec. 405, 49 Stat. 1027.)"

The Arizona Train-Limit Law (Arizona Re-

vised Statutes, 1928, Sec. 647)

:

''Section 1. It shall be unlawful for any person,

firm, association, company or corporation, operating

any railroad in the state of Arizona, to run, or permit

to be run, over his, their, or its line of road, or any

portion thereof, any train consisting of more than

seventy freight, or other cars, exclusive of caboose.

''Section 2. It shall be unlawful for any person,

firm, association, company or corporation, operating

any railroad in the state of Arizona, to run, or permit

to be run, over his, their, or its line of road, or any

portion thereof, any passenger train consisting of

more than fourteen cars.

"Section 3. Any person, firm, association, company

or corporation, operating any railroad in the state

of Arizona, who shall wilfully violate any of the pro-

visions of this act, shall be liable to the state of Ari-

zona for a penalty of not less than one hundred dol-

lars, nor more than one thousand dollars, for each

offense ; and such penalty shall be recovered, and suits

therefore brought by the attorney general, or under

his direction, in the name of the state of Arizona,

in any county through which such railroad may be

run or operated, provided, however, that this act shall

not apply in cases of engine failures between terminals.

"Section 4. All acts and parts of acts in conflict

with the provisions of this act are hereby repealed."
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EXCERPTS FROM OPINIONS IN CASES CITED IN THE
ARGUMENT.

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth (C. C. A., 8th,

1936), 84 F. (2d) 695 (at p. 697) :

**It will be noted from an examination of the

statement served upon plaintiff that no suit is

threatened and no demand made by the defend-

ants. The defendants simply assert that the poli-

cies are in force and effect. The apprehension of

the plaintiff is that suit will be brought against it

at some time prior to the running of the statute of

limitations.

**We are impressed that the situation thus pre-

sented by the petition amounts to no more than

an 'assumed potential invasion' of plaintiff's

rights, and that it does not for this reason present

a justiciable controversy. State of Arizona v.

California, 283 U. S. 423, 462, 51 S. Ct. 522, 75

L. Ed. 1154. The judicial power of the federal

courts does not extend to the giving of mere ad-

visory opinions or the determination of abstract

propositions. State of Alabama v. Arizona, 291

U. S. 286, 291, 54 S. Ct. 399, 78 L. Ed. 798; United

States V. West Virginia, 295 U. S. 463, 474, 55 S.

Ct. 789, 79 L. Ed. 1546; State of New Jersey v.

Sargent, 269 U. S. 328, 338, 46 S. Ct. 122, 125, 70

L. Ed. 289. To present an 'actual controversy'

within the constitutional meaning of that phrase

there must he a statement of facts showing that

the defendant is acting or is threatening to act in

such a wa/y as to invade, or prejudicially affect, the

rights of the plaintiff. The Declaratory Judgment

Act does not change the essential requisites for the

exercise of judicial power nor alter the character

of controversies which are the subject of judicial



IV

power under the Constitution, Ashwander v.

Tennessee Valley Authority, 297 U. S. 288, 325,

56 S. Ct. 466, 472, 80 L. Ed ; United States v.

West Virginia, 295 U. S. 463, 475, 55 S. Ct. 789, 79

L. Ed. 1546." (Emphasis supplied.)

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth (1937), 300

U. S. 227 (at pp. 239-241, 242-244), 81 L. Ed.

617:

**The Declaratory Judgment Act must be

deemed to fall within this ambit of congressional

power, so far as it authorizes relief which is con-

sonant with the exercise of the judicial function

in the determination of controversies to which

under the Constitution the judicial power extends.

*'A * controversy' in this sense must be one that

is appropriate for judicial determination. Oshom
V. United States Bamk, 9 Wheat. 738, 819. A
justiciable controversy is thus distinguished from

a difference or dispute of a hypothetical or ab-

stract character; from one that is academic or

moot. United States v. Alaska S. S. Co., 253 U. S.

113, 116. The controversy must be definite and
concrete, touching the legal relations of parties

having adverse legal interests. South Spring Gold

Co. V. Amador Gold Co., 145 U. S. 300, 301 ; Fair-

child V. Hughes, 258 U. S. 126, 129 ; Massachusetts

V. Mellon, 262 U. S. 447, 487, 488. It must be a

real and substantial controversy admitting of spe-

cific relief through a decree of a conclusive char-

acter, as distinguished from an opinion advising

what the law would be upon a hypothetical state

of facts. See Muskrat v. United States, supra;

Texas v. Interstate Commerce Comm'n, 258 U. S.

158, 162; New Jersey v. Sargent, 269 U. S. 328,
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339, 340; Liberty Warehouse Co. v. Grannis, 273

U. S. 70; New York v. Illinois, 274 U. S. 488, 490;

Willing v. Chicago Auditorium Assn., 277 U. S.

274, 289, 290; Arizo^m v. California, 283 U. S. 423,

463, 464; Alabama v. Arizona, 291 U. S. 286, 291;

United States v. West Virgiriia, 295 U. S. 463, 474,

475; Ashtvander v. Tennessee Valley Authority,

297 U. S. 288, 324. Where there is such a con-

crete case admitting of an immediate and defini-

tive determination of the legal rights of the par-

ties in an adversary proceeding upon the facts

alleged, the judicial function may be appropri-

ately exercised although the adjudication of the

rights of the litigants may not require the award

of process or the payment of damages. Nashville,

C. & St. L. Ry. Co. V. Wallace, supra, p. 263;

Tutun V. United States, 270 U. S. 568, 576, 577;

Fidelity National Bcmk v. Swope, 274 U. S. 123,

132 ; Old Colony Tru^t Co. v. Commissioner, supra,

p. 725. And as it is not essential to the exercise

of the judicial power that cm injunction be sought,

allegatioyis that irreparable injury is threatened

are not required. Nashville, C. d; St. L. By. Co. v.

Wallace, supra, p. 264." * * *

''There is here a dispute between parties who
face each other in an adversary proceeding. The

dispute relates to legal rights and obligations aris-

ing from the contracts of insurance. The dispute

is definite and concrete, not hypothetical or ab-

stract. Prior to this suit, the parties had taken

adverse positions with respect to the disability

benefits which were to be payable upon prescribed

conditions. On the one side, the insured claimed

that he had become totally and permanently dis-

abled and hence was relieved of the obligation to

continue the payment of premiums and was en-
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titled to the stipulated disability benefits and to

the continuance of the policies in force. The in-

sured presented this claim formally, as required

by the policies. It was a claim of a present, spe-

cific right. On the other side, the company made
an equally definite claim that the alleged basic fact

did not exist, that the insured was not totally and
permanently disabled and had not been relieved

of the duty to continue the payment of premiums,
that in consequence the policies had lapsed, and
that the company was thus freed from its obliga-

tion either to pay disability benefits or to continue

the insurance in force. Such a dispute is mani-

festly susceptible of judicial determination. It

calls, not for an advisory opinion upon a hypo-

thetical basis, but for an adjudication or present

right upon established facts.*******
*^If the insured had brought suit to recover the

disability benefits currently payable under two of

the policies there would have been no question that

the controversy was of a justiciable nature,

whether or not the amount involved would have

permitted its determination in a federal court.

Again, on repudiation by the insurer of liability

in such a case and insistence by the insured that

the repudiation was unjustified because of his dis-

ability, the insured would have 'such an interest

in the preservation of the contracts that he might

maintain a suit in equity to declare them still in

being.' (Citing cases.) But the character of the

controversy and of the isue to be determined is

essentially the same whether it is presented by the

insured or by the insurer. Whether the District

Court may entertain such a suit by the insurer,

when the controversy as here is between citizens
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of different States or otherwise is within the

range of the federal judicial power, is for the

Congress to determine. It is the nature of the con-

troversy, not the method of its presentation or the

particular party who presents it, that is deter-

minative. See Gully v. Interstate Natural Gas Co.,

82 F. (2d) 145, 149; Travelers Insurance Co. v.

Helmer, 15 F. Supp. 355, 356; New York Life

Insurance Co. v. London, 15 F. Supp. 586, 589."

(Emphasis supplied.)

Nashville, Chattanooga <£• St. Louis By. Co. v.

Wallace (1933), 288 U. S. 249 (at pp. 261-

262), 77 L. Ed. 730:

**That the issues thus raised and judicially de-

termined would constitute a case or controversy

if raised and decided in a suit brought by the tax-

payer to enjoin collection of the tax cannot be

questioned. See Risty v. Chicago, R. I. <f P. Ry.

Co., 270 U. S. 378; compare Terrace v. Thompson,
263 U. S. 197; Pierce v. Society of Sisters, 268

U. S. 510; Euclid v. AmUer Realty Co., 272 U. S.

365. The proceeding terminating in the decree

below, unlike that in South Spring Hill Gold

Mining Co. v. Amador Medean Gdld Mining Co.,

145 U. S. 300; Muskrat v. United States, 219 U. S,

346, was between adverse parties, seeking a deter-

mination of their legal rights upon the facts

alleged in the bill and admitted by the demurrer.

Unlike Fairchild v. Hughes, 258 U. S. 126 ; Texas

V. Interstate Commerce Commission, 258 U. S.

158 ; Massachusetts v. Mellon, 262 U. S. 447 ; New
Jersey v. Sargent, 269 U. S. 328, valuable legal

rights asserted by the complainant and threatened

with imminent invasion by appellees, will be di-

rectly affected to a specific and substantial degree
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by the decision of the question of law ; and unlike

Luther v. Borden, 7 How. 1 ; Field v. Clark, 143

U. S. 649; Pacific States Telephone & Telegraph

Co. V. Oregon, 223 U. S. 118; Keller v. Potomac
Electric Power Co., 261 U. S. 428 ; Federal Radio
Commission v. General Electric Co., 281 U. S. 464,

the question lends itself to judicial detemiination

and is of the kind which this Court traditionally

decides. The relief sought is a definitive adjudica-

tion of the disputed constitutional right of the

appellant, in the circumstances alleged, to be free

from the tax, see Old Colony Trust Co. v. Commis-
sioner, 279 U. S. 716, 724; and that adjudication

is not, as in Gordon v. United States, 2 Wall. 561,

and Postum Cereal Co. v. California Fig Nut Co.,

272 U. S. 693, subject to revision by some other

and more authoritative agency. Obviously the ap-

pellant, whose duty to pay the tax will be deter-

mined by the decision of this case, is not attempt-

ing to secure an abstract determination by the

Court of the validity of a statute, compare Musk-
rat V. United States, supra, 361; Texas v. Inter-

state Commerce Commission, supra, 162; or a

decision advising what the law would be on an

uncertain or hypothetical state of facts, as was
thought to be the case in Liberty Warehouse Co. v.

Grannis, 273 U. S. 70, and Willing v. Chicago

Auditorium Assn., 277 U. S. 274; see also Ware-

house Cao. v. Tobacco Growers Assn., 276 U. S. 71,

88 ; compare Arizona v. California, 283 U. S. 423,

463."
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Gully V. Interstate Natural Gas Co. (1936), 82

F. (2d) 145 (149) (cited with approval by

the Supreme Court in the Haworth Case, 300

U. S., at p. 244) :

''When, then, an actual controversy exists, of

which, if coercive relief could be granted in it

the federal courts would have jurisdiction, they

may take jurisdiction under this statute, of the

controversy to grant the relief of declaration,

either before or after the stage of relief by co-

ercion has been reached. (Citing cases.) * * *

"We see no reason why the statute should not,

we think it should, be given the prophylactic scope

to which its language, in the light of its purpose,

extends, under which disputants as to whose rights

there is actual controversy, may obtain a binding

judicial declaration as to them, before damage
has actually been suffered, and without having to

make the showing of irreparable injury and the

law's inadequacy required for the granting of

ordinary preventive relief in equity. Though be-

fore the enactment of statutes of this kind declar-

atory relief was not of a general wideness, it is

neither new nor strange in character. It has been
granted numbers of times in consti-uing instru-

ments to give directions to trustees and others

obliged to carry out written but doubtful direc-

tions. The purpose of the statute is, we think,

wise and beneficial. It will, if applied in accord-

ance with its terms, effect a profound, a far-reach-

ing, a greatly to be desired procedural reform.

We see no sound reason for limiting it." (Em-
phasis supplied.)



Edelmann v. Triple-A Specialty Co. (C. C. A.,

7th, 1937), 88 F. (2d) 852 (at p. 854) :

''The Declaratory Judgment Act merely intro-

duced additional remedies. It modified the law

only as to procedure and, though the right to such

relief has been in some cases inherent, the statute

extended greatly the situations imder which such

relief may be claimed. It was the congressional

intent, to avoid accrual of avoidable damages to

one not certain of his rights and to afford him an

early adjudication without waiting until his ad-

versary should see fit to begin suit, after damage
had accrued. But the controversy is the same as

previously. Heretofore the owner of the patent

might sue to enjoin infringement; now the al-

leged infringer may sue. But the controversy be-

tween the parties as to whether a patent is valid,

and whether infringement exists is in either in-

stance essentially one arising under the patent

laws of the United States. It is of no moment, in

the determination of the character of the relief

sought, that the suit is brought by the alleged in-

fringer instead of by the owner." (Emphasis
supplied.)

Bliss V. Cold Metal Process Co. (C. C. A., 6th,

1939), 102 F. (2d) 105 (at p. 108) (After cit-

ing Aetna Life Insurance Company v.

Haworth, supra) :

"Tested by these rules and by the application

made of them to the facts in the Aetna case, there

is here a justiciable controversy. The defendant

asserts that the plaintiff's structures infringe pat-

ents which it owns and which it claims are valid.
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The plaintiff denies infringement and has invited

suit against it upon the patents without response.

It denies the validity of the patents, and has so

notified the defendant at least by its bill if not

prior thereto. The parties stand in adversary

positions in respect to legal rights and obligations.

Their differences are concrete and not hypotheti-

cal or abstract. It is of no moment in the de-

termination of the character of the relief sought

that the suit is brought by the alleged infringer

instead of by the owner. Edelmann & Co. v.

Triple-A Specialty Co., 7 Cir., 88 F. 2d 852.

'

' Circumstances may contain all of the elements

out of which a controversy may arise and yet

there will be no controversy if one claiming a

right or interest invaded by another does not

choose to assert his right. Likewise may there

be circumstances pointing to a possible contro-

versy in the past, without present actuality, by
reason of abandonment or change of position by
adversaries. But these speculations may not be

indulged in in respect to the present situation of

the parties. While the defendant made public

claims of infringement many years before the

filing of the bill, it has now charged customers

of the plaintiff with infringing its patents through
the insti-umentality of mills purchased from the

plaintiff and has brought suits against them. Since

the filing of the hill it has brought suit for in-

fringement against the plaintiff itself. All doubts

as to the existence of a present controversy are

now dispelled/' (Emphasis supplied.)
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lation of it. The plaintiffs are 'interested' par-

ties; if the patent is valid, their business is

ruined. They seek a declaration of their right

to continue their business despite the issuance of

a patent to the defendants. This is n 'right' or

'legal relation' that the court has power to de-

clare.

"It is said that a suit by a private party who
has no patent himself to declare a competitor's

patent void is without precedent. The charge is

true. Heretofore the actions arising mider the

patent laws and cognizable in the federal courts

have been suits in equity to obtain a patent (35

USCA Sec. 63), suits in equity to cancel an inter-

fering patent (section 66), actions at law for dam-
ages by infringement (section 67), suits in equity

for injunction and other relief because of in-

fringement (section 70), and suits in equity by
the United States to cancel a patent for fraud

(United States v. American Bell Telephone Co.,

167 U. S. 224, 17 S. Ct. 809, 42 L. Ed. 144). But
the Declaratory Judgment Act was passed with

the purpose of affording relief in cases that could

not be tried under existing forms of procedure.

It is a remedial statute and should be construed

and applied liberally.
'

' (Emphasis supplied.

)

Ex Parte Youm.g (1908), 209 U. S. 123 (at pp.

157-161), 52 L.Ed. 714:

''In making an officer of the State a party de-

fendant in a suit to enjoin the enforcement of an
act alleged to be unconstitutional it is plain that

such officer must have some connection with the

enforcement of the act, or else it is merely making
him a party as a representative of the State, and
thereby attempting to make the State a party.
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*'It has not, however, been held that it was

necessary that such duty should be declared in

the same act which is to be enforced. In some

cases, it is true, the duty of enforcement has been

so imposed * * *, but that may possibly make the

duty more clear ; if it otherwise exist it is equally

efficacious. The fact that the state officer hy virtue

of his office has some connection with the enforce-

ment of the act is the important and material fact,

and tvhether it arises out of the general law, or is

specially created hy the act itself, is not material

so long as it exists.

''* * * If the act which the state Attorney Gen-

eral seeks to enforce be a violation of the Federal

Constitution, the officer in proceeding imder such

enactment comes into conflict with the superior

authority of that Constitution, and he is in that

case stripped of his official or representative char-

acter and is subjected in his person to the conse-

quences of his individual conduct. The State has

no power to impart to him any immunity from
responsibility to the supreme authority of the

United States. * * *

"It would seem to be clear that the Attorney

General, under his power existing at common law

and by virtue of these various statutes, had a

general duty imposed upon him, which includes

the right and the power to enforce the statutes of

the State, including, of course, the act in question,

if it were constitutional. His power hy virtue of

his office sufficiently connected him with the duty

of enforcement to make him a proper party to a

suit of the 7iature of the one now before the United

States Circuit Court," (Emphasis supplied.)
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vs.

Joe Conway,
Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF
(The parties are designated as in the trial court: i.e. appellant as

'plaintiff", appellee as "defendant.")

I. JURISDICTION

There was a want of jurisdiction in the District Court

for the reason that no case or controversy is presented by

the record within the judicial powers conferred upon courts

of the United States by Section 2, Article III, of the Con-

stitution of the United States.

The suit was originally brought in the District Court

by the plaintiff fihng, on April 18, 1939, a complaint

seeking a declaratory judgment declaring the Arizona

Train-Limit Law unconstitutional.

The answer of the defendant denied the jurisdictional

allegations of the complaint and admitted the allegation



going to the question of the constitutionality of the law.

No controversy was then presented by the pleadings.

Likewise in his deposition and at the Pre-Trial Con-

ference defendant denied the allegations of the complaint

going to the question of the jurisdiction of the Court and

admitted the allegations of the complaint going to the

question of the constitutionality of the law and no con-

troversy is presented within the judicial power of a

United States Court.

Judgment was entered by the District Court dismissing

the suit for want of controversy.

Jurisdiction in this Court to entertain and decide the

case upon appeal is claimed by plaintiff under Section 225,

Title 28, U. S. Code.

IL STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant accepts the plaintiff's statement of the case

except the conclusions drawn by plaintiff from the facts

stated. Since we believe that the question of the conclu-

sions to be drawn from the facts is more properly a part

of the argument, we reserve a discussion of this question

as a part of our argument.

Two questions are involved in the appeal:

1. Did the Trial Court err in amending its

order on the Pre-Trial Conference?

This question arises by reason of the order of the Dis-

trict Court, entered on motion of defendant, amending the

order entered on the Pre-Trial Conference.

2. Did the Trial Court err in entering judg-

ment dismissing the suit for want of controversy?

This question arises on the judgment entered by the

District Court.



III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The District Court properly exercised its discretion in

amending its order entered on the Pre-Trial Conference,

(a) The orig-inal order on Pre-Trial Conference where-

in it was stated that defendant admitted all the allegations

of paragraph I of the complaint was contrary to the record

and the order was properly entered amending the order

on Pre-Trial Conference to show the alleg"ations of para-

graph 1(b) of the Complaint were denied by defendant.

(b) The original order on Pre-Trial Conference was

properly amended to show the defendant denied that part

of paragraph XVI of the complaint reading as follows:

"As heretofore alleged, said defendant claims and
maintains that it is and will be his duty, as Attorney
General, to prosecute and sue plaintiff for each and
every violation of said Act which it may commit."

The record on the Pre-Trial Conference clearly shows

that the admission of this allegation by counsel at such

conference was inadvertent and unintentional and the

amendment was proper in the interest of justice.

The admission of this allegation caused a contradiction

in the record on the Pre-Trial Conference and it was

proper for the Trial Court to determine the true situation

and to correct the record accordingly.

2. A case or controversy within the judicial power of a United

States Court is not presented by the record and the Dis-

trict Court properly dismissed the suit.

(a) No opposing claims are presented in the record as

to the constitutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law
or as to the powers and duties of the defendant with

respect to the enforcement of the Arizona Train-Limit

Law, and so no controversy.



(i) Defendant never claimed or maintained the

Arizona Train-Limit Law is constitutional or im-

posed upon him, either in his individual or official

capacity, a power or duty of enforcement,

(2) No duty of enforcement is imposed upon de-

fendant, either in his individual or official capacity,

by reason of a presumption in favor of the constitu-

tionality of the law.

An unconstitutional act is not a law.

(b) If opposing claims were presented, the question is

academic and presents no case or controversy within the

judicial power of a United States Court.

(c) The defendant, Joe Conway, in his individual

capacity, the capacity in which he is sued, has no interest

in the subject matter of the complaint and action suffi-

cient to give rise to a controversy.

3. The action is against the State and barred by the Eleventh

Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

4. The motion to remand was properly denied.

( a ) The matter sought to be presented by supplemental

complaint has no relevancy to the question raised by the

original record.

(b) The situation presented by the Motion to Remand
and Response to Motion to Remand shows the jurisdic-

tional amount is not involved.

(c) The situation presented by the Motion to Remand
and Response to Motion to Remand shows a want of equity

jurisdiction.
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IV. ARGUMENT

1. THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY EXERCISED ITS

DISCRETION IN AMENDING ITS ORDER ENTERED
ON THE PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE.

(Specification af Error No. 1)

On the order of the District Court a Pre-Trial Con-

ference was held below, following- which the District Court

entered its order as to admissions of fact by the defend-

ant (R. 92). The defendant then moved to amend the

order (R. 93), which motion the District Court granted

(R. 96). The action of the District Court in amending

the order on Pre-Trial Conference is assigned as error.

By the amendment certain allegations in paragraph 1(b)

and in paragraph XVI of the complaint, shown by the

original order as having been admitted, were shown as

denied.

(a) Paragraph 1(b)

The original order on the Pre-Trial Conference stated

that all the allegations contained in paragraph I of the

plaintiff's complaint were admitted. In this the order was

contrary to the record.

Paragraph 1(b) of the complaint, in part, alleged that

under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona

there was vested in the defendant, as Attorney General,

the exclusive power and the mandatory duty by prosecu-

tions to enforce the Train-Limit Law. Both in his answer

(R. 53, 54) and at the Pre-Trial Conference (R. 76, yy,

78) the defendant admitted these allegations only as ap-

plied to a constitutional law and expressly denied that any

power or duty was imposed by reason of any presumption

of constitutionality (R. 76). Plaintiff recognizes that

such is the record (Appellant's Brief, p. 6, 7, 36).

Since the allegation was admitted only as it applied to a

constitutional law, it was denied insofar as it applied to an



unconstitutional law. The defendant having thereafter

admitted the allegations of the complaint going to the

merits, and in effect, if not in fact, having admitted the

unconstitutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, the

answer to the above allegations of paragraph 1(b) of the

complaint becomes a denial of such allegations. We re-

spectfully submit that this amendment to the order on the

Pre-Trial Conference was proper.

(b) Paragraph XVI

In response to a question by the Court at the Pre-Trial

Conference, counsel for defendant stated that the whole of

paragraph XVI of the complaint was admitted.

Paragraph XVI is lengthy (covering approximately

two and one-half pages of the printed record herein) and

has for its subject the "Extent and Cumulative Character

of Penalties for Violation of Train-Limit Law" (R. 40,

41, 42). Approximately midway through the paragraph

appears the following allegation:

"As heretofore alleged, said defendant claims and

maintains that it is and will be his duty, as Attorney

General, to prosecute and sue plaintiff for each and

every violation of said Act which it mav commit."

(R.4I-)

In stating to the District Court that defendant admitted

the whole of paragraph XVI counsel for defendant in-

advertently overlooked and unintentionally admitted the

above quoted part of the paragraph. Such admission is

contrary to fact and erroneous, but was not discovered

until the order of the District Court on the Pre-Trial Con-

ference was received, when counsel for defendant imme-

diately informed plaintiff of defendant's intention to move

for an order amending the order of the Court by showing

this allegation of the complaint to be denied by defendant.

The amendment was ordered bv the Court. The action of



the Court in amending the order was a proper exercise of

the Court's discretion and to prevent a manifest injustice.

It is clear from the record that it was not the intention

of the defendant to admit this allegation.

An allegation in paragraph XV almost identical with

the above allegation of paragraph XVI was expressly

denied at the Pre-Trial Conference (R. 87, 8$, 89, 90).

(The allegation in paragraph XV reads: "and said

defendant further claims and maintains that, in the

event of violation of said law by plaintiff, it is and
will be his duty forthwith to institute or direct the

institution of proceedings to recover from the plain-

tiff the penalties provided in said law and otherwise
to enforce compliance therewith by plaintiff." R. 38.)

Again, a very similar allegation in paragraph 1(b) of

the complaint was denied at the Pre-Trial Conference

(R- 75-79).

Certainly with these denials in the record of the Pre-

Trial Conference the District Court was not warranted in

asserting that defendant admitted these allegations. With
these contradictions in the record there was no basis in

the record to enter an order finding or holding that de-

fendant either admitted or denied such allegations. The
record being contradictory, it was proper for the Court to

determine the true intent of the parties and correct the

record accordingly. That the District Court did.

Upon any fair and impartial examination of the record

it cannot be doubted that in admitting all the allegations

of paragraph XVI the defendant inadvertently overlooked

this allegation; and that the defendant in truth did not

intend to admit such allegations but in fact denied the

same. The answer of the defendant expressly denied this

allegation as well as similar allegations in paragraphs
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1(b) and XV. Also in his Affidavit in Support of Motion

to Dismiss and in his deposition, placed in evidence by

plaintiff, defendant denied that he maintained or claimed

that the Train-Limit Law imposed any duty upon him to

prosecute or direct prosecutions thereof (R. 47, 48, 132,

140, 141). And under no fair or honest interpretation of

the record in this cause could it be stated that the de-

fendant maintained that the Train-Limit Law imposed a

duty on the defendant to prosecute or direct prosecution of

violation unless the laze is constitutional. And the record

is uncontradicted that defendant admitted the allegations

of the complaint going to the question of the constitu-

tionality of the law. Not onl}^ has defendant never main-

tained, as plaintiff states (p. 41, Appellant's Brief) that

the Train-Limit Law casts upon him the power and duty

of enforcement, but defendant has consistently contended

that if, as plaintiff contends, the Train-Limit Law is un-

constitutional, then it does not impose any duty whatso-

ever on defendant (R. 47, 48, 53, 54, 65, 66, 67, 68). Cer-

tainly the defendant has never made the absurd contention

that an unconstitutional law imposed a duty upon him.

Tt then would have been an injustice to place in defendant's

mouth a contention he did not make. It is absurd to argue,

as plaintiff does (p. 42, Appellant's Brief), that no in-

justice can fall to defendant by having judgment rendered

against him declaring the Train-Limit Law void. It is an

injustice to defendant to attempt to compel him as an in-

dividual to bear the burden of defending a law in which he

has no interest, to attempt to force upon him contentions

he has never made, and to attempt to place upon him the

burden and expense of litigation in which he has no in-

terest.

The District Court properly amended the Order on the

Pre-Trial Conference.

Capano v. Melchionno (Mass.), 7 N. E. 2d 593, 599.
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2. A CASE OR CONTROVERSY WITHIN THE JUDI-
CIAL POWER OF A UNITED STATES COURT IS

NOT PRESENTED BY THE RECORD AND THE DIS-

TRICT COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED THE SUIT.

(Specification of Error Nos. 2 to 7 incl.)

FOREWORD

As appellant has stated (Appellant's Brief, 20), these

specifications of error in effect relate to a single question,

namely: Did the trial court err in concluding from the

record below that no actual case or controversy is pre-

sented by the record herein within the scope of the judicial

power of the United States Courts?

The plaintiff admits (Appellant's Brief, 21) that the

trial record does not establish "any controversy between

the parties as to the abstract question of the constitutional-

ity of the Train-Limit Law, considered apart from the

question of defendant's claimed power and duty of enforce-

ment."

As plaintiff states, the defendant admitted the plaintiff's

allegations of fact from which may be drawn the conclu-

sion that the Arizona Train-Limit Law is unconstitutional

and also admitted the paragraphs of the complaint in which

the invalidity of the law was alleged in precise terms (Ap-

pellant's Brief, 22, 23). In other words, the plaintiff

alleged, and defendant admitted, that the Train-Limit Law
is unconstitutional. No issue or controversy could then be

presented upon such question.

Robinson v. Anderson, 121 U. S. 522; 7 S. Ct. loii.

But plaintiff contends that the defendant, although ad-

mitting the unconstitutionality of the law, asserts the

power and duty on his i)art to enforce such unconstitutional

law, and that a controversy is thereby presented. And in

the words of the plaintiff, "the controversy relates, * * *

not to the question of the constitutionality of the law, but
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solely to the question whether the defendant presently (i. e.,

in advance of any final judicial determination) has any

power or duty of enforcement in the event of violation."

We agree with plaintiff that no case or controversy is

presented by the record as to the constitutionality of the

Train-Limit Law. And since no case or controversy within

the judicial power of a United States Court as to the con-

stitutionality of the law is presented, no finding, judg-

ment or decree touching its constitutionality may be en-

tered.

We are not in agreement with the plaintiff that the

record presents a case or controversy as to the defendant's

power or duty of enforcement in the event of a violation

of the law. And since plaintiff's contention is "solely to

the question whether the defendant presently (i. e., in ad-

vance of any final judicial determination) has any power

or duty of enforcement in case of violation" (Appellant's

Brief, 23) the sole question presented by Specification of

of Error Nos. 2 to 7 is whether or not the record presents

a case or controversy as to the defendant's power or duty

of enforcement in case of violation of the law.

(a) No opposing claims are presented in the record as to

the constitutionality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law or

as to the powers and duties of the defendant with respect

to the enforcement of the Arizona Train-Limit Law, and

so no controversy.

(Specification of Error Nos. 2 and 3)

I. Defendant never claimed nor maintained the Ari-

zona Train-Limit Law is constitutional or imposed upon

him, either in his individual or official capacity, a power

or duty of enforcement.

It is, perhaps, proper to first point out that the purpose

of the action is to obtain a declaratory judgment declaring

the Arizona Train-Limit Lazv iinconstitiitional. It is so
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stated by plaintiff in the jurisdictional paragraph of its

complaint (R. 4) and at page 3 of its brief. An examina-

tion of the jurisdictional paragraph of plaintiff's complaint

(R. 4) discloses that the question of defendant's duty is

not the purpose of, nor put in issue by, the action.

Defendant has never claimed the power or duty to en-

force the Train-Limit Law. On the contrary, he has ad-

mitted its invalidity and denied any duty to enforce an un-

constitutional law, thus denying any duty to enforce the

Train-Limit Law\

However, plaintiff here, in its effort to show a contro-

versy, asserts that the defendant, although admitting and

agreeing the law is unconstitutional, claims and maintains

he has the power and duty to enforce the Train-Limit Law
in event of violation and that such position or contention

by the defendant in this regard is shown by the admissions

and assertions in his testimony on deposition, and on his

behalf at the Pre-Trial Conference, and solely on this con-

tention bases its claim that a controversy exists. It there-

fore becomes necessary to determine from the record just

what the defendant does claim and maintain as to his power

or duty of enforcement.

The affidavit of the defendant was filed in support of

his motion to dismiss. In this affidavit the defendant

stated that he "does not claim or maintain, and has not

claimed or maintained, * * * that in the event of violation

of said law by plaintiff it is or will be affiant's duty to

institute or to direct the institution of proceedings to re-

cover from the plaintiff the penalties provided in said law

or otherwise to enforce compliance therewith by plaintiff.

In this connection affiant says that in his individual capac-

ity, the capacity in which he is here sued, the affiant has

no duty or authority in connection therewith, and has no

interest in the determination of the validity or constitu-
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tionality of said Arizona Train-Limit Law; that if said

Arizona Train-Limit Law is unconstitutional, as plaintiff

contends, affiant in his official capacity as Attorney Gen-

eral of the State of Arizona has no duty or authority to

enforce said Arizona Train-Limit Law and has no duty to

perform in connection with said law" (R. 47, 48).

In paragraph IV of his anszver (R .53) defendant denied

that the Train-Limit Law imposed any power or duty in

him in his individual capacity and alleged that only if it

zvas constiUitional did it impose a duty upon him in his

official capacity.

In paragraph XXII (R. 65) and paragraph XXIII (R.

68) of his answer the defendant expressly denied that he

claims or maintains that is or will be his duty to institute

or direct the institution of actions against plaintiff in the

event of violation of the law.

Defendant's statements at the Pre-Trial Conference were

in accord with those in his answer, referred to above, ex-

cept that an allegation in paragraph XVI of the complaint

was overlooked and inadvertently admitted. But such ad-

mission was, on motion and order of the Court, corrected

before trial. (See argument under Specification of Error

No. I.)

And finally, in his deposition defendant denied that any

duty was imposed upon him by the Train-Limit Law unless

the law is constitutional (R. 132, 141).

The foregoing constitutes the record insofar as it relates

to allegations or statements of the defendant with respect

to his duties under the Train-Limit Law. From this rec-

ord—Defendant's Affidavit in Support of Motion to Dis-

miss, Defendant's Answer, Defendant's Deposition, and

Defendant's Admissions on Pre-Trial Conference—it is

clear that the defendant has, and does, claim and maintain
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that the law imposes no duty upon him in his individual

capacity, and imposes a duty upon him in his official capac-

ity only if it is constitutional. And since he admitted the

law is unconstitutional, he, as does plaintiff, claims that

no duty or power is imposed by the law.

The statement, then, by plaintiff (Appellant's Brief, 2^^)

that defendant asserts and maintains that the power and

duty uf enforcement exists in him, even though the law is

unconstitutional, is not only not sustained by the record

but is contrary to the record.

It must follow, then, that no controversy is presented

unless, as plaintiff contends (Appellant's Brief, 23) de-

fendant, by taking his oath of office and thereby stating

his intention to fulfill the duties of the office, and by fail-

ing to disavow any intention to enforce the Train-Limit

Law, evidences a claim of duty to enforce the Train-Limit

Law.

2. No duty of enforcement is imposed upon defendant,

either in his individual or official capacity, by reason of a

presumption in favor of the constitutionality of the law.

Upon this proposition a rather peculiar or unusual situa-

tion is presented. In its effort to find a controversy plain-

tiff states that defendant "claims and asserts that the

power and duty of prosecution nevertheless continue" not-

withstanding the law is unconstitutional. The argument

then made by plaintiff is not against hut in support of

defendant's supposed claim or contention.

In other words, while asserting that such contention is

on the part of defendant, plaintiff proceeds to present

argument, not against but in support thereof.

The truth is, defendant never has, and does not now,

claim or maintain that the Train-Limit Law if uncon-

stitutional imposed any power or duty upon him. On the
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contrary, defendant has contended and does contend that

neither his oath of office nor the Train-Limit Law, if such

law is unconstitutional (and it was admitted to be uncon-

stitutional) imposed any power or duty upon him either in

his official or individual capacity.

The oath of office taken by the Attorney General is

that he will "support the Constitution of the United States

and the Constitution and Laws of the State of Arizona

* * *'. (Sec. 63, Revised Code Arizona 1928). The At-

torney General, by refusing to enforce an unconstitutional

act does not violate this oath of office.

"An unconstitutional act is not a law ; it confers no

rights ; it imposes no duties ; it affords no protection

;

it creates no office ; it is, in legal contemplation, as

inoperative as though it had never been passed."

Norton v. County of Selby, 118 U. S. 425; 6 S. Ct.

1121.

And see:

Chicago etc. Co. v. Hackett, 228 U. S. 559; 33 S. Ct.

581:

Ex Parte La Prade, 289 U. S. 444; 53 S. Ct. 682.

Little Rock etc. Co. v. Worthen, 120 \]. S. 97; 7
S. Ct. 469.

And to enforce, or attempt to enforce, an unconstitu-

tional act would violate his oath to support the Constitution

of the United States.

The plaintiff argues that the duty is, and was, on the

part of the defendant to disavow his intention to enforce

the Train-Limit Law and that failure to disavow consti-

tutes a threat.

This contention, if sustained, would require the Attor-

ney General immediately upon taking office to examine
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into and formulate an opinion as to the constitutionality

of every law, the duty of enforcing which is imposed upon

him, although no occasion for the exercise of such duty

has arisen, and disavow his intention to enforce each such

law or risk the possibility of being required in his indi-

vidual capacity and at his own expense to sustain in court

the constitutionality of eacJi law to which no disavowal is

made. Such a contention is absurd. No law, state or fed-

eral, imposes such a duty upon an officer. As the Supreme

Court has said, an unconstitutional act is no laiv.

The so-called "negative order" cases, cited by plaintiff,

have no application. Those cases involved action, not in-

action, on the part of the defendant. The boards or com-

missions there were authorized to act, and did act, upon

the petitions filed before them. Their action was nega-

tive—that is, denied the petition—but it was action never-

theless. Such is not the case here.

In its brief (Appellant's Brief, 29-30) plaintiff argues

that the oath of office of defendant together with the

declaration of the statute imposing upon defendant the

duty of enforcement constitutes a threat or a claim of duty

to enforce, which, under the La Prade case, supra, can

only be avoided by a disavowal of such duty.

But the La Prade case did not hold as plaintiff contends.

On the contrary, the Supreme Court in the La Prade case

said that "The mere declaration of the statute that suits

for recovery of penalties shall be brought by the Attorney

General is not sufficient" (page 458 of opinion) to con-

stitute a threat. This is in harmony with the opinions

cited supra holding that an unconstitutional law is no law

and imposes no duties. If such statutory declaration is

not sufficient to constitute a threat, it cannot constitute a

claim of power and duty to enforce the statute requiring

a disavowal by defendant.
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And it is submitted that if a disavowal were necessary

the defendant's admission that the law is unconstitutional

and his denial of any duty of enforcement under an uncon-

stitutional act is a disavowal.

The Supreme Court of the United States has several

times held that where the defendant files a disclaimer or

admits the contentions of the plaintiff, thus tendering no

issue, no case or controversy is presented and the Court

shall proceed no further but at once dismiss.

Robinson V. Anderson, 121 U. S. 522; 7 S. Ct. loii.

Devine v. Los Angeles, 202 U. S. 313; 26 S. Ct.

652.

Crystal Sprgs. etc. Co. v. Los Angeles, 177 U. S.

169; 20 S. Ct. 573.

Rosenbauui v. Bauer, 120 U. S. 450; 7 S. Ct. 633.

And see Jud. Code, Par. 37; 28 U. S. C. 80.

Here it was the duty of the District Court to dismiss

the action when defendant filed his answer admitting plain-

tiff's contentions and disclaiming any opposing contention.

Nor was any controversy thereafter presented. As is

seen from the record defendant at all times admitted the

act was unconstitutional, and asserted that no duty was

imposed upon him to enforce it. No case or controversy

was presented and the case was properly dismissed.

(b) K opposing claims were presented, the question is aca-

demic and presents no case or controversy within the

judicial power of a United States Court.

(Specification of Error Nos. 4, 5, 6 and 7)

The plaintiff concedes that no case or controversy is

presented by the trial record upon the question of the con-

stitutionality of the Train-Limit Law (Appellant's Brief,
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21, 23). The sole question (and thus the sole contention

on plaintiff's part) presented by Specification of Error

Nos. 2 to 7 is that a case or controversy is presented as to

whether the defendant "has any power or duty of enforce-

ment in case of violation" of the Train-Limit Law (Ap-

pellant's Brief, 23).

The evidence is uncontradicted that there had been no

violation of the Train-Limit Law (R. 49, 140, 141).

Likewise the evidence is undisputed that there had been

no act or threat on the part of the defendant to enforce

the law. In his Affidavit in Support of Motion to Dismiss

(R. 47, 48), placed in evidence by the plaintiff, defendant

denied that he had any duty whatsoever, in his individual

capacity, to enforce the law, and denied that he had any

duty in his official capacity if the law was unconstitutional.

Further, he stated that he had made no study of the law

and had formed no opinion as to its constitutionality or

unconstitutionality.

In his answer he admitted the allegations of the com-

plaint going to the validity of the act and denied he claimed

or maintained that the law imposed a duty upon him to

enforce it if it is unconstitutional. In other words, he

admitted the law was unconstitutional and denied that such

unconstitutional law imposed any duty of enforcement upon

him (R. 53, 65, 68). Surely this could not be construed

as a threat to enforce the law.

In his deposition he stated that since there had been no

violation of the law called to his attention, he had had no

occasion to consider the law and had formed no opinion

as to its validity or invalidity (R. 140); that before he

would take any steps to enforce the law he certainly would

spend some time to go into the law and determine its

validity or invalidity (R. 141).
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Finally, at the Pre-Trial Conference he admitted the

act was unconstitutional and denied any duty to enforce

an unconstitutional law (R. 76, 86-91).

From this it is seen that the defendant has denied any

act or threat on his part to enforce the law, and there is

no evidence to the contrary.

Since there has been no violation, no act or threat to

enforce, there is no present situation, no present right or

status or relation to which a judgment declaring the duty

of the defendant, either in his individual or official capac-

ity, can apply.

Upon the record the question presented is purely abstract

and hypothetical. No present status or relation is shown

calling for the exercise or performance of the power or

duty set forth in the act. No violation has occurred and

so no occasion exists calHng for the present performance

of any duty under the law. Any judgment or decree en-

tered upon this record would be purely advisory, applying,

not to a present existing situation, but to a contingent

and hypothetical future situation v.hich might never arise

—a decree advising Conway, as Attorney General (not

the defendant Conway in his individual capacity) as to his

power and duty in the future should a violation of the law

occur. Such a record presents no case or controversy

within the judicial power of a United States Court.

Liberty Warehouse Co. v. Grannis, 273 U. S. 70:

47 S. Ct. 282.

Muskrat v. United States, 219 U. S. 346, 357; 31

S. Ct. 250.

Fairehild v. Hughes, 258 U. S. 126, 129; 42 S. Ct.

274.

Massachusetts v. Mellon, 262 U. S. 447, 448; 43
S. Ct. 597.
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A^^^c Jersev v. Sargent, 269 U. S. 328, 330; 46 S.

Ct. 122.'

California v. San Pablo & T. R. Co., 149 U. S. 308;

13 S. Ct. 876.

The operation of the Declaratory Judgment Act is pro-

cedural only.

"It does not purport to alter the character of con-

troversies which are the subject of judicial power un-

der the Constitution."

United States v. West Virginia, 295 U. S. 463; 55
S. Ct. 789.

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. HazvortJi, 300 U. S. 227; 57
S. Ct. 461.

Ashzvander v. Tenn. Valley Aiiih., 297 U. S. 288;

56 S. Ct. 466.

"The controversy must be definite and concrete,

touching- the legal relations of parties having adverse

legal interests."

Aetna Ins. Co. z'. Hazvorth, supra.

"* * * it is not open to question that the judicial

power vested by Article 3 of the Constitution '^' * *

is limited to cases and controversies presented in such
form, with adverse litigants, that the judicial power
is capable of acting upon them, and pronouncing and
carrying into effect a judgment between the parties,

and does not extend to the determination of abstract

questions or issues framed for the purpose of invok-

ing the advice of the court without real parties or a
real case."

Liberty Warehouse Co. v. Grannis, supra.

No definite or concrete controversy is presented here

—

only a hypothetical or abstract situation which may never

occur. No judgment could be pronounced which could be

carried into effect. There are no acts or threats to enforce
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the law which may be enjoined as in Bx Parte Young,

209 U. S. 123; 28 S. Ct. 441.

Even if the law is constitutional, it imposes no duty on

Conway in his official capacity as Attorney General until

there has been a violation. There having been no viola-

tion, any judgment entered can only be to advise the At-

torney General as to his duties in event there should be a

violation.

No justiciable controversy is presented and the action

was properly dismissed.

(c) The defendant, Joe Conway, in his individual capacity,

the capacity in which he is sued, has no interest in the

subject matter of the complaint and action sufficient to

give rise to a controversy.

(Specification of Error Nos. 2 to 7 incl.)

The defendant, Joe Conway, is the duly elected and act-

ing Attorney General of the State of Arizona. In this

action, however, he is sued in his individiml capacity and

not in his official capacity as Attorney General (R. 3).

No legal relation exists between the defendant in his

individual capacity (the capacity in which he is here sued)

and the plaintiff by reason of or in relation to the Arizona

Train-Limit Law. No legal interest of the defendant in

his individual capacity, adverse to the interest of the plain-

tiff or otherwise, is affected by such law. Defendant in

his individual capacity will neither be injured by the law

being held unconstitutional nor benefited by its constitu-

tionality being sustained. He "has merely a general in-

terest common to all members of the public." That is not

a sufficient interest to entitle the defendant to invoke the

jurisdiction of a United States Court.

/'* * * The motion papers disclose no interest upon
the part of the petitioner other than that of a citizen

and a member of the bar of this Court. That is in-
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sufficient. It is an established principle that to en-

title a private individual to invoke the judicial power
to determine the validity of executive or legislative

action he must show that he has sustained, or is im-

mediately in danger of sustaining, a direct injury as

the result of that action and it is not sufficient that

he has merely a general interest common to all mem-
bers of the public."

Bx Parte Levitt, 302 U. S. 633; 58 S. Ct. i.

And see:

Ashwander v. Tenn Valley Auih., 297 U. S. 288;

56 S. Ct. 466.

U. S. V. West Virginia, 295 U. S. 463; 55 S. Ct.

789.

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Hazvortli, 300 U. S. 227,

241; 57 S. Ct. 461, 464.

California v. San Pablo & T. R. Co., 149 U. S. 308;
13 S. Ct. 876.

Ex Parte Levitt, 302 U. S. 633, 634; 58 St. Ct. i

;

82 L. Ed. 493.

Tyler v. Judges of Court of Reg., 179 U. S. 405,
406; 21 S. Ct. 206; 45 L. Ed. 252.

Sonthern R\. Co. v. Kinq, 217 U. S. 524, 534; 30
S. Ct. 594;54L. Ed. 868.

Newman v. U. S., 238 U. S. 537, 549, 550; 35 S.

Ct. 881; 59 L. Ed. 1446.

Fairchild v. Hughes, 258 U. S. 126; 42 S. Ct. 274;
66 L. Ed. 499.

Massachusetts v. Mellon, 262 U. S. 447, 448; 43
S. Ct. 597, 601 ; 67 L. Ed. 1078.

Neiv Jersey v. Sargent, 269 U. S. 328; 46 S. Ct.

122.

Electric Bond & Share Co. v. Sec. Exch. Comm.
303 U. S. 419:588. Ct. 678.

John P. Agnew & Co. v. Haage, 99 Fed. (2d) 349.
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Southern Pacific Co. v. McAdoo, 82 Fed. (2d) 121.

Bettis V. Patterson Ballogh Corp., 16 Fed. Supp.

455-

Bogus Motor Co. v. Omerdonk, 9 Fed. Supp. 950.

Holt V. Custer County (Mont.), 243 Pac. 811.

Miller v. Miller (Tenn.), 261 S, W. 965.

Garden City Nezvs v. Hurst (Kan.) , 282 Pac. 720.

State Bx. rel La Follette v. Damman (Wis.), 264.

N. W. 627.

Washington Beauty College v. Huse (Wash.), 80
Pac. (2d) 403.

Oregon etc. Assoc, v. White (Ore.), 78 Pac. (2d)

572.

Washington-Detroit Theatre Co. v. Moore (Mich.),

229 N. W. 618.

Burton v. Durham Realty Co., 188 N. C. 473; 125
S. E. 3,

It can hardly be doubted that if this action were brought

by Conway in his individual capacity it must be dismissed

because, as to the question of the constitutionality of the

law or the official duties it may impose upon the Attorney

General, he, in his individual capacity, "has merely a gen-

eral interest common to all members of the public," and

such an interest is not sufficient to invoke the jurisdiction

of the courts of the United States. By what magic is he,

as a defendant, clothed with an interest which he does not

have as a plaintiff?

But plaintiff contends the Supreme Court in effect has

held in Bx Parte Young, supra, and other similar cases,

that the interest necessary to sustain jurisdiction does exist

in the defendant.

The rule adopted in Bx Parte Young and similar cases

has no application here. In those cases the subject matter



23

of the action was the iudividtial act or threatened act of

the defendant. The question before the Court was whether

or not the individual action or threatened action of the

defendant was rightful or wrongful and should be en-

joined. In determining that question, and incidental there-

to, the constitutionality of a statute was brought in ques-

tion. But it was the individual act or threatened act which

was the subject matter of the suit and not the constitu-

tionality of the statute.

"Petitioner does not deny that a suit nominally

against individuals, but restraining or otherwise af-

fecting their action as state officers, may be in sub-

stance a suit against the state, which the Constitution

forbids, (citing cases) or that generally suits to re-

strain action of state officials can, consistently with

the constitutional prohibition, be prosecuted only when
the action sought to be restrained is without the

authority of state law or contravenes the statutes or

Constitution of the United States." (Italics ours.)

Worcester County Trust Co. v. Riley, 58 S. Ct. 185,

302 U. S. 292.

It goes without question that a defendant has an interest

individually in a suit which involves his individual action.

Here the subject matter of the suit is the constitution-

ality of the Arizona Train-Limit Law. In the jurisdic-

tional paragraph of its complaint (R. 4) plaintiff alleges

that the suit is to obtain a final judgment declaring the

Arizona Train-Limit Law unconstitutional. In that ques-

tion the defendant has no interest. In its brief plaintiff

concedes no controversy on this question is presented by

the record (R. 21, 23).

But plaintiff here contends that a controversy is pre-

sented as to the powers and duties of the defendant with

respect to the enforcement of the law. Such a question, if

presented by the pleadings, would relate to Conway in his

official capacity and not to the defendant, Conway, in his
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individual capacity. No one, at least not the defendant,

has ever contended that Conway in his individual capacity

has any power or authority of enforcing the law. On the

contrary, Conway has disclaimed such power or authority

(R. 47). Any question, then, as to power or authority of

enforcement under the law must relate to the official ca-

pacity. The defendant, Conway the individual, has no

interest in the powers or duties of Conway the official.

And in Bx Parte Young and similar cases some act or

threat by the defendant was held necessary as the subject

matter of the suit in order to give jurisdiction.

"The various authorities we have referred to fur-

nish ample justification for the assertion that indi-

viduals who, as officers of the state, are clothed with

some duty in regard to the enforcement of the laws

of the state, and zvlw threaten and are about to com-
mence proceedings, either of a civil or criminal nature,

to enforce against parties affected an unconstitutional

act, violating the Federal Constitution, may be en-

joined by a Federal court of equity from such action."

(Italics ours.)

Bx Parte Young, supra.

And see Champlin Refining Co. z'. Corp. Comni., 286

U. S. 210, 238; 52 S. Ct. 559, 566, wherein the Court

denied an injunction as to Section 9 of the Oklahoma
Petroleum Act for want of jurisdiction for the reason that

the plaintiff had failed to sustain the burden of showing

some act or threat by the defendant to enforce.

Worcester County Trust Co. v. RUcm, 302 U. S.

292 ; 58 S. Ct. 185.

Plaintiff concedes that there had been no act or threat

of prosecution by the defendant prior to April 19, 1940

(Appellant's Brief, 53). The action here before the Court

was filed in the District Court April 18, 1939 (R. 45).

There was then—when this action was filed—an absolute
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want of jurisdiction in the District Court to enjoin the

defendant.

Ha' Parte Young, supra.

Champlin Refining Co. v. Corp. Comm., supra.

It follows that plaintiff's argument that jurisdiction lies

to enter a declaratory judgment in any suit where an in-

junction could be entered, is meaningless and without ap-

plication.

Not only is there an entire lack of evidence of any act

or threat by this defendant, but the evidence is uncontra-

dicted that the defendant consistently in the Trial Court

denied any power or duty in him to enforce the Train-

Limit Law if unconstitutional and admitted its unconstitu-

tionality. In other words, he denied any power or author-

ity existed in him to enforce the law.

And finally we submit that no question as to the powers

or duties of enforcement is presented for decision by the

complaint. The allegation of the jurisdictional paragraph

of the complaint is that the suit is for a judgment declar-

ing the Train-Limit Law unconstitutional (R. 4) and no

issue as to the power or duty of enforcement is presented.

The case of Nashville, Chattanooga & St. Louis Ry. Co.

V. Wallace, 288 U. S. 249 ; 53 S. Ct. 345 ; is cited by plain-

tiff as a case on all fours with the instant case.

The Wallace case was a suit brought in the state court

under the Tennessee Declaratory Judgment Act to deter-

mine the constitutionality of a Tennessee statute imposing

an excise tax on the storage of gasoline. The Wallace

case differs from the case before this Court in at least two

important particulars

:

(a) The statute imposed an immediate liability for

the tax and a duty on the officers to enforce. Thus
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a definite and concrete controversy was presented,

while no violation of the Train-Limit Law having

occurred only an abstract or hypothetical case is pre-

sented here.

(b) In the Wallace case the defendants were the

state officers upon whom the power and duty of en-

forcing the tax was imposed by the statute and were

sued in their official capacity. As the representative

of the state upon whom the duty of enforcement was

imposed, they had an interest in their official capacity

which would be affected by the determination of the

constitutionality of the statute. Here the defendant

in his individual capacity—the capacity in which he is

sued—has no interest which will be affected by the

determination of the constitutionality of the Train-

Limit Law.

In Aetna v. Haworth, supra, the defendant, as an in-

sured, claimed a present right against the insurance com-

pany under a policy of insurance. The right or liability

claimed was definite and concrete and the determination

of his rights under the policy definitely affected his in-

terest.

Likewise in the patent infringement cases the claim was

of a present liability for infringement—a definite and con-

crete controversy—and the rights and interest of the

parties were affected by the determination of the question

of infringement.

The several other cases cited by plaintiff fall into one of

the foregoing class or type.
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3. THE ACTION IS AGAINST THE STATE OF ARIZONA
AND BARRED BY THE ELEVENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE CONSTITUTION.

(Specification of Error Nos. 2 to 7 incl.)

In Bx Parte Voimg, supra, the defendant was stripped

of his official character and subjected in his person to the

consequences of his individual conduct.

Here the plaintiff seeks to make a reverse application

of the doctrine of Bx Parte Young.

For the purpose of providing an interest in the defend-

ant sufficient to invoke the jurisdiction of the court the

plaintiff seeks to clothe the defendant Conway—sued in

his individual capacity—with his official or representative

character and subject him individually to the consequences

of such official character.

The plaintiff argues that the defendant has an interest

and will be affected by a determination of the constitu-

tionality of the Train-Limit Law and the powers and

duties of the Attorney General thereunder because upon

the defendant as Attorney General exclusively is imposed

the power and duty of enforcement. (And plaintiff assigns

as error the failure of the Trial Court to find, irrespective

of defendant's beliefs or admissions that the law is un-

constitutional and imposed no duty upon him, that it is his

official duty to enforce the law until it is judicially de-

clared invalid. Specification of Error No. 3.)

But the power and duty imposed by the act is upon the

Attorney General—Conway in his official capacity and as

representative of the State—and not upon the defendant

in his individual capacity, the capacity in which he is here

sued.

When it becomes necessary, as here, to clothe the de-

fendant with his official and representative capacity in
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order to create an interest in him sufficient to sustain the

jurisdiction of the Court, the suit becomes one against the

State and is barred by the Eleventh Amendment to the

Constitution of the United States.

Worcester County Trust Co. v. Riley, 302 U. S.

292; 58 S. Ct/185.

Bx Parte Young, supra.

As we have heretofore pointed out, the presumption that

an act is constitutional is merely a rule of statutory con-

struction—a rule of evidence—and has no application to

the duties of an officer under an act. He is not bound by

such presumption to accept the law as constitutional and

act under it. On the contrary, in performing the duties

imposed upon him under a statute the officer acts at his

peril. If he acts under an unconstitutional law, he is per-

sonally liable for his acts.

Norton v. Shelby Co., 118 U. S. 425; 6 S. Ct. 1121.

Norwood V. Goldsmith, 168 Ala. 224; 53 So. 84.

Dennison Mfi^. Co. 7;. Wright, 156 Ga. 789; 120

S. E. 120.
^

Highway Commrs. v. Bloomington, 253 111. 164;

97 N. E. 280.

Saratoga etc. Waters Corp. v. Pratt, 2.2.^ N. Y. 429;
125 N. E. 834.

Cartwright v. Canode, 106 Tex. 502; 171 S. W.
696.

It must follow that if he is personally liable for acting

under an unconstitutional act he may, if he considers the

law unconstitutional, refuse to incur the liability.

Bx Parte Young, and cases following it, have held that

an officer who purports to act under an unconstitutional

act is acting in his individual capacity and is doing an in-

dividual wrong. If such doctrine is sound, it must follow
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that he has the right to determine whether or not he shall

commit such wrong. If he has no discretion—no right to

exercise his own judgment—then his acts are by reason of

his office and the suit would be against the State.

In one breath it is argued, following the doctrine of Ex
Parte Young, that if the law is unconstitutional an officer

in enforcing it is doing an act which he had no legal right

to do. And in the next breath, that the presumption of

unconstitutionality imposes a legal duty upon the officer

to enforce the law—that is, to do an act which the Supreme
Court in Ex Parte Voimg, and cases following it, has said

he has "no legal right to do." Clearly a contention with-

out merit.

4. THE MOTION TO REMAND WAS PROPERLY DE-
NIED.

Reference is made by the plaintiff to the matter pre-

sented by its motion to remand and defendant's response,

and plaintiff contends that if a doubt existed as to de-

fendant's interest, such doubt is now removed (R. 83).

(a) The matter sought to be presented by supplemental com-
plaint has no relevancy to the question raised by the

original record.

This appeal and the question as to whether or not a case

or controversy is presented nuist l3e determined upon the

facts and situation existing when the action was filed.

Minneapolis & St. L. R. 'Co. v. Peoria P. U. R. Co.,

270 U. S. 580; 46 S. Ct. 402.

Mullen V. Torrance, 9 Wheat. 537; 6 L. Ed. 154.

Anderson v. Watt, 138 U. S. 694: 11 S. Ct. 449.

National Cash Reg. Co. v. Stolts, 135 Fed. 534.



30

Plaintiff in its brief has several times stated that the de-

fendant asserts and contends that he has the power and

duty of prosecution under the law (R. 23, 31, 33, 46, 50).

These statements are directly contrary to the facts appear-

ing in the record.

In his Affidavit in Support of Motion to Dismiss, his

answer, and in his deposition the defendant denied that he

had any power or duty of enforcement in his individual

capacity, and denied that, in his official capacity, he had

any power or duty of enforcement if the law is uncon-

stitutional. He alleged that, so far as he knew, there had

been no violation of the law and no occasion for him to

investigate as to its constitutionality. And that he had

made no study, investigation or examination into the ques-

ion of the constitutionality of the law and had formulated

no opinion as to its constitutionality or unconstitutionality.

In his answer he further alleged that in his individual

capacity, the capacity in which he was sued, he had no

interest in the determination of the question of the con-

stitutionality of the law and therefore admitted the allega-

ions of the complaint as to the invalidity of the law.

At the Pre-Trial Conference, he, in effect, admitted the

law is unconstitutional and denied any duty to enforce an

unconstitutional law.

Such record wholly refutes these statements made by

plaintiff.

This suit was filed on the i8th day of April, 1939. The
record is uncontradicted that there was no act or threat

on the part of the defendant to enforce the law prior to

April 19, 1940.

This suit is entirely unlike Bx Parte Young and similar

cases because:

(a) Since there had been no act or threat by the

defendant, the individual action of the defendant could
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not be the subject matter of the suit, and no such

action is alleged by the complaint.

(b) In Bx Parte Young the liability was imme-

diate and by reason of the threat of enforcement the

controversy was definite and concrete, while here,

there having been no violation of the law and no threat

of enforcement, the controversy, if any, is abstract

and hypothetical.

The judgment was entered in the Trial Court on Febru-

ary 14, 1940 (R. 116). The first violation of the Train-

Limit Law occurred April 4, 1940 (Exhibit, attached to

plaintiff's Motion to Remand), nearly two months after

the judgment was entered below. Until such violation oc-

curred the law, if constitutional, imposed no duty of en-

forcement upon the defendant and no duty nor necessity

of investigating as to its constitutionality. Neither his

oath of office nor the laws of the State of Arizona require

the Attorney General upon taking office to investigate and

announce his opinion upon the validity of the many laws

wilh respect to which duties are imposed upon him. It

is only when occasion has arisen which would require the

exercise of his duties that the necessity arises for him to

formulate his opinion and judgment as to the constitu-

tionality of the law.

The action by the State of Arizona to enforce the law

was filed in the state court on the 19th day of April, ic;40,

some two weeks after tlie violation. That tlie Attornev

General, an occasion having arisen calling for the exercise

of his duties if the law is valid, examined into its constitu-

tionality, fornnilated his opinion, and, some two weeks

after the violation, filed an acti{)n on behalf of the vState

to enforce the law, is no evidence whatever to contradict

the record that at the time this suit was filed and when
judgment was entered, there had been no act or threat on
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the part of the defendant to enforce the law, and is entire-

ly irrelevant and immaterial upon the question of whether

or not a case or controversy existed when the suit was filed.

It has no material bearing upon the question of whether

or not a controversy existed when the action was filed;

it in no way confirms the action sought to be pleaded; it

cures no jurisdictional defect ; it in no way establishes or

tends to establish the claim or intention of defendant at

the time the action was filed and before a violation.

(b) The situation presented by the Motion to Remand' and
response thereto shows the jurisdictional amount is not

involved.

From the matter appearing in plaintiff's Motion to Re-

mand, and defendant's response thereto, it is seen that the

action filed in the state court covers two violations. Under

the Train-Limit Law, if valid, the total penalty which

could be imposed is $i,ooo for each violation, or a total of

$2,000 for the two violations alleged in that complaint.

From defendant's response it will be seen that an order

was entered by the state court staying all other proceed-

ings pendings the determination of that action. Also that

the defendant has stated under oath that he will not prose-

cute any other actions pending the determination of that

action, and then only if the law is held constitutional. The

action places no restriction upon the length, kind or char-

acter of trains the plaintiff operates. It may do as it

pleases.

It is clear from the foregoing that if any controversy

nozv exists between plaintiff and defendant the amount in-

volved is limited to $2,000, the penalties for the violations

charged.

The bringing of any further actions is contingent upon

the law being held constitutional, presenting only an ab-

stract or hypothetical situation. And the defendant has
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denied an intention to prosecute further violations if the

law is held unconstitutional. He cannot as to further vio-

lations be charged, then, with threatening- an individual

wrong.

The penalty of v$2.ooo being less than the amount neces-

sary for federal jurisdiction, the suit would be dismissed

immediately upon such matters appearing.

Healy v. Ratta, 2^2 U. S. 263 ; 54 S. Ct. 700.

Washington etc. Co. v. District, 146 U. S. 22^] 13

S. Ct. 64.

Holt V. Indiana Mfg. Co., 176 U. S. 68; 20 S. Ct.

272.

Citizens Bank z\ Cannon, 164 U. S. 319; 17 S. Ct.

89.

(c) The situation presented by the Motion to Remand and
response thereto shows a want of equity jurisdiction.

An action under the Declaratory Judgment Act is an

equitable action.

Lumberman's etc. Co. v. Mclver, 27 Fed. Supp. 702.

Ohio Cas. Ins. Co. v. Plummer, 13 Fed. Supp. 169.

A stay order having been entered, there can be no

grounds for equitable relief and the facts presented show
a want of equity jurisdiction.

Chaniplin Refining Co. v. Corp. Comm., supra.

To avoid repetition in the record, we incorporate herein

by reference in opposition to the Motion to Remand the

argument and authorities presented in our memorandum
filed in opposition to the Motion to Remand.

I
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CONCLUSION

There is not presented here a case in which the de-

fendant is attempting to prevent the determination of the

question of the constitutionaHty of the Train-Limit Law
in a proper action within the jurisdiction of the Court

brought against a proper party having an interest in the

determination of the question.

The defendant is seeking to protect his elemental rights

as an individual and citizen that he may not be brought

into court charged and adjudged guilty of committing an

individual wrong when his only wrong, if wrong it be, is

that he was elected and qualified as Attorney General of

the State of Arizona ; that he be not held personally liable

in a judgment against him for costs in an action in which

he has no personal interest ; and that he not be subjected

to the personal burden and expense of defending the con-

stitutionality of an act which he has never undertaken or

threatened to enforce.

He is seeking to defend his individual rights against the

dangerous proposition advocated by the plaintiff that one

who qualifies as a state officer assumes personally and in

his individual capacity the responsibility and financial ex-

pense of defending the constitutionality of every state law

the enforcement of which is imposed upon his office.

We are constrained to agree with plaintiff that the case

presents an unusual situation, but we do not agree that the

"fallacious pretense," to which plaintiff refers, is on the

part of the defendant.

We cannot believe that any Court will approve the prop-

osition that the constitutionality of a state law may be

determined in an action against an officer in his individual

capacity merely because the duty of enforcement is imposed

in his office. To do so would be, in effect, to reduce to
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ex parte hearings suits to determine the constitutionality

of action by the highest legislative body of a state.

We respectfully submit that the judgment below should

be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

CHARLES L. STROUSS,
W. E. POLLEY,

Attorneys for Apellee,
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No. 9474

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

SoLTHERN Pacific Company,

(a corporation),

Appellant,
vs.

Joe Conway,
Appellee.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

(The parties are designated as in the trial Court, and the other

briefs in this court; i.e., Appellant as Plaintiff; Appellee as

Defendant.)

Appellee's (Defendant's) brief contains but little

not already presented at earlier stages of the case, and

therefore largely anticipated in our opening brief.

Consequently, this reply will be devoted principally to

pointing out what appear to us to be errors and omis-

sions in his discussion, with reference to those portions

of our opening brief where his major contentions are

reviewed at greater length.

Defendant's brief, pp. 1-2.

The complaint herein does not, as defendant asserts,

seek merely a declaration "that the Train Limit Law



is unconstitutional". It also asks that the statute be

declared ''unenforceable" (prayer of complaint; R.

44). This purpose is likewise particularly stated in

paragraphs II-c (R. 4), and XIV ,(R. 36) of the

complaint. It is also made clear therein (pars. Il-e,

XV; R. 5, 39-40) that the suit relates to the rights,

powers and duties of the parties. Such powers and

duties, so far as concerns defendant, "have to do solely

with the enforcement of the Law.

We stress this point at the outset because defend-

ant makes similar statements, at various other places

in his brief (e. g., pp. 10-11, 25), and indeed predicates

much of his argument thereon. Defendant has simply

overlooked the plain language and clear intendments

of the complaint.

Defendant's brief, pp. 5-8.

The record of the pre-trial conference (R. 75-76)

shows that defendant admitted that the Constitution

and Laws of Arizona confer upon him exclusive power

and duty to enforce the Train Limit Law (as alleged

in par. I-b of the complaint), "but in the case of a

constitutional law." He now says that because he

elsewhere admitted that the law is void, he has in

effect denied paragraph I-b, and was therefore prop-

erly shown as having done so in the ''corrected" pre-

trial order. Defendant thus treats his confession of

unconstitutionality (openly repudiated less than six

months later) as a jinal determination, which prevents

him from exercising or claiming any power or duty

under the Law; and pointedly ignores both his own



statement (R. 140) that the law's validity is for the

courts, not for him, to determine, and the authorities

(our opening brief, pp. 26-29) which establish that the

courts alone have such power, and that his own official

opinion, however solemnly announced, is merely ad-

visory.

Defendant's admission, far from being viewed as a

denial, should be regarded as if he had said

:

"I admit that the Law, if valid, imposes the

duty of prosecution on me; and while you (plain-

tiff) say that the Law is void, and I am inclined

to agree, neither your opinion nor mine is effec-

tive. The courts alone can effectively determine

that the Law is void."

As anticipated (our brief, p. 37), defendant seeks

to sustain the trial court's action in amending the

original pre-trial order so as to show that defendant

had denied (instead of admitted) an essential part of

paragraph XVI of the complaint (when in fact "the

whole of 16" was admitted, R. 90), by claiming that

the admission was inadvertent and unintentional.

This claim is clearly without substance. If defend-

ant's counsel were really inadvertent, they should have

realized that fact within a reasonable time after pre-

trial conference, and thereupon made appropriate

motion to reopen the conference or correct the record.

They made no such motion; they do not even now

assert that the stenographic record of the conference

is not correct, as printed in the transcript. Examina-

tion of that transcript shows that the admission was

deliberately and openly made, in response to a question



from the court in which counsel were virtually in-

vited to state whether they desired to specify that

any part of the paragraph should be regarded as

denied. For the court asked

:

^'16, the whole of 16, is admitted?"

and counsel replied:

''Is admitted, yes." (R. 90; emphasis ours.)

It is immaterial that the portion of paragraph XVI,

which the amended pre-trial order shows as denied,

resembles other allegations of the complaint which

defendant also assertedly denied. As stated above,

defendant in fact admitted (with the qualification ''in

the case of a constitutional law") the corresponding

allegation of paragraph I-b, though denying a some-

what similar allegation in paragraph XV. The pre-

trial record thus showed two admissions, and one

denial of allegations relating to defendant's claim to

be vested with the power and duty of enforcement.

The admissions are entirely consistent with defend-

ant's oral statements, on deposition, that he "had no

doubt" that he must enforce the law if constitutional,

in the event of violation (R. 132) ; that the determina-

tion of constitutionality was "up to the courts", not

to him (R. 140) ; that it is and will be his official duty

to prosecute "if it (the law) is violated"; even though

doubtful of validity (R. 141).

Incidentally, defendant did not, in Ms deposition,

anywhere deny that he claimed that the law imposed

upon him the duty of prosecution, but on the contrary,



expressly agreed that the official duty would arise in

the event of violation (R. 141) ; and he did not hesi-

tate to undertake that ''duty" almost at once, i.e.,

within fifteen days (see defendant's brief, pp. 30-31),

from the time a violation of the law assertedly took

place. Compare plaintiff's motion to remand, and

defendant's response thereto, both now part of this

Court 's record herein.

Where a pre-trial order controls the subsequent

proceedings (as here, under Rule 16 of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure) it should reflect, and not

contradict, the unchallenged record of the pre-trial

conference. The lower court's pre-trial order, as modi-

fied with respect to paragraphs I-b and XVI of the

complaint, was clearly erroneous ; and since the changes

resulted in serious and manifest injury to plaintiff,

they should be disregarded, and the original order (R.

92-93) accepted as controlling.

Defendant's brief, pp. 9, 10.

Although the record in the trial court shows that

the parties agree upon the abstract question of the

constitutionality of the challenged law, it does not

follow (as defendant asserts: brief, p. 10), that no

finding or conclusion on that point may or should be

entered. The question of validity is committed to the

determination of the courts, not the parties; and such

determination is essential, in order to dispose of the

actual controversy between the parties relating to the

power and duty of enforcement claimed by defendant

:

a power and duty admittedly created by the Law if



constitutional, which defendant has never disclaimed,

and which, within less than ten weeks from the date

of the trial court's judgment, he did attempt to exer-

cise, in spite of his supposed prior admission of in-

validity.

Defendant's brief, pp. 10-16.

Defendant states (brief, p. 11) that ''he has never

claimed the power or duty to enforce the Train Limit

Law"; and again contends that by admitting its inval-

idity and denying any duty to enforce an invalid law,

he has denied having any duty or power to enforce

this particular law. We have noted that the same

contention is made elsewhere in the brief, in much

the same language (e.g., at pp. 4, 8, 12, 16 and 25).

It was also anticipated in our opening brief : see pages

29 and following thereof.

We repeat that the statement and contention are

erroneous, in the light of the pre-trial record (R. 75-

76, 90, in particular) and defendant's deposition (R.

132, 140-141), and because based upon the false prem-

ise that defendant's own personal determination of

the question of validity is final and thus entirely suffi-

cient. We mention the point again only to make cer-

tain that it does not pass unchallenged.

The essential facts are that defendant not only ad-

mitted that, having taken his oath of office, he had no

doubt that he must enforce the Train Limit Law, if

constitutional (R. 132) ; he also went further, and

declared that he never had announced, and never

would amiounce, that he would refrain from enforce-
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ment (R. 141). Of course he would make no such

announcement; and subsequent events have proved

that he had determined to prosecute at once in the

event of violation.

Defendant argues that the Supreme Court's opinion

in Ex Parte LaPmde, 289 U. S. 444, 77 L. ed. 1311,

holds that the statutory imposition of the duty of

enforcement, thugh coupled with a formal taking of an

oath to perform the duty, does not constitute a threat

(brief, pp. 14-15). Plaintiff does not depend, in this

case, upon any allegation or showing of threat; none

is necessary in a suit for a declaratory judgment.

N. C. & St. L. By. Co. v. Wallace, 288 U. S. 249

(at p. 264), 77 L. ed. 730;

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth, 300 U. S. 227

(atp. 241),81L. ed. 617;

GitUy V. Interstate Natural Gas Co., 82 F. (2d)

145 (149).

We do contend, however, in harmony with the La-

Prade opinion, that when defendant has admitted:

(1) that he has taken the official oath, (2) that the oath

calls upon him to enforce the law if valid, (3) that he

cannot himself finally determine its validity, (4) that

he has the official duty to prosecute even though doubt-

ful of validity, and (5) that he has never disclaimed

or disavowed the intention to prosecute and says that

he never will; and when all this is reenforced by

defendant's exceedingly prompt action when a viola-

tion was reported: then there can be no doubt that

defendant has in fact, by statement and conduct, as-

serted throughout the course of this case the claim of
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an existing power and duty of enforcement, which he

fully intended from the first to exercise when occa-

sion arose.

It is immaterial whether, as defendant suggests

(brief, p. 14), plaintiff contends that defendant was

under obligation to disavow the intention to enforce.

While the LaPrade opinion certainly carries such an

intendment, the fact remains that even though defend-

ant might, as he now argues, have refused to state his

position when asked, he did not do so; but instead

declared (R. 141) that he never would avail himself

of the opportunity of avoiding official duty which the

LaPrade opinion appears to afford.

Defendant refers (brief, p. 16) to the ''negative

order" cas.es cited in our opening brief (at pp. 62-67)
;

i. e., the Rochester Telephone case, 307 U. S. 125, and

Perkins v. Elg, 807 U. S. 325; but it is particularly

noteworthy that he does not deny that his action—or

alleged "inaction"—in the present case has been de-

signed to prevent plaintiff from obtaining, in a Fed-

eral court, any relief from the admittedly invalid

restraints of the Law. The whole course of his con-

duct demonstrates that such was precisely his purpose.

Defendant also cites (p. 16) certain decisions to

support the point that where a defendant files a dis-

claimer, or admits the contentions of plaintiff, thus

tendering no issue, the case must be dismissed without

further proceedings, for lack of controversy. The
principle relied upon has no application here. De-

fendant's answer was not a disclaimer; in fact, as to



many of the major allegations it was in effect a denial

under Rule 8(b), in that he claimed to have no infor-

mation or knowledge sufficient to form a belief. Com-

pare paragraphs VIII, X, XII to XXI, inclusive,

XXIII and XXIV of his answer (R. 56-65, 68-70).

Apart from these averments, however, the answer

sufficiently challenged and denied, in particular, plain-

tiff's allegation that defendant claimed and main-

tained the right and duty of prosecution under the

Law ; and for that reason it was necessary to go to trial

to determine the issue.

It will be noted that defendant, even though re-

garded as having stipulated to the correctness of most

if not all of the allegations of basic facts respecting

the Train Limit Law, as set forth in the complaint,

never admitted outright that the Law conferred no

power or duty upon his office, and was therefore unen-

forceable; the most that he said was that the law, if

invalid as claimed by plaintiff, conferred no such

power. Since defendant could not himself effectively

determine that the Law was unconstitutional, and its

constitutionality is presumed until the opposite has

been determined by competent court decision, his

answer is in these respects equivalent to a claim that

the power and duty of enforcement continue, and the

Law is to be enforced until its invalidity be determined.

The subsequent trial record (i.e., defendant's deposi-

tion) established sufficiently that defendant did claim

the right and power of enforcement ; and the prosecu-

tion commenced by him on April 19, 1940, demon-

strates that fact beyond question. It is wholly incor-
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rect to say (defendant's brief, p. 16) that defendant

has at all times admitted that the Law is invalid, and

asserted that no duty of enforcement was imposed.

Defendant's brief, pp. 16-20.

In this portion of defendant's brief, he reviews the

record again, and contends that since there is no show-

ing of any act or threat by defendant to enforce the

Law, or indeed of any violations which would lead to

such action, the question of defendant's power and

duty, even if there were opposing claims duly ad-

vanced, is and would be purely abstract and hypo-

thetical.

We emphasize again, as in our opening brief, that

this argument is essentially the same as the view

adopted by the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals in

Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Haworth, 84 F. (2d) 695; and

we invite the Court's attention to that opinion (quoted

in part ,in our opening brief, Appx., p. iii), showing

that that court cited and relied upon many of the same

cases now cited by defendant to support his present

contention.

The Supreme Court's reversal of the Circuit Court's

decision in the Aetna Case has swept away the very

foundation of defendant's argument. The Supreme

Court held that a showing of threat is not necessary,

in a declaratory-judgment suit; that where parties

having interests in the subject matter present oppos-

ing claims, which are so ripened as to permit of a

definitive decree which will settle the issue, a suffi-

cient controversy for purposes of a declaratory judg-
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ment is presented, even though no irreparable injury

is threatened, and no injunction is sought.

Defendant argues, however, that a judgment or de-

cree entered upon this record, even assuming that

the parties present opposing claims, would be purely

advisory, applying to a hypotJwtical future situation

which might never arise. The fact is that the situa-

tion actually did arise; prosecution was not only

threatened, but undertaken, within two months and

five days from the date of the decree of the trial

Court herein.

To save repetition, we ask the Court to refer to

pages 44 and following of our opening brief, in which

this portion of defendant's argument (having been

made before, and therefore fully anticipated) is fur-

ther analyzed and refuted.

Defendant's brief, pp. 20-29.

This portion of defendant's brief is an attempt to

meet the argument at pages 67-85 of our opening

brief, and to show that defendant has no interest in

the subject matter; or, of he has, that it can be

ascribed to him solely by reason of his official status.

The argument is thus largely a repetition of that

foimd in subdivision IV (pp. 9-14) of his memo-
randum in opposition to our motion to remand. It is

based upon two essential premises, both of them un-

sound: (1) that the complaint involves only the

abstract question of the law's validity, and that de-

fendant's powers and duties are not in issue; and (2)

that Mr. Conway, the individual who occupies the
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office of Attorney-General, is wholly distinct from

Mr. Conway, the Attorney-General, and that his acts

or actions in his official capacity can have no relation

to his individual position.

The first premise has already been sufficiently dis-

cussed. As to the second, we refer the Court to the

argument at pages 69 and following of our opening

brief, with the following additional comment

:

The contention (defendant's brief, pp. 21-22) is

presented that Mr. Conway, as an individual, could

not bring the present action, because of lack of in-

dividual interest; therefore, it is said, he cannot be

made defendant herein. But the question is not

whether defendant could bring this particwlar action;

but whether he can, as an individual, be a party to

a controversy, in a/ny action involving the Train

Limit Law, or its enforceability. To that question

the decision in Ex Parte Young, 209 U. S. 123, fur-

nishes the conclusive answer. Defendant, though pur-

porting or claiming to act as Attorney-General, can

imquestionably sue plaintiff to enforce the law in the

event of violation (as he has actually done) ; but if the

law be invalid, as defendant in this suit has confessed,

then he is really acting only as an individual. De-

fendant can also, without suing, merely threaten to

prosecute if a violation is committed; and again, if

the law be invalid, he is still only an individual, act-

ing under color of the office, and still subject to suit

in that capacity. As the Supreme Court said, in the

Young Case (209 U. S. 123, at pp. 157-161)

:



^'The fact that the state officer by virtue of his

office has some connection with the enforcement

of the act is the important and material fact
* * *

"If the act which the state attorney general

seeks to enforce be a violation of the Federal

Constitution, the officer in proceeding under such

enactment comes into conflict with the superior

authority of that Constitution, and he is in that

case stripped of his official or representative

character and is subjected in his person to the

consequences of his individual conduct * * *

"His (the Attorney General's) power by virtue

of his office sufficiently connected him with the

duty of enforcement to make him a proper party

to a suit of the nature of the one now before the

United States Circuit Court."

In:

Worcester County Trust Co. v. Riley, 302 U.

S. 292,

a case much relied upon by defendant, the Court said

(at p. 297)

:

"The Eleventh Amendment * * * does not pre-

clude suits against a wrongdoer merely because

he asserts that his acts are within an official au-

thority which the state does not confer."

Defendant asserts that the doctrine of the Young
Case is inapplicable, because, so he says, the essence

of the action there was the act or threatened act of

the defendant official; whereas no act or threat by

defendant is involved here. Apart from the fact that

defendant has now not only threatened, but acted, this
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argument simply ignores the language of the Young

Case, above quoted, establishing that a state officer,

sued as an individual, is by his official connection with

the enforcement of a statute, and apai-t from any

threat, sufficiently made a proper party to a suit in

which that statute and his power to enforce it are

challenged; and also disregards the pronouncements,

in the Aetna and Wallace Cases, that in a declaratory

suit, where no injunction is sought (precisely the

situation here), a showing of impending irreparable

injury (i. e., of a threat, which would be subject to

injunction) is not required, as a prerequisite to a

justiciable controversy.

The opinion in the Worcester Case clearly does not

sustain defendant's argument. There the plaintiff

was seeking to enjoin certain state officials from un-

dertaking to collect a tax; and the Supreme Court

held that it was not made to appear that their con-

templated action involved any breach of the Federal

Constitution. Since they were acting within the

scope of official authority, the suit was held to be

against the state and therefore barred by the Eleventh

Amendment; but as noted above, the propriety of a

suit to restrain an individual, acting or claiming to

act under color of an invalid state law, was expressly

recognized.

The claim is made that an interest in the subject

matter can be conferred upon defendant only if the

suit be considered as brought against him officially

(defendant's brief, p. 28), because he has taken no

individual action. This argument is an ingenious at-
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tempt to avoid the effect of the ruling in the Young

Case; but it is doomed to failure for two reasons:

first, because it ignores the realities; and second, be-

cause it misconstrues the language of the Young

opinion. As to the first, defendant simply forgets that

he is the occupant of the office of Attorney General;

that he has taken the oath; that he has admitted that

he is duty bound to prosecute in the event of violation,

even though doubtful of the law's validity; that he

has stated that he had never announced and never

would announce that he would refrain from perform-

ing that duty; and, most of all, that he took prompt

action to prosecute plaintiff when occasion arose. De-

fendant has thus exercised the election of which he

speaks (brief, pp. 28-29), and demonstrated, if proof

be needed, that as the individual occupying the state

office he now has and has always had an interest in

the subject matter. As to the second, the opinion

speaks for itself; but we ask the Court also to review

the discussion at pages 70-84 of our opening brief.

Defendant's brief, pp. 29-33.

The argument in opposition to plaintiff's motion to

remand, in this portion of the brief, presents sub-

stantially nothing not heretofore considered, and re-

quires no extended comment.

Defendant makes a peculiar argument; for on

pages 29 to 31, inclusive, under point (a), he asserts

that his action of filing suit against plaintiff on April

19, 1940, has no relevancy whatever to the question

whether a controversy existed on April 18, 1939, when
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the instant suit was commenced, and contends in ef-

fect that the state court suit is to be entirely dis-

sociated from the present proceeding; whereas on

pages 32 and 33, under point (b), he treats the two

proceedings as being virtually one and the same, be-

cause he contends that the value of the amount in

controversy here must be measured by the amount of

the recovery sought in the other case. Of course, these

two contentions cannot both be true; and in fact,

neither is even approximately correct.

Certainly the state court suit cannot be wholly dis-

sociated from the present suit. The fact that there

had been no act committed or threat made by de-

fendant prior to April 19, 1940, is not controlling ; for

the existence of an actual controversy between plain-

tiff and defendant does not depend upon a showing

of threat made or action taken. It is noteworthy that

defendant does not effectively challenge our conten-

tion that his action on April 19, 1940, demonstrates

his "state of mind", as it has existed throughout the

case, and thus corroborates the conclusion which, we

assert, is properly to be drawn from his prior ad-

missions and statements: namely, that he has con-

tinuously claimed to be vested wdth the power and

duty of enforcement.

On the other hand, the two suits are by no means

identical. This action was not, as defendant seems to

believe, brought for the purpose of restraining the

state prosecution. No injunction is sought to prevent

the threatened collection of the penalties claimed

to be due. Whatever may be the rule as to the amount

in controversy in an action where the purpose is to
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enjoin the collection or threatened collection of a tax,

fee, or license exacted for the privilege of doing busi-

ness, that rule has no application here. This is a suit

involving the constitutional existence of a claimed

power to enforce a restrictive statute, and thus essen-

tially the validity of that statute. In such a suit, the

right to carry on the business free of the restriction

or, otherwise stated, the injury done to the business,

because of enforced compliance with the restriction,

is the matter in controversy; and the value of the

right or injury is the measure of the value or amount

in controversy. In the leading case upon which de-

fendant relies: Healij v. Ratta, 292 U. S. 263, the

Supreme Court (at p. 269) drew the essential dis-

tinction between a suit involving an attempt to en-

join collection of a tax or fee, and one in which the

challenge is directed to a statutory prohibition en-

forceable by prosecution.

We call attention further to the fact that, as stated

in our opening brief (pp. 95-96), the value of the

right sought to be established by the present suit, and

thus of the amount in controversy, has been admitted

and conceded by defendant to be greatly in excess of

the jurisdictional amount (R. 82-84).

Defendant's final point (brief, p. 33) is that the

instant case is an equitable action, and that no grounds

for equitable relief now exist because a stay order

has been entered in the state case. The point is with-

out merit. Defendant again simply confuses the in-

stant case with the state prosecution, assuming that

this suit may be regarded as one to enjoin defendant

from proceeding in the state court. Such is not its
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stated purpose ; and it is immaterial that further state

prosecutions are not immediately threatened. More-

over, this Court has recently held that a suit for a

declaratory judgment is S2ii generis, and not neces-

sarily either legal or equitable in character.

Pacific Indemnity Co. v. McDonald, 107 F.

(2d) 446 (448).

Compare, also,

Borchard 07i Declaratory Jwdgments, p. 120.

CONCLUSION.

As pointed out in our initial brief (pp. 83-84) what-

ever position defendant chooses to adopt, he cannot

avoid the fact that an actual controversy exists and

has existed herein from the beginning. The prosecu-

tion commenced by him on April 19, 1940, in the

name of the state, is merely conclusive evidence; and

as such it is now before this Court, as part of this

record, by virtue of plaintiff's showing on motion to

remand and the admissions of that showing contained

in defendant's response. It follows that defendant,

if claiming to have acted officially, is really claiming

that the law is valid (for only a valid law could con-

fer official status) ; and in that event his claim

squarely controverts plaintiff's claim that the law is

void, and confers no power at all. If, on the other

hand, defendant continues to admit, for the purposes

of this case, that the law is void, then his action is

purely individual, and he stands as such individual

asserting a power which, according to plaintiff's claim,

has no legal existence.
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Defendant represents himself (brief, p. 34) as an

individual whom plaintiff is seeking to have ''ad-

judged guilty of committing an individual wrong".

Nothing could be further from the facts. Plaintiff has

not sought any injunction, or damages, or even costs

against defendant; and although defendant has sued

plaintiff in the state court, to enforce a law which

he has here said he believes invalid, plaintiff still

seeks no coercive relief or damages, but only a declara-

tory judgment as to whether the law may be enforced

in the manner attempted.

The record, particularly as supplemented by our

motion and defendant's response, demonstrates that

the parties maintain definitely adverse claims respect-

ing a subject matter in which each has a legal interest.

All other essential facts having been determined, the

judgment should be reversed, and the cause remanded

for the entry of judgment as prayed in the com-

plaint; or, if the Court deems that the trial record

should be supplemented as proposed by our motion to

remand, that motion should be granted.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

August 28, 1940.

Respectfully submitted,

Alexander B. Baker,

Louis B. Whitney,

c. w. durbrow,

Henley C. Booth,

B URTON Mason,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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Plaintiff above named complains of defendant

above named and for his cause of action alleges as

follows

:
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I.

That this is a case arising under the laws pro-

viding for Internal Revenue, viz., it is an action

brought against a former Collector of Internal

Revenue by virtue of Sections 3220 and 3226 of the

Revised Statutes of the United States, being Sec-

tions 1670, 1672 and 1673 of Title 26, U.S.C.A., to

recover taxes and interest erroneously or illegally

assessed or collected.

II.

That at all of the times herein mentioned plain-

tiff was and is a citizen of the State of California,

a resident of the First Internal District therein

and of the Southern Division of the [1*] United

States District Court, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California.

III.

That at all the times herein mentioned, the de-

fendant was the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing Collector of United States Internal Revenue

for the First District of California in the State of

California and in the Southern Division of the

Northern District of California, save and except

that prior to the filing of this complaint, said de-

fendant resigned as said Collector of United States

Internal Revenue for the First District of Cali-

fornia.

IV.

That said defendant is a resident of the Southern

Division of the United States District Court, in and

for the Northern District of California.

*Pasre numbermi^ appearing at foot of page of originaJ certinec

franscriDt of Record.
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Y.

That the said, defendant heretofore and. on Janu-

ary 15th, 1936, assessed against said plaintiff and.

others, internal revenue taxes in the sum of $7,-

773.60 representing taxes on 9,700.8 gallons of dis-

tilled spirits, 2,916 proof gallons of alcohol con-

tained in mash.

VI.

That thereafter, and on October 5th, 1936, a war-

rant of distraint having been issued by defendant

against plaintiff, plaintiff entered, into an agree-

ment with the defendant whereby moneys coming

into the possession of the Spreckles Sugar Com-

pany of Salinas, California, as the result of the

sale of the 1936 sugar beet crop of plaintiff be

turned over to the Collector of Internal Revenue,

plaintiff reserving in said agreement that the pay-

ing to said defendant of said moneys was under

protest and without the waiver in plaintiff to sue

for the recovery of such moneys and without ad-

mitting any tax liability.

VII.

That in August, 1937, pursuant to said warrant

of distraint, [2] and pursuant to said agreement

referred to in paragraph VI there was collected by

said defendant from the Spreckles Sugar Company
at Salinas, California, the sum of $3,557.83 which

moneys were the property of plaintiff.
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VIII.

That thereafter, and on November 5th, 1937,

plaintiff filed with and presented to the defendant

a claim for refund of the moneys paid as herein-

above set forth and for abatement of the balance

of said taxes assessed.

IX.

That thereafter, and on March 2nd, 1938, the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue of the Treas-

ury Department of the United States rejected said

claim for refund and abatement; a copy of said

claim for refund and abatement and a copy of said

notice of rejection are hereto attached and marked,

Exhibits ''A" and "B", respectively.

X.

That plaintiff is informed and believes, and

therefore alleges on such information and belief

that the assessment of the Internal Revenue tax as

hereinabove referred to was levied against plain-

tiff under the provisions of Sections 3251 Revised

Statutes of the United States, which provides in

substance, that every proprietor or possessor of,

and every person in any manner interested in the

use of any still, distillery or distilling apparatus

shall be jointly and severally liable for the tax im-

posed by law on the distilled spirits produced there-

from and under the provisions of Section 3248 of

the Revised Statutes, which provides that such tax

shall attach to the operation whether in the mash or

separated by distillation.
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XI.

That plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon

such information and belief alleges that said as-

sessment of internal [3] revenue tax, as herein set

forth, was assessed against plaintiff by defendant

upon the theory that plaintiff was a proprietor or

possessor of, and a person interested in the use of a

distillery seized on a part of a ranch situated in

the County of Monterey, State of California, on

Jmie 3rd, 1935, by agents of the Alcoholic Tax

Unit of the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

XII.

That plaintiff alleges that he was not and never

had been the proprietor or possessor of said still

seized as set forth in paragraph XI, nor was he a

person in any manner interested in the use of such

still, or distillery or distilling apparatus, and that

the said portion of said ranch upon which said still,

distillery and distilling apparatus was seized was

not the property of said plaintiff, nor was such

property under his control or jurisdiction and that

he did not in any manner have any interest in the

use of such still, distillery or distilling apparatus,

and that he was not and is not liable for the in-

ternal revenue taxes assessed against him as set

forth in paragraph V hereof.

XIII.

Plaintiff alleges that the sum of $3,557.83 seized

and collected by defendant from plaintiff, as alleged
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in paragraph VII hereof, was wrongfully and er-

roneously seized and collected by defendant for the

reason that plaintiff was not liable for the internal

revenue taxes assessed against him as set forth in

paragraph V hereof.

Wherefore, because of the premises, plaintiff

prays that he have judgment against defendant for

the siun of $3,557.83, interest thereon, as provided

by law, costs of suit herein and such other relief as

may be proper and just.

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY
Plaintiff.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [4]

Northern District of California

State of California

County of Monterey—ss.

Frank A. Dougherty, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says

:

That he is the plaintiff in the above-entitled

action; that he has read the foregoing Complaint

and knows the contents thereof; that the same is

true of his own knowledge except as to the matters

stated therein on information and belief and as to

those matters he believes it to be true.

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of April, 1938.

[Seal] MARGERY PALMTAG
Notary Public in and for the County of Monterey,

State of California. [5]
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EXHIBIT A
Claim

To Be Filed With the Collector Where Assessment

Was Made or Tax Paid

The Collector will indicate in the block below the

kind of claim filed, and fill in the certificate on the

reverse side.

Collector's Stamp

(Date received)

Received

Nov 26 1937

( ) Refund of Tax Illegally Collected.

( ) Refmid of Amount Paid for Stamps Un-

used, or Used in Error or Excess.

( ) Abatement or Tax Assessed (not applicable

to estate or income taxes).

State of California

County of Monterey—ss:

Name of taxpayer or purchaser of stamps Frank

A. Dougherty.

Business address (Street) Rt. 1, Box 292, (City)

Salinas, (State) California.

Residence _

The deponent, being duly sworn according to law,

deposes and says that this statement is made on

behalf of the taxpayer named, and that the facts

given below are true and complete

:
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1. District in which return (if any) was filed

San Francisco, California. November, 34.

2. Period (if for income tax, make separate

form for each taxable year) from Distilled Spirits

Tax—Special Tax, 19 , to , 19

3. Character of assessment or tax 7,773.60—$3,

557.83 (explanation attached).

4. Amount of assessment, $ ; dates of

payment

5. Date stamps were purchased from the Gov-

ernment 3,557.83

6. Amount to be refunded ($7,773.60) $ all

7. Amount to be abated (not applicable

to income or estate taxes) 1433 $

8. The time within which this claim may be le-

gally filed expires, under Section Title 26, U. S.

C. A. of the Revenue Act of 19 , on August 14,

1941.

The deponent verily believes that this claim

should be allowed for the following reasons:

Claimant for abatement and refund herein bases

his claim for such abatement and refmid upon the

following facts:

Claimant was in the years 1934 and 1935 the

lessee of a certain ranch situated in the County of

Monterey, State of California, comprising ap-

proximately 1500 acres.

Upon this ranch claimant raises cattle and

raised and harvested sugar beets. During this same

period, claimant also operated upon said ranch

what is known as a United States Army Stallion
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Station under assignment from the United States

Army.

Claimant has farmed this ranch under lease for

many years prior to the year 1934. The fee to the

ranch is owned by Robert Fatjo, a banker residing

in the Town of Santa Clara, Santa Clara County,

California.

Sometime dming the month of October, 1934,

three men, Bianchini, Biagi and one Angelo Rodni

went to the Dougherty ranch and sub-leased from

the claimant, Frank A. Dougherty, some tw^enty

acres of the ranch which Dougherty had under

lease from Fatjo. These twenty acres were leased

at a rental of $400.00 for a period of one year.

The claimant, Dougherty, was informed by the

persons who leased this acreage that the acreage

was to be used for the raising of chickens. In-

cluded in this subleased acreage was a horse barn

and corral which w^as adjacent to the farm resi-

dence of the claimant.

On June 3rd, 1935, certain agents of the Alco-

holic Tax Unit of the Internal Revenue Service

went to the subleased acreage herein referred to

and there found an alcoholic still in operation. They

arrested certain persons in the vicinity of the still.

They thereafter went to the farm residence of the

claimant, Dougherty, and placed him under arrest.

Thereafter, the Federal Grand Jury for the North-

ern District of California returned an indictment

at San Francisco, charging the claimant Dougherty,

and Dante Brunza, Angelo Rodni, Guiseppe Quinto,
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George Harrison, [7] Guiseppe Biagi and Guillo

Bianchini, in seven counts, with violation of

Title 26, U.S.C.A., Sections 281, 282, 284, 306, 307,

and a conspiracy to violate the above mentioned

sections of the Internal Revenue Laws with respect

to illicit distilling, (Title 18, Section 88, U.S.C.A.).

Thereafter, in the latter part of January, 1936,

all apprehended defendants, with the exception of

the claimant, having pleaded guilty, the indictment

was called for trial before the Honorable Michael

J. Roche sitting in the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, after a trial by a jury,

and on January 31st, 1936, the claimant Dougherty

was found not guilty on all counts of the in-

dictment.

On January 15th, 1936, the Collector of Internal

Revenue at San Francisco, California served upon

claimant Dougherty notice and demand for tax.

That said note is dated January 15th, 1936, and

under the column "Name and Address", appears

the following:

''Dougherty Frank A Case 3814-M

Rt 1 Box 292 List Nov 1935

Salinas Calif Page 515—3"

Under the column "Items", there appears the

words

:

"5832 00

1941 60"

Under the column "Paid", nothing appears;
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Under the column "Assessments", appears

"7773 60"

Under the column "Description", appears the

following

:

"Distilled Spirits

Tax on 2916 P Gal Mash

Tax on 970 8 P Gal Ale

November 1934"

Thereafter, and on March 30th, 1936, there was

filed in the office of the County Recorder of the

County of Monterey, State of California, notice of

tax lien imder Internal Revenue Laws which

notice [8] is indexed in the said County Recorder's

office as No. 27488 and a copy of which notice is in

words and figures, as follows:

"Form 668

Revised Oct. 1928

Treasury Department

Internal Revenue Service

NOTICE OF TAX LIEN UNDER
INTERNAL REVENUE LAWS

No. 85-1936

United States Internal Revenue,

First District of California

March 28, 1936

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 3186

of the Revised statutes of the United States,

as amended by Section 613 of the Revenue Act

of 1928 (Act of May 29, 1928, 45 Stat., 875),
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notice is hereby given that there have been as-

sessed under the Internal Revenue Laws of

the United States against the following named
taxpayer, taxes (including penalties) which

after demand for payment thereof remain un-

paid, and that by virtue of the above-men-

tioned statute the amount of said taxes, to-

gether with interest, penalties, and costs that

may accrue in addition thereto, is a lien in

favor of the United States upon all property

and rights and property belonging to said tax-

payer, to-wit:

Name of tax payer Frank A. Dougherty,

Residence or place of business Rt. #1, Box
292, Salinas, Calif.,

Nature of tax Distilled Spirits—Special tax

Taxable period Nov. 1934

Amount of tax assessed $7773.60

5% Pen 388.68

Additional (penalty) tax assessed $

Interest from date of notice until date of

payment

Date assessment list received

1935—Nov. page 515 : Line 3-4-5.

JOHN Y. LEWIS,
Collector.

CERTIFICATE OF OFFICER AUTHOR-
IZED BY LAW TO TAKE ACKNOWL-
EDGMENTS. [9]
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State of California

County of Monterey—ss.

On this day personally appeared before me

a notary i^ublic in and for the state and

county aforesaid, John V. Lewis, (Official

title) Collector of Internal Eevenue for the

First District of California, to me well known

as the person who executed the foregoing in-

strument, and acknowledged that he executed

the same for the purposes therein expressed.

In Witness Whereof I have hereimto set my
hand and official seal, this the 28th day of

March, 1936.

[Seal] A. B. EEADING
Notary Public, in and for the County of Ala-

meda, State of California.

My commission expires 8/27/36.

To Recorder of Monterey County,

Salinas, Calif.,

Indexed No. 27488

United States Collector of Internal Revenue

Mar. 30, 1936

at 30 min. past 8 AM
in Vol of Official Records

Page Monterey County.

John E. Wallace, Recorder

by E. Wallace, Deputy."

In the harvesting of sugar beets in the area

where claimant's leased ranch was situated, it had
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been the practice for the Spreckles Sugar Com-

pany to advance to the ranchers the necessary

funds with which to harvest the sugar beets. There-

after, the sugar beets were delivered to the

Spreckles Sugar Company who would deduct the

money advanced by [10] them and pay over to the

ranchers the sale price of the sugar beet crop.

During the harvest time of 1936, because of the

fact that notice of the tax lien had been served on

the Spreckles Sugar Company, the Company re-

fused to advance the moneys necessary to harvest

the crop of claimant without a clearance for their

protection from the Collector of Internal Revenue.

To obviate this situation, the claimant delivered to

the Collector of Internal Revenue at San Fran-

cisco, on or about October 5th, 1936, an agreement

to the effect that the Spreckles Sugar Company

could advance the moneys necessary for the harvest-

ing of sugar beet crop and that after delivery of

the crop to the Sugar Company, the proceeds of

the crop, less the advance made by the Sugar Com-

pany, should be delivered to the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue. This direction to the Collector of

Internal Revenue reserved in the claimant any

right he may have had to protest the levy of the

tax or the pajmient thereof. Said direction to the

Collector of Internal Revenue is in words and fig-

ures as follows:
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''October 5, 1936.

To Hon. John V. Lewis,

Collector of Internal Revenue,

Federal Office Building,

San Francisco, California.

Dear Sir:

The undersigned, Frank Dougherty, hereby

consents that any moneys now in the hands of,

or to come into the hands of the Spreckels

Sugar Company at Salinas, as the result of the

sale of his present 1936 sugar beet crop be

turned over to the Collector of Internal Reve-

nue, after deducting the necessary expenses

for the harvesting of said crop.

By this consent, the undersigned does not

waive his right to protest the assessment

and/or collection of those certain taxes covered

by warrant of distraint heretofore issued

against him by the Bureau of Internal Reve-

nue, nor does he hereby waive any rights he

may have to sue for the recovery of any such

moneys seized by the Collector of Internal

Revenue, as a result of said warrant of dis-

traint, nor does he, in any wise, by the execu-

tion of this instrument, admit the tax liability

described in said warrant of distraint.

FRANK DOUGHERTY. [11]
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State of California,

County of Monterey—ss.

On this 5th day of October, in the year One

Thousand Nine Hundred and thirty-six before

me, J. T. Harrington, a Notary Public, in and

for the County of Monterey, personally ap-

peared Frank Dougherty, known to me to be

the person whose name is subscribed to the

within instrument, and acknowledged to me
that he executed the same.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed my Official Seal, at my
office in the County of Monterey, State of

California, the day and year in this certificate

first above written.

[Seal] J. T. HAERINGTON,
Notary Public in and for the County of Mon-

terey, State of California."

As a result of this direction to the Collector of

Internal Revenue, the Spreckles Sugar Company

turned over to the Collector the sum of $3,557.83.

This amount is the amount claimant here prays the

refund and abatement of. He also asks abatement

of the balance of the assessment in the sum of

$4,215.77.

It is the contention of the claimant that there is

no tax liability on him for the mash and alcohol al-

leged to have been produced on that part of the

ranch which he had leased to other persons.
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Claimant contends

—

(1) That he had no knowledge that an illicit

distillery was being conducted on the said ranch;

(2) That under the provisions of Title 26, U.S.

C.A., Section 1150, Subdivision 6 (d) persons liable

for tax on distilled spirits are "every proprietor or

possessor of, and every person in any manner inter-

ested in the use of any still, distillery or ap-

paratus"; that claimant was not a proprietor or

possessor, or a person interested in any manner in

the use of a still, distillery or distilling apparatus

situated on the portion of the ranch that he had

subleased, and therefore, could not [12] be liable

for any tax on the mash or distilled spirits pro-

duced
;

(3) That even though claimant could be found

to have had knowledge that the illicit distillery was

being operated on the premises he had subleased,

unless he was a proprietor, a possessor or a person

interested in the use of such still, distillery or dis-

tilling apparatus, there would be no tax liability

upon him. The fact that he received rent from the

operators of the illicit distillery would not render

him liable for the tax due on such illicit distilled

spirits. It is the contention of claimant that the

language in Section 1150, Title 26, U.S.C.A., Sub-

division 6 (d)—"every person in any manner inter-

ested in the use of" means a direct interest in the

business and not merely an indirect interest in the

success of a business as belonging to other persons.
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Therefore, the rent received by claimant would not

be such an interest in the use of the still, distillery

or distilling apparatus as would render him liable

for the tax on mash and spirits produced; and

(4) That claimant was tried in the United

States District Court upon all charges involving the

operation of an illicit distillery that could be

pressed against him and was by a jury found not

guilty of all such charges. [13]

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY
Signed ,

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 5th day

of November, 1937.

[Seal] MARGERY PALMTAG,
Notary Public

Monterey County Notary Public

(Title)

(Reverse Side Not Filled In) [6]
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EXHIBIT B

Treasury Department

Washington

[Seal]

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

Address Reply to

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

and Refer to

AT:T:CSA
CI. No. DS-107898

Mar. 2, 1938

Mr. Frank A. Dougherty,

Route No. 1, Box 292,

Salinas, California.

Sir:

Your claim for refund of $3,557.83, and abate-

ment of an outstanding assessment in the amount

of $4,215.77, has been considered.

It appears that an assessment in the amount of

$7,773.60, representing tax on 970.8 gallons of dis-

tilled spirits and 2,916 proof gallons of alcohol con-

tained in mash, was made against you and others

on the Distilled Spirits List for November 1935,

page 515, line 3, for the First Collection District

of California. It further appears that the amount

of $3,557.83 was paid by you in August, 1937.

You request refund of the amount paid, and

abatement of the outstanding assessment in the
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amount of $4,215.77, based on your statement that

the land on which the still was located had been

leased to other persons and that you had no knowl-

edge that an illegal distillery was being operated

thereon.

Section 3251, Revised Statutes, provides that

every proprietor or possessor of, and every person

in any manner interested in the use of any still,

distillery, or distilling apparatus, shall be jointly

and severally liable for the taxes imposed by law |

on the distilled spirits produced therefrom, [14]

and Section 3248, Revised Statutes, provides that

the tax shall attach to the spirits whether in the

mash or separated by distillation.

The records on file in this office disclose that you

had such interest in the distillery in question as to

make you liable under the sections of law referred

to above to the tax on the spirits seized. Your

claim, is therefore, rejected.

Payment of the outstanding assessment in the

amount of $4,215.77 should be made to the Collec-

tor of Internal Revenue at San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, together with penalty and any interest

which may have accrued.

By direction of the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue

:

Respectfully,

STEWART BERKSHIRE,
Deputy Commissioner.

By Registered Mail imt.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 4, 1938. [15]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER
Defendant admits the allegations contained in

paragraphs I, II, III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX,

X and XI of the complaint and denies each and

every other allegation contained in the complaint.

Wherefore the defendant demands

:

1. That the plaintiff take nothing by reason of

his action;

2. That the defendant be hence dismissed with

his costs of suit herein incurred;

3. Such other and further relief as may seem

to this court just and equitable in the premises.

FRANK J. HENNESSY,
United States Attorney,

Attorney for Defendant.

(Admission of Service)

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 15, 1939. [16]

[Title of District Court.]

At a Stated Term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, held at the Court Room thereof,

in the City and County of San Francisco, on Tues-

day, the 8th day of August, in the year of our

Lord one thousand nine hundred and thirty-nine.
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Present; the Honorable Michael J. Roche,

District Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

This cause having been heretofore tried and sub-

mitted, being now fully considered, and the Court

having filed its Memorandum Opinion thereon, it is,

in accordance with said Memorandum Opinion,

Ordered that judgment be entered herein in favor

of the defendant and against the plaintiff, upon

findings of fact and conclusions of law to be pre-

pared by the attorney for the defendant in accord-

ance with Rule 42 of this Court, and that the de-

fendant recover the costs of this action. [17]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM OPINION

Roche, District Judge:

This is a civil action against a Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the recovery of taxes and inter-

est paid under protest by plaintiff. The defendant,

hereafter called the Collector, relies upon section

3251 of the Revised Statutes of the United States

(26 U.S.C.A. 1150(d), for his assessment and col-

lection of taxes and interest from plaintiff. The

applicable portion of section 3251 reads as follows:

"Every proprietor or possessor of, and every

person in any manner interested in the use of,

any still, distillery or distilling apparatus shall
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be jointly and severally liable for the taxes im-

posed by law on the distilled spirits produced

therefrom."

Plaintiff, the lessee of a sixteen hundred acre

ranch, in 1934 sublet twenty acres on the south

west side of his residence to certain individuals,

who utilized a barn on the rented property—and

within 200 feet of plaintiff's house—for the illegal

operation of a still. At the trial, a written agree-

ment was submitted in evidence to show that the

sublessees were to pay plaintiff an ammal [18]

rental of $400.00; but testimony was likewise pro-

duced by the parties to the agreement that plain-

tiff was to receive $125.00 per month for the use of

his premises. Furthermore, proof was presented to

show that plaintiff was fully aware of the use to

which his property was being put and that he per-

mitted such use despite its illegality. In 1935 the

sublessees were apprehended for their violation of

the internal revenue laws on plaintiff's premises.

The Collector, upon discovering the relationship of

plaintiff to the liquor traffic, invoked section 3251

of the Revenue Act, quoted above, and assessed him

for the distilled spirits produced on his leased

property. Plaintiff denied, and continues to deny,

liability. The Collector, while not urging that

plaintiff is a ''proprietor or possessor of" a still,

contends that he is a person interested in the use

of a still, distillery or distilling apparatus. Evi-

dence at the trial was limited to this single issue.
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The question before the court is this: Has plaintiff,

through his conduct and relationship with men en-

gaged in the operation of a still on plaintiff's

premises, shown himself to be "in any manner

interested in the use of any still'"?

Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes of the

United States was made a part of the revenue laws

in order to prevent fraud against the government.

It is to be construed so as to accomplish the inten-

tion of the legislature (U. S. v. Wolters (S. D. Cal.

1891) 46 F. 509, 510). When the internal revenue

laws were passed in 1868, Congress deemed it ad-

visable to make liable persons other than proprie-

tors and possessors of stills in order to curb

completely the illicit liquor business. Hence the

inclusions of ''every person in any manner inter-

ested". The cases construing this language are few

in number. Decisions, such as U. S. v. Wolters,

above, w^hich hold that stockholders of corpora-

[19] tions are "interested", do not assist the court

in the problem now before it, nor does the state

ruling in Brown v. State (Ark. 1923) 255 S. W.
878, which holds that an intermediary to a liquor

transaction is "interested"—unless plaintiff's ac-

quiescence and negative activities on the premises

can be said to make him an intermediary. (U. S.

V. Dellaro, (1938) 99 F2d 781, holds that acquies-

cence does not make such an individual a criminal

accessory, but is merely indicative of an interest.)

The only ruling on a set of facts which come
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close to paralleling those in the case at bar may be

found in the jury trial of United States v. Van
Slyke (1878) 28 F. Cas. 363, No. 16,610. In the Van
Slyke case the owner of premises used for the dis-

tillation of liquor was being sued for taxes. Under

these circumstances the court instructed the jury

that the interest of a secret pai'tner was necessary

before the defendant might be held liable. Such an

instruction appears to set too high a standard for

the government to comply with in order to make

section 3251 workable in the case at bar. Yet it may

have been justified under the facts of the Van

Slyke case, for it appears from the report that the

defendant may have had no knowledge of what was

going on, but was merely acting as a landlord. In

speaking of the importance of laiowledge on the

part of the defendant and its affect on ''interest"

the court instructed the jury:

"But his knowledge, if he had such knowledge,

that the distillery v/as being run contrary to

law and that the taxes were not being paid, and

his conduct in relation thereto, are all to be

considered as part of the evidence in this case,

and it is for jovi to say how far they bear upon

the question of his interest in the distillery

business."

Such language, when taken with the original stand-

ards set by the court, would indicate that profit

taking, with knowledge of the source of the profits,
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constitutes the taker a man with the kind of interest

required by section [20] 3251 of the Revised Stat-

utes of the United States, and that such a man
would be liable for taxes. In the case before the

court, the issue of secret partnership has not been

raised, but ample proof has been presented to show

that the plaintiff was well aware of the source of

his rental, and that he clearly benefited by reason

of his interest in the enterprise. A review of all the

evidence on the subject of rental payments con-

vinces the court that the amount received by plain-

tiff far exceeded the sum which might be earned in

a legitimate farming enterprise. Plaintiff's knowl-

edge, plus his monetary compensation for per-

mitting the liquor business to be operated on his

premises, together give rise to an interest in plain-

tiff within the meaning of the language contained

in section 3251.

Upon due consideration of the entire case, the

court finds that plaintiff is not entitled to recover

taxes and interest paid under protest. Judgment

will be entered in favor of the Collector, together

with the costs of this action.

August 8, 1939.

MICHAEL J. ROCHE
United States District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 8, 1939. [21]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO FINDINGS OF FACT AND CON-
CLUSION OF LAW PROPOSED BY DE-

FENDANT.

Now comes the plaintiff herein and in pur-

suance to the rule of Court proposes the following

amendments to the findings of fact and conclusions

of law heretofore proposed by defendant herein

and lodged with the Clerk of the Court herein:

FINDINGS OF FACT

Plaintiff proposes that defendant's proposed find-

ings of fact contained on page 2 of said proposed

findings of fact and conclusions of law, beginning

with paragraph II, line 20 thereof down to and in-

cluding page 3, line 28 thereof, be stricken, and in

lieu thereof, the following be substituted:

In October, 1934, three men, Biagi, Bianchini and

Rodoni [22] and others entered into an agreement

to set up the operation of an unregistered, un-

bonded distillery for the distilling of alcohol with

intent to defraud the United States of the internal

revenue tax on the alcohol produced. Plaintiff

herein, w^ho was the lessee of a certain 1600-acre

ranch, subleased to one Rodoni 20 acres of said 1600-

acre lanch, the said 20 acres so subleased contain-

ing barns and outhouses and that plaintiff subleased

said 20 acres for a period of twelve months at a

rental of $400.00 for said period of twelve months;
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that i^laintiff so leased said 20 acres for farming

and cattle raising purposes.

That plaintiff received in payment mider said

sublease the sum of $200.00 in two payments of

$100.00 each.

That on June 3rd, 1935, certain agents of the

Alcohol Tax Unit of the Internal Revenue Service

entered upon said subleased 20 acres and found

therein an unlicensed and imregistered distillery

and the Collector of Internal Revenue thereafter

determined that there had been produced in said dis-

tillery upon said subleased 20 acres 3,886 proof

gallons of alcohol.

That plaintiff was not aware of the use to which

the property was intended to be put and did not

agree or permit that such property be used for the

illicit production of alcohol in violation of the In-

ternal Revenue Laws of the United States.

That plaintiff* had no other interest in the 20

acres subleased except that he received therefor the

rental agreed upon.

That plaintiff was not fiiatancially interested in the

still located upon said 20 subleased acres.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Plaintiff proposes that defendant's proposed con-

clusions of law, contained on j^age 4 thereof, be-

ginning with paragraph I, line 24 thereof and in-

cluding therein paragraph II, and paragraphs III
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and ly on page 5, be stricken and in place thereof

the following conclusions of law be included: [23]

I.

That plaintiff was not a person interested in the

use of the still, distillery or distilling apparatus

within the meaning of Section 3251 of the Revised

Statutes (Section 1150d of Title 26, U.S.C.A.)

II.

That plaintiff was and is not liable for the in-

ternal revenue taxes assessed against him.

III.

That the sum of $3,557.83 seized and collected by

defendant from plaintiff and wrongfully and incor-

rectly seized and collected and that plaintiff is en-

titled to its return with interest as provided by law.

ly.

That the plaintiff is entitled to judgment against

defendant in the sum of $3,557.83, together wdth

interest thereon, and for his costs of suit herein

incurred.

Dated: August 18th, 1939.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Lodged 8/18/39. [24]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW

This cause came on regularly for trial in the

above entitled court, the plaintiff Frank A. Dough-

erty appearing by his attorney James B. O'Connor,

and the defendant John V. Lewis appearing and

being represented by W. F. Mathewson, Assistant

United States Attorney, evidence was adduced by

the respective parties and the cause was duly

argued by counsel, both orally and upon written

Briefs subsequently filed, and the court now being

fully advised in the premises finds the following:

FINDINGS OF FACTS

I.

This is an action brought against a former Col-

lector [25] of Internal Revenue by virtue of Sec-

tions 3220 and 3226 of the Revised Statutes of the

United States, (Sections 1670, 1672, and 1673 of

Title 26 USCA), to recover taxes and interest al-

leged to have been erroneously or illegally assessed

or collected. The plaintiff is a citizen of the State

of California and a resident of the Southern Di-

vision of the United States District Court in and

for the Northern District of California. The de-

fendant also is a resident of the Southern Division

of the United States District Court in and for the

Northern District of California, and was the duly

appointed, qualified and acting Collector of the
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United States Internal Revenue for the First Dis-

trict of California, in the State of California, and

in the Southern Division of the Northern District

of California, at the time of the assessment and

collection of the taxes. Prior to the tiling of the

Complaint the defendant lesigned as Collector of

the United States Internal Revenue for the First

District of California.

II.

In October, 1934, three men, Biagi, Bianchini

and Rodoni, entered into an agreement to set up

and operate an unregistered, unbonded illegal dis-

tillery for the production of alcohol with intent to

defraud the United States of the Internal Revenue

taxes on the alcohol produced. To effectuate this

scheme the plaintiff agreed with these three men to

permit them to set up the distillery in a barn lo-

cated upon a portion of a 1600 acre ranch leased

by the plaintiff. This agreement was in considera-

tion of the monthly payment to the plaintiff of the

sum of $125.00 and upon the condition that these

three men would attempt to protect the plaintiff

from the criminal and tax liabilities [26] incident

to the unlawful still operation. To effectuate this

condition of the agreement one of these men signed

with a fictitious name and delivered to the plaintiff

a document purporting to be a lease for 14 months

at a rental of $400 of 20 acres of the plaintiff's

leased ranch.
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The stated purpose of the purported lease was

dry stock feeding.

In October, 1934, the three men in accordance

\Yith the agreement set up an unlicensed and un-

registered distillery in a barn located on the prem-

ises described in the ''lease", 200 feet from the

plana tiff's residence. This distillery was not oper-

ated continuously but was operated in October and

N'ovember, 1934 and in May, 1935. The production

was determined by the Collector of Internal Reve-

nue to be 3886 proof gallons of alcohol. The correct-

ness of this determination and the amount of the

tax subsequently assessed was not questioned by

plaintiff. The plaintitf received the monthly rental

of $125.00 for each of the three months the still was

in operation.

The plaintiff was fully aware of the use to which

the property was intended to be and was put and

agreed to and permitted such use with full knowl-

edge of its illegality. The plaintiff knew the illegal

source of his share in the enterprise which in

amoimt far exceeded the sum which might have been

earned as rental for the use named in the "lease"

or any legitimate farming enterprise, conducted on

the "leased" premises.

III.

The defendant on January 15, 1936 assessed

against the plaintiff and others Internal Revenue

taxes in the sum of $7773.60 representing taxes on
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970.8 gallons of distilled [27] spirits and 2916 proof

gallons of alcohol contained in mash. On October 5,

1936 a warrant of distraint having been issued by

the defendant against the plaintiff, plaintiff entered

into an agreement with the defendant whereby

money coming in to the possession of the Spreckels

Sugar Company of Salinas, California, as a result

of the sale of the 1936 beet crop of plaintiff be

turned over to the Collector of Internal Revenue.

This agreement provided that the payment to the

defendant of such money was under protest and

without the waiver of plaintiff's right to sue for its

recovery and was not an admission of any tax lia-

bility. In August 1937 pursuant to the warrant of

distraint and such agreement there was collected by

the defendant from the Spreckels Sugar Company

at Salinas, California, the sum of $3557.83, which

money was the property of the plaintiff. On No-

vember 5, 1937, plaintiff filed with and presented to

the defendant a claim for refund of the money paid

and for abatement of the balance of the tax as-

sessed. On March 2, 1938, the Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue of the Treasury Department of the

United States rejected this claim for refund and

abatement.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

That within the meaning of Section 3251 of the

Revised Statutes (Section 1150d of Title 26 United
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States Code Annotated) the plaintiff was a person

interested in the use of the still, distillery and dis-

tilling apparatus;

II.

That the plaintiff was and is liable for the In-

ternal Revenue taxes assessed against him; [28]

III.

That the sum of $3557.83 seized and collected by

defendant from plaintiff was rightfully and cor-

rectly seized and collected and plaintiff is not en-

titled to its return;

lY.

That the defendant is entitled to a judgment

against plaintiff for his costs of suit herein in-

curred.

Dated: This 17th day of October, 1939.

MICHAEL J. ROCHE
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Lodged Aug. 14, 1939. Filed Oct. 17,

1939. [29]

\

I
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In the Southern Division of the United States

District Court for the Northern District of

California.

No. 20425-R

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY,
Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN y. LEWIS, former Collector of Internal

Revenue for the First District of California,

Defendant.

JUDGMENT ON FINDINGS

This cause having come on regularly for trial

upon the 13th day of June, 1939, before the Court

sitting without a jury, a trial by juiy having been

waived by attorneys; Jas. B. O'Connor, J. J. Har-

rington and William Danielson, Esqrs., appearing

as attorneys for plaintiff, and Hon. Frank J.

Henness}^ United States Attorney, Wilbur F.

Mathewson, and William E. Licking, Esqrs., As-

sistant United States Attorneys, appearing on be-

half of defendant, and the trial having been pro-

ceeded with on the 14th day of June, in said year

and term, and oral and documentary evidence on

behalf of the respective parties having been intro-

duced and closed, and the cause having been sub-

mitted to the Court for consideration and decision;

and the Court after due deliberation, having

I'endered its decision and filed its findings, and
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ordered that judgment be entered in favor of de-

fendant and for costs in accordance with said

findings

:

Now, therefore, by virtue of the law and by rea-

son of tlie findings aforesaid, it is considered by

the Court that plaintiff take nothing by this action

and that defendant go hereof without day, and that

said defendant do have and recover of and from

said plaintiff his costs herein expended taxed

at $

Judgment entered this 19th day of October, 1939.

WALTER B. MALING
Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 19, 1939. [30]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE

To Messrs. Faulkner & O'Connor,

Attorneys at Law,

1101 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

Hon. Frank J. Hemiessy,

U. S. Attorney,

Post Office Building,

San Francisco, California.

You Are Hereby Notified that on October 19th,

1939 a Judgment On Findings was entered of rec-
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Old in this office in the above entitled case.

WALTER B. MALING,
Clerk.

San Francisco, California. October 19th, 1939.

[31]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL

To the Honorable Frank J. Hennessy, Esq., United

States Attorney for the Northern District of

California, Attorney for Defendant:

Please take notice that the plaintiff in the above

entitled matter has filed herein his motion for a

new trial and that the same will be called for hear-

ing before the Honorable Michael J. Roche in his

court room situated in the Post Office Building in

the City [32] and County of San Francisco, State

of California, on Monday, November 6th, 1939 at

the hour of ten o'clock A. M. of said day or as soon

thereafter as counsel can be heard or at such other

day as the said Law and Motion Calendar of said

Honorable Michael J. Roche shall be called.

Dated: October 28th, 1939.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

(Admission of service)

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 27, 1939. [33]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL

Now comes the plaintiff in the above entitled

action and moves the above entitled Court to set

aside that certain judgment entered of record in

the office of the Clerk of the above entitled Court

on October 19th, 1939 in favor of the defendant

herein and against plaintiff and to grant plaintiff

herein a new trial of the above entitled cause. [34]

This motion for a new trial is made upon the

grounds

—

I.

That the evidence was insufficient as a matter

of law to justif}^ the Court in entering judgment

in favor of defendant and against plaintiff.

II.

That the Court erred as a matter of law in hold-

ing that plaintiff was within the meaning of Sec-

tion 3251 of the Revised Statute of the United

States (Section 1150d of Title 26, U.S.C.A.) a per-

son interested in the use of the still, distillery and

distilling apparatus.

III.

That the Court erred as a matter of law in hold-

ing that plaintiff was and is liable for the internal

revenue tax assessed against him.

IV.

That the Court erred as a matter of law in hold-

ino; that the sum of $3,557.83 seized and collected

I
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by defendant from plaintiff was rightfully and cor-

rectly seized and collected and in holding that

plaintiff was not entitled to its return.

Y.

That the Court erred as a matter of law in hold-

ing that defendant was entitled to judgment against

plaintiff for costs of suit.

Dated: October 28th, 1939.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Admission of service.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 27, 1939. [35]

[Title of District Court.]

At a Stated Term of the Southern Division of

the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the Court Room
thereof, in the City and County of San Francisco,

on Monday, the 27th day of November, in the year

of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and thirty-

nine.

Present: the Honorable Michael J. Roche,

District Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

Plaintiff's motion for a new trial having been

heretofore heard and submitted, being now fully
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considered, it is ordered that said motion for new

trial be and the same is hereby denied. [36]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE

To Messrs. Faulkner & O'Connor,

1101 Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California.

Hon. Frank J. Hennessy,

U. S. Attorney,

Post Office Building,

San Francisco, California.

You Are Hereby Notified that on November 27th,

1939 Judge Michael J. Roche Ordered that the mo-

tion for new trial in the above entitled case be

Denied.

WALTER B. MALING,
Clerk, (a)

vSan Francisco, California. November 27th, 1939.

[37]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

To John Y. Lewis, former Collector of Internal

Revenue for the First District of California, the

defendant above named, and to Hon. Frank J.

Hennessy, United States Attorney, Attorney

for Defendant, Post Office Building, San Fran-

cisco, California.

You, and each of you, will please take notice that

Frank A. Dougherty, the plaintiff above named,

hereby appeals to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the [38] final

judgment and the whole thereof entered in this

action on the 19th day of October, 1939.

Dated: January 17, 1940.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Appellant,

Frank A. Dougherty, 1101

Balfour Building,

San Francisco, California [39]

Receipt of a copy of the within Notice of Appeal

is hereby admitted this 17th day of January, 1940.

FRANK J. HENNESSY
United States Attorney,

Attorney for Defendant, John
Y. Lewis, former Collector of

Internal Revenue for the First

District of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 17, 1940. [40]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BOND ON APPEAL

Know All Men by these Presents,

That we, Frank A. Dougherty, as principal... and

National Automobile Insurance Company, a body

corporate duly incorporated under the laws of the

State of California, and authorized to act as surety

under the Act of Congress, as sureties, approved

August 13, 1894, whose principal office is located in

Los Angeles, State of California, are held and firmly

bound unto The United States of America in the

full and just sum of Two Hundred Fifty ($250.00)

dollars, to be paid to the said The United States of

America certain attorney, executors, administrators,

or assigns; to which payment, well and truly to be

made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, and

administrators, jointly and severally, by these

presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this 17th day of

January in the year of our Lord One Thousand

Nine Hundred and Forty.

Whereas, lately at a District Court of the United

States for the Northern District of California in a

suit depending in said Court, between Frank A.

Dougherty, plaintiff vs. John V. Lewis, former Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the First District of

California, Defendant, a judgment was rendered

against the said Frank A. Dougherty and the said

Frank A. Dougherty having filed his notice of ap-

peal having to reverse the in the aforesaid
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suit, and the notice of appeal to the Circuit Court,

having been served on the United States Attorney,

Frank J. Hennessy, attorney for defendant.

Now, the condition of the above obligation is such.

That if the said Frank A. Dougherty shall prosecute

his appeal to effect, and answer his damages and all

costs if he fail to make his plea good, then the above

obligation to be void; else to remain in full force

and virtue.

This recognizance shall be deemed and construed

to contain the '* express agreement" summary judg-

ment, and execution thereon, mentioned in Rule 34

of the District Court.

Acknowledged before me by the Principal Frank

A. Dougherty day and year first above written.

ERNEST E. WILLIAMS
U. S. Commissioner Northern

District of California at S. F.

(Verification)

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY
[Seal] NATIONAL AUTOMOBILE IN-

SURANCE COMPANY
By GEO. W. POULTNEY

Agent and Attorney in Fact

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 17, 1940. [41]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION

It Is Hereby Stipulated by and between the par-

ties hereto, through their respective counsel, that
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the Record on Appeal to the Ninth Circuit of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals in the

above entitled case shall consist of the complete

record and all the proceedings and evidence in the

action, subject to the approval of the District Court.

Dated: January 26, 1940.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Frank A. Dougherty

FRANK J. HENNESSY
United States Attorney

By W. F. MATHEWSON
Attorney for John V. Lewis,

former Collector of Internal

Revenue, etc.

Approved

:

MICHAEL J. ROCHE
Judge of the United States District Court.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 8, 1940. [42]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME FOR FILING
RECORD ON APPEAL AND DOCKETING

Pursuant to Rule 73, Subdivision (g). Rules of

Civil Procedure, the time within which the record

on appeal in the above entitled action may be filed

and within which the action may be docketed in the
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals is hereby

extended to and including March 28th, 1940.

Dated: February 23, 1940.

MICHAEL J. ROCHE
United States District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 23, 1940. [43]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME FOR FILING
RECORD ON APPEAL AND DOCKETING

Pursuant to Rule 73, Subdivision (g), Rules of

Civil Procedure, the time within which the record

on appeal in the above entitled action may be tiled

and Avithin which the action may be docketed in the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals is hereby

extended to and including the 14th day of April,

1940.

Dated: March 26, 1940.

MICHAEL J. ROCHE
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 26, 1940. [44]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AND ORDER FOR TRANS-
MISSION OF RECORDS, PROCEEDINGS
AND EVIDENCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH RULE 75 OF THE RULES OF
CIVIL PROCEDURE.

It is stipulated by and between counsel for the

respective parties that the Clerk of this Court, in

conformity with Rule 75 of the Rules of Civil

Procedure, shall transmit to the Clerk of the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, the

following designated portions of records, proceed-

ings and evidence in this cause, certifying that those

portions thereof that are necessary to be certified

pursuant to said rules. All costs thereof to be

paid by [45] plaintiff appellant, and that the or-

iginal reporter's transcript and exhibits be for-

warded, pursuant to Rule 75, Subdivision (i) of

the Rules of Civil Procedure.

1. Complaint.

2. Answer.

3. Order of August 8, 1939, directing judgment

in favor of defendant.

4. Memorandum opinion of Court.

5. Judgment in favor of defendant.

6. Defendant's proposed findings of fact and

conclusions of law.

7. Plaintiff's proposed amendments to findings

of fact and conclusions of lav/.

8. Court's findings of fact and conclusions of

law.



vs. John V. Lewis 47

9. Notice of entry of judgment of findings.

10. Notice of motion for a new trial.

11. Motion for a new trial.

12. Notice of order denying motion for a new

trial.

13. Order denying motion for a new trial.

14. Notice of appeal.

15. Cost bond.

16. Stipulations and order re record on appeal.

17. Stipulations and orders enlarging time for

filing record on appeal and docketing.

18. This stipulation and order.

19. Original reporter's transcript of evidence

of testimony taken at trial.

20. Original exhibits introduced in evidence at

trial.

Dated: April , 1940.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR,
JAMES B. O'CONNOR,

Attoi'neys for Plaintiff.

FRANK J. HENNESSY,
United States Attorney.

By W. F. MATHEWSON,
Assistant United States Atty.,

Attorney for Defendant.

Upon the foregoing stipulation

So ordered:

MICHAEL J. ROCHE,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 8, 1940. [46]
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[Title of District Court.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD ON APPEAL.

I, Walter B. Maling, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify that the foregoing 46

pages, numbered from 1 to 46, inclusive, contain a

full, true, and correct transcript of the records

and proceedings in the case entitled Frank A.

Dougherty, plaintiff, vs. John V. Lewis, etc.. No.

20425-R, as the same now remain on file and of

record in my office.

I further certify that the cost of preparing and

certifying the foregoing transcript of record on

appeal is the sum of $5.40 and that the said amount

has been paid to me by the Attorneys for the ap-

pellant herein.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affiixed the seal of said District Court,

this 9th day of April, A.D. 1940.

[Seal] WALTER B. MALING,
Clerk.

J. P. WELSH,
Deputy Clerk. [47]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

TESTIMONY

Tuesday, June 13, 1939.

Counsel appearing:

For Plaintiff: Messrs. Faulkner & O'Connor,

by James B. O'Connor, Esq.

For Defendant: Wilbur F. Matliewson, Esq.,

Assistant U. S. Attorney, William E. Licking, Esq.,

Assistant TJ. S. Attorney.

Mr. O'Connor: If your Honor please, this is

an action by the plaintiff, Frank Dougherty,

against John V. Lewis, former Collector of In-

ternal Revenue. The complaint recites that it is

a case under the Revenue Laws of assessment of

taxes under Section 1670, Title 26, of U.S.C.A.,

which provides that every proprietor or possessor

or person in any manner interested in the use of

any still, distillei\y or distillation apparatus shall

be jointly and severally liable for the taxes im-

posed on the distilled spirits produced therefrom.

The complaint recites that the former Collector

of Internal Revenue on October 5, 1936, by virtue

of a warrant of distraint issued by him against

the plaintiff seized certain properties or moneys

belonging to the plaintiff that were then in the

possession of the Spreckens Sugar Company, in

Salinas; that thereafter, after [49] seizure of these

moneys by the Collector, a claim was filed with the

Comm.issioner of Internal Revenue for a refund of
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the taxes collected; that this refund was denied

by the Commissioner.

The petition then alleges that the plaintiff was

not a person liable for the tax by virtue of Sec-

tion 1150, and that he was not interested in the

use of the distillery which w^as seized on a certain

ranch in Monterey County on June 3, 1935.

The Answer of the Government admits all the

allegations of the complaint, with the exceptions

of paragraphs 12 and 13; is that correct, Mr.

Mathewson ?

Mr. Mathewson: That is correct.

Mr. O'Connor: So I assume that the sole ques-

tion here is whether or not this plaintiff was at

the time of the seizure of the still referred to in

the complaint a proprietor of, a possessor of or

person in any manner interested in the use of the

still or distilling apparatus.

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY,

the plaintiff; called as a witness in his own behalf;

sworn.

The Clerk : Please state your name to the Court.

A. Frank A. Dougherty.

Direct Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Dougherty, your name

is Frank A. Dougherty? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are the plaintiff in this case; is that

correct? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You were a defendant in the case of United

States V. Frank A. Dougherty, et al., No. 25556-R;

is that correct '? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were tried in that case ; is that cor-

rect? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were foimd not guilty of the charge

of possession of a still; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir. [50]

Q. Where do you reside, Mr. Dougherty?

A. In Buena Vista District out from Salinas.

Q. That is in Monterey Coimty?

A. Yes, Monterey County.

Q. How old are you?

A. I am about 55 now, I guess.

Q. How long have you lived in Monterey Coun-

ty? A. All my life.

Q. How long have you lived where you are now

living ?

A. About 20 years, I should judge; since 1917.

Q. Directing your attention to the years 1934

and 1935, were you living at the place where you

now reside during that period of time?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the name of the ranch on which you

were living? A. Mr. Bob Fatjo's.

Q. That is the ranch owned by Mr. Robert

Fatjo; is that correct? A. Yes.

Q, During the years 1934 and 1935 were you

farminu" that ranch? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How many acres does that ranch consist of?

A. Practically 1500.

Q. You were farming it by virtue of a lease

from Mr. Fatjo; is that correct?

A. No lease, but just verbal between us.

Q. You had an oral lease from year to year;

is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. Directing your attention particularly to the

month of October, 1934, did you at that time sub-

lease any portion of these premises?

A. I leased to three men.

Q. What did you lease to them?

A. 20 acres.

Q. Where are those 20 acres?

A. They are the east, south side of the place;

that would be—I don't know what you would call

it.

Q. Novv', tell the Court the circumstances under

which you leased these premises. Who first came

to you and talked to you concerning them?

A. Well, it was Angelo Rodoni. [51]

Q. At that time did you know him by the name

of Rodoni? A. No.

Q. What name did you know him by then?

A. Well, he signed the lease as Perolli.

Q. Perolli? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is this the gentleman, here, Mr. Dougherty?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is Mr. Rodoni? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Whom you knew as Perolli'? Is that cor-

rect? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there anybody else with him at that

time ? A. Bianchini.

Q. Bianchini, is it? A. Bianchini.

Q. Bo you see him in the court-room? Is that

the gentleman there? A. Yes.

Q. Was there anyone else with him?

A. Biagi.

Q. Do you see him in the court-room?

A. Over there with a kind of grey sweater.

Q. This gentleman, here? A. Yes.

Q. These three men came to see you sometime

during the month of October, 1934; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you have a conversation with them at

that time?

A. They wanted to lease 20 acres of land.

Q. What 20 acres?

A. The 20 acres with the barn. The fence runs

through the center of it. Of that part was hay

land and the other part was pasture land.

Q. And that 20 acres also included a horse barn?

A. Horse barn and two buildings.

Q. Two out-houses? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many horses would that horse barn

accommodate, ordinarily?

A. It would hold eight.
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Q. Did it have any storage capacity in addition

to that? A. About 30 tons of hay.

Q. Was that baled hay or loose hay?

A. Baled hay. [52]

Q. Did you discuss with them the rent for those

20 acres, including the barn?

A. No; they just said that they would pay me

$20 an acre for it.

Q. What was the total rent to be ?

A. $400.

Q. Did they pay you any money at that time ?

A. They came and talked and then they came

back and gave me a hundred dollars.

Q. Did they later come back and have a lease

for you to sign? A. They gave me a lease.

Q. At the time that you signed the lease did they

pay you any additional money?

A. They paid me a hundred dollars.

Q. They paid you another hundred dollars?

A. When they brought the lease back the lease

was wrong.

Q. When they drst brought the least to you there

was a mistake in the lease, is that correct ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the mistake in the lease ?

A. Two miles from town, and it was twelve.

Q. In other words, the description of the ranch

from town was incorrect? A. Yes.

Q. Was the lease taken away and returned with

that corrected? A. Yes.
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Q. At that time they paid you an additional

$100? A. Yes.

Q. I show you this lease and ask you if that is

the lease to which you are referring ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that your signature on the lease ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: I offer this lease in evidence as

Plaintiff's Exhibit.

The Court : Let it be marked.

(The document was marked "Plaintiff's Exhibit

1.")

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 1

LEASE
FRANK DOUGHERTY TO
CORANTI PEROLLI

This Indenture made the 23rd day of October one

thousand nine hundred and thirty four between

Frank Dougherty of Salinas, County of Monterey,

State of California, hereinafter called *' lessor," and

Coranti Perolli of San Jose County of Santa Clara,

State of California, hereinafter called ''lessee,"

Witnesseth: That the said lessor does by these

presents, demise and lease unto the said lessee, and

the said lessee does hereby hire and take from the

said lessor, Twenty acres on the South West side

of the Dougherty place in Salinas Valley situate

about 12 miles South West from the town of Salinas

with the appurtenances, for the term of Fourteen
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months and seven days from the 23rd day of Octo-

ber one thousand nine hundred and thirty five, at

the total rent or sum of Four Hundred dollars, pay-

able in lawful money of the United States of

America, in manner following, to wit: Two Hun-

dred Dollars on the delivery of this instrument, and

Two Hundred Dollars on May 1st, 1935

;

And it is hereby agreed that if any rent shall

be due and unpaid, or if default shall be made in

any of the covenants herein agreed to be kept by

the lessee, then it shall be lawful for the said lessor,

at his option, to terminate this lease and to reenter

the said premises and remove all persons therefrom.

And the said lessee does hereby covenant, prom-

ise, and agree to pay to the said lessor the said

rent in the manner herein specified, and not to as-

sign this lease, or let or underlet the whole or any

part of said premises without the written consent

of lessor, and it it is further agreed that said leased

property will not be used in any, manner or form

so as to confiict with any Federal or State laws or

any County ordinances. Violation of which will can-

cel this lease and the lessor will immediately remove

all persons therefrom, and that, at the expiration

of said term, the said lessee will quit and surrender

the said premises in as good state and condition as

reasonable use and wear thereof will permit (dam-

ages by the elements excepted). Should the lessee

hold over the term herein created, such tenancy shall
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be from month to month only, and be on the same

terms and conditions as are herein stated

And the said lessor does hereby covenant, prom-

ise, and agree that the said lessee paying the said

rent and performing the covenants aforesaid, shall

and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and en-

joy the said premises for the term aforesaid.

It is further understood and agreed that all the

provisions of this lease shall extend to and be bind-

ing upon the heirs and assigns of the lessor and the

executors, administrators, and assigns of the lessee.

In Witness Whereof, the said parties to these

presents have hereunto set their hands the day and

year first above written.

FRANK DOUGHERTY
CORANTI PEROLLI

Signed and Delivered in the Presence of

[Endorsed]: Pltf's Ex. No. 1. Filed June 13,

1939. Walter B. Maling, Clerk. By J. A. Schaertzer,

Deputy Clerk.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Now, did you receive any
further money from them as rental for these prem-

ises? A. No, sir. [53]

Q. When were they to pay you the additional

$200? A. In the middle of the lease.
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Q. In the middle of the lease. Did they ever pay

you that additional $200? A. No, sir.

Q. After you leased the premises to these men

did you again have any contact with them ?

A. Well, no, I hadn't.

Q. Did you see them?

A. I seen them different times.

Q. Where would you see them?

A. Around the place.

Q. That is, going into the 20 acres?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How would they enter this 20 acres of land?

Where would they enter their 20 acres?

A. On the south corner.

Q. On the south corner?

A. Southeast corner.

Q. Off the river road?

A. Off the river road.

Q. And that river road is a county highway?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there any means by which they could get

from the 20 acres that was occupied by them to any

portion of the ranch that was occupied by you?

A. That was all fenced off.

Q. That was all fenced off?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they did not use the entrance that you

used to go from the river road into your premises?

A. No, sir.
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Q. They used a separate entrance of their own?

A. A separate gate.

Q. Directing your attention to the month of

June, June 3, 1935, do you recall being arrested

upon that occasion by Alcohol Tax Agents of the

Department of Internal Revenue?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When were you arrested, in the day time or

night time?

A. Night time, I judge about nine o'clock.

Q. About nine o'clock at night. Were you taken

by these agents to the barn that you had leased to

these men? A. Yes.

Q. When you got there what did you see ?

A. I seen two men sitting in there with an officer

and a little black—little light [54] covered with

black paper.

Q. What?
A. Light covered with black paper.

Q. What else did you see?

A. Well, I seen the still.

Q. You saw the still. Now, then, prior to the

occasion on the night of June 3rd, when you were

taken to the barn on this 20 acres, had you any

knowledge that there was a still on those premises?

A. That is the first time.

Q. Did you have any interest in the still, itself?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever invest any money in the still ?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Did you have any arrangement with either of

these three men, or any other person, whereby you

were to receive any profits that were made from the

operation of that still ? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have any arrangement with these

men, or anybody else, whereby you were to pay any

of the losses incurred in the operation of this still

if such losses were incurred? A. No, sir.

Q. Mr. Dougherty, during this period of time

from about October, 1934, until June, 1935, you

were actually personally farming part of that prop-

erty; is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You, personally, were farming part of that

ranch ? A. Yes.

Q, Where is the major portion of the tillable or

farming land situated? Whereabouts on the ranch

is the main portion of your tillable or farming land

situated ?

A. Oh, it is away over—the grain land is away

over on the other side of the ranch. There is about

60 acres in that field.

Q. Is that below the road?

A. No, that is above the road.

Q. That is the grain land?

A. That is the grain land.

Q. Is there some land below the road that you

farm?

A. Yes, sir, that is about half a mile from the

house.
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Q. What type of farming do you do there

—

were you doing there at that time ?

A. Raised beets, sometimes lettuce, sometimes

[55] beans.

Q. Sugar beets? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Or lettuce or beans? A. Yes.

Q. You were actually farming during the period

of time from October, 1934 to June, 1935 ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that period of time what portion of

your time would you spend in the fields ?

A. Practically all the time.

Q. What time would you arise in the morning?

A. Five o'clock.

Q. And after having your breakfast you would

go immediately to the fields? A. Yes.

Q. How long would you remain there?

A. All day, practically.

Q. Would you return to your home for lunch ?

A. Sometimes; sometimes not.

Q. Sometimes you would and sometimes you

wouldn't. So, practically speaking, you worked

from sun-up until siui-down on your farm; is that

correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In addition to the farming that you did there,

did you have at that time and operate at that time

a Government remount station? A. Yes.

Q. You had a stallion there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Under the supervision and direction of the

United States Government? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You still operate that remount station?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. By the way, you were not now a lessee of that

ranch, are you? A. No, sir.

Q. You are not farming that ranch?

A. No, sir.

Q. In other words, all you are doing is taking

care of this remount station; is that correct?

A. That is all.

Q. By the way, Mr. Dougherty, when you leased

these premises, or when these three men came to you

and talked about leasing these premises, [56] w^hat

did they tell you they wanted the twenty acres for?

A. Wanted it for chickens and dry stock.

Q. For raising chickens and the running of dry

stock, is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, sometime during the year of 1935 or

1936 you were served, I assume, or you were advised

that there had been served on the Spreckels Sugar

Company a warrant of distraint by the Collector of

Internal Revenue ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you at that time have certain monies due

you from the Spreckels Sugar Company?

A. Yes.

Q. They advanced you certain monies to permit

you to harvest your crop that year; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Your sugar beet crop was harvested?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. During 1936? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And. the crop was delivered to the Spreckels

Sugar Company out of Salinas; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And whatever monies were due you from that

crop after deducting expenses of the harvesting

which had been advanced to you, were seized by

the Collector of Internal Revenue; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You entered into an agreement with the Col-

lector of Internal Revenue at that time, did you not,

whereby you turned over what monies were due you

under protest; is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the amount of money that was collected

by the Collector of Internal Revenue at that time

was some $3557.83 ; is that correct ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the total amount of the tax that had

been assessed against you and the other persons who

were involved in the criminal prosecution, United

States of America v. Frank A. Dougherty, et al, No.

25556-R—the total amount of tax assessed against

you and the other [57] individuals in the case to

which I have referred was $7773.40 ; is that correct ?

A. Yes.

Q. Of that amount, there has been collected un-

der protest A. Yes, sir.

Q. (Continuing) by the Collector some

$3557.83; is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in addition to the assessment of the

taxes in the sum of $7773.60 there was also as-
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sessed against you a penalty in the sum of $388.68;

is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: I think that is all, if your Honor

please.

Cross Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Mr. Dougherty, you recall the

occasion when you first discussed the leasing of your

property to these three men, Bianchini, Biagi and

Rodoni ?

A. Well, I was down at the remount stable and

I seen them up at the house and I went up and

seen them.

Q. Did you know any of these three men before

you met them on that day? A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't know any one of those men?

A. No, sir.

Q. You were down at the remount station, saw

them up at the house, and you went up to meet

them? A. Yes, sir.

Q. At that time the men told you they wanted

the place to raise chickens and feed dry stock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was the place equipped to feed chickens at

that time? A. What?

Q. Was the place equipped to feed chickens at

that time ? A. Well, just the barn.

Q. Just the barn. Are you familiar with the

equipment necessary to raise chickens?

A. Give chickens the run of the place, there;

just a common chicken yard.
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Q. At the time you discussed the rental of the

property did they tell you what property they

wanted ?

A. They w^anted 20 acres. [58]

Q. Did they say they wanted 20 acres?

A. I told them there was about 20 there.

Q. Did they say they wanted 20 acres or did

they point out the area of land they wanted ? I say,

did they tell you they wanted to rent 20 acres, or

did they go on your property and point out the land

they wanted to rent?

A. They wanted to rent 20 acres with the barn

and the buildings there.

Q. Of the area that you rented to them, how

much of it is hay land and how much is pasture

land?

A. There is 10 acres fenced; there is a fence

runs through the center of it and that on the left

is 10 acres of hay land.

Q. Mr. Dougherty, I show you a photograph of a

ranch premises and ask you if you recognize the

premises depicted in the photograph?

A. Well, this shows most of the back end of it.

Q. Most of the back end of your place ?

A. Yes, sir. This was taken the other way.

Q. That photograph is taken from the back of

the place looking toward the road, is it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you point out on the photograph to his

Honor the area of land that was rented to these

three men in October of 1934 ?
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A. There is half of it ain't on this photograph.

Q. Will you point out the half that is on there?

A. Just this half; the pasture land, practically

all that ; not all of it.

Q. I can't see what portions you are pointing

out.

(The witness indicates on the photograph.)

The Court : Step up here and point.

A. This portion, here (indicating). This 10

acres out here, this is farm land.

Q. This side of the barn (indicating) ?

A. Yes, sir. This is the back part; the fence

runs here, right out to the County Road. [59]

Q. Is there ten acres here*? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is what you would call pasture land?

A. Pasture land and there is the fence—you see

the fence coming up here (indicating).

Q. Yes.

A. This goes in with this other in a field back of

this barn, and that went over that way to that pas-

ture land or to that hay land.

Mr. Mathewson. Q. Will you point out on that

photograph your residence?

A. It is over here (indicating). I stayed away
over on this side of the house. Mr. Fatjo had this

house.

The Court: Q. Who is Mr. Fatjo?

A. Mr. Robert Fatjo, of Santa Clara.

Q. He is the man that owns the place ?

A. He owns the place.
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Mr. Mathewson: Q. And that is the barn you

rented and is the barn in which the still was found?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Mathewson: If your Honor please, I ask

that this be marked as Defendant's Exhibit for

identification first in order.

The Court: Let it be marked.

(The photograph referred to was marked '' De-

fendant's Exhibit A for identification.")

Mr. Mathewson: Q. What time of day was it

that these three men called upon you to rent your

property? A. To rent the property?

Q. Yes, what time of day was it ?

A. Well, I think it was the afternoon, about

Q. Sometime in the afternoon?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you discuss with them the amount of the

rental ?

A. No, they just said that they would give me
$20 an acre for it.

Q. $20 an acre for 20 acres of land?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That included the barn?

A. The barn and two buildings.

Q. Also included the corral? A. Yes.

Q. Did it include water?

A. They had the well. [60]

Q. Did it include any place on the ranch for

men to stay?
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A. Not without they had stayed over in those

out-buildings, there, at the west—at the east side of

the barn.

Q. You did not rent them any other cabins on

your place? A. No, sir.

Q. At the time of the renting of the property

did they ask you if they could use any other portion

of your premises? A. No, sir.

Q. About how much hay can you raise in that

pasture land a year?

A. Well, that year there was about 25 ton of hay

there, an excellent good crop.

Q. 25 ton of hay? A. Yes.

Q. On the 10 acres? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the preparation of the lease did you re-

quest a written lease? A. No, sir.

Q. Did they offer to give you a written lease?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. They brought the lease to you for your exam-

ination before you signed it, did they not ?

A. They fetched it to sign it, yes, sir.

Q. Did you examine the lease at that time?

A. I looked at it.

Q. Did you observe in the lease the provision

for forfeiture?

A. No, sir, I never read it that close.

Q. You didn't read it that close? A. No.

Q. What portion of the lease did you read?

A. I just took a look at it, and I seen the mile-

age was wrong on it, and I told them that the mile-
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age was 12 miles and they had it marked 2. And I

told them it didn't make any difference, just a short

time

Q. The only thing that you noticed in the lease

was that the mileage was wrong?

A. That is all that I noticed—was right there

to see.

Q. Did you notice the description of the prop-

erty leased? A. Just—no.

Q. Did you notice the term of the lease, the

length of time it was to run ?

A. The terms were supposed to be from Novem-

ber to [61] November, one year; that is all I could

lease it.

Q. That is the only period of time for which you

leased it?

A. Because I had no right to lease it any dif-

ferent.

Q. And did you ask them to put the forfeiture

provision in that lease ? A. To do what ?

Q. Will you read this provision of the lease

(handing paper to witness) ?

A. I think so, I read that part, yes, sir.

Q. You read that at the time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ask them to put it in the lease?

A. Well, it was in the lease.

Q. It was in the lease when you first saw it?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. When you discussed the rental of the jn-op-

erty did you ask them to put such a provision in

the lease they offered to give you I

A. I didn't understand.

Q. Did you ask them to put that in the lease ?

A. I told them—I didn't ask them but I told

them that part.

Q. You told them you wanted that part in?

A. Yes.

The Court: Read it, so I may follow it, for the

purpose of the record.

Mr. Mathewson : The provision reads

:

''And it is further agreed that said leased prop-

erty will not be used in any w^ay or in any manner

or form so as to conflict with any federal or state

laws or any county ordinances, violation of which

will cancel this lease and the lessee will imme-

diately remove all persons therefrom."

Q. You stated that there was a fence running

from the corral down to the river road.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any way to get from the property

that you had leased into your place ?

A. Well, there is a gate there, but the gate was

locked. [62]

Q. The gate was locked? A. Yes.

Q. Was it locked with a padlock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it your padlock?

A. It was the lock that was there.
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Q. It was the lock that was on the fence ?

A. They had the key; I didn't have no key to it.

Q. It was your padlock but they had the key?

A. Yes ; it had been there on the fence.

Q. The lease provided for the payment of $200

on the signature of the lease, and $200 on May 1st?

A. When?
Q. On May 1, 1935.

A. They paid $100 between October and Novem-

ber, and then when I got the lease in November

they paid the other hmidred dollars.

Q. Did the lease provide for the payment of

any other money?

A. Half at the half of the year.

Q. How much was to be paid then?

A. $200.

Q. Was that ever paid? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever ask them to pay it ?

A. Well, the thing was broken up.

Q. The thing was broken up ? A. The still.

Q. The thing was broken?

A. I never seen them no more.

Q. On the first of the year—at the middle of the

year?

A. The middle of the year, a little after the

middle.

Q. The lease provides for the payment of $200

on May 1st. The still was seized on June 3rd?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ask them for the payment ?
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A. I didn't see them.

Q. You didn't see them? A. No, sir.

Q. Had you seen them around the place previous

to that? A. No, sir.

Q. Had you seen them at any time during the

year of 1935 ? A. Just in the first part.

Q. Just in the first part of 1935? A. Yes.

[63]

Q. Did you know at that time—did you know

at any time that employees of these three men were

sleeping on portions of your ranch that you had

not leased to them? A. No, sir, I did not.

Q. Where were you at the time you were ar-

rested on June 3 of 1935? A. In the house.

Q. About what time of the evening was it?

A. What time it was?

Q. Yes.

A. About nine o'clock. I was making out a re-

port on the Government stallion.

Q. Isn't it a fact that at the time you were

arrested and the agent stated that you were under

arrest that you asked, ''What for?"

A. No, sir.

Q. ''For that over there? I have a lease."

A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't ask that? A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't state that? A. No, sir.

Q. Isn't it a fact that at the time of your arrest

the first thing you did was to show them your lease ?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Did you ever see any of the three men who

leased the property around your place in the fall of

1934?

A. Only when I was locked up with them.

Q. Only when you were locked up. I said in the

fall of 1934. A. No, sir.

Q. You never saw them around your place?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you notice any trucks or any cars being

driven into your place ?

A. Sometimes when I was up plowing in the

field I would see a car drive in that portion and

drive out.

Q. What time of day or night was that?

A. Well, maybe along about three or four

o'clock in the afternoon.

Q. Three or four in the afternoon. Did you ever

smell any unusual odors on the place ?

A. I did not.

Q. Did you smell any unusual odors on the

place? A. No, sir. [64]

Q. Did you hear any unusual sounds coming

from the barn? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever hear the sound of burners?

A. No, sir.

Q. You stated on your direct examination that

these three men, as a part of the lease, were able

to use the pump ?

Mr. O'Connor: I don't think he stated that on

direct examination ; he stated that on cross-examina-

tion.



74 Frcmk A. Dougherty

(Testimony of Frank A. Dougherty.)

A. The water went with the place.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. The water went with the

place, did it, Mr. Dougherty'?

A. Yes, that was theirs.

Q. Who was to pay for the power?

A. They paid for the power.

Q. At the time you leased the property to the

three men, Bianchini and Biagi and Rodoni, were

you receiving and paying for electric power on the

ranch ? A. Not when they had it.

Q. Before they had it? A. Oh, yes, sir.

Q. You had power? A. Yes, sir.

Q. After you leased the property to these men

did they inform you at that time that they would

change the power ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was part of the arrangement?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That they would apply for the power in their

names? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Between the time of the lease and the time

the distillery was seized in June, 1935, did you

apply for power? A. No, sir.

Q. The power remained in their names from

October of 1934 until June of 1935?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. If he knows. I

submit it isn't a proper question unless he knows

whether it remained in their names, or not. If your

Honor please, he asked the question if Mr.

Dougherty made any application to change the

power from October until June 3, 1935, and he said
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no. Now he asks the question if it remained in their

names. How does he know? Perhaps he has no

knowledge of that fact. [65]

The Court: Ask him the direct question.

Mr. Mathewson: I will withdraw the question.

Q. You did not apply for power?

A. No, sir.

Q. Between October of 1934 and Jmie of 1935?

A. No, sir.

Q. How much rental do you pay for the prop-

erty? A. I was paid a hundred dollars.

Mr. O'Connor: I don't think you understand

the question, Mr. Dougherty.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. At the time in 1934 you

had leased the Fatjo Ranch from Mr. Fatjo'.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That ranch is approximately 1500 acres? -

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much rental did you pay a year?

A. Well, $2000.

Q. You paid $2000 a year? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You said that of the 1500 acres how much

of this land was devoted to raising crops?

A. About 150 acres of grain land; that is up

in the hills, like; and I guess about 60 acres of beet

and beans and lettuce land.

The Court: Q. How many acres in beets did

vo'i have in in the year that vou sold them?



76 Frmik A. Dougherty

(Testimony of Frank A. Dougherty.)

A. There was, I think, 30.

Q. What money did the Spreckels people ad-

vance to raise that crop'? A. How much?

A. They advance money if you ain't got it for

seeding them, and then they advance you some

money for hauling them, and then they advance

you some money for irrigating them.

Q. You had 30 acres. What did that net?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did that net? Is this the net, $7000?

A. The net is

Q. Do you know?

Mr. O'Connor: What was the question, if your

Honor please?

The Court: 30 acres in beets. What money Vv^as

coming from Spreckels without any advances on

that 30 acres? [QQ']

Mr. O'Connor: The credit due on the beets

during that period of time for the total acreage

was $4311.82.

The Court: What is that $7000?

Mr. O'Connor: The $7000 is the total amount

of tax that was assessed against all of these de-

fendants and the sum of $3700 is the amount due

him after Spreckels deducted the moneys that they

advanced for harvesting that crop.

The Court: All right; proceed.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. You say there was 150

acres in grain and 60 acres in beets, lettuce and

chards. What other land did you have?
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A. What other?

Q. Yes.

A. There was a piece of land down on the river

bottom, I guess probably 200 acres, that is in the

river bed.

Q. That is waste land?

A. Practically all waste land. Some years you

can use it; some years you can't.

Q. Wliat other type of property did you have?

A. There is just hills and grazing land.

Q. The balance of those 1500 acres was grazing

land ?

A. No; there is 1500 acres in the whole ranch.

Q. Other than the 150 acres devoted to grain,

60 acres devoted to beets, and 200 in the bottom

land A. Yes.

Q. the rest of it w^as grazing land?

A. Grazing land.

Q. What about the area occupied by ranch

buildings ?

A. Well, you would call that ranch property or

farming property.

Q. About how many acres was devoted to that?

A. There was ten acres of hay land, and I guess

if they wanted to they could make vegetables there,

this side of the windmill, because there is plenty of

room there between those oaks right out in front

—

T)robably two or three acres, if anybody wanted to

do anything with that.
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Q. The 10 acres of hay land that you rented to

the three men, Biagi, [67] Bianchini and Rodoni

—

Avas that part of the 150 acres of grain land?

A. No; that is right across the place—it is off

some—it is a long ways off from the other farm

land.

Q. In 1934 and 1935 you were raising beets.

Were you raising any hay?

A. Raising any hay?

Q. Yes.

A. I raised hay up on those benches.

Q. AVhere are the benches?

A. Well, they are away off. There is flat run-

off pasture—some call them plateaus—up away

over on that side of the ranch; there is one in the

center; there is one on the other side of the ranch.

There is another—three of them.

Q. Did you have any cattle on the ranch in

1934?

A. I had 48 head of Al Wallace's, 60 head of

cattle belonging to Jim Riley, and then I had a lot

of horses.

Q. About how many horses did you have?

A. Probably forty or fifty transient horses and

about 60 brood mares there for breeding, belonging

to different people.

Q. Weie the mares pastured there all the time?

A. Yes, sir, while they are being bred.
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Q. How much did you get from Wallace for his

cattle? A. For whose?

Q. Wallace.

Mr. O'Connor: I object to this upon the ground

that it is incomi)etent, irrelevant, and immaterial.

Mr. Mathewson: If your Honor please, the ma-

teriality is the rental value of this property, which

the Government insists is an exorbitant rental value.

Mr. O'Connor: I still submit that it is imma-

terial under the law whether it is an exorbitant

rental or not.

The Court: It is an element. It is remote. I

will allow it.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. How much did you receive

from Mr. Wallace for pasturing his 48 head of

cattle?

A. Well, some years it is— [68] I guess it was

75 cents that year, I ain't sure. When cattle

dropped in the market they couldn't pay as much.

Q. It was 75 cents in 1934?

A. Well, I think so.

Q. Did he have the 48 head on your place all

the year round? A. He had 48 head.

Q. Were they there all year?

A. They was.

Q. What about the 60 head Riley had there?

A. Riley's was practically—they came in in

January and they went out in—oh, I guess—I don't

think thev went out; T think ho fed them on beet
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tops. He fed them on beet tops. They went out

way late.

Q. You say he fed them on beet tops and they

went out way late"?

A. Yes, he sold some of them for beef.

Q. The 75 cents a head that Wallace paid you

for his 48 head, was that 75 cents a year!

A. No, sir, a month.

Q. 75 cents a month. How much did Riley pay

you for the 60 head*? A. 75 cents.

Q. How much did you get for the 40 horses you

had on the place?

A. They run that year $2 ; used to be $3.

Q. $2 a head that year—that is 1934?

A. Yes.

Q. Were there 40 head on the ranch all the

year around, all that year?

A. Practically all the year.

Q. And the 60 maies that you had—how long

were they there?

A. Well, they run about—well, it depends on

the breeding. You keep them until you breed them,

maybe two months, maybe three months some of

them; I have had mares down there breeding them

six months, then they didn't catch.

Q. Did you have 60 head of mares on your ranch

all the year around?

A. Well, say about half the year, half the breed-

inJT months—six months.
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Q. Did you charge anything for the pasturage?

A. 10 cents a day. [69]

Q. 10 cents a day pasturage? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The only dry stock you had on the place then

were Wallace's 48 head and Riley's 60 head?

A. Well, of course, there was a lot of calves

with those cows of Riley's.

Q. In the back of your place there is a little

arroyo with a barn in it where a man was found

at the time the still was seized. Did you ever go

to that place?

A. No, sir; I never used that place.

Q. From October of 1934 to June of 1935 did

you go out to this house or barn?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever notice whether or not there was

a shell and boiler out in that arroyo?

A. Not until after it was knocked over.

Q. Did you ever seen any dry stock or any

chickens on the property that you leased to Messrs.

Biagi, Bianchini and Rodoni? A. No, sir.

Q. During the period from October 1934 to

June 1935 were you leaving for work early every

morning and returning late every night?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time would you leave the house?

A. Daylight.

Q. What tim.e would you return?

A. Dark.
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Q. Is that true of every morning'?

A. Every morning, pretty nearly.

Q. Including Sundays?

A. Well, Sundays, if there was anything to do

we have to do it just the same. "Where there is

stock they have got to be fed.

Q. Daylight—what time of the day is that?

A. Well, take it in the early summer mornings,

four o'clock is daylight.

Q. In October of 1934 what time would that be?

A. It was pretty daylight yet along about five

—

half past four.

Q. When would it become dark?

A. Well, along about seven o'clock.

Q. Daylight lasted in October from about five

in the morning until seven at night?

A. Yes, sir. [70]

Q. What about May of 1935? About when

would it become light then?

A. I guess practically pretty near the same

thing.

Q. About five o'clock in the morning and seven

o'clock at night? A. Yes.

Q. Durmg this period of time when you would

leave for work, where would you go to work?

A. October ?

Q. Yes.

A. Generally working in beans early in the

morning. You have to cut them early when it is

damp.
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Q. Where were the beans planted at that time?

A. Half a mile away from the place.

Q. That is, half a mile up the river?

A. Yes, sir; on the lower side, toward the river.

Q. Would you stay with the beans all day long?

A. You pile them and you rake them.

Q. I mean, would you stay in the field all day

long, or would you come back to get lunch?

A. Come back maybe to get lunch, maybe not;

depends on what you have to do. We always gen-

erally try to rush it through if we can to keep

them from popping open.

Q. Then during October of 1934 you were har-

vesting beans from seven o'clock in the morning

until seven o'clock at night, except for coming back

to the ranch occasionally at noon time?

A. Yes. And then we were getting some lettuce

land ready, cultivating it, getting it ready to plant

an early crop.

Q. Where was that?

A. Just below the same place.

Q. In May of 1935 what were you doing around

the ranch then? What work were you doing?

A. May of 1935?

Q. Yes.

A. I guess we were hauling baled hay.

Q. And where were you hauling the hay from?

A. Out from these fields, to put it in the cow

hiwn,—remount barn.
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Q. Did 3^011 haul hay down from the fields by

the house?

A. Put it [71] into the remount barn to store it.

Q. Did you bring it down by the house?

A. No, sir.

Q. How would you get it down?

A. Came down by the old place, half a mile

away, and came out on the County Road.

Q. Half a mile away—that is half a mile up or

down the river? A. Down.

Q. Half a mile down the river?

A. Down the road.

Q. Then you would bring it back along the

river road to the remount station?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how much of the day did you spend

harvesting the hay? A. All day.

Q. All day? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would you come back to the ranch during

that period of time—that is, during the day time?

A. Probably to get lunch.

Q. Just for lunch? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, then, during October, 1934 and May,

1935 you w^re working away from the ranch all

day long except to return for lunch?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how far is the barn that you leased

to these men from your residence on the ranch?

A. Well, from where I stayed in the house it is

about 250 feet, I think; something like that.
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Q. There is a road, is there not, that runs from

the river road past the front of your house into

the corral? A. No.

Q. Isn't there a road running from the river

road ?

A. There is a road runs the north part into

my place.

Q. There is a road, then, running from the north

gate? A. Yes, toward the towTi.

Q. Past the front of your house?

A. No. Well, that is the river road.

Q. I am speaking nov/ of the road

A. That has just been lately. [72]

Q. Just been lately?

A. Yes, that is just lately that that road has

been there. It comes in crooked that way. That

wasn't there then.

Q. Wasn't there that road in October, 1934?

A. No, sir, there was no road there.

Q. Was there more than one road leading from

the river road into your place in October, 1934?

A. Only one.

Q. Only one? A. To the house.

Q. To the house? A. Yes, sir.

Q. There was another to the corral, was there?

A. Sir?

Q. There was another road from the river road

to the corral?

A. On the north—south road.
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Q. That was on the south road?

A. Where that big gate is way down. That ran

up to the barn that these gentlemen had.

Q. Then there was a north road running from

the river road to your house? A. Yes.

Q. How close did that road come to your house ?

A. How close? I didn't get that.

Q. How close did that road pass in front of your

house? Did it run directly to your house?

A. You mean the river road?

Q. No.

A. The other road runs in to the house. From
the river road it runs into the northern part of the

house.

Q. Did that road continue through into the

corral? A. No, sir.

Q. It ended at your house?

A. Ended at the house.

Q. The only other road into the place was the

south road that ran into the corral rented by these

three men? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you get your water for your

house? A. They furnished it.

Q. They furnished water for your house?

A
Q
A

Q
A

Yes, sir.

Is there a tank on the premises?

Yes.

Where is the tank located?

On a hill. [73]
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Q. Where is the hill with relation to the house?

A. What?

Q. Where is the hill and the tank with relation

to your house? A. On the west.

Q. It is on a hill up above your house?

A. Yes, back of the house.

Q. You got your water for the house from that

tank? A. Yes.

Q. The water that these men were to use for

their dry stock, was that to be obtained from the

same tank?

A. Yes, the same thing, or they could get it

from the—^they could get it from over at the pump.

Q. They could take it directly from the pump?

A. Yes, sir, they had a trough there.

Q. One more thing, Mr. Dougherty. At the time

you rented the property to these three men and

discussed rental value, the area to be rented,

whether or not you would have a lease, didn't one

or all of these three men tell you that they intended

to use the property for a still? A. No, sir.

Q. Didn't they tell you that they were going to

make whiskey there? A. No, sir.

Q. Didn't Rodoni, before he introduced Biagi

and Bianchini, ask you if he could use your place

to make whiskey? A. No, sir.

Q. Isn't it a fact that the rental that you re-

ceived was not $400 for the year, but $125 a month ?

A. No, sir.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.
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Redirect Examination.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Dougherty, is it an uncom-

mon thing for farmers in that vicinity to rent and

farm portions of ranches without there being living

quarters on that particular portion?

A. Lot of places.

Q. In other words, a man might live several

miles away from where he [74] is farming and come

over and farm a particular piece of land that he

may rent; is that correct?

A. There is half of the people in Salinas that

farm live in town.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

The Court: We will take a recess.

(After recess:)

Mr. O'Connor: That is the plaintiff's case, if

your Honor please.

ROBERT A. FATJO,

Called as a witness for the Defendant; Sworn.

The Clerk: Q. Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Robert A. Fatjo.

Direct Examination.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where do you reside, Mr.

Fatjo? A. Santa Clara.

Q. Are you the owner of the Fatjo Ranch on

the River Road south of Salinas?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How many acres are there in that ranch?

A. Well, from the tax receipt it looks about

aromid 1600—1600 acres, from what I can make

out.

Q. Calling your attention to 1934 and 1935, was

the property leased at that time'?

A. It was rented. I don't think we had a lease.

Q. Rented?

A. It was rented. For several years we didn't

have any lease, if I remember right. I couldn't

find it, anyhow. I looked for it before I came.

Q. To whom was the property rented, do you

recollect ?

A. It was rented to Dougherty Bros, at first;

at that time Frank A. Dougherty.

Q. And Frank A. Dougherty was the renter in

1934 and 1935? [75] A. I think so.

Q. What were the terms of the rental?

A. Two thousand a year at that time.

Q. The rental, then, was from year to year?

A. Yes.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

Cross Examination.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Fatjo, Dougherty Bros.;

and Frank Dougherty later, rented those premises

for over a period of a number of years; isn't that

correct? A. Since, I think, 1917.

Q. And prior to 1934 Frank Dougherty had been

paying a higher rent than $2000 a year; isn't that

true ? A. Yes.
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Q. At one time he was paying as high as $3600

a year; isn't that corrects

A. I think it was paying $3000 and paying the

taxes.

Q. So that would run it better than $3600?

A. Yes, the taxes was around $800.

Q, When times got a little tougher you reduced

the rent for him? A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall that sometime during the lat-

ter part of October, 1934 at the time that you re-

new^ed his lease or renewed his yearly rental of

the premises, that he asked you if it would be all

right with you if he sub-leased part of the premises

for farming purposes? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is correct, isn't it? A. Yes.

Q. You told him you had no objection?

A. Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

Redirect Examination.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. And Mr. Fatjo, you say the

rental was for a period of one year. With what

month did this period begin and with what month

did it end, do you recollect?

A. I think it was the 1st of June and the 1st

of November or first of December. I mean he paid

[76] half of it the 1st of June and the other half

the first of November or December, I don't know
which.

(I

f
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Q. In 1934 the rental was $2000 a year?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

Recross Examination.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. One further question, please,

Mr. Fatjo. It has been your practice for a number

of years, has it not, since this ranch has been leased

by the Doughertys, to go there on occasions with

your family? A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall during the period of time from

October, 1934 until June, 1935, whether or not

you went down to the premises?

A. Yes, w^e used to go down on barbecues, once

in a while.

Q. You would have your barbecues outside of the

house; isn't that correct?

A. Yes, there is a barbecue pit.

Q. And the barbecue pit is near where the horse

bam is ; isn 't that correct ? A. Yes.

Q. On any occasion that you were down there,

did you see any still? You didn't see any still on

those premises, did you?

A. I never went into the bam.

Q. And you didn't smell any odor of alcohol

coming from the premises, did you?

A. No, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.
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Further Redirect Examination.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Do yon recollect what period

of time yon were down there?

A. We w^ere going to go down there the day

that it came out in the newspapers there that there

was a lot of trouble down there; we were going to

go down to a barbecue that day or the following

Sunday, because I remember reading it in the

papers.

Q. Had you been down there that year previous

to that time? A. Yes.

Q. When?
A. I don't know; we generally go down in the

spring [77] time when things are green.

Q. Have you any idea what month?

A. No.

Q. You don't know when it was?

A. No; I know we were going down again at

the time when it came out in the newspapers about

the trouble down there.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all, Mr. Fatjo.
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PHILIP S. GEORGE,

Called as a witness for the Defendant; Sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Philip S. George.

Direct Examination.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where do you reside, Mr.

George? A. At Salinas.

Q. What is your occupation?

A. Sales Manager, Pacific Gas & Electric Com-

pany.

Q. Where?

A. At Salinas and vicinity.

Q. How long have you held that position with

that company?

A. I have been with the company 22 years, ap-

proximately.

Q. What are your duties as Sales Manager?

A. Well, I would say just what the name implies

—the title implies, the signing up of new business,

promotion of new business for the company, and

taking care of matters of public relations, and a

lot of other things in connection with

Q. Does it include supervision of accounts?

A. It does not.

Q. Do you have custody of the records of the

accounts? A. I do not, no.

Q. Do you have custody of applications for

power ?

A. Not the final applications. When they are
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first secured, yes, but after [78] they are secured,

no.

Q. You say you do not have custody of the final

applications ?

A. What I mean is that we do not keep the rec-

ords in my office of the applications for service after

they are secured. In other words, the application

is taken; it is either handed over the service coun-

ter or if it is a contract agreement it goes back to

our billing department, where they are kept on file.

Q. You were directed to bring with you to-day,

were you not, applications for power delivered to

the Dougherty ranch? A. I was.

Q. Did you bring any applications for power?

A. I did.

Q. May I see them? (Witness hands certain

papers to counsel.)

Q. One of these applications for power. No.

35101, is dated April 30, 1935, bearing the signa-

ture of R. Bini; another application for power,

dated November 5, 1934, numbered 34283, bearing

the signature R. Bini, and the third, dated July 8,

1935, bearing No. 35197, bearing the signature F. A.

Dougherty. Were you present at the time these ap-

plications were made, Mr. George?

A. I may have been, because those contracts are

secured by various individuals.

Mr. O'Connor: Mr. Mathewson, do you want to

offer those in evidence ?
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Mr. Mathewson: Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: I have no objection to them.

The Court: They will be admitted and marked.

(The applications referred to were marked "De-

fendant's Exhibit B" in evidence.)

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT B

No. 35-101

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE

This Agreement, made by and between the Pacific

Gas and Electric Company, a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of California, herein-

after called the '* Power Company," and R. Bini

hereinafter called the '^Consumer," Witnesseth that

the Power Company hereby promises to sell and

deliver to the Consumer, and the Consumer hereby

promises to purchase from the Power Company,

during the term hereof, all of the electric energy

which shall be required for the operation of the

Consumer's electrical machinery and apparatus,

and in the conduct of the Consumer's business upon

the Consumer's premises situate River Road, ap-

proximately 11 miles Southwest of Salinas, County

of Monterey, State of California, all in accordance

with the rules and regulations duly and regularly

established from time to time by or under authority

of law and on file with the Railroad Commission of
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California and relating to the furnishing by the

Power Company of electric service.

All electric energy to be delivered and received

pursuant to the provisions of this contract shall be

what is commonly designated as three phase, 60

cycle alternating current and shall be delivered

and metered at an electro-motive force of approxi-

mately 230 volts, slight variations in frequency and

electro-motive force to be allowed.

All electric energy which shall be delivered by the

Power Company to the Consumer under the pro-

visions of this contract shall be paid for monthly

by the Consumer at the office of the Power Com-

pany in Salinas, California upon presentation to

the Consumer of a bill therefor.

The rates and- charges to be paid by the Con-

sumer for electric energy and service fvirnished

hereunder shall be the rates and charges duly and

regularly established from time to time by or under

authority of law and applicable to the furnishing

of electric energy and service to the Consumer un-

der the conditions existing from time to time within

the district in which said premises are situate.

The Consumer hereby selects, for the service here-

in specified, Schedule No. P-13, (a. copy of which is

hereunto Annexed), the rates and charges specified

in which are legally established and applicable to

the service requested by the Consumer, to-wit : irri-

gation formerly—F. Dougherty

The Consumer agrees that the rated capacity of

the electric machinery and apparatus initially in-
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stalled for operation, and thereafter operated here-

under during the term hereof, shall not be less than

Light K. W. Heat K. W. Power 3 H. P.

The Consumer, in the event of selling, leasing or

otherwise disposing of said premises or the business

in which such energy is used, may, with the Power

Companj^'s written consent, assign this contract to

the lessee or purchaser thereof, if such lessee or

purchaser will in writing assume and covenant to

perform this contract.

Consumer hereby grants Power Company a right

of way over the shortest practicable route for any

pole lines v/hich it may be necessary to build over

Consumer's premises for the purposes of making

delivery hereunder.

This contract shall continue in force until the ex-

piration of the term of one year from and after date

of first service, and thereafter until terminated by

thirty (30) days' written notice given by either

party hereto to the other of a desire for such ter-

mination.

Such energy shall be delivered by the Power
Company to the Consumer from the Power Com-
pany's transformers at a convenient place to be

designated by the Consumer, subject, however, to

the approval of the Power Company, and delivery

of energy and service hereunder shall commence on

date of first service.

This contract shall at all times be subject to such

changes or modifications by the Railroad Commis-
sion of California, as said Commission may, from
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time to time, direct in the exercise of its jurisdic-

tion.

In Witness Whereof the parties hereto have exe-

cuted these presents in duplicate this 30 day of

April, 1935.

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY,

By F. W. SNELL,
Division Manager.

R. BINI
(Consumer's Signature)

General Delivery, Salinas, Cal.

Acct. #S28-400

Meter #2026

M.O. #81287—370 ^^^

No. 34-283

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE

This Agreement, made by and between the Pacific

Gas and Electric Company, a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of California, herein-

after called the ''Power Company," and R. Bini

hereinafter called the "Consumer," Witnesseth that

the Power Company hereby promises to sell and

deliver to the Consumer, and the Consumer hereby

promises to purchase from the Power Company,

during the term hereof, all of the electric energy

which shall be required for the operation of the

Consumer's electrical machinery and apparatus.
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and in the conduct of the Consumer's business upon

the Consumer's premises situate Frank Daugherty

Ranch, Salinas-Chualar River Road, County of

Monterey, State of California, all in accordance

with the rules and regulations duly and regularly

established from time to time by or under authority

of law and on file with the Railroad Commission

of California and relating to the furnishing by the

Power Company of electric service.

All electric energy to be delivered and received

pursuant to the provisions of this contract shall be

what is commonly designated as three phase, 60

cycle alternating current and shall be delivered and

metered at an electro-motive force of approximately

230 volts, slight variations in frequency and electro-

motive force to be allowed.

All electric energy which shall be delivered by the

Power Company to the Consumer under the provi-

sions of this contract shall be paid for monthly by

the Consumer at the office of the Power Company
in Salinas, California upon presentation to the Con-

sumer of a bill therefor.

The rates and charges to be paid by the Consumer

for electric energy and service furnished hereunder

shall be the rates and charges duly and regularly

established from time to time by or under authority

of law and applicable to the furnishing of electric

energy and service to the Consumer under the con-

ditions existing from time to time within the dis-

trict in which said premises are situate.

The Consumer hereby selects, for the service here-

in specified, Schedule No. P-3, (a copy of which is
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hereunto annexed), the rates and charges specified

in which are legally established and applicable to

the service requested by the Consumer, to-wit: do-

mestic water supply formerly—Frank A. Daugherty

The Consumer agrees that the rated capacity of

the electric machinery and apparatus initially in-

stalled for operation, and thereafter operated here-

under during the term hereof, shall not be less than

Light K. W. Heat K. W. Power 3 H. P.

exp 11-5-35 BM
The Consumer, in the event of selling, leasing or

otherwise disposing of said premises or the business

in which such energy is used, may with the Power

Company's written consent, assign this contract to

the lessee or purchaser thereof, if such lessee or

purchaser will in writing assume and covenant to

perform this contract.

Consumer hereby grants Power Company a right

of way over the shortest practicable route for any

pole lines which it may be necessary to build over

Consumer's premises for the purpose of making

delivery hereunder.

This contract shall continue in force until the

expiration of the term of one year from and after

Nov. 5, 1934, and thereafter until terminated by

thirty (30) days' written notice given by either

party hereto to the other of a desire for such ter-

mination.

Such energy shall be delivered by the Power

Company to the Consumer from the Power Com-

pany's transformers at a convenient place to be des-

ignated by the Consumer, subject, however, to the
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approval of the Power Company, and delivery of

energy and service hereunder shall commence on

Nov. 5, 1934.

This contract shall at all times be subject to such

changes or modifications by the Railroad Commis-

sion of California, as said Commission may, from

time to time, direct in the exercise of its jurisdic-

tion.

In Witness Whereof the parties hereto have exe-

cuted these presents in duplicate this 5 day of

November, 1934.

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY,

By F. W. SNELL,
Division Manager.

R. BINI
(Consumer's Signature)

General Delivery, Salinas, Calif.

Acct. #S28
S28-370

M.O. 76101 GEC

No. 35-197

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE
This Agreement, made by and between the Pacific

Gas and Electric Company, a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of California, herein-

after called the ''Power Company," and F. A.

Dougherty hereinafter called the ''Consumer," Wit-
nesseth that the Power Company hereby promises
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to sell and deliver to the Consumer, and the Con-

sumer hereby promises to purchase from the Power

Company, during the term hereof, all of the electric

energy which shall be required for the operation of

the Consumer's electrical machinery and apparatus,

and in the conduct of the Consumer's business upon

the Consumer's premises situate River Road, ap-

proximately 12 miles South of Salinas, County of

Monterey, State of California, all in accordance

with the rules and regulations duly and regularly

established from time to time by or under authority

of law and on file with the Railroad Commission of

California and relating to the furnishing by the

Power Company of electric service.

All electric energy to be delivered and received

pursuant to the provisions of this contract shall be

what is commonly designated as three phase, 60

cycle alternating current and shall be delivered and

metered at an electro-motive force of approximately

230 volts, slight variations in frequency and electro-

motive force to be allowed.

All electric energy which shall be delivered by the

Power Company to the Consumer under the provi-

sions of this contract shall be paid for monthly by

the Consumer at the office of the Power Company in

Salinas, California upon presentation to the Con-

sumer of a bill therefor.

The rates and charges to be paid by the Consumer

for electric energy and service furnished hereunder

shall be the rates and charges duly and regularly

established from time to time by or under authority

of law and applicable to the furnishing of electric
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energy and. service to the Consumer under the con-

ditions existing from time to time within the dis-

trict in which said premises are situate.

The Consumer hereby selects, for the service here-

in specified, Schedule No. P-13, (a copy of which is

hereunto annexed), the rates and charges specified

in which are legally established and applicable to

the service requested by the Consumer, to-wit:

power for domestic pumping formerly—R. Bini

The Consumer agrees that the rated capacity of

the electric machinery and apparatus initially in-

stalled for operation, and. thereafter operated here-

under during the term hereof, shall not be less than

Light K. W. Heat K. W. Power 3 H. P.

exp 6-20-36 AK
The Consumer, in the event of selling, leasing or

otherwise disposing of said premises or the business

in which such energy is used, may, with the Power

Company's written consent, assign this contract to

the lessee or purchaser thereof, if such lessee or

purchaser will in writing assume and covenant to

perform this contract.

Consumer hereby grants Power Company a right

of way over the shortest practicable route for any

pole lines which it may be necessary to build over

Consumer's premises for the purpose of making de-

livery hereunder.

This contract shall continue in force until the

expiration of the term of one year from and after

June 20, 1035, and thereafter until terminated by

thirty (30) day's written notice given by either
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party hereto to the other of a desire for such ter-

mination.

Such energy shall be delivered by the Power

Company to the Consumer from the Power Com-

pany's transformers at a convenient place to be

designated by the Consumer, subject, hoAvever, to

the approval of the Power Company, and delivery

of energy and service hereunder shall commence on

June 20, 1935.

This contract shall at all times be subject to such

changes or modifications by the Railroad Commis-

sion of California, as said Commission may, from

time to time, direct in the exercise of its jurisdic-

tion.

In Witness Whereof the parties hereto have exe-

cuted these presents in duplicate this 8 day of July,

1935.

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY,

By F. W. SNELL,
Division Manager.

F. A. DOUGHERTY
(Consumer's Signature)

Rte. 1, Box 292

Salinas

Acct. #S28-370 Meter #3469

M.O. 83498

GEC

[Endorsed]: Deft's Ex. B. Filed June 13, 1939.

Walter B. Maling, Clerk. By J. A. Schaertzer,

Deputy Clerk.

I
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Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. George, did you make a

search for an application for power bearing the

date of January 31, 1935 and the signature of Frank

Dougherty? A. Yes.

Q. Did you find any such application for power?

A. I was unable to locate it. [79]

Q. Did you make an examination of your ac-

coimts, or did you make an examination of the

accomit of Frank A. Dougherty? A. Yes.

Q. Do your records show the consumption of

power by Frank A. Dougherty on meter No. 3469,

commencing with January 31, 1935 ?

Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to upon the

ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and im-

material, and the records are the best evidence,

and the proper foundation has not been laid in

this

The Court: Q. Have you the record?

A. I haven't the record with me, no, sir.

Q. Where are they?

A. I was required to bring the applications for

service, which I did.

Q. Have you knowledge of it, yourself?

A. I might state that the space of time between

the two Bini applications, there, the account was

in the name of Frank Dougherty.

Mr. O'Connor: I move that that go out on the

ground that it is incompetent, immaterial and ir-

relevant, not the best evidence.
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The Court : You are entitled to the best evidence

if it is available. Is it available?

A. It is in Salinas.

Mr. Mathewson: No further questions.

Mr. O'Connor: No cross-examination.

EDWARD C. HARKINS,

called as a witness for defendant; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court.

A. Edward C. Harkins.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Harkins, you are an

agent of the Alcohol Tax Unit? A. I am.

Q. Were you an agent acting as such in May,

1935? A. I was.

Q. Did you participate in the investigation that

culminated in the [80] seizure of a distillery on

the Dougherty Ranch on June 3, 1935?

A. I did.

Q. The seizure took place on the 3rd of June,

1935? A. That is correct, yes.

Q. Did you have the Dougherty Ranch under

observation prior to that date?

A. I did, yes.

Q. When did you have it under observation

prior to June 3rd ?
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A. Particularly on May 31st, 1935, but we had

been engaged for—Investigator Myers and I had

been engaged for a couple of weeks in trailing a

car to these premises prior to that.

Q. What did you observe on May 21st, 1935?

Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to on the ground

that it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

The Court : Read the question, Mr. Reporter.

(The reporter read the question.)

The Court: May 21st. I will allow it.

A. I observed a Ford—a grey Ford—a grey

Plymouth coach, license 8H 8305 of that current

year enter the north gate on the Dougherty ranch

about 7:15 p.m., the car incidentally which we had

been following. I also obtained a strong odor of

mash from the road and from the field to the south

of the ranch. I also observed a truck on the same

evening go in the south gate of the ranch.

Q. You say you observed an odor of fermen-

tation? A. I did, yes.

Q. How far were you from the ranch at the

time you noticed it?

A. Well, from the River Road, it would be a

matter of about 300 yards, to the best of my recol-

lection.

Q. What time of the evening was this?

A. The Plymouth coach entered the north gate

at about 7:15 p.m.

Q. Did you have the premises under observa-

tion on any time after May 21st ?
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A. Yes, on—that was May 31st. On June 1,

in the afternoon, with Investigator Myers, I ob-

served—that is, we were [81] driving by on the

River Road; I observed a man in front of Dough-

erty's house, which I later—who I later recognized

as George Harrison, who was arrested on the eve-

ning of the seizure.

Q. And the date of that observation was what?

A. I believe—I am not exactly positive, but I

think that was June 1st in the afternoon. It was

prior to the seizure, at any rate.

Q. When did you next have the place under ob-

servation? A. On the night of June 3rd.

Q. Will you relate what transpired on that eve-

ning ?

A. Yes, with other investigators—there were

several in the party—we approached the premises

from the south. From a distance of about a quar-

ter of a mile we could get the odor of fermenting

mash.

Q. What time of the day or night was that ?

A. We made the seizure about 9:05 p.m., so it

was shortly prior to 9:05 p.m. And approaching

closer, somewhat closer,—within a hundred or two

hundred yards, we could hear the noise of burners.

We surrounded the bam and arrested a man giv-

ing the name of Dante Brunzo operating the still

at that time. A few minutes later, about 9:15,

a truck was driven in and we arrested Rodoni,
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and the truck driver, and George Harrison, who

was walking behind the truck. At about 9:30 p.m.,

Investigator Shanks and I Avent over to the front

of the Dougherty house, the residence. The door

was open, the screen door, however, was there, and

Dougherty w^as sitting inside in plain view, I told

him that we w^ere Federal officers, asked him if he

owned the ranch. He said, ''Yes." I said, "Well,

you are mider arrest." He said, "What for, that

thing over there f I have got a lease," and he

produced the lease at that time to show^ us the lease

that he had.

Q. I show you Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1 in evi-

dence and ask you if you recognize that document.

A. Yes, this is the lease that he produced at

that time. [82]

Q. That is the lease that Mr. Dougherty pro-

duced at the time of his arrest? A. Yes.

Q. After Mi'. Dougherty produced the lease,

v<:hat happened?

A. We took him over to the barn in a few^ min-

utes, where we had the other defendants, left him

there. Then Investigator Shanks went to a cabin

that is in back of the Dougherty house, slightly

north, where we saw Mr. Myers put a man giving

the name Guiseppi Guinto imder arrest.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.
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Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Now, Mr. Harkins, you

went to the premises known as the Dougherty

Ranch on the evening or the night of June 3, is that

correct? A. June 3, that is correct, yes.

Q. What time did you enter the building where

the still was ? A. About 9 :05 p.m.

Q. Who was with you*?

A. Well, I went in alone. f

Q. What other agents accompanied you to the

premises?

A. Present at the raid there on the barn there

was Investigator Myers, Investigator Byrd, Inves-

tigator Shanks, and Investigator Blair.

Q. After you made your seizure of the still and

arrest of whomever you arrested in the still prem-

ises, I understand that you and Investigator

Shanks went to the Dougherty ranch house ; is that

correct ?

A. Not immediately. We arrested Truck Driver

Harrison before going to the ranch house.

Q. After you completed the arrest of the per-

sons who were immediately identified with the still,

you and Investigator Shanks did go to the ranch

house; that is correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you got to the ranch house how did you

approach it, from the front or the rear, or how?

A. We went up—we walked around the ranch

house, but we went up the front porch on the

premises. [83]
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Q. Did you walk around the ranch house from

the front or from the rear?

A. From the rear.

Q. You came aromid towards the front porch?

A. That's it, yes.

Q. Entered the room that would be on the north

side of the ranch house; is that correct?

A. Well, it would be on the side facing the

River Road, which I believe is the northeast side.

Q. When you got there was the door open or

closed? A. The front door was open.

Q. There was a screen door closed, was there?

A. The screen door w^as closed.

Q. You opened that door?

A. I beg pardon?

Q. You opened the screen door?

A. Not me.

Q. Did you speak to the man inside first?

A. We spoke to Dougherty, yes.

Q. What did you tell him?

A. I said, ''We are Federal officers. Do you

own this ranch?" He said, "Yes."

Q. He said he owned the ranch?

A. He did.

Q. And then what did you say?

A. We said, "You are under arrest for that

still in the barn."

Q. You said, "You are under arrest for the

still in the barn"? A. Yes.
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Q. As I understand it, you said, "We are Fed-

eral officers. Do you own that ranch?" And he

said, "Yes."

A. No, I said, "We are Federal officers. Do
you owii this ranch*?"

Q. Yes. Aiid he said he did.

A. He said he did.

Q. Then you said, "You are under arrest for

that still in the barn""?

A. Yes; words to that effect.

Q. You said that? A. Yes.

Q. You are the first one to mention "stiir"?

A. I beg your pardon?

Q. You were the first one to mention the word

"still"?

A. I am not [84] sure about the "still", but I

said, "You are mider arrest."

Q. Now you just a moment ago told us that you

said, "You are under arrest for that still in the

barn." Did you say that or did you not?

A. No; to the best of my recollection I did not.

Q. You did not ? A. Yes.

Q. So a moment ago when you said that you

did, you were incorrect? A. I was mistaken.

Q. What did Dougherty say when you told him

then that he was under arrest?

A. He said, "What, for that thing over there?

I have got a lease."

Q. He said, "I have got a lease"?
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A. Yes.

Q. Are those his exact words?

A. To the best of my recollection.

Q. Well, what did you say to him?

A. I said, "Well, I don't care how many leases

you have; you are under arrest," and he then got

up to get the lease, which he did.

Q. And did he show you the lease?

A. He did. He also said at that time, "I just

rented the place to them; I have got nothing to do

with it.

Q. In other words, he denied any connection

w^ith the still? Did he deny that he knew any still

was there?

A. He did later when he was questioned.

Q. But on this first occasion he, after you had

this conversation, got up and got the lease?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. Nov\', I call your attention to your testimony

before the United States Commissioner on Satur-

day, June 8, 1935, page 9, in case you have got a

copy of it. Directing your attention to page 9, begin-

ning where I have marked it, here, down to there

(indicating), and ask you to read that (handing

transcript to witness). And I also direct your atten-

tion to page 7 of the same transcript and ask you to

read where marked beginning on page 7 and contin-

uing down to where marked on page 8. Now, Mr.

Harkins, I ask you if on Jime 8, 1 935, you [85] were

asked the following questions before Ernest E. Wil-
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liams, United States Commissioner for the Northern

District of California, and if you gave the following

answers

:

"Q. Who was present when you first talked

to Dougherty'? A. Investigator Shanks.

"Q. What was the conversation you had

with Dougherty when you first talked to him?

''A. I have already mentioned it. I went

to the door and told him we were Federal of-

ficers and that he was under arrest.

"Q. Did you open the door.

''A. I did. We w^ent to the door and spoke

to him from outside and went in. I don't re-

member whether Shanks or I went in first.

"Q. You went to the door? A. Yes.

"Q. Was the door closed?

"A. The screen door was closed. I could see

him inside.

''Q. But was the door closed?

^'A. Yes.

"Q. And you opened the door and walked

in? A. Yes.

^'Q. Which one went in first?

"A. I don't recall.

''Q. And you told him he was under arrest?

'^A. I told him we were Federal officers and

he was under arrest.

^'Q. What did he say?

''A. He said, 'What, for that thing over

there? I have a lease.'
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"Q. What else was said?

**A. I said, 'I don't care how many leases

you have got; you are under arrest,' and he

said, 'I have nothing to do with it; I just rent-

ed them the land.'

'^Q. What did you say to that?

"A. I don't recall. We told him to come

on, and we went from there.

''Q. Did you immediately take him out of

the house?

'*A. In a few minutes, yes.

''Q. Did you bring him back to the house

again? A. Yes."

Did you so testify?

A. I believe it is substantially correct. [86]

Q. Now, then directing your attention to your

testimony before the same Commissioner on the

same day, at page 9 of the transcript, I ask you

if you were asked these questions and if you gave

these answers:

''Q. And he did not tell you the first time

he knew the still was there when you people

put him under arrest?

"A. I don't recall exactly; I presume he

did.

"Q. You say you presume he did. Do you

know whether he did?

'A. I know he denied any knowledge of it.
a
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^'Q. And didn't he voluntarily surrender to

you the lease he had for this particular twenty

acres of land?

''A. When we went back to the house he

showed me the lease and I said if he would

give it to me I would see that it was returned

to him.

^'Q. When did he show you the lease—on

the first occasion you went to the house or the

second occasion ?

"A. To the best of my recollection he got

the lease the tirst occasion."

So that if you testified before the United States

Commissioner that he got the lease and gave you

the lease on the second occasion when you went

back there you were incorrect; is that correct?

A. Well, I would say that I believe he showed

—

it is a long time ago; the best of my recollection is

that he got the lease, showed us the lease the first

time, but gave it to us the second time. We didn't

take it, I believe, at that time.

Q. Now, at that time after you talked with

Dougherty he completely denied any knowledge

that there was a still on those premises, didn't he?

A. He did, yes.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all. [87]
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FRED L. MYERS,

called for the defendant; sAvorn.

The Cleik: Q. Please state your full name to

the Court.

A. Fred L. Myers.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Myers, you are an

agent of the Alcohol Tax Unif?

A. I am, yes, sir.

Q. And you were acting as such in May, 1935?

A. I was, yes, sir.

Q. Did you participate in the investigation that

culminated in the seizure of a distillery on the

Frank Dougherty Ranch on June 3, 1935'.^

A. I did, yes, sir.

Q. Did you, previous to June 3, 1935, have the

Dougherty Ranch under observation?

A. I did, yes, sir.

Q. When?
A. Between the dates of May 14th and June 1st.

Q. Between the dates of May 14th and eJune 1st?

A. That is correct, yes, sir.

Q. From what place or places did you have the

Dougherty Ranch under observation on those dates ?

A. The Dougherty Ranch, itself, was called to

my attention by Investigator Harkins on June 1st

—May 31st he was dropped off by me while we

drove by the premises in that immediate vicinity.

I, myself, covered both approaches, one located
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seven miles—about seven miles north of the Dough-

erty Ranch, and one located about three miles south

of the Dougherty Ranch.

Q. Calling your attention to the evening of Jime

3, 1935, will you relate what happened at the time

that you went upon the premises of the Dougherty

Ranch ?

A. Subsequent to the seizure, Mr. Mathewson?

Q. Previous to the seizure.

A. We parked our cars about a mile away south

of the premises, crossed through the open fields and

approached the Dougherty Ranch from the south.

About a quarter of a mile [88] from the Dougherty

Ranch, itself, we could hear a pump—mechanical

pump—working. When about 150 to 200 yards

from the ranch premises we could obtain the odor

of fermenting mash. In circling the barn Inves-

tigator Harkins entered the premises. I followed

soon after and placed Brunzo, who was operating

the still at that time, under arrest.

Q. Mr. Myers, of what did the still consist?

A. It was a large still, about 25,000 gallons of

mash, a 1000-gallon cooking pot, steam boiler, and

about five or six hundred gallons of alcohol.

Q. Was the mash contained in one or more

tanks'? A. Six vats, I believe.

Q. Six vats? A. Yes, large vats.

Q. Do you know how large the still, itself, was?

A. It turned out about 500 gallons a day, I

should think.
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Q. After the arrest of Mr. Brimzo—was he the

one arrested in the still?

A. Operating the still proper, yes.

Q. After the arrest of Mr. Brunzo, what hap-

pened ?

A. A few moments later—about ten minutes

later, about quarter after nine, a truck drove onto

the premises on the south road with its lights out.

We allowed this truck to approach up to the still,

proper. Investigator Harkins, and Shanks, and

myself, placed the driver under arrest. I stayed

behind and arrested Harrison, who came walking

up from the ^ate at the River Road. When he

was within a matter of forty or fifty feet of the

still I placed him under arrest.

Q. Did you search Mr. Harrison?

A. I did not; no, sir.

Q. After the arrest of Mr. Harrison, what did

you do?

A. I was in the still premises with Brunzo. He
was arrested first, and the matter of changing his

clothes came up. I followed him from the still

premises north on what appeared to be a well-

traveled path about 80 to 90 yards to a cabin,

where the defendant Longo was [89] asleep. I

placed Longo under arrest, and was soon joined by

Harkins and Shanks.

Q. What was the relation between the cabin

where you found Longo asleep and the house on

the Dougherty ranch?
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Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to upon the

ground that it calls for the opinion and conclusion

of the witness.

The Court: Objection sustained. Proceed.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. How far was the house in

w^hich you arrested Longo from the residence on

the ranch? A. About 20 yards, sir.

Q. About 20?

A. Yes, sir ; it was slightly past the ranch house,

I should say west by north of the ranch house,

itself.

Q. With reference to the ranch house, where did

the path from the barn to the ranch house where

Longo was arrested pass?

A. In the rear of the ranch house, but separated

by a fence or enclosure—a building. There was

another building between the path and the ranch

house, a chicken shed, or something of that sort.

Q. Did you see the Dougherty ranch premises

in daylight? A. Just recently, sir.

Q. I show you a picture of the Dougherty ranch,

and ask you if you can indicate on that picture,

if you can, the approximate location of the house

where you arrested Longo?

A. It is not shown here, Mr. Mathewson.

Q. Well, can you indicate the direction from

any of the structures shown there?

A. Yes, sir; it should be setting over here where

inv thumb is.
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Q. It was beyond the range of the picture'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Beyond the range of that picture?

A. Yes.

Q. Beyond this building and over here?

A. That is correct; and slightly to the west.

Q. Slightly to the west?

A. We are looking, as I recall it, from [90]

the west to the east, there.

Q. This structure on the left-hand side is the

residence on the ranch?

A. The large structure, yes, sir.

Q. And the structure on the right-hand side is

the

A. Horse bam where the still was located.

Mr. Mathewson: If your Honor please, I ask

that Defendant's Exhibit A for identification be

admitted in evidence.

Mr. O'Connor: Objected to upon the ground that

it is incompetent, irrelevant, and immaterial.

The Court: Objection overruled. Let it be ad-

mitted and marked.

(The photograph heretofore marked ^'Defend-

ai\t's Exhibit A for identification" was admitted in

evidence and marked ''Defendant's Exhibit A.")
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Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: No questions.

CLAUDE M. SHANKS,

called for the defendant; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court.

A. Claude M. Shanks.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Shanks, you are an

agent of the Alcohol Tax Unit? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you participate in the seizure of a dis-

tillery on the Dougherty Ranch on June 3, 1935?

A. I did.

Q. Will you relate your participation in the

seizure ?

A. I approached, as has been stated, with the

rest of the men, heard the pump running, hot the

odor of distillation. I was one of the men

Q. From what point did you obtain the odor

of distillation? [91]

A. Oh, I would say 300 yards. It was dark. It

was pretty close.

Q. Where were you when you obtained this

odor?

A. Coming through a field where there was cut

grain shocked. It was south and east—possibly a

little east—of the barn where we seized the still.

Q. All right. Proceed.
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A. I was on the outside. I was present when the

truck driver was arrested. I was present when

Myers brought Harrison up from following the

truck. I was present when Dougherty was arrested.

Q. What happened at the time of Dougherty's

arrest ?

A. We went—this path that runs to the back

part of the house, it was a well worn path. I and

Investigator Harkins followed this path around; we

went through a gate, and to my recollection that

portion, it would be west of the house, around to

the front. There was a light in there. Investigator

Harkins went up to this door, which was a screen

door, and said, "Federal officers," asked him if he

owned the ranch, and he said he did. He told him

he was under arrest. We entered. And Dougherty

said, "What, for that thing over there?"—pointing.

He says, "I have a lease." I asked Dougherty for

the lease. There was some more conversation irrele-

vant. Dougherty was searched at that time. I took

a pocket knife away from him, and I asked him

for the lease, and my recollection is that he handed

me the lease and I passed it to Harkins. We then

taken him to the still barn. I wasn't present when

he was questioned.

Q. Had you gone into the still barn before you

went up to Dougherty's place?

A. No, sir, I had not. I had been outside watch-

ing all the time. I hadn't been into the still prem-

ises yet.
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Q. Do you remember whether or not you ob-

served the odor of distillation at Dougherty's house?

A. Oh, yes, the odor of distillation was plain. We
obtained it a considerable distance out in the field.

We could hear the pumps ; we could hear the burner

going; there [92] was no question in anyone's mind

but what there was a still there.

Mr. O 'Connor : I move that that that go out as not

binding on the plaintiff.

The Court : It may go out.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Were you present at Har-

rison's arrest?

Mr. O'Connor: The latter part of that answer I

move go out about their being no question in any-

body's mind.

The Court: It may go out. "No question in any-

body's mind" may go out.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Were you present at the

time of the arrest of Mr. Harrison ?

A. No, I was not. He came up behind the truck

and I was at the truck when that arrest was made.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Shanks, do you know
whether or not, or are you certain whether or not

the lease was given to you and investigator Harkins
on your first visit to the Dougherty house, or when
you returned to the Dougherty house ?

A. I am very positive that I asked for that lease



126 Fra/rik A. Dougherty

(Testimony of Claude M. Shanks.)

at that time, and I handed it to Investigator Har-

kins on that first trip.

Q. No doubt in your mind about that ?

A. There is no doubt, no, sir, in my mind.

Q. And he produced the lease at that time?

A. I asked him to produce the lease.

Q. Didn't he deny that he had any knowledge

of a still being on those premises ?

A. I wasn't present when he was questioned, but

his remark was, when he says, ''What, for that

thing over there ? I have a lease.
'

'

Q. Didn't he deny at that same time that he had

any knowledge of the still being there ? .

A. He did not, not in my presence. I wasn't

[93] present when he was questioned.

Q. Wait a minute. I mean on the first occasion

when you were there. A. No, he did not.

Q. If Investigator Harkins testified that he did

deny it on the first occasion when you were there,

would he be incorrect?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Would you say that he did or did not?

A. He did not.

Q. Or that you did not hear it ?

A. If he did, I didn't hear it.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

The Court: We will take an adjournment until

two o'clock.
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(A recess was here taken until two o'clock p. m.)

[94]

Afternoon Session

Mr. Mathewson: If your Honor please, at this

time, if it is permissible, I should like to take three

witnesses out of order, witnesses for expert opinions

as to the rental value of the property.

GUY J. PEDRONI,

called for the defendant ; sworn.

The Clerk: Q. Please state your full name to

the Court.

A. Guy J. Pedroni.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where do you reside, Mr.

Pedroni ? A. Salinas.

Q. What is your business or occupation?

A. Assistant cashier Salinas National Bank in

Salinas

Q. How long have you held that position?

A. Well, with this particular bank, I have been

with them since August—no, August, 1930, but I

have filled a similar position with the original First

National Bank and subsequently Bank of Italy, and

Bank of America.

Q. What are your duties at the bank?
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A. General duties of an assistant cashier.

Q. Do they include the duties of supervising the

work of appraisers in your institution?

A. Yes, to some extent.

Q. What experience have you had in the ap-

praising of property?

A. Well, I have had some experience. I pass on

practically all of the loans—that is, I don't make

the appraisal; I do pass on the loans as they are

submitted.

Q. In passing on the loans, as they are sub-

mitted, do you take into consideration the appraisal

as determined by the bank appraiser ?

A. Yes, in a great measure, for the reason that

they go right on the premises and they analyze the

property, especially where there [95] are buildings

on it, as to buildings on it, as to buildings.

Q. As a result of your experience in supervising

the work of the appraisers, are j^ou familiar with

the rental values of farm properties in the vicinity

of Salinas?

A. Somewhat, yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the property known as

the Frank Dougherty Ranch, about 12 miles south-

west of Salinas?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. If your Honor

please, at this time I desire to examine the witness

on his qualifications.

The Court: You may.
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Mr. O'Connor: Q. Do you do appraisal work,

yourself, Mr, Pedroni?

A. Not altogether, no, sir.

Q. What do you mean "not altogether"?

A. I mean that isn't mxy job only. I do that

along with other duties at the bank.

Q. I mean, do you actually go out and appraise

property, yourself? A. I have, yes, sir.

Q. You what ? A. I have.

Q. What type of property have you appraised,

Mr. Pedroni?

A. Well, I have appraised ranch properties, and

I have appraised homes.

Q. How long have you been doing that work?

A. Well, it hasn't been steady, but every time I

am called upon.

Q. Say over a year, how often would you make

an appraisal of the value of a piece of property?

—

I mean your own appraisal as distinguished from

the appraisal or from passing on a loan that has

been appraised by another appraiser at the bank ? I

mean your own actual appraisal of values.

A. As I am called on by the bank officers to

go out.

Q. When was the last time you made an ap-

praisal ?

A. Oh, it has ben about two months, I guess.

Q. Did you make that appraisal yourself inde-

pendent of any other appraiser ?
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A. No, usually you have another member of the

[96]—another officer of the bank.

Q. Was that for the purpose of passing on an

application for a loan? A. That is right.

Q. Was it ranch property?

A. This happened to be a home, that last one.

Q, Happened to be a home ? A. Yes.

Q. When is the last time you appraised any

ranch property in the vicinity of Salinas ?

A. It has been some little time ; I guess probably

six or eight months.

Q. At that time did you make an independent

appraisal, yourself, or did you base your loan upon

the work of some other appraiser ?

A. Well, the appraisal was made by myself and

the other officer of the bank.

Q. Did you examine the property?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That was ranch property? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Within the period of the last five years how

many pieces of ranch property would you say that

you have appraised?

A. Well, approximately half a dozen.

Q. Half a dozen within five years. All of the

appraisal work that you have done was for the pur-

pose of passing upon loan applications pending be-

fore the bank by whom you were employed; isn't

that correct? A. That is right.

Q. That is the only thing you had in mind when

you made an appraisal?



vs. John V. Lewis 131

(Testimony of Guy J. Pedroni.)

A. In connection with the bank for loan pur-

poses.

Q. What is the extent of the normal limits of

the percentage you would loan on a piece of prop-

erty ? What value—is it 40 per cent of the value, or

50 per cent of the value, or what ?

A. That varies as to the income that the prop-

erty can produce,

Q. What would be the top limit of your loan?

A. 50 per cent.

Q. What? A. 50 per cent. [97]

Q. 50 per cent would be the top limit ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Are you familiar with the

Frank A. Dougherty property, located about 12

miles southwest of Salinas?

A. I know where it is located, yes, sir.

Q. Do you know the property?

A. I do. I haven't been on it, but I know what

the property is. I have known it for a number of

years.

Q. Are you familiar with property of similar

nature and description in and around Salinas?

A. Yes, I think I am.

Q. Are you familiar with the rental values

I)revailing in that community for property of this

same tjT^e and description as the Frank Dougherty

property? A. I am.

Q. Are you in particular familiar with that por-
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tion of the Frank Dougherty property in front of

the residence and down along the River Road?

A. I think I know the property, yes.

Q. Have you an opinion as to the rental value

of approximately 20 acres of that property, in-

cluding barn, corral, two small sheds, and the use

of water for the purpose of feeding dry stock?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. If your Honor

please, I object to the question upon the ground

that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and immaterial,

and not within any of the issues of this case ; and I

make the further objection that the question as now

framed does not take into consideration or identify

the particular piece of property with which we are

concerned and that it is too general. I submit both

objections.

The Court: Q. You say you are familiar with

this property?

A. I am.

Q. And this particular twenty acres?

A. As to that specific acreage, I don't know. I

have an idea what the property is. [98]

Q. What do you mean by an idea?

A. Well, this portion here is part of a larger

tract of land. Whether it is bounded by fences I

am not able to say.

The Court: It goes to the weight of the testi-

mony ; I will allow it.

(The reporter read the last question asked by

Mr. Mathewson.)
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Mr. Mathewson: Q. Have you an opinion, Mr.

Pedroni ?

A. Yes; the rental value is between $10 to $15

an acre. $15 would be the very maximum.

Q. That includes the barn, corrals, sheds and the

use of water ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is an annual rental, Mr. Pedroni?

A. An annual rental.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. What do you mean by an

annual rental? $15 a year?

A. $15 per acre a year.

Q. Now, what particular twenty acres are you

referring to?

A. Well, any of that land in that vicinity there

couldn't demand much more than that for the pui'-

pose,

Q. What particular land are you referring to?

A. That particular 20 acres and adjoining

Q. Where is that particular 20 acres ?

A. This particular piece of land fronts on the

River Road kind of southwest of Salinas, approxi-

mately ten or twelve miles, and does not go across

the road. It is on the right side of the road. In

other words, it is on the west side—southwest side.

Q. Have you been on the land?

A. I have been on the road, not on the land.

Q. When were you on the road ?

A. About ten days ago.
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Q. Who were you with ? A. Mrs. Pedroni.

[99]

Q. Who else? A. No one else.

Q. Well, how do you know what particular 20

acres was involved in this particular litigation?

A. From the description given here in this court

this morning.

Q. From the description this morning?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the time that you made your appraisal

did you know what particular 20 acres were in-

volved ?

A. I didn't make any appraisal. You asked me
the question as to the value, and I think that piece

of land is no exception to any other adjoining prop-

erty, and that is the rental value.

Q. Do you know^ anything about the income

from that particular land over a period of years?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Assuming, Mr. Pedroni, that that particular

land, ten acres of it, were capable of producing 25

tons of hay a year. What is the average price of

hay per ton, do you know?

A. On average crops?

Q. Yes.

A. In a good year, when it is a good crop, I

would say that two tons to two and one-half tons

would be the highest crop production that could be

produced on any of that land there or adjoining,

and that wouldn't be every year, it would have to

be rotated.
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Mr. O'Connor: May I have that answer read?

(The reporter read the answer.)

Mr. O'Connor: Q. You mean per acre, don't

you?

A. Per acre, yes.

Q. Assuming two and one-half tons per acre for

ten acres, that would give you how many tons of

hay? A. Well, it would give you 250 tons.

Q. Right. 250 tons of hay. What is the prevail-

ing price of hay—the average price of hay per ton ?

A. Well, at the present time I think it is in the

neighborhood of ten or eleven dollars a ton.

Q. Do you know what it was in 1934 ?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Well, wouldn't the determination as to the

rental value of that land during the year 1934 be

dependent upon the ability of the land to [100] pro-

duce?

A. You can't adjust it based on any one particu-

lar year ; it would have to be spread over years
;
you

w^ould have to take the lean years along with the

good years.

Q. What would you say would be the rental

value of the 20 acres of land that we are speaking

about without the barns ?

A. It wouldn't decrease the rental value a great

deal.

Q. In other words, do I understand it to be your

opinion that there was a horse barn that could

accommodate 16 horses, with 16 stalls, and with a

storage capacity for hay of about 30 tons—do I



136 Frank A. Dougherty

(Testimony of Guy J. Pedroni.)

understand that that would not enhance the rental

value of that property at all?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. In other words, barns add no value to the

property, at all?

A. Well, it adds some value, yes, but not from

the standpoint of production,

Q. Well, I am not talking about production; I

am talking about renting. Would it add anything

to the rental value?

A. I don't think it would change the rental

value a great deal.

Q. On what do you base your figure of from $10

to $15 per acre?

A. The production of crops; what the land

would be used for.

Q. Are you familiar with the production of

crops on this particular 20 acres ?

A. Well, fairly so.

Q. Well, what did it produce in the year 1933?

A. I would have to give you an average over

probably a period of years.

Q. Well, let's take 1933. Do you know what

it produced in 1933 ? A. No, I do not.

Q. Do you know what it produced in 1934?

A. I do not.

Q. Do you know what it produced in 1935?

A. No.

Q. Do you know what it produced in 1931?

A. I do not.
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Q. Would you say that a rental value of $20 an

acre for this particular land was an exorbitant

rent?

A. It is for this [101] particular piece, yes, sir.

Q. On what do you base that statement?

A. The land will not produce it.

Q. Do you know anything about the ability on

the remaining ten acres of this land that is not

devoted to hay, for grazing purposes ?

A. The other ten acres?

Q. Yes.

A. I presume that is used for grazing purposes

and more corrals and the like.

Q. Do you know in that particular area what

rental would be paid per horse for grazing on that

land?

A. You couldn't pay very much unless you im-

ported the feed.

Q. I am not asking if you paid very much. I am
asking you do you know how much is paid.

A. No, I do not.

Q. So you do not know what the remaining ten

acres would produce in revenue if used as grazing

land, do you?

A. As grazing land I would think that a dollar

or a dollar and a half an acre would be sufficient

rental.

Q. Well, do you know whether grazing land—for

instance, isn't it true that people who own land in

that vicinity graze horses or mares or horses, at so



138 Frank A. Dougherty

(Testimony of Guy J. Pedroni.)

much per day per horse over a period of time, and

not so much per acre ?

Mr. Mathewson: If your Honor please, I object

to this line of examination. The announced purpose

of renting that property was for feeding dry stock.

The opinion of the witness was asked as to the

use of the property for feeding dry stock, not the

pasturing of mares.

Mr. O'Connor: I submit that if the property is

leased, the person leasing it can use it for anything

he wants. The fact that he was going to feed dry

stock would not be the determining factor in the

rental value. [102]

The Court : What is the fact ?

Mr. O 'Connor : What is the fact about what ?

The Court : What was raised on it ?

Mr. O'Connor: I don't know. I think it becomes

immaterial what was raised on it. The material fact

is what could the land produce. What these par-

ticular people wanted to use it for is immaterial.

They could use it for anything they wanted for

what they leased it.

The Court: For example, basing the value on

the return on that acreage for raising mares or

horses, for example, the fact is that there weren't

any raised.

Mr. O'Connor: There is no evidence here that

there wasn't. I don't know if there was or not. It

becomes immaterial if there was or not.
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The Court: That is the reason he is objecting,

because it is immaterial. That is his objection.

Mr. O'Comior: My point, if your Honor please,

is that once I lease a piece of property, you can do

anything you want with the property; you can

raise anything you want on it.

The Court : No doubt ; but here we call an expert

for the purpose of ascertaining what is a reason-

able rental for property, this property, property

in that vicinity; w^hether or not it is excessive rent.

That is the issue here.

Mr. O'Connor: Yes; I am cross-examining on

that. And if I can show that that land is capable

of producing, for instance, hay; if I can show that

it is capable of being used for grazing land ; if I can

show that the revenue from that land is in excess

of what this witness says it is by my cross-examina-

tion, it certainly affects his opinion and goes to the

weight of his opinion.

The Court: I will allow it. Proceed. Let's get

through with this witness. [103]

Mr. O'Connor: Please read my last question.

(The reporter read the last question.)

Mr. O'Connor: Will you answer that question,

please, Mr. Pedroni?

A. The pasture land, live stock, of horses in a

number as mentioned before the Court here, it ap-

pears to me that they must have to import feed,

because that land or no land would produce suffi-

cient to feed those animals.
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Mr. O'Connor: I move to strike the answer upon

the ground that it is not responsive to the question.

The Court: The answer will stand. Proceed.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Will you please answ^er the

question that I asked you, Mr. Pedroni: do you

know it to be a fact that in that particular section

of the country that grazing land is not necessarily

leased by acreage, but that horses are grazed on

there at some much per horse per day over a period

of time*?

The Witness: May I have that question again,

please ?

The Court : Read the question.

(The reporter read the question.)

A. No, I didn't know.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. You don't know that?

A. No.

Q. And you don't know what the rate is for

that, do you? A. No.

Q. At whose request did you make the appraisal

of this property?

A. The appraisal of this particular piece of

property ?

Q. Yes. A. At the request of this Court.

Q. At the request of the Court. When did the

Court request you to make an appraisal ?

A. I wasn't asked by any

Q. You were asked by whom ?

A. I was asked to appear before this Court by
Mr. Mathewson.
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Q. Mr. Mathewson, of the United States Attor-

ney's Office? A. Yes.

Q. Whom did you first talk to concerning your

appraisal of this pro- [104] perty ?

A. No one else.

Q. Just Mr. Mathewson? A. Yes.

Q. You met Mr. Mathewson where? In Salinas?

A. In Salinas.

Mr. O 'Connor : That is all.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.

Mr. O'Comior: Could I ask Mr. Pedroni one

question ?

Q. Do you know how much this acreage returned

in 1934 and 1935, how much was devoted to grazing

land?

A. No. I know one portion, that is approxi-

mately 10 acres, that is fenced off, where hay has

been grown.

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge during

that period of time what portion was devoted to

raising hay and what portion was devoted to grazing

land?

A. I couldn't say specifically for 1934.

Q. You can? A. I cannot.

Q. Say 1935? A. No.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.
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JACOB J. BAUDOUR,

called for the defendant ; sworn.

The Clerk: Q. Please state your full name to

the Court.

A. Jacob J. Baudour.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson : Q. Mr. Baudour, where do you

live?

A. I live twelve miles out of Salinas.

The Court : Speak out louder, just as you would

down in Salinas.

A. 12 miles out of Salinas.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Is that on the River Road?

A. On the River Road, it is.

Q. Do you know where the Frank Dougherty

place is? A. Yes.

Q. How far from the Dougherty place do you

live? A. Oh, about a mile and a half. [105]

Q. About a mile and a half up the River Road,

or down the River Road?

A. Up the River Road.

Q. Is that toward Salinas or away from Salinas ?

A. Away from Salinas.

Q. What is your occupation or business?

A. Farmer.

Q. Do you own your own land? A. I do.

Q. Do you farm your own land?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you lease any land which you farm?

A. Yes, I lease quite a bit of land.



vs. John V. Lewis 143

(Testimony of Jacob J. Baudour.)

Q. Do you have any land under lease at the

present time'? A. Yes, I do.

Q. About how much have you?

Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to upon the

groimd that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and im-

material. A. At the present time

Mr. O'Connor: Just a minute.

The Court: Lay the foundation. Where is the

land? What character of land?

Mr. Mathewson: Q. What character of land do

you have under lease ?

A. I have sediment land and I have some hay

land.

The Court: Q. How many acres do you own

altogether ?

A. Do I own?

Q. Yes.

A. I own about 30 acres of my own.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where is the hay land?

A. The hay land is about three miles from the

Dougherty place toward Salinas.

Q. Is that the same type of land? Are you famil-

iar with the type of land in the Dougherty place?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. That is the land immediately around the

Dougherty homestead ? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been engaged in the occu-

pation of farming? A. Mostly all my life.

[106]

The Court : Q. Thirty years ?
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A. Yes, 50 years. I was born on the farm.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. How much of that time

has been spent in farming around Salinas*?

A. For the last 15 years I have been on the

same place that I am now.

Q. Are you familiar with the rental value of

property of the same type as the Dougherty prop-

erty ?

A. Yes.

Q. What, in your opinion, would be the reason-

able rental value of 20 acres of the Dougherty prop-

erty extending from the front of the Dougherty

property south along the River Road, together with

the barn on the Dougherty property, corral, two

small sheds, and the use of water for the purpose of

feeding dry stock?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. To which I ob-

ject upon the ground that is incompetent, irrelevant,

and immaterial, and not within the issues of this

case.

The Court: Objection overruled. You may an-

swer.

A. Not over $5 an acre.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. That is the annual rent?

A. Yes.

Q. And that includes the barn?

A. That includes barns and buildings.

Q. And the corral ? A. Corrals.

Q. And the use of water? A. Yes.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.
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Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Do you know Mr. Doug-

herty'? A. Yes, I do.

Q. How long have you known him ?

A. I have known him for 15 or 16 years.

Q. Did you ever have any difficulties with him?

A. Well, not exactly. I farmed some of his land.

Q. Never had any difficulties with him?

A. No, not—one time [107] there he brought up

a suit, but there really wasn't any trial; I just went

and gave him his money—a little misunderstanding.

Q. Well, isn't it true that you were farming part

of his land there on a crop contract, and he had to

sue you to recover money?

A. It was a misunderstanding.

Q. Just a moment. Didn't he sue you to recover

the money you owed him?

A. He sued and I paid the money without any

trial.

Q. You were sued, and he took a judgment

against you? He got a judgment in the Justice's

Court in Salinas against you?

A. No, he didn't get a judgment. I just gave

the money to the Judge and told him to pass it

over to him; I didn't want any trouble.

Q. It was after you had been sued ?

A. Yes, he started suit.

Q. Have you been friendly with him since then ?

A. Been friendly—we have.
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Q. What have been your relationships'? How
often have you seen him?

A. Oh, I can't say how often I see him. I go by

there; sometimes I see him; sometimes I don't.

Q. How often have you rented land from Doug-

herty? A. Just the one time.

Q. Isn't it true that he refused to rent you land

after that?

A. I never rented from him ; I never asked him

for it.

Q. You never asked?

A. I never asked him for it.

Q. On what do you base your opinion that the

rental value of this land is $5 an acre ?

A. Rental of the land?

Q. Yes. A. Not over $5 an acre.

Q. What do you base your opinion upon ?

A. Well, the land isn't worth it.

Q. What do you base your opinion on? What
facts?

A. Well, it is for farming, the land, is only

worth $5, because there is no profit in it. [108]

Q. Do you know what hay it produced in the

year 1934 or 1935?

A. As an average crop, it is about a ton to the

acre.

Q. About a ton to the acre?

A. A ton to the acre.
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Q. It wouldn't be true, then, that an average

crop on that ten acres of land would run about

2% tons an acre?

' A. Not on an average.

Q. Well, would you say it never did run to 2^/2

tons an acre?

A. Oh, yes, some years they get 2i/^ tons to the

acre.

Q. Do you know anything about the remaining

ten acres on that particular piece of land?

A. The ten acres—what did you say?

Q. That isn't in hay?

A. That isn't in hay? Well, I don't know if

there is ten acres in there that isn't in hay.

Q. Do you know how many acres are in this

particular piece?

A. I don't believe there is over five acres.

Q. You don't believe there are five acres in

what? A. On this particular piece.

Q. On the whole place?

A. Well, in the place that there is no hay on,

just grazing land.

Q. Are you familiar with the piece of property

that we are talking about?

A. Yes, I believe I am.

Q. How large is the entire piece of property?

A. I don't believe it is over ten acres.

Q. You don't believe it is over ten acres?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Supposing the testimony in this case was to

the effect that it was 20 acres; would you say that

was correct or incorrect!

A. That is not correct.

Q. Hovv' do you know^ it isn't '?

A. Because I can tell by my own piece of prop-

erty.

Q. You can tell what?

A. That there isn't over ten acres.

Q. How many acres of land are there on the

Dougheity place?

A. I believe there is around 1400—between 1400

and 1500 acres. [109]

Q. Do you know what particular acreage was

leased by Mr. Dougherty to these other people?

A. Well, from what I heard I know it was a

piece

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge?

A. Yes, I think I know.

Q. How many acres were leased by them?

A. He claims—he leased

Q. Just a moment. I didn't ask you what he

claimed; I asked you how many acres v/ere leased

by Mr. Dougherty of your own knowledge? Do

you know? A. He leased out twenty acres.

Q. Twenty acres. All right. How much is graz-

ing land worth down there in that particular area?

How much would you charge on fair grazing land

to put in horses to graze? How much would you

charge a day for them?
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A. $2 a month is a good price.

Q. Would you say $2 a month would be a good

price, is that correct, for each horse?

A. Yes.

Q. For each horse? A. Yes.

Q. How many horses could you graze on ten

acres of fair grazing land?

A. By the year? For the year? Not more than

one horse.

Q. One horse for ten acres?

A. On that kind of soil.

Q. Just one horse to ten acres?

A. Just one horse to ten acres on that kind of

soil.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

HEEBERT BALTZ,

called for the defendant; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to

the Court.

A. Herbert Baltz.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where do you reside, Mr.

Baltz? A. Salinas, California. [110]

Q. What is your occupation?

A. Realtor.

O. Where do vou conduct vour business?
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A. In Salinas and vicinity.

Q. How long have you been engaged in that

business"? A. 14 years.

Q. What business did you engage in before you

engaged as a real estate broker?

A. I was a bookkeeper and field man for N.

Wellman Company, wholesale hay, grain and

produce.

Q. Are you familiar with the Frank A. Dough-

erty place located about twelve miles southwest

from Salinas on the River Road?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the land in front of

the buildings on the Dougherty place and the land

extending down the River Road toward Chular?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with similar land in the

community? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the rental values of

that land? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you able to form an opinion as to the

reasonable rental value of approximately 20 acres

of the Dougherty place located in front of the

Dougherty building? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Extending down the road, together with a

barn, corral, two sheds, and the use of water for

the purpose of feeding dry stock?

A. Yes.
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Q. What is your opinion of the reasonable

rental value?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. To which I ob-

ject upon the ground that it is incompetent, irrele-

vant, and immaterial, not within the issues of this

case.

The C^ourt: Objection overruled. You may an-

swer.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. What is your opinion?

A. $170 per year.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Upon what do you base that

opinion, Mr. Baltz?

A. On a calculation of figures derived from in-

come of hay land, grazing land, and buildings.

[Ill]

Q. What figures do you refer to, specifically?

A. AVhat do you mean?

Q. What figures are you referring to? You
said that you based that upon a calculation of

figures. I am asking you what particular figures

you are referring to.

A. I refer to 15 acres of hay land capable of

producing on the average 1 ton of hay per acre

on which the owner would receive the usual crop

share of one quarter per ton, based on the average

])rice' $16 per ton delivered and i)ut in the barn,
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which would produce $4 per year per acre. That

multiplied by 15 acres, which is the approximate

hay land produces $60.

Q. Now, then, on what do you base your state-

ment there was approximately fifteen acres of hay

land involved here f

A. From my observation I assiune, or I have

determined that the segregation of the land is

fifteen acres hay land and five acres grazing land.

Q. When did you make that determination '^

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you go onto the property yesterday?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what portion of that property

was used for hay in 1934 and 1935?

A. I was on the ground at that time.

Q. In 1934 and 1935?

A. Yes, sir, in '34.

Q. In '34.

A. At the time the place was demolished.

Q. The place was A. At the time

Q. The still?

A. The trouble, the still demolished.

Q. You were out there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were you doing out there?

A. I went out there at the time they auctioned

off the materials.

Q. At the time they auctioned some of the ma-

terials seized from the still? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. In basing your figures, you are assuming, I

assume, when you give that rental of $170 a year

—

I will withdraw that question. What is the usual

crop share that goes to the owner of property in

land [112] of this type?

A. One-quarter share.

Q. One-quarter share. In basing your figure

of rental at $170 a year, I assume that you are

assuming that the owner would receive one-quarter

share, is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether or not he was to re-

ceive it in this particular case?

A. No, I don't know that.

Q. Supposing that he didn't receive it, what

would be your idea of a fair value of the rental

of that land? A. Not over $200.

Q. Isn't it a fact that the rent down there is

not a quarter share to the owner, but a third share

to the owner?

A. In more cases it is one-quarter in grazing

land.

Q. We are talking about hay land.

A. In hay land, yes, because the owner has a

chance to sell the stubble, which is another little

I)rofit—or the tenant, I should say.

Q. Now, then, as I understand your testimony,

if the owner did not receive a share of the crop a

fair rental would be $200 for how many acres?

A. For twenty acres.
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Q. And how many acres of that would you as-

sume to be in hay? A. 15 acres.

Q. All right. What would be the value of the

return that a man would receive from five acres

of grazing land?

A. For cows or horses?

Q. For horses. A. $2 an acre per year.

Q. $2 an acre per year? A. Yes.

Q. Supposing that he was renting not on an

acreage basis, but on the basis of so much a head

per horse, what would you say would be a fair

return that he should get?

A. For just the use of the land, I would still

say $2 per acre.

Q. I say, assuming that he is not renting it

upon that basis, but is charging per day per horse,

what would you say would be a fair charge per

day per horse?

A. I couldn't answer that; that is in the [113]

category of a riding academy.

Q. You don't know, do you?

A. I don't know, no, sir.

Q. By the way, whom did you first discuss the

question of your becoming a witness in this case

with?

A. I don't know the gentleman's name.

Q. Mr. Gaines, who sits here? A. Yes.

Q. When did you talk to Mr. Gains first?

A. About a month ago.
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Q. What would you assume would be the pro-

duction of hay on that acreage per year in tonnage f

A. Well, the other day when I passed it, there

is about a ton of hay in the cob there now. As I

remember '34, it was a hay year, and it should

haA^e been about two tons an acre.

Q. Two tons of hay per acre? A. Yes.

Q. Two tons of hay per acre would be how

many tons? A. 30 tons of hay.

Q. How much was hay selling for in that year?

A. $16 per ton, delivered and put in the barn.

Q. $16 a ton, so that hay land would produce a

return of $480, is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. During the year 1934?

A. 16 multiplied by 30.

Q. Now^, then, do you know whether or not, or

would you say that the payment of a dollar a day

for ten horses as grazing land would be a fair

return or w^ould be a fair price?

A. A dollar a day?

Q
A

Q
A

Q
A

Q
Q

vou

For ten horses, ten mares.

Strictly for grazing, without any care?

Grazing, water—water and grazing land.

$10 a day for ten horses?

No; $1 a day for ten horses.

It would be a fair wage, yes.

It would be a fair return? A. Yes.

You wouldn't say it was excessive, would

A. No.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all. [114]
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Redirect Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Baltz, how long could

you pasture ten horses on the property in the front

of the Dougherty place ?

A. Are you referring to the five acres'?

Q. Yes. A. Or the 20 acres!

Q. 5 acres. A. About a week.

Mr. Mathewson: That is all.

JULIUS BIANCHINI,

called for the defendant; sworn.

The Clerk: Q. Please state your full name to

the Court?

A. Julius Bianchini.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Bianchini, where do

you now live ? A. El Cerrito.

Q. What address in El Cerrito I

A. 351 San Pablo Avenue.

Q. You were one of the defendants in the trial

for the operation of the distillery on the Frank

Dougherty place? A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. That distillery was seized when, do you recol-

lect? A. The day?

Q. About the time the distillery was seized.

A. Oh, it is 1934 in November—part of No-

vember, sometime.
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Q. Is that when the distillery was seized?

A. That is the time we put up the still.

Q. You put the still sometime in November,

1934? A. That's it.

Q. Do you recollect when you first went upon

the Dougherty property? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first go out there?

A. I don't remember exactly; in October—the

last of October and the first of November; some-

thing like that.

Q. 1934? A. 1934. [115]

Q. With whom did you go?

A. Mr. Rodoni and Biagi.

Q. About what time of the day did you go out

there ?

A. I have forgotten ; I think it was the forenoon.

Q. When you went out there did you see Mr.

Dougherty ?

A. Mr. Rodoni introduced me to Mr. Dougherty.

Q. Where w^as Mr. Dougherty?

A. Right in the yard.

Q. In the front yard? A. Yes.

Q. At that time did you have any conversation

or did any one of the three of you have any conver-

sation with Mr. Dougherty with respect to renting

his property?

A. Yes, we had conversation to rent the place

for the still.

Q. Did you tell him at the time that you wanted
to rent the place for a still ?
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A. We tell Mr. Dougherty we want to rent the

place for the still and then we make arrangement

to have a place for the still.

Q. Did you discuss the property that yon wanted

to rent? A. We decided just the barn.

Q. You told him you wanted the barn ?

A. The barn, and to go through for the gate to

the bam.

Q. How did you determine how large that prop-

erty was?

A. Oh, it is hard to say; I don't know; about 10

acres, 5 acres; I don't know.

Q. You were interested in the barn?

A. Just in the barn.

Q. Did you discuss with Mr. Dougherty the

rental that you would pay for the place ?

A. $125 a month.

Q. Did you prepare a written lease?

A. We prepared a written lease the same time

we go in there.

Q. Who prepared the lease?

A. Me and Biagi.

Q. Where did you prepare it ?

A. In San Juan.

Q. After you prepared the lease did you present

it to Mr. Dougherty?

A. Give to Mr. Dougherty. [116]

Q. And did Mr. Dougherty sign it?

A. I didn't see him at the time he signed it.

Mr. Dougherty get the lease and maybe he make

—
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he read to somebody to see if it is all right, and I

don't sign it. And Mr. Rodoni signed the lease. We
told Mr. Rodoni to sign.

Q. You told Mr. Rodoni to sign it?

A. Yes.

Q. You gave it to Dougherty and you didn't see

him sign it?

A. No, I don't see Mr. Dougherty sign it.

Q. Do you remember for how long a period of

time you wanted this property?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. I object to that

upon the ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant,

and immaterial what period of time he wanted it

for, not binding upon the plaintiff in this case.

The Court: You may develop whatever was said

and done at that time and place. Develop the con-

versation whatever it was.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Did you have any futher

conversation with Mr. Dougherty with respect to

the use of his property?

A. We had conversation that day and then we

came back again and make arrangements.

Q. Did you make any arrangements or have any

conversation with Mr. Dougherty for the use of any

houses on the property where men could stay?

A. We had conversation to have the little cabin

on the side of Frank Dougherty's house.

Q. He told you could have that place for men
to stay? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. After you leased the property what did you

do ? A. After we leased the property ?

Q. Yes.

A. We started work to put up a still there.

Q. Did you move a still into the place ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how long did it take you to set it up,

do you remember?

A. Oh, to make—to set up and start to rvm, I

think around 30 days.

Q. During that period of time did you go on

the property? A. Yes, [117] sometimes

Q. About how often did you go on the property ?

A. Oh, time before run I go every day to work,

every night, you know, to set up.

Q. How long did the still operate ?

A. First time operate about 21 days or 22; I

don't remember exactly.

Q. And how long was it before it started to

operate again? A. Over four months.

Q. Over four months. The second time it oper-

ated how long did it operate ?

A. Altogether got thirteen days.

Q. Do you remember how much alcohol you pro-

duced there per day?

A. Oh, between 50 and 55 cans.

Q. 5-gallon cans? A. Yes.

Q. Did you make any application for power on

the place?

A. Yes, I make application two times.
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Q. I show you Defendant's Exhibit B in evi-

dence and refer particularly to application No. 35-

101 dated April 30, 1935, and application No. 34-283,

dated November 5, 1934, and ask you to examine

those and tell me whether or not that is your signa-

ture on the application. A. I can't read.

Q. You can't read? A. No.

Q. Can't you write your name?

A. Yes, I can write my name; I can read it.

Q. Will you look at that and tell me whether

that is your name?

A. What do you mean, what is the name ?

Q. I am calling your attention now to this pencil

name, "R. Bini" and ask you if you signed that.

A, I signed that.

Q. Did you sign the name ''R. Bini" on Applica-

tion No. 34-283? A. Yes, I signed again.

Q. You signed both of those applications?

A. Yes.

Q. Who paid Mr. Dougherty the rent?

A. I paid. [118]

Q. Did you pay him, yourself? A. Yes.

Q. How often did you pay him?

A. I paid two months first time and one month
the last time. We got three months.

Q. You paid him a total of three months ?

A. No, I paid $125 at a time.

Q. You paid him $125 each time?

A. Each time.

Q. You paid him three times ?
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A. Three times.

Q. Twice in 1934? A. Yes.

Q. And once when you started up again?

A. That's it.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Dougherty around his

place while you were there ?

A. I seen him around the yard, yes.

Q. And do you recollect what time of the day

you saw him?

A. Oh, most was there noon time.

Q. Usually around noon time? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember whether Mr. Dougherty

was ever around his place at noon time when the

still was operating?

A. Yes, he was around—not around the still; he

was in the yard over the house.

Q. Did Mr. Dougherty ever come around the

still at all?

A. Not at the time I was there.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Just a moment, please.

A. All right.

Q. You have been convicted of a felony, haven't

you?

The Court: You will have to iron that out a lit-

tle, ^'felony" he probably doesn't understand.
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Mr. O'Connor: Q. Do you know what a felony

is ? Do you know what a felony is ? A. No.

Q. Are you a citizen? You pleaded guilty here

in this court to violating the Internal Revenue Laws

with respect to stills, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir ; I served my time for that.

Q. You pleaded guilty to it, didn't you? [119]

The Court : He asked you if you pleaded guilty.

A. Yes, I plead guilty.

Mr. O'Connor: Will it be stipulated that the

witness has been convicted of a felony, Mr. Math-

ewson ?

Mr. Mathewson: Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. And you testified as a wit-

ness for the Government at the time Mr. Dougherty

was tried in the criminal case, didn't you?

The Court: Did you testify? I don't recall. Did

he?

Mr. O'Connor: Yes, he testified.

Mr. Mathewson: He testified in the criminal

case.

A. I think I make a mistake that time.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. You made a mistake that

time. What was the mistake you made that time?

A. I make mistake; I don't say the truth.

Q. You didn't tell the truth. In what way didn't

you tell the truth that time ?

A. Well, because I don't want to plead guilty

my case.

Q. What?
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A. I don't want to plead guilty in my case.

Q. You already had pleaded guilty before you

testified, didn't you? A. No.

Mr. Mathewson: No.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. All right, Mr. Bianchini,

didn't you on the 15th day of January, 1936, plead

guilty in this court before Judge Roche ?

Mr. Mathewson: The question has been already

asked and answered. A. Yes.

Mr. Mathewson: The witness has said that he

did plead guilty.

Mr. O'Connor: That isn't the question. He said

he hadn't pleaded guilty until after the case was

tried.

The Court: I think there was some confusion.

Whatever the record discloses, develop if that was

the fact.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Did you plead guilty on

January 15, 1936, before [120] his Honor, Judge

Roche ?

A. I don't remember the date, exactly. I plead

guilty my case.

Q. You pleaded guilty before the other case went

to trial and then you came here and testified before

the jury, didn't you?

A. No, I don't remember that.

Q. You didn't testify?

The Court: Before a jury, a jury sitting here,

you testified?
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A. I testified that; I don't know my case was al-

ready gone.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. You had pleaded guilty al-

ready but you hadn't been sentenced yet, isn't that

correct? You had pleaded guilty but the Court had

not sentenced you, isn't that correct?

A. That is correct.

Mr. Mathew^son : That is stipulated.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Do I understand you to say

now that you did not tell the truth at the last trial ?

A. No.

Q. Why? A. Because I make a mistake.

Q. What was the mistake you made?

The Court: Q. What was the mistake you

made?

A. The mistake. All right, that time I testified

I think the lease is Frank Dougherty, the lease he

have, but the lease I see he don't say Frank. Now,

I got to say the truth.

Q. In other words, at that time 3^011 said the

lease said Frank Dougherty?

A. That is what I said.

Q. But the lease didn't say Frank Dougherty?

A. No.

Mr. Mathewson: I think counsel has misunder-

stood the witness. I think the witness said that he

thought the lease would save Frank Dougherty.

The Court: Q. Did you say " save "

?

A. Yes.

Mr. Mathewson: And it didn't save him.

Mr. O'Connor: Well, it did save him. [121]
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Mr. Mathewson : Well, I think it was the efforts

of counsel rather than the lease.

The Court: I have no doubt about it, myself.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Well, at the last trial of

this case, Mr. Bianchini, in any event, didn't you

testify that when you, Rodoni and Biagi went to

see Mr. Dougherty about this place you told him

you wanted to run cattle? Didn't you testify to that

at the last trial?

A. Yes, I testified to that.

Q. You testified to that on the last trial?

A. Yes.

Q. And didn't you testify on the last trial that

you did not tell Dougherty you were going to make

liquor there?

A. We talked to Dougherty we going to put up a

still.

Q. Wait a minute; I am not asking you that.

When you testified before his Honor, Judge Roche,

at the last trial, didn't you tell his Honor and the

jury that when you talked to Dougherty you did not

tell Dougherty you were going to run a still there;

isn't that true? A. Yes.

Q. That is true? A. That is true.

Q. Now, you want the Court to understand that

at the time you talked to him you did tell him you

were going to run a still ; is that correct ?

A. Well, because that time I make mistake.

Q. You made a mistake then but you are not

making any mistake this time? A. That's it.
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Q. Who have you talked to before you became a

witness in this case here about this case ?

The Court : He wants to know whom you talked

to.

A. He w^ants to know? Mr. Mathewson, there.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Mathewson; whom else?

A. The other fellow.

Q. You mean Mr. Gaines? A. Yes. [122]

Q. When did you talk to Mr. Gaines first about

this case?

A. Just a minute. No, it wasn't for this case; it

w^as another case.

Q. Do you remember that?

A. Yes, he came over and saw me once. I got

mixed up.

Q. You gave him the story?

A. This fellow came over to see me twice.

Q. He came over to see you twice? A. Yes.

Q. He talked to you about the Dougherty case?

A. Yes.

Q. When did he talk to you about the Dougherty

case? A. Last week sometime.

Q. Tell us the conversation you had with him?

A. I don't know it is right to tell them to you

or not.

Mr. Mathewson: I think you had better unless

the Court tells you not to.

The Court : Tell him all about it.

A. Well, he had a conversation, he wanted to

find out the truth.
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Mr. O'Connor: Q. The truth. What did you

tell him? Did you tell him you didn't tell the truth

the last time, or did he tell you you didn't tell the

truth the last time ?

A. No, you know what I tell you. I tell him

everything w^hat I told last time, and this morning

I decided to tell the truth.

Q. To tell the truth? A. Yes.

Q. In other words, when Mr. Graines talked to

you you told him the same thing you told him the

last time? A. Yes.

Q. This morning you thought you would tell

the truth. Before you determined to tell the truth

this morning whom^ else did you talk to ?

A. Nobody else.

Q. Did you talk to Rodoni?

A. I see Rodoni, yes.

Q. Did you talk to Rodoni ?

A. I don't talk about the case.

Q. You didn't talk about the case at all?

A. No. [123]

Q. Weren't you talking to him about the case in

the lavatory outside? A. No.

Q. You were talking in there?

A. I was talking, not about the case.

Q. Mr. Gaines was in there with you, wasn't he,

isn't that true?

A. I don't talk about the case.

Q. Mr. Gaines, Mr. Rodoni, and you were in the

lavatory together?
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A. I don't was in the lavatory myself; you are

mistaken.

Q. You weren't? In any event, you didn't tell

the truth last time and you are telling the truth

now ; is that correct ? A. Correct.

Q. Now, then, didn't you testify at the last trial

of this case that you only paid Dougherty on the

one occasion? A. I paid Dougherty.

Q. I didn't ask you what you paid him; I am
asking you what you testified to at the last trial.

Didn't you at the last trial testify that you only

paid him once, and that you paid him $115 ?

The Court : He wants to know if you testified

—

A. I don't remember that.

Q. Would you say that you did or you did not?

Mr. Licking: If the Court please, I would sug-

gest that counsel show him the transcript.

Mr. O'Connor: I haven't got the transcript. If

necessary, I will ask the Court to continue the case

until I can get it.

Q. Did you testify at the last trial that you paid

Dougherty $125 on three different occasions?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Would you say that you did or you did not?

A. I say I don't remember; a long time.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

Redirect Examination

Mr. Mathewson: May I ask one question?

The Court: Yes. [124]
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Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Bianchini, you talked

to me twice before you came over here, did you not ?

A. Yes.

Q. Each time that you talked to me you told me,

did you not, that you never talked to Dougherty

about setting up the still ? A. Yes.

Q. You also told me that you agreed to rent the

place for $400 ? A. Yes.

Q. The rental was $20 a month? A. Yes.

Mr. O'Comior: Let him testify as to what he

told you. It is redirect examination; it isn't cross

examination.

Mr. Mathewson : Q. When did you first tell me,

Mr. Bianchini, that you told Dougherty that you

were going to set up a still there ?

A. The first I told you?

Q. Yes.

A. We rent that place for dry stock, you remem-

ber?

Q. Well, when did you first tell me that?

The Court: Q. When did you first tell Mr.

Mathewson ?

A. A little over a week, I think. I don't remem-

ber the night you come over to

Mr. Mathewson: Q. No, no.

Mr. O'Connor: Let him answer the question.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. When did you first tell me
that you told Dougherty when you rented the place

that you were going to set up a still ?

A. The night you came over there, over where I

live.
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Q. Do you understand me, Mr. Bianchini ? When
did you first tell me—when did you first tell me that

you told Dougherty you wanted the place for a still ?

A. Oh, the first time I told you, this morning,

over here.

Q. This morning, where?

A. This morning right in the corner, there.

Q. When did you first tell me that you agreed to

pay Dougherty the rent of $125 a month ?

A. This morning.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all. [125]

Mr. O'Connor: May I see that assessment? I

would like to ask some further questions.

Recross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Where are you living now?

A. In El Cerrito.

Q. The Collector of Internal Revenue made an

assessment of tax against you arising out of the

operation of this still, didn't he?

A. Investigation, yes.

Q. He made an assessment against you; you

were notified that you owed the Government over

$7000 in taxes, weren't you?

A. When I get it, I pay.

Q. As a matter of fact, you were notified by the

Collector of Internal Revenue that they had as-

sessed over $7000 in taxes against you; isn't that

true?

A. I guess so. I don't know exactly how much.
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Q. You know that you are supposed to owe

the Government over $7000 in taxes for operating

this still down there on the Dougherty ranch, don't

you know that? A. (No answer).

Q. Isn't that true? A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know. Haven't you ever received a

notice from the Collector of Internal Revenue that

he held a tax bill against you for over $7000 be-

cause of the operation of this still? Didn't you re-

ceive a notice from the Collector of Internal Reve-

nue?

A. I received a notice; I don't remember how

much.

Q. You also know that your other co-defendants

ill the case, Rodoni, Guiseppi Guinto, Guiseppi Bi-

ago and George Harrison, also were assessed the

same amount of tax, don't you, the same tax that

they are trying to collect from Dougherty? You
know that? Don't you know that? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know that if Mr. Dougherty pays any

part of that tax that makes less tax for you to pay,

don't you? A. No, I don't know that. [126]

Q. You don't know that? A. No.

Q. You didn't know that Mr. Dougherty had

already paid over $3700 of that tax and that would

come off your tax bill, did you ?

Q. If I told you it were true, would that make

any difference in your testimony? A. No.

Mr. O'Connor: No, it would not. All right, that

is all.



vs. John V. Leiuis 173

GUISEPPI BIAGI,

called for the defendant ; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Guiseppi Biagi.

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Mr. Biagi, where do you

live ? A. San Mateo.

Q. Where in San Mateo?

A. 209 26th Avenue.

Q. You pleaded guilty to a charge of operating

a still in the Frank Dougherty place, did you not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you recollect when you first went on the

Dougherty place ? Do you remember when you went

the first time on the Dougherty place ?

A. Yes, I think it was on Monday.

Q. Do you remember what year it was ?

A. 1934.

Q. About what time of the year ?

A. Between October—last part of October, I

think; I don't remember the date, because that is

too far back.

Q. Did you see Frank Dougherty on the place

where you went there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you relate to the Court—will you tell

the Court what happened when you went there?

A. We went there, and Rodoni introduced me,

because I never known him, and we had a conversa-

tion to do what we done.

Q. What did you say to Dougherty and what did

Dougherty say to you ? [127]
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A. We started, before we talking, we say we
going to put dry stock. I ask if we have to say the

truth, you can't go any place, say anything like

that.

Mr. O 'Connor : May I have that answer ?

A. And on top was the truth, what you going to

dof

Mr. O'Connor: Just a minute.

(The reporter read the answer of the witness.)

Mr. O'Connor: I move—let it stay.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Did you tell Mr. Dough-

erty what you wanted that place for ?

A. Yes, sir.

The Court: Speak up. A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. What did you tell him

you wanted the place for? A. For the still.

The Court: Q. For what?

A. For the still.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. How much did you agree

to pay him for the place?

A. I think I said the other time in front the

jury trial

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. I object to that,

if your Honor please, upon the ground that it is

not responsive to the question.

The Court: Read the question.

(The reporter read the question.)

A. I said like I want to say, see. I think I re-

member I told you in the front the truth at the

time.

I
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Mr. O'Connor: I object to that on the ground

that it is not responsive.

The Court: You answer that question then ex-

plain it any way you want. Tell the conversation.

A. 125 a month.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Did you ever pay him any

rent? A. Not me. [128]

Q. Did you have any conversation about the

preparation of a lease?

A. No, I think I never had any myself.

Q. You never had any conversation about the

preparation of a lease? A. No.

Q. Did you tell Mr. Dougherty how much land

you wanted?

A. Oh, we say we want to—we was interested

in the barn, the front of the barn, because after we

say we make the lease. He says I can put a little

big, put about 20 acres.

Q. Did you have any conversation with Mr.

Dougherty about using any cabin on the place for

living quarters?

A. The pump; nothing else.

Q. Water. Did you ask him whether you could

have any place to stay there ?

A. Not me. Maybe Bianchini asked him. He was

the one that did most of the outside work.

Q. After you had the lease did you set up a still ?

A. Yes, sir, started right in few days before we
was working.
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Q. How long did it take you to set up the still ?

A. It take between 25 and 30 days before we got

started.

Q. How much of that time did you work on it?

A. I worked every day.

Q. You worked every day?

A. Every day.

Q. When would you come to work?

A. Early in the morning.

Q. Early in the morning?

A. Go out late at night.

Q. How long did the still operate after you got

it up?

A. I don't remember sure how many days it

operate first time, about 22, 21; I don't remember

exactly.

Q. AYhy did the still shut down the first time,

do you know?

A. Because the stuff was too cheap; we can't

make any profit.

Q. By "the stuff" do you mean alcohol?

A. Alcohol, yes, it was too cheap; we can't make

any profit.

Q. Did you have any trouble with your equip-

ment?

A. Yes ; we had a trouble on the boiler, too. [129]

Q. What happened to the boiler ?

A. It burned out.

Q. What did you do with it ?
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A. I leave man there to take them outside and

replace another one. I was outside looking for the

other one, myself.

Q. When you shut down the still what did you

do with the equipment?

Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to upon the

ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and im-

material.

A. Take them away.

Mr. O'Connor: Wait a moment, please, Mr.

Bianchini—whatever your name is. Object to that

on the ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and

immaterial.

The Court : What was the question ?

(The reporter read the question.)

Mr. Mathewson: You see, your Honor, they

started the still

Mr. O'Connor: I withdraw the objection. You

are referring to the time when it was shut down?

Mr. Mathewson: Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: I withdraw the objection.

The Court : Answer the question.

A. We moved the still away. We just leave

boiler and the empty tank inside the barn and the

pot from the still.

Q. Did you come back later and set up the still

again ? A. Yes.

Q. About how much later?

A. Oh, about three months, or something like
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that; I don't remember; three and a half or four

months.

Q. The second time you set up the still how long

did you operate? A. Thirteen days.

Q. How much alcohol did you produce in thir-

teen days?

A. We produced between 50 and 55 cans a day.

Q. Were you around the place while it was op-

erating the second time? A. Oh, sure.

Q. How often were you around there ?

A. I usually around every morning. [130]

Q. Every A. Every morning.

Q. Every morning? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time did you go in there in the morn-

ing?

A. I used to get the stuff and take them out.

Q. Do you remember about what time in the

morning it was?

A. Oh, it was all the time before daylight.

Q. It was before daylight? A. Yes.

Q. You would go in in the morning and take

the stuff out before daylight? A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Dougherty around the

place while the still was operating?

A. Not around the barn.

Q. Not around the barn?

A. I saw him in the yard.

Q. You saw him in his yard? A. Yes.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.
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Mr. O'Connor: May we take a short recess at

this time, if your Honor please ?

(After recess:)

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Where do you live now, Mr.

Biagi? A. San Mateo.

Q. Whereabouts in San Mateo?

A. 209 26th Avenue.

Q. How long have you lived there ?

A. About 15 months.

Q. Have you ever been convicted of a felony?

A. What?

Q. Have you ever been convicted of a felony?

Do you know what a felony is ?

Mr. Mathewson: We will stipulate that he was

convicted of a felony in this Dougherty case.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. You pleaded guilty?

Mr. Mathewson : He has so testified.

Mr. O'Connor: This is cross examination. I

have a right to [131] cross examine the witness.

Q. You pleaded guilty in the case of United

States V. Dougherty and others when you were

charged with the operation of a still, didn't you?

A. Yes.

Q. You received a jail sentence, didn't you?

A. Yes.

Q. What was your sentence?

A. Same thing; one year.
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Q. Prior to that time you had been convicted of

a violation of the liquor laws before that, hadn't

you?

Mr. Licking: To which I object on the ground

it is immaterial unless that violation was also a

felony.

Mr. O'Connor: I propose to show that it was.

Q, You were convicted of a violation of the Cali-

fornia State Sale Law? A. Yes.

Q. And you did time in the Hollister County

Jail for it? A. Yes.

Mr. Licking: I move that that testimony be

stricken on counsel's own statement, because under

the laws of the State of California no offense is a

felony when the sentence is to the county jail.

Mr. O'Connor: I will take a ruling.

The Court: Objection sustained.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Were you ever convicted of

any other violation of the liquor laws other than

the violation when you pleaded guilty in this case?

Mr. Licking: To which I object on the ground

that it is immaterial unless it is confined to a felony.

The Court: Objection sustained.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Were you ever convicted of

any felony other than the felony in this particular

case ? A. Yes, another in 1931.

The Court: What was that? A. 1930.

Q. What happened?

A. I got sent to some jail—county jail. [132]

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Where? What court?
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A. In Judge St. Sure.

Q. For violation of the Internal Revenue Laws

with respect to sale, wasn't it? A. Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: That was a felony.

Q. Now, then, whom have you talked to about

your testimony in this case? A. AYhat?

Q. Whom have you talked to about your testi-

mony in this case ?

The Court : Whom have you talked to ?

A. Mr. Mathewson.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Whom else?

A. Mr. Gaines.

Q. They came down to your house in San

Mateo, didn't they? A. Yes.

Q. When they talked to you down there did you

tell them at that time that when you had the con-

versation with Dougherty about leasing the place

that you told Dougherty you were going to operate

a still there ? A. I told him at that time, yes.

Q. How long ago was that?

A. Friday night.

Q. And at that time what did you tell them?

A. What?

Q. What did you tell them ?

A. I told him we pay $125 a month for rent.

Q. Well, what did you tell them about a conver-

sation you had with Dougherty the first time you

talked to Dougherty?

A. I say I never talked much with Dougherty. I

told him the same thing I told here.
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Q. That you never talked to Dougherty?

A. Most of the talking Bianchini and Rodoni.

Q. Were you present?

A. Yes, I was present.

Q. What conversation did you tell them Avas had

between Dougherty, Rodoni and Bianchini on the

first time you talked to Dougherty concerning the

lease of these premises?

A. I don't remember my conversation. I told

them I don't remember what conversation we had.

Q. You told them you didn't remember?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell them you told Dougherty that

you were going to use the barn to operate a still in?

A. No, I told them I don't [133] remember.

Q. Do I understand you to here testify today,

your present testimony to be, that when you talked

to Dougherty you told Dougherty you were going

to operate a still there?

A. The other guys told him, yes.

Q. Did you hear him tell him ?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. You didn't hear anyone tell Dougherty that

a still was going to be operated there ?

A. I don't remember exactly; it is too far back.

Q. At the last trial you testified that you did

not tell Dougherty you were going to operate a still,

but that you told him you were going to raise chick-

ens and run cattle; didn't you testify to that on the

last trial? A. I don't remember.
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Q, Would you say that you did not %

A. I say I don't remember.

Q. You don't remember whether you did, or

not % A. Whether I did, or not.

Q. Now, do I understand it to be your testimony

now that you did not tell Dougherty that you were

going to run a still there ?

A. What do you mean?

Q. Do I understand you to now testify today

that when you talked to Dougherty about renting

these premises that you did not mention a still to

him?

Mr. Licking: I submit, your Honor, that the

question, while perfectly phrased for another wit-

ness, is obviously to this witness unintelligible.

The Court : Q. Did you hear this conversation ?

A. I think I heard the conversation; I know

was one talking out there.

Q. What do you remember was said ?

A. I remember somebody say for that.

Q. Somebody said what?

A. For the operation of the still.

Q. When? A. When we went to see.

The Court: Proceed.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Told that to whom?
A. To Dougherty. [134]

Q. When was that?

A. The first time we went to see or the second.

Q. Who said that? A. What?

Q. Who said that to Dougherty ?
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A. Bianchini or Rodoni, one of the two.

Q. You are sure of that?

A. I am pretty sure.

Q. Now, didn't you testify at the last trial that

they didn't tell him that?

A. I don't remember that I testified to that or

not.

Q. You did testify at the last trial, didn't you?

A. Yes, I testified at the last trial.

Q. Do you remember testifying at the last trial

that you told Dougherty that you wanted the place

to raise chickens on and run cattle ? Do you remem-

ber testifying to that?

A. Yes, we told him that, too.

Q. Do you remember testifying at the last trial

that you never mentioned the still to him ?

A. I don't know if I said that or not.

Q. You don't know whether you said that, or

not. Now, there has been assessed against you a

tax. A. I know that.

Q. How much is the tax assessed against you?

A. Seven thousand something; I don't know.

Q. Has any of your property been seized?

A. I haven't got any property.

Q. Did you consult a lawyer concerning it?

The Court: Q. Did you talk to a lawyer?

A. No, I never talked to anyone. Investigators

came over to see me about it, six or seven months

ago, about it.
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Mr. O'Connor: Q. You know, do you not, that

the same amount of tax that is assessed against you

has also been assessed against the other defendants,

don't you? A. Yes.

Q. You know that? A. I know that.

Q. And you know that if the Government col-

lects any part of the tax [135] from anybody it

takes the amount off your tax ?

A. I don't know that.

Q. You don't know that? Don't you know that

the tax is assessed jointly against all of you?

^ A. Yes, I think it be the same one every boy; I

don't know if you collect one take if off from the

other.

Q. You don't know that?

A. I don't know that.

Q. Supposing I told you that that was the fact

;

that if the Government successfully collected any

tax from Dougherty that they would cut down your

tax; would that make any difference in your testi-

mony?

Mr. Licking : It seems to me that question is im-

material, because it presupposes something which

the witness knew before he testified about some-

thing which is assumed to be a fact by counsel now.

The Court: The only purpose of this testimony,

I take it, is to show the interest of this witness.

Mr. O'Connor: That is correct.

The Court: I will permit the answer, 'j'he rea-

son for his testimony he has given.
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(The reporter read the last question.)

The Court: Would that make any difference in

your testimony—what you are saying here ?

A. No, I try to say my best truth what I can re-

member.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Did you ever pay any money to

Mr. Dougherty? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever see any money paid to him?

A. Sure, I give it to Rodoni.

Q. You gave it to whom? A. Rodoni.

Q. Did you ever see Rodoni give it to Dough-

erty ? A. No.

Q. You don't know whether Rodoni ever paid

him or not, then, do you, of your own knowledge?

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know?

A. He say he paid. [136]

Q. Irrespective of what he said, you weren't

present and you don't know whether he paid or not,

do you? A. No.

Q. Who was the owner of that still?

Mr. Mathewson: I object to the question on the

ground that it is improper cross examination.

The Court: I will allow it. Who was the owner.

A. Rodoni used to own that.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Rodoni was the owner of

the still? A. Before.

Q. I am not talking about it before; after you

started to operate it? A. Me and Bianchini.

Q. You and Bianchini. Was anybody else an

owner besides you? A. No, sir.
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Q. You were the two proprietors?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was Rodoni? Merely an employee?

A. Employee.

Q. And the other men that were working on the

still were mere employees? A. Employees.

Q. During the whole time that that still was

there you and Bianchini were the owners and pro-

prietors of the still ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did Dougherty have any interest in the still?

A. No, sir.

Q. And did you have any agreement with

Dougherty whereby he was to receive any profits of

the still? A. No, sir.

Q. Was he to take any of the losses on the still ?

A. No, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

ANGELO RODONI,

called for the Defendant ; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Angelo Rodoni. [137]

Direct Examination

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Where do you live, Mr.

Rodoni ? A. Soledad.

Q. What do you do? A. Milker on dairy.

Q. You entered a plea to a charge of violating

the Internal Revenue Law by the operation of a dis-
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tillery on the Frank Dougherty place, did you not?

A. I did.

Q. And you were sentenced ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the sentence ?

A. 90 days in the County Jail and $200 fine.

The Court : Q. You are the one that was work-

ing there?

A. Yes, I working, your Honor.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Do you remember when

you first went on the Dougherty place?

A. I don't remember exactly.

Q. As near as you can remember?

A. It was about in October, I think, 1934.

Q. Did you go on the Dougherty place alone or

with others?

A. With Bianchini and Biagi.

Q. About what time of the day did you go

there ?

A. Oh, if I recall, it was before noon.

Q. Did you see Mr. Dougherty then?

A. Yes, we went up on the road and he was

there in the corral by the house; I don't recall

exactly the place where he was.

Q. Did the three of you drive in the place and

have a conversation with Mr. Dougherty ?

A. We stopped the car and we got off of the

car and we went up and talked to him.

Q. Do you remember the conversation you had

with Mr. Dougherty? A. Yes.

Q. Will you relate it to the judge ?
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A. Well, these two guys, Bianchini and Biagi,

thej^ didn't know Frank Dougherty. Of course, I

didn't know^ him very well, but I know him, seeing

him on the street [138] and so on, so I told him that

these two fellows are interested in renting a piece of

land from him for some purpose or another. So I

told him, '

' These are the two guys
;
you can have a

talk with them.

Q. Mr. Dougherty then had a conversation with

Mr. Biagi and Mr. Bianchini? A. Yes.

Q. Were you present at the time of that con-

versation ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the conversation?

A. Well, they told him they would like to rent

the barn to make a little whiskey, as they was going

to make a little arrangement so it would be leased

for cattle. It shows on the lease it would be rented

for the purpose of raising cattle and stuff like that.

Q. Did you have any conversation as to the

amount of rental?

A. Well, I heard Biagi and Bianchini tell him

that they was going to pay him between $125 or

more a month.

Q. Do you know the rental that was to be paid?

You said $125 or more a month. A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether that rental was to fluc-

tuate with the money they received from the still?

Mr. O'Connor: That is objected to upon the

ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant, and imma-

terial.
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The Court : State the conversation—not what he

knew.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. Did you subsequently sign

a lease? A. Yes.

Q. I show you Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 in evidence

and ask you if that is the lease that you signed?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you sign it ? What name did you use

in signing it? A. Coranti Perolli.

Q. Did you sign that name, '' Coranti Perolli"?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did you sign that name?

A. The house on the ranch.

Q. Do you know where this lease was prepared?

A. Bianchini told me it was prepared in San

Juan. [139]

Mr. O'Connor: I move that that go out as hear-

say and not binding upon the plaintiff.

The Court : It will go out.

Mr. Mathewson: Q. You signed that lease on

the ranch. Who gave it to you ?

A. I don't recall if it was Biagi or Bianchini,

but it was one of the two. They told me to bring it

over to Frank and sign it.

Q. After the lease was signed, did you work

around the place?

A. I worked for a few days helping the guys.

Q. What did you help them with ?

A. Well, moving and fixing pipes, and whatever

was necessary to put up this equipment.
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Q. Did you help them in moving the equipment

in ? A. Yes.

Q. Did anybody besides Biagi and Bianchini

help you with the equipment? A. Yes.

Q. Who else?

A. I think Brimza Quinto.

Q. Brunza Quinto, Biagi, and Bianchini, and

yourself unloaded the equipment ? A. Yes.

Q. Anybody else? A. No.

Q. Did you work in the still after it was set up?

A. No.

Q. Did you work there in the spring of 1935?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you do then ?

A. Truck driver.

Q. What were you hauling?

A. I was hauling molasses and sugar—supplies

to run the still.

Q. Do you know how many trips you made?

A. Oh, between 12 or 15 trips, I guess.

Q. Do you recall what time of the day it was

that you would make the trips ?

A. I used to go down there at the ranch about

eight or nine o'clock at night.

Q. Would you leave again the same night?

A. Well, usually it was about the same time

every night. [140]

Q. You would arrive there about eight or nine

o'clock at night? A. Yes.
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Q. What road did you use in driving into the

place *?

A. Sometimes I used to go by the River Road

to Monterey; sometimes I used to go out to Chular

and take the old County Road and go up to the

ranch.

Q. In driving in to the Dougherty ranch which

road did you use in going from the River Road in

to the still?

A. You mean the road that goes into the ranch?

Q. Yes.

A. There was only one road that goes into the

ranch to the place where the still was.

Q. That was the only road you used?

A. Yes.

Q. That was through the gate in the fence, the

south gate towards Chular? A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever pay any money to Mr. Dough-

erty ?

A. Well, one time I was up there Biagi and Bi-

anchini they gave me $125 and said ^'You bring it

over to Frank."

Q. Did you? A. Yes, I did.

Q. Do you recall about when that happened?

A. I don't remember the date.

Mr. Mathewson : That is all.

Cross Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Now, when you first talked

to Mr. Dougherty, you and Bianchini and Biagi,
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tell us what the conversation was, as you recall it.

A. Well, that is what I told just now.

Q. Well, tell us again.

A. We was out there and we drove by and I

saw Frank around the yard or the corral, I don't

remember exactly the place where I saw him. We
stopped and we got off, and I told Frank, I says,

''Here is two men, Biagi and Bianchini, that is the

name, and they are interested in renting a piece of

land from you for raising cattle or some other pur-

pose.
'

' And I guess then [141] they went along with

Frank Dougherty and had a talk with him.

Q. Were you present when they talked to

Dougherty ? A. Yes.

Q. What did they say?

A. They say that they were going to rent the

barn to make some whiskey.

Q. To make some whiskey? A. Yes.

Q. They used the word ''whiskey"? Did they

use the word "whiskey"? A. Yes.

Q. Is that all? A. That is all.

Q. That is all that was said at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they say anything about a still ?

A. That is to make whiskey.

Q. Did they mention the word "still"?

A. They expect to put up a still to make whis-

key.

Q. They expect to put up a still to make whis-

key ? A. Yes.
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Q. They also said they wanted to run cattle and

raise chickens, is that right ?

A. They said, "You could make a lease that

shows that the ranch is rented to raise cattle."

Q. All right; the question of raising cattle was

mentioned, wasn't it? A. It was.

Q. Now, when did you sign that lease, Mr. Ro-

doni?

A. I don't recall the date when I signed the

lease.

Q. You don't recall the date?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Do you remember testifying at the last trial

of this case ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember at the last trial that you

were put on the witness stand, you were examined

by the United States Attorney, you were cross

examined by me, and that you then left the stand as

a witness, and up to that time you hadn't testified

that there was any conversation with Dougherty

about running the still, there; but that after con-

sulting with your attorney, Mr. Molloy, and after

having talked to Mr. Mathewson, of the United

States Attorney's Office, you came [142] back the

next day and testified that you did have a conversa-

tion with Dougherty about using the barn for a

still ? Do you remember that ?

A. I remember that, but what I said when they

first asked me what was the conversation, I told

them just the way I say it now.
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Q. You didn't tell them anything about a still

when they first asked you ? A. I did.

Q. The first time you testified? A. Yes.

Q. You told them that the first time you testi-

fied? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I would ask you to read your testimony taken

on January 29, 1936, beginning on page 2, January

29, 1936, at two p. m., and continuing to page 18,

and ask you if you can show me anywhere in there

where you mentioned anything in there about a

still ?

The Court: Ask the attorney.

Mr. O'Connor: Will you stipulate?

Mr. Mathewson: If the Court please, the ques-

tion, itself, is argumentative, but so far as I see it

there is nothing in the report referred to, there is

no direct statement with reference to the operation

of a still.

Mr. O'Connor: There is no statement in there

that he had a conversation with Dougherty in which

he said or the other men said that they wanted to

use this barn for a still or to make whiskey ?

Mr. Licking : I will further stipulate that he was

never asked the question, if the Court please. I will

stipulate that the answer isn't in there.

Mr. O 'Connor : That he did not so testify ?

Mr. Licking: He never was asked that question.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. And isn't it a fact that you

came back the next day and said that after talking

to your attorney, Mr. Molloy, the night before, that
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you were determined to come back and tell the

[143] truth; isn't that correct? A. Yes.

Q. And then on the next day for the first time

you testified to this conversation with Dougherty

about their using that place to make whiskey; isn't

that true 1

A. I don't quite understand that question.

Q. All right; it is immaterial; isn't it true that

at the last trial you testified that there was no con-

versation with Dougherty concerning using the land

to run cattle on? A. No.

Q. Did you so testify at the last trial?

A. Yes.

Q. You did? A. Yes.

Q. Are you sure? A. Yes.

Mr. O'Connor: Will you stipulate that he did

not, Mr. Licking?

Mr. Licking: I can't stipulate.

The Court: I am an innocent bystander here,

but was he asked if there was any cattle ?

Mr. O'Connor: Yes, I will call his attention to

the cattle.

The Court : Call it to his attention.

Mr. Licking: If it is your intention to impeach

the witness by the use of the transcript, I would

suggest before asking the question about his testi-

mony that you show him the transcript. I would

suggest otherwise that you are bound by his answer.

The Court: It may be helpful to me: Do you

know of any reason why I gave him a fine of $200?
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Mr. O'Connor: Because he testified for the Gov-

ernment.

The Court: Was that your state of mind?

Mr. O'Connor: I think that it was represented

to your Honor that he was entitled to considera-

tion because he testified for the Government.

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Licking: 1 suggest, your Honor

Mr. O'Connor: And he was an employee also.

[144]

The Court : I have a peculiar state of mind on it.

Now and then I check on myself, and I have a fair

memory, although at times it fails me. But if I re-

member, that is the reason I sentenced the other two

defendants to longer sentences, and this man got

90 days or $200.

Mr. O'Connor: He was an employee; he wasn't

an owner ; and he also testified for the Government,

and I think it was represented to your Honor at

the time that he had testified as a witness for the

Government. I assume he was entitled to considera-

tion from that fact.

Mr. Licking: If I may refresh your Honor's

recollection and possibly dispell the idea that coun-

sel has, that your Honor's sentence was based on

any idea that any consideration be given to him for

such service as he rendered, the defendant Quinto

was given a penalty of $500 or 90 days, and the de-

fendant Brunzo was given a $500 fine or 30 days.

This witness was fined $200 and 90 days.
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Mr. O'Connor: Of course, this witness was in a

little different position than some of the other de-

fendants. While he was an employee he testified at

the last trial that he was the man that purchased the

still from some cousin of his and sold the still to

the other two defendants.

The Court: It is beside the issues here. I also

sit in judgment on myself in relation to this work.

The only reason I am inquiring, it might be help-

ful to me later on in doing the things I am expected

to do.

Mr. O'Connor: Page 24 of the transcript.

Mr. Licking : Just a minute. What line ?

Mr. O'Connor: My transcript is not numbered

by line. It would be about the sixth line. I will show

him the testimony.

The Court : Can you read ? A. Yes.

Mr. Licking: If the Court please, if I may sug-

gest that at [145] some time the Court read this

testimony from page 24, beginning with the word-

ing indicated, if I may offer it to the Court to read

it at the time.

The Court: Proceed.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Start reading, Mr. Rodoni,

with that line and read down to the end of the page.

A. Each say

Q. Read it to yourself. I ask you if at the last

trial, Mr. Rodoni, in answer to the following ques-

tions you gave the following answers

:

I
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Mr. Licking: If the Court please, before read-

ing the questions and answers, the Court having al-

ready read it, I would suggest that the evidence can

be read for only one purpose, of impeachment of the

witness.

Mr. O'Connor: He has already testified

Mr. Licking : If that is the purpose

Mr. O 'Connor : That is the purpose.

Mr. Licking: And the purpose, I take it, is to

impeach an answer he has given to a question w^hich

you have asked him?

Mr. O 'Connor : That is correct.

Mr. Licking: May I have that question read?

May I have the question of counsel read ?

(The reporter here read from the previous rec-

ord.)

Mr. Licking: If the Court please, I submit that

the matter is in no way impeaching.

The Court: The transcript discloses that he did

at the other trial state in relation to the lease ^'They

said they were going to make a lease to show that it

was for some other purpose." Did they say any-

thing about dry cows ?

Mr. O'Connor: Yes, but he didn't.

The Court : They said to make whiskey.

Mr. O'Connor: There was no testimony in the

transcript that [146] there was any mention about

dry cows. He said today there was.

The Court: Yes, on page 24, the seventh line

from the bottom.
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Mr. O'Connor: Where is any statement by him

about dry cows? All he says, ''They were going to

make the lease to show that it was for some other

purpose. '

'

Mr. Licking: That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: They don't say anything about

dry cows.

The Court: He was asked the question, ''Did

they say anything about dry cows?" The answer is

"They said they were going to make the lease and

make it to show it was for some other purpose."

Mr. O'Connor: That is in answer to the ques-

tion. I asked him that at the last trial.

The Court: Ask him now. I think you will save

time anj^way.

Mr. O'Connor: He has testified now already that

he did say at the last trial—I think it is immaterial,

anyway, so I will withdraw it.

Q. Mr. Rodoni, there has been a tax assessed

against you as the result of the operation of this

still; isn't that correct? A. Yes.

Q. How much is the amount of that tax ?

A. I don't recall the amount.

Q. It is in excess of $7000, isn't it?

A. I guess it is about that much.

Q. And you consulted an attorney concerning it,

haven't you? A. Yes.

Q. Mr. McShane? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have been advised, have you not,

that some of the taxes have already been collected

from Mr. Dougherty, haven't you? A. Yes.
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Q. You knew that that would deduct from the

amount of tax that you would have to pay ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all. [147]

Mr. Mathewson: No questions.

That is the Defendant's case, your Honor.

The Court : Is the matter submitted ?

Mr. O 'Connor : No, your Honor, I have some re-

buttal testimony. I haven't it available at this time.

Tomorrow morning.

The Court : Very well ; we will take the adjourn-

ment imtil tomorrow morning.

(Thereupon an adjournment was taken until

Wednesday, June 14, 1939, at ten o'clock a. m.)

[148]

Wednesday, June 14, 1939.

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY,

the Plaintiff, being recalled as a witness in his own

behalf in rebuttal, testified as follows

:

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Dougherty, approxi-

mately how much of the 20 acres that we have been

discussing here is hay land ?

A. I should judge ten acres.

Q. In a normal year or in a fair year how much

hay will that land produce to the acre ?

A. About two tons and a half.
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Q. In a fair year what is the normal sale value

of that hay on the ground %

A. About $12—$12.50.

Q. That is loose hay on the ground?

A. Loose hay.

Q. What would be the price of it baled?

A. Baled we sold hay for $17.

Q. That would be from the barn ?

A. From the barn.

Q. What does it cost you to bale hay?

A. About two and a half a ton.

Q. How much would you say it would cost you

or cost the ordinary person operating under ordi-

nary circumstances to put in that ten acres in hay

and harvest it?

A. It would cost in the neighborhood of $50.

Q. In the neighborhood of $50? A. Yes.

Q. When you leased this land to those people

that have testified here, did you put any limit on

them as to what they could use the land for ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't tell them what they could or could

not use it for? A. No.

Q. As far as you were concerned, they could

have used it for any purpose they saw fit ?

A. Any purpose.

Q. Did you at any time agree to receive from

them a rental of $125 [149] a month?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Did you ever receive a rental of $125 a

month? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you receive three payments of $125 a

month from these people? A. No.

Q. Is it the fact that the only rent you re-

ceived was the money that you have testified to, a

hundred dollars on two different occasions?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, then, you heard these men testify yes-

terday that when they talked to you they told you

that they w^ere going to use this barn for the pur-

pose of an illicit still. Did they ever mention ''still"

to you? A. No, sir.

Q. Any of them? A. No, sir.

Q. The question of the still or the use of the

premises for the making of whiskey was never men-

tioned to you at any time ? A. No, sir.

Mr. O'Connor: You may cross examine.

Cross Examination

Mr. Licking: Q. You say you never put any

limit on their use of the property? A. No, sir.

Q. Calling your attention to Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 1 and particularly to the covenant and agree-

ment upon the third page, I ask you to read that

typewritten portion there.

A. That part I did,

Q. You did put A. Yes, sir.

Q. —this provision: ''and it is further agreed

that said leased property will not be used in any
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manner or form so as to conflict with any Federal

or State laws or any county ordinances. Violation

of which will cancel this lease and the lessor will

immediately remove all persons therefrom." Why
did you put that in the lease ?

A. Well, they do it in all leases.

Q. Why did you put it in this lease ?

A. Well, supposed to [150] be the proper thing

to do.

Q. Did you regard it as the proper thing to do?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have heard these people testify that they

moved the still into this place which is, by the way,

how far from your house ?

A. Well, from where I stay it is about 250 feet.

Q. About 250 feet. Don't you ever get around

your house, around to the back of the house in the

course of a year or closer

A. Very seldom, you know^, I happen to walk

around that way.

Q. You get around that way; it is a little closer;

isn't that so? A. No, it is further.

Q. About 250 feet? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is the closest place to it. You have heard

these people testify that they moved the still in

there; that they operated that still 21 or 22 days;

that they removed it ; that they dumped the disabled

boiler into the arroyo off from the place; that they

used the cabin on your place for some of their em-

ployees to sleep; that they discontinued operations
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there for a considerable time; that they afterwards

reinstalled the still, put in a new boiler, and oper-

ated it again. Did you see any of those things going

on? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever look there to see what they were

doing? A. No, sir.

Q. Well, then, again, why did you put that par-

ticular clause in the lease ?

Mr. O'Connor: I submit the question has been

asked and answered, if your Honor please; repeti-

tion of the former cross examination; nothing was

asked on direct concerning this matter.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. O'Connor: Go ahead and answer.

A. Why did I?

Mr. Licking: Yes.

A. That is why all people do mostly in leases.

[151]

Q. But you said you considered this a proper

thing to have in the lease. A. Yes, sir.

Q. You considered it a part of your duty to see

that your property was not used to violate the law ?

A. Yes.

Q. That is why you put it in there, wasn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then why didn't you do it? Why didn't you

ever look?

Mr. O'Connor: I object to that on the ground

that it is argumentative, if the Court please.

The Court: Objection sustained.
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Mr. Licking: Q. What was actually done with

this hay on that particular piece of hay ground the

year the still was seized?

A. That hay laid there.

Q. That hay laid there! A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was cut, wasn't it?

A. Yes, sir, it was cut.

Q. Who cut it? A. I cut it.

Q. How close did that take you to the still

premises ?

A. Well, I guess about a hundred yards.

Q. About a hiuidred yards. I understand from

your lease that this property, this 20 acres, with

this hay land on it, was leased to these gentlemen

who operated the still; that is correct, isn't it?

A. I didn't hear you.

Q. Wasn't this hay land leased, as the lease re-

cites, to the people who operated that still ?

A. Yes, sir, but there is a corral there quite a

ways away from the barn.

Q. How did you happen to cut the hay ?

A. He spoke to me to do it when he got the

place.
I

Q. He said he wanted you to cut the hay?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. For yourself? A. No, sir. |

Q. Just wanted it cut to lay on the ground? •:

A. I cut it and piled it ; that was the last I heard

of it. I just pulled it together with [152] the rake. i
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Q. Did he pay you for cutting it and piling it?

A. No, sir.

Q. What? A. No, sir.

Q. When did you cut it? How long before the

seizure? A. What?

Q. How long before the seizure of the still,

there, did you cut it?

A. It was cut about the latter part of May and

the first of June.

Q. When was the seizure?

A. Just before that was knocked over.

Mr. O'Connor: June 3rd.

Mr. Licking: Q. June 3rd. You usually cut

that hay in the latter part of May, don't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Wasn't that just the normal harvesting op-

eration that was going on, and didn't you really

intend to use that hay, yourself?

A. That hay I cut, myself?

Q. Didn't you intend to use it?

A. No, sir, that is their hay.

Q. What did they pay you for cutting it?

A. They didn't pay me anything. I spent about

$50 putting it in and cutting it for them.

Q. You spent about $50 putting it in and cutting-

it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you did cut it as a favor to them?

A. Sir?

Q. You just cut it as a favor to them ?

A. That is all.
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Q. What does it cost you to cut hay on that

land?

A. Well, I think they cut hay this year for a

dollar and a quarter an acre—cut and bunch it for

a dollar and a quarter an acre.

Q. Then you just as a favor to them cut and

bunched the hay? A. That is right.

Q. As a matter of fact, wasn't it definitely im-

derstood from the first that they weren't interested

in the ground at all, all they wanted was the use of

the barn? A. No, sir.

Q. That wasn't? A. No, sir.

Q. You are quite sure you never noticed any

activity on their part at all? A. No, sir. [153]

Q. On these leased premises. You are equally

certain you never went over there to look ?

A. Never had no occasion to.

Q. Never had any occasion to look ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Again, so I will be sure about that, did you

believe that that clause in the lease prohibiting an

illegal use of your property was an improper

clause ?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. Objected to

upon the ground it has been asked and answered

three times.

The Court : He may answer.

A. I think it was right.

Mr. Licking: Q. Do you believe that your own

actions in never looking at the property to enforce

that were right?
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Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. Objected to

upon the ground that it is argumentative; what he

believed whether it was right or wrong is immate-

rial.

The Court: Well, the fact is that he didn't. Let

the record stand.

Mr. Licking: No further questions.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all, Mr. Dougherty.

KASPER E. CADLE,

called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff in re-

buttal; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Kasper E. Cadle.

Direct Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Cadle, where do you re-

side ? A. Salinas.

Q. How long have you lived there ?

A. 10 years.

Q. What is your occupation ?

A. Real estate business.

Q. How long have you been in the real estate

business'? A. About a year and a half. [154]

Q. Prior to being in the real estate business

what was your occupation ?

A. I managed the H. P. Garin Company's hold-

ings down in that country, farming
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Q. You managed the H. P. Garin Company, who

are growers and farmers in that area?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. They were one of the largest farmers and

growers down there ; is that correct ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know where the Dougherty ranch is

—the so-called Dougherty ranch? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know where the Dougherty house is?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the 20 acres of land

southwest of the Dougherty house and fronting on

what is known as the River Road?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, then, Mr. Cadle, you know, do you not,

that there is a barn on there that will accommodate

16 horses?

A. I know there is a very large barn; I have

seen it ; I never paid much attention as to how many

it will accommodate.

Q. You are familiar, I assume, with the value

of lands and rental values in that particular area

doAvn there, are you?

A. Yes, sir ; we had a ranch right below it, H. P.

Garin, that I leased while I was with them, just

down the road a little ways.

Q. Now, then, what would you say would be a

fair rental value for the twenty acres of land I

have described, including the use of barns and water

supply, if that ranch w^as to be used for instance
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for the running of cattle, or chickens, and for the

hay that was on the land? What would you say

would be a fair rental per acre per year f

A. Oh, $18 to $20 an acre.

Q. Would you say that $20 an acre would be an

excessive rent? A. No.

Mr. O'Connor: You may cross examine. [155]

Cross Examination

Mr. Licking: Q. Would you say that $125 a

month w^ould be an excessive rent ?

A. For the

Q. For that piece of land.

A. $125 a month, yes, it would be a good rent.

Q. I didn't ask you whether it would be a good

rent or not. I said, would you say that would be an

excessive rent, out of line and proportion to the

value of the property for the purposes mentioned

or for any legitimate purpose ?

A. $125 a month for the entire

Q. Yes, would that be out of line ?

A. That would be out of line.

Q. That would be out of line for any legitimate

purpose ? A. Yes.

Mr. Licking : That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.
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ANGELO V. RAINDA, JR.,

called for the Plaintiff in Rebuttal ; sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Angelo V. Rainda, Jr.

Direct Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Rainda, where do you

reside? A. In Salinas. ^1

Q. What is your business or occupation?

A. Real estate.

Q. How long have you been in that business?

A. About fifteen years.

Q. Do you deal in farm lands in the area in the

Salinas Valley?

A. Practically exclusively in real estate.

Q. And that includes farm lands in that area?

A. Farm lands in that area.

Q. Do you know where the Frank Dougherty

place is? A. Yes.

Q. Do you own a place of your own nearby

there? A. Just a short ways from it, yes.

Q. Directing your attention to the 20 acres of

land southwest of the [156] Frank Dougherty resi-

dence and fronting on the road known as the River

Road, are you familiar with that 20 acres ?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with land values and rent-

als in that particular area ?

A. I believe I am, sir, yes.

Q. What would you say would be a fair rental

value for the 20 acres of land I have described, in-
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eluding the barn that is situated thereon, the water

supply, the hay field, grazing land, if the property

were to be used for the purpose of raising chick-

ens and running cattle ? What would you say w^ould

be a fair rental value for that land ?

A. For raising chickens?

Q. And running cows.

A. Or running cattle, dairy stock?

Q. Dry stock. A. Dry beef stock?

Q. All I can describe it is dry stock, and the

value of the hay land.

A. The reason why—may I explain why I ask

that?

Q. Yes; go ahead.

A. The property, itself, has several valuations

due to its locality, the vicinity near Salinas, and

there are several ways of establishing valuation on

that property, and if a man wanted to use it for

any one of several things he could pay several dif-

ferent rentals.

Q. Yes.

A. So for a chicken ranch, perhaps $500, $600

a year would not be too exorbitant.

Q. Would you say that $400 a year would be a

fair rental for that property?

A. I would say it would be a very fair rental.

Q. It wouldn't be too much?

A. No, it wouldn't be too much.

Q. The land is adaptable for other purposes, too,

isn't it?
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A. The value of the property is in the fact that

it has buildings, has improvements, and that is

where the largest valuation of that property rests,

because the demand in my business has been for

the past—and at least since the time that the let-

tuce industry has been in Salinas, the canned vege-

table industry, it has always been that [157] there

has been a great demand for property anywhere

close to Salinas of that type, five, ten, twenty, thirty

acres, with buildings of some type on them, espe-

cially with water where they could bring their let-

tuce culls to, or truck them to, or carrot culls, or

bean screenings, or grain screenings—grain glean-

ings. All those added to the value, especially the

closer to Salinas the better it was for them, or

closer to the source where these culls were taken.

So I would—I have ten acres on my own place with

barn and water, and I have turned down $500 a

year rental just within the last week.

Mr. O'Connor: You may cross-examine.

Cross Examination

Mr. Licking : Q. How about the chickens ? What
use would this hay land have for the chicken in-

dustry •?

A. It would have this use : they could put—they

would put perhaps their chicken coops and chicken

houses there and there would be yards to run the

chickens, and they could run on even less than that

several thousand chickens.
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Q. Yes, but what I had in mind, they could

probably run a great many chickens on 20' acres ; in

other words, the only value of the land as far as the

running of chickens is concerned is, I suppose, for

coops and pens ? A. And yards.

Q. There is no feed for chickens on the land ?

A. There could be. He could have ten acres

Q. There isn't; I didn't ask what there could be.

A. There is, yes.

Q. What feed is there? Do they eat grass, like

cows? A. What do you mean?

Q. I mean cows eat grass, but I haven't ob-

served chickens do it down there, have you?

A. Chickens eating grass?

Q. Yes.

A. I don't know whether they do. [158]

Q. You don't know very much about the chicken

business ?

A. I think I do know something about it.

Q. You don't know whether they eat grass or

not? A. Would that be

Q. What I am getting at is this: there isn't any-

thing on that land as I listened to the testimony

here, there didn't seem to be anything on it except

grass and some hay.

A. Perhaps that hay land could be put into

barley or wheat, which it would be—it would be

barley hay, or wheat hay, or alfalfa hay, or some

type of hay.
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Q. Do you think that piece of land is susceptible

of cultivation for those crops'?

A. I think it would be for barley and wheat, yes.

Q. How about the barn, as far as the chicken

business is concerned? How would he use this

horse barn? A. For chicken business?

Q. Yes. A. Well, that I don't know, sir.

Q. Can you think up any conceivable set of cir-

cumstances where $100 a month would not be—that

is, for any legitimate purpose, would not be an ex-

cessive rental? A. $125 a month?

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, I suppose if somebody wanted a riding

academy on it—they are very horse-minded around

Salinas. There are a considerable number of horses

and people quite crazy about horses. There is a

couple of academies there now. I suppose it would

pay.

Q. You suppose $125 a month—do you expect

the Court to believe you that $125

A. I wouldn't have said it, sir, if I didn't.

Q. $125 a month. That is how^ much a year?

A. Perhaps $1500.

Q. $1500 a year. What does the land sell for,

land of that type, ten acres of hayland and five

acres of rolling pasture land with oak trees and

what-not on it? What does it sell for?

A. It is a rather indefinite way to figure it. It
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would depend on demand what a man would pay

for it. [159]

Q. What does the land sell for without improve-

ments? I am just getting at

A. There is cases I can recite where it has gone

for as high as $150 to $200' an acre.

Q. What is the average*?

A. Say $75 to $80 an acre, without the improve-

ments.

Q. $75 to $80 an acre without the improvements.

Then, putting your top price on all of it, putting

this pasture land in—you don't mean the pasture

land sells for that?

A. Everything that is there, the oaks—there is

some level land there on the lower end of the pas-

ture land.

Q. There is ten acres of level land

Mr. O'Connor: Let him finish his answer.

Mr. Licking: Q. Would $80 be the top price

for it?

A. I wouldn't want to say what the top price

would be, because demand would make the price,

and I don't know great the demand would be.

Q. In other words, if somebody wanted the land

for some particular purpose and was willing to pay

more than it was worth, why, he would take it?

A. Yes.

Q. Surely, but what I am trying to get from

you as an expert is what is the going price for land

of that type in the Salinas area. There is, as you
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know, I assume, as an expert, a going price usually

for lands of a certain type in a certain district. I

just wanted to get an idea what that was.

A. Well, I could cite a rental right this side of

it. That is the only way you can definitely set your

value what it is worth.

Q. I am speaking of the sales price ; I am speak-

ing what the land is worth an acre.

A. Oh, I see.

Q. You just said from $70 to $80 an acre.

A. Rental.

Q. Not rental.

A. You had me confused; I didn't understand

you. I thought you said what it would rent for.

[160]

Q. I didn't ask you what it would rent for. I

asked you what land like that sells for.

A. Oh, $70, to $80 an acre without improve-

ments.

Q. Take your top price

Mr. O'Connor: Let him finish his answer.

Mr. Licking: Q. You said $70 to $80 an acre?

A. Without any improvements.

Q. We will take the land, then, at your top price,

the whole thing at $80 ; that is $1600 for the whole

piece of land, that is, to buy the land.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did it cost to put up the barn?

A. Maybe $1500; maybe a little more.



vs. JoJiJi V. Leivis 219

(Testimony of Kasper E. Cadle.)

Q. That is $1500 and $1600; that is $3100 that

you could buy it for and you expect the Court to be-

lieve that a fair rental for that would be $1500 a

year?

Mr. O'Connor: He didn't say that.

A. I didn't say that that would be a fair rental.

I just cited—you asked me what it would be.

Mr. Licking: Q. I asked you if there was any

conceivable set of circumstances where $125 a month

would be a reasonable rental for it and you said

there was if somebody wanted it for a riding

academy.

A. Yes, sir, that is correct; there is nothing ex-

orbitant in that.

Q. Well, in view of the analysis of your own

statement that it isn't worth over $3100 to buy it

outright, do you expect the Court to believe that

$1500 a year would under any circumstances be a

reasonable rental?

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment. I object to that

on the ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant,

and immaterial, what he wishes the Court to be-

lieve. That is immaterial. [161]

The Court: State the fact.

Mr. Licking: Is that a fact, that a piece of land

worth, according to your own figures, $3100, is rea-

sonably under any circumstances

Mr. O'Connor: Just a moment.

Mr. Licking: Let me finish my question before
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you start your objection, if you don't mind. Will

you read my question?

(The reporter read the question, as far as

framed.)

Mr. Licking: Q. —is reasonably, under any cir-

cumstances, worth $1500 a year for rent ?

The Court : Answer that question.

A. Why, well, it wouldn't necessarily be reason-

ably so, but it could be so. They do pay a very stiff

rental, yes; I am not very versed in riding acad-

emies.

Q. Then what are you testifying about it for if

you were not versed in it? A. What is that?

Q. Then what are you testifying about it for if

you are not versed in it?

A. Well, the first question you asked me whether

it was conceivable, w^hether any conceivable

Q. I didn't ask you if it was conceivable; I said

if under any conceivable legitimate use that was a

reasonable rental. Again, if you can answer my
question, do you think that under any conceivable,

legitimate use, a piece of land worth only $3100

with improvements is worth $1500 a year in rental

value ?

A. I didn't say that it was worth $3100, because

you only quoted the land and the buildings. There

is water on the place, and fences, and corrals, and

those all have to be taken into consideration, and

perhaps the place is worth a good deal more than

that.
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Q. What kind of water is there on the place,

spring or pump ? A. I think there is a pump.

Q. There is a well and pump"?

A. Well and pump. [162]

Q. You can pump water any place in the valley,

can't you?

A. Certainly you can. Not any place in the val-

ley ; I have hit some dry wells in the valley.

Q. At that level over there *?

A. At that level.

Q. At that level through there do you hit dry

wells? A. At a much deeper level than that.

Mr. Licking: I think that is all.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all, Mr. Rainda.

Mr. Licking: Q. Just a minute. Did you ever

look at this piece of land, yourself, ever go on it?

A. Yes, I have been on it, sir.

Q. You have been on it. You say you think there

is a well on it. As a matter of fact, isn't it true

that there is no well at all, and that the well is on

the adjoining property?

A. I don't know just what the boundary is. I

can't say what the 20 acres should have over this

way or the other way. I know the boundary on the

other side, because there is a fence.

Q. I thought you said there was a fence.

A. There is a fence around the front and around

the other side, and around the upper end, the

corrals.

Q. Where is the well?
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A. I presumed that that well which appears to

be right in there was on the place, too.

Q. You don't know whether the well is on the

place, or not?

A. I don't definitely know, no.

Mr. Licking: I see. That is all.

JAMES H. RILEY,

Called for the Plaintiff in Rebuttal ; Sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. James H. Riley. [163]

Direct Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Riley, where do you

reside? A. In Salinas.

Q. How long have you lived there?

A. All my lifetime.

Q. What is your business or occupation?

A. Well, farming and cattle raising.

Q. How long have you been in that business ?

A. Oh, ever since—did nothing else.

Q. You have done that all your life?

A. Yes.

Mr. Licking: We will admit this witness' qualifi-

cations.

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Do you know the 20 acres

surrounding the Dougherty house on the River

Road ? Are you familiar with that 20 acres of land ?

A. I am familiar with the place very well.
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Q. Do you know where the Dougherty home is*?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know where the barn and corrals are

to the south of it? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know the hayfield and the 20 acres

south of that fronting on the River Road?

A. Yes.

Q. How much would you say would be the rea-

sonable value or would be a reasonable rental for

that 20 acres, including the barns, corrals, out-

houses, water supply, haytield, grazing field? How
much would you say w^ould be a reasonable rental

for that land?

A. Well, it all depends on what you use it for.

For instance, you might—some chap might come

along that would pay all kinds of rent for it. A
place like that would be hard to get. You can't pick

them up.

Q. Would you say for any purpose that $20 an

acre a year would be an excessive rent?

A. No, no.

Mr. O'Connor: You may cross-examine.

Cross Examination

Mr. Licking: Q. You mean it is worth $20 an

acre to run stock [164] on, that you as a stock man
would pay $20 an acre for that to run stock on?

A. You wouldn't really run stock on that.

Q. On the ten acres that is hay land. There is

ten acres of this hay land.
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A. That has always been in hay.

Q. Ten acres.

A. I don't know exactly j I know the strip in

there.

Q. There seems to be a concensus of opinion that

the hay land—Mr. Dougherty, himself, says the hay

land is ten acres, so we can take that as a fact. You

have rented hay land there 1

A. What is that?

Q. You have rented such hay land for hay and

sold it during the time you have been there?

A. Yes.

Q. What terms do you usually get hay land on?

We will say first when you are a purchaser, when

you want to pick up the hay.

A. When you buy hay?

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, it all depends on the season. Sometimes

you can pick up hay for $7 ; sometimes you have got

to pay $15 for it.

Q. Ordinarily, when there is a good crop of hay,

the price is low? A. Yes.

Q. When there is a poor crop of hay the price

is higher?

A. It all depends. That all depends. It all de-

pends on the demand and supply.

Q. What do you figure your own hay land is

worth, hay land like that ten acres?

A. Oh, that hay land, I have seen three ton of
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hay on that piece. I don't think it is quite that

much this year; it ain't quite as heavy.

Q. I am just asking you, what do you figure that

ha}" land is worth?

A. What the land is worth?

Q. Yes. A. Just that piece?

Q. Yes. What is hay land in that country gen-

erally worth?

A. You are talking about the sale of your land?

[165]

Q. Yes.

A. You couldn't buy that land for $200 an acre.

Q. You couldn't buy it?

A. No, you couldn't. It would go for a residen-

tial district. That is one of the most beautiful

places in the valley right there.

Q. You are speaking of subdividing it for real

estate purposes?

A. No, that would be—if you are asking me the

value, I don't think it could be bought for that

price.

Q. Is land scarce in the Salinas Valley?

A. It is hard to get hold of a little piece like

that.

The Court: Q. How many thousand acres do

you own?

A. Well, I don't—I just sold a piece, 1800.

Q. 1800? A. Yes.

Q. How long did you have that piece?

A. I have had it since 1912.
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Q. What did you pay for it?

A. I paid I think it was $7 an acre.

Q. $7 an acre. And you sold it for how much?

A. I got $12.50 an acre for it. It is rough coun-

try; it is in the rough.

Q. No hay land in it, at all?

A. Oh, yes, there is hay land. It is rough coun-

try to get into.

Q. About how many acres of hay land did you

have?

A. Oh, I guess there is about 40 or 50 acres

could be put into hay.

Q. What is the most you ever got off it during

that period?

A. I don't know. I have seen hay where the

teams—you could hardly see the team.

Q. You didn't answer my question. How much,

what tonnage did you get off it at any time ?

A. Oh, it must be a rough guess ; three ton to the

acre.

Q. From how many acres?

A. About 30 or 40 acres we put in.

Q. What is the tax on that acreage ?

A. The tax?

Q. Yes, a year? A. Really, I don't know.

Q. You paid the taxes and you don't know?

A. You mean by the acre ? [166]

Q. What taxes did you pay for that acreage dur-

ing that period that you owned this since 1912 ?



vs. Jolin V. Leivis 227

(Testimony of James H. Riley.)

A. The 1800 acres we paid about $150.

Q. How many acres did you say was in this

piece, altogether? A. About 1800.

Q. 1800 acres, and you bought it for $7 and

sold for A. Twelve and a half.

Q. Twelve and a half?

A. It is in the rough coimtry.

Q. Who did you sell it to ?

A. A fellow by the name of Godetti.

Q. What does he do with it ?

A. He is running cattle on it.

Q. How many cattle, do you know? Have you

any idea? A. You mean that I run there?

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, I used to run probably 200 head on that.

Q. Is that all the taxes for 1800 acres?

A. I think it was $160. We got a receipt on it.

The Court: Is that all from this witness?

Mr. Licking: That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all, Mr. Riley.

COY SWINDLE,

Called on behalf of the Plaintiff in Rebuttal;

sworn.

The Clerk: Please state your full name to the

Court. A. Coy Swindle.
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Direct Examination

Mr. O'Connor: Q. Mr. Swindle, what is your

business or occupation^

A. Field superintendent for Hardin Packing

Company.

Q. What business are Hardin Packing Company

engaged in? A. Produce, fresh vegetables.

Q. Do they farm in Salinas Valley?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the values of rentals

and the values of [167] land in that valley down

there? A. To a certain extent, yes.

Q. Do you know where the Frank Dougherty

place is? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the twenty acres south-

v\^est of the Frank Dougherty house on the River

Road?

A. I am familiar with most of the ranch.

Q. Do you know where the horse barn is and

the corrals immediately south of the Dougherty

ranch house? A. South of his house, yes, sir.

Q. And you are familiar with that particular

twenty acres that contain that barn, corrals, and

the hay field below it?

A. Yes, I have horses in there now.

Q. And the grazing land there, too?

A. That is right.

Q. What you say, considering the water supply

there, the corrals, the barn, the hay field, and the
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grazing field, that a rental of $20 a month would be

an excessive rental per month—$20 per year per

acre would be an excessive rental?

A. I would say it all depends on what you are

going to use it for.

Q. Tell me, do you think for any purpose that

it would be excessive, $20 an acre per year*?

A. If you would raise lettuce on it, it would be

worth a hundred, $75.

Q. Do you think that land is adaptable for let-

tuce ?

A. Part of it could be raised lettuce on ; they do

across the road.

Q. Can you tell me whether or not, assuming

that the land was to be used for the purpose of run-

ning stock on it, or grazing land, or was for a com-

bination of stock and the raising of chickens, would

you say that $20 per acre per year would be an ex-

cessive rental?

A. It doesn't sound excessive to me.

Mr. O'Connor: Cross-examine.

Cross Examination

Mr. Licking: Q. Do you run some stock, your-

self? A. Horses, yes, sir. [168]

Q. You say you have them on this particular

piece of land?

A. I have two at the present time.

Q. Oh. How long have you had the two there?

A. Since June, '35.
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Q. Since June, '35. What do you feed them"?

A. $2 a month.

Q. What do you feed them?

A. Oh, pasture. I don't feed them anything but

grass.

Q. Two of them?

A. Two there at that particular time. I have

nine head on the ranch.

Q. Are you familiar with the amount of stock

that that land will carry per acre per year?

A. Well, various numbers. I don't know how
many they carry on an average.

Q. What I am trying to get at is this—let me
see if I can express myself so you understand me:

Are you familiar with the stock business at all, your-

self? A. Some.

Q. Do you know, then, what I mean by the

carrying capacity of range? A. Certainly.

Q. Well, now, then, what is the carrying ca-

pacity of that range in that District? How many
acres do they figure necessary to run an animal per

year?

A. The whole ranch, or this particular

Q. I don't mean the whole ranch; I mean this

particular area, this ten acres—we will say ten

acres that apparently is rolling pasture.

A. Well, all I know, I see anywhere from say

ten to twenty horses there most of the time.

Q. Don't you see that they are being fed hay

also? A. Part of the time.
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Q. I am asking you again if you know anything

about the carrying capacity of land of that type,

itself? A. I couldn't testify to that.

Q. If you bring in feed from the outside I imag-

ine there is room to line up in that twenty acres

maybe 100 or 150 head of stock just to hold them

there and feed them. A. Sure. [169]

Q. Just what is the carrying capacity of that

type of land there when you rely on the productive

capacity of the land, alone?

A. I am not familiar enough with it from that

standpoint to say.

Mr. Licking: That is all.

Mr. O'Connor: That is all.

That is the Plaintiff's case, if your Honor please.

Mr. Mathewson: No further testimony.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 26, 1940. [170]

[Endorsed]: No. 9492. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Frank A.

Dougherty, Appellant, vs. John V. Lewis, Former

Collector of Internal Revenue for the First District

of California, Appellee. Transcript of Record. Upon
Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the Northern District of California, Southern

Division.

Filed April 12, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals, in

and for the Ninth Circuit.

No. 9492
II

FRANK A. DOUGHERTY
Appellant

vs.

JOHN V. LEWIS, former Collector of Internal

Revenue for the First District of California,

Respondent

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON APPEAL
Appellant upon this appeal will rely upon the

following points:

I.

That the evidence is insufficient as a matter of

law to support the judgment rendered in favor of

defendant and respondent.

II.

That on all the evidence submitted, the trial court

should have rendered judgment in favor of plaintiff

and appellant.

III.

That the trial court erred as a matter of law in

holding upon the evidence submitted that plaintiff

and appellant was a [171] '^person in any manner

interested in the use of a still, etc.", within the

meaning of Title 28, U. S. C. A., Section 1150' Sub-

division (c), paragraph (d).
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IV.

That the judgment in favor of defendant and re-

spondent is wholly unsupported by the evidence.

V.

That the findings of fact are wholly unsupported

by the evidence.

VI.

That the conclusions of law are erroneous in that

they are wholly unsupported by the evidence.

Dated: April 12, 1940.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Appellant

Receipt of a copy of the within Statement of

Points on Appeal is hereby admitted this 12th day

of April, 1940.

FRANK J. HENNESSY
United States Attorney

By W. F. MATHEWSON
Attorney for Respondent

[Endorsed]: Filed April 12, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF PARTS OF THE RECORD
NECESSARY FOR CONSIDERATION OF
APPEAL

Appellant hereby designates the following parts

of the record which he deems necessary for a con-

sideration of this appeal:
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1. Complaint.

2. Answer.

3. Judgment.

4. Order directing judgment in favor of de-

fendant.

5. Memorandum opinion.

5. Findings of fact and conclusions of law.

6. Plaintiff's proposed findings of fact and con-

clusions of law. f

7. Notice of entry of judgment. [172]

8. Notice of motion for a new trial.

9. Motion for a new trial.

10. Notice of order denying motion for a new

trial.

11. Notice of appeal.

12. Cost bond.

13. Stipulation and order re record on appeal.

14. Orders extending time to docket appeal.

15. Stipulation and order for transfer of rec-

ords, exhibits and reporter's transcript of testi-

mony.

16. Exhibits introduced at the trial.

17. Reporter's transcript of testimony taken at

the trial.

18. Certificate of clerk of District Court.

19. Statement of points on appeal.

20. Designation of Parts of the Record neces-

sary for Consideration of Appeal.

Dated: April 12, 1940.

FAULKNER & O'CONNOR
Attorneys for Appellant
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Receipt of a copy of the within Designation of

Parts of the Record necessary for Consideration of

Appeal is hereby admitted this 12th day of April,

1940.

FRANK J. HENNESSY
United States Attorney

By W. F. MATHEWSON
Attorney for Respondent

[Endorsed]: Filed April 12, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk. [173]
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No. 9492

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Frank A. Dougherty,
Apj^ellmit,

vs.

John V. Lewis, former Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the First District

of California,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

STATEMENT OF BASIS OF ORIGINAL AND APPELLATE
JURISDICTION.

The jurisdiction of the District Court is based upon

Section 24, Subdivision 5 of the Judicial Code, as

amended (28 U.S.C.A., Section 41, Subdivision 1)

gi\dng the District Courts jurisdiction "of all cases

arising under any law providing for Internal Rev-

enue". The jurisdiction facts are alleged in the

complaint. (R. pp. 1-20.)

The jurisdiction of this Honorable Court is based

upon Section 128 of the Judicial Code, as amended

(28 U.S.C.A., Section 225, Subdivision (a)), vesting

appellate jurisdiction to review final decisions of the



District Courts, in all cases except where a direct

review may be had under Section 238 of the Judicial

Code, as amended. (28 U.S.C.A., Sec. 345.) The

judgment (R. p. 36) denying appellant the relief

sought is a final decision.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

On May 4, 1938, appellant filed a complaint (R. pp.

1-20) against the former Collector of Internal Revenue

for the First District of California, praying the re-

covery of the sum of $3,557.83, and interest thereon as

provided by law, which said sum had been assessed

and collected by the former Collector from appellant,

for and on account of taxes alleged to be due, under

the provisions of Section 3251, Revised Statutes of

the United States (26 U.S.C.A., Section 2800, Sub-

division (d)), upon distilled spirits produced at a dis-

tillery. The complaint alleged the filing with the

respondent of a claim for refund of the moneys col-

lected by respondent and the rejection by the Com-

missioner of Internal Revenue of the Treasury De-

partment of the United States of the claim for refund.

(R. p. 4.) The respondent by his answer (R. p. 21)

admitted all the allegations of appellant's complaint,

save and except the averment contained in paragraphs

XII and XIII thereof. The cause was tried by the

Court without a jury and on August 8, 1939, the Dis-

trict Court filed a memorandum opinion (R. pp. 22-

26) directing judgment for respondent and against

appellant.



Findings of fact and conclusions of law were made
by the District Court on October 17, 1939 (R. pp. 30-

34) and on October 19, 1934 judgment on findings was

entered against appellant and in favor of respondent.

(R. pp. 35, 36.) Appellant appeals from this judg-

ment. (R. p. 41.)

The sole question for determination by the District

Court was, whether under Section 3251, Revised

Statutes of the United States (26 U.S.C.A., Section

2800, Subdivision D) the appellant was such a person

as described in that section, and therefore liable for

taxes due on distilled spirits produced at a distillery.

Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes of the United

States (26 U.S.C.A., Section 2800, Sub. (d)) provides:

''Every proprietor or possessor of and every

person in any manner interested in the use of, any
still, or distilling apparatus, shall be jointly and

severally liable for the taxes imposed by law on

the distilled spirits produced therefrom."

A SUMMARY OF THE EVIDENCE.

The stenographic reporter's transcript of the evi-

dence taken at the trial below has been designated and

included as part of the record on appeal, pursuant to

Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 75.

The evidence adduced at the trial was substantially

as follows:

Appellant, in support of his complaint, testified that

he was a resident of Monterey County, California, for



20 years prior to the trial and that he farmed a ranch

in said county of some 1500 acres. He was not the

owner of the ranch but rented the same from one

Robert Fatjo ; that during October, 1939, he subleased

20 acres of said ranch to certain men; that included

in said 20 acres was a barn and two outhouses ; that he

was to receive as rent the sum of $400.00, or $20.00 an

acre a year ; that he actually received as rent the sum
of $200.00 ; that he received no other moneys ; that on

June 3, 1935, he was arrested at his home on the ranch

by agents of the Alcohol Tax Agents of the Internal

Revenue Department and was taken by them to the

barn on the 20 acres he had rented and there saw a

still; that until then he had no knowledge of the

presence of the still; that he had no interest in the

still, that he had invested no money in it ; that he was

not to receive any of the profits from its operation

and that he did not receive any of the profits there-

from; that he was tried on charges concerning the

still in question and was by a jury acquitted.

That thereafter the Internal Revenue Department

assessed taxes against him and the men found operat-

ing the still, on alcohol alleged to have been produced

at the still ; that thereafter the Collector served a war-

rant of distraint on the Spreckels Sugar Company,

restraining moneys due him and that he paid to the

Collector under protest the amount which is the basis

of his present suit against the Collector.

On cross-examination he denied knowledge of the

existence of the still and any interest therein; that he

paid about $2,000.00 rent for the entire farm.



The major portion of his cross-examination is de-

voted to questions and answers concerning his knowl-

edge of the existence of the still and to whether or

not he was receiving an excessive rent. Since the

Court below found on conflicting evidence that he had

knowledge of the existence of the still and that he did

receive excessive rent for his premises, appellant does

not on this appeal contest the finding of the trial

Court on these questions and therefore, does not sum-

marize the evidence thereon. (R. pp. 50-88.)

The respondent called Robert A. Fatjo, the owner

of the ranch, who testified he rented the ranch to ap-

pellant for the sum of $2,000.00 a year. (R. pp. 88-92.)

Philip S. George, sales manager of the Pacific Gas

& Electric Co. at Salinas, who testified concerning

certain applications for power, two by the admitted

operators of the still during the time the still was in

operation and one by appellant after the seizure of the

still by the agents of the Internal Revenue Depart-

ment. (R. pp. 93-106.)

Edward C. Harkins (R. pp. 106-116), Fred L.

Myers (R. pp. 117-123), Claude M. Shanks (R. pp.

123-127), all agents of the Alcohol Tax Unit of the

Department of Internal Revenue, testified to facts

concerning the discovery and seizure of the still in

question and the arrest of appellant and the persons

actually operating the still.

Guy J. Pedroni (R. pp. 127-141), Jacob J. Bandour

(R. pp. 142-149), Herbert Baltz (R. pp. 149-156),

testified in effect, that the rental of $400.00 a year for

the 20 acres subleased by appellant was excessive.



Julius Bianchini, one of the operators of the illicit

still testified that appellant knew the 20 acres was to

be used for a still and that appellant was to receive a

rental of $125.00 a month and that he paid appellant

on three occasions. On cross-examination, he was

uncertain as to the times or amounts paid appellant.

(R. pp. 156-172.)

Guiseppi Biagi, another of the illicit still operators,

testified appellant knew the use to which the leased

property was to be put and that appellant was to

receive a rental of $125.00 a month. On cross-exami-

nation, he testified that he and Bianchini were the

proprietors of the still and that appellant had no

interest in the still and did not, and was not to receive

any profits therefrom, nor was he to assume any

losses. (R. pp. 173-187.)

Angelo Rodoni, testified appellant knew the still was

to be operated on the 20 acres leased and that the rent

was to be $125.00 a month. (R. pp. 187-201.)

Kasper E. Cadle (R. pp. 209-211), Angelo V. Riandi

(R. pp. 212-223), James H. Riley (R. pp. 222-227),

Coy Swindle (R. pp. 227-231), called as witnesses by

appellant in rebuttal testified the rental of $400.00 a

year, was not excessive.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR.

I.

The evidence is insufficient as a matter of law to

support the judgment in favor of respondent. (State-

ment of Points on Appeal, R. p. 232.)



II.

The trial Court erred in a matter of law in holding

under the evidence that appellant was within the

meaning of Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes ( Sec-

tion 2800 (d) of Title 26, United States Code An-

notated) a '' person interested in the use of the still,

distillery and distilling apparatus. (Statement of

Points on Appeal, R. p. 232.)

ARGUMENT.

The evidence is insufficient to support the judgment

and the trial Court erred in holding appellant liable

for the taxes in question.

Appellant will argue both Specifications of Error,

under the same heading because the law applicable

thereto is the same.

Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes (Section 2800

(d) of Title 26, United States Code Annotated) pro-

vides :

''Every proprietor or possessor of and every

person in any manner interested in the use of any
still, distillery or distillery apparatus shall be

jointly and severally liable for the taxes imposed

by law on the distilled spirits produced there-

from.'^

That appellant was not a "proprietor or possessor",

within the meaning of the statute is conceded by the

conclusions of law of the trial Court wherein the Court

held "plaintiff was a person interested in the use of
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the still, distillery and distilling apparatus. (R. pp.

33-34.)

The only question, in the opinion of appellant, to be

here determined is whether on the evidence appellant

was "a person interested in the use of any still", etc.

A great amount of the evidence is devoted to the

question of appellant's knowledge concerning the

operation of the illicit still in question and concern-

ing whether or not he received an excessive rent for

the premises leased by him. Appellant takes the posi-

tion his knowledge of the operation of an illicit still

is immaterial to the question of tax liability because

the statute in question taxes the distilled spirits pro-

duced from any still whether illicit or licensed. Ap-

pellant here, therefore, makes no point concerning his

lack of knowledge. Appellant likewise takes the

position that the question of whether or not the rental

received was excessive is likewise immaterial. We
are not here concerned with any criminal responsi-

bility of appellant. He has had his day in Court on

that issue and was absolved by a jury of his peers.

We are here concerned solely with a ^'revenue mea-

sure" or a 'Haxing statute".

The provisions of the statute were adopted solely

to secure to the Government the pajmient of the taxes

imposed by law on distilled spirits. The tax is payable

to the Government whether the spirits were produced

legally or illegally.

United States v, Ulrice, 111 U.S. 38, 4 S. Ct.

288;



Colletti V. Cassidy, 12 Fed. Sup. 21

;

United States v. Van Slyke, Vol. 28, Fed. Cases,

No. 16610.

Taxing statutes in case of doubt are to be construed

in favor of the taxpayer.

In connection with an interpretation to be given the

statute in question, the Court should take into con-

sideration that if there is any doubt concerning the

liability of the appellant herein for the tax due on

the distilled spirits produced on the premises he

rented, that doubt should be resolved in favor of the

appellant and against the Government.

In Gould V. Gould, 245 U.S. 151, 38 S. Ct. 53, the

Supreme Court said:

'

' In the interpretation of statutes levying taxes,

it is the established rule not to extend the provi-

sions by implication beyond the clear import of

the language used or to enlarge their operation

so as to embrace matters not specifically pointed

out. In case of doubt, they are construed most

strongly against the Government and in favor of

the citizen.''

The rule quoted above was again approved by the

Supreme Court in United States v. Merriam, 264 U.S.

179, 44 S. Ct. 69 at 71.

WHO IS "A PERSON IN ANY MANNER INTERESTED IN"?

It is the position of appellant that a landlord or a

lessor is not a ''person in any manner interested in"

within the meaning of the statute in question.
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Under the doctrine of ejusdem generis, where gen-

eral words follow the enumeration of particular classes

of persons or things, the general words will be con-

strued as applicable only to persons or things of the

same nature or class as those enumerated.

59 Corpus Juris, 981, Sec. 581.

The statute with which we are concerned, by its

language, makes liable for the tax in question *' every

proprietor or possessor of and every person in any

manner interested in the use of". Thus, we contend

the particular class of persons liable for the tax by

virtue of the statute are ''proprietors or possessors

of" and then follow the general words ''every person

in any manner interested in the use of". Thus under

the doctrine of **ejusdem generis' ' "every person in

any manner interested in the use of" refers back to

"proprietor or possessor of", so that to be liable for

the tax involved, a person must be a proprietor or

possessor of or have an interest in the losses or profits,

and the successes or failures of the business in ques-

tion or stand in the relation of a partner or share-

holder. It must be conceded by the respondent, for he

did not contend in the trial Court, nor did the trial

Court find, that appellant was "a proprietor or pos-

sessor of" as defined in the statute.

What does the word "interest" mean? It is defined

in Webster's New International Dictionary as a

"right, title, share or participation in advance, profit

and responsibility, as an interest in a brewery".

Is the rent received by a landlord such an "in-

terest"? We respectfully submit that it is not.

f
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Counsel for appellant has been able to find only one

case in point construing the statute in question and

the construction there given conforms to the conten-

tion made on this appeal. In United States v. Van
Slyke, supra, the facts were substantially as follows:

The Government sued Van Slyke to recover the

taxes alleged by the Government to be due on illicit

distilled spirits produced at a licensed distillery. The

facts showed that one Rogers and one Bunker had the

immediate control and management of the business

of the distillery, that Van Slyke was the owner of the

property. The property had previously been owned

by a person named Lentz and that the distillery busi-

ness had previously been conducted by Lentz and

Rogers, that Van Slyke as president of the bank ad-

vanced money to Lentz and Rogers and discounted

their paper, that to secure these advances Van Slyke

took a mortgage on the distillery premises from

Lentz, that subsequently this mortgage was foreclosed

and the premises bid in by Van Slyke; that subse-

quently Van Slyke leased the premises to Rogers ; that

thereafter distilled spirits were produced at the dis-

tillery. Thereafter, Rogers and Bunker manufactured

illicit wines and spirits which they removed from the

distillery and rectified without payment of the tax.

That subsequently the distillery and the property where

seized and forfeited to the Government. It was the

contention of the Government that Van Slyke was

liable for the tax because he was the owner and pro-

prietor of the distillery premises and was interested

in the profits of the distillery because of the moneys
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he had advanced to the persons operating the dis-

tillery. The suit was tried before a jury and the Court

in instructing the jury said

;

''The defendant admits and the evidence shows

that he was the owner of the premises on which

the distillery was situated, but he denies that he

was the proprietor in the sense in which that word

is used in the statute and denies that he had any

interest in the use of the still. * * * I think the

word 'proprietor' is used in the statute in the

sense of an owner who whether in personal pos-

session or not has the exclusive right to and the

control over the premises. A person in possession

of the premises as lessee under a lease for years,

has himself, as against the general owner and all

the world, the right to the exclusive possession,

control and management of the same during the

continuance of the lease, and is for all such pur-

poses as much the proprietor of the premises, for

the time being, as though he held the legal title in

fee. And I think it was never the intention of the

law to make the general owner of premises so

leased, and not himself having any right to the

possession, control or management of the prem-

ises or business carried on, and having no interest

in the distillery business except to receive his

stipulated rent, liable for the payment of the taxes

imposed by the government on the spirits dis-

tilled.''

The evidence of both appellant and respondent in

this case conclusively showed that the appellant herein

was not interested in the profits or losses of the dis-

tillery business conducted on the premises in question.
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He was to receive nothing except the rent for the

premises he had leased. He did not in any manner

participate in the business there conducted. The evi-

dence does not show that at any time while the dis-

tillery was on these premises that the appellant was

ever upon the premises or that he in any manner had

possession or control thereof or of the business therein

conducted.

It was said in United States v. Van Slyke, supra

:

''But it would be necessary to go further and

show that he had an interest in the distillery

business itself."

The facts in the Van Slyke case show Van Slyke

not only was interested in receiving his rents, but also

was interested in collecting the debt due him for

moneys he had advanced to the operators of the

distillery, whereas, in this case, the evidence shows

that the only interest of the appellant was in the

collection of his stipulated rent.

The question of whether appellant had knowledge

that the still was being illegally operated on his prem-

ises is immaterial on the question of his liability for

the payment of the tax. We are not here dealing with

the question of whether or not the appellant was

criminally liable for the operation of an illicit dis-

tillery on his premises. We are dealing merely with

the construction of a taxing statute and in this con-

nection, it was said in United States v. Van Slyke,

supra

:

"Again, the jury will understand that the de-

fendant's liability to the payment of the tax, turns
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upon the question of his being a proprietor or

possessor of the still, or interested in the use of

the still, and not upon the question of his knowl-

edge or want of knowledge, as to how^ the distillery

was being run, whether 'straight' or 'crooked'.

So that the fact of defendant's having notice that

illicit wines were being made by Rogers at the

distillery would not make him liable for the tax,

if all the interest he had in the success of the

business was to collect the debt due the bank for

rent and for moneys advanced."

In Doyle v. Scott, et al. (Tex. Civ. A.), 134 S. W.
829, the following situation was presented to the Court

of Appeals of Texas: Appellant sued as a private

citizen and property owner to enjoin one Barfield and

one Scott from engaging in selling spirituous liquors,

etc., at retail in certain retail premises located in a

hotel in Fort Worth, Texas. The Texas law provided

that each person, where one or more desire to obtain

a liquor dealers license, must state his name in the

application therefor and swear ''that no other person

or corporation is in any manner interested in or to be

interested in the proposed business". The evidence

showed that \hQ particular saloon in question was

operated by Barj&eld and that the application for the

license had been signed by Barfield alone and the

license issued to Barfield alone. The premises where

the saloon was operated by Barfield was owned by one

Scott. The evidence showed that Scott received the

sum of $150.00 a month rent and that after all expense

had been paid and after Barfield had received a draw-
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ing account of $100.00 a month, the profits over and

above were divided equally between Barfield, the

operator of the saloon, and Scott, the owner of the

premises. It was the contention of the appellants in

these proceedings, because of this arrangement Scott

was a person interested in the business.

The Court said

:

''This state of facts does not constitute Scott

a partner or 'in any manner interested in' the

business within the meaning of the law cited. The

Hnterest' meant hy the law means something more

than the general interest every landlord has to

receive the desired rentals for the use of his

property. It must mean some interest in the

business itself. A quotation from Parsons on

Partnership may be looked to in illustration. He
says: 'Where the owner of property leases it

for business purposes, agreeing to receive in rent

a proportion of the profits of the business, he

receives the amount merely as rent and not as a

partner in the business.'
"

In Doyle v. Scott, supra, the landlord was to re-

ceive not only his stipulated rent, but over and above,

was to share equally in the profits of the business,

after allowing the owner a drawing accoimt of $100.00

a month.

In the present case appellant, according to the testi-

mony of the witnesses for both sides, was to receive

nothing but his rent. It was not to share in the

profits or losses. Under the ruling in Doyle v. Scott,

supra, the fact that appellant's rent was excessive
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would not, make him ^'a person in any manner in-

terested in the use of any still, etc."

In construing who are persons interested in the use

of a still or distillery, the Supreme Court of the State

of California has held in Rider v. Henningsen, 110

Cal. 530, that where a corporation was engaged in the

business of distilling that a stockholder of the corpo-

ration was a person *' interested in the use of the still,

etc., owned by the corporation and used in its business

within the meaning of the statute here xmder con-

sideration".

The Court there said:

''A stockholder in a private corporation for

profit is not in any proper sense the owner of the

property of the corporation as such. He has,

however, a direct interest in the corporation. In

Plimpton V. Bigelow, 93 N.Y. 591, it was said:

'The owner, being a shareholder in a corporation,

has by reason of his ownership of shares, a right

to participate according to the amount of his stock

in the surplus profits of the corporation on a divi-

sion and ultimately on its dissolution in the assets

remaining after payment of its debts."

The above cited case is authority for the position

of appellant that to be a person liable for the tax

herein in question, he must have had an interest in the

profits or losses, in the success or failure of the still in

question.

We submit under the authorities cited that the rent

received by a landlord for premises where a still is

operated, does not render the landlord a person in
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"any manner interested in the use of a still, etc."

within the meaning of the statute under discussion.

This is true whether the rent be excessive or not. He
received nothing but his stipulated rent. This he

receives whether the still makes money or loses money.

He has no other interest in the still.

CONCLUSION.

We, therefore, respectfully submit the judgment of

the District Court should be reversed because,

I. The evidence is insufficient as a matter of law to

support the judgment in favor of respondent.

II. The trial Court erred in a matter of law in

holding under the evidence that appellant was, within

the meaning of Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes

(Section 2800 (d) of Title 26, United States Code

Annotated) "a person interested in the use of the still,

distillery or distilling apparatus".

Dated, San Francisco,

June 10, 1940.

Respectfully submitted,

Faulkner & O'Connor,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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STATEMENT OF BASIS OF ORIGINAL AND APPELLATE
JURISDICTION.

The appellee concurs with appellant in his statement

of the basis of the original and appellate jurisdiction.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

The appellee concurs with the appellant in his state-

ment of the case.



SUMMARY OF THE EVIDENCE.

The summary of the evidence made by the appel-

lant is truthful but, in appellee's opinion, is not suffi-

ciently comprehensive. Appellee believes that the

following statements should be added to the summary

of the evidence

:

Julius Bianchini also testified that the appellant

was told that they wanted just the bam to operate a

still, with enough land to get to the barn, maybe five

or ten acres, and that the lease was prepared to ''save"

the appellant; that they moved in in October, 1934,

took thirty days to set up the still and operated 21

or 22 days, then ceased operations for four months

when they again operated 13 days; that they paid

appellant $125.00 twice in 1934 and $125.00 when they

resumed operations in 1935.

Guiseppi Biagi also testified that they told the ap-

pellant they wanted only the barn and the front and

that appellant included the 20 acres ; that the still was

shut down after 21 or 22 days because alcohol was so

cheap they could make no profit.

Angelo Rodoni also testified that they told appel-

lant they wanted to rent the barn to make whiskey and

that they would make a lease to show it was rented

for cattle.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR.

Appellee denies that the trial Court committed the

two specified errors and asserts:



I.

The evidence is sufficient as a matter of law to sup-

port the judgment in favor of respondent (appellee)

and

II.

The trial Court did not err in a matter of law in

holding imder the evidence that appellant was, within

the meaning of Section 3251 of the Revised Statutes

(Section 2800 (d) of Title 26, United States Code

Annotated) a "person interested in the use of the still,

distillery and distilling apparatus '\

ARGUMEirr.

QUESTION.

Appellee concedes that the appellant was not a

'* proprietor or possessor" within the meaning of the

statute.

Appellee concedes that the only question to be de-

termined is whether on the evidence appellant was a

person in miy manner interested in the use of amy

still, distillery or distilling apparatus.

KNOWLEDGE AND EXCESSIVE RENTAL.

The appellant admitted on page 5 of appellant's

opening brief that the trial Court found on conflict-

ing evidence that appellant had knowledge of the

existence of the still and that appellant did receive



excessive rent for his premises. Appellant also stated

that he would not contest the findings of the trial

Court on these questions.

As pointed out in the appellee's summary of the

evidence the appellant's summary is too narrow. The

findings of the Court with respect to knowledge and

rent are broader than admitted by appellant. The per-

tinent findings are in Findings of Facts and Conclu-

sions of Law, paragraph II (Tr. pp. 31 and 32).

Assuming, however, that the trial Court found that

appellant only had knowledge of the operation of the

illicit still (rather than actively entering into an

agreement for its establishment and concealment) and

that appellant only received excessive rental (rather

than an amount of money so disproportionate to rental

it could no longer be called rental, paid at times

coincidental with the profitable operation of the dis-

tillery), such knowledge and rental are not imma-

terial. Without knowledge of the operation the ap-

pellant could not under any construction of the stat-

ute be interested in the distillery.

As the trial Court pointed out in its memorandum
opinion (Tr. p. 25), the Court in the case of United

States V. Van Slyhe, 28 Fed. Cas. 363 (Case No.

16,610), relied upon by appellant (Appellant's Open-

ing Brief p. 11), stated on page 365:

''But his knowledge, if he had such knowledge,

that the distillery was being run contrary to law
and that the taxes were not being paid, and his

conduct in relation thereto, are all to be considered

as part of the evidence in this case, and it is for



you to say how far they bear upon the question

of his interest in the distillery business."

PURPOSE OF SECTION 2800 (d).

Appellee admits that the provisions of the statute

were adopted to secure to the government the payment

of the taxes imposed by law on distilled spirits and

that the tax is payable to the government whether the

spirits are produced legally or illegally.

TAXING STATUTES IN CASE OF DOUBT ARE TO BE
CONSTRUED IN FAVOR OF THE TAXPAYER.

The appellant has cited two cases in support of the

proposition "Taxing statutes in case of doubt are to

be construed in favor of the taxpayer". The cases are

not authority for the proposition. Both cases merely

hold that a statute levying a tax must not be con-

strued to embrace matters not specifically pointed out,

i. e., the subject matter of the levy. In the case at bar

the tax is levied on distilled spirits and the section

in question is intended to prevent the evasion of the

tax.

Section 2800 (d), of Title 26, United States Code

Annotated which is derived from Section 1 of the

Internal Revenue Laws of 1868 is not only a tax

measure, it is one of the Internal Revenue Laws and

as such, unlike a penal law, it is not to be strictly con-

strued, nor is it like a remedial statute, to be construed



with extraordinary liberality, but it should be so con-

strued as most effectually to accomplish the intention

of Congress in passing it.

U. S. V. Stowell, 133 U. S. 1, 12.

One of the purposes of Section 2800 (d) is the pre-

vention of fraud upon the Government. In United

States V. Walters, et al (S. D. Cal. 1891), 46 Fed.

509, 510, the Court stated with respect to this section

now imder consideration, and its provision:

** Revenue laws are not, like penal laws, to be

strictly construed, nor are they, like remedial

statutes, to be construed with extraordinary

liberality; but they should be so construed ^as

most effectually to accomplish the intention of

the legislature in passing them'. Taylor v. U. S.,

3 Howard 197. The provisions of the law are

rigid, and in some instances perhaps arbitrary, in

their operation. But they were designed to pre-

vent frauds upon the government, and whoever

engages in business by virtue of their provisions

must be governed by them."

WHO IS "A PERSON IN ANY MANNER INTERESTED IN"?

Appellant states that it is his position that '*a land-

lord or a lessor is not a 'person in any manner in-

terested in', within the meaning of the statute in.

question".

As a logical matter, a landlord or a lessor could be

''a person in any manner interested in" the use of a

still just as he could be a "proprietor" or ''possessor"

of a still. The fact that a person is a landlord or a



lessor of premises upon which a distillery is located

does not in itself remove him from the purview of the

statute.

If a person were a landlord or a lessor of premises

upon which a properly registered and bonded dis-

tillery operated and the landlord's only financial in-

terest was a reasonable and normal rent the appellee

would admit that the landlord or lessor was not a

person interested in the distillery.

If, however, a person were a landlord or a lessor of

premises upon which an imregistered, unbounded, il-

legal distillery were in operation with the landlord's

knowledge, appellee contends that the landlord or

lessor would be a person interested in the use of the

distillery. The purpose of Section 2800 (d) was to

prevent frauds upon the Government.

United States v. Walters, et at. (S. D. Cal.

1891), 46 Fed. 509, 510.

A landlord or lessor of premises upon which an un-

registered, unbonded distillery is operated with the

knowledge of the landlord or lessor, definitely aids the

operators in perpetrating a fraud upon the Govern-

ment.

The appellant in this case, however, was more than

a landlord with mere knowledge that an illicit dis-

tillery was operated on the leased premises and that

the source of his rental was the profits ,of the illegal

enterprise. The appellant was ''interested in" the

use of the still even within the narrow definition of

the phrase as devised and stated on page 10 of the
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appellant's brief. The appellant was interested in

the losses and the profits and the success and failure

of the business. The appellant was advised by the

still operators that they wanted the bam to operate

a still ; that they wanted only enough land for ingress

and egress to the barn; that they would sign a lease

to ''save" the appellant; and that the rental would be

$125.00 per month (so disproportionate to the actual

rental value as to cease to be rent). Thus with full

knowledge of the enterprise the appellant permitted

the operators to consummate upon his property a tax

evading scheme; he effectively furnished them more

than the use of a barn or land or water. By agree-

ment made before the enterprise was established, he

furnished a vital element of the enterprise, conceal-

ment. This was far more than mere knowledge of

the existence of a still acquired after it was in opera-

tion. The so-called ''rent" appellant received was

not only excessive but was paid only when the dis-

tillery was profitably operating. The still was set

up and operated 21 or 22 days. "Rent" was paid

for October when it was set up and for November

when it^ was operated. The still shut dow^n for four

months because no profit could be made and during

that time no "rent" was paid to appellant. "Rent"

was paid again when operation was resumed.

Appellant had no right to rental for the premises

because they were knowingly leased for an unlawful

purpose and surely the use of a term "rental" can-

not be successfully employed to conceal a payment

from the profits of a still for furnishing a place of



concealment especially when that term is knowingly

employed to enable the appellant to escape his tax

and criminal liability.

The Walters case demonstrates that the Court

should so construe Section 2800 (d) as to prevent the

appellant here from successfully consummating a

planned fraud upon the revenue.

The appellant certainly knowingly assisted Biagi,

Bianchini and Rodoni in the perpetration of a fraud,

and most certainly, if it is possible to so construe Sec-

tion 2800 (d), it should be construed to prevent the

successful perpetration of a fraud upon the revenue.

That the language 'interested in" has been inter-

preted to mean "assist" is ishown by the case of

Brown v. State, (Ark. 1923), 255 S. W. 878, 879,

where the Court stated:

" 'Where the intermediary between the pur-

chaser and the seller is a necessary factor, with-

out whose assistance the sale of liquor could not

have been consummated he is interested in the

sale, in the sense of the law, whether he has * * *

pecuniary interest or not'."

Surely in the instant case appellant was an inter-

mediary who made possible the utilization of his land

by men whom he knew intended to use that land to

defraud the revenue. He assisted them in the con-

summation of an illegal, fraudulent enterprise. With-

out appellant's assistance in furnishing a place of

concealment the fraudulent enterprise would not have

been possible.
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It is respectfully urged that a construction which

necessitates the finding of pecuniary interest will be

contrary to the intention of Congress in the enact-

ment of this legislation.

Reference is respectfully made to the discussions

that occurred and the debates that were had in the

House of Representatives, commencing on June 23,

1868, and continuing until the final enactment and

approval of this Section as Section 1 of an '^Act

imposing taxes on distilled spirits and tobacco and

for other purposes'\ 40th Congress, Session II, Chap-

ter 186, approved July 20, 1868, 15 Stats. 125. These

discussions and debates may best be summarized by a

statement that at the time of the consideration of this

Section immediately following the Civil War, the

Fortieth Congress had under consideration methods

and means of circumventing and preventing frauds in

connection with the distillation of distilled spirits

that had assumed such huge proportions that Con-

gress felt that it was necessary to the very safety of

the Government to take steps to break the strangle-

hold of a large group of illicit distillers and corrupt

Internal Revenue Agents known as the ''whiskey

ring". To accomplish this purpose Congress re-

vamped the Internal Revenue Laws, reduced the

taxes from $2.00 per gallon to 50 cents per gallon and

changed the place for tax payment from the bonded

warehouse to the distillery itself. That Congress in-

tended that this Section should be strictly construed

must be evident from the debates which demonstrated
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that it was Congress' supreme effort to prevent tax

evasion.

Although there was no direct debate with respect

to this particular provision of Section 1, that Con-

gress intended to make liable persons other than

proprietors or possessors of stills is evident from the

amendment offered by Senator Morrill of Vermont

appearing on page 3831 of Vol. 152 of the Congres-

sional Globe, Pt. 4, 2nd Session, 40th Congress. There

Mr. Morrill proposed an amendment:
"I desire to propose a few^ amendments, to which

I think there will be no objection, which are

merely verbal. On page 27, line 16 of Section

Twenty-one, after the word 'distiller', I move to

insert 'or other persons liable'. By reference to

page 2, line fourteen of section one, it will be

seen that there are some other persons who may
be liable and therefore, they ought to be included

here.

The amendment was agreed to."

Section 1 as referred to in this quotation, appears

as 'Section 1 of Page 3738 of Volume 152 of the Con-

gressional Globe:

''Be it enacted, dec., That there shall be levied

and collected on all distilled spirits on which
the tax prescribed by law has not been paid, a
tax of fifty cents on each and every proof gallon,

to be paid by the distiller, owner, or person hav-

ing possession thereof before removal from dis-

tillery warehouse; and the tax on such spirits

shall be collected on the whole number of gauge
or wine gallons when below proof, and shall be

increased in proportion for any greater strength
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than the strength of proof-spirit as defined in

this act; and any fractional part of a gallon in

excess of the number of gallons in a cask or pack-

age, shall be taxed as a gallon. Every proprietor

or possessor of a still, distillery, or distilling ap-

paratus, and every person in any manner inter-

ested in ;the use of any such still, distillery, or

distilling apparatus, shall be jointly and severally

liable for the taxes imposed by law on the dis-

tilled spirits produced therefrom and the tax

shall be a first lien on the spirits distilled, the

distillery used for distilling the same, the stills,

vessels, fixtures, and tools therein, and on the lot

or tract of land whereon the said distillery is sit-

uated, together with any building thereon, from
the time saidi spirits are distilled until the said

tax shall be paid/'

Section 21 there referred to appears as Section

(19) 20, on page 3746 of Volume 152 of the Congres-

sional Globe:

''Sec. (19) 20. And he it further enacted,

That on the receipt of the distiller's first return

in each month the assessor shall proceed to in-

quire and determine whether said distiller has

accounted in his returns for the preceding month
for all the spirits produced by him; and to de-

termine the quantity of spirits thus to be ac-

counted for, the whole quantity of spirits pro-

duced from the materials used shall be ascer-

tained; and forty-five gallons of mash or beer

brewed or fermented from grain shall represent

not less than one bushel of grain, and seven gal-

lons of mash or beer brewed or fermented from

molasses shall represent not less than one gallon

of molasses. In case the return o£ the distiller
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shall have been [less than the quantity thus as-

certained, the distiller] (line 16) shall be assessed

for such deficiency at the rate of fifty cents for

every proof gallon, and the collector shall pro-

ceed to collect the same as in] cases of other as-

sessments for deficiencies ; but in no case shall the

quantity of spirits returned by the distiller, to-

gether with the quantity so assessed, be for a less

quantity of spirits than eighty per cent, of the

producing capacity of the distillery."

As amended. Section 21 appears as Section 20 in

the Act, 15 Statutes at Large 133:

"Sec. 20. And he it further enacted, That on

receipt of the distiller's first return in each month,

the assessor shall inquire and determine whether

said distiller has accounted in his returns for the

preceding month for all the spirits produced by
him; and to determine the quantity of spirits

thus to be accounted for, the whole quantity of

materials used for the production of spirits shall

be ascertained; and forty-five gallons of mash or

beer brewed or fermented from grain shall repre-

sent not less than one bushel of grain, and seven

gallons of mash or beer brewed or fermented

from molasses shall represent not less than one

gallon of molasses. In case the return of the

distiller shall have been less than the quantity

thus ascertained, the distiller or other person

liable (Italics ours) shall be assessed for such

deficiency at the rate of fifty cents for every

proof gallon, together with the special tax of four

dollars for every cask of forty proof gallons, and
the collector shall proceed to collect the same as

in cases of other assessments for deficiencies ; but

in no case shall the quantity of spirits returned
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by the distiller, together with the quantity so

assessed, be for a less quantity of spirits than

eighty percentum of the producing capacity of

the distillery, as estimated under the provisions

of this act."

It is apparent from the provisions of Section 2815

(b) (1) of Title 26 IJ.S.C.A., that Congress had un-

der consideration the problem of tax collection when

the distillery premises were owned by one other than

the distiller. It is there provided in substance that

a lessee distiller cannot establish a bonded distillery

unless he first files with the Collector the written con-

sent of the lessor, in which the owner must consent

that the premises may be used for distilling spirits,

that the lien of the United States for taxes and pen-

alties shall attach to the land and that in the event

of forfeiture of the distillery or any parts of it, title

to the land shall vest in the United States.

Section 2833 of Title 26, which appears as Section

44 of the Act as passed in 1868, provides that if the

owner of real estate suffers or permits the carrying

on of the business of a distiller upon his land without

the distiller giving a bond or if the owner of the land

connives at the same, that all of the o^vner's right,

title and interest in the land shall be forfeited. That

section also provides that the interest of every person

in any premises used for ingress or egress to or from

the distillery, who has knowingly suffered or per-

mitted his premises to be used for such ingress or

egress shall be forfeited to the United States. Thus

if the appellant had owned this property, the property
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itself would have been forfeited to the United States.

Appellant's leasehold interest was forfeitable under

Section 2833 but was valueless. Can it be said that

it is a proper construction of Section 2800(d) that

appellant, who suffered, permitted and connived at

the conduct of an illicit distillery upon his property,

was considered by Congress as sufficiently interested

in the use of the still to cause Congress to forfeit his

interest in the property, but that Congress did not con-

sider him as sufficiently interested in the use of the

still to make him liable for taxes ? It is apparent from

the amendment of Senator Morrill that Congress in-

tended that this language—'4n any manner inter-

ested", should be construed broadly.

THE DOCTRINE OF EJUSDEM GENERIS IS NOT APPLICABLE.

The form of the phrase precludes the application

of the rule. The statute established two classes : pro-

prietors or possessors of stills and every person in

any manner interested in the use of a distillery. It

is apparent that the second phrase describes a class

or genus. It is more than a '^ general word" which,

following a number of words describing species within

a class must be considered as covering all luinamed

species within the same class. Such general words are

almost universally preceded by the word *' other" in

those cases where the doctrine of ejusdem generis is

applied. In the statute at hand we have two classes

described; the second class is larger than the first

and has a definite and clear meaning not dependent
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upon the existence of the ''specie" words ''proprie-

tors" or "possessors".

Assiuning, however, that the form permits of the

application of the rule, it must be remembered that

the doctrine of ejusdem generis is only a rule of con-

struction to be applied as an aid in ascertaining the

legislative intent, and cannot control where the plain

purpose and intent of the legislature would thereby be

hindered or defeated.

59 Corpus Juris 982, Sec. 581.

The restricted use of the rule is well expressed by

Mr. Justice Sutherland in Mason et al. v. United

States (1923), 260 U. S. 545 at page 554, as follows:

"The rule is one well established and frequently

invoked, but it is, after all, a rule of construction,

to be resorted to only as an aid to the ascertain

ment of the meaning of doubtful w^ords and
phrases, and not to control or limit their meaning
contrary to the true intent. It cannot be em-

ployed to render general words meaningless, since

that would be to disregard the primary rules, that

effect should be given to every part of a statute,

if legitimately possible, and that the words of

a statute or other document are to be taken ac-

cording to their natural meaning. Here the sup-

posed specific words are sufficiently comprehensive

to exhaust the genus and leave nothing essen-

tially similar upon which the general words may
operate."

As Mr. Justice Van Devanter stated in Danciger et

al., Doing Business as Danciger Brothers v. Cooley

(1919), 248 U. S. 319 at page 326, in construing a

statute employing somewhat similar language and

construction

:
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''The first, as before quoted, says:

'Any railroad company, express company, or

other common carrier, or any other person who,

in connection with the transportation of any
* * * intoxicating liquor * * * from one State
* * * into any other State, * * * shall collect

the purchase price or any part thereof, before,

on, or after delivery, from the consignee, or

from any other person, * * * shall be fined,'

etc.

The words 'any railroad company, express com-

pany, or other common carrier', comprehend all

public carriers; and the words 'or any other per-

son' are equally broad. When combined they per-

fectly express a purpose to include all common
carriers and all persons; and it does not detract

from this view that the inclusion of railroad com-

panies and express companies is emphasized by
specially naming them. To hold that the words

'or any other person' have the same meaning as

if they were 'or any agent of a common carrier'

would be not merely to depart from the primary
rule that words are to be taken in their ordinary

sense, but to narrow the operation of the statute

to an extent that would seriously imperil the ac-

complishment of its purpose. The rule that where
particular words of description are followed by
general terms the latter will be regarded as ap-

plicable only to persons or things of a like class

is invoked in this connection, but it is far from
being of universal application, and never is ap-

plied when to do so will give to a statute an opera-

tion different from that intended by the body
enacting it. Its proper office is to give effect to

the true intention of that body, not to defeat it."
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WEBSTER'S DEFINmON OF "INTEREST".

^'Interest" as defined in Webster's New Interna-

tional Dictionary, Second Edition (1937) has ten dif-

ferent meanings, two of which are as follows

:

*'l. A right, title, share, or participation in

a thing, as, formerly, in the production of an

effect; specif., participation in advantage, profit,

and responsibility; as, an interest in a bakery.

Hence, that in which one has such an interest,

esp., business affairs; business; as, his interests

are in silk imports.

2. Concern, or the state of being concerned

or affected, esp. with respect to advantage, per-

sonal or general ; hence, good, regarded as a selfish

benefit; profit; benefit."

Appellant chooses but one meaning for the word '* in-

terest" which is not used in the statute. The word

used in the statute is "interested".

"Interested" is defined as follows:

"1. Having the attention engaged ; having emo-

tion or passion excited; as, an interested listener.

2. Having an interest; having a share or con-

cern in some project or affair; involved; liable

to be affected or prejudiced; as, an interested

witness; having self-interest; not disinterested;

as, generosity proceeding from interested mo-
tives."

That Congress intended that this broad adjective

should be given a broad meaning is evidenced by the

use of the broad phrase "in any manner".
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THE VAN SLYKE CASE.

The Court permitted the Vcm Slyke case to go to

the jury. The Court, therefore, believed that there

was sufficient evidence for the jury to find that the

interest of Van Slyke made him liable under the pro-

visions of Section 2800(d). The Court's instruction

does not disclose this evidence. It is not apparent

whether or not the rental was so excessive as to con-

stitute a financial interest other than a lessor's inter-

est. It is not apparent what evidence caused the

United States Attorney to contend that the lease and

contract were documents used to cloak a more sub-

stantial interest than the interest of a lessor. It is

not apparent what showing was made that Van Slyke

knew of the illicit operation in an otherwise lawfully

operated, registered and bonded distillery, although

the Court instructed the jury to consider this knowl-

edge in determining Van Slyke 's interest. There was

apparently no showing that Van Slyke deliberately

connived with his lawful lessees to commit unlawful

acts. There was apparently no showing that Van
Slyke was entitled to the immediate possession of the

premises, as appellant was, had he cared to enforce

the covenant against the illegal use of his property.

In the Vam. Slyke case the Court and jury con-

sidered a registered and bonded enterprise from which

the lessor could lawfully accept rent to permit the

conduct of an apparently lawful business on prop-

erty which he held for his bank; property which had

been forfeited to the United States previous to the

action for taxes. In this case the Court has under
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consideration an unlaw^fully established and operated

enterprise from which appellant could not lawfully

accept rent to permit the conduct of the unlawful

business on his property.

In the Van Slyke case there was a lawful business

tainted with illegal conduct. In the case at bar there

is an unlawful enterprise with the sole appearance of

legality consisting of a lease prepared to successfully

consummate the illegality.

In the Van Slyke case the burden of proof was

upon the plaintiff, the United States. In the case at

bar the burden of proof was upon the appellant.

U. S. Fidelity d Guaranty Co. v. United States

(CCA—2, 1912), 201 Fed. 91, 92;

Ma/yes v. Casey, 252 Fed. 754.

DOYLE V. SCOTT, ET AL.

This case cited by appellant for his proposition that

excessive rental does not make him *'a person in any

manner interested in the use of any still, etc." is not

applicable authority. The obvious purpose of the

Texas statute was to require a revelation of all per-

sons who were in control of the business of liquor

dealing. It was a regulatory measure for the control

of the liquor business. The purpose of the statute did

not require the revelation of persons interested unless

they controlled the business or shared the control.

The statute under consideration is a tax measure

obviously designed to make liable for taxes all persons

who benefit financially from the operation or enable

others to evade taxes.
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RICHTER V. HENNINGSAN.

The case of Bichter v. Henningsan, 110 Cal. 530,

is not authority for the proposition cited by plaintiff.

This case, as does the case of United States v. Walters

et al., supra, holds that a stockholder, although not a

proprietor or possessor, is interested in the operation

ot the still. The case is not authority for the proposi-

tion that a pecuniary interest is necessary to establish

an interest in the still within the meaning of Section

2800(d).

Appellee submits that imder the authorities cited

above as applied to the findings of the trial Court

based upon the , evidence adduced at the trial the ap-

pellant was a person in '^any manner interested in

the use of a still, etc." within the meaning of the

statute under discussion.

CONCLUSION.

Appellee, therefore, respectfully submits that the

judgment of the District Court be affirmed.

Dated, San Francisco,

July 10, 1940.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank J. Hennessy,
United States Attorney,

W. E. Licking,
Assistant United States Attorney,

W. F. Mathewson,
Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee.
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